
Table of Contents - September 27, 2021 NFWB 
Meeting

1)  September 27, 2021 NFWB Meeting Agenda
2)  Correspondence from Bill Wright Regarding Retirement Effective December 23, 2021
3)  Draft July 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes
4)  Draft August 9, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
5)  September 27, 2021 Personnel Action Sheet
6)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-001 - Agreement for Generator Maintenance
7)  Kinsley Generator Maint Quote Revised June 22, 2021
8)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-002 - Heavy Equipment for Outside Maintenance
9)  First John Deere 75G Procurement Supporting Documentation
10)  Second John Deere 75G Procurement Supporting Documentation
11)  John Deere 333G Procurement Supporting Document
12)  Trail King Tilt Trailers Procurement Supporting Document
13)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-003 - Extend Bid for Root Control
14)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-004 - Award Bid For Primary Treatment Polymer
15)  Primary Treatment Polymer Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation
16)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-005 - Third Amendment to Operation Agreement
17)  Draft Third Amendment to Operation Agreement
18)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-006 - Procurement of Grit Cyclone Screw and Parts
19)  Koester Associates Grit Screw Quote
20)  Koester Associates Wear Shoes Quote
21)  Grit Parts Sole Source Letter
22)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-007 - Declaring Certain Property Surplus to be Disposed of at Auction

23)  List of Items to be Declared Surplus and Sold at Auction
24)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-008 - Payment to Bonadio & Co for 2020 Audit and Exercising 2021 Audit
 Option
25)  Bonadio Invoice for Additional Fee for 2020 Audit Services
26)  Bonadio Engagement Letter January 2020
27)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-009 - Change Orders for Project 2, Gorge Pump Station Rehabilitation

28)  STC-Change Order No. 1
29)  J. W. Danforth-Change Order No. 1
30)  CIR-Change Order No. 1
31)  GHD Proposal dated September 8, 2021
32)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-010 - Exempt Executive Telecommuting Policy and Agreement

33)  Draft Exempt Executive Employee Telecommuting Policy
34)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-011 - Accepting Proposal for Property, Liability, and Umbrella Insurance 
Policies
35)  USI Renewal Narrative

3
13
14
26
28
29
31
37
40
49
58
65
69
71
72
74
75
84
85
88
91

92
93

94
96
97

106
108
109
110
111

114
115

116
118



36)  Insurance Renewal Proposal
37)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-012 - Accepting Proposal for Rate Consultant Services
38)  Zehraoui_092321_Memorandum_Re RFP 2021-02 - Rate Consultant and Consulting Engineer

39)  Drescher & Malecki Proposal-Rate Consultant
40)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-013 - Accepting Proposal for Consulting Engineer Services
41)  Zehraoui_092321_Memorandum_Re RFP 2021-02 - Rate Consultant and Consulting Engineer

42)  AECOM Proposal-Consulting Engineer
43)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-014 - Authorizing Execution of FEMA Grant Agreement
44)  FEMA Project Grant Master Contract C000804_1
45)  NFWB Storage Capacity Report
46)  NFWB Tank and Water Operations Report 9-15-21

119
158

159
160
180

181
182
237
238
320
332



Page 1 of 10 

AGENDA 
Meeting of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

September 27, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 
***Meeting may be attended in person or via conference call -- 

visit NFWB.org for call-in details.***  

1. Preliminary Matters 

a. Attendance: 

Asklar (Board Member/Chairman of Finance/Member Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) ____  

Forster (Chairman) ____  

Kimble (Board Member) ____  

Larkin (Board Member/Vice Chairwoman/Governance Chairwoman/ 
Chairwoman Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) ____  

Leffler (Board Member/Member Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) ____ 

b. Comments from Chairman Forster 

c. Letters and Communications 
i. September 14, 2021 DEC Letter Approving Use of Phase II Funds for 

WWTP Intermediate Pumps 
ii. Correspondence from City Administrator Extending Operation 

Agreement to September 29, 2021 
iii. Correspondence from Bill Wright Regarding Retirement Effective 

December 23, 2021. 

a. Public Comments (All speakers must register with the meeting clerk prior to 
roll call and are limited to three minutes per person – total time for all 
speakers may not exceed one hour). 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 1



Page 2 of 10 

b. Approval of Minutes  

i. Draft July 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
ii. Draft August 9, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes 

2. Executive Director – Dr. Abderrahman Zehraoui 

a. WWTP Project Budget Tracker (CPL)   
b. WWTP Construction Schedule Tracker (CPL)   
c. Financial Award Summary (CPL) 
d. Infrastructure Initiative 

i. Memorandum 
ii. PowerPoint Presentation 

iii. Correspondence from Dr. Zehraoui to Congressman Higgins 
iv. Letter of Support From Mayor Restaino 
v. Letter of Support from Legislator Grozio 

3. Superintendent – William Wright 

a. Plan for Procurement of Heavy Equipment for Outside Maintenance 

4. Engineering – Douglas Williamson 

a. FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program HMGP Project No.4204-0003: 
b. Town of Niagara Flow Monitoring 

i. Flow Monitoring Location Map 
c. CIP Plan Update 

i. September 14, 2021 Draft Update 

5. Personnel Items – John Accardo 

a. September 27, 2021 Personnel Actions Sheet 

6. Information Technology (IT) – Dr. Abderrahman Zehraoui 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 2



Page 3 of 10 

7. Finance – Brian Majchrowicz 

a. 2022 Budget Update 
b. Revenue Budget Performance Report through August 31 
c. Sewer Fund Expense Budget Performance Report through August 31 
d. Water Fund Expense Budget Performance Report through August 31 
e. Board Fund Expense Budget Performance Report through August 31 
f. Bank Balance Report – Bank on Buffalo and KeyBank 
g. Treasury Investment Bank Balance 
h. Wilmington Trust Bank Balances 
i. Capital Payments – August 2021 
j. August 2021 Budget Amendment Report 

8. Questions Regarding August  2021 Operations and Maintenance Report 

9. Safety – John Accardo 

10.  General Counsel and Secretary – Sean Costello 

a. Proposals for Rate Consultant and Consulting Engineer 
b. Third Amendment to Operation Agreement 

11. Resolutions  

2021-09-001 – GENERATOR PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH KINSLEY POWER SYSTEMS 

a. Kinsley Generator Maintenance Quote Revised June 22, 2021 

2021-09-002 – HEAVY EQUIPMENT FOR OUTSIDE MAINTENANCE 
a. First John Deere 75G  
b. Second John Deere 75G  
c. John Deere 333G  
d. Trail King Tilt Trailers 

2021-09-003 – AUTHORIZING EXTENSION OF BID FOR SEWER LINE CHEMICAL 
ROOT CONTROL 

2021-09-004 – AWARD BID FOR PRIMARY TREATMENT POLYMER 
a. Award Recommendation Letter and Bid Tabulation  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 3



Page 4 of 10 

2021-09-005 – APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO OPERATION AGREEMENT 
WITH CITY 

a. Draft Third Amendment 

2021-09-006 – PROCUREMENT OF GRIT CYCLONE SCREW AND PARTS 
a. Koester Associates Quote 2021-P-13920 for Grit Screw 
b. Koester Associates Quote 2021-P-13927 for Wear Shoes 
c. Smith & Loveless Letter Regarding Koester Being Sole Source 

2021-09-007 – DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS  
TO BE DISPOSED OF AT AUCTION 

a. List of Items Requested to be Declared Surplus for Disposal at Auction 

2021-09-008 – PAYMENT TO BONADIO & CO. FOR 2020 AUDIT AND EXERCISING 
OPTION FOR 2021 AUDIT 

a. Bonadio Invoice for Additional Fee for 2020 Audit Services 
b. Bonadio Engagement Agreement for 2020 Audit 

2021-09-009 – CHANGE ORDERS FOR PROJECT 2, GORGE PUMP STATION 
REHABILITATION 

a. STC Change Order 1 
b. John W. Danforth Change Order 1 
c. CIR Change Order 1 
d. GHD Proposal Dated September 8, 2021 

2021-09-010 – POLICY FOR TELECOMMUTING BY CERTAIN EXEMPT 
EMPLOYEES 

a. Draft Exempt Executive Employee Telecommuting Policy 

2021-09-011 – ACCEPTING PROPOSAL FOR PROPERTY, LIABILITY, AND 
UMBRELLA INSURANCE POLICIES 

b. USI Renewal Narrative 
c. Insurance Renewal Proposal 

2021-09-012 – ACCEPTING PROPOSAL FOR RATE CONSULTANT SERVICES 
a. Memorandum from Executive Director 
b. Dresher & Malecki Proposal dated September 15, 2021 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 4



Page 5 of 10 

2021-09-012 – ACCEPTING PROPOSAL FOR CONSULTING ENGINEER SERVICES 
a. Memorandum from Executive Director 
b. AECOM Proposal dated September 15, 2021 

2021-09-014 – MASTER CONTRACT FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT  
PROTECTIVE MEASURES PROJECT GRANT 

d. Master Contract No. C000804, 

12. Additional Comments from Chairman Forster 

13. Unfinished/Old Business 

a. 18th Street Slip Line 
 Walk-through completed from Whitney Ave. to Ontario Ave. with City 

Engineering – discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21. 
 City Engineering is hand-drawing certain utilities, design not complete 

as of July 19. 
 9/20/21 – T. Donner from CPL will prepare a proposal for CPL to do the 

engineering for the grant-funded work. 

b. Roof Study 
 Study is complete.  Dave Jaros from CPL will now be the point person – 

discussed at work session held on 7/12/21. 

c. Beech Ave. Water Tower 
 Jay Meyers explains some modeling work is needed along with finalizing 

ideas for an ideal location (possibly Buffalo Ave.) 
 Beech Ave. is not an ideal location due to the need for a pump station. 
 Cost to complete the study – approximately $9,800 – discussed at board 

meeting held on 5/24/21. 
 Per Jay Meyers, as of July 19, project is 95% complete, final details to be 

discussed with NFWB. 
 9/20/21 – Report delivered to NFWB (Copy is in 9/27 Meeting Packet, 

Minus Appendices). 

d. Caulking Project WTP 
 Exterior caulking complete. 
 Bid for interior caulking awarded at July 2021 meeting; next step is to 

schedule the work. 
 9/20/21 – Contractor now has supplied bonds, J. Meyers will get work 

scheduled. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 5



Page 6 of 10 

e. 56th Street Water Tower 
 CPL was tasked to explore ways to improve the functionality and 

eliminate the need for WTP operators to have to drain the water lower 
levels on a daily basis in order to recirculate the water; due to the lack of 
a recirculating pump and valve at the bottom of the tank - discussed at 
board meeting held on 5/24/21. 

 9/20/21 – Report delivered to NFWB (Copy is in 9/27 Meeting Packet, 
Minus Appendices). 

f. Lift Station Roofs  
 As of September 14, 2021: 

o New pitched roof at 81st and Frontier has been installed using 
in-house labor and Carpenters from Union Hall. 

o Waiting on metal roofing material for 81st and Stephenson, 
should arrive by the end of September 2021. 

o J. Argona and M. Eagler are evaluating the possibility of 
performing the work required on the Cayuga Island lift station 
in house. 

 9/21/21 – Per M. Eagler, two lift stations will be painted before 
weather changes. 

g. Chlorine System 
 Adding a booster pump to the raw water chlorine feed would prevent 

loss of chlorine feed during a low-pressure scenario (i.e. Goodyear 
break).  

 Will also provide backup to chlorine dosage during backflow 
testing/repairs 

 CPL has done design, waiting for DOH approval of submittals, as 
discussed July 19. 

 9/14/2021 – Still waiting for DOH approval. 
 9/20/2021 – Same status, Dr. Zehraoui to contact DOH regarding 

delay. 

h. Emergency Backup Generators 
 In need of repair – multiple issues with transfer gear and controls. 
 1 unit has been determined to need radiator parts/replacements. 

o Radiator repair approx. $40,000. 
 Work continues with Zenith – determined TS-2 and TS-3 need 

cleaning and lubrication, which involves removing power and running 
a separate generator to make the necessary repair. 

 Quotes have been received for auto switching main plant power feeds 
to lessen the risks involved with a generator failure (unknown).  

 Joe Argona provided a proposal from Milton-Cat (dated 4/19/21) for 
the installation of the auto-transfer scheme and relay upgrade for the 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 6



Page 7 of 10 

(2) main incoming feeders for the WTP – discussed at board meeting 
held on 6/28/21.  

 Working to plan a plant shutdown to clean electrical contacts and 
other preventative maintenance work on electrical system. 

 9/14/2021 – Tentative plan developed by J. Argona, R. Rowe, and 
Ferguson Electric is to do the necessary plant shutdown on 
October 13. 

 9/20/2021 – J. Argona will get updated quote for Board approval of 
radiator replacement. 

i. WTP Roofing 
 Area over front main entrance vestibule is leaking – creating issues 

with drywall mold and cracking. 
 Area over filter gallery with floating foam pieces – no leaks 

detected.  Nearby roof drains have been cleaned to help with the issue 
- discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21. 

 A purchase order for $8,750.00 has been submitted to Brad Farris 
from Tremco – work will be scheduled shortly – discussed at work 
session held on 7/19/21. 

 9/20/21 – Report from Tremco is included in work session packet. 
 9/20/21 – Report reviewed with Board by D. Jaros. 

j. Interior Lighting 

 As of 9/14/2021, plan is to do low-lift lighting in-house. 
 Replacement fixtures installed in accessible areas of low lift were not 

as bright as desired, a new light was ordered to test out in the building 
– discussed July 19. 

 9/14/2021 – A replacement fixture has been installed and is being 
evaluated. 

 9/20/2021 – Per J. Argona, replacement fixture was satisfactory, more 
will be ordered, total cost estimated at $5,000 to $6,000 to do entire 
area. 

k. HVAC Rooftop & Make Up Air 
 Outdated units – need replacements – 4 out of the 5 units are 

inoperable. 
 Still in need of additional units – the pandemic has brought this to the 

forefront, as makeup air is potentially regulated in certain 
environments as well as air filtration ratings.  

 June 30, 2021 Quote for MUAUs totals $263,222 
 July 19 – D. Williamson and J. Meyers tasked with preparing bid 

specifications for this project. 
 9/20/2021 – Per J. Meyers, specifications are about 90% complete. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 7



Page 8 of 10 

l. PACL System Upgrades 
 Need SCADA professionals to finish updating our program to match 

the 4 PACL pumps so that all 4 pumps can be utilized with SCADA 
control.  

 9/20/2021 – Three of four pumps are connected to SCADA, 
Dr. Zehraoui will meet with C. Hotchkiss regarding connecting fourth 
pump. 

m. Bulk Chemical Storage Liners 
 PACL liners complete – contractor has concerns about Fluoride 

toxicity. Maintenance department to follow up. 
 - discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21.
 Joe Argona states he is waiting on the Canadian boarders to re-open 

in order to receive servicing on the fluoride tank. Also, waiting on a 
response from the DOH regarding regulations for not dosing during 
the time of servicing – discussed at board meeting held on 6/28/21. 

 9/14/2021 – Still waiting for border to reopen so work can proceed.

q. Board Member Asklar will have oversight on remodeling of the WWTP 
employee break room, shower area and bathrooms - discussed at board meeting 
held on 5/24/21. 

 Board Member Asklar states he would like to meet with Dr. 
Zehraoui prior to their weekly finance meetings to further discuss – 
discussed at board meeting held on 6/28/21. 

 Administration building bathrooms have been repainted; new 
vanities and mirrors will be installed; budget line for ordering these 
is needed as discussed at July 19 work session. 

n. WTP Freeze-Thaw Bed Cleanouts  
 Freeze Thaw beds were designed with a maximum plant flow of 20 

MGD, which we are now exceeding.  The resulting amounts of solids 
have become more expensive and more difficult to have removed, and 
we frequently have to switch beds sooner than planned in order to 
maintain our SPDES permitted water quality. 

 9/20/21 – Contents of two beds have been moved to bed three, so two 
beds are available to WTP operations.  Contents will be landfilled 
when dry. 

o. Carbon Silo needs repair and painting before it becomes unstable and needs 
demolishing.  

i. Polymer and Carbon capabilities could be reinstated to improve plant 
capability. 

ii. Joe Argona to get budgetary quote for painting silo. 
iii. 9/14/2021 - NYS Industrial Coatings Quote - $20,000; our painter can 

do it in house for $5,000 to $10,000 if we get a lift, plan is to schedule 
work in house for spring 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 8



Page 9 of 10 

p. WTP Rapid Mix System Upgrade 
 We are only able to have one of our two rapid mixers connected to the 

emergency generator circuit. This requires us to have an electrician 
manually switch the circuits in order for operations to change over 
the rapid mixer for scheduled maintenance.  

 9/20/2021 – Dr. Zehraoui is exploring adding the necessary switch 
using in-house workers. 

q. Painting of Sedimentation plates and many various areas throughout the 
interior and exterior of the plant.  Filter walls are peeling. 

r. WTP Chemical Offload Area Coating Replacement. 
i. Quotes obtained, NYS Industrial Coating price is $29,750, Niagara 

Coatings $29,250. 
ii. 9/14/2021 – Exploring doing in house, would need to have contractor 

do the necessary soda blasting to remove existing coating, then will 
work to schedule job in house Spring 2022 for approx. half cost of 
contractor. 

iii. 9/20/2021 – J. Argona estimates cost to complete work will be $7,000, 
painter and WTP maintenance have removed much of the old coating. 

s. Repairs to WTP Rear Perimeter Fence. 
i. Quotes obtained, Fox Fence with barbed wire option is $21,611.29, 

Davidson $23,480.  
ii. 9/14/2021 – Can omit barbed wire to get under $20,000, but will need 

to identify funds for this.  
iii. 9/20/2021 – D. Williamson directed to look into possible 

Homeland Security grant to help fund project. 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

a. Follow up on Auditors’ Recommendations 
 9/20/2021 – A plan to address these will be developed during weekly 

meetings between staff and Chair of Finance Asklar. 

b. WWTP Camera Installation 
 9/20/2021 – 3 cameras are installed, final total will be 11. 

c. Neptune Meter Project Report 
 9/20/2021 – Reports on status were in work session packet. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 9



Page 10 of 10 

15. Executive Session (Anticipated for the purpose of considering matters leading to the 
appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or 
removal of a particular persons (Public Officers Law § 105(f)). 

16. Adjournment of Meeting  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 10



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 11



Page 1 of 12 

MINUTES 
Meeting of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

July 26, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

1. Preliminary Matters 

Chairman Forster called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

a. Attendance: 

Asklar (Board Member/Chairman of Finance/Member Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) __arrived 
at 5:06 p.m.___

Forster (Chairman) __P___  

Kimble (Board Member) __P__  

Larkin (Board Member/Vice Chairwoman/Governance Chairwoman/ 
Chairwoman Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) __arrived at 5:03 p.m.___  

Leffler (Board Member/Member Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) __P__ 

b. Comments from Chairman Forster 

Chairman Forster discussed the three major rain events that Niagara Falls experienced in the 
recent weeks, that effected many residents in the City of Niagara Falls. Niagara County 
declared a state of emergency and some staff members worked 26-28 hours of overtime to 
ensure the rate payers received the assistance they needed. The Chairman took this 
opportunity to thank the outside crews for their dedication and to express his appreciation for 
the patience the rate payers showed during this stressful and unpredictable time. Chairman 
Forster requested a Dr. Zehraoui prepare a letter of commendation for the outside crew 
members that should be placed in their personnel files. Chairman Forster also noted that the 
WWTP experienced no overflows during these rain events, and also maintained good levels of 
chlorination.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 12



Page 2 of 12 

c. Letters and Communications 

There were no letters and communications to discuss currently.  

d. Public Comments (All speakers must register with the meeting clerk prior to 
roll call and are limited to three minutes per person – total time for all 
speakers may not exceed one hour). 

MaryBeth Abramson (1846 Niagara Ave.)  

Ms. Abramson thanked Michael Eagler and his crew for their assistance. The crews 
responded quickly and arrived at her residence with the NFWB camera truck to address her 
sewer main concerns. Ms. Abramson requested that all Niagara Falls residents receive a 
memo with their future water bills, outlining appropriate items to flush and not to flush, in 
order to try an eliminate the flooding she is experiencing. Ms. Abramson stated that her sump 
pump has burned out due to all the debris. The NFWB vacuum truck has been requested in 
that area make sure the sewers are clear.  

Joseph Caprino (916 Van Rensselaer Ave.) 

Mr. Caprino stated that the recent rain events and a backed-up sewer drain in the front of his 
house caused approximately four feet of water in his basement. He lost a number of 
belongings in his newly refinished basement. Mr. Caprino explained he was told the sewer line 
running through his property is old. Seeking recommendations from the Board on what to do 
in the future. 

Joan Lee (3365 D St.) 

Ms. Lee states she experienced damages during a flood in 2013 as well as during the recent 
rain events. Ms. Lee is on a fixed income and is unable to repair the damages in her basement 
due to the recent wet weather events.  

Monica Faix (2713 Linwood Ave.) 

Ms. Faix states this property has been in her family for 100 years and has experienced 
flooding in the last 10 years. Ms. Faix states she would like to see the board seek funds 
(American Rescue Fund) in order to be able to repair the necessary infrastructure.  

Chairman Forster thanked the rate payers for taking the time to express their 
wants/needs/concerns. Chairman Forster states in 2018 the NFWB purchased a camera truck 
in order to be able to inspect our piping. If the NFWB receives a complaint regarding a 
backup, the necessary crews can camera those specific lines as soon as the complaint is 
received. The NFWB has also invested approximately $42 million in the WWTP since 
July 29, 2017. The NFWB is currently seeking federal funds to replace/re-build the WWTP, 
while remaining aware of the on-going issues taking place at both plants. Chairman Forster 
would like to add information to our website to serve as a reference to rate payers regarding 
steps to take to help avoid backups.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 13



Page 3 of 12 

e. Approval of Minutes  

i. June 17, 2021 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Kimble to approve the 
June 17, 2021 meeting minutes.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

ii. June 28, 2021 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler to approve the June 
17, 2021 meeting minutes.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__abstain__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 4-0, with one abstention. 

2. Executive Director – Dr. Abderrahman Zehraoui 

a. WWTP Project Budget Tracker (CPL)   
b. WWTP Construction Schedule Tracker (CPL)   
c. Financial Award Summary (CPL) 
d. Federal Infrastructure Campaign Memorandum 
e. Entrance Gate Updates 

Dr. Zehraoui provided the board members with an update regarding the entrance gates at both 
the WTP and the WWTP.   

3. Superintendent – William Wright 

a. Manhole Leak Inspection Project 
b. Non-Revenue Water Update 
c. Meter Shop Schedule Information 
d. Information on Average Number of Non-Readable Meters 

Mr. Wright noted that there are an average of 10-15 non-readable meters per month, but this 
varies depending on the area of the City being read. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 14



Page 4 of 12 

4. Engineering – Douglas Williamson 

a. LaSalle Consent Order Update 
b. WWTP FEMA Project Status Update 

Mr. Williamson had nothing new to report at this time. 

5. Personnel Items – John Accardo 

a. July 26, 2021 Personnel Actions Sheet 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve the 
July 26, 2021 personnel actions sheet.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

Mr. Accardo states he will be contacting Civil Service to receive an update on upcoming 
Civil Service exams. 

6. Information Technology (IT) – Dr. Abderrahman Zehraoui 

Dr. Zehraoui had nothing new to report at this time. 

7. Finance – Brian Majchrowicz 

a. Audit Update 
i. Auditors Report Special Meeting 5:30 p.m. August 9 

b. Revenue Budget Performance Report through June 30 
c. Sewer Fund Expense Budget Performance Report through June 30 
d. Water Fund Expense Budget Performance Report through June 30 
e. Board Fund Expense Budget Performance Report through June 30 
f. June 2021 Budget Amendment Report 
g. Bank Balance Report – Bank on Buffalo and Key Bank 
h. Wilmington Trust Balances 
i. Treasury Investment Bank Balances 
j. June 2021 Capital Payments 

Mr. Majchrowicz states the auditors will be present at the special meeting being held on 
August 9, 2021. The financial department is currently working on the 2022 budget. 

Board Member Kimble states she is upset with the untimely audit, the auditors agreed to a 
schedule set forth in the RFP. Seeks direction from General Counsel regarding a possible 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 15



Page 5 of 12 

breach of contract. Mr. Costello states that he cannot speak for the auditors regarding all 
reasons for the delay but that the auditors did not receive all the necessary information in a 
timely fashion at the beginning of the process which resulted in delays.  Ms. Kimble does not 
feel that the Water Board should pay the auditors and does not wish to attend a special 
meeting in August for the auditors’ report. 

Ms. Larkin is requesting a way for the NFWB to simplify the billing process. Ms. Larkin states 
she has been notified that some local businesses are receiving their water bill on the 21st of the 
month, when the bill is due on the 20th of the month. Ms. Larkin would like to see all rate 
payers receive their water bills timely, allowing them to have a reasonable amount of time to 
submit their payment.  

8. Questions Regarding May 2021 Operations and Maintenance Report 

No questions were asked regarding the O&M report at this time. 

9. Safety – John Accardo 

Mr. Accardo states that Pat Ackerman has received the NFWB’s current evacuation plan for 
his review. 

Mr. Accardo states that currently, the NFWB does not have an intercom system at the WTP or 
the WWTP.   He discussed with the Board the results of a safety audit; many items are 
housekeeping issues.  Board Member Asklar suggested labeling fire doors so that it is clear 
which ones need to be kept closed. 

10.  General Counsel and Secretary – Sean Costello 

a. July 20 Storm Costs 

Mr. Costello states the City of Niagara Falls is currently coordinating a package to seek 
reimbursement of costs if state or federal disaster funds are made available based on the 
County’s declaration of a state of emergency.  The Water Board’s costs for July 20, 2021 were 
approximately $24,000.  

b. WWTP Chemical Supply  

Mr. Costello discussed the results of an emergency bid for sodium hypochlorite through 
December 31, the price per gallon is increasing about $0.20 per gallon, or about $500,000 in 
additional cost this year.  There were no bids for hydrogen peroxide.  Approval of the 
emergency bid is requested through a walk-on resolution. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 16



Page 6 of 12 

11. Resolutions  

2021-07-001 – CHANGE ORDER 1 AND FINAL FOR BOLLIER AVENUE 10 INCH 
WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

a. Change Order Memorandum 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-07-002 – AUTHORIZING REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE FIBER CABLING 
AT WWTP 

a. Ferguson Fiber Cable Replacement Proposal 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-07-003 – 2021-2022 CLARK PATTERSON LEE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
EXTENSION AND FEDERAL INFRASTRUCTURE ACT PROJECT 

a. CPL Proposal dated June 21, 2021 

Motion to amend the resolution to delete the words “in 2022” in the last resolved paragraph by 
Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Larkin. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve the 
resolution as amended. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 17



Page 7 of 12 

2021-07-004 – NYS WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT GRANT 
APPLICATION FOR LASALLE SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT AND SEQR 
REVIEW OF PROPOSED PROJECT 

a. WQIP Project Description 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-07-005 – ENGINEERING PLANNING GRANT APPLICATION AND SEQR 
REVIEW FOR LASALLE SANITARY SEWER EVALUATION SURVEY PROJECT 

a. LaSalle SSES EPG Application Project Information 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Larkin to approve.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-07-006 – AUTHORIZING LEASE OF FIVE VEHICLES AND DISPOSAL OF FIVE 
VEHICLES THROUGH ENTERPRISE 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Chairman Forster to approve.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-07-007 – AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF PROPERTY-DAMAGE CLAIM 
WITH NATIONAL FUEL 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Kimble to approve  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-07-008 – AWARD BID FOR INTERIOR CAULKING AT WATER TREATMENT 
PLANT 

a. Bid Tabulation 

Motion by Board Member Asklar and seconded by Board Member Kimble to approve  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 18



Page 8 of 12 

2021-07-009 – AWARD BID FOR 21-INCH COMBINED SEWER REPAIR PROJECT 
ON 400 BLOCK OF SEVENTH STREET 

a. Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Larkin to approve  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

WALK-ON RESOLUTION  

2021-07-010 – AWARD BID FOR ALTERNATE SUPPLY OF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 

Motion to wave to agenda deadline and walk-on resolution 2021-07-010 by Board Member 
Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve.  

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

12. Additional Comments from Chairman Forster 

13. Unfinished/Old Business 

a. 18th Street Slip Line 
 Walk-through completed from Whitney Ave. to Ontario Ave. with City 

Engineering – discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21. 
 City Engineering is hand-drawing certain utilities, design not complete 

as of July 19. 

b. Roof Study 
 Study is complete.  Dave Jaros from CPL will now be the point person – 

discussed at work session held on 7/12/21. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 19



Page 9 of 12 

c. Beech Ave. Water Tower 
 Jay Meyers explains some modeling work is needed along with finalizing 

ideas for an ideal location (possibly Buffalo Ave.) 
 Beech Ave. is not an ideal location due to the need for a pump station. 
 Cost to complete the study – approximately $9,800 – discussed at board 

meeting held on 5/24/21. 
 Per Jay Meyers, as of July 19, project is 95% complete, final details to be 

discussed with NFWB. 

d. Caulking Project WTP 
 Exterior caulking of the WTP was completed in 2020. 
 Interior caulking of the WTP is now needed  
 Mr. Costello was tasked to solicit bids – requesting CPL to prepare the 

specifications. 
 - discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21. 
 Anticipated resolution to award bid for this project at the July 26th

board meeting – discussed at work session held on 7/19/21. 

e. 56th Street Water Tower 
 CPL was tasked to explore ways to improve the functionality and 

eliminate the need for WTP operators to have to drain the water lower 
levels on a daily basis in order to recirculate the water; due to the lack of 
a recirculating pump and valve at the bottom of the tank - discussed at 
board meeting held on 5/24/21. 

f. Lift Station Roofs  
 Mr. Costello has been in contact with the maintenance department 

regarding the work that is needed; would prefer to keep the work 
in-house if possible - discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21. 

 Mike Eagler met with Jay Meyers on 6/22/2021 to explore the 
possibility of installing roof trusses on flat roofs – discussed at board 
meeting held on 6/28/21. 

 CPL has provided assistance with design/material selection for adding 
peaked roof to 81st and Frontier, NFWB will hire Carpenters from 
hall to assist, discussed July 19. 

g. Chlorine System 
 Adding a booster pump to the raw water chlorine feed would prevent 

loss of chlorine feed during a low-pressure scenario (i.e. Goodyear 
break).  

 Will also provide backup to chlorine dosage during backflow 
testing/repairs 

 CPL has done design, waiting for DOH approval of submittals, as 
discussed July 19. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 20



Page 10 of 12 

h. Emergency Backup Generators 
 In need of repair – multiple issues with transfer gear and controls. 
 1 unit has been determined to need radiator parts/replacements. 

o Radiator repair approx. $40,000. 
 Work continues with Zenith – determined TS-2 and TS-3 need 

cleaning and lubrication, which involves removing power and running 
a separate generator to make the necessary repair. 

 Quotes have been received for auto switching main plant power feeds 
to lessen the risks involved with a generator failure (unknown).  

 Joe Argona provided a proposal from Milton-Cat (dated 4/19/21) for 
the installation of the auto-transfer scheme and relay upgrade for the 
(2) main incoming feeders for the WTP – discussed at board meeting 
held on 6/28/21.  

 Working to plan a plant shutdown to clean electrical contacts and 
other preventative maintenance work on electrical system. 

i. WTP Roofing 
 Area over front main entrance vestibule is leaking – creating issues 

with drywall mold and cracking. 
 Area over filter gallery with floating foam pieces – no leaks 

detected.  Nearby roof drains have been cleaned to help with the issue 
- discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21. 

 Joe Argona provided a quote from Milton-Cat (dated 6/25/2019) for 
the radiator (estimated amount $41,626.25). 

 In the case of malfunction with the back-up generators – this would 
be the alternative route. 

 A purchase order for $8,750.00 has been submitted to Brad Farris 
from Tremco – work will be scheduled shortly – discussed at work 
session held on 7/19/21. 

j. Interior Lighting 
 High lift room has been updated by Ferguson Electric. 
 Low lift room to be completed next – will likely be completed by 

Ferguson Electric due to the safety concerns of completing the work 
in-house. 

 - discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21. 
 Replacement fixtures installed in accessible areas of low lift were not 

as bright as desired, a new light was ordered to test out in the building 
– discussed July 19. 

k. HVAC Rooftop & Make Up Air 
 Outdated units – need replacements – 4 out of the 5 units are 

inoperable. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 21



Page 11 of 12 

 Still in need of additional units – the pandemic has brought this to the 
forefront, as makeup air is potentially regulated in certain 
environments as well as air filtration ratings.  

 Joe Argona to provide pricing – discussed at board meeting held on 
6/28/21. 

 June 30, 2021 Quote for MUAUs totals $263,222 
 July 19 – D. Williamson and J. Meyers tasked with preparing bid 

specifications for this project. 

l. PACL System Upgrades 
 Need SCADA professionals to finish updating our program to match 

the 4 PACL pumps so that all 4 pumps can be utilized with SCADA 
control.  

m. Bulk Chemical Storage Liners 
 PACL liners complete – contractor has concerns about Fluoride 

toxicity. Maintenance department to follow up. 
 - discussed at board meeting held on 5/24/21.
 Joe Argona states he is waiting on the Canadian boarders to re-open 

in order to receive servicing on the fluoride tank. Also, waiting on a 
response from the DOH regarding regulations for not dosing during 
the time of servicing – discussed at board meeting held on 6/28/21. 

q. Board Member Asklar will have oversight on remodeling of the WWTP 
employee break room, shower area and bathrooms - discussed at board meeting 
held on 5/24/21. 

 Board Member Asklar states he would like to meet with Dr. 
Zehraoui prior to their weekly finance meetings to further discuss – 
discussed at board meeting held on 6/28/21. 

 Administration building bathrooms have been repainted; new 
vanities and mirrors will be installed; budget line for ordering these 
is needed as discussed at July 19 work session. 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

a. WTP Freeze-Thaw Bed Cleanouts - Freeze Thaw beds were designed with a 
maximum plant flow of 20 MGD, which we are now exceeding.  The resulting 
amounts of solids have become more expensive and more difficult to have 
removed, and we frequently have to switch beds sooner than planned in 
order to maintain our SPDES permitted water quality. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 22



Page 12 of 12 

b. Carbon Silo needs repair and painting before it becomes unstable and needs 
demolishing.  

i. Polymer and Carbon capabilities could be reinstated to improve plant 
capability. 

ii. Joe Argona to get budgetary quote for painting silo. 

c. WTP Rapid Mix System Upgrade - We are only able to have one of our two 
rapid mixers connected to the emergency generator circuit. This requires us 
to have an electrician manually switch the circuits in order for operations to 
change over the rapid mixer for scheduled maintenance.  

d. Painting of Sedimentation plates and many various areas throughout the 
interior and exterior of the plant.  Filter walls are peeling. 

e. WTP Chemical Offload Area Coating Replacement. 
i. Quotes obtained, NYS Industrial Coating price is $29,750, Niagara 

Coatings $29,250. 

f. Repairs to WTP Rear Perimeter Fence. 
i. Quotes obtained, Fox Fence with barbed wire option is $21,611.29, 

Davidson $23,480.  

15. Executive Session (if needed) 

16. Adjournment of Meeting  

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Larkin to adjourn the 
meeting at 6:29 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 23



Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
Special Meeting of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

August 9, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

1. Preliminary Matters 

Chairman Forster called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

a. Attendance: 

Asklar (Board Member/Chairman of Finance/Member Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) __P__  

Forster (Chairman) __P__  

Kimble (Board Member) __absent__  

Larkin (Board Member/Vice Chairwoman/Governance Chairwoman/ 
Chairwoman Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) __P__  

Leffler (Board Member/Member Exec. Staff Review Cmte.) __P__ 

2. 2020 Annual Audit 

a. Presentation by Bonadio & Co., LLP (Randy Shepard, CPA, and Erica 
Proctor, CPA) 

Bonadio & Co., LLP reviewed their audit of the Board’s 2020 financial statements.  The audit 
resulted in a “clean” opinion.  They also examined the NFWB’s compliance with its own 
investment policies and applicable laws and regulations related to investments for the year 
ended December 31, 2020.  Mr. Shepard discussed the statements, the auditors’ report to the 
Board, and reviewed the findings regarding internal control set forth in the management 
letter, including various recommendations.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 24



Page 2 of 2 

b. RESOLUTION 2021-08-001, Approving and Accepting Independent Audit 
and Investment Reports 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler to approve and 
accept the independent audit and investment reports. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__absent__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

3. August 9, 2021 Personnel Actions Sheet 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve the 
August 9, 2021 personnel actions sheet. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__absent__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

4. Adjournment of Meeting 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Larkin to adjourn the 
meeting at 6:26 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__absent__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 25



A.  PERSONNEL ACTIONS RECOMMEND TO HIRE

Line Item Number Position Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

B. RECOMMENDED PROMOTION / MOVE / APPOINTMENT 

Line Item Number Name and Position Type of labor move
Change in pay rate or 

grade

1

Jillian O’Connor and Adam 

Puscheck - Lab Tech (2) -

WWTP

Promotion to Sr. Lab Techs 

(2) -WWP

Increase of $5,277 per 

employee, $10,354 total.

2
Mike Eagler - Supervisor 

Collection and Distribution

Change Title to Chief of 

Outside Infrastructure 

No change in pay rate or 

grade.

C.  PREVIOUSLY TABLED PERSONNEL ACTIONS (From 2021)

Line Item Number Action and Position Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

Name Position Department/Location Pay Rate

Patrick Fama Microbiologist WTP Lab $66,502 annually

William Wright Superintendent Administration $79,960 annually

Name Last Day Worked Dept. Return Status

Bradberry, Cortez 4/14/2021 OSM Unknown

LaGamba, Stephen 7/16/2021 WWTP - Lab Unknown Ninety day LOA to pursue other government agency

Workers Comp

Comments

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

D.  OTHER PERSONNEL ACTIVITY FOR BOARD NOTIFICATION 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Retirement effective December 23, 2021.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

E.  PERSONNEL ON LONG TERM LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Qualifications and longevity met; recommended by supervisor.

Subject to Civil Service approval, will eliminate unnecessary CDL 

requirement and more closely reflect needed job duties and 

qualifications.

Retirement effective October 15, 2021

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Niagara Falls Water Board

  Personnel Actions and Report

Monday, September 27, 2021

Personnel Actions Sheet & Requested of the Board.  

All appointments are subject to the appointee meeting the minimum qualifications and all applicable civil service conditions.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 26



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-001 

GENERATOR PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE SERVICE AGREEMENT  
WITH KINSLEY POWER SYSTEMS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has installed seven Kohler 
brand generators to provide emergency backup power at its lift stations and has one Kohler 
generator for emergency backup power at its wastewater treatment plant; and

WHEREAS, these Kohler generators require annual preventative maintenance to ensure 
their reliable performance and extend their service life; and 

WHEREAS, Kinsley Power Systems, the authorized Kohler distributor and original 
equipment installer, has submitted a June 22, 2021 proposal for a three-year preventative 
maintenance agreement which protects the Water Board from the possibility of cost increases 
during the term of the agreement; and 

WHEREAS, following the initial review of the Kinsley Power Systems proposal, the 
Water Board requested that its WWTP mechanics be consulted regarding whether they can 
perform the required preventative maintenance in-house, but after due consideration it has been 
determined that the Water Board’s mechanics do not have sufficient familiarity with diesel 
engines to perform the preventative maintenance; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 27



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to contract with Kinsley Power Systems to perform annual generator 
preventative maintenance consistent with the terms of Kinsley’s June 22, 2021 proposal, with a 
yearly contract price of $7,450 and a total three-year price of $22,350. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Repair of Real Property:  GA 8120.4900.0443.000 (For Lift Station Generators) 

GA 8130.0200.0444.000 (For WWTP Generator) 
Budget Lines Supplied by: M. Eagler (Lift Stations); R. Dunn (WWTP) 
Available Funds for 2021 Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 28



Proposal 
 

 

                                                                                                                         The Energy Solutions Company 
14 Connecticut South Drive Page 1 of 6 
East Granby, CT  06026  
800.255.3503  
www.kinsleypower.com  

 

Quote Number Project Name Date 
Q-21-2842 Niagara Falls Water Board   

 
6/22/2021 

  From: Greg Frost 
6200 East Molloy Road 
East Syracuse, NY 13057 

Billing Info: Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Ave. 
Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

 Phone: 860.500.9924 Phone: 716.283.9770 
 Email: GFrost@kinsleypower.com Contact: Mike Eagler 
 Cell: 860.500.9924 Email: meagler@nfwb.org 
   

 Summary  
 

 
Kohler Generator: 80REZGC, SGM32LLK7 / Kohler ATS: KSS-AFTA-0200S, SGM32LDB9 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station #1, 8018 Stephenson Ave, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $325.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $325.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $535.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $535.00 

Total Yearly Price: $860.00 
 
Kohler Generator: 30CCL, 22D7GMGM0002 / Kohler ATS: KEP-DCTA-0200S-MM, A334GMGL0274 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station #2, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $315.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $315.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $515.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $515.00 

Total Yearly Price: $830.00 
 
Kohler Generator: 30CCL, 33D7GMGR0009 / Kohler ATS: KSS-AFNA-0600S, A333GMFP0398 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station #3, 5815 Buffalo Ave, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $315.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $315.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $515.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $515.00 

Total Yearly Price: $830.00 
 
Kohler Generator: 60REZGB, SGM32LWGC / Kohler ATS: KSS-ACTA-0200S, SGM32LNFH 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station #4, Luick Ave, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $325.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $325.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $525.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $525.00 

Total Yearly Price: $850.00 
 
Kohler Generator: 100REZGD, SGM32LLJZ / Kohler ATS: KSS-AMTA-0200S, SGM32LDBC 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station #6, 8021 Frontier Ave, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $325.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $325.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $565.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $565.00 

Total Yearly Price: $890.00 
 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 29



Proposal 
 

 

                                                                                                                         The Energy Solutions Company 
14 Connecticut South Drive Page 2 of 6 
East Granby, CT  06026  
800.255.3503  
www.kinsleypower.com  

 

 Kohler Generator: 30CCL, 33D7GMGM0003 / Kohler ATS: KEP-DFTA-0100S-MM, A334GMGL0275 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station #7, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $315.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $315.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $515.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $515.00 

Total Yearly Price: $830.00 
 
Kohler Generator: KG40, 33DGMG0006 / Kohler ATS: KEP-DCTA-100S-MM, A334GMGL0276 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station #8, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $315.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $315.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $515.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $515.00 

Total Yearly Price: $830.00 
 
Kohler Generator: 400REOZJ, SGM32LK47 / Kohler ATS: KSS-AMTA-0600S/800S/KGP-DMTA_0600S, 
SGM32LN8H, SGM32NFNJ, SGM32LN8J 
     Physical Address - Niagara Falls Water Board, 1200 Buffalo Ave, Niagara Falls, NY, 14304 
     Level 1 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $395.00, Level 1 Total Yearly Price: $395.00 
     Level 2 Service - Qty Per Year: 1, Price Per Service: $885.00, Level 2 Total Yearly Price: $885.00    
     Additional ATS inspections - Qty Per Year: 2, Price Per Service: $125.00, Total Yearly Price: $250.00 

Total Yearly Price: $1,530.00 
  

 
TOTAL YEARLY CONTRACT PRICE: $7,450.00 

TOTAL PRICE FOR 3 YEARS: $22,350 
 

Who will service your equipment? 
Kinsley employs the largest number of EGSA certified technicians--over 40 technicians serving the northeast with 
collectively more experience and focus on generator repair and maintenance than any service company in the 
industry. In some cases, you may see the same technician at every service visit. Regardless, you will be treated 
respectfully, your equipment will be serviced expertly, and your property will be cared for with respect and attention 
to detail when we are on site. 

 
 
CUSTOMER PREFERENCES:  Circle below:  

Do you require us to call 
ahead and schedule the 

maintenance work 
when it is due to be 

performed? 

To exercise the generator 
under load or to service 

indoor mounted transfer 
switches, will someone be 

present to allow our 
technician to enter the 

building? 

If generator is inoperable when we 
attempt to perform maintenance, do 
we have your permission to replace 
needed parts at time of service if no 

one is available to authorize the 
above repairs while on site? * 

Is the generator drive 
up serviceable at grade 

level? * 

Does the location 
have prevailing 

wage 
requirements? * 

YES    < >     NO YES    < >     NO YES    < >     NO 
 

YES    < >     NO 
 

YES    < >     NO 

*Price increase will apply 
 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 30



Proposal 
 

 

                                                                                                                         The Energy Solutions Company 
14 Connecticut South Drive Page 3 of 6 
East Granby, CT  06026  
800.255.3503  
www.kinsleypower.com  

 

 
How often will your unit(s) be serviced? 
The most common plan selected (assuming backup/exercise hours only) is to get one Level 1 service and one Level 2 
service each year (except for healthcare/life safety or other critical applications where more is required).   

Please initial below, accepting the two services L1 and L2 for the months indicated. If you would like to change months 
simply line through and indicate new months for services. Keep in mind they need to be six months apart.  

QUANTITY of Level 1 visits per 
year 

QUANTITY of Level 2 visits 
per year 

Qty: __1_______    _________ 
                           Initials 

Qty: ___1______    _________ 
                          Initials 

Preference of timing: Month(s): ___March____________ Month(s): ______Sept_________ 

 

What’s included:  

Preventative Maintenance Performed 
Generator or 

ATS? 
Level 1 
(Minor) 

Level 2 
(Major) 

Check Lubricating oil, add as required Generator X NA 

Change Lubricating oil and oil filter Generator NA X 

Check radiator/cooling system (radiator, radiator cap, water pump, coolant 
hoses/clamps). Add coolant as required Generator X X 

Perform on site coolant analysis-test freeze point, nitrate levels, corrosion 
inhibitor levels Generator NA X 

Check air filter(s), hoses and crankcase breather Generator X NA 

Change air filter as needed Generator NA X 

Check fuel lines/hoses for leaks/pliability, inspect fuel vents for 
obstructions, check/clean fuel sediment bowl Generator X X 

Check fuel / water separator (if applicable) Generator X NA 

Replace fuel / water separator (if applicable) Generator NA X 

Check (and notate for diagnosis) warning lights illuminated, 
gauges/instrumentation function/faults Generator & ATS X X 

Check fan belts for excessive wear, inspect/adjust tension Generator X X 

Check governor belts for excessive wear, adjust tension if needed (if 
applicable) Generator X X 

Check battery charger, adjust if necessary Generator X X 

Replace spark plugs, points, distributor cap and ignition rotor (if applicable) Generator NA X 

Check battery capacity, clean battery and apply anti-corrosion treatment to 
terminal Generator X X 

Perform Generator, Generator End, ATS & Component functional and 
safety check Generator & ATS X X 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 31



Proposal 
 

 

                                                                                                                         The Energy Solutions Company 
14 Connecticut South Drive Page 4 of 6 
East Granby, CT  06026  
800.255.3503  
www.kinsleypower.com  

 

Run Generator – under load when possible (customer authorization 
required) Generator & ATS X X 

Conduct Electrical Frequency Analysis and adjust if necessary Generator X X 

 
 

OFFER ACCEPTANCE 
I hereby authorize Kinsley Power Systems, Inc. to use this form as a bona fide purchase order of the services quoted on 
Proposal Number Q-21-2842 which clearly establishes definite price and specifications of services ordered. The person 
signing is doing so according to the terms and conditions. 
 

Proposed By:  Accepted By:  

Company: Kinsley Power Systems, Inc. Company:  

Signature: Greg Frost Signature:  

Printed Name: Greg Frost Printed Name:  

Title: AMS Sales Manager Title:  

Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 Date:  
 

 

Terms & Conditions: 

This Preventative Maintenance Agreement is entered into by Kinsley Power Systems, and the generator equipment owner as signed, for the purpose 
of maintaining their equipment in the best possible operating conditions in order to minimize the necessity of emergency service. This agreement 
does not relieve the owner of periodic checks and testing as outlined in the manufacturer's manuals. While preventative maintenance should result 
in maximum availability of generator equipment, Kinsley Power Systems, makes no warranties or guarantees as to equipment uptime and disclaims 
any responsibility for consequential damages. Services to be performed are specified herein, and constitute the extent of this agreement. The 
generator equipment owner will be furnished with an inspection report denoting conditions found and further service found to be required, if any.  
 
No services, parts or materials are covered under this agreement unless specifically referred to herein, nor does this agreement include expenses 
to repair any damage resulting from abuse, accident, theft, acts of a third party, forces of nature or altering the equipment. Services requested but 
not covered under this agreement will be billed at normal rates for labor, travel, or parts. 
 
CONTRACT: This agreement will be automatically renewed every year until canceled in writing with 30 days prior written notice by either party. 
Kinsley Power reserves the right to review the service contract pricing annually, using the Consumer Price Index as a guideline for any adjustments. 
It is mutually understood that this proposal sets forth our entire agreement.  
 
PLEASE RETURN A SIGNED COPY OF THIS QUOTE TO US BY FAXING IT TO 860.392.0222 
For any questions, please contact our aftermarket sales specialist, at ams@kinsleypower.com 

 Kinsley Power Systems General Terms and Conditions 

1.0 Summary. These General Terms & Conditions are between Kinsley Group, Inc. 
d/b/a Kinsley Power Systems (“Kinsley”) having a mailing address of 14 Connecticut 
South Drive, East Granby, CT 06026 (fax number 860-844-6136) and the person, 
company, firm or business entity purchasing equipment, renting equipment and/or 
obtaining products or services from Kinsley (“Customer”, “You” or “Your”). The 
purpose of these General Terms & Conditions is to set forth the general terms and 
conditions that will apply to all services performed by Kinsley for the Customer and 
all product sold by Kinsley to the Customer. Specific terms and conditions on which 
such services and products will be provided may be set forth in separate 
agreements (written proposals, quotations, etc.) signed and agreed to by Kinsley 
(each hereinafter referred to as a “Related Agreement”). The provisions of these 
General Terms & Conditions shall be incorporated into each of these Related 

Agreements and govern all the understandings and agreements between the 
parties unless otherwise expressly set forth in a Related Agreement. In the event of 
a specific conflict between the provisions of these General Terms & Conditions and 
the express provisions of any Related Agreement, the Related Agreement shall 
control, except for Section 3.0 below, “Limited Warranty Statement”, which shall 
control over any Related Agreement, unless such Section 3.0 is specifically 
referenced and amended in writing and signed by authorized personnel of Kinsley.  
These General Terms and Conditions shall apply to each individual project, sale or 
transaction, provided that a default by Customer under the General Terms and 
Conditions or a Related Agreement with respect to one project, sale or transaction 
shall constitute a Customer default under all projects, sales and transactions with 
such Customer and its affiliates.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 32

mailto:ams@kinsleypower.com


Proposal 
 

 

                                                                                                                         The Energy Solutions Company 
14 Connecticut South Drive Page 5 of 6 
East Granby, CT  06026  
800.255.3503  
www.kinsleypower.com  

 

2.0 Finance Charges, Collection Costs, Expenses, and Other Remedies.  All bills not 
paid within agreed-upon terms shall be assessed a late charge of one and one-half 
percent (1.5%) per month (eighteen percent (18%) per annum) on the unpaid 
balance until paid in full. In the event that Kinsley incurs collection expenses or 
brings any lawsuit, arbitration or other proceeding to collect amounts owed, Kinsley 
shall be entitled to recover the costs and expenses (including but not limited to its 
filing fees, witness fees and reasonable legal fees) incurred in collecting such 
amounts.  Kinsley reserves the right, where permitted by law, to charge a two 
percent (2%) surcharge, processing fee, or convenience fee for all payments made 
by credit card.   

2.1 Force Majeure.  Kinsley shall not be liable in any way for any default or delay 
due to conditions or contingencies beyond its control, which prevents or interferes 
with Kinsley or its suppliers or subcontractors making delivery or performing 
services on the date specified, including but not limited to war, or restraints 
affecting shipping, delivery of materials or credit as a result of war or war 
restrictions, non-arrival delay or failure to produce materials as a result of war or 
war restrictions, rationing of fuel, strikes, lockouts, fires, bombings, acts of 
terrorism, accidents, weather conditions, floods, droughts and any other condition 
or contingency affecting Kinsley, its suppliers, or subcontractors; and Kinsley shall 
have the right to cancel a contract for services or cancel a contract of sale or to 
extend the shipping date in the event of one or more of such conditions or 
contingencies. In the event of delayed or extended shipping dates due to the above 
causes, and the Customer changes shipping instructions, any additional shipping 
charges shall be paid by the Customer as a part of the purchase price.  

2.2 Third Party Vendors. Kinsley may from time to time refer the Customer to third 
party vendors for specific products or services.  These vendors are not Kinsley’s 
subcontractors, so it is the Customer’s responsibility to select and negotiate the 
terms and conditions of the Customer’s business with them.  Kinsley will not be 
responsible for their products or services.  

2.3 Taxes.  In addition to all other amounts payable under this Agreement or under 
a Related Agreement, the Customer shall pay all United States and foreign sales, 
use, value added, and other taxes and duties, of whatever nature, federal, state, 
provincial or otherwise (herein “taxes”), which are levied or imposed by reason of 
these General Terms and Conditions or any of the services or products purchased 
from Kinsley.  The Customer shall promptly pay Kinsley for any such Taxes paid by 
Kinsley on behalf of the Customer or which are required to be collected and paid by 
Kinsley. Kinsley may bill the Customer separately for such Taxes.  

2.4 General: Any claims for shortages or deductions for erroneous charges must be 
made in writing within thirty (30) days after receipt of goods or services or shall be 
deemed waived.  
 
All manufacturer’s names, numbers, symbols and descriptions are used for 
reference purposes only, and it is not implied that any part listed is the product of 
these manufacturers.  

All clerical errors on the part of Kinsley are subject to corrections.  

Prices are subject to change without notice.  

Unless otherwise stated, prices are FOB point of manufacture.  

Delivery dates may be quoted by Kinsley. Such dates are estimates only and in no 
event shall such dates be construed as falling within the meaning of “time is of the 
essence”.  

When providing pricing for site services, Kinsley will adhere to prevailing wage 
requirements.  Kinsley will make reasonable efforts to determine if prevailing wage 
rates are required, but the Customer has the burden and responsibility to 
communicate any prevailing wage requirements to Kinsley (or intermediate 
contractor).  If Kinsley’s  failure to pay prevailing wages is reasonably attributable 
to Customer’s failure to provide prevailing wage information to Kinsley, including 
but not limited to wage schedules or rate sheets associated with the work described 
in this Agreement, Kinsley may seek appropriate damages and restitution from 
Customer, and may amend the contract price to reflect increases in wages and 
fringe benefits paid to Kinsley employees to the extent that these increases are 
necessary to comply with federal, state or local prevailing wage laws. 

2.5 No Hire Clause. During the term of any Related Agreement under which Kinsley 
is providing products or services, and for a period of one (1) year thereafter, neither 
the Customer nor its affiliates shall: (a) employ or hire, or engage as a consultant or 
subcontractor, any employee or subcontractor of Kinsley or any of its affiliates, (b) 
solicit any employee or subcontractor of Kinsley or any of its affiliates to become an 
employee of, or consultant or subcontractor to Customer or any of its affiliates, or 
(c) recommend or suggest to any other person or entity that it so solicit, employ, 
hire, or engage any such employee or subcontractor. In the event of any breach of 
the foregoing provisions, Kinsley shall be entitled to be paid, on demand, as 
liquidated damages and not as penalty, an amount equal to the annualized base 
salary and other regular compensation being paid to such employee or 
subcontractor as of the date of the termination of his or her employment or 
contract with Kinsley or its affiliate.  It is agreed that the amount of damages, which 
would be suffered because of a breach of the foregoing provisions of this Section, 
would be difficult to measure and that such payment amount constitutes 
reasonable liquidated damages for such a breach.  

2.6 Governing Law and Jurisdiction.  These General Terms & Conditions and each 
Related Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Connecticut, without regard to its conflict of law provisions.   The United 
Nations Convention on the International Sale of Goods shall not apply to these 
General Terms and Conditions and conditions of any Related Agreement.  All suits 
under this agreement shall be brought and filed in the State of Connecticut.  

2.7 Assignment and Transfer.  Except as otherwise provided in any Related 
Agreement, these General Terms and Conditions and any Related Agreement may 
not be assigned or transferred by Customer, and shall be binding upon and for the 
benefit of Kinsley and the Customer, as well as the Customer’s and Kinsley’s 
respective legal representatives, successors and assigns.  

2.8 Invalid Provisions. These General Terms and Conditions and any Related 
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.  If 
any term, condition, or provision of these General Terms and Conditions or any 
Related Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall 
be held invalid or unenforceable to any extent, then such term, condition, or 
provision shall be curtailed and limited to the extent necessary to bring it within the 
legal requirements, and the remainder of these General Terms and Conditions, or 
Related Agreement, and the application of such term, condition, or provision to 
persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby.  

2.9 Entire Agreement, Modification.  These General Terms and Conditions and any 
Related Agreements constitute the entire agreement between Kinsley and the 
Customer with respect to the subject matter thereof, superseding all previous 
communications and negotiations, whether written or oral.  No modification of 
these General Terms and Conditions or any Related Agreement shall be binding 
unless it is in writing and executed by authorized representatives of Kinsley and the 
Customer.  

2.10 Notices. Any written notice or other written communication to a party under 
these General Terms & Conditions or any Related Agreement shall be delivered 
personally, sent by fax, or sent by express carrier for next business day delivery 
evidenced by a receipt, or by United States registered or certified mail, freight or 
postage prepaid.  Notices shall be sent to a party’s address or fax number set forth 
at the beginning of the agreement or purchase order in which these General Terms 
and Conditions are incorporated or such other address or fax number as such party 
may specify in writing in accordance with these notice provisions.  

2.11 Waiver of Failure to Act.  No failure or delay by Kinsley in exercising any right 
or remedy under these General Terms and Conditions or a Related Agreement shall 
be deemed to be a waiver.  The waiver by Kinsley in any respect of any right 
provided for in these General Terms and Conditions or any Related Agreement shall 
not be deemed a waiver of any further right hereunder.  

2.12 Third Party Beneficiaries.  These General Terms and Conditions and any 
Related Agreement shall not be deemed to create any rights in any third parties 
(excepting only Kinsley’s affiliates), including suppliers and customers of a party, or 
to create any obligations of a party to any such third parties.  

2.13 Affiliate.  As used in these General Terms and Conditions or in any Related 
Agreement, an “affiliate” of a party means a third party that directly or indirectly 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 33



Proposal 
 

 

                                                                                                                         The Energy Solutions Company 
14 Connecticut South Drive Page 6 of 6 
East Granby, CT  06026  
800.255.3503  
www.kinsleypower.com  

 

(by the ownership of voting securities, contract or otherwise) controls, is controlled 
by, or is under the common control with, such party.  

3.0 LIMITED WARRANTY STATEMENT Kinsley makes no express or implied 
warranties, including without limitation, implied warranties of merchantability and 
fitness for particular purpose, on equipment, parts or devices or any other goods or 
products sold or rented by Kinsley.  The Customer’s sole remedy is under the 
warranty of the manufacturer.  At the Customer’s request, Kinsley may furnish 
specific manufacturers’ express limited warranty policies.  The Customer accepts 
the goods or products sold “as is” and “with all faults” except only as provided by 
the warranty of the manufacturer of the goods or products sold.  

Kinsley may provide technical information or advice to assist the Customer in the 
proper application and utilization of equipment or systems, in which case Kinsley 
disclaims all warranties, express or implied, including without limitation implied 
warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose, or compliance 
with governmental regulations.  

SOLE LIMITED WARRANTY BY KINSLEY. Kinsley warrants that for ninety (90) days 
beginning on the date of invoice, service labor by Kinsley technicians shall be free 
from material defects in workmanship. This warranty does not cover damage due 
to external causes including accident, abuse, misuse, problems with electrical 
power, servicing not authorized or performed by Kinsley, usage not in accordance 
with product instructions, failure to perform required preventive maintenance, 
and problems caused by use of parts and components not supplied by Kinsley. 
This warranty does not cover replacement or repair of materials due to normal 
wear. Kinsley’s responsibility is limited to repair or replacement at its designated 
facility, and the decision as to location of the repair work shall be made in the sole 
judgment of Kinsley.  

IN NO EVENT SHALL KINSLEY BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, 
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE LOSSES OR DAMAGES (INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF REVENUE OR PROFITS, 
FEES OR FINES), EVEN IF KINSLEY HAS BEEN ADVISED OR MADE AWARE OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER 
THE CLAIM IS BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHER THEORY 
OF LIABILITY. 

Kinsley’s cumulative liability for all losses and damages under these General Terms 
and Conditions or under any of the Related Agreements (including, without 
limitation, those arising out of contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability, 
warranty, or other theory of liability) shall not exceed (a) in the case of any services 
provided or to be provided by Kinsley, the amount of the fees paid by Customer for 
such services under the applicable Related Agreement, and (b) in the case of any 
products or devices provided or to be provided by Kinsley, the amount of Kinsley’s 
labor services paid by Customer and associated with the product sale.  

Kinsley makes no warranties beyond those stated in this warranty statement.  
Furthermore, no personnel of Kinsley are authorized to make warranties of any 
nature, orally or otherwise.   

4.0 Indemnification. Customer shall save harmless, indemnify, and at Kinsley’s 
option, defend Kinsley, and Kinsley’s owners, directors, officers, agents, 
representatives, affiliates and successors and assigns, from and against any and all 
liability, liens, claims, demands, damages, expenses, fees, costs, fines, penalties, 
suits, proceedings, actions and causes of action of every kind and nature arising or 
growing out of or in any way connected with Kinsley’s selling, repairing, evaluating, 
starting up, testing or maintaining equipment or other items or providing other 
services or products to or for the benefit of Customer or its affiliates, unless it is 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, after expiration of applicable 
appeal rights, that such matters were directly caused by Kinsley’s gross negligence 
or willful misconduct.  

5.0 Waiver of Subrogation.  Customer and all parties claiming to be related to 
customer hereby agree to release and discharge Kinsley from all claims and/or 
liabilities arising from or caused by any casualty or hazard which may arise out of or 
in connection with activities associated with Kinsley’s work on equipment or 
premises at the request or direction of Customer except as specifically stated 
herein, and Customer agrees to waive any right of subrogation which might 
otherwise exist in or accrue to any person on account thereof and further agree to 
evidence such waiver as may be required by Customers' insurance policies. 

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 34



Page 1 of 3

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-002 

HEAVY EQUIPMENT FOR OUTSIDE MAINTENANCE 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has been progressing with 
a long-term plan to reduce outside contractor expenses by performing large repairs to its 
collection and distribution network using in-house forces; and

WHEREAS, the outside crews currently are limited in the size and depth of the jobs they 
are able to perform by the size of the two backhoe/loaders that it uses for excavation; and 

WHEREAS, Water Board staff have developed a plan to trade in its two used backhoe 
loaders and to purchase two larger excavators and the necessary trailers, in order to facilitate 
performing larger jobs; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed procurements all are from competitively bid contracts from 
which the Water Board is authorized to purchase pursuant to General Municipal Law § 103(16), 
commonly referred to as the “piggybacking” law; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board will dispose of its existing backhoe/loaders by trading 
them in to offset the procurement of the new heavy equipment;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes the Executive 
Director to execute the documents required to complete the following transactions: 

1. Procurement of first 2021 John Deere 75G for heavy excavation: 
a. The Water Board will procure a 2021 John Deere 75G mid-sized excavator with 

Extended Warranty under Sourcewell Contract 032119-JDC (adopted by NYS 
OGS Contract No. PC69403) for a price of $103,979.13. 

i. The Water Board will dispose of its New Holland B95B backhoe/loader 
for a trade allowance of $8,000. 

ii. The Water Board will dispose of its John Deere 310SK backhoe/loader for 
a trade allowance of $37,000. 

b. The net price of the 2021 John Deere 75G after the total trade in allowance of 
$45,000 will be $59,019.13. 

c. The Water Board will complete the procurement by leasing the 2021 John Deere 
75G for 60 months for $12,582.01 annually (payments totaling $62,910.05), with 
the option to purchase the 2021 John Deere 75G for $1.00 at the end of the lease 
term. 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 35



Page 2 of 3

2. Procurement of second 2021 John Deere 75G for heavy excavation: 
a. The Water Board will procure a second 2021 John Deere 75G mid-sized 

excavator with Extended Warranty under Sourcewell Contract 032119-JDC 
(adopted by NYS OGS Contract No. PC69403) for a price of $102,981.41. 

i. The Water Board will dispose of its 2018 John Deere 410L 
backhoe/loader for a trade in allowance of $50,000. 

b. The net price of the second 2021 John Deere 75G after the total trade in 
allowance of $50,000 will be $53,021.41 

c. The Water Board will complete the procurement by leasing the second 2021 John 
Deere 75G for 60 months for $11,303.36 annually (payments totaling 
$56,516.80), with the option to purchase the second 2021 John Deere 75G for 
$1.00 at the end of the lease term. 

3. Procurement of 2021 John Deere 333G to maintain loading and grading capabilities: 
a. The Water Board will procure a 2021 John Deere 333G Compact Track Loader 

under Sourcewell Contract 032119-JDC (adopted by NYS OGS Contract 
No. PC69403) for $96,697.53. 

b. The Water Board will complete the procurement by leasing the 2021 John Deere 
333G for 60 months at $20,813.93 annually (payments totaling $96,697.53), with 
the option to purchase the 2021 John Deere 333G for $1.00 at the end of the lease 
term. 

4. Procurement of two 2021 Trail King TK24LP Tilt Trailers to Transport New Excavators 
a. The Water Board will procure two 2021 Trail King TK24LP Tilt Trailers under 

Sourcewell Contract 121918-TKI for $28,384.52 each, for a total price of 
$56,769.04. 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 36



Page 3 of 3

AND IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the net cost of this upgrade to the capacity of 
the Water Board to complete large and/or deep repairs, including financing and less trade-in 
allowances, shall not exceed $279,896.42, to be paid pursuant to the financing terms outlined 
above. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Capital Plan Item:  C-3 Fleet Replacement 
Available Funds for 2021 Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 37



Date: 30 July 2021 Offer Expires: 18 August 2021

Confidential

24962181Quote Id: 

Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Prepared By: PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road
West Falls, NY 14170

Tel:  716-662-2191
Fax:  716-662-1038
Email: pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 38



Confidential

24962181Quote Id: 

30 July 2021

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

 
 
 
Estimated delivery date: 
 
FOB: 
 
**Quote is subject to machine availability and managers approval. 
 

PATRICK MCMAHON
 716-662-2191
Five Star Equipment, Inc.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 39



Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Confidential

Quote Summary
Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304
Business:  716-283-9770

Prepared By:
PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road

West Falls, NY 14170
Phone:  716-662-2191

pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

 Quote Id: 24962181
30 July 2021

15 September 2021
Created On:

Last Modified On:
Expiration Date: 18 August 2021

Equipment Summary Selling Price Qty Extended

2021 JOHN DEERE 75G 
EXCAVATOR~ NYSOGS- PC69403; 
Sourcewell Contract- 032119-JDC - 
1FF075GXCMJ017792

$ 103,979.13 X 1 = $ 103,979.13

John Deere Extended Warranty- $ 0.00 X 1 = $ 0.00
Powertrain and Hydraulic, 3000Total Hours 
or 36Total Months, $ 0.00 Deductible

Equipment Total $ 103,979.13

Trade In Summary Qty Each Extended

NEW HOLLAND B95B 1 $ 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00
PayOff $ 0.00
Total Trade Allowance $ 8,000.00

JOHN DEERE 310SK LOADER BACKHOE 1 $ 37,000.00 $ 37,000.00
PayOff $ 0.00
Total Trade Allowance $ 37,000.00

Trade In Total $ 45,000.00
Quote Summary
Equipment Total $ 103,979.13
Trade In $ (45,000.00)
Doc Fee $ 0.00
UCC Filing Fee $ 40.00
SubTotal $ 59,019.13
Total $ 59,019.13
Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 59,019.13

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 40



        Selling Equipment

Quote Id: 24962181 Customer: NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Confidential

2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYSOGS- PC69403; Sourcewell 
Contract- 032119-JDC - 1FF075GXCMJ017792

Hours: 0
Stock Number: 00017822

Selling Price
$ 103,979.13

Code Description Qty Unit Extended
0091FF 2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXC W/AUX 

HYD
1 $ 132,948.00 $ 132,948.00

Standard Options - Per Unit
3265 CRAWLER RUBBER PAD-450MM 18" 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
7060 6'11" (2.12M) ARM W/BKT CYL 1 $ 6,791.00 $ 6,791.00

Standard Options Total $ 6,791.00
Dealer Attachments

TAG 24" Digging Bucket w/ TK Teeth 1 $ 1,500.37 $ 1,500.37
00062825 TAG 36" Ditching Bucket w/ BOE 1 $ 1,788.66 $ 1,788.66

ML50 TAG Hydraulic Multi-Pin Coupler w/ 
Install

1 $ 5,615.87 $ 5,615.87

DPIN25 Dead Pin Set 1 $ 241.28 $ 241.28
Dealer Attachments Total $ 9,146.18

Service Agreements
John Deere Extended Warranty - 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Service Agreements Total $ 0.00

Other Charges
Freight 1 $ 1,300.00 $ 1,300.00
Setup 1 $ 1,305.21 $ 1,305.21
34% Sourcewell Discount off List 1 $ -47,511.26 $ -47,511.26
Other Charges Total $ -44,906.05
Suggested Price $ 103,979.13

Customer Discounts
Customer Discounts Total $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Total Selling Price $ 103,979.13

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 41



Trade In
Quote Id: 24962181 Customer: NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Confidential

NEW HOLLAND B95B

Machine Details

Description    Net Trade Value
NEW HOLLAND B95B $ 8,000.00

Your Trade In Description

Total $ 8,000.00

JOHN DEERE 310SK LOADER BACKHOE

Machine Details

Description    Net Trade Value
JOHN DEERE 310SK LOADER BACKHOE $ 37,000.00

Stock Number :
Your Trade In Description

Additional Options
Hour Meter Reading 6527

PayOff $ 0.00
Total $ 37,000.00

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 42



Confidential

Extended Warranty Proposal
2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYSOGS- PC69403; Sourcewell Contract- 
032119-JDC
Date : September 15, 2021
Machine/Use Information Plan Description Price
Manufacturer JOHN DEERE Application Commercial Deductible $ 0.00

Equipment Type 75G 
EXCAVATOR Coverage Powertrain and 

Hydraulic List $ 0.00

Model 75G 
EXCAVATOR Total Months 36   

Country Total Hours 3000   
Extended Warranty is available only through authorized John Deere Dealers for John Deere Products,and may be purchased at any time before the product's Standard Warranty,or 
Extended Warranty expires.

Customer Name - Please Print

Customer Signature

Extended Warranty Proposal Prepared for: I have been offered this extended warranty and

I ACCEPT the Extended Warranty✔

I DECLINE the Extended Warranty

If declined, I fully understand that any equipment listed 
above is not covered for customer expenses due to 
component failures beyond the original basic warranty 
period provided by John Deere.

This is not a contract. For specific Extended Warranty coverage terms and conditions, please refer to the 
actual Extended Warranty contract for more information and the terms, conditions and limitations of the 
agreement.

Note :

What Extended Warranty is :
The Extended Warranty Program is for the reimbursement on parts and labor for covered components that fail 
due to faulty material or original workmanship that occur beyond the John Deere Basic Warranty coverage period. 
The agreement is between Deere & Company and the owners of select John Deere Construction and Forestry 
equipment, who purchase the Extended Warranty Plans for the desired coverage as indicated in this proposal.

What Extended Warranty is not :
Extended Warranty is not insurance. It also does not cover routine maintainance or high wear items,or insurance-
related risks/perils such as collision, overturn, vandalism, wind, fire, hail, etc. It does not cover loss of income 
during or after an equipment failure. See the actual product-specific Extended Warranty agreement for a 
complete listing of covered components, and limitations and conditions under the program.

Features/Benefits:
Extended Warranty includes the following features and benefits under the program :
Pays for parts and labor costs incurred on failed covered components (less any applicable deductibles),
Does not require pre-approval before repairs are made by the authorized John Deere dealership,
Payments are reimbursed directly to the dealership with no prepayment required by the contract holder.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 43



Confidential

Finance Options Valid through August 18, 2021
Created On July 30, 2021

New 2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYSOGS- 
PC69403; Sourcewell Contract- 032119-JDC
Serial # 1FF075GXCMJ017792

Selling Price $ 103,979.13

Add'l Advanced Payment ---

Trade-Ins -$ 45,000.00

Net Selling Price $ 58,979.13

Physical Damage Insurance ---

Preventive Maintenance ---

Extended Warranty ---

Filing / Origination Fees $ 40.00

Total Lease Amount $ 59,019.13

Purchase Option $ 1.00

Lease Offer
Term in Months 60
Annual Hrs 500
Cost/Hour $ 25.16

$ 12,582.01
Annual
Quote does not include sales tax. Quote 
may or may not include property tax. 
Insurance, warranty, and fees quoted 
with this offer are included in the Cost/
Hour calculation.

Subject to approval by John Deere Financial. Taxes, freight, setup, and delivery charges, and optional charges for other services may or may not be 
included and could change the lease payment. Lease payments are in advance unless otherwise noted in the quote above and may vary based upon the 
end of lease term purchase option price. Not available for Consumer use. Available only at participating dealers.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 44



Confidential

Finance Options Valid through August 18, 2021
Created On July 30, 2021

New 2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYSOGS- PC69403; 
Sourcewell Contract- 032119-JDC
Serial # 1FF075GXCMJ017792

Lease
Term in Months 60

Annual Hrs for Term 500

Cost/Hour $ 25.16

Payment $ 12,582.01
Annual

Selling Price $ 103,979.13

Add'l Advanced 
Payment

---

Trade-Ins -$ 45,000.00

Net Selling Price $ 58,979.13

Physical Damage 
Insurance

---

Preventive 
Maintenance

---

Extended Warranty ---

Filing / Origination Fees $ 40.00

Total Lease Amount $ 59,019.13

Purchase Option $ 1.00

Total Payments $ 62,910.05

Subject to approval by John Deere Financial. Taxes, freight, setup, and delivery charges, and optional charges for other services may or may not be 
included and could change the lease payment. Lease payments are in advance unless otherwise noted in the quote above and may vary based upon the 
end of lease term purchase option price. Not available for Consumer use. Available only at participating dealers.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 45



*All programs are subject to John Deere Financial approval and John Deere Dealer participation.

Day in and day out, John Deere is behind you. 
At John Deere Financial, we're focused on listening to you and understanding what is most important 
to you. We respect that you prefer working with a company you can count on to meet your changing 
needs, and who provides easy access to flexible financing throughout the good and tough times. We 
don't just provide construction equipment financing; we build long-term relationships through trust. 

 We're dedicated to delivering superior value while providing you with the construction equipment you 
need and the financing solutions you appreciate. So, whether you need a lease or installment loan to 
acquire construction equipment you can count on John Deere to deliver. You'll also find our financing 
programs easy to understand, convenient, and customizable to your particular situation.

Parts, Service and Rental Financing 

Put it on PowerPlan™ 

We're dedicated to providing you with flexible financing options that fit your bottom line, and with a 
PowerPlan account, you'll have more flexibility than ever before! 

 PowerPlan is a commercial line of credit that gives you instant purchasing power for parts, service, 
equipment rental, and more. With a PowerPlan account, you can pay your balance in full each month, 
without any interest charges. You can also choose to make convenient monthly payments at a 
competitive interest rate when you need to conserve cash flow. 

 PowerPlan is a great, flexible way to minimize downtime and improve your cash flow. And, it's just one 
of the many ways we are dedicated to you and your success.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 46



Date: 13 August 2021 Offer Expires: 31 August 2021

Confidential

25049566Quote Id: 

Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Prepared By: PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road
West Falls, NY 14170

Tel:  716-662-2191
Fax:  716-662-1038
Email: pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 47



Confidential

25049566Quote Id: 

13 August 2021

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

 
 
 
Estimated delivery date: 
 
FOB: 
 
**Quote is subject to machine availability and managers approval. 
 

PATRICK MCMAHON
 716-662-2191
Five Star Equipment, Inc.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 48



Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Confidential

Quote Summary
Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304
Business:  716-283-9770

Prepared By:
PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road

West Falls, NY 14170
Phone:  716-662-2191

pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

 Quote Id: 25049566
13 August 2021

03 September 2021
Created On:

Last Modified On:
Expiration Date: 31 August 2021

Equipment Summary Selling Price Qty Extended

2021 JOHN DEERE 75G 
EXCAVATOR~ NYS OGS- 
PC69403; Sourcewell Contract- 
032119-JDC - 033567

$ 102,981.41 X 1 = $ 102,981.41

John Deere Extended Warranty- $ 0.00 X 1 = $ 0.00
Powertrain and Hydraulic, 3000Total Hours 
or 36Total Months, $ 0.00 Deductible

Equipment Total $ 102,981.41

Trade In Summary Qty Each Extended

2018 JOHN DEERE 410L LOADER BACKHOE 1 $ 50,000.00 $ 50,000.00
PayOff $ 0.00
Total Trade Allowance $ 50,000.00

Trade In Total $ 50,000.00
Quote Summary
Equipment Total $ 102,981.41
Trade In $ (50,000.00)
Doc Fee $ 0.00
UCC Filing Fee $ 40.00
SubTotal $ 53,021.41
Total $ 53,021.41
Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 53,021.41

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 49



        Selling Equipment

Quote Id: 25049566 Customer: NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Confidential

2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYS OGS- PC69403; Sourcewell 
Contract- 032119-JDC - 033567

Hours: 0
Stock Number: C016001

Selling Price
$ 102,981.41

Code Description Qty Unit Extended
0091FF 2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXC W/AUX 

HYD
1 $ 132,948.00 $ 132,948.00

Standard Options - Per Unit
3265 CRAWLER RUBBER PAD-450MM 18" 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
7060 6'11" (2.12M) ARM W/BKT CYL 1 $ 6,791.00 $ 6,791.00

Standard Options Total $ 6,791.00
Dealer Attachments

ML50 TAG HYDRAULIC MULTI PIN 
COUPLER

1 $ 5,443.51 $ 5,443.51

2449X2 TAG 24" DIGGING BUCKET 1 $ 1,025.25 $ 1,025.25
TAG 36" DIGGING BUCKET 1 $ 1,433.17 $ 1,433.17
DEAD PINS 1 $ 246.52 $ 246.52
Dealer Attachments Total $ 8,148.45

Service Agreements
John Deere Extended Warranty - 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Service Agreements Total $ 0.00

Other Charges
Freight 1 $ 1,300.00 $ 1,300.00
Setup 1 $ 1,305.21 $ 1,305.21
34% Sourcewell Discount off List 1 $ -47,511.25 $ -47,511.25
Other Charges Total $ -44,906.04

Customer Discounts
Customer Discounts Total $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Total Selling Price $ 102,981.41

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 50



Trade In
Quote Id: 25049566 Customer: NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Confidential

2018 JOHN DEERE 410L LOADER BACKHOE

Machine Details

Description    Net Trade Value
2018 JOHN DEERE 410L LOADER BACKHOE $ 50,000.00

Your Trade In Description

Additional Options
Hour Meter Reading 3632

Total $ 50,000.00

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 51



Confidential

Extended Warranty Proposal
2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYS OGS- PC69403; Sourcewell Contract- 
032119-JDC
Date : September 13, 2021
Machine/Use Information Plan Description Price
Manufacturer JOHN DEERE Application Governmental Deductible $ 0.00

Equipment Type 75G 
EXCAVATOR Coverage Powertrain and 

Hydraulic List $ 0.00

Model 75G 
EXCAVATOR Total Months 36   

Country Total Hours 3000   
Extended Warranty is available only through authorized John Deere Dealers for John Deere Products,and may be purchased at any time before the product's Standard Warranty,or 
Extended Warranty expires.

Customer Name - Please Print

Customer Signature

Extended Warranty Proposal Prepared for: I have been offered this extended warranty and

I ACCEPT the Extended Warranty✔

I DECLINE the Extended Warranty

If declined, I fully understand that any equipment listed 
above is not covered for customer expenses due to 
component failures beyond the original basic warranty 
period provided by John Deere.

This is not a contract. For specific Extended Warranty coverage terms and conditions, please refer to the 
actual Extended Warranty contract for more information and the terms, conditions and limitations of the 
agreement.

Note :

What Extended Warranty is :
The Extended Warranty Program is for the reimbursement on parts and labor for covered components that fail 
due to faulty material or original workmanship that occur beyond the John Deere Basic Warranty coverage period. 
The agreement is between Deere & Company and the owners of select John Deere Construction and Forestry 
equipment, who purchase the Extended Warranty Plans for the desired coverage as indicated in this proposal.

What Extended Warranty is not :
Extended Warranty is not insurance. It also does not cover routine maintainance or high wear items,or insurance-
related risks/perils such as collision, overturn, vandalism, wind, fire, hail, etc. It does not cover loss of income 
during or after an equipment failure. See the actual product-specific Extended Warranty agreement for a 
complete listing of covered components, and limitations and conditions under the program.

Features/Benefits:
Extended Warranty includes the following features and benefits under the program :
Pays for parts and labor costs incurred on failed covered components (less any applicable deductibles),
Does not require pre-approval before repairs are made by the authorized John Deere dealership,
Payments are reimbursed directly to the dealership with no prepayment required by the contract holder.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 52



Confidential

Finance Options Valid through August 31, 2021
Created On August 13, 2021

New 2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYS OGS- 
PC69403; Sourcewell Contract- 032119-JDC
Serial # 033567

Selling Price $ 102,981.41

Add'l Advanced Payment ---

Trade-Ins -$ 50,000.00

Net Selling Price $ 52,981.41

Physical Damage Insurance ---

Preventive Maintenance ---

Extended Warranty ---

Filing / Origination Fees $ 40.00

Total Lease Amount $ 53,021.41

Purchase Option $ 1.00

Lease Offer
Term in Months 60
Annual Hrs 0
Cost/Hour $ 0.00

$ 11,303.36
Annual
Quote does not include sales tax. Quote 
may or may not include property tax. 
Insurance, warranty, and fees quoted 
with this offer are included in the Cost/
Hour calculation.

Subject to approval by John Deere Financial. Taxes, freight, setup, and delivery charges, and optional charges for other services may or may not be 
included and could change the lease payment. Lease payments are in advance unless otherwise noted in the quote above and may vary based upon the 
end of lease term purchase option price. Not available for Consumer use. Available only at participating dealers.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 53



Confidential

Finance Options Valid through August 31, 2021
Created On August 13, 2021

New 2021 JOHN DEERE 75G EXCAVATOR~ NYS OGS- PC69403; 
Sourcewell Contract- 032119-JDC
Serial # 033567

Lease
Term in Months 60

Annual Hrs for Term 0

Cost/Hour $ 0.00

Payment $ 11,303.36
Annual

Selling Price $ 102,981.41

Add'l Advanced 
Payment

---

Trade-Ins -$ 50,000.00

Net Selling Price $ 52,981.41

Physical Damage 
Insurance

---

Preventive 
Maintenance

---

Extended Warranty ---

Filing / Origination Fees $ 40.00

Total Lease Amount $ 53,021.41

Purchase Option $ 1.00

Total Payments $ 56,516.80

Subject to approval by John Deere Financial. Taxes, freight, setup, and delivery charges, and optional charges for other services may or may not be 
included and could change the lease payment. Lease payments are in advance unless otherwise noted in the quote above and may vary based upon the 
end of lease term purchase option price. Not available for Consumer use. Available only at participating dealers.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 54



*All programs are subject to John Deere Financial approval and John Deere Dealer participation.

Day in and day out, John Deere is behind you. 
At John Deere Financial, we're focused on listening to you and understanding what is most important 
to you. We respect that you prefer working with a company you can count on to meet your changing 
needs, and who provides easy access to flexible financing throughout the good and tough times. We 
don't just provide construction equipment financing; we build long-term relationships through trust. 

 We're dedicated to delivering superior value while providing you with the construction equipment you 
need and the financing solutions you appreciate. So, whether you need a lease or installment loan to 
acquire construction equipment you can count on John Deere to deliver. You'll also find our financing 
programs easy to understand, convenient, and customizable to your particular situation.

Parts, Service and Rental Financing 

Put it on PowerPlan™ 

We're dedicated to providing you with flexible financing options that fit your bottom line, and with a 
PowerPlan account, you'll have more flexibility than ever before! 

 PowerPlan is a commercial line of credit that gives you instant purchasing power for parts, service, 
equipment rental, and more. With a PowerPlan account, you can pay your balance in full each month, 
without any interest charges. You can also choose to make convenient monthly payments at a 
competitive interest rate when you need to conserve cash flow. 

 PowerPlan is a great, flexible way to minimize downtime and improve your cash flow. And, it's just one 
of the many ways we are dedicated to you and your success.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 55



Date: 30 July 2021 Offer Expires: 18 August 2021

Confidential

24962219Quote Id: 

Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Prepared By: PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road
West Falls, NY 14170

Tel:  716-662-2191
Fax:  716-662-1038
Email: pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 56



Confidential

24962219Quote Id: 

30 July 2021

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

 
 
 
Estimated delivery date: 
 
FOB: 
 
**Quote is subject to machine availability and managers approval. 
 

PATRICK MCMAHON
 716-662-2191
Five Star Equipment, Inc.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 57



Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Confidential

Quote Summary
Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304
Business:  716-283-9770

Prepared By:
PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road

West Falls, NY 14170
Phone:  716-662-2191

pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

 Quote Id: 24962219
30 July 2021

15 September 2021
Created On:

Last Modified On:
Expiration Date: 18 August 2021

Equipment Summary Selling Price Qty Extended

2021 JOHN DEERE 333G 
COMPACT TRACK LOADER~ NYS 
OGS- PC69403; Sourcewell 
Discount- 032119-JDC - 510694

$ 96,657.53 X 1 = $ 96,657.53

Equipment Total $ 96,657.53

Quote Summary
Equipment Total $ 96,657.53
Doc Fee $ 0.00
UCC Filing Fee $ 40.00
SubTotal $ 96,697.53
Total $ 96,697.53
Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 96,697.53

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 58



        Selling Equipment

Quote Id: 24962219 Customer: NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Confidential

2021 JOHN DEERE 333G COMPACT TRACK LOADER~ NYS OGS- PC69403; 
Sourcewell Discount- 032119-JDC - 510694

Hours: 0
Stock Number: C015379

Selling Price
$ 96,657.53

Code Description Qty Unit Extended
0BF2T 2021 JOHN DEERE 333G COMPACT 

TRACK LDR BASE
1 $ 95,657.00 $ 95,657.00

Standard Options - Per Unit
170C JDLINK 4G ULTMT W 5 YRS SERV 1 $ 1,777.00 $ 1,777.00
0770 2SP HIFL SLEV RC CB/AC PQT 1 $ 4,589.00 $ 4,589.00
0953 ISO SWITCHABLE CTLS & JS PPK 1 $ 1,058.00 $ 1,058.00
1501 ENGLISH OP MAN & DECALS 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
2650 WIDE ZIG-ZAG MULTI BAR TRKS 1 $ 205.00 $ 205.00
4003 3" SEAT BELT W/2"SHLDR STRAP 1 $ 271.00 $ 271.00
6006 AIR RIDE SEAT (CLOTH W HEAT) 1 $ 639.00 $ 639.00
8042 REAR VIEW CAMERA 1 $ 869.00 $ 869.00
8050 COLD START PACKAGE 110 VOLT 1 $ 310.00 $ 310.00
8310 3 SET COUNTERWEIGHT 1 $ 1,148.00 $ 1,148.00
8370 LOUVER REAR GRILLE, HVY DUTY 1 $ 497.00 $ 497.00
8380 FOOTREST WITH FLOORMAT 1 $ 147.00 $ 147.00
8500 ONBOARD GRADE INDICATION 1 $ 1,534.00 $ 1,534.00
9062 84" HD CONST BKT W/ EDGE 1 $ 1,739.00 $ 1,739.00

Standard Options Total $ 14,783.00
Dealer Attachments

Bradco 18" Rock Saw 1 $ 20,988.43 $ 20,988.43
Dealer Attachments Total $ 20,988.43

Other Charges
32% Sourcewell Discount off List 1 $ 35,340.80 $ 35,340.80
Other Charges Total $ 35,340.80
Suggested Price $ 166,769.23

Customer Discounts
Customer Discounts Total $ -70,111.70 $ -70,111.70

Total Selling Price $ 96,657.53

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 59



Confidential

Finance Options Valid through August 18, 2021
Created On July 30, 2021

New 2021 JOHN DEERE 333G COMPACT TRACK 
LOADER~ NYS OGS- PC69403; Sourcewell Discount- 
032119-JDC
Serial # 510694

Selling Price $ 96,657.53

Add'l Advanced Payment ---

Trade-Ins ---

Net Selling Price $ 96,657.53

Physical Damage Insurance ---

Preventive Maintenance ---

Extended Warranty ---

Filing / Origination Fees $ 40.00

Total Lease Amount $ 96,697.53

Purchase Option $ 1.00

Lease Offer
Term in Months 60
Annual Hrs 0
Cost/Hour $ 0.00

$ 20,813.93
Annual
Quote does not include sales tax. Quote 
may or may not include property tax. 
Insurance, warranty, and fees quoted 
with this offer are included in the Cost/
Hour calculation.

Subject to approval by John Deere Financial. Taxes, freight, setup, and delivery charges, and optional charges for other services may or may not be 
included and could change the lease payment. Lease payments are in advance unless otherwise noted in the quote above and may vary based upon the 
end of lease term purchase option price. Not available for Consumer use. Available only at participating dealers.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 60



Confidential

Finance Options Valid through August 18, 2021
Created On July 30, 2021

New 2021 JOHN DEERE 333G COMPACT TRACK LOADER~ NYS 
OGS- PC69403; Sourcewell Discount- 032119-JDC
Serial # 510694

Lease
Term in Months 60

Annual Hrs for Term 0

Cost/Hour $ 0.00

Payment $ 20,813.93
Annual

Selling Price $ 96,657.53

Add'l Advanced 
Payment

---

Trade-Ins ---

Net Selling Price $ 96,657.53

Physical Damage 
Insurance

---

Preventive 
Maintenance

---

Extended Warranty ---

Filing / Origination Fees $ 40.00

Total Lease Amount $ 96,697.53

Purchase Option $ 1.00

Total Payments $ 104,069.65

Subject to approval by John Deere Financial. Taxes, freight, setup, and delivery charges, and optional charges for other services may or may not be 
included and could change the lease payment. Lease payments are in advance unless otherwise noted in the quote above and may vary based upon the 
end of lease term purchase option price. Not available for Consumer use. Available only at participating dealers.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 61



*All programs are subject to John Deere Financial approval and John Deere Dealer participation.

Day in and day out, John Deere is behind you. 
At John Deere Financial, we're focused on listening to you and understanding what is most important 
to you. We respect that you prefer working with a company you can count on to meet your changing 
needs, and who provides easy access to flexible financing throughout the good and tough times. We 
don't just provide construction equipment financing; we build long-term relationships through trust. 

 We're dedicated to delivering superior value while providing you with the construction equipment you 
need and the financing solutions you appreciate. So, whether you need a lease or installment loan to 
acquire construction equipment you can count on John Deere to deliver. You'll also find our financing 
programs easy to understand, convenient, and customizable to your particular situation.

Parts, Service and Rental Financing 

Put it on PowerPlan™ 

We're dedicated to providing you with flexible financing options that fit your bottom line, and with a 
PowerPlan account, you'll have more flexibility than ever before! 

 PowerPlan is a commercial line of credit that gives you instant purchasing power for parts, service, 
equipment rental, and more. With a PowerPlan account, you can pay your balance in full each month, 
without any interest charges. You can also choose to make convenient monthly payments at a 
competitive interest rate when you need to conserve cash flow. 

 PowerPlan is a great, flexible way to minimize downtime and improve your cash flow. And, it's just one 
of the many ways we are dedicated to you and your success.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 62



Date: 04 August 2021 Offer Expires: 31 August 2021

Confidential

24988109Quote Id: 

Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Prepared By: PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road
West Falls, NY 14170

Tel:  716-662-2191
Fax:  716-662-1038
Email: pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 63



Confidential

24988109Quote Id: 

04 August 2021

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

 
 
 
Estimated delivery date: 
 
FOB: 
 
**Quote is subject to machine availability and managers approval. 
 

PATRICK MCMAHON
 716-662-2191
Five Star Equipment, Inc.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 64



Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Confidential

Quote Summary
Prepared For:
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304
Business:  716-283-9770

Prepared By:
PATRICK MCMAHON

Five Star Equipment, Inc.
284 Ellicott Road

West Falls, NY 14170
Phone:  716-662-2191

pmcmahon@fivestarequipment.com

 Quote Id: 24988109
04 August 2021
04 August 2021

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 31 August 2021

Equipment Summary Selling Price Qty Extended

2021 TRAIL KING TK24LP 24,000 
LBS Tilt Trailer~ Sourcewell 
Contract- 121918-TKI

$ 28,384.52 X 1 = $ 28,384.52

Equipment Total $ 28,384.52

Quote Summary
Equipment Total $ 28,384.52
Doc Fee $ 0.00
UCC Filing Fee $ 0.00
SubTotal $ 28,384.52
Total $ 28,384.52
Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 28,384.52

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 65



        Selling Equipment

Quote Id: 24988109 Customer: NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Confidential

2021 TRAIL KING TK24LP 24,000 LBS Tilt Trailer~ Sourcewell Contract- 
121918-TKI

Hours: 0
Stock Number:

Code Description Qty
TKT24LP TRAIL KING TKT24LP TILT TRAILER 1

Standard Options - Per Unit
0824 Black w. White Decals 1

10059 No Spare Wheel 1
11343 Manual Deck Lock 1
11352 H9700 Spring Suspension 1
13096 6 Pair D-Ring Tie Downs 1
13098 28' Overall Deck 1
13103 12K HD Jack w. Spring Foot 1
13914 Standard Pintle Plate 1
14482 5' Tongue Pintle Eye, w/ Adjustable 

Coupler
1

14487 Safety Chains with Hooks 1
14488 Lockable 1
14490 34" Loaded Deck Height 1
14493 4" Safety Headboard 1
14494 One Hyd. Cushioning Cylinder 1
14496 Floor Plate on Fold Down Approach 

Plate
1

14498 12,000LB Capacity Axles 1
14501 49" Axle Spacing 1
14503 Grote Electrical System w/ LED Lights 1
14505 3rd Tail Light Option 1
14506 7 Pole RV Style Electrical Plug 1
14507 Mudflaps 1
14508 Registration Holder 1
15733 Air Brakes 4S2M 1
15797 10" Deck Manufactured I-Beam 1
15802 7" Mill Channel Outer Rail 1
15802 1-1/2" Oak Raised Decking 1

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 66



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-003 

AUTHORIZING EXTENSION OF BID  
FOR SEWER LINE CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) is responsible for 
maintaining an extensive network of sewer mains in the City of Niagara Falls; and 

WHEREAS, the intrusion of roots into sewer mains can cause structural damage to 
sewer mains and also block or reduce flow, cause overflows, or reduce hydraulic capacity 
(leading to a loss of self-scouring velocities); and 

WHEREAS, to combat roots in its sewer mains, the Water Board performs camera 
inspections of its system and makes targeted application of approved root-control chemicals into 
its sewer mains; and 

WHEREAS, with the assistance of City of Niagara Falls Purchasing, in 2018 
Water Board staff developed specifications for the application of DEC approved root control 
chemicals to Water Board sewer mains under Bid No. W2018-04; and 

WHEREAS, the successful bidder in 2018 was Municipal Sales, Inc.; and 

WHEREAS, the root control bid authorizes the extension of the bid for up to a total of 
four additional years, with the mutual consent of the Water Board and the successful bidder; and 

WHEREAS, Duke’s Root Control, Inc., having acquired Municipal Sales, Inc., and as its 
assignee and successor, has agreed to a one-year bid extension for work to be performed in 2021; 
and 

WHEREAS, Water Board staff recommend that the Board authorize a one-year 
extension of the bid for chemical root control as in the best interests of the Water Board; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 67



NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby consents to a one-year 
extension of Chemical Root Control Bid No. W2018-04, and authorizes staff to procure chemical 
root control services from Duke’s Root Control, Inc., up to the $40,000 sum budgeted for such 
services. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Superintendent 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
8120.4900.0419.004, Agricultural/Botanical 
Budget Line Supplied by:  M. Eagler 
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 68



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-004 

AWARD BID FOR PRIMARY TREATMENT POLYMER 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) wastewater treatment plant 
(“WWTP”) requires the use of various chemicals in the process of treating wastewater; and 

WHEREAS, one such chemical which must be purchased for use at the WWTP is a 
primary treatment polymer; and 

WHEREAS, with the assistance of City of Niagara Falls Purchasing, Water Board staff 
developed specifications for the required primary treatment polymer under Bid No. W2021-01; 
and 

WHEREAS, there was a tie for lowest bid per pound between the bid submitted by Slack 
Chemical Company, Inc., and the bid submitted by Solenis, LLC; and 

WHEREAS, the current WWTP supplier is Slack Chemical Company, its polymer has 
proven to perform effectively, and awarding to Slack will be most efficient inasmuch as dosing 
and performance characteristics are known to WWTP operations;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby awards the bid for primary 
treatment polymer to Slack Chemical Company, Inc., for a price of $1.44 per pound. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Budget Line:  GA-0419.016  
Budget Line Supplied by: R. Dunn  
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 69



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 70



OFFICIAL TALLY SHEET 
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD, NIAGARA FALLS, NEW YORK 

 

 
NFWB BID # W2021-01 PRIMARY TREATMENT POLYMERS         PAGE 1 OF 1   
BID OPENING:   SEPTEMBER 1, 2021  11:00 AM                        SET    1 OF 1  
 

ITEMS 
(2) 

DESCRIPTION 
Primary 

Treatment 
Polymer 

Polydyne, Inc. 
1 Chemical Plant Rd 
PO Box 279 
Riceboro, GA 31323 
 

Slack Chemical Co., Inc. 
PO Box 30 
Carthage, NY 13619-0030 

Coyne Chemical 
3015 State Road 
Croydon, PA 19021 

Neo Solutions, Inc. 
PO Box 26 
Beaver, PA 15009-0026 

Solenis, LLC 
2475 Pinnacle Drive 
Wilmington, DE 19803 

1. 
 

Manufacturer: 

Name/Type/#: 

 

Unit price/ lb.: 

Quantity (lbs.): 

 

NO BID 

Silverstar 

STA FLOC 5368 – Niagara 

3rd 

$1.44 per lb.     

15,000 lbs. 

 

NO BID 

Neo Solutions, Inc. 

NS 6850P  

 

$1.719 per lb. 

            15,000 lbs. 

 

Solenis, LLC 

Zetag 4110 

 

$1.60 per lb.     

32,128 lbs. 

 2. Manufacturer: 

Name/Type/#: 

 

Unit price/lb.: 

Quantity (lbs.): 

 

NO BID 

 

NO BID 

 

NO BID 

 

NO BID 

Solenis, LLC 

Magnafloc LT 340 

 

$1.44 per lb.     

32,128 lbs 
 
 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 71



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-005 

APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO OPERATION AGREEMENT WITH CITY 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”), Niagara Falls Public 
Water Authority (“Authority”), and City of Niagara Falls (“City”) entered into an Operation 
Agreement dated April 1, 2003, which among other things established a procedure for the 
Water Board to make a payment in lieu of taxes to the City, for the City to provide certain 
services to the Water Board, and for the Water Board’s payment for those services; and 

WHEREAS, to reflect the evolving relationship between the City and the Water Board, 
the Operation Agreement was amended on January 1, 2006 and September 26, 2008; and 

WHEREAS, on December 30, 2020, the City provided the Water Board with notice that 
it intended to cease providing billing and collections and the other services it provides to the 
Water Board pursuant to the Operation Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties subsequently engaged in negotiations to address issues with the 
Operation Agreement that had developed since the last amendment in 2008, to update procedures 
for services provided under the Operation Agreement, and to make the Operation Agreement 
more accurately reflect the scope and cost of services provided by the City to the Water Board;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Chairman hereby is 
authorized to execute the Third Amendment to Operation Agreement that is attached hereto and 
made part hereof. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
General Counsel  

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Budget Lines:  FA.8310.0001.0449.000 

GA.8110.0001.0449.000 
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 72



1 

 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO 

OPERATION AGREEMENT 

 

This Third Amendment, dated as of _____________, 2021 ("Third Amendment"), by and 

between the CITY OF NIAGARA FALLS ("CITY"), a municipal corporation of the State of 

New York, THE NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD ("BOARD"), a body corporate and 

politic constituting a corporate municipal instrumentality of the State of New York and the 

NIAGARA FALLS PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY ("AUTHORITY"), a body corporate 

and politic constituting a public benefit corporation of the State: 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the City, the Board and the Authority entered into an Operation Agreement, 

dated as of April 1, 2003 ("Operation Agreement"); and  

WHEREAS, the City, the Board and the Authority entered into a First Amendment to the 

Operation Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006; and  

WHEREAS the City, the Board and the Authority entered into a Second Amendment to 

the Operation Agreement, dated as of September 26, 2008; and 

WHEREAS the City, by letter dated December 30, 2020, provided the Board with a 

Notice of Discontinuance of Billing Services pursuant to Section 5.4.1 of the Operation 

Agreement and Notice of Discontinuance of Other City Services pursuant to Section 5.6 of the 

Operation Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City, the Board and the Authority desire to amend Sections 5.1, 5.4, 5.5 

and 5.6 of the Operation Agreement as set forth below; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 

hereinafter contained, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

1. Effective Date. This Amendment shall be effective as of July 1, 2021 (the "Effective 

Date"). 

2. Amendment of Sections 5.1, 5.4, 5.5 and 5.6 of the Operation Agreement and 

addition of a new Sections 5.7 and 5.8. As of the July 1, 2021, Sections 5.1, 5.4, 5.5 and 5.6 of 

the Operation Agreement are hereby amended in their entirety, and Sections 5.7 and 5.8 are 

added, to read as follows: 

 

SECTION 5.1 - BILLING AND COLLECTION. 

(A) The City shall no longer provide Billing and Collection Services to the Board, except 

as provided in Section 5.1 (B) below. 

(B) The Board hereby hires, retains and employs the City, and the City hereby agrees, to 

provide the following Billing and Collection Services: 

1) The City shall accept, on behalf of the Board, “in person" collections only. 

In the event a mailed payment is received by the City, the City will stamp 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 73



2 

 

the mailed payment with the date of receipt and promptly forward to the 

Board; 

2) The City shall provide the Board a detailed listing of properties taken 

through "in-rem" proceedings with water and sewer account balances and 

the disposition of the sale. The Board's portion of proceeds from "in-rem" 

sales shall be transferred to the Board, with a reconciliation provided 

within a reasonable time of the sale. This reconciliation will provide 

sufficient data for the Water Board to account for the specific charges that 

were part of the sale and the amount of those charges recovered, and will 

include information such as the address of the property, and the amount 

being paid to the Water Board as its share of the recovery for the property; 

3) The City shall include, with the tax searches issued by the City, a request 

for status of water and sewer bills, which will be provided by the Board 

within three (3) days of the request; 

4) The City shall have inquiry rights into water and sewer accounts, and 

revenue accounting processing access, on the Board's financial software. 

(The Board will provide appropriate training to City personnel.) All 

processing shall be done on the Board's financial system. Cashier reports 

from the City shall be provided to the Board on a weekly basis. 

 (C) The Board shall handle all calls and complaints related to water and sewer bills and 

service. All water and sewer bills and shut off notices will be updated to reflect the removal of 

the City’s telephone number. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of this Agreement, the 

Board will provide the City with a template or proof of the removal of the City’s telephone 

number from all billing, with the address supplied on the bill specifically for “in person” 

payment only;  

 (D)  The Board shall administer all repayment agreements and update the respective 

account within the board’s financial software to reflect the related agreement and shall provide 

the City with proof of the same within seven (7) days. 

(E) The City shall deposit all Water Charge collections in the Board's Local Water Fund 

within two (2) business days of receipt thereof. The City acknowledges that all monies collected 

as Water Charges are the property of the Water Board.  

 

SECTION 5.4 - PAYMENT FOR SERVICE.  

             In exchange for providing the services set forth in Section 5.1(B), 5.2 and 5.3, the Board 

shall pay twenty-five percent (25%) of the reasonable personnel costs of the City's Billing and 

Collection office staff (the City's reasonable personnel costs for 2021 are set forth in Attachment 

“A”). Personnel costs shall include wages and fringe benefits as required by labor agreement 

and/or law. The City shall provide the Board with a budget estimate for the personnel costs of its 

Billing and Collection office staff for any upcoming calendar year on or about October 15 of the 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 74



3 

 

preceding year, this figure is an estimate only and final figures will be delivered to the Board 

after adoption of the final City budget but no later than the third week of December. The Board 

shall be responsible to pay for increases in the personnel costs for the City's Billing and 

Collection office staff. The Board may request additional documents in support of the final City 

budget figures.  

 

SECTION 5.4.1 - DISCONTINUANCE OF BILLING SERVICES. 

            The Billing and Collection Services provided under this Amendment shall continue to, 

and including, December 31, 2024. Billing and Collection Services, as set forth in Section 

5.1(B), shall, thereafter, continue on a year-to-year basis. For periods after December 31, 2024, 

either party may terminate the agreement for the Billing and Collection Services, as set forth in 

Section 5.1(B), by giving at least one (1) year prior written notice of its intention to terminate. 

Notwithstanding the termination of billing services pursuant to this Section, Sections 5.2 and 5.3 

of the Operation Agreement, as amended, shall remain in full force and effect, and in such event 

the Board shall pay to the City the cost of services provided to the Board pursuant to Section 

1230-j of the Act. 

 

SECTION 5.5 - OTHER CITY SERVICES.  

            In addition to the services provided pursuant to Section 5.1 of the Operation Agreement, 

the City shall also provide the Board with the services set forth in this Section. The costs or 

budget estimates of services to be rendered under this Amendment are set forth in Attachment 

“B”. The costs and budget estimates may, if necessary, be revised each year. 

 (A) Purchasing Services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall continue to; (i) 

provide postage, fuel for Board vehicles and salt, the actual cost of which will be billed to the 

Board monthly; (ii) prepare competitive bids and requests for quotations as requested by the 

Board; and (iii) allow the Board to participate in the cooperative purchasing program and give 

such notifications as are necessary, to ensure that the lowest unit cost is available to the Board, 

the City and other participants. Cost for the City's continued preparation of competitive bids is 

set forth in Attachment “A”.  

 (B) Information Technologies (“IT”). The City shall provide IT assistance to the Board 

to ensure the respective connections between the billing and collection office for the City and the 

Board are maintained in order to process payments. It is acknowledged, understood and agreed 

upon that the City shall invoice the Board for services actually rendered. 

 (C) Human Resource Services. The Board is required to rely on support from the City 

Human Resource Department for the following services:  

1) All Civil Service information e.g. classifying, preparing job specifications, 

exams, eligibility lists, probations, promotions and transfers.  

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 75



4 

 

2) The Board is responsible for keeping the City Human Resource 

Department advised of all employee status which affect human resource 

services. 

 

3) Any and all retirement and/or terminations must be communicated to the 

City within two (2) business days.  

 

4) The cost for providing the above Human Resource Department is set forth 

in Attachment “A”. 

(D) Engineering Services. The City shall continue to provide engineering services to the 

Board associated with ongoing and new water and sewer projects. It is acknowledged, 

understood and agreed that the City shall invoice the Board for Engineering Services actually 

rendered; this will include, but shall not be limited to, wages and fringe benefits as required by 

labor agreement and/or law. Engineering services include the services listed below, which shall 

continue to be provided by qualified staff in similar manner as previously delivered.  

1) A list of projects requiring engineering services consisting of planning, 

design, bidding and construction and inspection phases for new projects 

and including ongoing projects in their current and remaining phases 

respective shall be provided and agreed to by the Board and the City. 

This list shall include a schedule of costs of engineering services for each 

phase of the listed project and a percent completion for each phase of 

ongoing projects. A monthly progress report shall be provided to the 

Board presenting the percent complete and a narrative describing the 

progress and activities for each project. An invoice shall be prepared by 

the City from this report payable by the Board based on discussion and 

agreement with the Board. 

 

2) Survey and statistical field work required for preliminary design, 

specifications, stamping and sealing. 

  

3) Project design and prepared drawings, to be prepared and stamped as 

necessary. 

  

4) Cost estimates for each project for bidding, budgeting and emergency 

procurement.  

 

5) Bidding and construction services that include, without limitation, 

preparation of bid documents, advertisement, distribution, receiving bids 

and opening, award recommendations, contract execution, job progress 

meeting, shop review and approval, addressing contractor questions and 

issues, processing change orders, processing payments and project close 

out activities and preparing and delivering as-built drawings. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 76



5 

 

6)  Construction inspection services and written reports thereof to be 

prepared and submitted to the Board. 

 

7) Preparation of Health Department Plan Reviews and DEC submissions as 

necessary.  

 

8) Right of Way permitting for water and sewer outside maintenance work.  

 

9) Inspection of required restoration work.  

     10) Access to record drawings for review and scanning.  

 11) Expedited support for emergency water and sewer repairs. 

12) Managing the underground utility locates program. 

(E) Department of Public Works (“DPW”). The City shall provide DPW services to 

the Board associated with the projects involving street repairs. It is acknowledged, understood 

and agreed upon that the City shall invoice the Board for DPW services actually rendered; this 

will include, but shall not be limited to, wages and fringe benefits as required by labor agreement 

and/or law. 

(F) Code Enforcement Services. The City shall provide to the Board the Code 

Enforcement services listed below on an ongoing basis. The Board’s share of the cost for 

postage, printing, and other similar overhead costs associated with these services is set forth in 

Attachment “B”. 

1) Provide assistance with the water shut off program, which shall include 

but not be limited to the following: 

(a) Prepare and mail out notices to respective properties; 

(b) Post required signage at respective properties; and 

(c) Remove signage at respective properties when applicable. 

2) The Board agrees to certify to the Code Enforcement Department that all 

properties requiring condemnation have had the water shut off prior to the 

posting of the respective signage at the respective property.  

 

3) The Board further agrees to indemnify the City for any potential damages 

that may result from the City posting respective signage on a property that 

has yet to have the water turned off.  

 

4) The Board also agrees to provide notification to Code Enforcement when 

any required signage should be removed from a property due to payment 

being accepted. This notification should be made within twenty-four (24) 

hours of payment being accepted. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 77



6 

 

SECTION 5.6 - DISCONTINUANCE OF OTHER CITY SERVICES.  

 

             Services provided under this Amendment shall continue to, and including, December 31, 

2024. In the event that either the Board or the City, in their sole discretion, determine that the 

City discontinue providing any services described in Section 5.5 of this Amendment, the party 

making such determination shall give written notice of such fact to the other party on or before 

July 1 for termination effective as of years-end.  

 

SECTION 5.7 – SERVICES BY WATER BOARD TO CITY.   

 

(A) Payment for Miscellaneous Services.  The Board may from time to time provide 

services or equipment to the City to assist the City with discrete tasks or projects. It is 

acknowledged, understood and agreed upon that the Board shall invoice the City for such 

services actually rendered; this will include, but shall not be limited to, wages and fringe benefits 

as required by labor agreement and/or law or, as applicable, the fair rental value of loaned 

equipment. 

 

(B) City of Niagara Falls Fire Hydrants.  Pursuant to 21 NYCRR 1950.15, the 

Board charges an annual availability fee to be paid by the City Fire Department for each public 

fire hydrant within the City’s boundaries.  The Board agrees to use its best efforts to limit this fee 

to a sum that corresponds to the Board’s anticipated capital and operations and maintenance 

costs associated with providing those hydrants.  The Board will charge the annual fee to the City 

in October to be paid within 30 days, and as a condition of payment must certify that to the best 

of its knowledge the number of fire hydrants included on the annual bill are in proper working 

order and are available for use by the Fire Department on an as needed basis.  As of the date of 

this Amendment, the Board certifies that to the best of its knowledge it is providing 2,234 

hydrants that are in proper working order and available for use by the Fire Department. The 

Board will provide the City with a budgetary estimate of the hydrant fee by October 15 each 

year, with the understanding that the City will base its budget on this estimate and that any 

increase beyond the estimate provided will require the City to make budget amendments that will 

impact City services. In addition the City may request additional documents in support of the 

amount stated by the Board. 

 

SECTION 5.8 – LOAN OF EQUIPMENT 

 Subject to mutual agreement, the City or Board may loan each other the use of equipment 

or vehicles from time to time to promote efficiency and save costs.  The party loaning the 

equipment or vehicle may bill the other party to reimburse the cost of use, not to exceed the fair 

rental value of the loaned equipment or vehicle.  The party using the loaned equipment or vehicle 

will defend and indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the party loaning the 

equipment or vehicle from any liability arising from the use, and will repair any damage 

resulting from the operations of the party using the vehicle.  To the extent the party using loaned 

equipment or vehicles is not self-insured for liability and/or damage, it agrees to secure 

additional-insured status for the party loaning the vehicle or equipment.  In the event an 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 78



7 

 

insurance claim is made in connection with the use of loaned equipment or vehicles, the party 

using the loaned equipment or vehicle agrees to pay any applicable deductible. 

 

3. Other Provisions. Except as expressly amended herein, all other provisions in the Operation 

Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects and shall continue in full force and 

effect. 

4. Counterparts. This Amendment maybe executed is several counterparts, each of which shall 

be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Amendment as of the 

date first set forth above. 

 

 

CITY OF NIAGARA FALLS, NY   NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD 

 

_______________________________  ___________________________________ 

Robert M. Restaino, Mayor    Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman 

 

 

_______________________________  NIAGARA FALLS WATER AUTHORITY 

Attest: Niagara Falls City Clerk 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Jason Murgia, Chairman 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 79



8 

 

Attachment A 
 

City Services Cost Allocation 

(Section 5.4 – Billing and Collection Services) 
 

The charges below are calculated pursuant to Section 6.1 (B) (1) of the Operations 

Agreement between the City of Niagara Falls and the Niagara Falls Water Board and shall apply 

for services delivered under this Agreement. The City shall provide the Board with a budget 

estimate for the personnel costs of its office staff responsible for performing the services or the 

services themselves described in this Amendment for any upcoming calendar year on or before 

October 15 of the preceding year; accordingly, the Board shall be responsible to pay for any 

increases in the personnel costs for the City's office staff.  The Water Board may request and the 

City shall upon such request provide documents supporting the City’s estimate for personnel costs.  

Future cost assignments will be made developed and established pursuant to Section 6.1 

“Payments by the Board" and Section 6.2 "Method of Payment" of the Operations Agreement. 

 

 
*Pursuant to Section 5.4, the above figures are subject to change based upon City’s budget estimates for the 

personnel costs for its office staff responsible for performing the services or for the services themselves as 

described herein; the Board shall be responsible to pay for any increases in the personnel costs for the City's 

office staff.  The Water Board may request and the City shall upon such request provide documents supporting 

the City’s estimate for personnel costs.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

                                                                        BILLING & COLLECTION DEPARTMENT  

 Billing & Collection Staff  2021   Health  Dental    Life   Pension  Total  % of time   
            Job Titles  Salary  FICA  Insurance  Insurance  Insurance  Tier  &GTLI  Cost  Allocated  TOTAL  
 Billing Supervisor  $ 52.632.22  $ 4,026  $ 27,323,16  $1,260.00  $ 233.21  4  $ 9,579.06  $ 95,054  17%  $ 16,159  

 Principal Account Clerk  45,013.51  3,444  27,323.16  1,260.00  130.82  4  8,192.46  85,363  17%  14,512  

 Principal Clerk.  47,593.08  3.641  27,323.16  1,260.00  136.51  4  8.661.94  88,616  17%  15,065  

 Principal Clerk  42,779.46  3,273  8,373.96  428.40  122.29  6  4,577.40  59,554  17%  10,124  

 Account Clerk  29,645.98  2,268  8,373.85  428.40  85.32  6  3,172.12  43,974  17%  7,476  

 Billing & Collection Clerk  34,589.22  2,646  1,477.74  428.40  99.54  6  3,701.05  42,942  17%  7,300  

 Account Clerk  29,645.98  2,268  23,224.64  1,071.00  85.32  6  3.172,12  59,467  17%  10,109  

 
Total Cost of B&C Staff  $ 281,899.45  $ 21,565.31  $ 123,419.67  $6,136.20  $ 893.02  

 
$41,056.15  $ 474,969.80  

 
$80,744.87*  

These costs are for "Personnel ONLY" and do not include any overhead costs for utilities, phones, and all office supplies and 

paper used to administer the collection of Water/Sewer Bills 
Total divided by 12:                                                                                       

$6,728.74 per month 

   

  

  

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 80



9 

 

Attachment B 
 

City Services Cost Allocation 

(Section 5.5 – Other City Services) 
 

The charges below are calculated pursuant to Section 6.1 (B) (1) of the Operations 

Agreement between the City of Niagara Falls and the Niagara Falls Water Board and shall apply 

for services delivered under this Agreement. The City shall provide the Board with a budget 

estimate for the personnel costs of its office staff responsible for performing the services or the 

services themselves described in this Amendment for any upcoming calendar year on or before 

October 15 of the preceding year; accordingly, the Board shall be responsible to pay for any 

increases in the personnel costs for the City's office staff.  The Water Board may request and the 

City shall upon such request provide documents supporting the City’s increased costs for services.  

Future cost assignments will be made developed and established pursuant to Section 6.1 

“Payments by the Board" and Section 6.2 "Method of Payment" of the Operations Agreement. 

Service     Cost 

Section 5.5(A) - Purchasing Services     $1,200.00* per Water Board bid,  

        $600* per joint City/Water Board  

        bid. 

Section 5.5(C) – Human Resources $5,000.00* annually; plus actual 

cost     for staffing Civil Service 

examinations* 

 

Section 5.5(F) – Code Enforcement – Postage,  $850.00* per batch of water service  

Printing, and Similar Overhead Expenses  shutoffs (Typically six (6) batches  

Associated with this Department’s Assistance per year) 

with the Shut Off Program    

           
 

*Pursuant to Section 5.5, the above figures are subject to change based upon City’s budget estimates for the 

personnel costs for its office staff responsible for performing the services or for the services themselves as 

described herein; the Board shall be responsible to pay for any increases in the personnel costs for the City's 

office staff.  The Water Board may request and the City shall upon such request provide documents supporting 

the City’s increased costs.   

   

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 81



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-006 

PROCUREMENT OF GRIT CYCLONE SCREW AND PARTS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) wastewater treatment plant 
(“WWTP”) cyclone-type grit washer’s screw failed in September 2021; and 

WHEREAS, WWTP maintenance staff welded the screw as a temporary repair but 
recommend ordering a replacement screw in order to ensure reliability; and 

WHEREAS, WWTP maintenance staff further recommend procurement of additional 
parts for the grit washer to maintain that equipment in working order; and 

WHEREAS, these parts are for a Smith & Loveless machine, which has provided a letter 
certifying that Koester Associates, Inc., is the sole authorized source for these parts;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to procure a grit screw with wear shoes and coupling bolts, two tail shaft 
assemblies, one additional set of wear shoes with hardware, and four bronze lower bearings, plus 
shipping costs, for a total cost not to exceed $32,540.82.  

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director  

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Capital Line:  WWTP-17 WWTP Infrastructure Projects-Miscelleneous 
Budget Line Provided by: B. Majchrowicz 
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 82



                                     
 

PROPOSAL #: 2021-P-13920 
    DATE: 9-14-21  

 
 

 

3101 Seneca Turnpike•Canastota•NY•13032 

Phone 315.697.3800•Fax 315.697.3888•koesterassociates.com 

sales@koesterassociates.com•service@koesterassociates.com•parts@koesterassociates.com 

 

 
 
 
Customer:  Eric Smith 
Site Location: Niagara Falls WWTP 
 
Fax/E-mail:  esmith@nfwb.org 
Phone:      
 
 
We are pleased to offer the following quotation for parts for UV System: 
 
 

QTY P/N DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 
(Each) 

EXT Price SHIPMENT 

1 CZZ1696-07-SCR SCREW W/ WEAR SHOES & COUPLING BOLTS $18,327.40 18,237.40 5-6 WKS 

1 CZZ1696-07-TS TAIL SHAFT ASSEMBLY $3,921.45 3,921.45 5-6 WKS 

2 CZZ1696-07-BRG BRONZE LOWER BEARING $229.50 459.00 5-6 WKS 

  
 

 
Note:  Installation and start-up not included however available under separate cover. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.   
 
• Total Price: $22,617.85 plus shipping not to exceed $1000.00_ 
• Shipment SEE ABOVE weeks ARO, dependent on factory stock and production times. 
• Standard Terms and Conditions, on the attached page, are incorporated in this quotation. Prices quoted shall 

remain firm 60 days from date of issuance. Payment is due net 30 days.  
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 83



         

 
         

If you wish to proceed with this proposal, 
please sign and return.  
  
If you have any questions,  
please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
Robin VanSlyke 
Parts Coordinator 
Koester Associates, Inc. 
Ph:    (315) 697- 3800 
Fax:  (315) 697- 3888 
rvanslyke@koesterassociates.com

 
Date accepted on:  
 
Purchaser/Name (sign):  
 
Purchaser/Name (print): 
 
Billing Address: 
 

 
Phone: 

P.O.#:  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 84

tel:%28315%29%20697-%203800
tel:%28315%29%20697-%203888
mailto:rvanslyke@koesterassociates.com


         

 
         

                                                                       Terms and Conditions 
 
An order will constitute a contract between the Company and the Buyer when accepted in writing by the Company at its home office in 
Canastota, NY.  A contract resulting from the acceptance of an order may be canceled or altered by the Buyer only if agreed to in writing by the 
Company at its home office, subject to payment of reasonable charges necessary to protect the Company from loss.  Until accepted, as provided 
herein, an order shall constitute an offer to purchase.  Neither the acceptance of any deposit made with an order nor the cashing of any check 
or other instrument therefore, nor the holding of such deposit by the Company shall be deemed an acceptance of an order, but if the order is 
not accepted, the Company will promptly refund such deposit. 
 
The Company shall not be liable for any failure to make delivery, for late delivery, or other default by reason of any occurrence or contingency 
beyond the reasonable control of the Company or of any of its sources of supply or for failure to give notice of any delay.  In the event of any 
such occurrence or contingency, the Company may extend delivery schedules or may, at its option, cancel the order in whole or in part without 
the liability other than to return any deposit or pre-payment should the whole order be canceled. 

 
The Buyer will reimburse the Company for all taxes, excises and similar charges based upon or measured by the production, storage, sale, 
transportation or use of the products described herein. 
 
The Company warrants that the products (except products made by the Company to drawings or specifications of the Buyer) will not in 
themselves infringe any United States patent, but the Company assumes no obligation in regard to patent infringement resulting from the use 
of the products in combination with equipment or other products not furnished by the Company.  Liability under this warranty is limited to the 
aggregate amount (exclusive of taxes and transportation) to be paid hereunder and is conditioned upon the Buyer's giving the Company prompt 
written notice of any claim of patent infringement and granting the Company exclusive control of the settlement or litigation thereof. 
 
The Company shall not be bound by any terms, conditions, or representations, which are not stated herein. 
 
The Company shall not be obligated to perform hereunder if, at any time, Buyer's credit rating becomes impaired. 
 
The Company shall retain a security interest in the products supplied hereunder to secure performance of Buyer's obligations and Buyers shall 
execute all financing statements and other instruments that the Company deems necessary to protect its security interest.  If the Buyer defaults 
in any of its obligations hereunder or is unable to pay its debts as they mature, the Company shall have the right to repossess the products, 
exercise all legal options to collect the debt and cancel unshipped balances with or without resort to legal process, and Buyer agrees to pay all 
reasonable collection costs (including reasonable attorney fees) incurred by Company. 
 
All material is sold F.O.B. shipping point and title and risk of loss passes to Buyer on delivery to the common carrier at shipping point.  Orders 
for replacement material must be a new purchase order. 
 
The Buyer shall have the right to inspect the products prior to payment and acceptance and if Buyer's inspection reveals any defects in the 
products, Buyer shall notify the Company within thirty (30) days after receipt of the products of any claim Buyer might have concerning such 
defects.  Buyer's failure to notify the Company within such thirty-day period shall constitute a waiver by Buyer of all claims covering such defects 
in the products. 
 
The Company's acceptance of order cancellation or order reduction requests is conditioned upon receiving Buyer's written agreement to 
assume termination charges. 
 
The Company reserves the right to refuse to accept any order which does not meet quantity requirements which the Company may establish 
for any given product or group of products. 
 
Prices are based on quality levels commensurate with normal processing.  If a different quality level is required, Buyer must specify the 
requirements and pay any additional costs that may be applicable. 
 
The Company reserves the right to correct clerical or stenographic errors or omissions. 
 
THE PRODUCT WARRANTY IS AS SUBMITTED HEREWITH.  NO OTHER WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WILL APPLY. 
 
The terms of this agreement and all rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York. 
The foregoing terms and conditions will prevail notwithstanding any variance with the terms and conditions of Buyer's order for the products. 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 85



                                     
 

PROPOSAL #: 2021-P-13927 
    DATE: 9-15-21  

 
 

 

3101 Seneca Turnpike•Canastota•NY•13032 

Phone 315.697.3800•Fax 315.697.3888•koesterassociates.com 

sales@koesterassociates.com•service@koesterassociates.com•parts@koesterassociates.com 

 

 
 
 
Customer:  Eric Smith 
Site Location: Niagara Falls WWTP 
 
Fax/E-mail:  esmith@nfwb.org 
Phone:      
 
 
We are pleased to offer the following quotation for parts for UV System: 
 
 

QTY P/N DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 
(Each) 

EXT Price SHIPMENT 

1 CZZ1696-07-WS SET OF WEAR SHOES W/HARDWARE $5452.52 $5452.52 4-6 WKS 

      

      

  
 
Note:  Installation and start-up not included however available under separate cover. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.   
 
• Total Price: $5,452.52 plus shipping not to exceed $1000.00_ 
• Shipment SEE ABOVE weeks ARO, dependent on factory stock and production times. 
• Standard Terms and Conditions, on the attached page, are incorporated in this quotation. Prices quoted shall 

remain firm 60 days from date of issuance. Payment is due net 30 days.  
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 86



         

 
         

If you wish to proceed with this proposal, 
please sign and return.  
  
If you have any questions,  
please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
Robin VanSlyke 
Parts Coordinator 
Koester Associates, Inc. 
Ph:    (315) 697- 3800 
Fax:  (315) 697- 3888 
rvanslyke@koesterassociates.com

 
Date accepted on:  
 
Purchaser/Name (sign):  
 
Purchaser/Name (print): 
 
Billing Address: 
 

 
Phone: 

P.O.#:  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 87

tel:%28315%29%20697-%203800
tel:%28315%29%20697-%203888
mailto:rvanslyke@koesterassociates.com


         

 
         

                                                                       Terms and Conditions 
 
An order will constitute a contract between the Company and the Buyer when accepted in writing by the Company at its home office in 
Canastota, NY.  A contract resulting from the acceptance of an order may be canceled or altered by the Buyer only if agreed to in writing by the 
Company at its home office, subject to payment of reasonable charges necessary to protect the Company from loss.  Until accepted, as provided 
herein, an order shall constitute an offer to purchase.  Neither the acceptance of any deposit made with an order nor the cashing of any check 
or other instrument therefore, nor the holding of such deposit by the Company shall be deemed an acceptance of an order, but if the order is 
not accepted, the Company will promptly refund such deposit. 
 
The Company shall not be liable for any failure to make delivery, for late delivery, or other default by reason of any occurrence or contingency 
beyond the reasonable control of the Company or of any of its sources of supply or for failure to give notice of any delay.  In the event of any 
such occurrence or contingency, the Company may extend delivery schedules or may, at its option, cancel the order in whole or in part without 
the liability other than to return any deposit or pre-payment should the whole order be canceled. 

 
The Buyer will reimburse the Company for all taxes, excises and similar charges based upon or measured by the production, storage, sale, 
transportation or use of the products described herein. 
 
The Company warrants that the products (except products made by the Company to drawings or specifications of the Buyer) will not in 
themselves infringe any United States patent, but the Company assumes no obligation in regard to patent infringement resulting from the use 
of the products in combination with equipment or other products not furnished by the Company.  Liability under this warranty is limited to the 
aggregate amount (exclusive of taxes and transportation) to be paid hereunder and is conditioned upon the Buyer's giving the Company prompt 
written notice of any claim of patent infringement and granting the Company exclusive control of the settlement or litigation thereof. 
 
The Company shall not be bound by any terms, conditions, or representations, which are not stated herein. 
 
The Company shall not be obligated to perform hereunder if, at any time, Buyer's credit rating becomes impaired. 
 
The Company shall retain a security interest in the products supplied hereunder to secure performance of Buyer's obligations and Buyers shall 
execute all financing statements and other instruments that the Company deems necessary to protect its security interest.  If the Buyer defaults 
in any of its obligations hereunder or is unable to pay its debts as they mature, the Company shall have the right to repossess the products, 
exercise all legal options to collect the debt and cancel unshipped balances with or without resort to legal process, and Buyer agrees to pay all 
reasonable collection costs (including reasonable attorney fees) incurred by Company. 
 
All material is sold F.O.B. shipping point and title and risk of loss passes to Buyer on delivery to the common carrier at shipping point.  Orders 
for replacement material must be a new purchase order. 
 
The Buyer shall have the right to inspect the products prior to payment and acceptance and if Buyer's inspection reveals any defects in the 
products, Buyer shall notify the Company within thirty (30) days after receipt of the products of any claim Buyer might have concerning such 
defects.  Buyer's failure to notify the Company within such thirty-day period shall constitute a waiver by Buyer of all claims covering such defects 
in the products. 
 
The Company's acceptance of order cancellation or order reduction requests is conditioned upon receiving Buyer's written agreement to 
assume termination charges. 
 
The Company reserves the right to refuse to accept any order which does not meet quantity requirements which the Company may establish 
for any given product or group of products. 
 
Prices are based on quality levels commensurate with normal processing.  If a different quality level is required, Buyer must specify the 
requirements and pay any additional costs that may be applicable. 
 
The Company reserves the right to correct clerical or stenographic errors or omissions. 
 
THE PRODUCT WARRANTY IS AS SUBMITTED HEREWITH.  NO OTHER WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WILL APPLY. 
 
The terms of this agreement and all rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York. 
The foregoing terms and conditions will prevail notwithstanding any variance with the terms and conditions of Buyer's order for the products. 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 88



 
  

August 12, 2021  
 

  
  
To whom it may concern,  
  
Smith & Loveless, Inc.® is the manufacturer of a full line of sewage pumping, headworks, 
screening, and treatment equipment.  Smith & Loveless only sells this proprietary equipment 
and proprietary parts directly to end-users or through sole-source Representatives.  Because 
even the first Smith & Loveless pump station sold in 1946 is still in operation,  
Smith & Loveless spends large portions of its resources in not only providing spare parts but 
knowing and maintaining the knowledge of which parts are now used for every piece of S&L 
equipment.   
  
This information is kept by each unique S&L serial number.  S&L has developed and has had  
parts specifically developed for S&L, which can only be purchased through 
Smith & Loveless, Inc.  
  
This letter is to certify that Smith & Loveless, Inc. is the sole source for its new equipment, 
retrofit equipment, and parts.  Our parts and retrofit departments can be reached by calling 
800-922-9048.  Your local sole-source Representative is Koester Associates for pumping 
equipment. Their phone number is 315.697.3800 and fax number is 315.697.3888.    
  
Best regards,   
  

  
Sarah Gosewehr  
Manager Parts Department  
Aftermarket Division 
Smith & Loveless, Inc.  
  

  

  
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 89



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-007 

DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS  
TO BE DISPOSED OF AT AUCTION 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has certain equipment that 
is no longer useful or necessary for Water Board purposes; and 

WHEREAS, declaring this property to be surplus and authorizing its disposal at auction 
will provide the Water Board with the opportunity to maximize the revenue it receives for the 
surplus property;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby declares the items on the 
attached list entitled “Items Requested to be Declared Surplus for Disposal at Auction – 
September 2021” to be surplus property, and authorizes their disposal through auction. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director  

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Budget Line for Proceeds:  FA.0000.2665.000 Sale-Equipment 
Budget Line Provided by: B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 90



Item Model Serial # Hours

Clipper Street Saw C-658-KFT 90CM522800102 110.4

Clipper Street Saw C-658-JAT 90CM618840102 3.4

8' Plow w/ultra mount system Western

8' Plow w/ultra mount system Western

8' Plow w/ultra mount system Western

Magnum Generator MMG125 H063459 270.24

Disel Arrow Board DLB15 8812R2405 2397.5

Disel Arrow Board DLB15 3312R2402 874.9

New Holland Front Loader 32LA STD S1D0295/ Component #  716603006 407

 Air Compressor Gimmer Schmidt 185DR22217 401.3

9 assorted tool boxes

ford 917h flail mowwer 3point hook up

alamo flail mower 3 point hook up

Items Requested to be Declared Surplus for Disposal at Auction - September 2021

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 91



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-008 

PAYMENT TO BONADIO & CO. FOR 2020 AUDIT  
AND EXERCISING OPTION FOR 2021 AUDIT 

WHEREAS, in 2020 the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) issued a request 
for proposals for annual auditing services for 2020, with the option to have the selected firm 
perform the 2021 and 2022 audits, and 

WHEREAS, in November 2020 the Water Board selected the November 20, 2020 
proposal by Bonadio & Co. and authorized that firm to perform the 2020 annual audit for a fee 
not to exceed $23,000; and 

WHEREAS, Bonadio & Co.’s fee was based on the estimated number of hours to be 
devoted to the engagement, and its engagement agreement provided at Appendix A that 
additional fees may result from certain circumstances including in the event of delays in audit 
readiness; and 

WHEREAS, on August 11, 2021 Bonadio & Co. presented an invoice totaling 
$19,876.50 for additional fees beyond the $23,000 approved by the Water Board; and 

WHEREAS, Water Board staff have negotiated this invoice with Bonadio & Co., which 
has agreed to accept 50% of the invoiced fee, $9,938.25, as final payment for the 2020 audit 
services; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board believes the additional work required to complete the 
2020 audit represented unusual circumstances that will not be repeated in the future, was 
satisfied with the work performed by Bonadio & Co., and wishes to exercise its year-two option 
to have Bonadio & Co. perform the 2021 audit for a fee not to exceed $26,000 as outlined in that 
firm’s November 20, 2020 proposal;  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 92



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes payment in the 
amount of $9,938.25 for extra work performed by Bonadio & Co. in connection with the 2020 
audit and as payment in full for that work; and 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director hereby is authorized to 
enter into an agreement with Bonadio & Co. to perform annual audit services for the year ending 
December 31, 2021 for a fee not to exceed $26,000 unless additional fees are authorized by 
Resolution of the Niagara Falls Water Board prior to their being incurred. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
Deputy Director of Financial Services  

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Budget Line:  FGB.8000.0000.0459.000 - Auditors 
Budget Line Provided by: B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 93



171 Sully's Trail

Pittsford, NY  14534

Phone: (585) 381-1000

FAX: (585) 381-3131

August 11, 2021Niagara Falls Water Board

5815 Buffalo Ave.

Niagara Falls, NY 14304
BN277431

NIA040001

Invoice Date:

Invoice Number:

Client Number:

Additional billings related to the December 31, 2020 audit of the NFWB.  As a result of the 

complexities and challenges during the course of the audit, including the delays in audit 

readiness which necessitated the involvement of more senior personnel throughout the 

engagement.

Breakdown of billing as follows:

 15,692.00 Budgeted Partner time - 39 hours

Actual Partner time - 86.55 hours

Overage = 47.55 hours x $330 = 15,692

 13,913.00 Budgeted Manager time - 117 hours

Actual Manager time - 209.75

Overage - 92.75 hours x $150 = 13,913

(3,103.00)Budgeted other staff time - 234 hours

Actual other staff time - 189.67 hours

Under - 44.33 hours x $70 = 3,103

(6,625.50)Adjustment to reflect the first time nature of the audit and the time above a typical budgeted 

expectation (25% adjustment)

$26,502 total overage x 25% = $6,625.50

Total $19,876.50 

Accounts Receivable Aging

 19,876.50  60.00  0.00  4,000.00  0.00  23,936.50

Current 31 - 60 Days 61 - 90 Days 91 - 120 Days 120+ Days Total

To enroll in E-Billing or make a payment please visit www.bonadio.com/online-billing

Payments due upon receipt. Past due balances are subject to a finance charge of 1.5% per month. Accounts 

receivable aging amounts above may include finance charges. A $25 fee will be added to the account for each 

returned check.

Please reference your client number and invoice number when remitting your payment.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 94



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 95



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 96



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 97



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 98



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 99



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 100



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 101



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 102



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 103



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-009 

CHANGE ORDERS FOR PROJECT 2, GORGE PUMP STATION REHABILITATION 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has approved a substantial 
construction project to rehabilitate its Gorge Pump Station (“GPS”), including replacement of 
pumps, grinder improvements, heating and ventilation improvements, sluice gate replacements, 
lighting upgrades, and other work, collectively referred to as “Project 2”; and 

WHEREAS, the engineering services for Project 2 were awarded to GHD; and 

WHEREAS, the prime contracts for Project 2 were awarded to John W. Danforth 
Company (heating and ventilation), STC Construction, Inc. (general contractor), and 
CIR Electrical Construction Corp. (electrical); and  

WHEREAS, Project 2 originally was scheduled to be completed by September 2, 2021, 
but due to unforeseen delays in the supply of materials and equipment due to the COVID-19 
pandemic and as a result of changes to the contractors’ scope of work resulting from unforeseen 
circumstances, the three prime contractors have requested change orders permitting an additional 
10 months to complete their work, through July 2, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the change orders requested by the prime contractors are for time only, and 
not for additional fee; and 

WHEREAS, GHD, which is performing construction inspection and construction 
administration services for Project 2, has presented a proposal dated September 8, 2021 
requesting additional fee totaling $89,400 for the cost of performing those services for the 
additional 10 months requested by the prime contractors; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director, working with CPL, the Water Board’s project 
manager, has negotiated GHD’s proposed fee down from the $134,700 originally requested by 
GHD to complete the construction inspection and construction administration work; and 

WHEREAS, GHD’s proposal includes continued MWBE and SDVOB participation to 
meet the project goals; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 104



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes the 
Executive Director to execute no-cost change orders for STC Construction, Inc., 
John W. Danforth Company, and CIR Electrical Construction Corp., extending the time for 
Project 2 project completion to July 2, 2022; and 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director hereby is authorized to 
approve an amendment to GHD’s agreement for Project 2 engineering services work to authorize 
an additional fee not to exceed $89,400 to complete the Project 2 construction administration and 
construction inspection work. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Capital Plan Items: WWTP 2 
Capital Line Supplied by:  D. Williamson 
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 105



                                    
Reference No. 11194110 

   1 

  
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

 
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD 

GORGE PUMP STATION REHABILITATION PROJECT 
CONTRACT NO. 15688-2G – GENERAL  

 
0BOwner: 

 
Niagara Falls Water Board 

1BContractor: 
 

STC Construction, Inc. 

2BEngineer: 
 

GHD Consulting Services Inc. 
 
Description of Change(s): 
1. No-cost extension of Contract Time of Completion of 303 calendar days.  New Contract Completion 

Date is July 2, 2022. 
 

Reason for Change(s): 
1. Delays from the pump manufacturer, Xylem, with supply of the new Vertical Centrifugal Pumps. Xylem is 

experiencing material procurement delays on their end attributable to COVID-19 related global supply 
chain issues.  There will also be additional work on the pump installs related to the demolition and 
installation of new pump foundation pads, which were not included in the initial contract schedule. There 
is also additional scope of work to supply and install a new sluice gate in the wet well south influent 
channel because the existing sluice gate is leaking and does not isolate the channel to allow safe 
replacement of the grinder equipment.  
 

Compensation(s): 

Item Credit Additional 

1.  $0.00 $0.00 

Subtotal $0.00 $0.00 

Total this Change Order  $0.00 
 
Contract Summary: 

Current Contract Amount   $   3,215,000.00 

Total this Change Order  $                 0.00 

Revised Contract Amount  $   3,215,000.00 
 
Authorizations:  

 
 

  

Niagara Falls Water Board  Date 
 
 

  

STC Construction, Inc.  Date 
   

GHD Consulting Services Inc.  Date 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 106



                                    Reference No. 11194110 

   1 

  
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

 
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD 

GORGE PUMP STATION REHABILITATION PROJECT 
CONTRACT NO. 15688-2H – HEATING & VENTILATION 

 
0BOwner: 

 
Niagara Falls Water Board 

 

1BContractor: 
 

John W. Danforth Company 

2BEngineer: 
 

GHD Consulting Services Inc. 
 

 
Description of Change(s): 
 

1. No-cost extension of Contract Time of Completion of 303 calendar days.  New Contract 
Completion Date is July 2, 2022. 
 

Reason for Change(s): 
 

1. Necessitated by the extension of the additional work done by the General Contractor. 
 

Compensation(s): 

Item Credit Additional 

1.  $0.00 $0.00 

Subtotal $0.00 $0.00 

Total this Change Order  $0.00 
 
Contract Summary: 

Current Contract Amount   $    864,400.00 

Total this Change Order  $               0.00 

Revised Contract Amount  $    864,400.00 
 
 
Authorizations:  

 
 

  

Niagara Falls Water Board  Date 
 
 

  

John W. Danforth Company  Date 
   

GHD Consulting Services Inc.  Date 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 107



                                    Reference No. 11194110 

   1 

  
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

 
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD 

GORGE PUMP STATION REHABILITATION PROJECT 
CONTRACT NO. 15688-2E – ELECTRICAL  

 
0BOwner: 

 
Niagara Falls Water Board 

 

1BContractor: 
 

CIR Electrical Construction Corp. 

2BEngineer: 
 

GHD Consulting Services Inc. 
 

 
Description of Change(s): 
 

1. No-cost extension of Contract Time of Completion of 303 calendar days.  New Contract 
Completion Date is July 2, 2022. 
 

Reason for Change(s): 
 

1. Necessitated by the extension of the additional work done by the General Contractor. 
  

Compensation(s): 

Item Credit Additional 

1.  $0.00 $0.00 

Subtotal $0.00 $0.00 

Total this Change Order  $0.00 
 
Contract Summary: 

Current Contract Amount   $   418,300.00 

Total this Change Order  $               0.00 

Revised Contract Amount  $    418,300.00 
 
Authorizations:  

 
 
 

  

Niagara Falls Water Board  Date 
 
 

  

CIR Electrical Construction Corp  Date 
   

GHD Consulting Services Inc.    Date 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 108



 
 
 
 
 

   The Power of Commitment 

GHD  

285 Delaware Avenue, Suite 500 
Buffalo, New York 14202 
United States 
www.ghd.com 
 

Our ref: 11194110 
 
 
September 08, 2021 

Abderrahman Zehraoui, Ph.D. 
Executive Director 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 
Niagara Falls, New York 14304 

Project 2 – Gorge Pump Station Rehabilitation, Construction Phase Services Amendment Proposal 

Dear Dr. Zehraoui, 

As discussed with the project team, GHD is submitting this proposal for additional construction phase services 

related to the above referenced project at the Gorge Pump Station (GPS - Project 2). GHD is currently under 

contract with the Niagara Falls Water Board (NFWB) to provide engineering services on this project in 

accordance with our Agreement dated March 25, 2019. GHD’s construction phase services are outlined in a 

proposal letter dated October 4, 2019. This proposal has been revised based on our meeting on July 7, 2021 

and revised again upon further discussion on September 8, 2021. 

Project 2 construction was scheduled to be completed by September 2, 2021. Due to unforeseen delays with 

the supply of materials and equipment caused by the global COVID-19 pandemic, the three (3) prime 

contractors have requested an additional 10 months to complete their work at the GPS by July 2, 2022. GHD 

has prepared and submitted recommendations to the NFWB to execute no cost time extension change orders 

for the three (3) prime construction contracts. The largest impact to the schedule has been delivery of the new 

500 horsepower, 13 million gallon per day (mgd) wastewater pumps for the station, which have been delayed 

by 8 months and are expected onsite in January 2022. A few changes to the Contractor’s scope of work have 

also delayed completion. For example, during construction it was discovered that a sluice gate was leaking so 

bad that the Contractor could not isolate the main influent channel and safely do their work. The replacement 

sluice gate is expected onsite in September 2021. Replacement of the concrete foundations for the three (3) 

pumps has also been added to the project to increase the reliability and longevity of the pump station. The 

foundation work will require additional time for each pump replacement.  

The Contractors and GHD have been onsite since July 2020 actively working on this project for 14 months. 

GHD is requesting additional fees because construction was budgeted to be completed over this 14-month 

period and will now require 24 months of engineering services to complete the work. The 10 months of 

additional time has not translated into increases in the construction contract costs; however, it does require 

additional engineering effort to oversee the work. The following tasks provide a greater breakdown of the 

additional scope of services that are proposed by GHD.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 109

http://www.ghd.com/


   The Power of Commitment 

11194110  |  Project 2 – Gorge Pump Station Rehabilitation, Construction Phase Services Amendment Proposal 2 

1. Scope of Services 

Task 4 – Construction Administration 

GHD proposes to provide 10 months of additional construction administration (CA) services in accordance with 

Task 4 scope of services as outlined in our October 4, 2019 proposal letter. This is in addition to the 14 months 

of services in our current Agreement. These services will be provided through the new completion date of 

July 2, 2022.   

Task 5 – Construction Inspection 

GHD budgeted to provide 7 months (1,350 hours) of construction inspection (CI) services during the active 

construction phase of this project. As of June 21, 2020 we have provided 710 hours of CI over a 12-month 

period. Therefore, we have approximately 640 hours of CI budget remaining. It is anticipated that this will not 

be enough budget to adequately oversee the remaining work, most importantly, overseeing replacement of the 

three (3) wastewater pumps and their variable frequency drives (VFDs). The contractor will be doing this pump 

work sequentially and is expecting 8 weeks per pump for replacement and start-up. GHD recommends 

providing full-time, 40 hours per week CI of the pump replacements over this 24-week period due to the 

complexity of the work. The NFWB has requested GHD to provide part-time inspection during this time frame. 

Therefore, GHD proposes to provide 640 hours of CI for the pump replacements. The contractor expects to 

start replacing the pumps in January 2022 and to be complete in June 2022. Inspection effort will also be 

needed between now and December 2021 for replacement of the wet well sluice gates, south channel influent 

grinder, bypass channel hatches, and the HVAC replacements. We recommend a CI budget of 240 hours for 

this period of work. 

In summary, a budget of 880 hours for CI services over the next 12 months is proposed (640 hours for the 

pumps plus 240 hours for other remaining work). GHD has 640 hours of budget remaining; therefore, we 

hereby request an additional 240 hours of CI budget. The scope of our CI services will be performed in 

accordance with Task 5 as outlined in our October 4, 2019 proposal letter.  

Also, for the remainder of the project, GHD will provide a monthly email report to CPL and NFWB that provides 

a list of CA/CI tasks completed that month, a summary of CA/CI hours billed that month (with project totals), 

any outstanding items that require coordination, and any scope/schedule changes. 

2. MWBE/SDVOB Participation 

GHD will continue to retain the services of Popli Design Group, a Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), 

for structural and electrical construction administration services, and Patriot Design & Consulting, a 

Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business (SDVOB), for HVAC construction administration services. We will 

also continue to retain Advanced Design Group (WBE) to serve as our construction inspector for a portion of 

Task 5. GHD intends to meet the full 30 percent (Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) 

goals of the project consistent with our current utilization plan approved by the NFWB.  

3. Fee and Schedule 

GHD proposes to complete the scope of services outlined above for an hourly not-to-exceed fee of $89,400 as 

detailed in Table 1 below.  Our fee for construction administration services has been reduced by $8500 per our 

discussions on September 8, 2021.  This fee assumes the project will be completed by July 2, 2022.  GHD will 

advise the NFWB if there are any other delays or scope changes that could impact our fee. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 110



   The Power of Commitment 

11194110  |  Project 2 – Gorge Pump Station Rehabilitation, Construction Phase Services Amendment Proposal 3 

Table 1 Fee Summary 

Task Description Fee 

Task 4 Construction Administration $63,600 

Task 5 Construction Inspection $25,800 

TOTAL $89,400 

Tasks 4 and 5 will be invoiced hourly based on the actual number of person hours expended, and direct 

expenses will be invoiced at cost plus 5 percent. Invoices shall be due within 30 days from receipt. 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. If you have any questions or require additional 

information, please do not hesitate to call. 

Regards 

 

 
 
Casey Cowan 
Senior Project Manager 

+1 716 491 1269 

casey.cowan@ghd.com 

CWC/las 

cc: Sean Costello, Esq. – NFWB 

Douglas Williamson, PE – NFWB 

Theodore E. Donner, PE – CPL 

Robert P. Lannon Jr, PE – GHD 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 111



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-010 

POLICY FOR TELECOMMUTING BY CERTAIN EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”), in the interest of 
establishing orderly and uniform policies for its employees, has developed a form policy and 
agreement for exempt executive employee telecommuting; and 

WHEREAS, not all positions are appropriate for telecommuting, and the Water Board 
policy permits the Executive Director to authorize other exempt employees to telecommute in 
extraordinary circumstances and not as a routine scheduling tool; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has established a policy only for exempt employees 
because a policy for telecommuting by other Water Board employees may require negotiation 
with collective bargaining representatives; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby adopts the annexed Exempt 
Executive Employee Telecommuting Policy and Agreement with a revision date of 
September 16, 2021, and a signed copy of this policy and agreement is to be placed in the 
personnel file of any exempt executive employee who wishes to telecommute pursuant to the 
terms of that policy. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 112



Revision Date: 2021-09-16 

Niagara Falls Water Board 

Exempt Executive Employee Telecommuting Policy and Agreement 

It is the general policy of the Niagara Falls Water Board that its exempt executive employees should be 
physically present to the extent practicable in order to provide proper supervision and guidance to 
subordinates.  The Water Board recognizes, however, that occasional telecommuting can assist 
employees in completing projects with fewer distractions and enable productivity when an employee 
might otherwise use accruals.  Further, advances in technology can facilitate productive work from 
home including video conferencing and the requirements of exempt executive positions often result in 
work being required outside of a regular schedule.  To balance the Water Board’s needs and those of its 
exempt executive employees, the Water Board is establishing the following policy for 
telecommuting/work-from-home for these employees, subject to revision or revocation at any time. 

1. Eligibility.  This policy applies only to exempt executive employees at the “Director” or “Deputy 
Director” levels.  The Executive Director may approve other exempt employees to telecommute 
in extraordinary circumstances and not as a routine scheduling tool. 

2. Limitations.  Pursuant to this policy, employees may telecommute up to four days per month, 
not to exceed two days in any one week.  Exceptions for extraordinary circumstances must be 
approved in writing by the Executive Director for subordinate employees; the Water Board 
Chairperson must approve exceptions for employees who report directly to the Board. 

3. Approvals.  Requests to telecommute pursuant to this policy shall be approved in advance and 
in writing by the Executive Director, and permission may be denied or revoked based on the 
needs of the Water Board.  Employees reporting directly to the Board shall advise Board 
Chairperson and the other employees reporting directly to the Board when telecommuting, and 
shall be responsible for ensuring that subordinate employees properly are advised. 

4. Time Keeping.  Employees who are telecommuting shall email the appropriate HR contact with 
the start and stop times for their telecommuting work, so that these times can be entered into 
the Water Board’s timekeeping system. 

5. Hours.  Telecommuting employees are expected to work the same number of hours they would 
work if in the office.  If employees are telecommuting to facilitate attending to a personal 
matter, they are expected to extend their telecommuting work hours by a corresponding 
number of hours or to use appropriate accruals. 

6. Verification and Productivity.  This policy may be suspended by the Board or approval of 
telecommuting may be denied by the Executive Director if a question arises regarding the 
employee’s productivity while working from home.  If necessary, the employee’s active work 
periods may be verified through electronic means, reviewing call logs, or other appropriate 
methods. 

7. Technology.  Employees eligible under this policy have been provided with the means to access 
their Water Board computers by the IT Department, and agree to be available by phone during 
normal working hours while telecommuting.  Employees who telecommute agree that they will 
provide at their own expense appropriate computer equipment and a high-speed internet 
connection. 

8. Compliance With Policies.  Telecommuting employees are expected to comply with all 
Water Board policies and requirements, as would apply when working in the office. 

I understand, accept, and agree to the terms and conditions set forth above: 

____________________________________ 
Employee  Date 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 113



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-011 

ACCEPTING PROPOSAL FOR PROPERTY,  
LIABILITY, AND UMBRELLA INSURANCE POLICIES 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board, in order to manage risks and to protect the 
entity against losses from accidents and disasters, secures insurance policies for loss to property 
and for various liability exposures; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board’s current property, liability, and umbrella policies expire 
on October 18, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, USI, the Water Board’s insurance broker, presented an insurance proposal 
dated September 22, 2021 for these coverages for the October 18, 2021 to October 18, 2022 
policy period; and 

WHEREAS, the total estimated premium for the insurance policies recommended by 
USI is $523,893.80;  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 114



NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, the Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to accept the September 22, 2020 insurance proposal from USI and to pay to 
the underwriting companies the premiums therefor, with a total estimated premium of 
$523,893.80. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
FA 0432.000/GA 0432.000 (Property Insurance) 
FA 0433.000/GA 0433.000 (Liability Insurance) 
Budget Line Provided by:  B. Majchrowicz 
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz  Note: Balance of premium will  
be paid from 2021 budget. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 115



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

USI Insurance Services 
726 Exchange Street 

Suite 618 
Buffalo, NY 14210 

www.usi.com 

Niagara Falls Water Board  

2021-22 Renewal Narrative 

 

In 2021 we have seen an increasing hardening in the market across all lines and classes of business.   We 
have seen major increases in the Liability classes and particularly in the Umbrella and Excess lines, 
where premiums are doubling and tripling from year to year.  Reduced capacity is also a significant issue.   

Overall for peer classes (Water Boards, Water Authorities) we are seeing an average overall rate 
increase of 10-12%   

Given, the hardening market, for the 2021 term we did approach HCC and Travelers for rate indications.   

At this time HCC is increasing rates by about 10-12% on renewals and due to major deviations in the 
coverage provided we declined to pursue further.  HCC includes cost of defense within the policy limits 
and all coverage subject to a Self-Insured Retention in lieu of the current deductible program with 
Zurich.   HCC is not a viable option compared to the Zurich program with either price or coverage at this 
time.   

We had initial discussion with Travelers on pricing and declined to pursue further.  Travelers will not 
offer competitive pricing at this time.  Initial indications were 15% higher than our renewal indication.   

Zurich is increasing rates on average by 8-10% for peer accounts.   Due to the favorable performance of 
the Niagara Falls Water Board, we were able to hold the overall rate/premium increase to 5% which is 
very good in this market.    The majority of the rate increase was with the Umbrella at about 10%.  As 
stated above, we are seeing Umbrella increases across all classes of business in New York.  The Umbrella 
market is very hard and difficult to place.  Given the state of the market, I’m happy with the outcome of 
a 10% increase on the Umbrella.   The 5% overall increase is extremely reasonable based on what we are 
seeing.    

Zurich continues to offer defense in addition to the policy limits and continues to offer a deductible 
program instead of a self-insured retention.   All other policy terms remain the same as last year.   

With regards to quoting Auto Physical Damage, we did request a quote.  The underwriter will need a 
schedule of the cost new for each vehicle in order to rate this.  Once we provide, this can be quoted and 
endorsed at any time during the policy term.   

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 116



 

  

      1 
 

© 2018 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

 
 

Insurance Proposal 
September 22, 2021 

This is a coverage summary, not a legal contract. This summary is provided to assist in your understanding of your insurance 
program. Please refer to the actual policies for specific terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions that will govern in the event of 
a loss. Specimen copies of all policies are available for review prior to the binding of coverage. 
 

Higher limits and additional coverage may be available. Please contact us if you are interested in additional quotes. 

 
Client Name Niagara Falls Water Board USI Account Manager: Jennifer Kirwan, CPCU 
Mailing Address 5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 
Phone Number: 
Email: 

716-314-2041 
Jennifer.Kirwan@usi.com 

 
 

Named Insured: Niagara Falls Water Board 

Policy Type: Package, Professional, Umbrella  

Proposed Policy Term: 10/18/2021 – 10/18/2022 Quote Expires: 10/18/2021 

Insurance Carrier: Zurich 

Carrier Financial Rating: A+ ☒   Carrier Admitted ☐   Carrier Non-Admitted 

Minimum Earned 
Premium, if applicable  Policy Subject to Audit   ☐ 

Summary of Proposed: See attached Carrier Proposal 

Total Estimated Premium: $523,894   Terrorism included   ☒ 

Requirements to Effect 
Coverage 

 
 

☒ Signed Application ☐ Payment in full or completed premium finance 
agreement 

☐ Signed Terrorism Disclosure Notice ☐ Make check payable to: PAYABLE NAME 

☐ Signed Carrier Rating Notification if 
financial rating is less than A- 

☒ Authorization to order coverage 

☐ Signed Surplus Lines Disclosure and 
Acknowledgement 

☐ Verification of Named Insured 

Other Information 
Other exclusions and policy limitations may apply. Please refer to the actual policies for specific terms, conditions, limitations and 
exclusions that will govern in the event of a loss.  We can provide coverage for such items such as, but not limited to: flood, 
earthquake, wind, crime and cyber liability. 
In evaluating your exposure to loss, we have been dependent upon information provided by you. If there are other areas that need 
to be evaluated prior to binding of coverage, please bring these areas to our attention. Should any of your exposures change after 
coverage is bound, such as your beginning new operation, hiring employees in new states, buying additional property, etc., please 
let us know so proper coverage(s) can be discussed. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 117



 

  

      2 
 

© 2018 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

Important Provisions 

Building Vacancy Provision – Coverage may be restricted or excluded for any Building found to be vacant for a minimum of 30 
consecutive days or longer subject to all other policy terms and conditions. If any of your covered buildings meet this description 
at any time during the policy period, please contact us so we can assist you in maintaining appropriate coverage. 
 
 

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 118



 

  

      3 
 

© 2018 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

 

USI Disclosures 

COMMISSION DISCLOSURE POLICY: As a licensed insurance producer, USI is authorized to confer with or advise our clients and 
prospective clients concerning substantive benefits, terms or conditions of insurance contracts, to sell insurance and to obtain 
insurance coverages for our clients. Our compensation for placement of insurance coverage, unless otherwise specifically 
negotiated and agreed to with our client, is customarily based on commission calculated as a percentage of the premium 
collected by the insurer and is paid to us by the insurer. We may also receive from insurers and insurance intermediaries (which 
may include USI affiliated companies) additional compensation (monetary and non-monetary) based in whole or in part on the 
insurance contract we sell, which is contingent on volume of business and/or profitability of insurance contracts we supply to 
them and/or other factors pursuant to agreements we may have with them relating to all or part of the business we place with 
those insurers or through those intermediaries. Some of these agreements with insurers and/or intermediaries include financial 
incentives for USI to grow its business or otherwise strengthen the distribution relationship with the insurer or intermediary. Such 
agreements may be in effect with one or more of the insurers with whom your insurance is placed, or with the insurance 
intermediary we use to place your insurance. You may obtain information about the nature and source of such compensation 
expected to be received by us, and, if applicable, compensation expected to be received on any alternative quotes pertinent to 
your placement upon your request. 
 
 
 
  

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 119



 

  

      4 
 

© 2018 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

 

AM Best Disclosures 

Changes in the international insurance market have affected the ability of insurance brokers to locate insurance coverage at a 
scope and cost of insurance placed in prior years. Some insurance carriers have suffered significant losses that may jeopardize 
their financial stability. Changes in an insurance company’s financial condition can, of course, affect its ability to pay claims. 
 
As a matter of policy, USI endeavors to obtain quotations and indications from insurance companies who meet or exceed the USI 
minimum guidelines of A- based on the A. M. Best Ratings of insurance companies.  The A.M. Best Company is a recognized 
publisher of information concerning insurers based on many factors including financial stability.  A. M. Best’s current rating scale 
is attached.   
 
 
 
  

 
 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 120



 

  

      5 
 

© 2018 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

 

Insurance Carrier Ratings 

As a service to our clients, USI is furnishing an assessment by a financial rating service of the insurance companies included in our 
proposal. We are including the legends used by this service. 
 
All ratings are subject to periodic review, therefore, it is important to obtain updated ratings from each service. Should you desire 
further information concerning the financial statements of any of the insurance companies being proposed, so that you can make 
your own assessment of the financial strength of the companies being offered, it is available from USI at your request. 
 
USI has made no attempt to determine independently the financial capacity of the insurance companies that we are including in 
our proposal as we believe the nationally recognized services are better equipped to comment. 
 

A. M. BEST RATINGS 

A++ and A+ Superior B and B- Fair 
A and A- Excellent C++, C+ Marginal 
B++, B+ Very Good C and C- Weak 
D Poor F In Liquidation 
E Under Regulatory Supervision S Rating Suspended 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL SIZE CATEGORY 
(In $ Thousands) 
Class I Less than  1,000 
Class II 1,000 to 2,000 
Class III 2,000 to 5,000 
Class IV 5,000 to 10,000 
Class V 10,000 to 25,000 
Class VI 25,000 to 50,000 
Class VII 50,000 to 100,000 
Class VIII 100,000 to 250,000 
Class IX 250,000 to 500,000 
Class X 500,000 to 750,000 
Class XI 750,000 to 1,000,000 
Class XII 1,000,000 to 1,250,000 
Class XIII 1,250,000 to 1,500,000 
Class XIV 1,500,000 to 2,000,000 
Class XV 2,000,000 to or greater 

 
 

RATING "NOT ASSIGNED" CLASSIFICATIONS 
NR-1 Insufficient Data NR-2 Insufficient Size and/or Operating Experience 
NR-3 Rating Procedure Inapplicable NR-4 Company Request 
NR-5 Not Formally Followed   

 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 121



 

  

      6 
 

© 2018 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

 
 
 

Coverage  2020-21 Premium 2021-22 Premium 

Package – Total  $378,742 $395,928 

Professional Liability  $57,763 $59,496 

Umbrella  $61,964 $68,470 

Total  $498,469 $523,894 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 122



 

  

      7 
 

© 2018 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

 

Client Authorization to Bind 

Important Information:  
Please keep in mind coverage cannot be bound when severe weather is threatening regardless of the expiration date. 
 
We are not in a position to make monthly reminders or verify that your payment was received. Please take the necessary 
action to avoid possible cancellation of your insurance policy(s) which you are paying directly to the insurance company. 
 
After careful consideration of your proposal dated 9/22/21 we accept your insurance program as presented with the following 
exceptions, changes, and/or recommendations: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   

Client Signature  Date Signed 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 123



**Premium is due at inception, payable in 30 days.  Any state surcharges and fees are in addition to and not considered premium.

MUNIPLUS™ PROPOSAL
PACKAGE/PROFESSIONAL/UMBRELLA 

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD & NIAGARA FALLS PUBLIC
ISSUE DATE: 9/21/2021

VALID THROUGH: 10/17/2021

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls 
Public 

TERM: 10/18/2021 to 10/18/2022

UNDERWRITING COMPANY:  
Primary Package (Property, Crime, 
General Liability, Auto Liability)

Zurich American Insurance Company
(Admitted Paper) AM Best Rating A+ XV

Primary Professional Liability (Public 
Officials, EPL):

Zurich American Insurance Company
(Admitted Paper) AM Best Rating: A+ XV

Umbrella: Zurich American Insurance Company
(Admitted Paper) AM Best Rating: A+ XV

PREMIUM AND PAYMENT TERMS**:  
Package Premium: ** $384,363.00
Professional Premium: $59,496.00
Umbrella Premium: $67,792.00
Subtotal Premium without TRIA: $511,651.00

Property TRIA Premium: $6,440.00
Liability TRIA Premium: $606.00
Umbrella TRIA Premium: $678.00

Risk Engineering Resources Fee $250.00
NY Motor Vehicle Fee $380.00
NYFF $3,888.80
TOTAL PREMIUM (incl. TRIA/Fees) $523,893.80

LIMITS and DEDUCTIBLES: See attached 
schedules

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 124



COVERAGE SUMMARY OF LIMITS, DEDUCTIBLES & RETENTIONS:

LINES OF BUSINESS
(Sublines/Sublimits) LIMIT AGGREGATE

DEDUCTIBLE/ 
RETENTIONS

COVERAGE
TRIGGER

Property  (Valuation—RCV) 

See Exhibit A

$322,436,906 Blanket See Exhibit A Occurrence

Equipment Breakdown

Property Damage (PD) $322,436,906 N/A See Property 
Deductible 

Occurrence

Spoilage $100,000 per 
Occurrence

N/A See Property 
Deductible

Occurrence

Expediting Expense Included in Property 
Extra Expense Limit

N/A See Property 
Deductible

Occurrence

Pollutant Clean Up & Removal Included in Property $250,000 See Property 
Deductible

Occurrence

Service Interruption  Included in Property 
Business Interruption 

/Extra Expense

N/A See Property 
Deductible

Occurrence

Crime

Employee Theft—Per Loss $100,000 Included $5,000 Occurrence

Theft, Disappearance & Destruction
Inside $25,000 Included $5,000 Occurrence

Outside the Premises $25,000 Included $5,000 Occurrence

Faithful Performance Included Included $5,000 Occurrence

Auto Liability 

See Exhibit B

See Exhibit B

See Exhibit B 

$1,000,000 CSL $100,000 Accident

Personal Injury Protection (KY, NY, PA) Included N/A N/A Accident

Medical Payments (except KY) $10,000 N/A N/A Accident

Uninsured Motorist $50,000 N/A N/A Accident

Underinsured Motorist $50,000 N/A N/A Accident

Hired Auto Liability $1,000,000 N/A N/A Accident

Non-Owned Auto Liability $1,000,000 N/A N/A Accident

General Liability

See Exhibit B

$1,000,000 $3,000,000 $100,000 Occurrence

Damage to Property Rented to You $1,000,000 (any one 
premises)

Included $100,000 Occurrence

Medical Benefits $10,000 (any one person) Included N/A Occurrence

Personal & Advertising Injury $1,000,000 (any one 
person or organization)

Included $100,000 Occurrence

Products Completed Operations $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $100,000 Occurrence

Employee Benefits Liability $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $1,000 Occurrence

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 125



LINES OF BUSINESS
(Sublines/Sublimits) LIMIT AGGREGATE

DEDUCTIBLE/ 
RETENTIONS

COVERAGE
TRIGGER

Public Officials Liability
Retroactive  Date: 1/1/1999

See Exhibit C
$1,000,000 $3,000,000 $100,000 Claims Made

Non-Monetary $25,000 $25,000 N/A Claims Made

Crisis Management $5,000 $5,000 N/A Claims Made

Employment Practices Liability
Retroactive  Date: 1/1/1999

See Exhibit C
$1,000,000 $3,000,000 $100,000 Claims Made

Umbrella $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000 SIR Follows 
Underlying

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 126



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK
EXHIBIT A – PROPERTY COVERAGE PART

PROPOSED INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public

EXHIBIT A –PROPERTY COVERAGE PART PAGE 1 OF 2

PROPERTY COVERAGE PART
Insured: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public State: NY

Covered Locations: Per Statement of Values: Blanket coverage applies unless otherwise noted
Coinsurance: 90%
Valuation: Replacement Cost/Agreed Value Form: Special Form (including theft)

LIMITS DEDUCTIBLE COVERAGES    (All coverage listed below applies per occurrence.)
$322,436,906 $50,000 Buildings

Included Per Policy Deductible Business Personal Property 
Included in Building Limit $50,000 Pump and Lift Stations

$5,000,000 2.00% Earthquake 

$10,000,000 $100,000

Flood (Only available for Zone C, X (Unshaded), X500, B and X 
(Shaded))
Zurich/APR cannot warrant or provide information as to what zone(s) a specific 
location/address is situated in.  Flood zones can and do change.  It is ultimately the 
responsibility of the insured and their insurance advisor to determine if the flood zones 
and flood limits proposed are adequate for their needs.

Not quoted N/A Named Storm Deductible – Minimum Deductible of N/A

Included in Building Limit Per Policy Deductible Equipment Breakdown

 PUBLIC ENTITY ADDITIONAL COVERAGES AND COVERAGE EXTENSIONS

LIMITS DEDUCTIBLE ADDITIONAL COVERAGE

Included in Building Limit Per Policy Deductible Collapse -Abrupt collapse of a building or covered property.  ISO 
Causes of Loss – Special Form

25% of direct physical loss of or 
damage to covered property plus 

the deductible in the policy 
applicable to that loss or 

damage. 

Per Policy Deductible

Debris Removal - We will pay for your expense to remove debris of 
Covered Property caused by or resulting from a Covered Cause of Loss 
that occurs during the policy period. The expenses will be paid only if 
they are reported to us in writing within 180 days.  

$300,000 Per Location/Per 
Occurrence Per Policy Deductible Additional Debris Removal Expense – eligible if one or both of the 

explained circumstances apply.

$50,000 No Deductible
Fire Department Service Charge - Provides coverage for your liability 
for fire department service charges when the fire department is called to 
save or protect your covered property.

$250,000 Per Policy Deductible Pollutant Clean up and Removal - During each separate 12 month 
period

$500,00 $500 Deductible Accounts Receivable (Per Occurrence Premises Limit)

$15,000                                           
per animal $500 Deductible Animal 

Mortality

Coverage is provided for loss caused by the death or 
destruction of your animals used for police 
department canine or equestrian patrol. $100,000 
annual aggregate

Included in Business Personal 
Property Limit

Per Policy Deductible
Building Glass - Tenant

Included in the Building Limit Per Policy Deductible Coverage A  (Undamaged Building Coverage)

Per Policy Deductible Coverage B  (Demolition)
$1,000,000 per building/per loss Per Policy Deductible

Building 
Ordinance  or  

Law  Coverage
Coverage C (Increased Cost of Construction)

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 127



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK
EXHIBIT A – PROPERTY COVERAGE PART

PROPOSED INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public

EXHIBIT A –PROPERTY COVERAGE PART PAGE 2 OF 2

LIMITS DEDUCTIBLE ADDITIONAL COVERAGE

$1,000,000 per occurrence
Per Policy Deductible

Business Income and Extra Expense – Including Relocation 
Expenses and Costs to Equip and Operate the Replacement or 
Temporary Location, Civil Authority, Alterations and New Buildings, 
Extended Business Income up to 60 days, Interruption of Computer 
Operations and Food Contamination. 

$100,000     Food Contamination (Annual Aggregate Limit of Insurance)

$100,000     Newly Acquired Location (Limit of Insurance Per Occurrence)

$100,000     Utility Services Time Element (Limit of Insurance Per Occurrence)

$100,000

Per Policy Deductible

    Sales Tax Revenue Loss (Limit of Insurance Per Occurrence)
Increased Period to Comply with 

Ordinance or Law No Deductible Period of Restoration

$50,000 any one occurrence Per Policy Deductible Electrical Utility Service Interruption – Direct Damage
 $10,000 Per Item
$100,000 Per Loss $500 Deductible Fine Arts - Per Item and Per Loss Limit

$25,000 annual aggregate Per Policy Deductible Fire Protective Device Recharge

Included in Building Limit Per Policy Deductible Foundations, Underground Pipes, Flues or Drains within 1,000 feet 
of described premises 

$100,000  any one occurrence
$5,000 maximum per item $500 Deductible Grounds Maintenance Equipment

$25,000 per occurrence No Deductible Inventory Costs, Preparation of Claim 
$2,000,000 each building    

$1,000,000 contents Per Policy Deductible Newly Acquired or Constructed Property - Each Building 
Limit/Contents Limit

$20,000 Per Policy Deductible Non-Owned Detached Trailers

$250,000 per location per 
occurrence Per Policy Deductible

Outdoor Property (specific perils) - includes but not limited to 
Fences, Park Benches, Flagpoles, Communication Towers, Golf 
Course Greens, etc. 

$100,000 per loss Per Policy Deductible Paved Surfaces (limited perils)
$25,000 each described 

premises Per Policy Deductible Personal Effects and Property of Others

$100,000 per occurrence $500 Deductible Portable Audio Visual and Communications Equipment
$100,000 $500 Deductible Portable Emergency Response Equipment

$100,000 per occurrence $500 Deductible Portable Equipment Used in Your Law Enforcement Operations 
and Your Public Safety Operations

1,000 Ft. Per Policy Deductible Premises Boundary Increase Distance

$100,000 per Occurrence Per Policy Deductible Property Off-Premises Including Transit (including property at fairs, 
trade shows and exhibitions)

$100,000 per occurrence Per Policy Deductible Sewer Backup

$100,000 each described 
premises Per Policy Deductible Theft of Building Materials and Supplies

$100,000 per occurrence $500 Deductible Traffic Lights, Traffic Signs, Parking Meters, Fire Hydrants, Guard 
Rails, Bus Shelters

$500,000 each described 
premises $500 Deductible Valuable Papers and Records (Other than Electronic Data) 1,000 feet 

of described premises

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 128



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK (NEW YORK)
EXHIBIT B –GENERAL LIABILITY AND COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PARTS

PROPOSED INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public

EXHIBIT B –GENERAL LIABILITY & COMMERCIAL AUTO COVERAGE PARTS PAGE 1 OF 2

General Liability Coverage Part

Limits Coverage Enhancement

$1,000,000 Sexual Abuse/Molestation Limit - $100,000 Retention

$1,000,000 Sexual Abuse/Molestation Aggregate

Included Broad Governmental-Specific Definition of Insured

Included Employees/Volunteers as Insureds

Included Watercraft Liability (up to 51 feet)

Included Good Samaritan Liability

Included Herbicide / Pesticide Application

Included Host Liquor Liability

Included Broadened Contractual Liability

Included Limited Contractual Liability for Personal Injury

Included Broadened Property Damage Liability

Included
Broadened Pollution for Municipal Exposures (including herbicides/ 
pesticides, swimming pool maintenance, water and sewer operations, 
salt)

For water-related entities:

Limits Coverage Enhancement

$1,000,000 Failure to Supply

Included Pollution exceptions for Potable Water Operations

Included Use of Chemicals, Gas or Propane in your Water Operations

Included Escape or Back-up from the Treatment Facility or Insured’s Piping

Included Elimination of Asbestos and Lead Exclusion wording relating to 
Potable Water

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 129



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK (NEW YORK)
EXHIBIT B –GENERAL LIABILITY AND COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PARTS

PROPOSED INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public

EXHIBIT B –GENERAL LIABILITY & COMMERCIAL AUTO COVERAGE PARTS PAGE 2 OF 2

New York
Commercial Automobile

See Schedule of Vehicles

Number of 
Vehicle Units 
Quoted  
56

Limits Coverage

Included Employees and Volunteers as Insureds

Not Included Mutual Aid

Not Included  Supplemental Spousal

Included Fellow Employee Coverage

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 130



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK
EXHIBIT C – PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGES, ENHANCEMENTS and EXTENSIONS

PROPOSED INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public

Proposal  - Supplemental Exhibit C– Professional Liability Page 1 of 2

Public Officials Liability 

Coverage Features:

Claims Made and Reported Form

Defense in Addition to Limit

Sublimit for Defense for Non-Monetary claims

Modified Consent to Settle Clause with hammer clause at only 50% participation

Includes a broad definition of Loss including: Punitive Damages, Exemplary Damages or Multiple 
Damages, where insurable under applicable law.  Most favorable jurisdiction wording applies.

Civil Rights coverage is provided.

Crisis Event coverage for public officials is provided.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 131



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK
EXHIBIT C – PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGES, ENHANCEMENTS and EXTENSIONS

PROPOSED INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public

Proposal  - Supplemental Exhibit C– Professional Liability Page 2 of 2

Employment Practices Liability 

Coverage Features:

Claims Made and Reported Form

Defense in Addition to Limit

Third Party Discrimination Liability is included (harassment provided)

Civil Right coverage is provided

Crisis Event Coverage is provided

Business invitee (Third Party) Liability covering Emotional Distress, Sexual Harassment, 
Discrimination and other allegations

Broad definition of Claim including coverage for regulatory proceedings, arbitration 
hearings and EEOC hearings, subject to exclusions

Includes a broad definition of Loss including: Punitive Damages, Exemplary Damages or Multiple 
Damages, where insurable under applicable law.  Most favorable jurisdiction wording applies.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 132



This quotation represents the Company’s proposed terms and conditions, which may not include all of the requested terms 
and conditions. No warranty is made or implied with respect to the total compliance to bid specifications or applications

 POLICY CONDITIONS

TERRITORY: United States and its territories or possessions

NON-AUDITABLE: The Policy is not subject to audit

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

 Coverage is not auditable, except in New York.

 The Business Auto Coverage requires 17-digit VIN numbers.  The insured's policy cannot be released without this 
information.

 We require that the insured perform MVR reviews annually on all drivers and prior to hiring new drivers.  By accepting 
this insurance policy, the insured confirms they have in place or agrees to adopt driver selection procedures and safe 
driving standards that include specific violation conditions indicating when an employee will not be allowed to operate 
entity vehicles or motorized equipment.  These procedures will be subject to loss control review.

 Provide list of all Additional Insured - Loss Payees including their insurable interest for Auto and Property Exposures.

 Claim Reporting - Zurich North America- Claim Call Center - 800-987-3373.  E-mail:  usz_carecenter@zurichna.com.  
Fax: 877-962-2567 (877-ZNA-CLAIMS).  Mail:   Zurich Programs, PO Box 968017, Schaumburg, IL 60196-8017.  
Website:  www.zurichna.com/claims.

SPECIFIC ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS:

 Our Minimum APD Deductibles for vehicles over $100,000 and Under $200,000 is $1,000/$1,000.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 133



EXCLUSIONS:

Specifically excluded exposures include, but are not limited to the following.  Please check provided policy specimen 
forms closely.  Specific specimen exclusionary language will be provided upon request. 

GENERAL: Asbestos, Lead, Silica, Nuclear, Nuclear Hazard, Pollution, Fungi/Bacteria, 
Electromagnetic Radiation, Communicable Disease, War and Military Action, 
Nuclear Device Detonation, Pathogenic or Poisonous Biological or Chemical 
Materials, Violation of Economic or Trade Sanctions.

PROPERTY Exclusions as stated on the Building and Personal Property Coverage Form.   
Flood does not apply to any location(s) situated in a “special flood coverage 
area” as determined by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 
These areas are currently designated by FEMA as zones A, AE, AO, AH, A1-
A30, A99, AR, AR/AE, AR/AO, AR/A1-A30, AR/AH, AR/A,V, V1-V30, VE, VO,  
X500, XFUT, B, XB, and X500 and on a FEMA Flood Rate Map, shaded X. Any 
area later designated by FEMA as a “special flood coverage area” at the time of 
a Covered Cause of Loss is also subject to this limitation.  Any area removed by 
FEMA from a “special flood coverage area” designated at the time of a Covered 
Cause of Loss is not subject to this limitation.

EQUIPMENT
BREAKDOWN:

Exclusions as stated on the Equipment Breakdown Endorsement.

INLAND MARINE:

CRIME: Exclusions as stated on the Crime coverage form.

BUSINESS AUTO/  
BUSINESS AUTO PHYSICAL 
DAMAGE:

Exclusions as stated on the Business Auto Coverage Form, including but not 
limited to Racing, and the Business Auto Physical Damage Coverage Form.

GENERAL LIABILITY: Exclusions as stated on the Commercial General Liability Coverage Form 
including but  not limited to: Dams, Aircraft, Airport, Mold, Pollution, Asbestos 
(except as provided for in the Water Enhancement Endorsement), Lead 
Contamination, Silica, Electronic Data, Electronic Vandalism, Employers Liability 
(Stop Gap), Law Enforcement, Securities, Underground Storage Tanks, Workers 
Compensation.  Policy excludes fireworks; however, the exclusion can be 
deleted on a display by display basis supported by the date of display and a copy 
of the contract with the pyrotechnic company for review.

LAW ENFORCEMENT:

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 134



PUBLIC OFFICIALS: Exclusions as stated on the Public Officials Liability Insurance Policy, including 
but not limited to: Distribution of Material in Violation of Statutes; Electronic Data; 
Electric Vandalism; Eminent Domain/Inverse Condemnation; Fiduciary, 
Financing, Taxes; Fines and Penalties; Fraudulent or Dishonest Acts; Maintain 
Insurance; Non-Monetary; Professional Services; Prior Notice, Pending or Prior 
Legal Action; Violations of Laws; Workers Compensation; Securities.

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES: Exclusions as stated on the Employment Practices Liability Insurance Policy, 
including but not limited to: Fiduciary, Employee Benefits, Fraudulent of 
Dishonest Acts, Labor Disputes, Maintain Insurance, Non-Monetary, Prior Notice, 
Prior or Pending Legal Action, Violation of Laws, Wage and Hour Law, Workers 
Compensation.

UMBRELLA: Exclusions as stated on the Umbrella Coverage form

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 135



THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE DUE AT THE TIME OF BINDING:

 Signed and Dated Public Entity Application,  preferably the Allied Public Risk Application.

 Terrorism: Please refer to the attached Policyholder Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage for the 
TRIA quote.  This Proposal includes coverage for the TRA (Terrorism Risk Insurance Program) Reauthorization 
Act of 2015.  The insured has the option to reject terrorism coverage.  If the insured elects to reject the coverage, 
the attached Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage must be completed and signed by the insured.  
If this notice is not returned to us upon binding of coverage, the terrorism premium will automatically be included.

 Signed and Dated Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Selection /Rejection Form.

 Optional Supplemental Spousal Liability Premium is available.    Please refer to the Supplemental Spousal 
Liability Coverage Selection/Rejection Form for the annual premium.  If desired, remit the Signed and Dated 
Supplemental Spousal Liability Coverage Selection/Rejection Form at time of bind request.

 Copy of the latest Dam Inspection reports and the insureds response to inspection deficiencies if any.

 Signed Statement of Values.

 Insured's FEIN Number.

 Provide Name, Phone Number and Email Address for both the Risk Manager and the Boiler & Machinery 
Inspection contacts.

 Provide a complete driver schedule including name, date of birth and license number.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 136



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK – STATEMENT OF VALUES
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE: 10/18/2021  -  10/18/2022

TRANS
TYPE*

LOC 
ID

BLDG 
NUM

ADDRESS BUILDING DESCRIPTION BUILDING 
VALUE

CONTENTS 
VALUE

TOTAL 
INSURED 

VALUE

EARTHQUAKE 
DEDUCTIBLE 

%

*Trans type – N-New, E-Existing, M-Modified, PD, Previously Deleted, D-Deleted
Page 1 of 4

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

 

E 1 1 10016 Colvin Bld Pump Station $96,200 $1,100 $97,300 100.0000%

E 2 1 1002 Falls Street Regulator 11A/11B $37,500 $0 $37,500 100.0000%

E 3 1 1124 Military Road Lift Station $22,500 $0 $22,500 100.0000%

E 4 1 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Main Plant $165,898,900 $11,705,000 $177,603,900 0.0563%

E 4 2 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Power 
Substation

$10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 3 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Storage & 
Office

$10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 4 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Scum 
Collection

$10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 5 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Gate House $10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 6 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Gate House $10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 7 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Settling 
Basins

$10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 8 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Settling 
Basins

$10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 137



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK – STATEMENT OF VALUES
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE: 10/18/2021  -  10/18/2022

TRANS
TYPE*

LOC 
ID

BLDG 
NUM

ADDRESS BUILDING DESCRIPTION BUILDING 
VALUE

CONTENTS 
VALUE

TOTAL 
INSURED 

VALUE

EARTHQUAKE 
DEDUCTIBLE 

%

*Trans type – N-New, E-Existing, M-Modified, PD, Previously Deleted, D-Deleted
Page 2 of 4

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

E 4 9 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Settling 
Basins

$10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 10 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant Storage $10,000 $0 $10,000 100.0000%

E 4 11 1201 Buffalo Avenue Sewager Treatment Plant Storage $15,000 $0 $15,000 100.0000%

E 5 1 1565 101st Street Lift Station $47,400 $0 $47,400 100.0000%

E 6 1 1757 Falls Street Regulator 9 $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 7 1 1780 Beech Avenue Steel Water Tank $4,266,700 $0 $4,266,700 2.3437%

E 8 1 201 22nd Street Gas Monitor Station $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 9 1 215 27th Street SSI Monitor Station $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 10 1 227 12th Street Regulator 10 $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 11 1 300 27th Street Regulator 4A $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 12 1 300 4th Street Regulator 12 $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 13 1 305 Hyde Park Regulator 6A/6B $37,500 $0 $37,500 100.0000%

E 14 1 315 19th Street Regulator $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 15 1 315 21st Street Regulator 3A $37,500 $0 $37,500 100.0000%

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 138



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK – STATEMENT OF VALUES
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE: 10/18/2021  -  10/18/2022

TRANS
TYPE*

LOC 
ID

BLDG 
NUM

ADDRESS BUILDING DESCRIPTION BUILDING 
VALUE

CONTENTS 
VALUE

TOTAL 
INSURED 

VALUE

EARTHQUAKE 
DEDUCTIBLE 

%

*Trans type – N-New, E-Existing, M-Modified, PD, Previously Deleted, D-Deleted
Page 3 of 4

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

E 16 1 315 22nd Street Regulator 2A/2B $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 17 1 400 30th Street Regulator 5 $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 18 1 440 56th Street Steel Water Tank $4,266,700 $0 $4,266,700 2.3437%

E 19 1 4400 Royal Avenue SSI Monitor Station $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 20 1 4700 Royal Avenue SSI Monitor Station $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 21 1 4800 Pen Street Gas Monitor Station $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 22 1 539 Cayuga Drive Pump Station $18,700 $0 $18,700 100.0000%

E 23 1 5601 Buffalo Avenue Lift Station $18,000 $0 $18,000 100.0000%

E 24 1 5815 Buffalo Avenue Main Water Treatment $98,318,585 $6,583,121 $104,901,706 0.0953%

E 24 2 5815 Buffalo Avenue Chlorine Water Treatment $5,000 $0 $5,000 100.0000%

E 24 3 5815 Buffalo Avenue Power back-up/Screening Water 
Treatment

$5,000 $0 $5,000 100.0000%

E 24 4 5815 Buffalo Avenue Water Treatment Storage $5,000 $0 $5,000 100.0000%

E 24 5 5815 Buffalo Avenue Water Treatment Storage $5,000 $0 $5,000 100.0000%

E 24 6 5815 Buffalo Avenue Water Treatment Security/Storage $5,000 $0 $5,000 100.0000%

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 139



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK – STATEMENT OF VALUES
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE: 10/18/2021  -  10/18/2022

TRANS
TYPE*

LOC 
ID

BLDG 
NUM

ADDRESS BUILDING DESCRIPTION BUILDING 
VALUE

CONTENTS 
VALUE

TOTAL 
INSURED 

VALUE

EARTHQUAKE 
DEDUCTIBLE 

%

*Trans type – N-New, E-Existing, M-Modified, PD, Previously Deleted, D-Deleted
Page 4 of 4

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

E 24 7 5815 Buffalo Avenue Water Treatment/Pump House $50,000 $0 $50,000 100.0000%

E 25 1 8020 Stephenson Avenue Lift Station $23,000 $0 $23,000 100.0000%

E 26 1 8025 Frontier Avenue Lift Station $65,000 $0 $65,000 100.0000%

E 27 1 8090 W. Rivershore By-Pass Pump Station $20,000 $0 $20,000 100.0000%

E 28 1 8643 Griffin Avenue Lift Station $20,000 $0 $20,000 100.0000%

E 29 1 920 Whirlpool Street Gorge Pump Station $30,471,500 $59,000 $30,530,500 0.3275%

E 30 1 932 91st Street Lift Station $27,000 $0 $27,000 100.0000%

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 140



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK –AUTO SCHEDULE 
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE:  10/18/2021

***Type Codes E-Existing, N-New, M-Modified, D-Deleted, PD-Previously Deleted

Page 1 of 4

    

TYPE 
***

AUTO # YEAR MAKE MODEL COST 
NEW

COMP 
DED

COLL 
DED

VIN VALUATION

E 1 2018 FORD   F250 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FT7X2B61JEB73778 Actual Cash Value

E 2 2018 FORD   F250 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FT7X2B67JEB73669 Actual Cash Value

E 3 2018 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTEW1EP2JFC47776 Actual Cash Value

E 4 2018 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTEW1EP0JFC47775 Actual Cash Value

E 5 2018 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTEW1EP9JFC47774 Actual Cash Value

E 6 2018 FORD   ESCAPE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FMCU9GD5JUB76465 Actual Cash Value

E 7 2018 FORD   ESCAPE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FMCU9GD7JUB76466 Actual Cash Value

E 8 2018 FORD   ESCAPE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FMCU9GD9JUB76467 Actual Cash Value

E 9 2018 FORD   TRANSIT $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

NM0LS6E74J1369890 Actual Cash Value

E 10 2017 FORD   F350 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FDRF3H69HEF40344 Actual Cash Value

E 11 2017 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTEW1EPSHFB97501 Actual Cash Value

E 12 2017 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTEW1EP3HFC41382 Actual Cash Value

E 13 2017 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTEW1EP3HFA06593 Actual Cash Value

E 14 2017 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTE1WEP1HFB47212 Actual Cash Value

E 15 2017 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTEW1EPOHFC19047 Actual Cash Value

E 16 2017 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTFW1EF2HFB79596 Actual Cash Value

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 141



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK –AUTO SCHEDULE 
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE:  10/18/2021

***Type Codes E-Existing, N-New, M-Modified, D-Deleted, PD-Previously Deleted

Page 2 of 4

TYPE 
***

AUTO # YEAR MAKE MODEL COST 
NEW

COMP 
DED

COLL 
DED

VIN VALUATION

E 17 2017 FORD   F150 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FT7X2B66HEC35864 Actual Cash Value

E 18 2017 FORD   F250 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FT7X2B66HEC88404 Actual Cash Value

E 19 2017 FORD   FUSION E $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

3FA6POPU5HR148189 Actual Cash Value

E 20 2017 FORD   FUSION E $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

3FA6POPUSHR345850 Actual Cash Value

E 21 2016 CHEVY   SILVERADO $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

IGCVKNEC2GZ303044 Actual Cash Value

E 22 2016 CHEVY   SILVERADO $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1GCVKNEC8GZ305929 Actual Cash Value

E 23 2016 CHEVY   SILVERADO $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1GCVKNEC1GZ303620 Actual Cash Value

E 24 2016 FORD   F350 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FD8W3H67GEA44727 Actual Cash Value

E 25 2015 FORD   ESCAPE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FMCU0F73FUC81665 Actual Cash Value

E 26 2015 FORD   E250 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FT7W2B67FED69508 Actual Cash Value

E 27 2015 FORD   F350 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FT8W3B67FEB07157 Actual Cash Value

E 28 2013 FORD   F250 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FTBF2B6XDEB30574 Actual Cash Value

E 29 2018 JOHN DEER 410   BACKHOE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1T0410LXCJF324839 Actual Cash Value

E 30 2018 John Deer 35   Mini Excavator $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FF0356XLJK281945 Actual Cash Value

E 31 2014 John Deer  310   BACKHOE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1T03105KJEE265634 Actual Cash Value

E 32 2011 New Holland   BACKHOE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

NBHH01706 Actual Cash Value

E 33 2018 WESTERN STAR   BIG RED 4700 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

5KKHAVDV4JLJZ2301 Actual Cash Value

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 142



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK –AUTO SCHEDULE 
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE:  10/18/2021

***Type Codes E-Existing, N-New, M-Modified, D-Deleted, PD-Previously Deleted

Page 3 of 4

TYPE 
***

AUTO # YEAR MAKE MODEL COST 
NEW

COMP 
DED

COLL 
DED

VIN VALUATION

E 34 2018 TRAILER KING   TK12U TILT-UTILITY 
TRAILER

$0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1TKU02624JR047656 Actual Cash Value

E 35 2017 FORD   E350 CUTAWAY $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FDWE3FS1HDC22066 Actual Cash Value

E 36 2016 FORD   F65 DUMP $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FDNF6AY9GDA00167 Actual Cash Value

E 37 2011 EH/WA   TRAILER $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1E9PT1510BC297575 Actual Cash Value

E 38 2010 INGERSOL-RAND   TRAILER $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

4FVCABDA5BU418206 Actual Cash Value

E 39 2020 PETERBILT   TANDEM DUMP $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

2NP3LJ0X9LM682058 Actual Cash Value

E 40 1997 GODWIN   CD150M $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

16MJ10612VD021569 Actual Cash Value

E 41 1997 BIG TEX   TRAILER $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

4K8NX1628V1C20985 Actual Cash Value

E 42 1997 GODWIN   CD150M $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

16MJ10615VD021565 Actual Cash Value

E 43 1991 GORMAN-RUPP   TRAILER $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

954965 Actual Cash Value

E 44 1990 EAGER BEAVER   TL6 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

11TAF14911034782 Actual Cash Value

E 45 1990 EAGER BEAVER   TL6 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

112TAF14711034781 Actual Cash Value

E 46 1989 GORMAN-RUPP   TRAILER $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

900530 Actual Cash Value

E 47 1989 EAGER BEAVER   TRAILER $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

112TAF14XKL032330 Actual Cash Value

E 48 1988 AMIDA   TRAILER PLB15 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

8812R2402 Actual Cash Value

E 49 1988 AMIDA   TRAILER PLB15 $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

8812R2403 Actual Cash Value

E 50 1986 TRAIL KING   TRAILER $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1TKU01010GMB57553 Actual Cash Value

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 143



ALLIED PUBLIC RISK –AUTO SCHEDULE 
Zurich American Insurance Company

INSURED: Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public   Niagara Falls NY 14304
POLICY YEAR EFFECTIVE:  10/18/2021

***Type Codes E-Existing, N-New, M-Modified, D-Deleted, PD-Previously Deleted

Page 4 of 4

TYPE 
***

AUTO # YEAR MAKE MODEL COST 
NEW

COMP 
DED

COLL 
DED

VIN VALUATION

E 51 2017 FREIGHTLINER   VACUUM PRESSURE $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1FVHG5FE1JHJP7422 Actual Cash Value

E 52 2020 Chevrolet   Equinox $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

3GNAX5EV8L8639460 Actual Cash Value

E 53 2020 Chevrolet   Equinox $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

3GNAX5EV8L8639461 Actual Cash Value

E 54 2020 Chevrolet   Equinox $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

3GNAX5EV8L8639462 Actual Cash Value

E 55 2021 Chevrolet   Tahoe $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1GNSKNKT3MR407889 Actual Cash Value

E 56 2021 Chevrolet   Silverado $0 No 
Coverage

No 
Coverage

1GCRYAEHXMZ367879 Actual Cash Value

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 144



POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

© 2020 National Association of Insurance Commissioners

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, you have a right to purchase 

insurance coverage for losses resulting from acts of terrorism. As defined in Section 102(1) of the Act: The term 

“act of terrorism” means any act or acts that are certified by the Secretary of the Treasury—in consultation with 

the Secretary of Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United States—to be an act of terrorism; to 

be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in damage 

within the United States, or outside the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of 

a United States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce 

the civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States 

Government by coercion.

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT WHERE COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR LOSSES 
RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM, SUCH LOSSES MAY BE PARTIALLY 
REIMBURSED BY THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT UNDER A FORMULA ESTABLISHED BY 
FEDERAL LAW. HOWEVER, YOUR POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT 
AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS AN EXCLUSION FOR NUCLEAR EVENTS. UNDER THE 
FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT GENERALLY REIMBURSES 80% BEGINNING ON 
JANUARY 1, 2020, OF COVERED TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE STATUTORILY 
ESTABLISHED DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY PROVIDING THE COVERAGE. 
THE PREMIUM CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BELOW AND DOES NOT INCLUDE 
ANY CHARGES FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS THAT MAY BE COVERED BY THE FEDERAL 
GOVERNMENT UNDER THE ACT.

YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED, 
CONTAINS A $100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S. GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS WELL AS 
INSURERS’ LIABILITY FOR LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM WHEN 
THE AMOUNT OF SUCH LOSSES IN ANY ONE CALENDAR YEAR EXCEEDS $100 BILLION. IF THE 
AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES FOR ALL INSURERS EXCEED $100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE 
MAY BE REDUCED.

Acceptance or Rejection of Terrorism Coverage
I hereby elect to purchase terrorism coverage for a prospective premium of $ 7,046.
I hereby decline to purchase terrorism coverage for certified acts of terrorism.  I understand 
I will have no coverage for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism.

Zurich American Insurance Company
Policyholder/Applicant’s Signature Insurance Company

Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls 
Public

Print Name Insured

Date

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 145



POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

© 2020 National Association of Insurance Commissioners

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 146



POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

© 2020 National Association of Insurance Commissioners

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, you have a right to purchase 

insurance coverage for losses resulting from acts of terrorism. As defined in Section 102(1) of the Act: The term 

“act of terrorism” means any act or acts that are certified by the Secretary of the Treasury—in consultation with 

the Secretary of Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United States—to be an act of terrorism; to 

be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in damage 

within the United States, or outside the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of 

a United States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce 

the civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States 

Government by coercion.

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT WHERE COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR LOSSES 
RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM, SUCH LOSSES MAY BE PARTIALLY 
REIMBURSED BY THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT UNDER A FORMULA ESTABLISHED BY 
FEDERAL LAW. HOWEVER, YOUR POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT 
AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS AN EXCLUSION FOR NUCLEAR EVENTS. UNDER THE 
FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT GENERALLY REIMBURSES 80% BEGINNING ON 
JANUARY 1, 2020, OF COVERED TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE STATUTORILY 
ESTABLISHED DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY PROVIDING THE COVERAGE. 
THE PREMIUM CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BELOW AND DOES NOT INCLUDE 
ANY CHARGES FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS THAT MAY BE COVERED BY THE FEDERAL 
GOVERNMENT UNDER THE ACT.

YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED, 
CONTAINS A $100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S. GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS WELL AS 
INSURERS’ LIABILITY FOR LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM WHEN 
THE AMOUNT OF SUCH LOSSES IN ANY ONE CALENDAR YEAR EXCEEDS $100 BILLION. IF THE 
AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES FOR ALL INSURERS EXCEED $100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE 
MAY BE REDUCED.

Acceptance or Rejection of Terrorism Coverage
I hereby elect to purchase terrorism coverage for a prospective premium of $678.
I hereby decline to purchase terrorism coverage for certified acts of terrorism.  I understand 
I will have no coverage for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism.

Zurich American Insurance Company
Policyholder/Applicant’s Signature Insurance Company

Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls 
Public

Print Name Insured

Date

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 147



POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

© 2020 National Association of Insurance Commissioners

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 148



New York
Explanation And Offer Of Additional
Coverages:  Supplementary
Uninsured/Underinsured
Motorists (SUM) Insurance

U-CA-527-D NY (12/17)
Page 1 of 4

I. EXPLANATION OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN STATUTORY UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE AND 
SUPPLEMENTARY UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORISTS (SUM) COVERAGES

Under New York law you must buy either Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage or Supplementary 
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists (SUM) Coverage, which includes the Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage. 
This section is an advisory explanation of the primary differences between these two types of coverages, but is 
not intended to be a substitute for a complete review of both coverages. If there is any conflict between the policy 
and this explanation, the provisions of your policy apply. If you have any questions regarding this information, 
please contact your agent, insurance company, or the New York Department of Financial Services for further 
explanation.

TYPE 1: STATUTORY UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE

Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage compensates you, or other persons insured under your motor vehicle 
insurance policy, for amounts that you, or your passengers, may be legally entitled to collect as damages for 
bodily injury or death from an accident caused by an owner or operator of an uninsured motor vehicle. An 
uninsured motor vehicle is a motor vehicle that either has no liability insurance coverage or is operated by a hit-
and-run driver. In order to drive your automobile upon the roads of this State, you must obtain this coverage as 
your minimum limits.

If someone is injured as a result of an accident with an uninsured motor vehicle, your Statutory Uninsured 
Motorists Coverage can pay up to $25,000 for each person injured, with a $50,000 maximum for each accident.  If 
someone is killed as a result of such an accident, your Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage can pay up to 
$50,000 for each person killed, with a $100,000 maximum for each accident resulting in death to two or more 
people. These limits are the only limits you can obtain under Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage.

Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage will pay for bodily injury or death only if the car accident happens in-
state, that is, in the State of New York.

TYPE 2: SUPPLEMENTARY UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORISTS (SUM) INSURANCE 
COVERAGE

You have the right to purchase additional limits of insurance coverage, called Supplementary 
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists (SUM) Insurance Coverage.  This coverage provides you, or other persons 
insured under your motor vehicle insurance policy, with the Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage (described 
above) plus additional coverages, which may provide you with a greater degree of protection.

SUM coverage, similar to Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage, provides you, or other persons insured under 
your motor vehicle insurance policy, for amounts that you, or your passengers, may be legally entitled to collect 
as damage for bodily injury if there is an accident.  Here, in contrast however, you have the opportunity to choose 
the amount of uninsured motorists coverage desired (from an offering from the insurance company which is 
provided below). Additionally, since there is a possibility of an accident occurring between you and an 
underinsured motorist, SUM insurance can provide you with “underinsured” coverage, which is coverage for an 
accident between you and a car that has bodily injury liability insurance that is less than your own bodily injury 
liability limits that you have on your own car. However, please note that the SUM coverage cannot exceed the 
limits of the third-party liability coverage that you have on your own car.

Also, SUM coverage provides coverage for bodily injury or death for not only in-state accidents, but also out-of-
state accidents.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 149



U-CA-527-D NY (12/17)
Page 2 of 4

II. OFFERINGS
The law requires that we offer you SUM limits up to $250,000 per person, $500,000 per accident split limits, or 
$500,000 per accident single limit provided that SUM limits do not exceed the limits of your bodily injury coverage.

If you elect to purchase SUM Coverage, select one limit below.  Indicate your selection with an .  Do not 
check more than one box below.
Alternatively, if you want Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage limits as explained in Section I. above then do 
not check a box below and your policy will automatically be issued with Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage 
limits as explained in Section I. above.

Election of SUM Coverage 
(Do not complete if you want Statutory Uninsured Motorists Coverage)

I select SUM coverage at the following limit (choose one):

Split Limits OR Combined Single Limit

$25,000 per person/$50,000 per accident $50,000 per accident

$50,000 per person/$100,000 per accident $100,000 per accident

$100,000 per person/$300,000 per accident $250,000 per accident

$250,000 per person/$500,000 per accident $350,000 per accident

$500,000 per person/$1,000,000 per accident $500,000 per accident

$      per person/$      per accident $1,000,000 per accident
(Other) $      per accident

 (Other)

III. IMPORTANT SUM NOTICE:

For purposes of further clarification, New York law requires that the following explanation, as provided in 
11 NYCRR 60-2.1, be provided to you in this notice:

• SUM provides additional insurance coverage for bodily injury, including death resulting 
therefrom, sustained by an insured, as a result of an accident involving a negligent owner of 
operator of another motor vehicle who:
(1) May have no insurance whatsoever; or 
(2) Even if insured, is only insured for third-party bodily injury coverage at relatively low liability 

limits, in comparison to the policyholder's own liability limits for bodily injury sustained by 
third-parties.

• An insurer shall not offer SUM coverage in an amount exceeding the third-party liability coverage 
limits purchased by the policyholder.  The policy shall provide coverage for any insured under the 
policy for:
(1) bodily injury to such person, up to the limit of the SUM coverage purchased; and 
(2) Receive from the policyholder's own insurer payment for bodily injury sustained due to the 

negligence of the other motor vehicle's owner or operator.

• The maximum amount payable under the SUM coverage shall be the policy's SUM limit reduced 
and thus offset by any motor vehicle bodily injury liability insurance policy or bond payments 
received from, or on behalf of, any negligent party involved in the accident.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 150



U-CA-527-D NY (12/17)
Page 3 of 4

IV. EXAMPLES:
As provided in 11 NYCRR 60-2.2, the following examples, unless otherwise noted, illustrate the proper application 
of SUM coverage:

1.  Example One:
Insured's Bodily Injury Damages $ 300,000 
Insured's Liability Limit $ 500,000
Insured's SUM Limit $ 250,000
Other Motor Vehicle Liability Limit $   25,000
Result: 
In this example, the insured has purchased the maximum amount of SUM coverage that must be offered by 
the insurer, provided that the insured has purchased bodily injury liability limits of at least $250,000. Insured 
recovers $25,000 from the negligent owner or operator of the other motor vehicle, and $225,000 ($250,000 
minus $25,000) under the SUM coverage, for a total recovery of $250,000. 

In the event that the negligent owner or operator of the other motor vehicle had no liability insurance at all, the 
insured would collect $250,000 in SUM coverage from the insured's own insurer. 

However, if the owner or operator of the other motor vehicle was not negligent, then the insured would receive 
no SUM payments.

2.  Example Two:
Insured's Bodily Injury Damages $ 100,000
Insured's Liability Limit $   25,000
Insured's SUM Limit $   25,000
Other Motor Vehicle Liability Limit $   25,000

Result: Insured recovers $25,000 from the negligent owner or operator of the other motor vehicle. The insured 
receives nothing under the SUM coverage, which equals the mandatory UM coverage, since the liability limits 
on the other owner or operator's motor vehicle were not lower that the liability insurance limits on the insured's 
motor vehicle. If the insured's liability and SUM limits were both $50,000, then the insured would collect 
another $25,000 in SUM coverage from the insured's own insurer.

3.  Example Three:
Insured's Bodily Injury Damages $   60,000
Insured's Liability Limit $ 100,000
Insured's SUM Limit $ 100,000
Other Motor Vehicle Liability Limit $   50,000
Result: 
Insured recovers $50,000 from the negligent owner or operator of the other motor vehicle and $10,000 under 
the SUM coverage, which is the difference between the amount of the insured's SUM coverage and the 
liability coverage available from the other motor vehicle owner or operator, limited by the amount of the 
insured's bodily injury damages. 

4.  Example Four:
Insured's Bodily Injury Damages $ 150,000
Insured's Liability Limit $ 100,000
Insured's SUM Limit $ 100,000
Other Motor Vehicle Liability Limit $   25,000

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 151



U-CA-527-D NY (12/17)
Page 4 of 4

Result: 
If the insured and the owner or operator of the other motor vehicle were each 50 percent at fault for the 
accident, then the insured's total recovery would be $75,000, in light of comparative negligence of the parties 
involved in the accident. The insured would recover $25,000 from the negligent owner or operator of the other 
motor vehicle owner and $50,000 under the SUM coverage.  

On the other hand, if the owner or operator of the other motor vehicle was totally at fault for the accident, then 
the insured would recover $25,000 from the negligent owner or operator and would then receive $75,000 in 
SUM coverage from the insured's own insurer. Had the insured purchased liability and SUM limits of $150,000 
or more, the SUM recovery would then be $125,000. 

5.  Example Five:
Insured's Bodily Injury Damages $   25,000
Passenger's Bodily Injury Damages $   25,000
Another Passenger's Damages that resulted in death $   55,000
Insured's Combined Single Liability (CSL) Limit $   75,000
Insured's CSL SUM Limit $   75,000
Other Motor Vehicle Liability Limit Uninsured (i.e. no coverage)
Result: Since the other motor vehicle was uninsured, the full $75,000 CSL SUM limit is available for all 
insured persons from this accident under the policy. However, since the accident involves insured persons 
who were both injured and killed, the mandatory UM limits of $25,000 per person and $50,000 per accident for 
injured persons and $50,000 per person and $100,000 per accident for persons killed in the accident are 
available. Therefore, the insured and first passenger each recover $25,000 and the second passenger’s estate 
recovers the full $50,000 under the SUM coverage.

If the insured’s CSL and CSL SUM limit were each $300,000 and the insured’s damages amounted to 
$200,000, then all insured persons would be covered under the SUM coverage as the total damages 
($200,000 + $25,000 + $50,000 = $275,000) are less than the $300,000 CSL SUM limit.

I understand that my selection applies to all of the vehicles on my policy that are registered or principally garaged in New 
York, including any additional or replacement vehicles that I may add in the future.  My selection also applies to each 
subsequent renewal unless I request different coverage in writing.

APPLICANT/NAMED INSURED'S SIGNATURE

Niagara Falls Water Board & Niagara Falls Public

PRINT OR TYPE NAME

DATE

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 152



 SUPPLEMENTAL SPOUSAL LIABILITY COVERAGE

New York State law requires that upon written request of an insured, and upon payment of the premium, 
an insurer issuing or delivering a policy that satisfies the requirements of Article 6 of the New York Vehicle 
and Traffic Law shall provide Supplemental Spousal Liability Insurance Coverage.

Supplemental spousal liability insurance provides bodily injury liability coverage under a motor vehicle 
insurance policy to cover the liability of an insured spouse because of the death of or injury to his or her 
spouse even when the injured spouse must prove the culpable conduct of the insured spouse.

This coverage is included within the policy's bodily injury liability limits and does not increase the amount 
of those limits.  For example:

Insured’s bodily injury policy coverage limit: $100,000/300,000

Insured's bodily injury damage claim paid to spouse: $75,000

Insured's bodily injury policy coverage limit available to all other claimants subject to a maximum 
of$100,000 per person: $225,000 per accident.

This example assumes the spouse and other claimants involved in the accident have a right to sue the 
insured for economic loss or for non-economic loss (i.e. pain and suffering) sustained as a result of a 
"serious injury" as defined in Section 5102 (d) of the Insurance Law.  It must also have been shown that 
there was negligence on the part of the insured.

The additional premium for Supplemental Spousal Liability coverage is       $1,606
 $ 278.25 

If you do not elect to purchase this coverage and do not remit the additional premium, Supplemental
Spousal liability coverage is not included in your motor vehicle insurance policy.

 I hereby request Supplemental Spousal Liability coverage.

 I hereby reject Supplemental Spousal Liability coverage.

Coverage is generally described here.  Only the policy provides a completed description of coverages
and limitations.

Zurich American Insurance Company

Authorized Signature of the Insured  Insurance Company
   
         

Print Name Above  Policy Number
   
      
 Date   Insured Name

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 153



Zurich Programs  
Claims Reporting Guide

Zurich knows our customers 
need the ability to report 
claims anytime, anywhere. 
That is why we offer a 
variety of options to make 
the claim reporting process 
as flexible and convenient 
as possible.

Claims are automatically assigned to 
the appropriate claims office and claims 
specialist upon receipt. This allows our 
experienced claims specialists to have 
immediate access to all claim information 
so claims can be processed quickly and 
efficiently – no matter what reporting 
option is used.

Claims reporting options

• Online: webclaims.zurichna.com

• Email: Email your claim form to
usz_carecenter@zurichna.com

• Phone: Call 800-987-3373 toll-free

• Fax: Fax your claim form to
877-962-2567 (877-ZNA-CLAIMS)

• Postal Mail: Mail your claim form to:

Zurich Programs 
PO Box 968017 
Schaumburg, IL 60196-8017

Additional claims resources

In addition you can visit our website  
at www.zurichna.com/claims to access 
a variety of resources that will help  
you quickly and easily process your  
claim, including:

• Claims Adjuster: Follow up on an 
existing claim > Locate my claim 
professional

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 154



Copyright © 2008 Zurich American Insurance Company                                                            U-CA-531-B (2/08)
 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission                                                   Page  1 of 1

THIS NOTICE DOES NOT GRANT ANY COVERAGE OR CHANGE THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF ANY COVERAGE UNDER THE POLICY.

NOTICE REGARDING TERRORISM PREMIUM
(FOR COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE)

SCHEDULE*

Premium attributable to risk of loss resulting from terrorism for the Commercial Automobile line of insurance:
          
$314

*Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A.  Terrorism Risk Insurance Act ("TRIA")

The Commercial Automobile line is not part of TRIA.  On 
December 22, 2005, the President of the United States 
signed the first TRIA extension act into law and, at that 
time, the Commercial Auto line was removed from the 
program.  The federal government does not share in 
Commercial Automobile terrorism losses.

B.  Disclosure of Terrorism Premium  

We have elected to provide notice to you of the amount of 
the total policy premium attributable to the risk of loss 
from terrorism for the Commercial Automobile line of 
insurance. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 155



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-012 

ACCEPTING PROPOSAL FOR RATE CONSULTANT SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board issued RFP No. 2021-02 seeking proposals 
for rate consulting and consulting engineer services with the initial term of the engagement to be 
from the date of acceptance through May 31, 2022 and providing for up to three optional 
one-year renewals; and 

WHEREAS, three proposals for rate consulting services were received; and 

WHEREAS, upon review, Water Board staff recommend accepting the 
September 15, 2021 proposal by Drescher & Malecki, LLP; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, the Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to accept the September 15, 2021 proposal by Drescher & Malecki LLP to 
provide rate consultant services through May 31, 2022, on an hourly basis and with fees not to 
exceed $34,500 without further Water Board resolution. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
FGB.8000.0000.0451.000   
Budget Line Provided by:  B. Majchrowicz 
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz   

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 156



MEMORANDUM 

To:  Board of Directors, Niagara Falls Water Board 

From:  Abderrahman Zehraoui, Ph.D, Executive Director 

Regarding: RFP 2021-02 Separate of Combined Proposals for Rate Consultant & Engineer 

Date:  September 23, 2021 
________________________________________________________________________ 

In response to the above RFP, the following proposals were received: 

A. Rate Consultant Proposals 
1. Amawalk Consulting Group, LLC 
2. Lumsden McCormick LLP 
3. Drescher & Malecki LLP

B. Consulting Engineer Proposals 
1. CPL 
2. AECOM USA, Inc. 

These proposals were reviewed by Director of Technical and Regulatory Services 
Douglas Williamson, Deputy Director of Financial Services Brian Majchrowicz, General 
Counsel Sean Costello, and me.  The criteria guiding the review were as follows: 

1. Situational understanding; 
2. Demonstrated experience, capabilities, and qualifications; 
3. Completeness of the proposal; and 
4. Total proposed cost. 

Based on this review, it is my recommendation that the proposal for rate consultant services by 
Drescher & Malecki be accepted by the Board, with the lowest hourly rate of the proposers and 
demonstrated experience with the scope of work. 

I recommend that the proposal for consulting engineer services by AECOM be accepted, with an 
estimated total fee of $29,584.  The proposed rates for individual engineers are lower in the CPL 
proposal, but the total proposed fee is $57,000.  Both firms are well qualified to perform the 
necessary work, but CPL’s proposal estimates a total of 320 hours for Task 1, versus 48 for 
AECOM.  It appears that this difference may be attributable in part to CPLs proposal to have its 
entire team attend monthly project meetings for three months and to have two engineers attend 
other meetings.   

Dr. Abderrahman Zehraoui 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 157



 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2021 

O U R  P R O P O S A L   
T O  S E R V E  

DRESCHER & MALECKI LLP  
MATTHEW J. MONTALBO 
PARTNER 
3083 WILLIAM STREET, SUITE 5 
BUFFALO, NEW YORK 14227 
PHONE 716.565.2299 
FAX: 716.565.2201 
MMONTALBO@DM-LLP.COM 

“Drescher & Malecki LLP continues to 
revolutionize the accounting and audit 
process to provide practical and innovative 
ideas to counties, cities, towns, villages, school 
districts, and public authorities.” 

 
Drescher & Malecki LLP Mission Statement 

RATE CONSULTING SERVICES FOR  
 
 
 
 

THROUGH MAY 31, 2022 
(3)ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR OPTIONAL 

RENEWAL TERMS 
 
 

RFP NO. 2021-02 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 158



Table of Contents 

Transmittal  Letter .................................................................................................... 1 
 
Section 1 .......................................................................................................................... 2 
  Qualifications & Key Personnel 

Section 2 .......................................................................................................................... 5 
 Services to be Provided & Limitations 
  
Section 3 .......................................................................................................................... 7 
 Cost Proposal 

 
Appendices 

    Mandatory Forms 

    Peer Review 

- Proposal to Serve - 
 Niagara Falls Water Board 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 159



- 1 - 
 

 
Certified Public Accountants 
 

 
September 15, 2021 
 
Sean W. Costello, General Counsel 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 
Niagara Falls, New York 14304 
 
 
Dear Mr. Costello, 
 
Drescher & Malecki LLP is committed to effective and efficient government. We present our proposal 
to serve as Rate Consultants for the Niagara Falls Water Board (for the purposes of this proposal 
referred to as the “Board”). 
 
We understand the work to be performed, including the relevant standards that apply to the Board.  
We commit to perform the work within the time frames the Board has established to meet all 
deadlines.  Any questions regarding our response can be addressed to Matthew J. Montalbo, 
mmontalbo@dm-llp.com, (716) 565-2299 ext. 7008. 
  
We look forward to continuing to serve Niagara Falls Water Board with distinction. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Matthew J. Montalbo, 
Partner 

Drescher & Malecki LLP 
3083 William Street, Suite 5 
Buffalo, New York 14227 
Telephone:  716.565.2299 
Fax:  716.565.2201 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 160



2 
Pකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක Bඉකඌ   

Drescher & Malecki LLP         

Date of Partnership: April 5, 2004
Headquarters: 3083 William Street, Suite 5; Buffalo, New York 14227
Partners and Directors: 5
Certified Public Accountants: 14
Total Staff: 32
Total Governmental Staff: 32
Mission Statement: Drescher & Malecki LLP continues to revolutionize the accounting and

audit process to provide practical and innovative ideas to counties,
cities, towns, villages, school districts, and public authorities.

Municipal Clients: >110

Drescher & Malecki LLP Company Profile 

QQQUALIFICATIONSUALIFICATIONSUALIFICATIONS   & K& K& KEYEYEY   PPPERSONNELERSONNELERSONNEL   

Drescher & Malecki LLP Exclusively Serves Municipalities 

Buffalo Business First’s “Best Places to Work” has recognized Drescher & Malecki LLP’s culture in each of 
the last seven years. During the last five years, we were the overall #1 winner in our respective 
category. Drescher & Malecki LLP is the only accounting firm in the region to outright win this 
prestigious award. To qualify for this distinction, employees are requested to complete a series of 
confidential surveys describing the firm, its culture, and their overall happiness in their roles.  You will 
find our team to be attentive, responsive and communicative. We are eager to help and serve you 
throughout the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This distinction enables D&M to attract and retain  

the best and brightest, translating to outstanding service to our clients. 

All personnel assigned to the Board are exposed to similar New York State authorities and municipal 
clients year round.  Drescher & Malecki LLP has assembled a team for the Board that will provide quality 
service and extensive knowledge to your Board. You will not have to train our staff. Your  team will have 
specialization in the public sector and experience with Board operations. This specialization and 
familiarity with the Board  facilitates a greater understanding of municipalities which means less demand 
on your Board employees to explain the intricacies of governmental accounting. 

Our team will work independently and ask relevant questions at  
appropriate times, respecting your commitment to daily business routines. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 161



3 
Pකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක Bඉකඌ   

Drescher & Malecki LLP         

License to Practice - We hereby affirm that the Firm and all assigned key professional staff are 
properly licensed to practice in the State of New York.   

Affirmations - Drescher & Malecki LLP does not have a record of substandard work and meets all 
specific requirements imposed by State and local law or rules and regulations. 

Peer Review - Drescher & Malecki LLP is enrolled in the AICPA Peer Review Program. As an enrolled 
firm, we are required to have a peer review of our auditing practice every three years. Our external peer 
review was performed in June 2021. We received a rating of “pass”, which is the highest rating currently 
established by the AICPA Peer Review Board. Please see the Appendix for our peer review report. 

Insurance - We have made arrangements with our insurance carrier to provide our current liability 
insurance covering $5,000,000 naming Niagara Falls Water Board as the certificate holder. Documents 
will be furnished upon award. 

Responsible Bidder - We attest that Drescher & Malecki LLP: Complies with all laws prerequisite to 
doing business in New York; Complies with U.S. Equal Opportunity Employer provisions; and has no 
Niagara Falls Water Board outstanding tax liability. 

Independence - We recognize that in all matters relating to the Niagara Falls Water Board, Drescher & 
Malecki LLP and its staff should be free, both in fact and appearance, from personal, external, and 
organizational impairments to independence. Drescher & Malecki LLP has incorporated an internal 
quality control system to help its partners and employees determine if they have any personal 
impairments to independence and a policy to ensure that its staff meets the continuing professional 
education requirements as outlined in the United States Government Accountability Office’s (G.A.O.) 
Yellow Book. We are in full compliance with both the letter and the spirit of this requirement.  

Continuing Education - Drescher & Malecki LLP’s CPE program complies with the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants’  (“AICPA”) requirements. All professionals have a minimum of 40 hours of 
qualifying CPE each calendar year and at least 120 hours for each three-year period, exceeding the 
mandated CPE required hours. Most of these hours are in governmental accounting and auditing, as 
outlined in the Government Accountability Office’s Yellow Book.  

References - Four references of current clients served are presented below. Additional client 
references can be furnished upon request. We invite you to confirm the service and quality provided 
to them, and all our clients we serve. If you have any specific questions on these, or any clients we 
serve, please do not hesitate to ask. 

Entity:  Erie County Water Authority 
Reference:   Karen Prendergast, Chief Financial Officer 
Phone:   716.849-8402 

Entity:  Buffalo Sewer Authority 
Reference:  Ronald Brown, Executive Secretary, Chief Financial Officer 
Phone:  716.851.4664 

Entity:   Buffalo Water Authority 
Reference:   Oluwole (O.J.) McFoy, Chairperson 
Phone:   716.847.1065 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 162



4 
Pකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක Bඉකඌ   

Drescher & Malecki LLP         

Matthew J. Montalbo, CPA  
Engagement Partner 

Matt has over sixteen years experience serving public sector entities.  He joined Drescher & Malecki LLP full time after 
receiving his Masters in Accounting from S.U.N.Y at Buffalo and is an active member of New York State  Government 
Finance Officers‘ Association as well as a GFOA Special Review Committee Member. 

Representative Clients Served 
 
 
 

Professional and Community Activities 
• Special Review Committee for GFOA Excellence in Financial Reporting Program 
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
• New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants 
• New York State Government Finance Officers Association 

Education 
• S.U.N.Y. at Buffalo, M.S., Accounting  
• S.U.N.Y. at Geneseo, B.S., Accounting  

Luke R. Malecki, CPA  
Concurring Review & Advisory Partner 

Luke has been with the Drescher & Malecki LLP team since it’s inception, April 5, 2004. He has over seventeen years 
experience in serving public sector entities and currently serves as a former member of the Special Review Committee for 
the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program.  

Representative Clients Served 
 
 

Professional and Community Activities 
• Special Review Committee for GFOA Excellence in Financial Reporting Program 
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
• New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants 
• New York State Government Finance Officers’ Association 
• NYS Western Region GFOA, Council Member 

Education 
• S.U.N.Y. at Buffalo, M.A., Financial Economics 
• Bentley University, B.S., International Business      

It is the continuing policy of our firm to provide equal-opportunity employment to all employees and applicants, without regard to race, creed, 
color, sex, religion, national origin, citizenship, age, veteran status, disability, pregnancy, [any other protected categories, (e.g., marital status, 
sexual orientation or sexual identification)]. This policy relates to all employment decisions, including those in connection with recruitment, 
hiring, training, promotion, compensation, benefits, termination, and all other terms and conditions of employment. All of our policies are in 
accordance with federal, state and local equal employment opportunity principles and other related laws.  

• Buffalo Sewer Authority 
• Buffalo Water Authority 

• County of Erie 
• Erie County Water Authority 

• Buffalo Sewer Authority 
• Buffalo Water Authority 

• Niagara Falls Water Board 
• Niagara Falls Public Water Authority 

• Buffalo Sewer Authority 
• Buffalo Water Authority 

• County of Erie 
• Erie County Water Authority 

Charles Trottier, CPA 
Senior Manager 

Charles brings over 13,600 hours of municipal accounting experience on clients such as authorities, cities, towns and 
villages. His role is primarily to oversee governmental engagements and  prepare and review financial statements, as 
well as other required reports.  

Representative Clients Served 

 
Education 

• Canisius College, M.S. in Accounting 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 163



5 
Pකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක Bඉකඌ   

Drescher & Malecki LLP         

SERVICES TO BE SERVICES TO BE SERVICES TO BE    
RENDERED & LIMITATIONSRENDERED & LIMITATIONSRENDERED & LIMITATIONS   

   
Task 1 – Operating Budget and Rate Setting 
 
DMLLP will be available to review the proposed annual operating budget and provide 
recommendations regarding the adequacy of rates and other revenues to meet the required debt 
service coverage requirement. In addition, potential variances will be identified and discussed with 
management during the budget process before final approval. DMLLP will also use this information to 
prepare a five year financial forecast, with estimated rates required to meet the rate covenant, which 
requires the NFWB to collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal year so that revenues (net 
of nonrecurring items) collected in such fiscal year will be at least equal to the sum of one hundred 
fifteen percent (115%) of estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such 
fiscal year. The five year financial forecast will be formally presented to the Board. 
 
Task 2 – Financial Services during the Fiscal Year 
 
Once the five year financial forecast described in Task 1 is completed, DMLLP will be available 
throughout the year, should management have specific concerns on meeting the debt service 
coverage ratio. For example, projecting what a $500,000 budget shortage would have on the coverage 
ratio. Further, DMLLP will perform oversight of cash flows throughout the year, including reviewing 
cash receipts, disbursements and debt service coverage and DMLLP will be available to consult with 
management of the Water Board on matters relating to cash flows on a quarterly basis, if requested. 
 
Task 3 – CIP Development Support 
 
DMLLP understands the importance of the NFWB Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The CIP is often 
subject to changes based on current needs and long-term wants. The CIP also provides for the sources 
of funds to complete the listed projects and DMLLP will be available throughout the year to provide 
rate and revenue projections as CIP changes occur, whether it be a new potential bond issuance, or a 
change in the amount of grant funding, etc. DMLLP will work with management, bond counsel and 
financial advisors as debt can be structure in a variety of ways to ensure our projections are 
reasonable. 
 
Task 4 – Services Related to Financing – Preparation of a Feasibility Report for the Issuance of 
Bonds/Rate Covenant Certification 
 
If requested, DMLLP will, in connection with the potential refinancing of the NFPWA Series 2013A 
bonds, or any future bond issuances within this proposal, prepare a feasibility report for inclusion in 
the Official Statement for the issuance of bonds. When requested, DMLLP will also provide an agreed 
upon procedures report to assist in evaluating the rate covenant certification, or “certificate of the 
accountant”. Should bond counsel require further requirements, we will add additional procedures 
accordingly as allowed by professional standards. We will also be available throughout the 
preparation of the Official Statement and work with management, bond counsel and financial 
advisors, as deemed necessary. 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 164



6 
Pකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක Bඉකඌ   

Drescher & Malecki LLP         

“Our contacts with Drescher & Malecki have helped our 
Corporation to institute best practices and grow responsibly 
and sustainably. I always feel comfortable that we will receive 
prompt, professional guidance no matter when we call.” 

               Jocelyn Gordon, Executive Director 
BENLIC 

Task 5 – Continuing Disclosure Report 
 
DMLLP will assist in the preparation of the NFPWA’s CDR for compliance with debt requirements. The 
CDR is due annually at the end of September for each fiscal year in which the NFPWA does not issue 
bonds during the period of January 1st to June 30th. DMLLP will assist management in the preparation 
of the CDR by completing the financial sections and working with NFWB’s Management, Consultant 
Engineer and Financial Advisor to ensure timely submission. 
 
Limitations on Services 

We will not assume management responsibilities or make management decisions for you. However, 
we may provide advice, research materials, and recommendations to assist you in performing your 
functions and making decisions. You must agree to perform the following functions in connection 
with our engagement: 

Make all management decisions and assume all management responsibilities; 
• Designate an individual who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience, preferably 

within senior management, to oversee the services; 
• Evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; 
• Accept responsibility for the results of the services; and 
• Establish and maintain internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

 
Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose errors, fraud, or any wrongdoing within 
the entity or noncompliance with laws and regulations. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 165



7 
Pකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක BඉකඌPකඛඉඔ ග Sඍකඞඍ Nඑඉඏඉකඉ Fඉඔඔඛ Wඉගඍක Bඉකඌ   

Drescher & Malecki LLP         

The costs above represent the estimated cost for the initial term of the proposal, ending May 31, 2022. 
For the (3) one-year extensions the estimated cost will increase by 2% each year. 
 
Rates for Professional Services - For any other additional services requested by the Board our 
discounted hourly rates are as follows: Partner $200; Manager $175; Supervisory Staff $125; and 
Professional Staff $85. 

CCCOSTOSTOST   PPPROPOSALROPOSALROPOSAL   
Please find a detailed breakdown of our estimated hours and estimated cost for each task below. 

“We have found each of their staff to be well versed in matters 
important to the County - including accounting and reporting 
knowledge, social service matters, debt issuances, Federal 
compliance, and more.” 

                 Kyle Andrews, Treasurer  
                                   County of Niagara, New York 

Task Total
1 Operating Budget & Rate Setting 100                115$             11,500$    
2 Financial Services during the Fiscal Year 60                   115                6,900          
3 CIP Development Support 30                   115                3,450          
4 Services Related to Financing 70                   115                8,050          
5 Continuing Disclosure Report 40                   115                4,600          

Blended  
Hourly CostHoursTask Description

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 166



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 167



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 168



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 169



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 170



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 171



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 172



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 173



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 174



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 175



REPORT ON THE FIRM’S SYSTEM OF QUALITY CONTROL 

To the Partners 
Drescher & Malecki LLP 
and the Peer Review Committee of the Pennsylvania Institute of CPA’s 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Drescher & 
Malecki LLP (the firm) in effect for the year ended December 31, 2020. Our peer review was conducted in 
accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer 
Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).  

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System 
Review as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also 
includes an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with 
applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 

Firm’s Responsibility 

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm 
with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards 
in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate 
engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when 
appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.  

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm’s 
compliance therewith based on our review.  

Required Selections and Considerations 

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, 
including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act.   

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.  

Certified Public Accountants and Advisors 
401 West Main Street, Suite 1100 Louisville, Kentucky 40202 tel: 502.583.0248 fax: 502.589-1680 www.jnmcpa.com 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 176

file://jnm-srv1/Prog/Data/Clients/Alford,%20Nance%20and%20Jones/2016/www.aicpa.org/prsummary


Opinion  
 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Drescher & Malecki 
LLP in effect for the year ended December 31, 2020, has been suitably designed and complied with to 
provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable 
professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) 
or fail. Drescher & Malecki LLP has received a peer review rating of pass.  
 

 
Louisville, Kentucky 
June 28, 2021 
 

Jones, Nale & Mattingly PLCNFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 177



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-013 

ACCEPTING PROPOSAL FOR CONSULTING ENGINEER SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board issued RFP No. 2021-02 seeking proposals 
for rate consulting and consulting engineer services with the initial term of the engagement to be 
from the date of acceptance through May 31, 2022 and providing for up to three optional 
one-year renewals; and 

WHEREAS, two proposals for rate consulting services were received; and 

WHEREAS, upon review, Water Board staff recommend accepting the 
September 15, 2021 proposal by AECOM USA, Inc.; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, the Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to accept the September 15, 2021 proposal by AECOM USA, Inc., to 
provide rate consultant services through May 31, 2022, on an hourly basis and with fees not to 
exceed $29,584 without further Water Board resolution. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
FGB.8000.0000.0451.000   
Budget Line Provided by:  B. Majchrowicz 
Available Funds Confirmed by:  B. Majchrowicz   

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable 

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 178



MEMORANDUM 

To:  Board of Directors, Niagara Falls Water Board 

From:  Abderrahman Zehraoui, Ph.D, Executive Director 

Regarding: RFP 2021-02 Separate of Combined Proposals for Rate Consultant & Engineer 

Date:  September 23, 2021 
________________________________________________________________________ 

In response to the above RFP, the following proposals were received: 

A. Rate Consultant Proposals 
1. Amawalk Consulting Group, LLC 
2. Lumsden McCormick LLP 
3. Drescher & Malecki LLP

B. Consulting Engineer Proposals 
1. CPL 
2. AECOM USA, Inc. 

These proposals were reviewed by Director of Technical and Regulatory Services 
Douglas Williamson, Deputy Director of Financial Services Brian Majchrowicz, General 
Counsel Sean Costello, and me.  The criteria guiding the review were as follows: 

1. Situational understanding; 
2. Demonstrated experience, capabilities, and qualifications; 
3. Completeness of the proposal; and 
4. Total proposed cost. 

Based on this review, it is my recommendation that the proposal for rate consultant services by 
Drescher & Malecki be accepted by the Board, with the lowest hourly rate of the proposers and 
demonstrated experience with the scope of work. 

I recommend that the proposal for consulting engineer services by AECOM be accepted, with an 
estimated total fee of $29,584.  The proposed rates for individual engineers are lower in the CPL 
proposal, but the total proposed fee is $57,000.  Both firms are well qualified to perform the 
necessary work, but CPL’s proposal estimates a total of 320 hours for Task 1, versus 48 for 
AECOM.  It appears that this difference may be attributable in part to CPLs proposal to have its 
entire team attend monthly project meetings for three months and to have two engineers attend 
other meetings.   

Dr. Abderrahman Zehraoui 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 179



C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

September 15, 2021

Mr. Sean W. Costello, General Counsel
Niagara Falls Water Board
5815 Buffalo Avenue
Niagara Falls, NY  14304

Re: Proposal for 2021/2022 Consulting Engineer Services

Dear Mr. Costello:

AECOM USA, Inc. (AECOM) is pleased to submit this proposal to the Niagara Falls Water Board (NFWB)
for Consulting Engineer (CE) services for the upcoming year.  As you know, the team of AECOM (formerly
URS) and Drescher & Malecki LLP has provided these services to the NFWB from 2011 through 2019.  For
2021 we will be proposing upon the Consulting Engineer portion of the work, only.  Our proposal includes
the following items:

 Statement of Qualifications and Key Personnel
 Understanding of Work Scope and Responsibilities
 Additional Requirements
 Fees and Expenses
 Work Schedule

The following Attachments are provided:

 Attachment A – Required Forms
 Attachment B - Project Personnel Resumes

Statement of Qualifications and Key Personnel

In accordance with Appendix A of the RFP we have included responses to the following specific
items:

1. Business structure

AECOM USA, Inc. is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of AECOM, a Delaware
corporation whose stock is publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange
(ACM/NYSE).  AECOM is a global provider of professional technical and management
support services to a broad range of markets, including water, transportation, facilities,
environmental, energy, oil and gas, high-rise buildings, and government.  With over 57,000
employees — including architects, engineers, designers, planners, scientists and
management and construction services professionals — serving clients in more than 150
countries worldwide, AECOM is a premier, fully integrated infrastructure and support
services firm and is ranked among the top engineering design firms by revenue in
Engineering News-Record magazine’s annual industry rankings.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 180



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 2

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

2. Years in business

AECOM USA, Inc. was incorporated on May 3, 1930.  As noted above it is a wholly owned
indirect subsidiary of AECOM.  While the official founding of AECOM was in 1990, some
of our predecessor firms had distinguished histories dating back more than 120 years.  Since
then, more than 50 companies have joined AECOM.  In Buffalo, AECOM includes the
former URS Corporation, which has been performing engineering work for local municipal
clients since the 1980s.

3. Any other names under which proposer has done business in the past 10 years

URS Corporation became part of AECOM in 2014.  URS Corporation has worked for the
City of Niagara Falls and the Niagara Falls Water Board since 1995.  Since 2014, AECOM
has performed numerous projects for the Niagara Falls Water Board.

4. List all subsidiary and parent companies

AECOM USA, Inc. (AUSA) is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of AECOM Technical
Services, Inc. and an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of AECOM, a Delaware corporation
whose stock is  publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange (ACM/NYSE}.  The
following is a list, compiled after reasonable research and inquiry, of AUSA's domestic
subsidiaries.  The principal address for AUSA is 605 Third Avenue, New York, NY 10158.
All other companies can receive mail there as well.

AECOM Architects & Engineers (NJ), Inc. (New Jersey)
AECOM Libya Housing and Infrastructure, Inc. (Delaware)
AECOM Pacific, Inc. (Delaware)
AECOM USA of Massachusetts, Inc. (Massachusetts)
AECOM USA of Michigan, Inc. (Delaware)
Boyle Holding Corporation (California)
Consoer, Townsend & Associates, Inc. (Delaware)
Consoer Townsend Envirodyne Engineers of Indiana, Inc. (Delaware)
Consoer Townsend Envirodyne Engineers of Ohio, Inc. (Delaware)
DMJM Aviation, Inc. (Delaware)
DMJM, Inc. (Delaware)
Egis-Semaly, Inc. (New York)
Envirodyne Engineers, Inc. (Delaware)
Frederic R. Harris, Inc. (Delaware)
AECOM-Hill JV (50%)
Lim & Nascimento Engineering Corporation (California)
Material Testing Services, Inc. (Illinois)
Metcalf & Eddy of New York, Inc. (New York)
Metcalf & Eddy of Ohio, Inc. (Ohio)

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 181



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 3

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

P&D Consultants, Inc. (Delaware}
Subsurface Exploration, Inc. (Illinois)
Subsurface Testing Services, Ltd. (Illinois}
Ellerbe Becket Company, LLC (Delaware)
Urbitran Architectural/Engineering Group, Inc. (Connecticut) (66. 7% owned}
Urbitran Architectural/Engineering Group, PLLC (New York) (70% owned)

5. List proposer’s physical locations and the type of each location (i.e. regional
headquarters, primary office, warehouse, etc.)

The work in this proposal will be performed by the Buffalo office of AECOM which is
located at:

1 John James Audubon Parkway
Amherst, New York  14228

The Buffalo office is one of many branch offices of AECOM located throughout the USA.

6. State whether proposer ever has been:

Debarred or suspended by any government entity from entering contracts with it;

No.

Declared in default or terminated for cause from any contract, or had any contract
cancelled for cause; or

AECOM USA,  Inc. (“AECOM”) performs thousands of contracts each year.  From
time to time, occasions arise when AECOM does not complete the performance of an
awarded contract.  These situations include (i) where a client terminates the contract for
its convenience; e.g. where the client is unable to secure continued funding for the
underlying project and, as a result, terminates the associated contract, (ii) where
AECOM ceases performance under the contract in accordance with the applicable terms
of the contract in response to the client’s nonpayment or other breach, and the contract
is ultimately terminated; and (iii) where one of the contracting parties terminates the
contract for default.

Upon knowledge and belief, formed after reasonable inquiry, during the past five years,
AECOM (i) has not failed to complete a contract where the other party to such contract
was not in breach unless the contract afforded AECOM that right and (ii) AECOM has
not had a contract terminated by a client wherein that termination was ultimately
determined to be other than for convenience.

Required to pay liquidated damages on a contract.

No.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 182



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 4

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

7. State whether proposer has filed for bankruptcy or been the subject of an involuntary
bankruptcy proceeding

None.

8. State whether proposer has been a party to any legal action or government investigation
related to proposer’s business practices, or alleging that any of proposer’s agents or
employees committed any act of fraud, collusion, bid rigging, price fixing, or bribery.  If
proposer, any of proposer’s principals, or any of proposer’s agents has pleaded guilty or
entered into a consent order with respect allegations of any of these, provide details

On June 3, 2020, a whistleblower qui tam suit against various AECOM entities, related to
AECOM’s work for FEMA after Hurricane Katrina, was unsealed, and DOJ filed a notice
indicating their intent to intervene in the case under the False Claims Act.  DOJ filed their
complaint against AECOM alleging violations of the False Claims Act on July 28, 2020.
The allegations in the complaint primarily focus on the conduct of one AECOM employee
who was terminated by AECOM in 2010 and focus on conduct largely, although not
exclusively, between 2009 and 2011.  We do not believe these allegations reflect on our
present responsibility as a contractor.  Please contact Howard Cohen, Vice President,
Assistant General Counsel, Ethics & Compliance, howard.cohen@aecom.com, for
additional details or questions.

9. Licensing, if relevant to the work required by the contract

AECOM’s New York State Certificate of Authorization to provide professional engineering
services in New York State is provided in Attachment A.

10. Describe proposer’s experience with providing similar services to those required by the
contract along with project descriptions (including contact information for references)

AECOM (formerly URS Corporation) has been providing engineering services to the
Niagara Falls Water Board since its inception, and prior to that to the City of Niagara Falls.
These services are very broad in nature and involve general civil engineering work,
architectural services, sewer collection system work, and wastewater treatment plant
engineering work.  The following projects have been successfully performed and completed
for the Water Board on time and on (or under) budget:

 WWTP roof replacement evaluation, design, and construction phase services,
 WWTP building envelope repairs design and construction phase services,
 Gorge Pumping Station reliability analysis,
 Gorge Pumping station roof replacement design and construction phase services,
 LS-4 roof replacement design and construction phase services,
 WWTP Turbidity Study,
 WWTP Mercury Study,
 Falls Street Tunnel evaluation, design, and construction phase services,

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 183



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 5

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

 Contract 62A emergency repairs evaluation, design, and construction phase services,
 Iroquois Street Sewer evaluation, design, and construction phase services,
 2011 – 2019 Consulting Engineer/Rate Consultant Services (Annual Contract),
 2015 LaSalle Sewer System Infiltration Abatement evaluation, design, and construction

phase services,
 2016/2017 LaSalle Sewer System Infiltration Abatement evaluation, design, and

construction phase services,
 Assistance with the July 29, 2017 incident,
 Project 1 (sedimentation basins and scum) engineering design,
 Project 4 (carbon filters) engineering design, bid, and construction phase services,
 Project 6 (effluent disinfection) engineering design and construction phase services,
 Project 8 (blowers) engineering design and construction phase services,
 Chlorine dioxide pilot project required under Consent Order, and
 Assistance with WWTP operations from 2017 to date.

We think our history of successful projects performed for the NFWB speaks well to our ability
to provide first rate engineering services at a competitive cost to the Water Board.

11. Resumes covering the qualifications and contact information of key personnel for this
contract, including the number of accounts/clients served and their principal business
location, noting any key personnel who are not W-2 employees of, or partners  in, the
bidding entity

Key project personnel are listed below, and resumes are included in Attachment B.

Jeffrey Tudini, Project Manager  Mr. Tudini will serve as project manager.

Tom Loto, P.E., Project Director Mr. Loto will serve as project director and
professional engineer, should the need arise.  Mr. Loto has 25 years of experience with
both wastewater and drinking water facility evaluation, design, and construction.

John Goeddertz, Ph.D., Project Lead Engineer John Goeddertz, Ph.D. will serve as
the lead engineer for the work to be performed.  Dr. Goeddertz has successfully performed
many prior projects for the Water Board and its predecessor, the City of Niagara Falls.
AECOM’s proven track record with the Water Board will result in the work being done to
the NFWB’s complete satisfaction.

Ryan Delamere, Jordan Radomski, Project Engineers  Mr. Delamere and Mr.
Radomski have experience in a variety of civil engineering tasks that have included the
evaluation, design, and construction of water/wastewater infrastructure.  Mr. Delamere
and/or Mr. Radomski will work as project engineers on miscellaneous technical tasks
that may arise through this project (Task 2).

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 184



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 6

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

12. Any other pertinent information that will help to demonstrate proposer’s qualifications
to perform.

AECOM has provided Consulting Engineer/Rate Consultant Services to the NFWB from
2011 through 2019 at a competitive price.  We have bid this work several times and were
the low bidder.  We see no reason for the NFWB to utilize the services of anyone other than
AECOM.

Understanding of Work Scope and Responsibilities

In this section AECOM presents our understanding of the work tasks and identifies which members of
the project team will be responsible for performing the task.

Task 1 – Capital Improvement Plan and Operating Budget Assistance

AECOM will assist NFWB staff in developing a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for
Board approval and shall provide guidance to NFWB staff in developing a longer-horizon list
of potential capital projects.  The CIP will include the projects required to maintain the NFWB’s
water, wastewater, and storm sewer systems (System) in good working order, to meet regulatory
requirements, and to enhance or make more efficient the services delivered by the NFWB.

As addressed in the RFP, AECOM understands that the role of the Consulting Engineer under
Task 1 will be more comprehensive than the role played by the Consulting Engineer in CIP
development in recent years.  NFWB staff shall have ultimate responsibility for preparing the
CIP, but the Consulting Engineer will assist NFWB staff in developing a comprehensive list of
capital needs for all areas of the System and then shall provide guidance on priority and the
potential cost for each project.  In order to ensure a comprehensive assessment of  the NFWB’s
capital project needs, AECOM will:

 Review existing draft CIP items,
 Obtain first-hand knowledge of the NFWB’s system and assets by visiting water

and wastewater treatment facilities along with meeting with outside sewer and
water department heads.

 Organize and attend meetings with NFWB staff in all departments (Water,
wastewater, outside facilities (water, sewer, storm sewer lines), and information
technology).

AECOM will take an active role in managing the development of the CIP and providing
guidance to NFWB staff in the creation and preparation of the CIP.  AECOM will review or
when needed prepare project cost estimates and will assist the NFWB or its grant consultant in
identifying potential projects for grant applications.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 185



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 7

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

AECOM will also review the operation and maintenance budget prepared by NFWB staff each
fall in order to prepare an opinion that will be  provided to the Rate Consultant and NFWB on
the adequacy of the proposed budget to provide sufficient operation and maintenance of the
NFWB’s assets.

As part of this task, a project kick off meeting will be scheduled to introduce the principal
players of the project team and discuss the data requirements, the sequence of data release and
the project schedule.

Task 2 – Engineering Services during the Fiscal Year

AECOM will provide technical advice and opinions on technical matters relating to specific
projects or strategies of the NFWB.  AECOM understands that this work is on demand as
necessary and an allowance of $10,000 is included in this project task.

Task 3 –Services Related to Financing – Assistance to Rate Consultant, Certificates Regarding
Projects and Operating Expenses

Under Task 3, AECOM will provide information, opinions, and reports as may be requested by
the Rate Consultant in connection any preparation of Feasibility Reports or Continuing
Disclosure Reports as required by bond covenants or finance transactions.  AECOM will provide
certificates, if required in connection with financing transactions, setting forth its opinions on
the usefulness, costs, and estimated date of completion for projects to be constructed with debt,
and estimates of future operating expenses for such projects when required.

Any documents to be provided for Task 3 by AECOM will be solely for the benefit of NFWB
and its Rate Consultant for the Feasibility Reports and/or Continuing Disclosure Reports.
AECOM will devote normal professional efforts compatible with the time and budget available
in the review process. AECOM’s findings will represent its reasonable judgments within the
time and budget context of its commission and utilizing the information available to it at the
time.

The documents may include “forward-looking statements”.  These statements relate to
AECOM’s expectations, beliefs, intentions or strategies regarding the future.  These statements
may be identified by the use of words like “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “may”, “plan,” “project,” “will,” “should,” “seek,” and similar expressions.  The
forward-looking statements reflect AECOM’s views and assumptions with respect to future
events as of the date of the information provided and are subject to future economic conditions,
and other risks and uncertainties.  Actual and future results and trends could differ materially
from those set forth in such statements due to various factors, including, without limitation,
those discussed in this report.  These factors are beyond AECOM’s ability to control or predict.

AECOM will provide the Task 3 services under the express understanding by the parties that:

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 186



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 8

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

i. AECOM is not advising or recommending any action be taken by NFWB with respect to
any prospective, new or existing municipal financial products or issuance of municipal
securities (including with respect to the structure, timing, terms and other similar matters
concerning such financial products or issues);

ii. AECOM is not registered with the SEC as a municipal advisor;
iii. AECOM is not acting as a municipal advisor to NFWB and does not assume any

fiduciary duty hereunder, including, without limitation, a fiduciary duty to NFWB
pursuant to Section 15B of the Exchange Act with respect to the services provided
hereunder and any information and material contained in AECOM’s work product;

iv. NFWB shall discuss any such information and material with any and all internal
and/or external advisors and experts that it deems appropriate before acting on the
information and material;

v. Notwithstanding all of the foregoing, NFWB recognizes that interpretive guidance
regarding municipal advisor activities and the engineering exception is currently
limited and is likely to evolve and develop during the term of the Agreement and, to
that end, NFWB will work with AECOM throughout the term of the Agreement to
ensure that the Agreement and the services to be provided by AECOM hereunder,
is interpreted by the parties, and if necessary amended, in a manner intended to
ensure that NFWB is not asking consultant to provide, and AECOM is not in fact
providing or required to provide, any municipal advisory services.

Additional Requirements

Forms provided in Appendix A of the RFP are completed and provided in Attachment A of this proposal.
Forms included in Attachment A are:

 Form No. 1:  Acknowledgement of Addenda
 Form No. 2: Certificate of Non-Collusion
 Form No. 3: New York State Finance Law Sections 139-J And 139-K (“Lobbying Law”)

– Disclosure Statement
 Form No. 4: Equal Employment Opportunity (“EEO”) Policy Statement and Agreement
 Form No. 5: Statement on Sexual Harassment Pursuant to State Finance Law §139-L
 Form No. 6: Request for Proposals Acknowledgement and Certification
 AECOM’s New York State Certificate of Authorization to provide professional

engineering services

In addition, the RFP requested proposers to address the following items in their proposal:

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 187



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 9

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

Disclosure of any potential conflict of interest your firm may have or encounter if selected,
and your firm’s plan for resolving the conflict.

AECOM has no potential conflicts of interest in performing this project.

A statement demonstrating proposer’s experience performing each task outlined above for
the type of service being proposed.

AECOM has provided Consulting Engineer/Rate Consultant Services to the NFWB from 2011
through 2019 at a competitive price.  We have bid this work several times and were the low
bidder.

If proposer intends to use subcontractors or sub-consultants to perform more than 10% of
the work that is the subject of this RFP, proposer must include details regarding the sub-
consultant or subcontractor’s identity and qualifications.  At a  minimum, the proposal must
include information regarding the sub-consultant or subcontractor’s business structure,
experience, and resumes or other materials detailing the qualifications and contact
information for key personnel and demonstrating prior experience with the scope work to be
performed.

AECOM will perform all the required work in-house and does not intend to utilize any sub-
contractors or sub-consultants.  However, should a subcontractor be needed, AECOM has
relationships with a number of local firms that could provide services as needed.

Fees and Expenses

The proposed time and materials project budget is presented in the attached Table 1, which includes a
task by task breakdown and the  proposed hourly billing rates.  These budget will not be exceeded
without Water Board Approval. Costs for 2022 – 2023 are also included in Table 1 as requested in the
RFP.

Work Schedule

The project will commence immediately upon contract authorization and will run through May 31, 2022.
An optional 1-year renewal term is provided that would run from June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023.
The work included in this first year will generally follow the following schedule:

Task 1 – Capital Improvement Plan and Operating Budget Assistance
 Begin immediately and occur throughout the remainder of 2021.

Task 2 – Engineering Services during the Fiscal Year

 As needed throughout year.

Task 3 –Services Related to Financing – Assistance to Rate Consultant, Certificates Regarding

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 188



Mr. Sean Costello
September 15, 2021

Page 10

C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

Projects and Operating Expenses
 As needed throughout year, including updates.
 The feasibility report will be issued as needed if the NFWB elects to issue bonds during

the 2020 calendar year.
 The CDR due date is set by the bonding requirements and will be complied with.

If the project schedule defined above requires adjustment to meet the needs of the NFWB, the project
team will be flexible so that the needs of the NFWB are met.

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  AECOM hopes to continue to provide consulting
engineer services to the Niagara Falls Water Board.  If you have any questions as you review this
proposal, please feel free to contact AECOM.

Sincerely,

AECOM USA, Inc.

Jeff Tudini
Project Manager

Doug Gove, P.E.
Vice President New England Operations Manager, Water

Attachments: Table 1 – Project Budget
Attachment A – Required Forms
Attachment B - Project Personnel Resumes

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 189



Jeff Tudini Tom Loto, P.E. John Goeddertz, Ph.D. Ryan Delamere Jordan Radomski

PM Project Director Lead Engineer Engineer Engineer

2021-2022 Rate -> 154.00$ 230.00$ 214.00$ 88.00$ 80.00$

1 Capital Improvement Plan and Operating Budget
Assistance 8 0 40 0 0 48 $9,792

2 Engineering Services during the Fiscal Year TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD $10,000

3
Services Related to Financing – Assistance to Rate
Consultant, Certificates Regarding Projects and
Operating Expenses

8 0 40 0 0 48 $9,792

16 0 80 0 0 96

2,464$ -$ 17,120$ -$ -$ 96 $29,584

1 2022 - 2023 labor rates increase 5% from 2021 - 2022 values.

2 Task 2 value remains $10,000 (no escalation).

3 2022 - 2023 labor hours for Task 1 and 3 remain the same as 2021 - 2022

4 2022 - 2023 total project budget based upon above assumptions = 30,563$

TOTAL

Task Description
Task

AECOM LABOR

Totals (Labor hour totals ignore TBDs)

NOTES REGARDING 2022 - 2023 PROJECT
BUDGET:

TOTALS

Hours Cost

Table 1
Project Budget

NFWB 2021 - 2022 CE/RC Services

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 190



C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

Attachment A
Required Forms

 Form No. 1:  Acknowledgement of Addenda

 Form No. 2: Certificate of Non-Collusion

 Form No. 3: New York State Finance Law Sections 139-J And 139-K (“Lobbying Law”) –
Disclosure Statement

 Form No. 4: Equal Employment Opportunity (“EEO”) Policy Statement and Agreement

 Form No. 5: Statement on Sexual Harassment Pursuant to State Finance Law §139-L

 Form No. 6: Request for Proposals Acknowledgement and Certification

 AECOM’s New York State Certificate of Authorization to provide professional engineering
services

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 191



Page | 22 

APPENDIX A, FORM No. 1 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA 

RFP TITLE: RFP NO. 2021-02, SEPARATE OR COMBINED PROPOSALS FOR  
CONSULTING ENGINEER AND RATE CONSULTANT SERVICES 

DIRECTIONS: Complete Part I or Part II, whichever is applicable. 

PART I: LISTED BELOW ARE THE DATES OF ISSUE FOR EACH 
ADDENDUM RECEIVED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS RFP: 

ADDENDUM # 1: DATED __________________ , 20__ 

ADDENDUM # 2: DATED __________________ , 20__ 

ADDENDUM # 3: DATED __________________ , 20__ 

ADDENDUM # 4: DATED __________________ , 20__ 

ADDENDUM # 5: DATED __________________ , 20__ 

ADDENDUM # 6: DATED __________________ , 20__ 

PART II: _______  INITIAL HERE IF NO ADDENDUM WAS RECEIVED 
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS RFP 

DATE: ___/___/_____ 

PROPOSER (SIGNATURE): 

PROPOSER (NAME):  

PROPOSER (FIRM): 

____________________________ 

Doug Gove
____________________________ 

AECOM USA, Inc.
____________________________ 

_____
N CON

Digitally signed by Doug 
Gove 
Date: 2021.09.14 10:44:46 
-04'00'

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 192



Page | 23 

APPENDIX A, FORM No. 2 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION 

RFP NO. RFP NO. 2021-02, SEPARATE OR COMBINED PROPOSALS FOR CONSULTING 
ENGINEER AND RATE CONSULTANT SERVICES 

Pursuant to New York State Public Authorities Law, Article 9, Title 4, Section 2878, the 
undersigned proposer hereby subscribes and affirms as true, under the penalties of perjury, the 
following statement of non-collusion:   

By submission of this proposal, each proposer and each person signing on behalf of any 
proposer certifies, and in the case of a joint proposal each party thereto certifies as to its own 
organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of his/her knowledge and belief: 

(1) The prices in this proposal have been arrived at independently without collusion,
consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as
to any matter relating to such prices with any other proposer or with any competitor;

(2) Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this proposal have
not been knowingly disclosed by the proposer and will not knowingly be disclosed by the
proposer prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other proposer or to any
competitor; and,

(3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the proposer to induce any other person,
partnership, or corporation to submit or not to submit a proposal for the purpose of
restricting competition.

DATE: ___/___/_____ 

PROPOSER (SIGNATURE): 

PROPOSER (NAME):  

PROPOSER (FIRM): 

STATE OF ________________ ) 
) ss.: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

On the ___ day of ________________, 20__, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for said state, personally appeared __________________________ 
as a representative of _________________________________________________, 
personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she executed the same in his/her capacity, and that by his/her signature on the instrument, 
the entity on behalf of which the individual acted executed the instrument.  

__________________________________ 
Notary Public  

e underrrrrrrrrrsignnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnedededededdddededededddddededddeddededededededdeddeddedededdddededededededddededdededededdedddedededdedededdedddededdddddedeeddeddededdddeddddddedeededdeeeddeddeddddddddddd, aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa

Digitally signed by Doug 
Gove 
Date: 2021.09.14 10:45:03 
-04'00'

Digitally signed 
by Cleary, 
Maryanne 
Date: 
2021.09.14 
10:47:20 -04'00'NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 193



Page | 24 

APPENDIX A, FORM No. 3 

NEW YORK STATE FINANCE LAW SECTIONS 139-j AND 139-k 
(“LOBBYING LAW”) – DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

RFP NO. 2021-02, SEPARATE OR COMBINED PROPOSALS FOR CONSULTING ENGINEER 
AND RATE CONSULTANT SERVICES 

General Information 

All procurements by the Niagara Falls Water Board (“NFWB”) in excess of $15,000 annually, 
are subject to New York State’s State Finance Law Sections 139-j and 139-k, effective 
January 1, 2006 (“Lobbying Law”). 

Pursuant to the Lobbying Law, all “contacts” (defined as oral, written or electronic 
communications with the NFWB intended to influence a procurement) during a procurement - 
from the earliest notice of intent to solicit bids/proposals through final award and approval - 
must be made with one or more designated Point(s) of Contact only.  Exceptions to this rule 
include written questions during the bid/proposal process, communications with regard to 
protests, contract negotiations, and RFP conference participation.  Nothing in the Lobbying 
Law inhibits any rights to make an appeal, protest, or complaint under existing administrative 
or judicial procedures. 

Violations of the policy regarding permissible contacts must be reported to the appropriate 
NFWB officer and investigated accordingly.  The first violation may result in a determination of 
non-responsibility and ineligibility for award to the violator and its subsidiaries, affiliates, and 
related entities.  The penalty for a second violation within four (4) years is ineligibility for 
bidding/proposing on a procurement and/or ineligibility from being awarded any contract for a 
period of four (4) years.  The NFWB will notify the New York State Office of General Services 
(“OGS”) of any determinations of non-responsibility or debarments due to violations of the 
Lobbying Law.  Violations found to be “knowing and willful” must be reported to the NFWB 
Executive Director and OGS. 

Moreover, the statutes require the NFWB to obtain certain affirmations and certifications from 
bidders and proposers.  This Disclosure Statement contains the forms with which offerors are 
required to comply, together with additional information and instructions. 

Instructions 

New York State Finance Law §139-k(2) obligates the NFWB to obtain specific information 
regarding prior non-responsibility determinations.  In accordance with New York State Finance 
Law §139-k, an offerer must be asked to disclose whether there has been a finding of non-
responsibility made within the previous four (4) years by any governmental entity due to: (a) a 
violation of New York State Finance Law §139-j or (b) the intentional provision of false or 
incomplete information to a governmental entity. 

As part of its responsibility determination, New York State Finance Law §139-k(3) mandates 
consideration of whether an offerer fails to timely disclose accurate or complete information 
regarding the above non-responsibility determination.  In accordance with law, no procurement 
contract shall be awarded to any offerer that fails to timely disclose accurate or complete 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 194



Page | 25 

information under this section, unless the factual elements of the limited waiver provision can 
be satisfied on the written record. 

Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations 

Name of Bidder/Proposer:  ________________________________________  

Address:__________________________________________________ 
Name and Title of Person 
Submitting this Form:_______________________________________________ 

Has any governmental entity1 made a finding of non-responsibility regarding the 
Bidder/Proposer in the previous four years?  

 ___ Yes  ___ No 

If yes: Was the basis for the finding of the Bidder’s/Proposer’s non-responsibility 
due to a violation of State Finance Law §139-j? 

 ___ Yes  ___ No 

Was the basis for the finding of Bidder’s/Proposer’s non-responsibility due to the 
intentional provision of false or incomplete information to a governmental entity? 

 ___ Yes  ___ No 

If yes to any of the above questions, provide details regarding the finding of 
non-responsibility below: 

Governmental Entity: _________________________________________________ 

Year of Finding of Non-responsibility:_________ 

Basis of Finding of Non-Responsibility (attach additional pages if necessary):_________ 

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

X

AECOM USA, Inc.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 195



Page | 26 

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________ 

Has any governmental entity terminated or withheld a procurement contract with 
the Bidder/ Proposer due to the intentional provision of false or incomplete 
information?  

 ___ Yes  ___ No 

If yes, provide details regarding the termination/withholding below: 

Governmental Entity: _________________________________________________ 

Year of Termination/Withholding:_________ 

Basis for Termination/Withholding (attach additional pages if necessary): 

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

X

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 196



Page | 27 

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________ 

NOTICE OF NFWB’S RIGHT TO TERMINATE 

The NFWB reserves the right to terminate a Contract (including any lease, license, 
entry permit, or sale documents) in the event it is found that the certification filed 
by the Proposer, in accordance with New York State Finance Law §139-k, was 
intentionally false or intentionally incomplete. Upon such finding, the NFWB may 
exercise its termination right by providing written notification to the 
Bidder/Proposer in accordance with the written notification terms of the Contract. 

Proposer’s Affirmation and Certification 

By signing below, the Proposer: 

Affirms that the Proposer understands and agrees to comply with the policy
regarding permissible contacts in accordance with New York State Finance Law
Sections 139-j and 139-k.

Certifies that all information provided to the NFWB with respect to New York
State Finance Law §139-j and §139-k is complete, true, and accurate.

DATE: ___/___/_____ 

PROPOSER (SIGNATURE): 

PROPOSER (NAME):  

PROPOSER (FIRM):  

STATE OF ________________ ) 
) ss.: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

On the ___ day of ________________, 20__, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for said state, personally appeared __________________________ 
as a representative of _________________________________________________, 
personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she executed the same in his/her capacity, and that by his/her signature on the instrument, 
the entity on behalf of which the individual acted executed the instrument.  

__________________________________ 
Notary Public 

nnnnndidd viv dual whhhhhosososooossooooooosososssooooooosoososssoosoooooosssssssosssoooosoososse eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee nan me is subs
heh /s// heh eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeexexxxexexexexexexexeexexeexeexexexexexexexexexexexexexexeeexexexexeexeexexeeeexexeeexexexexexexexexexxexeexexeexeexexeeexexexexxexxxeexexexxxxxeeeexxeeeexexxexexxxxxxxexexxeeexxeexexeexeeeexxxxexexxeeexxexxxxx cucucucucucucucuccucccucucucucccucucucucucuccucucuccuucucuccucucucucucucuucuucucucuccccucuccccccuuuuccccucuuuuucucccuuucucuccucccccccccc tettetetettttetetetetttetttetettettttetetetetetttetettettetttteetetettttttetetttttettettttetttttettttttttteeeeeed dddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddd ththththththththththhthhhhththhhthhthththhhthhhthhhthththththththththhhhhhthhhhhthhhthhhhthhththththhhhhththhhhthttthhhtttthhhhtthhhhtththhhttthtthhhhhhhhhhhthhhht eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee sasasasasassasssasasasasasasassassasssasasasassasassssasasassasasssssasasssassasasassasasssssasasasassasaaaasasasassaaasssassasasasasssasaasaasssaasssssaassaasassaasassasssassaaaaaasasas memmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm  in hi
thhe ennnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnntititititititititititititittititititititiititittititititiitititttiitititittititiitiitititiitiitttitititttitttiiitttittttititittttttiitttiiiiittiiititiittttttttttttttttt tytyttytytytytytytytytytytytyttttytttytyttttytyttytytttytytytytytytttytyyyytyyytyyytyyyyyyyyyytyyyyyyyyyyyytyytyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooonnnnnn n nnnnnnnn n nnnnnnnn n n nnnnnnn nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn nnnnnnnnn nnn bebbebebebebebbbbebebbebebebebebebebebebebebebbbebbebebebebebebebebbebebebebbebbebebebbebebeebebebebbebebbebebebbbebebebebebebebeebebbbebbbbbebebebbebbebbbebebebebbbbbbbebbbebbbbbebeeebebebbbebbbbbbebbbbbbbbbebeebeebbbebbbebbeeebeeeebeeeebbbbeebbb hahhhaaaaahaaaahaaaaaaaaaaahaahaahaaaahahaaaaaaaaahaaaaahaaahaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaahaaaaaaaaaaahhaaaaaahaaaaaaaaaaaaaaalflflflfllfllllflllflflflllfllflflflflflflllflflflflflflflflflfllflfllfllflflflflflflflllflflflffflflllfllflflflflfffflflfllffllfllflflfflfffffflfffffflfffffffffffffffffffffffffffff ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooof fff ffffffff ffffffff whwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwwhwhwhwwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwwwhwhwhwhwhwwhwhwhwhwhwhwwhwhwhwhwwhwhwhhwwhwhwwhwhwhwwhhwhhwhwhwhwhwwwhwwwhwwhhwhwwwhhwwhwwwhhwhhhwhwhhhhwhhwhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhiciiiiiiiiiii h th

Digitally signed by Doug 
Gove 
Date: 2021.09.14 
10:45:20 -04'00'

Digitally signed by Cleary, 
Maryanne 
Date: 2021.09.14 10:47:44 -04'00'

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 197



Page | 2

APPENDIX A, FORM No. 4 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (“EEO”) 
POLICY STATEMENT AND AGREEMENT 

RFP NO. 2021-02, SEPARATE OR COMBINED PROPOSALS FOR CONSULTING ENGINEER 
AND RATE CONSULTANT SERVICES 

Proposer hereby agrees to the following EEO policy with respect to its work on any contract 
awarded in connection with this RFP: 

a) This organization will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status, will
undertake or continue existing programs of affirmative action to ensure that minority group
members are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination, and shall
make and document its conscientious and active efforts to employ and utilize minority group
members and women in its work force on Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”)
contracts.

b) This organization shall state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees that in the
performance of the Water Board contract all qualified applicants will be afforded equal
employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national
origin, sex, disability or marital status.

c) At the request of the Water Board, this organization shall request each employment agency,
labor union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining
or other agreement or understanding, to furnish a written statement that such employment
agency, labor union, or representative will not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, color,
national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status and that such union or representative
will affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of this organization’s obligations herein.

d) This organization shall comply with the provisions of the Human Rights Law, all other State
and Federal statutory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions.  Proposer and
subcontractors shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, creed (religion), color, sex, national origin, sexual orientation, pregnancy or
pregnancy-related conditions, gender identity, familial status, military status, age, disability,
predisposing genetic characteristic, marital status or domestic violence victim status, and
shall also follow the requirements of the Human Rights Law with regard to non-
discrimination on the basis of prior criminal conviction and prior arrest.

e) This organization will include the provisions of section (a) through (d) of this agreement in
every subcontract in such a manner that the requirements of the subdivisions will be binding
upon each subcontractor as to work in connection with the Water Board contract.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 
DATE: ___/___/_____ 

PROPOSER (SIGNATURE): 

PROPOSER (NAME):  

PROPOSER (FIRM): 

Digitally signed by Doug 
Gove 
Date: 2021.09.14 10:45:39 
-04'00'

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 198



Page | 

APPENDIX A, FORM No. 5 

STATEMENT ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT  
PURSUANT TO STATE FINANCE LAW § 139-l 

RFP NO. 2021-02, SEPARATE OR COMBINED PROPOSALS FOR CONSULTING ENGINEER 
AND RATE CONSULTANT SERVICES 

By submission of this proposal, proposer(s) and each person signing on behalf of 
any proposer certifies, and in the case of a joint proposal each party thereto certifies as to its 
own organization, under penalty of perjury, that the proposer has and has implemented a 
written policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual 
sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees.  Such policy shall, at a minimum, 
meet the requirements of section two hundred one-g of the labor law. 

DATE: ___/___/_____ 

PROPOSER (SIGNATURE): 

PROPOSER (NAME):  

PROPOSER (FIRM): 

STATE OF ________________ ) 
) ss.: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

On the ___ day of ________________, 20__, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for said state, personally appeared __________________________ 
as a representative of _________________________________________________, 
personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she executed the same in his/her capacity, and that by his/her signature on the instrument, 
the entity on behalf of which the individual acted executed the instrument.  

___________________________________ 
Notary Public 

Digitally signed by 
Doug Gove 
Date: 2021.09.14 
10:45:53 -04'00'

Digitally signed by Cleary, 
Maryanne 
Date: 2021.09.14 10:47:56 
-04'00'

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 199



Page | 3

APPENDIX A, FORM No. 6 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND CERTIFICATION 

As a duly-authorized representative of the proposer indicated below, I hereby 
acknowledge that by submitting a proposal in connection with RFP NO. 2021-02, SEPARATE 
OR COMBINED PROPOSALS FOR CONSULTING ENGINEER AND RATE CONSULTANT 
SERVICES, proposer has made a firm offer and agrees to be bound by its terms.  Proposer has 
carefully read the RFP and all addenda, and in submitting this proposal acknowledges proposer 
understands and agrees to be bound by the requirements set forth in the RFP, except as 
explicitly stated on a separate sheet attached to this proposal and entitled “Exceptions.” 

I recognize that all information submitted is for the express purpose of inducing 
the Water Board to enter a contract with the submitting business entity.  I affirm, under the 
penalties of perjury, that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in the proposal 
is full, complete, and truthful.   

PROPOSER (SIGNATURE): 

PROPOSER (NAME):  

PROPOSER (FIRM): 

STATE OF ________________ ) 
) ss.: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

On the ___ day of ________________, 20__, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for said state, personally appeared __________________________ 
as a representative of _________________________________________________, 
personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she executed the same in his/her capacity, and that by his/her signature on the instrument, 
the entity on behalf of which the individual acted executed the instrument.  

___________________________________ 
Notary Public 

bebbbbbebehahhalf ooooooooooof whhwhwhwhhwhwhwhhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhhwhwhwhwhhwhhhwhwwwhwhhwhwhhwhwhwhwhwhwhwhhwhwhwhwhwhwhhwhwwwhwhwhwhhhhwhhwwhwhwhwhwhhwhhwhhwhwhhhhhwhwhwhhwhwhwhhwhwhwwhwhwhwwwhhwhwhhhwhhwwhwhhwwwwhhhwhwhhhhhiciccicicicicicicciccicciciciciiciciciciciciciccicicicicciciccicciciciiiciciciciciciciciicicicciciciccicicccicciccciicciciciicicccciccciiiiciciiiiicicciicccciiciciiccciccicciciciich hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh ththtthththththththtthttthhhthththththththththhhththtthtththththththththththhhhththththththththhhhhthhththhhhhhththhhhthhhhththhhthhhhtthhthththhhhhhhhhthhhththhhhtthhhthtththhhhtheeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee individual

DATE:

Digitally signed by Doug Gove 
Date: 2021.09.14 10:46:10 -04'00'

Digitally signed by Cleary, 
Maryanne 
Date: 2021.09.14 10:48:21 -04'00'

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 200



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 201



C:\Users\john.goeddertz\Documents\2021 2022 NFWB RCCE\Proposal 9 15 21 DG2.docx

Attachment B
Project Personnel Resumes

 Jeffrey Tudini, -Project Manager
 Tom Loto, P.E. -Project Director
 John Goeddertz, Ph.D. – Lead Engineer
 Ryan Delamere – Engineer
 Jordan Radomski - Engineer

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 202



      1 
   
   
 

Jeffrey Tudini 
Wastewater Process Engineer 
 
 
Education 
BS, MS 
Civil/Environmental  
Engineering, SUNY at 
Buffalo, 2007 
 
Years of Experience 
With AECOM: 2.5 
With Other Firms: 11 
 
 
 
 
 

 Mr. Tudini is an Environmental Engineer and Project Manager with the 
Water/Wastewater Design Group of AECOM. The wide range of projects that he 
has assisted with and managed has given him a solid foundation for various 
consulting projects including, but not limited to, system designs and alternatives 
evaluations, system startup/commissioning and operation, hazardous waste 
management, water resource analysis, laboratory/pilot testing, and groundwater 
engineering.  
 
Experience 
Wastewater Treatment 

Process Engineer, Buffalo Sewer Authority – WWTP Co-Digestion 
Alternatives Evaluation, New York, August 2019 – Present. Serve as lead 
process engineer and assistant project manager for the concept design for 
accepting high strength waste (i.e., food waste) at the Buffalo Sewer Authority’s 
Bird Island WWTP.  Conducted a holistic evaluation for incremental acceptance 
ranging from 100,000 to 400,000 lbs. VSS/day of high strength food waste for 
treatment and co-digestion at the WWTP.  System evaluation included multiple 
alternatives including traffic modifications to improve the hauled waste program, 
unit process upgrades for the receiving station, digestion process, dewatering 
process, and digestion gas facilities.  Ultimately, this evaluation provides the 
basis for accepting high strength food waste at the WWTP and the road map for 
capital improvements that align with the incremental acceptance of the high 
strength waste stream. 

Process Engineer, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP Sedimentation Basin 
and Scum Removal Upgrades, New York, September 2019 – Present. Serve 
as lead process engineer and assistant project manager for the design of the 
capital improvement project to upgrade the WWTP primary treatment system and 
scum removal process.  The design includes multiple unit upgrades with major 
systems including: increased basin weir length with the addition of effluent finger 
weir troughs, chain and flight sludge scrapper units, and full upgrade of the scum 
removal system including the use of fine screen scum separation units. 

Process Engineer, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP Effluent Disinfection 
Upgrades, New York, September 2019 – Present. Serve as process engineer 
for the design of the capital improvement project to upgrade the WWTP effluent 
disinfection system.  The design was developed to improve the WWTP control 
and monitoring of the WWTP effluent disinfection process using sodium 
hypochlorite.  This system presents multiple design considerations given the 
plants variability of chlorine demand from sulfide generation in their secondary 
treatment process.  This system is designed with a robust control and monitoring 
system to allow for consistent effluent disinfection.    

Process Engineer, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP Optimization, New 
York, June 2018 – Present. Serve as lead process engineer to develop 
physical/chemical treatment system alternative evaluations to improve the 
performance of the existing WWTP.  Evaluations include: improvements to the 
effluent disinfection process; physical/chemical treatment optimization (i.e., 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 203



      2 
   
   
 

treatment chemicals); and chemical use (i.e., oxidant) at the GAC filters.  As lead 
process engineer, develop test plans and treatment systems to evaluate 
optimization conditions and provide Engineering Repots and recommendations 
for improved system operations. 

Process Engineer, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP Biological Treatment 
Evaluation, New York, November- 2018 – July 2019. Served as lead process 
engineer to develop and test pilot-scale biological treatment systems to evaluate 
if a future conversion of the existing WWTP is an alternative.  The technologies 
tested included a membrane biological reactor (MBR) system and an attached 
growth moving bed biological reactor (MBBR) system.  Pilot testing was 
conducted over an 8-month period to evaluated multiple test conditions and 
evaluated the wastewater treatability using different biological systems. 

Project Manager and Process Engineer, Southern Company, Georgia, 
March 2018 – June 2018. Serve as project manager and lead process engineer 
for a low-volume wastewater treatment system alternatives evaluation and 
treatment system design. Developed treatment system concept designs for 
temporary and permanent systems with critical compliance deadlines upcoming.  
Successfully delivered project scope on time to maintain system compliance and 
meet future design demands. 

Process Engineer, Textile Client, South Carolina, February 2018 – June 
2018. Serves as project manager and process engineer for an antimony 
treatment evaluation project. Perform an alternatives evaluation to review options 
to modify the facility’s existing WWTP to improve treatment for antimony, while 
reducing chemical costs, and improving sludge management. Assisted the client 
with reviewing antimony treatment alternatives, provided conceptual designs and 
cost estimates for the alternatives, and worked with the client to conduct bench-
scale testing and confirm the performance of the selected treatment process. 

Process Engineer, Textile Client, Georgia, January 2017 – Jun 2018. Serves 
as project manager and process engineer for an effluent disinfection evaluation 
project. Perform an alternatives evaluation to review options to comply with new 
residual chlorine limits, while remaining in compliance with the existing pathogen 
permit requirements. Assisted the client with reviewing effluent disinfection 
alternatives, provided conceptual designs and cost estimates for the alternatives, 
and worked with the client and the selected technology vendors to review the 
treatment performance. 

Project Manager and Process Engineer, Columbus Water Works, Georgia, 
May 2016 – December 2017. Serve as Project Manager and lead process 
engineer to develop local limits for industrial discharges to the South Columbus 
Water Reclamation Facility (SCWRF).  This evaluation was conducted using 
water quality analytical data and information provided by CWW.  The overall 
objective is to define the maximum loads available for the current industrial users 
discharging to the SCWRF and serve as a basis to determine if/what limits need 
to be set on the industrial sources and/or what improvements or adjustments 
should be made to the SCWRF to maintain effluent compliance. 

Project Manager, EPRI and TVA Kingston, Tennessee, July 2015 – June 
2018. Serve as Project Manager for a full-scale FGD wastewater treatment 
evaluation to optimize physical/chemical treatment performance.  This full-scale 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 204



      3 
   
   
 

pilot includes the evaluation of multiple treatment conditions using common 
physical/chemical treatment chemicals (flocculant and coagulants) to assist EPRI 
with developing an FGD wastewater treatment operations manual. 

Process Engineer, Confidential Power Client, Kentucky, June 2015 – June 
2018. Serve as lead process engineer and designer for a demonstration-scale 
wastewater treatment system for a power client to evaluate treatment 
alternatives in advance of the Effluent Limit Guidelines (ELG) being finalized. As 
lead process engineer, we conducted onsite investigations, process water 
sample collection, and interviews to develop multiple treatment alternatives 
including process flow diagrams, mass balances, and Class 5 cost estimates that 
the client used for developing their financial planning.  Served as the lead design 
and onsite engineer to construct, startup/commission, and operate 
demonstration-scale wastewater treatment systems at two of the client’s 
generation stations. The treatment system included primary solids removal, 
physical/chemical metals co-precipitation, MBBR/DAF for nitrate removal, and 
four proprietary selenium removal process. Tasks included supervision of 
equipment installation, system startup, operation, sample collection and 
laboratory analysis, system troubleshooting, and data analysis. Tasks in addition 
to field activities included coordination with client and selenium system vendors, 
conducting weekly meetings, evaluating performance of selenium systems and 
writing final report. 

Pilot Lead; Ammonia Reduction Biological Pilot Treatment, Confidential Oil 
and Gas Client, USA, 2015. Led design, procurement, installation and operation of 
an anoxic/aerobic biological process to remove ammonia from municipal 
wastewater. Acted as site lead and client interface to coordinate operational 
decisions throughout the study. 
 

Process Engineer, Confidential Power Client, Indiana, February 2014 – 
December 2014. Serve as lead process engineer for a power client to evaluate 
treatment alternatives in advance of the Effluent Limit Guidelines (ELG) being 
finalized. As lead process engineer, we conducted onsite investigations, process 
water sample collection, and interviews to develop multiple treatment alternatives 
including process flow diagrams, mass balances, and Class 5 cost estimates that 
the client used for developing their financial planning. 

Process Engineer, Confidential Power Client, Indiana, January 2012 – 
January 2015. Functioned as process engineer for a power client that was 
issued new mercury limitations on wastewater discharge from their generation 
stations. Assisted with developing treatment alternatives including bench scale 
testing of physical-chemical processes as well as evaluated a passive treatment 
pilot system as a potential alternative. Following successful evaluation and 
demonstration of treatment alternatives, Mr. Tudini served as the Client’s 
engineer to develop the process design of a new treatment system at 2 of their 
generation stations to meet the new mercury discharge permit limits.  The 
systems were successfully designed, constructed, and started up.  The systems 
consistently meet effluent permit limits (specifically mercury). 

Process Engineer, Textile Client, Georgia, September 2011 – June 2018. 
Project manager and process engineer for a wide range of projects. Initial scope 
of work was to evaluate the capacity and operation of existing WWTP as well as 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 205



      4 
   
   
 

mimic with bench scale operations with range of influent sources. Following 
successful evaluation, Mr. Tudini served as the Client’s engineer for a range of 
projects. Projects/tasks include toxicity identification/reduction evaluations, 
WWTP operator training, solids management evaluations, permit renewal, 
antidegradation study, and conceptual effluent filtration study that has 
progressed to a full-scale design that was successfully constructed and started 
up in March 2014. 

Project Manager and Process Engineer, Corning Incorporated Wastewater 
Treatment Alternatives Evaluation, Corning, New York, December 2011 – 
June 2012.  Served as project manager and engineer to estimate potential 
pretreatment permit limits and develop wastewater treatment alternatives to meet 
the limits.  The project team assisted the Client with system sampling, testing, 
data analysis, and issued a final wastewater treatment alternatives evaluation 
with Class 5 cost estimates that allowed the Client to make sound business 
decisions for implementation of a treatment system. 

Project Engineer, Confidential Client -  Fluidized Bed Reactor (FBR) Pilot 
and Stormwater Evaluation, Madison, West Virginia, February 2010 - June 
2011. Operated an onsite FBR pilot test to evaluate “end-of-pipe” treatment 
options to address selenium compliance at surface mining operations in West 
Virginia.  Functioned as on-site engineer to operate and manage the pilot FBR, 
conducted daily process analytical testing, and performed “clean sampling” 
procedures to study and assist with validating the overall performance of using 
FBR technology to remove selenium from sedimentation pond effluent within the 
surface coal mining operations to the required concentrations. In addition, served 
as project engineer and conducted a stormwater evaluation to study the impacts 
of storms on selenium concentration from discharges at two of Client’s reclaimed 
surface coal mining outfalls. Assisted with the setup and start-up of the 
stormwater monitoring project and served as the point-of-contact for the field 
sampling team and laboratory over the duration of the 1-year study.  Evaluated, 
monitored, and controlled system data and worked with the project manager and 
senior consultant to develop the final report evaluation submitted to the client. 
Both studies were developed into research papers that were presented at Water 
Environment Federation® (WEF) in 2011 and received the Rudolf’s Industrial 
Waste Management Medal in 2012. 

Project Engineer, Confidential Client - Front-end Engineering Design 
(FEED), Ras Tanura, Saudi Arabia, September 2009 - February 2010. 
Functioned as a process engineer to develop the basis of design and produce 
the material balance for the wastewater design portion of this project. Also, 
served as a project design engineer to create and maintain system IFD, BFD, 
PFDs, P&IDs, Process Controls Documentation, Data Sheets and Specifications 
for the wastewater FEED Package. 

Project Engineer, Aerobic and Anaerobic MBR bench-scale testing and 
Anaerobic membrane pilot testing with ultrafiltration and reverse osmosis 
bench-scale testing, Bacardi, Puerto Rico, May to June 2008 and March to 
December 2013. Served as process engineer with onsite MBR bench-scale 
testing.  Operated two bench MBRs (anaerobic and aerobic), conducted on-site 
treatability parameter testing, and data analysis.  Mr. Tudini functioned as lead 
process engineer for follow on work conducted in 2013 to evaluate the reduction 
of effluent toxicity with the testing of membrane technology.  Projected tasks 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 206



      5 
   
   
 

included operating an anaerobic membrane pilot with additional bench-scale 
testing of ultrafiltration and reverse osmosis.  Provided assistance with pilot and 
bench scale testing plans and optimization.  

Project Engineer, Pretreatment Evaluation and SOPs, Marine Corps Recruit 
Depot Parris Island (MCRDPI), Parris Island, North Carolina, February 2007 
to March 2007. Served as a project engineer and developed SOPs for the 
existing pretreatment applications. Developed documents that assisted in the 
privatization of MCRDPIs wastewater treatment with the local POTW.  

General Projects 

Project Engineer, Environmental Laboratory Support and Environmental 
Compliance Technical Support for Water Treatment Plant and Process 
Initiatives, Anniston Army Depot, Alabama, November 2007 to March 2010. 
Served as a project engineer and assisted with laboratory permit testing, setup, 
personnel training, Chemical Hygiene Plan, and SOP production. Worked with 
project team to streamline existing laboratory practices and maintain compliance 
testing. Developed SOPs for the sanitary and industrial wastewater treatment 
plants at the Depot.  Produced quality deliverables that contributed to ANAD’s 
ISO14001:2004 certifications. 

Project Engineer, SPCC Plan, Fort Benning, Georgia, November 2007 to May 
2008. Served as a project engineer and assisted with field efforts, project 
calculations, and SPCC Plan production. 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 207



Thomas A. Loto, PE, BCEE
PROJECT DIRECTOR

QUALIFICATIONS
Firm
AECOM

Years of Experience
25+ (>1 with AECOM)

Education
MS, Environmental Engineering,
University of New Haven, CT, 1997

BS, Civil Engineering, Northeastern
University, MA, 1993

Registrations / Certifications
Professional Engineer: CT (#20540),
NY, RI

Professional Affiliations
American Academy of Environmental
Engineers

American Society of Civil Engineers

American Water Works Association,
CT Section, Chair of CT Section

Connecticut Society of Civil
Engineering, Water Resources - Chair

Hebron Inland Wetland Conservation
Commission, Chairman

National Engineering Honor Society
Water Environment Association

Mr. Loto joined AECOM in 2020 and has over 25 years of program management
and project management experience on projects, including wastewater
treatment plants, sewer system evaluations, pump stations, water supply,
and sewer line design, stormwater investigations, odor studies, groundwater
sampling and analysis, and groundwater and soil remediation. He has
participated in collection system evaluation surveys and pump station condition
assessments, and is experienced in design and construction of sanitary sewer
systems, including new sewers and rehabilitation projects. Mr. Loto manages
and negotiates concurrent contracts and task orders, oversees technical
staff performing planning, design, and construction services, and provides
design quality control. Mr. Loto is experienced in many areas of environmental
engineering, with a strong focus on design and construction of water distribution
and sanitary sewer systems including new sewers and rehabilitation projects.
His projects have included pipe diameters ranging from 8-inch to 54-inch.
Additionally, Mr. Loto has successfully completed complex projects in heavily
congested areas in Hartford and New York City.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
Metropolitan District Commission, South Hartford Consolidation and
Storage Tunnel Contract 5, West Hartford and Hartford, CT. Project Manager
and Construction Manager for the construction and installation of 1150 feet of
54-inch, 2790 feet of 42-inch microtunnel, 1265 feet of 30-inch guided-bore
jacked pipe, and various cast-in-place transition structures, pre-cast structures,
and manholes into existing sewers and conduits. New odor control systems and
SCADA controlled flow gates are to be installed where the new microtunnel pipes
connect to drop-shaft structures. Various other site and roadway improvements.
Project entails working with AECOM technical experts, resident engineers
and numerous subconsultants in very soft clays and silts in busy City streets.
Construction value is $37 M.

Infiltration/Inflow Study, Meriden, CT. Study to identify portions of the
collection system with extraneous flow. The project included metering
of wastewater flows at 14 locations for 12 weeks, continuous gauging of
groundwater levels and rainfall gauging at two locations. The project culminated
in a report that recommended follow-up field investigations in several areas to
isolate sources of I/I. Recommendations have been sent to CTDEEP for review.
The implementation will occur in five phases.

Phase II Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey, Greater New Haven WPCA, East
Haven, CT. Project manager for a Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES) in
meter areas 5, 9, and 13 in East Haven and in the Middle Thorpe Drive study area
in Hamden to identify excessive I/I sources. SSES tasks included 590 manhole

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 208



inspections, 120,000 lf of flow isolation and 84,100 lf of
television inspection and traffic control. This report formed
the basis of future rehabilitation work. [Prior to AECOM]

Phase III I/I Rehabilitation, Greater New Haven WPCA,
East Haven, CT. Project manager for the continuing
infiltration and inflow reduction program for the Greater
New Haven Water Pollution Control Authority with design
and bidding services in East Haven and Hamden. The
project consisted of design and bidding services for I/I
rehabilitation in the Area 10, Lower Farm River, Sewershed
in East Haven, and the State Street Sewershed and Upper
Thorpe Drive Sewershed Paradise Avenue Easement
(UTDSPAE) in Hamden. This project included the Lower
Farm River, Area 10, East Haven: 11,400 lf of sewer and 55
manholes, the State Street Sewershed, Hamden: 23,350
lf of sewer and 145 manholes and the UTDSPAE, Hamden:
2,110 lf of pipe and 10 manholes. Design included obtaining
local inland wetland permits. Design was completed in the
spring of 2013 with construction expected in 2014 and is
being funded by the CTDEEP. [Prior to AECOM]

Infiltration/Inflow Rehabilitation Program Area 4, City
of New London, New London, CT. Project manager for
the Infiltration/Inflow Rehabilitation Program for Area 4 in
the City of New London. The investigation included the
evaluation of 43,000 feet of sewers, 249 manholes, and 612
buildings. After the investigations were completed contract
documents were prepared that included the rehabilitation
of 33,775 lf of selected sewers using cured-in-place lining
and the rehabilitation of 208 manholes. [Prior to AECOM]

SSO Elimination, The Metropolitan District, Hartford,
CT. Project manager for the Elimination of Sanitary Sewer
Overflows for the MDC in three communities including the
Town of Rocky Hill, Wethersfield, and Windsor, Connecticut.
The project involved conducting flow measurements and
analysis, identifying significant infiltration/inflow causing
SSOs in four locations with approximately 225 miles of
sewers. A total of 43 meters were installed during the
metering program and approximately 575 manholes were
inspected. Construction documents were prepared.
Obtained Inland Wetland Permits from the Towns of Rocky
Hill, Wethersfield, Windsor, and the City of Hartford. In
addition, discussions were held with the CTDEEP and the
Army Corps of Engineers. MBE/WBEs were utilized during
the design. [Prior to AECOM]

Sanitary Survey of Water Treatment, South Central
Connecticut Regional Water Authority, CT. Project
engineer for conducting a sanitary survey of treatment and
distribution facilities. Field inspections included 3 surface
water treatment facilities, 28 finished-water storage
facilities, 5 groundwater supply facilities, 32 pumping

stations, 6 pressure-regulating valves, and numerous
surface water supplies and intakes. [Prior to AECOM]

Sewer Rehabilitation, Town of Vernon, Vernon, CT.
Project manager for a sanitary sewer rehabilitation
project that included design, bidding assistance, and
construction administration services. Included 5,900 feet
of cured-in-place (CIP) lining to the Rails to Trails trunk
sewer and cementitious lining and epoxy application to 20
manholes. The project also included repairs/rehabilitation
to 20 problematic sections of sewer and repair/lining of a
steel wetwell using epoxy. The final portion of the project
included sewer replacement of approximately 300 ft of
the 8 inch vitrified clay pipe in the Kenneth drive easement
and approximately 234 ft of 8 inch vitrified clay pipe in Fern
street. [Prior to AECOM]

Station A and D Force Main, Town of Greenwich,
Greenwich, CT. Project manager for the design of two
sanitary sewer force mains totaling approximately 2,000
ft for the town to meet a CTDEEP Consent Order. The
contract documents include open-cut and pipe-bursting
alternatives. [Prior to AECOM]

Wastewater Pump Station Modifications, Town of
Greenwich, Greenwich CT. Modifications are included
at 11 stations. Work included demolition, precast wetwells
and valve vaults, associated mechanical piping, HVAC
modifications, architectural, electrical and instrumentation
work, and site restoration. [Prior to AECOM]

Groton Fort Hill Design, Town of Groton, Groton, CT.
Project manager for the implementation of long-term plan
recommendations for the Fort Hill Homes area, including
approximately 19,700 ft cured-in-place lining of 8-in to 18-
in sewer pipe, 9,300 ft of lateral replacement, cementitious
lining of 104 manholes, installation of 23,100 ft of new 6-in
and 8-in PVC pipe, and the installation of 19 new manholes.
[Prior to AECOM]

Franklin Avenue 5 Sewer Separation Project, The
Metropolitan District Commission, Hartford, CT. Project
manager for the construction of the separation of existing
storm drain and sanitary sewer systems; the rehabilitation
of 10,923 feet of existing 8-inch to 33-inch drain and sewer
pipe; the installation of 4,411 feet of new 10-inch to 30-inch
storm drain pipe and structures; the installation of 8,550
feet of new 8-inch to 24-inch sanitary sewer pipe and
structures; the relocation of 7,323 feet of existing 6-inch to
12-inch water mains; the exterior and interior disconnection
of 236 buildings; tree removal; and surface improvements.
Construction is complete. [Prior to AECOM]

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 209



      1 
   
   
 

 
John G. Goeddertz, PhD 
Senior Project Manager 
 
 
Education 
 
BS/ Civil Engineering/ 1984/ 
State University of New York at 
Buffalo 
  
MS/ Civil Engineering/ 1986/ 
State University of New York at 
Buffalo 
 
PhD/ Civil Engineering/ 1990/ 
State University of New York at 
Buffalo  
 
Years of Experience 
 
With AECOM: 14 
With Other Firms: 16 
 
Areas of Expertise 

Wastewater and Stormwater 
Process Evaluation 

Wastewater Treatment Facility 
Design and Construction 

Wastewater Treatment Facility 
Operation and Maintenance, 
Troubleshooting 

NPDES Permitting 

 

 Dr. Goeddertz is a wastewater and stormwater process evaluation and 
NPDES permitting expert.  He has worked extensively in the evaluation, 
concept design, detailed design, permitting, construction, operation, and 
troubleshooting of stormwater/wastewater management and treatment 
facilities for both municipal and industrial clients.  Has performed 
extensive bench and pilot testing work and developed numerous basis of 
design reports that led to detailed design and construction of biological 
and physical/chemical treatment facilities. 
 
MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT  SYSTEMS 
Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP Biological 
Treatment Evaluation, New York: Project Manager responsible to 
develop and test pilot-scale biological treatment systems to evaluate if a 
future conversion of the existing WWTP is an alternative.  The 
technologies tested included a membrane biological reactor (MBR) 
system and an attached growth moving bed biological reactor (MBBR) 
system.  Pilot testing was conducted over an 8-month period to 
evaluated multiple test conditions and evaluated the wastewater 
treatability using different biological systems. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP 
Sedimentation Basin and Scum Removal Upgrades, New York: 
Project Manager for the design of the capital improvement project to 
upgrade the WWTP primary treatment system and scum removal 
process.  The design includes multiple unit upgrades with major systems 
including: increased basin weir length with the addition of effluent finger 
weir troughs, chain and flight sludge scrapper units, and full upgrade of 
the scum removal system including the use of fine screen scum 
separation units. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP Effluent 
Disinfection Upgrades, New York: Serve as Project Manager for the 
design of the capital improvement project to upgrade the WWTP effluent 
disinfection system.  The design was developed to improve the WWTP 
control and monitoring of the WWTP effluent disinfection process using 
sodium hypochlorite.  This system presents multiple design 
considerations given the plants variability of chlorine demand from 
sulfide generation in their secondary treatment process.  This system is 
designed with a robust control and monitoring system to allow for 
consistent effluent disinfection.    

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board – WWTP Optimization, 
New York: Project Manager responsible to develop physical/chemical 
treatment system alternative evaluations to improve the performance of 
the existing WWTP.  Evaluations include: improvements to the effluent 
disinfection process; physical/chemical treatment optimization (i.e., 
treatment chemicals); and chemical use (i.e., oxidant) at the GAC filters.   

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 210



      2 
   
   
 

Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA), Secondary System 
Rehabilitation and Upgrades, Buffalo, NY: Provided engineering design 
services to replace the existing fine bubble diffuser aeration system with a 
more energy efficient aeration system. Rehabilitated the existing 
secondary treatment system including various valves and flow meters, the 
return activated sludge system, waste activated sludge system, and 
installation of stop logs in effluent channels and Chlorine Contact Tank. 

Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA), Anaerobic Digester 
Waste Stream Addition and Co-Digestion Facility Improvements, 
Buffalo, NY: Conducted a study at the BSA that investigates the Plant’s 
ability to accept high strength waste streams and food wastes into their 
anaerobic digester and optimize the management of all hauled waste 
materials including septic, oil and grease, leachate, and sludge. 

Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Evaluation of Tertiary Filtration 
System and Design of Related Upgrades, Amherst, NY:  Responsible 
for evaluation of the Town of Amherst tertiary filtration system.  Prepared 
detailed design of ancillary improvements including: HVAC renovation, 
slide gate installation, slide gate automation, clarifier modification, and 
refurbishment of intermediate lift station.   

Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Tertiary Filtration Upgrade 
Project, Amherst, NY:  Project Manager responsible for design and 
installation of cloth media filtration upgrade to existing traveling bridge 
filters.  Project was first of its kind in New York State and expanded the 
tertiary treatment capacity of the plant from 30 mgd to 72 mgd. 

Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Preparation of Solids Handling 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP), Amherst, NY:  Preparation of 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for the Town of Amherst solids 
handling facilities.  Included a detailed evaluation of solids processing 
methods and developed a number of recommendations to improve the 
plant’s solids processing capability.  The most significant of which were 
the recognition and optimization of the two-phase digestion process, and 
the development of a mechanical device to control digester foaming.  
These improvements enabled the facility to achieve organic loading rates 
in their digesters that were far in excess of prior loading rates.  By doing 
so, the Town eliminated landfilling of undigested sludge and saved 
significant amounts of money. 

Project Manager, Town of Amherst Scum System Improvements, 
Amherst, NY:  Evaluated and implemented improvements to the facility’s 
primary, secondary, and tertiary clarifiers scum removal systems (3 
separate systems), including replacement of existing inoperable 
pneumatic injectors with 3 duplex chopper pump centrifugal pump 
systems.  Design improvements included combining both primary clarifiers 
scum systems into one common system thereby eliminating the need for 
separate primary scum systems. Provided detailed design and 
construction phase services. 
Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Gate Actuator Replacement with 
Hydraulic Actuators, Amherst, NY:  Evaluated and implemented 
improvements to the facility’s influent pumping station (Building 1) 
isolation gates to switch from electric motor actuators to hydraulic cylinder 
based systems to eliminate having electrical components located in an 
area that routinely flooded.  The work included 9 separate actuators, of 
which 5 were vertical gates, and 4 were ¼ turn butterfly gates.  All 9 gates 
were powered from a common hydraulic power pack located in the dry 
well that was not subjected to flooding.  Provided detailed design and 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 211



      3 
   
   
 

construction phase services. 
Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Dewatering Polymer Make Up 
System Replacement, Amherst, NY:  Evaluated and implemented 
improvements to the facility’s dewatering polymer make-up and feed 
systems.  Work included a new bulk bag feeder/makeup system that 
eliminated the need for operators to handle numerous 50 pound bags and 
the resulting fugitive dust conditions.  Design improvements resulted in 
reduced polymer consumption as a result of improved makeup and aging; 
along with a reduced unit price for polymer in switching to the larger super 
sack units.  The system also included new polymer feed pumps with VFDs 
that were integrated into the facility’s existing centrifuge controls via the 
plant’s SCADA system.  Provided detailed design and construction phase 
services. 
Project Manager, USACOE, WWTP Conditions Assessment and 
Phosphorous Reduction Evaluation, Plattsburg, NY:  Performed an 
evaluation of the City of Plattsburg, New York WWTP to look at the 
feasibility of achieving phosphorous discharge reduction.  The WWTP 
discharges to Lake Champlain, which has a TMDL in effect for 
phosphorus.  The US Army Corps of Engineers tasked URS with 
evaluation of five options for achieving phosphorous reduction.  For each 
option, URS developed a capital and O&M cost estimate.  For all options, 
URS had to consider the condition of existing facilities, and where 
necessary URS incorporated facilities upgrades into the option cost. 

Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA), Anaerobic 
Digestion Facilities, Buffalo, NY:  Evaluate and implement $11 million 
worth of improvements to the BSA anaerobic digestion facilities.  The BSA 
has eight digesters, six primary and two secondary.  URS was responsible 
for analysis and design of high-rate conversion of four 100-foot diameter 
digesters.  Upgrade included new steel duo-deck floating covers, pumped 
mixing system, improved heating system, and SCADA controlled feed and 
withdrawal system.  Responsible for troubleshooting and developing 
recommendations for improved operation of all primary digesters. 

Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority Centrifuge Nos. 1 and 2 
Installation, Buffalo, NY:  URS prepared detailed design documents for 
the installation of new centrifuges No. 1 and 2 at the BSA’s WWTP.  In 
addition to detailed design, URS performed construction inspection and 
construction administration services throughout construction.  System 
included screw conveyors to direct sludge to one of two belt lines feeding 
three incinerators and new nuclear weigh scales on the two conveyor 
belts.  The centrifuge controls were integrated into the existing SCADA 
system.  Provided services throughout design, bid, and construction 
phases. 

Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority Incinerator Ash Handling 
System Evaluation Design, and Construction, Buffalo, NY:  URS 
evaluated the existing pneumatic ash conveyance system that transports 
ash from the facility subbasement to the top of their two ash silos (100 
vertical feet), along with the ash load out system that takes ash from the 
silos, mixes it with water to reduce dusting, and deposits it into dump 
trucks which transport the material to landfill.  URS evaluated several 
options and elected to upgrade the existing system.  Design documents 
were prepared and URS provided construction inspection and 
management services during construction. 

Project Manager, Evaluation of Effects of Thiourea Discharges on 
BSA WWTP, Buffalo Sewer Authority, Buffalo, NY: A proposed 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 212



      4 
   
   
 

industrial discharger that manufactures photovoltaic panels approached 
the BSA about obtaining an indirect discharge permit for discharge of their 
industrial wastewater.  AECOM was tasked with reviewing the facility’s 
baseline monitoring report and identifying any substances of concern.  
AECOM was also tasked with performing a detailed evaluation of the 
potential effects of thiourea on the BSA WWTP.  A literature and 
regulatory review was performed along with performing an extensive 
search to identify and evaluate all other direct or indirect discharge 
permits that include thiourea.  Bench scale laboratory testing was 
performed to determine the impact of thiourea on existing BSA WWTP 
operations including bio uptake, nitrification, anaerobic digestion, and 
chlorination.  Based upon the literature review, discharge permit search, 
and the laboratory results; recommendations for thiourea limitations were 
developed.  The report is the most comprehensive compilation of 
information regarding the impact of thiourea discharges on a biological 
wastewater treatment plant.  

Project Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and 
Planning, East Aurora WWTP Energy Efficiency Study, East Aurora, 
NY:   Performed energy efficiency study of ECSD No. 8 East Aurora 
WWTP.  The evaluation considered motor loads greater than 5 Hp, HVAC 
equipment, water heaters, and lighting.  The study resulted in the 
recommendation to perform approximately $30,000 worth of capital 
upgrades that will result in energy savings of approximately $7,000 per 
year, proving a 4 year payback period.  The work was funded by ECSD 
No. 8 and NYSERDA. 

Project Engineer, Erie County Department of Environment and 
Planning, East Aurora Sewage Treatment Plant, East Aurora, NY:  
Evaluated the East Aurora Sewage Treatment Plant to determine process 
upgrades necessary to meet 20-year service life.  Evaluated several 
options to eliminate the WWTP in favor of directing the sewage to a 
regional treatment facility. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Capital Improvements Program Management, Niagara Falls, 
NY:  Served as program manager for implementation $7 million worth of 
capital upgrades to the Niagara Falls WWTP.  Work included project 
scoping and preparation of engineering RFPs for bidding by consulting 
firms.  Important aspect was preparation of accurate cost estimates that 
would determine how much work could be performed and stay within the 
allotted budget.  URS reviewed engineering proposals and recommended 
award.  During design URS was responsible for review of project 
deliverables. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, WWTP Mercury 
Reduction Evaluation, Niagara Falls, NY:  Performed a study of the 
NFWB WWTP that included sampling and analysis for mercury at various 
locations in the treatment process; that was then followed by a detailed 
process evaluation.  A work plan was developed and executed with 13 
locations being sampled for low and/or high level mercury concentrations 
over the course of two days, on two separate occasions (warm weather 
event/ cold weather event).  Speciation was also considered (total, 
dissolved, methyl Hg) at each location.  The results along with a process 
analysis determined that mercury is present predominately in the WWTP’s 
solids and was not present in a dissolved or methyl Hg state.  Process 
evaluation provided recommendations for process management that will 
minimize the concentration of mercury present in the outfall by improving 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 213



      5 
   
   
 

solids management throughout the WWTP. 
Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, WWTP Turbidity 
Evaluation, Niagara Falls, NY:  The NFWB was required to evaluate the 
cause of effluent turbidity in the lower Niagara River adjacent to the 
plant’s outfall.  Performed a study of the NFWB WWTP to sample and 
analyze for various parameters at various locations in the treatment 
process to enable a detailed process evaluation to be performed.  A work 
plan was developed and executed with 13 locations being sampled for a 
number of parameters including turbidity over the course of three events 
each lasting one week, on three separate occasions (warm weather 
event, medium temperature event, and cold weather event).  The results 
along with a process analysis determined that turbidity was caused by 
chlorination of sulfide that was being generated in the WWTP processes.  
A number of alternatives were developed that would reduce or eliminate 
the resulting turbidity.  Costs for each alternative were developed.  A 
detailed report was prepared and submitted to the NYSDEC and USEPA. 

Project Manager, North Chautauqua Lake Sewer District WWTP 
Upgrades, Mayville, NY:  Evaluated the existing condition of the NCLSD 
WWTP and prepared an engineering report for recommended capital 
improvements.  After acceptance of the Engineering Report by the 
NYSDEC, URS was tasked with preparing the detailed design and 
managing the bidding process.  The work consisted of replacing the 
facilities RBCs with new RBCs and replacement of the influent screw 
pumps and controls.  During construction URS provided resident 
inspection and construction administration services.  The project was 
completed under budget.  As a follow-on project URS provided complete 
engineering services to assist the NCLSD with replacement of the roof on 
the administration building.  Work included asbestos survey, design, 
bidding, and construction inspection and administration. 

Project Manager, North Chautauqua Lake Sewer District, 
Phosphorous Reduction Engineering Evaluation, Mayville, NY:  In 
response to the issuance of a phosphorous total maximum daily load 
TMDL) the NCLSD was tasked with evaluating and implementing WWTP 
upgrades that would reduce their phosphorous loading to Chautauqua 
Lake by approximately 80%.  Interim removal limits were also established 
at 1 mg/l.  AECOM assisted with implementing the interim removal system 
which consisted of ferric chloride addition, and with evaluating options to 
meet the long term phosphorous removal requirement of approximately 
0.3 mg/l effluent limitation.  Multi-point chemical addition with filtration was 
ultimately selected as the required technology to meet the long term 
phosphorous mass discharge limitation.  Grant applications were 
prepared and submitted to obtain NYSEFC funding for the project. 

Project Manager, Town of Chautauqua, Chautauqua Heights Sewer 
District Phosphorous Reduction Engineering Evaluation, Town of 
Chautauqua, NY:  In response to the issuance of a phosphorous total 
maximum daily load TMDL) the Town of Chautauqua Chautauqua Heights 
Sewer District (CHSD) was tasked with evaluating and implementing 
WWTP upgrades that would reduce their phosphorous loading to 
Chautauqua Lake by approximately 80%.  Interim removal limits were also 
established at 1 mg/l.  AECOM evaluated compliance options and 
determined that significant upgrades to the small plant would be required 
in order to meet the approximately 0.3 mg/l effluent limitation.  
Alternatively, options to eliminate the WWTP and instead pump the plant’s 
influent wastewater to the NCLSD WWTP in Mayville were also 
considered.  This option was evaluated as a stand-alone option or 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 214



      6 
   
   
 

implemented in conjunction with an overall “sewer the lake” alternative 
that would provide sewer service around the entire Chautauqua Lake. 
Ultimately the option to close the plant and instead convert it into a 
pumping station that would pump the wastewater to the NCLSD was 
selected.  Grant applications were prepared and submitted to the 
NYSEFC. 

Project Manager, SPDES Permit Assistance, City of Salamanca 
Board of Public Utilities, Salamanca, NY:  Assisted with the review and 
comment of draft SPDES permit including review of stringent total residual 
chlorine discharge limitations. 

Technical Lead, City of Salamanca Board of Public Utilities, 
Treatment Plant Upgrades, Salamanca, NY:  Evaluated effect of 
proposed casino facilities on existing treatment plant and recommended 
upgrades to treatment plant to enable processing of casino flows and 
loadings.  Designed and installed upgrades to aeration facilities (fine 
bubble diffused air with DO control) and solids handling facilities 
(thickening, dewatering, and pumping).  Novel thickening process was 
implemented to thicken aerobic digester contents so that additional 
thickener volume was not necessary. 

 
INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT AND EVALUATION 
Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Whole Effluent 
Toxicity Identification and Reduction Evaluation, Syracuse, NY:  In 
response to a failed whole effluent toxicity test, the facility was tasked by 
the NYSDEC with performing a Toxicity Identification Evaluation / Toxicity 
Reduction Evaluation study.  AECOM was contracted to perform the work 
and it was determined that groundwater effluent from the facility’s 
groundwater treatment system was the cause of the toxicity, solely due to 
its elevated mineral content.  Extensive testing and analysis of the various 
sources of flow were conducted to be able to make this determination.  
Once the source was known AECOM evaluated a number of alternatives 
to eliminate the toxicity.  Options ranged from discharging the water 
elsewhere (sanitary sewer, different receiving water, deep well injection), 
to treatment to remove mineral content (reverse osmosis).  At this time 
options are still being evaluated. 
Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Oil and Grease 
Discharge Violation Elimination, Syracuse, NY:  In response to 
repeated oil and grease discharge violations (150 mg/l) with the facility’s 
sanitary sewer discharges, AECOM was contracted to evaluate the root 
cause and to assist with implementing a solution.  AECOM performed a 
detailed site visit to look at the outfall locations and to understand the 
nature of the wastewater and the oil and grease violations.  Existing 
sample collection methods were observed.  AECOM determined a 
number of contributing factors including: 

• Overly restrictive discharge permit, 
• Excessive sampling requirements in the facility discharge permit, 
• Sampling methods that resulted in sediment and particulate 

entrainment that biased sample results, 

It was suggested that a meeting be held with the permitting authority 
during which modifications to the facility’s permit would be requested that 
should eliminate future violations.  The permitting authority was agreeable 
and changes were made to their permit that eliminated any further 
discharge violations.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 215



      7 
   
   
 

Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, SPDES Permit 
Evaluation and Application Preparation to Simplify Discharge Permit 
and Reduce Onerous Requirements, Rochester, NY:  AECOM was 
contracted to review the facility’s SPDES permit and to assist with 
preparing an application for renewal.  During the process 5 years of data 
was reviewed and it was determined that the facility’s permit was overly 
onerous and results in excessive samples having to be collected and 
analyzed, the majority of which returned “non-detect” analytical results.  A 
presentation was prepared that was presented to the NYSDEC regional 
office. At the same time the permit renewal application along with a list of 
requested changes was submitted to the NYSDEC.  The information was 
received favorably, and the facility is awaiting their SPDES permit renewal 
which is expected to contain a significantly reduced monitoring program. 

Project Manager, Bristol Myers Squibb, Phosphorous Reduction 
Evaluation, Syracuse, NY:  URS was tasked with evaluating options for 
modifying an existing industrial wastewater treatment plant discharging to 
a regional POTW. Over time the influent wastewater to the plant has 
changed and is considerably weaker than it used to be.  As a result the 
current biological wastewater treatment plant was oversized relative to its 
needs, which consisted primarily of phosphorous removal.  A number of 
alternatives were identified and bench scale testing was performed.  
Ultimately phosphorous precipitation with DAF flotation of the solids was 
recommended.  The DAF separation process was an attempt to 
repurpose an existing treatment process.  Conceptual cost estimates were 
developed for each option considered. 

Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Water Use Reduction 
Evaluation, Owego, NY:  Participated in three day water Kaizen to 
review plant water usage and to make recommendations for water use 
reduction.  Performed review of 5 years of water use records along with 
analysis of water usage and its cost.  Ultimately determined that water 
billing structure was flat and therefore there was no financial incentive to 
reduce water use.  Beside the rate determination, a number of water use 
reduction measures were identified including elimination of once-through 
cooling water, implementation of low flow faucets, and reuse of treated 
groundwater for utility purposes. 

Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Evaluation of 
Combined Groundwater and OCPSF Process Wastewater, Ringwood 
IL: Responsible for evaluation of combining remediation groundwater and 
OCPSF process wastewater to meet ammonia and OCPSF limits.  Project 
started with a paper study to evaluate treatment alternatives.  Alternatives 
included biological oxidation, chemical oxidation, and air stripping in 
various combinations.  Aerobic biological treatment (nitrification) was 
selected based upon technical and economic feasibility, and upon source 
sampling that showed no toxic or inhibitory compounds were present in 
the groundwater or process wastewater.  Treatability testing was then 
conducted to compare suspended growth to fixed film nitrification 
systems.  All work was run at 50oF, which is the expected groundwater 
and combined process wastewater temperature.  Based upon the 
treatability testing and detailed economic evaluations, membrane 
bioreactor technology was selected for implementation.  Supplemental 
heat was also provided. 

Project Manager, Allied Waste, Compliance with CWT PSES, Niagara 
Falls, NY:  Project to evaluate compliance strategies for Centralized 
Waste Treatment (CWT) industry to determine optimal method of 
complying with CWT PSES categorical standards.  The work included 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 216



      8 
   
   
 

bench testing of various wastewaters for metals removal. 

Project Manager, Wyeth-Ayerst, Wastewater Study for a 
Manufacturer of Injectable Pharmaceuticals, Cherry Hill, NJ:  A 
wastewater study for a manufacturer of injectable pharmaceuticals to 
meet pretreatment requirements and address pretreatment discharge 
violations.  The study identified and characterized all wastewater sources 
including the development of a tree diagram and a water and pollutant 
mass balance.  Near source data was compared to end of pipe data also 
collected during the study.  Primary flow monitoring structures were 
custom fabricated and installed at end-of-pipe locations in adverse 
conditions enabling the collection of flow proportional samples for the first 
time at the facility.  The study recommended near source pollution 
prevention measures, near source treatment, and end-of pipe treatment of 
the combined facility discharge to meet current and likely future 
categorical discharge limits.  The study results were implemented by the 
facility. 

Project Engineer, Wyeth-Ayerst, Wastewater Characterization and 
Evaluation Study, West Chester, PA:  A wastewater characterization 
and evaluation study for a pharmaceutical penicillin compounding facility.  
Wastewaters contained elevated solvent concentrations.  Responsible for 
design and implementation of the near source (10 locations) and end-of-
pipe wastewater flow and characterization study (4 locations).  Assisted in 
the development of alternative concept designs for meeting local 
pretreatment standards and likely future categorical discharge limits. 

Task Manager, Bristol Myers Squibb, Anaerobic Treatability Studies, 
Syracuse, NY:  Responsible for experimental design, construction, setup, 
initiation, and technical direction of anaerobic treatability studies for the 
treatment of penicillin manufacturing wastewater.  Bench scale studies 
included serum bottle studies and fill and draw reactors for the treatment 
of solvent laden wastewaters, sulfate rich wastewaters, and mycelial 
solids waste streams.  Assisted in the development and conduct of 
aerobic digestion studies, batch nitrification inhibition studies, and waste 
activated sludge conditioning studies for treatment of these same 
pharmaceutical wastewaters.  Aerobic biological treatment was 
recommended as it was determined that anaerobic treatment was subject 
to upset due to toxic/inhibitory effects of solvents and sulfide.  Assisted in 
the preparation of conceptual design reports that included a technical and 
economic feasibility study of potential management/ treatment 
alternatives, and the development of process trains that would provide 
adequate treatment to meet both current and future categorical discharge 
limitations.  

Task Manager, Wyeth-Ayerst, Characterization of OCPSF Categorical 
Wastewater and Stormwater, Various Locations (NY, NJ, & PA):  
Responsible for characterization of OCPSF categorical wastewater and 
stormwater.  Data was used in support of SPDES / NJPDES Direct 
Discharge Permits. 

Task Manager, Wyeth-Ayerst, NPDES Compliance - Two 
Pharmaceutical Facilities, NY: Responsible for evaluating two 
pharmaceutical facilities for compliance with 1999 categorical standards.  
Work included outfall identification, category classifications, sample 
collection, preparation of baseline monitoring report, and 
recommendations to maintain compliance. 

Project Manager, GE Transportation, WWTP Upgrades, Erie PA:  URS 
performed numerous assignments to assist the GE Erie facility upgrade its 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 217



      9 
   
   
 

physical/chemical wastewater treatment plant.  The plant consists of 
equalization and chemical addition/precipitation followed by clarification.  
Sludge is filter pressed and disposed of off-site.  The principal constituent 
being removed is phosphorous.  Upgrades consisted of five large above 
ground wastewater tanks, interconnecting piping, new sludge storage and 
thickening facilities, and miscellaneous plant upgrades (sump pump 
replacement, effluent pump replacement, instrumentation and control 
upgrades, O&M Manual preparation.  URS’ novel approach to reusing 
existing facilities whenever possible resulted in savings approaching $10 
million over a plan put forth by others. 

Project Manager, Dekas Cranberries, Evaluation of Proposals for 
Design-Build-Operate WWTP at Cranberry Processing Facility, 
Carver, MA:  URS was tasked with evaluating competing design-build-
operate proposals for a new wastewater treatment plant at a cranberry 
processing facility in Carver, Massachusetts.  The plant’s wastewater is a 
very high strength stream that is readily biodegradable.  The proposers 
provided either sequenced anaerobic/aerobic treatment or all aerobic 
treatment.  Ultimately a treatment system consisting of an upflow 
anaerobic sludge blanket reactor followed by an aerobic membrane 
bioreactor was selected.  The MBR effluent was then processed through a 
reverse osmosis unit that allowed the effluent to be reused in the for 
cooling water.  The reuse solution will help to alleviate water consumption 
at the plant , where well water must be heavily treated before it can be 
used. 

Project Manager, Goldman Titanium, Wastewater Evaluation and 
Compliance Evaluation, Buffalo, NY:  URS evaluated process 
wastewater discharges from a titanium processing facility for compliance 
with the facility’s discharge permit, local sewer use ordinance, and 
categorical discharge standards (metal finishing).  As part of the 
evaluation process URS collected several wastewater samples and 
analyzed them for constituents of concern.  URS provided 
recommendations for achieving compliance.  A revised discharge permit 
application was submitted which resulted in receiving favorable discharge 
limitations for titanium. 

Project Manager, Rohm & Haas, Membrane Bioreactor Wastewater 
System, Ringwood, IL:  Responsible for technology selection, 
preliminary design, and procurement specification preparation of a 
membrane bioreactor addition to an existing industrial wastewater 
activated sludge plant that was upgraded to treat 200 gpm of remediation 
groundwater.  Primary chemical contaminant was ammonia.   System 
included alkalinity addition and pH control.  

Project Manager, Ravenswood Aluminum, Aluminum Manufacturing 
Facility Ultrafiltration Wastewater System, Ravenswood, WV:  
Responsible for design of a $4 million ultrafiltration wastewater system for 
a primary aluminum facility.  The ultrafiltration system was necessary for 
the treatment of soluble oils from a hot rolling mill.  The design 
incorporated a tubular and a rotary ultrafiltration system that is capable of 
taking wastewater containing 1/2 percent soluble oil and creating 100% 
pure waste oil suitable for energy recovery. 

Task Manager, Whitehall Robbins, Wastewater Treatment System, 
Richmond, VA:  Responsible for evaluation of unique wastewater 
containing extensive amounts of oily/waxy substances.  Treatability 
testing was conducted with wastewater and with the facility’s product line 
to determine melt points, and separability.  Detailed design of oily/waxy 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 218



     
 10 

   
   
 

wastewater treatment system was provided.  The design utilized a heated 
wet well followed by a heated oil/water separator to separate petrolatum, 
wax, and cocoa butter from process wastewater to avoid sewer plugging 
and potential violations of the sewer use ordinance.  Underground sewers 
were replaced with insulated ductile iron pipe and upstream steam 
addition was provided to prevent solidification of materials prior to the wet 
well. 

Project Manager, Frito Lay, Odor Control Evaluation and Design, 
Topeka, KS:  Evaluation and design of an odor control system utilizing a 
sodium hydroxide/sodium hypochlorite three stage packed scrubber 
system.  The system was used to treat 40,000 scfm of off gasses from a 
roughing trickling filter.  In order to capture all emissions, an aluminum 
geodesic dome was installed atop the trickling filter.  The system 
successfully eliminated nuisance odors and eliminated neighborhood 
complaints. 

Task Manager, ALCOA Aluminum, Wastewater Studies, , Massena, 
NY: Conducted treatability studies on inactive hazardous waste lagoon 
wastewater and process coolant for removal of emulsified oils, solids, and 
PCBs at a primary metal manufacturer.  Bench scale studies examined 
emulsion breaking (chemical and thermal), filtration, and activated carbon 
absorption.  The studies resulted in the design and construction of full-
scale physical/ chemical treatment system. 

REMEDIATION SITE GROUNDWATER TREATMENT  
Task Manager, Cherry Farm / River Road PRP Site, Tonawanda, NY: 
Remediation of landfill site including design of CERCLA site groundwater 
physical/chemical treatment system.  The design incorporated emulsion 
breaking, chemical addition, oil separation, activated carbon adsorption, 
equalization, and pH adjustment; primarily for PCB removal.  Work also 
included startup, operation and maintenance (5 years), and 
troubleshooting.  Responsible for achieving discharge permit compliance. 

Task Manager, Honeywell, Groundwater Treatment System, Sidney, 
NY:  Responsible for detailed design of a 100-gpm groundwater pump 
and treat system that includes: emulsion breaking, oil skimming, iron 
removal, filtration, air stripping, secondary filtration, and granular activated 
carbon adsorption.  The design was conducted under a tight time 
schedule to meet the requirements of an order-on-consent.  Unique 
permitting requirements were necessary, as the facility was located in the 
New York City drinking water watershed. 

Project Manager, Honeywell, Metals Removal at Former Wood 
Treating Facility, East Park, GA:  Responsible for design of a metals 
removal process that was integrated into an existing dissolved organics 
treatment system at a wood treating facility.  Treatment for the 75 GPM 
flow included oil removal (LNAPL/DNAPL), equalization, pH adjustment, 
mixing, flocculation, sedimentation, and pH adjustment.  The design of the 
system enabled uninterrupted operation of the existing dissolved organics 
removal system throughout construction. 

Project Manager, Honeywell, 500-GPM Pump and Treat System, 
Moundsville, WV:  Design of a 500-gpm pump and treat system for 
chlorinated VOCs.  System utilizes an air stripper, catalytic oxidizer, and 
caustic scrubber.  A unique clean-in-place system was designed to enable 
descaling of the air stripper without having to manually clean the unit.  A 
separate treatment system was constructed for treatment and re-use of 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 219



     
 11 

   
   
 

the acidic wash water. 

 
MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS 
Project Engineer, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA) Comprehensive 
Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Long Term Control Plan, Buffalo, 
NY:  Responsible for QA/QC, including review of cost estimates for short-
term, intermediate-term, and long-term implementation of the Long Term 
Control Plan (LTCP).  The BSA was required to prepare and implement 
the LTCP for discharges from their CSO as part of their treatment plant 
discharge conditions. 

Technical Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and 
Planning, Village of Blasdell Sewer Service Consolidation, Blasdell, 
NY:  Included the concept and detailed design for the consolidation of the 
Blasdell Wastewater Treatment Facility (4-mgd average, 10-mgd peak) 
into the regional Southtowns Treatment Facility (18-mgd average, 62-mgd 
peak).  Project includes new interceptor sewer, elimination of seven pump 
stations, and upgrade of one wet weather pump station to direct wet 
weather flows to existing ORF. 

Project Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and 
Planning, Village of Hamburg Sewer Rehabilitation Design and Pump 
Station Elimination Evaluation, Hamburg, NY:  Developed engineer’s 
report and performed detailed design for sewer system rehabilitation 
including manhole rehabilitation.   Work included lining and spot repairs, 
along with manhole grouting, coating, and chimney sealing.  Evaluated 
options for elimination of five pumping stations via the use of gravity 
sewers. 

Project Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and 
Planning, Town of Lancaster Sewer Evaluation, Lancaster, NY:  
Performed flow monitoring, television inspection, and smoke testing to 
evaluate infiltration and inflow and to recommend methods to minimize 
infiltration and inflow.  Prepared engineer’s report of findings. 

Project Engineer, Erie County Department of Environment and 
Planning, Sweetland Road Pump Station Evaluation, Hamburg, NY:  
Responsible for determining why VFDs at pump station could not run at 
100 percent speed without tripping due to electrical fault.  Determined 
several contributing factors including undersized transformers and 
improperly wired electric meter.  Ultimately the age and design of the 
VFDs was determined to be the source of harmonics that caused the drive 
to trip.  Recommendations for drive replacement were made. 

Project Engineer, Erie County Department of Environment and 
Planning, Wilmuth Pump Station Evaluation, Lackawanna, NY:  
Responsible for evaluation of pump station to determine reason for pump 
shearing its shaft whenever two pumps were run at the same time.  
Contributing factors were determined to be non-optimal piping design, 
however the principal reason was determined to be a poorly designed 
pump impeller and shaft that caused excessive stress in the pump shaft 
ultimately leading to shaft shearing.  Recommendations for wet end 
upgrade were made. 

Project Engineer, New York Power Authority, Falls Street Tunnel 
Flow Monitoring Program Design and Implementation, Niagara Falls, 
NY:  Responsible for design and installation of flow monitoring system 
within the Falls Street Tunnel.  Purpose of the project was to determine 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 220



     
 12 

   
   
 

the amount of dry weather infiltration in a 1,000-foot long section of rock 
tunnel located 45 feet below ground.  A number of obstacles were 
overcome to successfully carry out the month long flow monitoring study 
under difficult conditions. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Falls Street Tunnel 
Infiltration Elimination Project, Niagara Falls, NY:  URS prepared a 
feasibility study to look at various options for elimination of a 6 mgd 
infiltration problem into the Falls Street Tunnel.  The FST is a rock tunnel 
that crosses atop the New York Power Authority’s power conduits.  Water 
from the conduits leaks out and infiltrates the rock tunnel amounting to 
approximately 20% of the total daily flow to the Niagara Falls WWTP.  
Examined options including: grouting, lining, and elimination of the tunnel.  
In the end an alternative to eliminate the tunnel was selected because it 
had the potential to save approximately $12 million dollars from the 
budgeted cost of $19 million.  URS was subsequently tasked with 
preparing the detailed design for the project.  URS prepared plans and 
specifications, assisted in the bid process, and performed resident 
inspection and construction administration services for the $7 million 
project.   

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Falls Street Tunnel 
Contract 67A, Niagara Falls, NY:  Following the Falls Street Tunnel 
elimination project, once the tunnel was flooded and groundwater levels 
rose by approximately 20 feet, leaks were detected in three other 
locations.  For two of the locations a fast track design of repairs was 
performed.  Repairs included bulkhead construction and connection 
elimination.  The project was bid out and work was completed within a 
matter of months.  Services included construction phase management 
and daily inspection. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Iroquois Street Sewer 
Evaluation and Lining, Niagara Falls, NY:  The third and final leakage 
point that was discovered following flooding of the Falls Street Tunnel was 
the Iroquois Street sewer/tunnel.  Evaluated and designed improvements 
to a 1917 vintage 54-inch diameter segmented block sewer / tunnel 
system that was determined to be leaking groundwater infiltration at a rate 
of 5 mgd or more.  Confined space inspections were performed to 
determine that there were serious structural problems in addition to the 
groundwater infiltration.  Alternatives for repair, replacement, and relining 
were considered and option cost estimates were developed.  Due to the 
industrial nature of the surrounding land and interfering utilities, a slip 
lining approach for sewer rehabilitation was selected to minimize 
excavation.  Detailed design was prepared and bid and construction 
phase services were provided.  A number of difficult construction 
conditions were managed and the project was successfully completed 
resulting in an estimated 6 mgd of groundwater infiltration being removed 
from the sewer.  All told , the three projects related to the Falls Street 
Tunnel were performed for much less than the allocated $19 million, 
allowing the excess funds to be used on other capital improvements. 
Task Manager, City of Niagara Falls, LaSalle and Frontier area 
Sanitary Sewer System, Niagara Falls, NY:  Responsible for design and 
installation of flow metering program for the City of Niagara Falls’ LaSalle 
and Frontier area Sanitary Sewer System.  Project involved the 
specification, installation, and monitoring of ten area/velocity flow meters.  
The data was critical to the two overall evaluations of the two sanitary 
sewer systems. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 221



     
 13 

   
   
 

Project Engineer, Niagara Falls Water Board, Gorge Pumping Station 
Reliability Analysis, Niagara Falls, NY:  Responsible for evaluating the 
reliability of the Gorge Pump Station to minimize or eliminate the 
occurrence of dry weather sanitary sewer overflows.  Work included 
detailed mechanical evaluation of pump condition, hydraulic evaluation, 
vibration analysis, power analysis, VFD analysis, options evaluation, and 
list of recommendations.  Report was submitted to NYSDEC for approval 
as satisfaction of Consent Order requirement.  The NFWB implemented 
the report recommendations after it was accepted by the NYSDEC. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station Inlet Piping 
Upgrade, Niagara Falls, NY:  Responsible for design and construction of 
lift station inlet piping upgrade at Lift Station #6 (LS-6) for City of Niagara 
Falls.  Work included preliminary design, detailed design, cost estimating, 
and construction management.  Project involved the repair of a collapsed 
20” sewer main, and replacement of the inlet pipe to LS-6 with a larger 
pipe.  Work was conducted in difficult soil conditions in close proximity to 
existing structures. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, LaSalle SSO Abatement 
Program (2014 work), Niagara Falls, NY: As a requirement for the 
Niagara Falls Water Board’s sanitary sewer overflow control plan, the 
NFWB was obligated to perform a number of sanitary sewer pipe and 
manhole repairs to minimize infiltration of groundwater and to repair 
collapsed pipes.  Prepared detailed design plans and specifications for the 
repair of  

• 12 Spot sewer repairs (spot excavation), 
• 8 sewer segments lined from manhole to manhole, 
• 110 manhole repairs including cleaning, lining, frame repairs, and 

channel and bench repairs. 

Following detailed design URS managed the bid and construction phases 
including providing onsite construction inspection services.  All work 
included pre- and post-video inspection to document the conditions and 
the repairs. 

Project Manager Niagara Falls Water Board LaSalle SSO Abatement 
Year 9 & 10 Sewer Repairs (2017 work)  As a follow on to the 2014 
sewer work, AECOM was tasked with implementing the next required 
piece of work associated with the Niagara Falls Water Board’s sanitary 
sewer overflow control plan.  The work included sanitary sewer pipe 
repairs at 35 separate locations to minimize infiltration of groundwater and 
to repair collapsed pipes.  Prepared detailed design plans and 
specifications for the repair of  

• 28  Spot sewer repairs (spot excavation), 
• 7 cured in place and in-situ sewer repairs (spot repairs). 

Following detailed design URS managed the bid and construction phases 
including providing onsite construction inspection services. 

 
Task Manager, City of Niagara Falls, Municipal CSO Outfall 
Improvement, Niagara Falls, NY: Responsible for developing cost 
estimates for large municipal CSO outfalls improvement program.  Cost 
estimates were used to prioritize outfall improvements and to formulate 
capital improvement scheduling.  Unique aspect of the project was that 
the outfalls were located in the Niagara River gorge and access for repairs 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 222



     
 14 

   
   
 

was extremely difficult. 

Task Manager, Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Union 
Ship Canal Industrial Park Sewer System Design, Buffalo, NY:  
Prepared detailed design of sanitary sewer collection system at the Union 
Ship Canal Redevelopment Project. 

GENERAL CIVIL ENGINEERING 
Project Manager, Sheridan Park Golf Course, Town of Tonawanda, 
NY:  Project Manager responsible for permitting, design and construction 
oversight of stream bank stabilization project along Two Mile Creek 
through the Sheridan Park golf course.  Project included extensive 
permitting and regulatory coordination.  Project ultimately was constructed 
during the off-season with minimal disruption to the course.  
Improvements included: pre-engineered pedestrian bridges, earthen bank 
stabilization, hard stabilization with stackable concrete blocks and 
sediment excavation and disposal. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Pump Station Roof 
Replacement, Niagara Falls, NY:  URS performed an asbestos survey 
followed by the detailed design of a new roofing system at the NFWB 
Gorge Pumping Station and LS-4.  URS performed detailed design, bid 
phase services, and resident inspection on a part time basis during 
construction, 

Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Compost Facility Pavement 
Failure Evaluation, Amherst, NY: Responsible for evaluation of 
pavement failure at the Town of Amherst compost facility along with 
evaluation of expansion options.  Detailed value-engineered cost 
estimates for the compost facility expansion were developed.  Value 
engineering determined improved means of providing sub-surface and 
surface drainage, both of which were improperly engineered in the original 
facility construction. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Masonry and Building 
Envelope Repairs, Niagara Falls, NY  During the course of managing 
the roof repair project at the Niagara Falls Water Board WWTP, a number 
of deficiencies were identified in the building exterior envelope including 
concrete repairs, masonry repairs, and window/opening penetration 
repairs.  A prioritization scheme was developed to address the most 
pressing needs.  Work included: structural concrete repairs, brick masonry 
repairs and reconstruction, lintel replacement, flashing replacement, and 
expansion joint repairs.  Detailed plans and specifications were developed 
and the project bid phase was managed by URS.  Construction 
management and construction inspection services were provided. 

Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Rate Consultant/ 
Consulting Engineer 2010 – 2016, Niagara Falls, NY  URS/AECOM 
serve as the NFWB’s rate consultant/consulting engineer which requires 
the engineer and the rate consultant to prepare an annual report that is a 
requirement of the bond holders.  The Continuing Disclosure Report 
documents the physical and financial health of the Niagara Falls Water 
Authority and the NFWB.  In years when the NFWB solicits bonds, instead 
of a CDR the RC/CE prepares a Feasibility Report for the Issuance of 
Bonds.  AECOM also assists with evaluating the NFWB’s capital 
improvement plan and assesses whether rates are adequate to maintain 
the level of service required.  The project also included a miscellaneous 
engineering services task that has been utilized by the NFWB for 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 223



     
 15 

   
   
 

emergency work, asbestos surveys, and other services that may arise 
during the year. 

Project Manager, Rochester Harbor Algae Mitigation Project, 
Rochester, NY:  Project manager for a US Army Corps of Engineers 
evaluation project to determine the feasibility of pumping algae off the 
beach at Ontario Beach in Rochester, New York.  The pumped algae was 
discharged to a submerged outfall in the adjacent Genesee River.  The 
goal of the project was to determine a cost effective means of mitigating 
nuisance algal blooms that necessitated lengthy beach closings.  The 
project demonstrated that complete beach cleanup could be performed in 
a matter of days rather than a several week period.  Quick removal of the 
material was critical to preventing it from accumulating to the point that it 
begins to rot and becomes odorous.  Based upon the success of the full 
scale evaluation project a design was developed to permanently 
implement the solution including a submerged diffusor pipe located in the 
Genesee River.  The project was successfully constructed and is used by 
Monroe County when algae outbreaks occur. 

Task Manager, New York Power Authority, Relicensing Studies and 
Cost Estimate Preparation, Lewiston, NY:  Responsible for several 
studies developed in support of the Niagara Power Project Relicensing 
Efforts including: Feasibility of Providing Water/Wastewater Services to 
Tuscarora Nation, Feasibility of Providing Aquaculture Systems to 
Tuscarora Nation, Impact of NYPA Conduits on Falls Street Tunnel, and 
Impact of NYPA Conduits on Regional Groundwater Flow.  Prepared 
engineering studies and evaluations, calculations, reports, and cost 
estimates for implementation of possible relicensing efforts. 

Task Manager, Allied Signal, Sediment Pilot Program, Buffalo, NY:  
Responsible for development and implementation of a sediment pilot 
program to determine suitable methods of sediment excavation, 
dewatering, and stabilization.  The project included the excavation, 
removal, dewatering and stabilization of 1,000 cy of contaminated 
sediment.  Optimal method was determined to be mixing sediment with 
existing on-site fill material.  Compaction of the mixed material was tested 
and determined to be suitable for placement in the on-site landfill that was 
being capped.   

 
STORMWATER PERMITTING AND DESIGN 
Project Engineer, Greyhound Lines, Inc. Evaluation of Stormwater 
Runoff at a Major Transportation Facility, Chicago, IL:  Responsible 
for evaluation of stormwater runoff at a major bus maintenance facility.  
Illicit sources were identified and relocated to discharge to the sanitary 
sewer.  Detailed design was performed and constructed for new 
underground storm sewers, a 25,000-gallon underground oil/water 
separator, and a new direct discharge stormwater outfall to the North 
Branch Chicago River. 

Project Manager, Southdown, Inc., Underground Limestone Mine, 
Evaluation of Surface Runoff, Deckers Creek, WV:  Responsible for 
evaluation of surface runoff at an underground limestone mine in West 
Virginia.  Numerous state and federal deficiencies were identified in the 
initial evaluation centering on the need to divert upgradient stream flow 
around the disturbed area, and the lack of sufficient retention ponds for 
sediment control.  Complicating the project was steep local topography.  A 
feasibility study of stormwater alternatives was performed.  A detailed 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 224



     
 16 

   
   
 

design of storm sewer culverts, drainage ditches, and a new retention 
pond was performed.  A new West Virginia Surface Mining Permit 
application was prepared and approved by the state.   

Project Manager, Peace Bridge Authority, Stormwater Compliance 
and Best Management Practices Implementation, Buffalo, NY  
Provided MS4 services to the Peace Bridge Authority to achieve 
compliance with the Phase II stormwater regulations including 
implementation of the 6 minimum required best management practices.  
Unique aspect of the project was the design and construction of a 
stormwater collection system to collect stormwater runoff from major 
portions of the bridge, directing that flow to Canada where it was passed 
through an aboveground grit trap that was fabricated from a 20 yard 
rollloff container.  When the rolloff was full it is hauled to the landfill 
emptied, and returned to the site.  A simple filter fabric cloth installed on 
the outlet end assisted in solids retention. 

Project Manager, Truck Stops of America, Transportation Facility, 
Runoff Evaluation, NJ and CT:  Performed detailed runoff evaluations 
for two 15-acre transportation facilities to determine compliance with local 
stormwater runoff requirements.  Recommendations were made to bring 
the facility into compliance based on the need to keep peak runoff rates 
below the pre-existing condition runoff rates.  Work also included 
rehabilitation and cleaning of underground grit separators that were 
determined to be full of grit and design and construction of a stormwater 
retention pond that incorporated a unique floating baffle capable of 
retaining oil under varying water level conditions. 

Task Manager, New York State National Guard, Stormwater 
Compliance, Statewide, New York:   Responsible for performing storm 
water compliance evaluations at 30 New York State National Guard 
facilities. 

Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Stormwater Compliance and 
Best Management Practices Implementation, Amherst, NY  Provided 
services to the Town of Amherst to achieve compliance with the Phase I 
(industrial activities) and Phase II (municipal) stormwater regulations 
including implementation of the 6 minimum required best management 
practices.  Conducted site inspections of affected Town facilities and 
provided recommendations for best management practices including 
elimination of illicit discharges.  A significant outcome of the project was 
approaching the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning 
and convincing them that rather than each Town preparing their own 
Phase II compliance materials it would be better served for Erie County to 
serve in this role.  Ultimately this led to the formation of the Western New 
York Stormwater Coalition. 

Project Manager, Town of Tonawanda, Stormwater Compliance and 
Best Management Practices Implementation, Tonawanda, NY  
Provided industrial and MS4 services to the Town of Tonawanda to 
achieve compliance with the stormwater regulations including the initial 
submission of an individual discharge permit for the Town’s wastewater 
treatment plant.  Conducted site inspections of affected Town facilities 
and provided recommendations for best management practices including 
elimination of illicit discharges.  Also prepared documentation for the 
implementation of the 6 minimum required best management practices.  

NPDES Industrial Stormwater Compliance, Nationwide:  Involved in 
NPDES stormwater compliance since inception of the stormwater 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 225



     
 17 

   
   
 

regulations.  Regularly advises industrial and municipal clients of 
stormwater program requirements.  Work performed includes the 
preparation of over 30 permit applications (individual permits, general 
permits, and 1 group permit) for stormwater discharges associated with 
industrial activity.  Responsible for sampling work plan development, 
sample collection, flow monitoring, and permit application preparation.  
Prepared or directed the preparation of over 25 Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plans (SWPPP) for: an interstate transportation company (15 
locations in six states), several pharmaceutical manufacturers, cement 
manufacturer, and an electronics manufacturing facility. 

MISCELLANEOUS ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 
Project Manager, Process Safety Management Plans and Risk 
Management Program, NY: Responsible for Process Safety 
Management Plans and Risk Management Program (PSM / RPM) for 
anhydrous ammonia (two facilities) and chlorine (five facilities).  Work 
required the conduct of Process Hazards Analysis (PHA) using the hazard 
and operability analysis (HAZOP) method.  Air dispersion modeling for 
worst case and alternate scenario were performed using CAMEO 
software. 

Project Engineer, Greyhound Lines, Inc., Wastewater and 
Stormwater Management Program, Nationwide:  Responsible for 
development of a wastewater and stormwater management program for 
an interstate transportation company with over 80 fueling locations.  The 
program evaluated each location to determine the need for capital 
improvements or changes in operational procedures.  Recommendations 
resulting from the ongoing program were used to establish capital 
improvement budgets for upcoming years. 

Project Engineer, Greyhound Lines, Inc., SPCC Plans and 
Wastewater Discharge Permits, Nationwide: Performed a review of a 
major interstate transportation company’s SPCC Plans and wastewater 
discharge permits at approximately 200 locations.  As a result of this 
study, 14 SPCC Plans were prepared and 7 Wastewater Permits were 
developed to bring client to compliance with state and local wastewater 
regulations and state and federal SPCC requirements. 

Project Engineer, Wyeth-Ayerst,  Development of Best Management 
Practices (BMP) Program, NY, PA: Project Engineer in charge of 
development of a BMP Plans for a major pharmaceutical manufacturer, 
including evaluation and recommendation of structural and non-structural 
controls to minimize waste generation as well as spillage during waste 
handling. 

Project Manager, Loral, Development of BMP Plans, Owego, NY:  
Developed two BMP Plans for electronics manufacturing facilities.  The 
plans considered loading and material handling areas for petroleum 
products and hazardous chemicals, in addition to evaluating non-
structural control measures. 

Project Manager, Loral, SPCC Plan Development, Owego, NY: 
Developed an SPCC plan for an electronics manufacturer that included 
OPA 99 and New York State Major Petroleum Facility requirements. 

Project Manager, National Cement Manufacturer, Wastewater and 
Stormwater Compliance Audits, Nationwide: Conducted wastewater 
and stormwater compliance audits for several cement kilns and 
associated quarries for an international cement manufacturer.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 226



     
 18 

   
   
 

Compliance with state and federal Clean Water Act requirements was 
evaluated and recommendations presented.  Work led to multiple 
corrective action projects that included surface mining permit applications, 
stormwater compliance, wastewater compliance, etc. 

Project Manager, Chemical Bulk Storage Spill Prevention Reports, 
Various Industrial Client through New York State, NY: Developed six 
chemical bulk storage spill prevention reports (CBS SPRs) for industrial 
clients throughout New York State. 

Task Manager, United States Army Post, Pollution Prevention Plan, 
Fort Drum, Watertown, NY:  Task manager for development of a 
pollution prevention (P2) plan at a major United States Army post.  Project 
included data collection at 100 industrial processes.  Following data 
manipulation, a P2 plan was developed that included technical and 
economic evaluation of approximately 90 P2 opportunities.  
Recommendations were made for short- and long-term P2 initiatives, and 
for readily implementable initiatives that were primarily training related. 

Project Engineer, United States Navy, P2 Project:  United States Navy 
P2 project to develop fact sheets for specific P2 technologies.  The fact 
sheets are posted on the DENIX on-line database for use by Department 
of Defense personnel.  Included in the fact sheets are technical and 
economic evaluations along with contact persons. 

Project Engineer, Aerospace Manufacturing Facility, P2 Alternatives:   
Responsible for identifying P2 alternatives at an aerospace manufacturing 
facility.  General P2 concepts and site-specific opportunities were 
presented at in-house training seminars for different levels of plan 
personnel (senior management, line management, production personnel) 
for different technologies (metal plating, machining, solvent cleaning, etc.) 

Project Engineer, Petroleum Distributor, Solid and Hazardous Waste 
Study:  Performed solid and hazardous waste studies for petroleum 
distributor located throughout the northeastern United States.  Studies 
quantified the amount of waste, type of wastes, waste characteristics, and 
the associated disposal cost at over sixty locations.  Recommendations 
were presented to minimize waste generation, reduce disposal cost, and 
reduce potential liability. 

Project Manager, Hazardous Waste Reduction Plans (HWRP):  
Developed five hazardous waste reduction plans (HWRP) in accordance 
with NYSDEC requirements.  The HWRPs developed alternatives for 
hazardous chemical reduction in the following industries: pharmaceutical 
and phenolic resin production. 

 
ACADEMIC RESEARCH 
State University of New York at Buffalo, Department of Civil 
Engineering Staff:  Research Engineer; Laboratory Treatability Studies, 
1985-1990.  Conducted research in support of obtaining MS and PhD 
degrees, in addition to directing the research of other MS candidates.  
Typical projects included: 

• Evaluated offline aerobic biological regeneration of activated carbon 
by conducting experimental and numerical modeling studies. 

• Prepared and obtained two research grants worth $500,000 over a 
four year period to conduct anaerobic biological activated carbon 
studies.  Matching funds were obtained from the New York State 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 227



     
 19 

   
   
 

Energy Research and Development Authority, the New York State 
Center for Hazardous Waste Research, and the manufacturing 
facility. 

• Conducted bench scale and pilot scale treatability studies of 
anaerobic biological activated carbon treatment of phenolic  
wastewaters.  In addition to process research related to loading rates, 
hydraulic loading, and organic loading; fundamental research was 
conducted on the effects of startup and transient loading conditions 
on the anaerobic organisms and the activated carbon.  A finite 
difference/finite element model was developed to examine the 
interactions of external mass transfer, diffusion in the biofilm, 
biodegradation in the biofilm, and diffusion within the carbon particle. 

• Conducted treatability studies for groundwater/leachate from a 
hazardous waste site in New York State.  Technologies investigated 
included: metals precipitation, air stripping for volatile organic 
compound removal, aerobic biological treatment with and without 
powdered activated carbon under varying temperatures subjected to 
idle times between 1 and 4 weeks, and granular activated carbon 
polishing. 

 

Professional Societies/Affiliates 
Chi Epsilon Civil Engineering Honor Society, Member 

Water Environment Federation, Member 

 

Publications 
American Council of Engineering Companies of New York (ACEC) 
nationally broadcast webinar titled: Chasing Infiltration in Large Diameter 
Sewers and Tunnels, Richard R. Roll, P.E. NFWB, John Goeddertz, 
Ph.D., February 18, 2016. 

Anaerobic Digester Rehabilitation at the Buffalo Sewer Authority, Roberta 
Gaiek, P.E. BSA, John Goeddertz, Ph.D., 23rd Annual Greater Buffalo 
Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 2005.  

City of Salamanca Board of Public Utilities - Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Upgrade, John Goeddertz, Ph.D., 24th Annual Greater Buffalo 
Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 2006. 

Achieving Flow Reduction by Partial Falls Street Tunnel Abandonment, 
Richard R. Roll, P.E. NFWB, John G. Goeddertz, Ph. D., 30th Annual 
Greater Buffalo Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 27th, 2012. 

Iroquois Street Sewer Lining Project, Richard R. Roll, P.E., NFWB, John 
G. Goeddertz, Ph.D., 33rd Annual Greater Buffalo Environmental 
Conference (GBEC), March 24th, 2015. 

NCLSD & CHSD WWTP Upgrades and District Expansion Options, John 
G. Goeddertz, Ph.D., 34th Annual Greater Buffalo Environmental 
Conference (GBEC), March 2016. 

I&I Removal By Flow Rerouting And Tunnel Abandonment, Richard R. 
Roll, P. E., DEE, NFWB, John G. Goeddertz, Ph. D., Daniel A. Milewski, 
P. E., Water Environment Federation annual technical exhibition and 
conference (WEFTEC), October 2013. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 228



     
 20 

   
   
 

Sewer Stabilization and Infiltration Removal through Liner Insertion, R. R. 
Roll, P.E., NFWB, J. G. Goeddertz, J. W. Barnett; Water Environment 
Federation annual technical exhibition and conference (WEFTEC), 
September 2015. 

“Offline Bioregeneration of Granular Activated Carbon”, Journal of the 
Environmental Engineering Division, American Society of Civil Engineers, 
October 1988 (co-authors M.R. Matsumoto, and A.S. Weber). 

“Startup and Operation of an Anaerobic Biological Activated Carbon 
(AnBAC) Process for Treatment of High Strength Multicomponent 
Inhibitory Wastewater”, Environmental Progress, American Institute of 
Chemical Engineers, May 1990 (co-authors A.S. Weber, and W.C Ying). 

“Startup and Operation of an Anaerobic Biological Activated Carbon 
Process for Treatment of a High Strength Multicomponent Wastewater”, 
Proceedings, American Institute of Chemical Engineers 1989 Summer 
National Meeting, August 1989 (co-authors A.S. Weber and W.C. Ying). 

“Sequenced Anaerobic/Aerobic Biological Activated Carbon (BAC) 
Process Treatment of a High Strength Multicomponent Inhibitory 
Wastewater”, Proceedings, 20th Annual Meeting of the Fine Particle 
Society, August 1989 (co-authors W. Lin, A.S. Weber, and W.C. Ying). 

“Feasibility of Offline Bioregeneration of Granular Activated Carbon”, 
Proceedings, 1987 ASCE EED Specialty Conference, July 1987 (co-
authors A.W. Weber and M.R. Matsumoto). 

“Effects of Extended Idle Periods on Hazardous Waste Biotreatment”, 
Proceedings, International Conference on Innovative Biological Treatment 
of Toxic Waste, pp 221-243, June 1986 (co-authors A.W. Weber, M.R. 
Matsumoto, and A.J. Rabideau). 

 
Awards 
American Council of Engineering Companies of New York (ACEC) 
2013 Engineering Excellence Diamond Award - Falls Street Tunnel 
Inflow Reduction Project.  The award was issued for the Special Projects 
category which includes underground construction.  The project was then 
submitted to the ACEC National Engineering Excellence awards and was 
awarded a National Recognition Award. 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 229



      1 

   

   
 

Ryan Delamere, EIT 
Civil Engineer 
 
 
Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, SUNY at 
Buffalo, 2010 
 
Years of Experience 
With AECOM: 8 
With Other Firms: 2 
 
Registrations/Certifications 
Engineer-In-Training - NY 
 
 
 
 

 Mr. Delamere is an Engineer-In-Training (EIT) with 10 years of project 
engineering experience with municipal capital improvement project work 
including municipal facilities, water supply/distribution, and sewerage 
works.  His responsibilities have included resident project representation, 
testing certification, quantity measurement and progress documentation.  
 
Experience 
 
Waste Water Treatment  
 
Niagara Fall Water Board Project 1, Niagara Falls, New York (2019-
2020): Design of upgrades to the plant’s sedimentation basins and scum 
building.  The project includes removing existing traveling bridges and 
replacing with new chain and flight system.   
 
Niagara Falls Water Board WWTP Biological Treatment Evaluation, 
New York, (November- 2018 – July 2019): Served as engineer to test 
pilot-scale biological treatment systems to evaluate if a future conversion 
of the existing WWTP is an alternative. The technologies tested included 
a membrane biological reactor (MBR) system and an attached growth 
moving bed biological reactor (MBBR) system. Pilot testing was 
conducted over an 8-month period to evaluated multiple test conditions 
and evaluated the wastewater treatability using different biological 
systems. 
 
Amherst Water Pollution Control Facility Gravity Thickener System 
Improvements, Amherst, New York (2020): Evaluated and prepared a 
design report for improvements to existing gravity thickener.  The project 
includes replacing chain & flight systems, pumps, piping, lighting, heating 
and concrete repairs.    
 
Amherst Water Pollution Control Facility Disinfection and Metering 
System Improvements, Amherst, New York (2018 - 2020): Design of 
upgrades to the plant’s metering and disinfection systems.  The project 
includes replacing flowmeters, level sensors, valves, chemical feed pumps 
and piping, control panels, SCADA integration, and rehabilitation of sluice 
gates.    
 
Amherst Water Pollution Control Facility 2012 Upgrades, Amherst, 
New York (2013 - 2014): Resident Inspection for the construction of the 
Building 4 polymer system, Building 1 gate actuator replacements, and 
scum system replacement.  Responsibilities included submittal review, 
resident project representation, quantity measurement, and progress 
documentation. 
 
Amherst Water Pollution Control Facility Building 3 and 40 Sludge 
Collection Modifications, Amherst, New York (2013-2014): Resident 
Inspection for the construction of the equalization basin modifications.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 230



      2 

   

   
 

Responsibilities included submittal review, resident project representation, 
quantity measurement, and progress documentation. 
 
Amherst Water Pollution Control Facility Building 4 Dewatering 
Process Improvements, Amherst, New York (Mar. 2014 - 2015): Design 
of layout for an additional centrifuge.  The project includes new feed pump 
control panels, new platform, replacement of back drive on existing 
centrifuge, new centrifuge, centrifuge control and six new screw conveyors.  
 
Erie County Department of Environment and Planning (ECDEP) 
Division of Sewerage Management (DSM) Erie County Sewer District 
No.6, Lackawanna Wastewater Treatment Plant Digestion Process, 
Lackawanna, NY (2020):  Evaluated and prepared report the existing 
digestion process for future improvements.  The evaluation included 
confined space entry into one of the existing digesters, comparing 
alternative improvement options and cost estimates.   
 
Waterline  
 
Smith Road Waterline Replacement, Amherst, New York (Summer 
2012):  Resident Inspection for the construction of 3950 linear feet of new 
8” ductile iron and PVC water main on Smith Road between Dann Road 
and Transit Road.   Responsibilities included resident project 
representation, testing certification, quantity measurement and progress 
documentation.  
 
Indian Trail Waterline Replacement, Amherst, New York (Fall 2011): 
Resident Inspection for the construction of 1900 linear feet of new 8” ductile 
iron water main on Indian Trail Road between North Forest Road and 
Sheridan Drive.  Responsibilities included resident project representation, 
testing certification, quantity measurement and progress documentation. 
 
Emma Woods Subdivision Public Improvement Project, Amherst, New 
York (Spring 2011): Resident Inspection for the construction of new 
waterline, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and road construction off of 
Paradise Road. Responsibilities included resident project representation, 
testing certification and progress documentation. 
 
Sanitary Sewer 
 
Erie County Department of Environment and Planning (ECDEP) 
Division of Sewerage Management (DSM) Erie County Sewer District 
No.3, Boston Valley Pump Station Improvements (2017-2018):  
Resident Engineer and Construction Inspection for the project.  Project 
includes construction of new 40’ deep cast-in-place pump station and 
control building while keeping the existing pump station running.  Then once 
the new station was completed then the old pump station was demolished, 
and the entire site was raised approximately 5 feet to keep the pump station 
from flooding. Responsibilities included daily inspection reports, 
development of change orders, approval of pay applications and 
development of record drawings. Provided direction to the contractor and 
facilitated coordination between the contractor and ECDEP/DSM, including 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 231



      3 

   

   
 

bi-weekly project progress meetings. 
 
Erie County Department of Environment and Planning (ECDEP) 
Division of Sewerage Management (DSM) Erie County Sewer District 
No.3, Rush Creek Interceptor, Blasdell Milestrip Wet Weather Relief 
Pumping Station and Forcemain, Hamburg and Blasdell NY (2015-
2016):  Resident Engineer and Construction Inspector for the project with 
the objective of eliminating sewerage overflows, multiple pumps stations 
and the Village of Blasdell WWTP.  Project includes construction of a wet 
weather relief pump station, 24-inch sanitary sewer forcemain, gravity 
sanitary sewers (8-inch, 15-inch, 24-inch, 27-inch, and 30-inch), pavement 
rehabilitation, site work, installation of 24-inch and 27-inch diameter sewer 
pipe by jacking and boring under railroad tracks and NYSDOT highways, 
and pipe crossings at Rush Creek.  Responsibilities included daily 
inspection reports, development of change orders, tracking of installed 
quantities and development of record drawings. Provided direction to the 
contractor and facilitated coordination between the contractor and 
ECDEP/DSM, including bi-weekly project progress meetings. 
 
Air Products On-site Sanitary System Improvements, Glenmont, New 
York (2014-2015):  Design report for upgrades to an existing septic system.  
Design included a new pump station to pump to a new septic system.  The 
Septic system designed to handle 700 GPD includes a 1,500 gallon septic 
tank and 9 -60’ long absorption laterals.  
 
Brantwood Road Sanitary Sewer Upgrades, Amherst, New York (2014-
2015):  Resident Inspection for the construction of 708 linear feet of 18” 
PVC Sanitary Sewer along Main Street, Brantwood Road and Keswick 
Road replacing existing 15” VTP pipe.   Responsibilities included resident 
project representation, quantity measurement, progress documentation, 
review of contractor payment request and record drawings.  
 
Stormwater 
 
Twilight and Bramblewood Lane Stormwater Lift Station, Amherst, 
New York (2014 - 2015):  Designed and reviewed stormwater pump station 
options to relieve flooding in the sub-division.  Design included stormwater 
modeling using EPA SWMM and pump selection.       
 
Transportation  
 
Niagara Falls Bridge Commission, Whirlpool Rapids Bridge Redecking 
Project (Summer/Fall 2012):  Resident Inspection for the redecking of the 
U.S. and Canadian side truss spans of the Whirlpool Rapids Bridge.  
Project also consists of miscellaneous improvements at the Whirlpool and 
Rainbow Bridges, including concrete spall repair and arch bridge skewback 
assessment repair.  Responsibilities included resident project 
representation and progress documents.     
 
Union Ship Canal Public Open Space Project, Buffalo, New York 
(Summer/Fall 2010): Resident inspector for the construction of the 22-acre 
public park surrounding the Union Ship Canal.  Project included land cover 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 232



      4 

   

   
 

remediation, canal wall stabilization, canal sediment cover system, 
ecological restoration and public open space.  Responsibilities included 
resident project representation and progress documentation.    
 
General Projects 
 
NYCDEP Asset Management Modernization Level 5 Cost Estimates 
(2017): Created Level 5 cost estimates for 10 NYC wastewater treatment 
plants plus various pump stations.  Cost estimates including replacing 
pumps, process equipment, HVAC, and electrical components.     
 
NYCDDC Underground Storage Tank Program, NY (2014 – 2015):  Civil 
Engineer for the predesign investigation and the design of upgrades, 
replacements, and closures of underground storage tank (UST) facilities 
throughout the New York City area.  Tank systems included gasoline, diesel 
motor fuel, diesel generator fuel, waste oil, hoist oil, motor oil, and heating 
oil USTs for fire departments, police precincts, sanitation garages, hospitals, 
parks, New York City Department of Environmental Protection (NYCDEP) 
and Department of Transportation sites throughout all five boroughs.  
Contract No. PW348 – 61 also included conversion of existing oil burning 
heating equipment to natural gas when existing fuel oil tanks were closed 
in-place or removed.  Tank system upgrades normally included the 
installation of internal liners, cathodic protection, electronic leak detection, 
overfill/spill prevention, and piping replacement.  Tank system replacements 
included installation of double wall fiberglass tanks and piping, concrete 
encased double wall ASTs (protected tanks), electronic leak detection, 
stage I and stage II vapor recovery, overfill/spill prevention, and reinforced 
concrete foundations and top slabs.  Responsibilities included creating 
AutoCAD drawings and preparing NYC Building Department forms. 
   
DASNY Tier 2 Environmental Review Record Site Specific Evaluation 
and Data entry, Buffalo, NY (Winter 2013): Provided site specific analysis 
and documentation for individual applicants of FEMA recovery assistance. 
Responsibilities included verifying property addresses, environmental, 
historic, endangered species and significant wildlife impact through the use 
of ArcGIS, NYSDEC Resource Mapper, NEPA Assist Tool, and various 
New York county entities. A Tier 2 Environmental Review record checklist 
was created based on the results for each individual site. 
 
CSO Outfall No. 060 Sewer Separation Project/Green Infrastructure 
Project, City of Buffalo NY (2012-2014):  Post-construction monitoring 
phase (two (2) year duration) of a project to test the effectiveness of six (6) 
green infrastructure installations on various streets in the City of Buffalo.  
Responsibilities included monthly downloading of flow meter data and 
collection of stormwater samples for analysis.  Green infrastructure types 
included rain gardens, pervious pavement, and stormceptors. 
 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 233



      1
   

 

Jordan Radomski 
Water/Wastewater Engineer 
 
 
Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, SUNY at 
Buffalo, 2017 
 
Years of Experience 
With AECOM: 3 
With Other Firms: 0 
 
Training 
OHSA 10 Hour Construction 
Safety and Health Certification 
 
OSHA 30 Hour Construction 
Safety and Health Certification  
 
NYS DEC 4-Hour Erosion and 
Sediment Control Training 
 
 

 Mr. Radomski is water/wastewater engineer. He has acted as a field 
inspector for municipal projects including sanitary sewer installation and 
wastewater treatment.  His responsibilities have included resident project 
inspection and representation, testing certification, quantity measurement, 
progress documentation, review of submittals, and verification of pay 
apps. 
 
Experience 
 
Wastewater Treatment 
Niagara Falls Water Board Project 4: Granular Activated Carbon 
Replacement and Carbon Filter Support Gravel Replacement: Project 
Engineer for designing, drawing and preparing documents for the project. 
Design included removal and replacement of Granular Activated Carbon 
as well as removing and replacing the Filter Support Gravel. 
 
Buffalo Sewer Authority Digester No. 5 Renovation: Resident 
inspector for installation and testing of a new Digester floating cover, 
associated Digester 5 piping, refurbishment of the Digester 5 & 6 heat 
exchangers and several process upgrades to the Plant including 
automation of the digester withdrawal for digesters 5 & 6. 
 
Buffalo Sewer Authority Anaerobic Digester Waste Stream Addition 
and Co-Digestion Facility Improvements: Project engineer involved in a 
study conducted at the Buffalo Sewer Authority that investigates the 
Plant’s ability to accept high strength waste streams and food wastes into 
their anaerobic digester and optimize the management of all hauled waste 
materials including septic, oil and grease, leachate, and sludge. 
 
Buffalo Sewer Authority Septage and Sludge Transfer Station Piping 
Improvements: Project Engineer for designing, drawing and preparing 
documents for the project. Design included installing a new sanitary pipe 
connected to the existing sanitary pipe to increase the amount of material 
the Plant can intake. 
 
BSA WWTP Secondary System Rehabilitations and Upgrades, 
Buffalo, NY: Project engineer assisting with the design of upgrades to the 
Secondary System. Project includes sediment removal, installation of new 
fine bubble diffuser aeration system, coarse bubble diffuser system, ninety 
new sluice gates and upgrades to the Return Activated Sludge and Waste 
Activated Sludge systems. 
 
Sanitary Sewer 
LaSalle SSO Abatement Program 2016/2017: Resident inspector for 
installation and testing of new sanitary sewer systems in various residential 
subdivision construction projects throughout the city of Niagara Falls in the 
LaSalle area.  
 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 234



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-09-014 

MASTER CONTRACT FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT  
PROTECTIVE MEASURES PROJECT GRANT 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) was awarded a FEMA 
Hazard Grant Mitigation Program (“HGMP”) grant for Project No. 4204-0003, to cover part of 
the cost to construct flood protection measures for the Niagara Falls Waste Water Treatment 
Plant (“WWTP”); and 

WHEREAS, as a result of greater-than-anticipated costs to complete the project and 
improvements at the WWTP that make the project less necessary, the Water Board has decided 
not to proceed with this project; and 

WHEREAS, the engineering costs incurred to date should nonetheless be reimbursable 
under the HGMP grant, and in order to process and forward to FEMA reimbursement requests 
for these expenses incurred by the Water Board, the New York State Division of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Services (“DHSES”) requires execution of Master Contract 
No. C000804;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes its Executive 
Director to execute Master Contract No. C000804, together with any other documents as may be 
required to obtain grant reimbursement for costs incurred in connection with 
Project No. 4204-0003. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable  

On September 27, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 235



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 236



STATE OF NEW YORK MASTER CONTRACT FOR GRANTS FACE PAGE

BC1C5 175>3G $>IUM # 1LLZM[[%/ 2DB9>5BB D>9C)45@C( 94/

3?>CA13C >D=25A/

3?>CA13C CG@5/

=]T\Q'GMIZ 1OZMMUMV\

BQUXTQNQML AMVM_IT 1OZMMUMV\

6Q`ML CMZU 1OZMMUMV\

3?>CA13C?A B6B @1G55 >1=5/ CA1>B13C9?> CG@5/

>M_

AMVM_IT

1UMVLUMV\

3?>CA13C?A 4?B 9>3?A@?A1C54 >1=5/ @A?;53C >1=5/

3?>CA13C?A 945>C96931C9?> >D=25AB/ 175>3G 945>C9695A/

>GB EMVLWZ 94 >]UJMZ/

6MLMZIT CI` 94 >]UJMZ/

4D>B >]UJMZ $QN IXXTQKIJTM%/

3?>CA13C?A @A9=1AG =19<9>7 144A5BB/ 3?>CA13C?A BC1CDB/

6WZ @ZWNQ\

=]VQKQXITQ\a& 3WLM/

CZQJIT >I\QWV

3?>CA13C?A @1G=5>C 144A5BB/ 9VLQ^QL]IT

3PMKS QN [IUM I[ XZQUIZa UIQTQVO ILLZM[[ >W\'NWZ'@ZWNQ\

3PIZQ\QM[ AMOQ[\ZI\QWV >]UJMZ/

3?>CA13C =19<9>7 144A5BB/ 5`MUX\QWV B\I\][)3WLM/

3PMKS QN [IUM I[ XZQUIZa UIQTQVO ILLZM[[

BMK\IZQIV 5V\Q\a

3641 >D=25A $6MLMZITTa 6]VLML 7ZIV\[ ?VTa%/

3WV\ZIK\ >]UJMZ/ "HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH

@IOM * WN +

=I[\MZ 7ZIV\ 3WV\ZIK\& 6IKM @IOM

Pgy![qtm!Uvcvg!Fkxkukqp!qh!Jqogncpf!Ugewtkv{!

cpf!Gogtigpe{!Ugtxkegu!

2331!Ycujkpivqp!Cxgpwg!

Dwknfkpi!8C-!Hnqqt!5!

Cndcp{-!Pgy![qtm!23353

FJU12

E111915

Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf

Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf JOIR<!5315.1114!)Rjcug!3*!

Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycuvg!Ycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv

2211136815

67.3482598

1;4;63918

;8/14;

Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!

6926!Dwhhcnq!Cxgpwg!

Pkcictc!Hcnnu-!Pgy![qtm!25415

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 237



STATE OF NEW YORK MASTER CONTRACT FOR GRANTS FACE PAGE
3DAA5>C 3?>CA13C C5A=/ 3?>CA13C 6D>49>7 1=?D>C

6ZWU/ CW/

3DAA5>C 3?>CA13C @5A9?4/

3DAA5>C/

6ZWU/ CW/

1=5>454/

1=5>454 C5A=/

6D>49>7 B?DA35$B%

6ZWU/ CW/

 B\I\M

1=5>454 @5A9?4/ 6MLMZIT

 ?\PMZ

6ZWU/ CW/

FOR MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENTS ONLY  ' 3?>CA13C @5A9?4 1>4 6D>49>7 1=?D>C/

$?]\ aMIZ[ ZMXZM[MV\ XZWRMK\ML N]VLQVO IUW]V\[%

"

*

+

,

-

.

1CC138=5>CB @1AC ?6 C89B 17A55=5>C/ 

     1\\IKPUMV\ 1/                                    1'* @ZWOZIU BXMKQNQK CMZU[ IVL 3WVLQ\QWV[

1'+ 6MLMZITTa 6]VLML 7ZIV\[ IVL AMY]QZMUMV\[ =IVLI\ML

     1\\IKPUMV\ 2/ 2'* 5`XMVLQ\]ZM 2I[ML 2]LOM\

', 3IXQ\IT 2]LOM\

2'*$1% 5`XMVLQ\]ZM 2I[ML 2]LOM\ $1UMVLUMV\%

2'+$1% @MZNWZUIVKM 2I[ML 2]LOM\ $1UMVLUMV\%

2',$1% 3IXQ\IT 2]LOM\ $1UMVLUMV\%

\\IKPUMV\ 3/  FWZS @TIV

     1\\IKPUMV\ 4/  @IaUMV\ IVL AMXWZ\QVO BKPML]TM

     ?\PMZ/

$Multi-year  ' MV\MZ \W\IT XZWRMK\ML IUW]V\ WN \PM 

KWV\ZIK\0 Fixed Term/Simplified Renewal  ' MV\MZ 

K]ZZMV\ XMZQWL IUW]V\%/

3DAA5>C @5A9?4 3DAA5>C 1=?D>C 1=5>454 @5A9?4 1=5>454 1=?D>C

3WV\ZIK\ >]UJMZ/ "HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH

@IOM + WN +

=I[\MZ 7ZIV\ 3WV\ZIK\& 6IKM @IOM

by Federal Laws

B-4(A) Net Deficit Budget (Amendment)

B-4 Net Deficit Budget

2202403128 2303303129

2202403128 2303303129

2202403128 1701203132

2202403128 1701203132

%!267-164/11

%!3-964-889/11

HGOC!Crrtqxcn!Ngvvgt!)16012031*!

Gzjkdkv!G

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 238



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y . cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

STATE OF NEW YORK 
MASTER CONTRACT FOR GRANTS 

M\]g LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_ FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg 'FUghYf <cbhfUWh( ]g \YfYVm aUXY Vm UbX VYhkYYb 
h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_ UWh]b[ Vm UbX h\fci[\ h\Y Udd`]WUV`Y LhUhY 9[YbWm 'LhUhY( UbX h\Y diV`]W cf df]jUhY Ybh]hm 
'<cbhfUWhcf( ]XYbh]Z]YX cb h\Y ZUWY dU[Y \YfYcZ '?UWY IU[Y(+ 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS) h\Y LhUhY \Ug h\Y Uih\cf]hm hc fY[i`UhY UbX dfcj]XY ZibX]b[ Zcf h\Y YghUV`]g\aYbh UbX 
cdYfUh]cb cZ dfc[fUa gYfj]WYg) XYg][b cf h\Y YlYWih]cb UbX dYfZcfaUbWY cZ WcbghfiWh]cb dfc^YWhg) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y 
UbX XYg]fYg hc WcbhfUWh k]h\ g_]``YX dUfh]Yg dcggYgg]b[ h\Y bYWYggUfm fYgcifWYg hc dfcj]XY giW\ gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) 
Ug Udd`]WUV`Y8 UbX 

WHEREAS) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g fYUXm) k]``]b[ UbX UV`Y hc dfcj]XY giW\ dfc[fUa gYfj]WYg cf h\Y YlYWih]cb 
UbX dYfZcfaUbWY cZ WcbghfiWh]cb dfc^YWhg UbX dcggYggYg cf WUb aU_Y UjU]`UV`Y U`` bYWYggUfm eiU`]Z]YX dYfgcbbY`) 
`]WYbgYg) ZUW]`]h]Yg UbX YldYfh]gY hc dYfZcfa cf \UjY dYfZcfaYX h\Y gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) fYei]fYX 
difgiUbh hc h\Y hYfag cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh8  

NOW THEREFORE) ]b Wcbg]XYfUh]cb cZ h\Y dfca]gYg) fYgdcbg]V]`]h]Yg) UbX WcjYbUbhg \YfY]b) h\Y LhUhY 

UbX h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYY Ug Zc``ckg7 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

I.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Executory Clause:  Bb UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb 1. cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk) h\Y LhUhY g\U`` \UjY 
bc `]UV]`]hm ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) cf hc UbmcbY Y`gY) VYmcbX ZibXg 
Uddfcdf]UhYX UbX UjU]`UV`Y Zcf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

B.  Required Approvals:  Bb UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb ../ cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk 'cf) ]Z h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]g k]h\ h\Y LhUhY Nb]jYfg]hm cZ GYk Rcf_ 'LNGR( cf <]hm Nb]jYfg]hm cZ GYk Rcf_ 
'<NGR() LYWh]cb 022 cf LYWh]cb 3/.5 cZ h\Y >XiWUh]cb EUk() ]Z h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh YlWYYXg 
#2-)--- 'cf #52)--- Zcf WcbhfUWhg `Yh Vm h\Y HZZ]WY cZ @YbYfU` LYfj]WYg) cf h\Y a]b]aia h\fYg\c`Xg 
U[fYYX hc Vm h\Y HZZ]WY cZ h\Y LhUhY <cadhfc``Yf 'HL<( Zcf WYfhU]b LNGR UbX <NGR WcbhfUWhg() cf 
]Z h\]g ]g Ub UaYbXaYbh Zcf Ubm Uacibh hc U WcbhfUWh k\]W\) Ug gc UaYbXYX) YlWYYXg gU]X ghUhihcfm 
Uacibh ]bW`iX]b[) Vih bch `]a]hYX hc) W\Ub[Yg ]b Uacibh) Wcbg]XYfUh]cb) gWcdY cf WcbhfUWh hYfa 
]XYbh]Z]YX cb h\Y ?UWY IU[Y '<cbhfUWh MYfa() ]h g\U`` bch VY jU`]X) YZZYWh]jY cf V]bX]b[ idcb h\Y LhUhY 
ibh]` ]h \Ug VYYb UddfcjYX Vm) UbX Z]`YX k]h\) h\Y GYk Rcf_ 9hhcfbYm @YbYfU` <cbhfUWh 9ddfcjU` 
Nb]h '9@( UbX HL<+ BZ) Vm h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\Y LhUhY U[fYYg hc []jY gcaYh\]b[ ch\Yf h\Ub acbYm 
k\Yb h\Y jU`iY cf fYUgcbUV`m Ygh]aUhYX jU`iY cZ giW\ Wcbg]XYfUh]cb YlWYYXg #.-)---) ]h g\U`` bch VY 
jU`]X) YZZYWh]jY cf V]bX]b[ idcb h\Y LhUhY ibh]` ]h \Ug VYYb UddfcjYX Vm) UbX Z]`YX k]h\) h\Y 9@ UbX 
HL<+  

Budget Changes:  9b UaYbXaYbh h\Uh kci`X fYgi`h ]b U hfUbgZYf cZ ZibXg Uacb[ dfc[fUa 
UWh]j]h]Yg cf ViX[Yh Wcgh WUhY[cf]Yg h\Uh XcYg bch UZZYWh h\Y Uacibh) Wcbg]XYfUh]cb) gWcdY cf ch\Yf 
hYfag cZ giW\ WcbhfUWh aUm VY giV^YWh hc h\Y UddfcjU` cZ h\Y 9@ UbX HL< k\YfY h\Y Uacibh cZ 
giW\ acX]Z]WUh]cb ]g) Ug U dcfh]cb cZ h\Y hchU` jU`iY cZ h\Y WcbhfUWh) YeiU` hc cf [fYUhYf h\Ub hYb 
dYfWYbh Zcf WcbhfUWhg cZ `Ygg h\Ub Z]jY a]``]cb Xc``Ufg) cf Z]jY dYfWYbh Zcf WcbhfUWhg cZ acfY h\Ub 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 239



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y / cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

Z]jY a]``]cb Xc``Ufg8 UbX) ]b UXX]h]cb) giW\ UaYbXaYbh aUm VY giV^YWh hc df]cf UddfcjU` Vm h\Y 
Udd`]WUV`Y LhUhY 9[YbWm Ug XYhU]`YX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+ 

C. Order of Precedence:

Bb h\Y YjYbh cZ U WcbZ`]Wh Uacb[ ']( h\Y hYfag cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ']bW`iX]b[ Ubm UbX U`` 
UhhUW\aYbhg UbX UaYbXaYbhg( cf ']]( VYhkYYb h\Y hYfag cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UbX h\Y cf][]bU` 
fYeiYgh Zcf dfcdcgU`) h\Y dfc[fUa Udd`]WUh]cb cf ch\Yf UhhUW\aYbh h\Uh kUg Wcad`YhYX UbX 
YlYWihYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]b WcbbYWh]cb k]h\ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\Y cfXYf cZ dfYWYXYbWY ]g Ug 
Zc``ckg7 

.+  LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg 

/+  FcX]Z]WUh]cbg hc h\Y ?UWY IU[Y 

0+  FcX]Z]WUh]cbg hc 9hhUW\aYbh 9*/.) 9hhUW\aYbh ;) 9hhUW\aYbh < UbX 9hhUW\aYbh = 

1+  M\Y ?UWY IU[Y  

2+  9hhUW\aYbh 9*//) 9hhUW\aYbh ;) 9hhUW\aYbh < UbX 9hhUW\aYbh = 

3+  FcX]Z]WUh]cb hc 9hhUW\aYbh 9*. 

4+  9hhUW\aYbh 9*. 

5+  Hh\Yf UhhUW\aYbhg) ]bW`iX]b[) Vih bch `]a]hYX hc) h\Y fYeiYgh Zcf dfcdcgU` cf dfc[fUa 
Udd`]WUh]cb 

D. Funding:  ?ibX]b[ Zcf h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` bch YlWYYX h\Y Uacibh gdYW]Z]YX Ug 
q<cbhfUWh ?ibX]b[ 9acibhr cb h\Y ?UWY IU[Y cf Ug giVgYeiYbh`m fYj]gYX hc fYZ`YWh Ub UddfcjYX 
fYbYkU` cf Wcgh UaYbXaYbh+  ?ibX]b[ Zcf h\Y ]b]h]U` UbX giVgYeiYbh dYf]cXg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh 
g\U`` bch YlWYYX h\Y Udd`]WUV`Y Uacibhg gdYW]Z]YX ]b h\Y Udd`]WUV`Y 9hhUW\aYbh ; Zcfa ';iX[Yh(+ 

E.  Contract Performance: M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dYfZcfa U`` gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) UbX 
Wcad`m k]h\ U`` dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh hc h\Y gUh]gZUWh]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
g\U`` dfcj]XY gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) UbX aYYh h\Y dfc[fUa cV^YWh]jYg giaaUf]nYX ]b 
9hhUW\aYbh < 'Pcf_ I`Ub( ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) fY`YjUbh `Ukg) 
fi`Yg UbX fY[i`Uh]cbg) UXa]b]ghfUh]jY) dfc[fUa UbX Z]gWU` [i]XY`]bYg) UbX k\YfY Udd`]WUV`Y) cdYfUh]b[ 
WYfh]Z]WUhY Zcf ZUW]`]h]Yg cf `]WYbgYg Zcf Ub UWh]j]hm cf dfc[fUa+ 

F.  Modifications:  Mc acX]Zm h\Y 9hhUW\aYbhg cf ?UWY IU[Y) h\Y dUfh]Yg aihiU``m U[fYY hc fYWcfX) ]b 
kf]h]b[) h\Y hYfag cZ giW\ acX]Z]WUh]cb UbX hc fYj]gY cf Wcad`YhY h\Y ?UWY IU[Y UbX U`` h\Y 

.  Mc h\Y YlhYbh h\Uh h\Y acX]Z]WUh]cbg hc 9hhUW\aYbh 9*/ UfY fYei]fYX Vm ?YXYfU` fYei]fYaYbhg UbX WcbZ`]Wh k]h\ ch\Yf dfcj]g]cbg cZ 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\Y acX]Z]WUh]cbg hc 9hhUW\aYbh 9*/ g\U`` gidYfgYXY U`` ch\Yf dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\]g FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  LYY LYWh]cb 
B'O(+ 

/  Mc h\Y YlhYbh h\Uh h\Y hYfag cZ 9hhUW\aYbh 9*/ UfY fYei]fYX Vm ?YXYfU` fYei]fYaYbhg UbX WcbZ`]Wh k]h\ ch\Yf dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) h\Y ?YXYfU` fYei]fYaYbhg cZ 9hhUW\aYbh 9*/ g\U`` gidYfgYXY U`` ch\Yf dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\]g FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  LYY LYWh]cb B'O(+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 240



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y 0 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

Uddfcdf]UhY UhhUW\aYbhg ]b Wcb^ibWh]cb h\YfYk]h\+  Bb UXX]h]cb) hc h\Y YlhYbh h\Uh giW\ acX]Z]WUh]cb 
aYYhg h\Y Wf]hYf]U gYh Zcfh\ ]b LYWh]cb B+; \YfY]b) ]h g\U`` VY giV^YWh hc h\Y UddfcjU` cZ h\Y 9@ UbX 
HL< VYZcfY ]h g\U`` VYWcaY jU`]X) YZZYWh]jY UbX V]bX]b[ idcb h\Y LhUhY+  FcX]Z]WUh]cbg h\Uh UfY bch 
giV^YWh hc h\Y 9@ UbX HL< UddfcjU` g\U`` VY dfcWYggYX ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y [i]XY`]bYg ghUhYX ]b 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

G.  Governing Law:  M\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY [cjYfbYX Vm h\Y `Ukg cZ h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_ 
YlWYdh k\YfY h\Y ?YXYfU` LidfYaUWm <`UigY fYei]fYg ch\Yfk]gY+ 

H.  Severability:  9bm dfcj]g]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh h\Uh ]g \Y`X hc VY ]bjU`]X) ]``Y[U` cf 
ibYbZcfWYUV`Y ]b Ubm fYgdYWh Vm U Wcifh cZ WcadYhYbh ^if]gX]Wh]cb) g\U`` VY ]bYZZYWh]jY cb`m hc h\Y 
YlhYbh cZ giW\ ]bjU`]X]hm) ]``Y[U`]hm cf ibYbZcfWYUV]`]hm) k]h\cih UZZYWh]b[ ]b Ubm kUm h\Y fYaU]b]b[ 
dfcj]g]cbg \YfYcZ8 dfcj]XYX) \ckYjYf) h\Uh h\Y dUfh]Yg hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` UhhYadh ]b [ccX 
ZU]h\ hc fYZcfa h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]b U aUbbYf Wcbg]ghYbh k]h\ h\Y ]bhYbh cZ Ubm giW\ ]bYZZYWh]jY 
dfcj]g]cb Zcf h\Y difdcgY cZ WUffm]b[ cih giW\ ]bhYbh+  BZ Ubm dfcj]g]cb ]g \Y`X jc]X) ]bjU`]X cf 
ibYbZcfWYUV`Y k]h\ fYgdYWh hc dUfh]Wi`Uf W]fWiaghUbWYg) ]h g\U`` bYjYfh\Y`Ygg fYaU]b ]b Zi`` ZcfWY UbX 
YZZYWh ]b U`` ch\Yf W]fWiaghUbWYg+   

I.  Interpretation:  M\Y \YUX]b[g ]b h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UfY ]bgYfhYX Zcf WcbjYb]YbWY UbX fYZYfYbWY 
cb`m UbX Xc bch acX]Zm cf fYghf]Wh Ubm cZ h\Y dfcj]g]cbg \YfY]b+  9`` dYfgcbU` dfcbcibg igYX \YfY]b 
g\U`` VY Wcbg]XYfYX hc VY [YbXYf bYihfU`+  M\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh \Ug VYYb aUXY ibXYf h\Y `Ukg cZ h\Y 
LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_) UbX h\Y jYbiY Zcf fYgc`j]b[ Ubm X]gdihYg \YfYibXYf g\U`` VY ]b U Wcifh cZ 
WcadYhYbh ^if]gX]Wh]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_+   

J.  Notice!

.+  9`` bch]WYg) YlWYdh Zcf bch]WYg cZ hYfa]bUh]cb) g\U`` VY ]b kf]h]b[ UbX g\U`` VY hfUbga]hhYX 
Y]h\Yf7 

U(  Vm WYfh]Z]YX cf fY[]ghYfYX Nb]hYX LhUhYg aU]`) fYhifb fYWY]dh fYeiYghYX8 

V(  Vm ZUWg]a]`Y hfUbga]gg]cb8 

W(  Vm dYfgcbU` XY`]jYfm8  

X(  Vm YldYX]hYX XY`]jYfm gYfj]WY8 cf  

Y(  Vm Y*aU]`+ 

/+  Gch]WYg hc h\Y LhUhY g\U`` VY UXXfYggYX hc h\Y Ifc[fUa HZZ]WY XYg][bUhYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh 9*. 
'Ifc[fUa LdYW]Z]W MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg(+ 

0+  Gch]WYg hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY UXXfYggYX hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg XYg][bYY Ug XYg][bUhYX ]b 
9hhUW\aYbh 9*. 'Ifc[fUa LdYW]Z]W MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg(+ 

1+  9bm giW\ bch]WY g\U`` VY XYYaYX hc \UjY VYYb []jYb Y]h\Yf Uh h\Y h]aY cZ dYfgcbU` XY`]jYfm cf) 
]b h\Y WUgY cZ YldYX]hYX XY`]jYfm gYfj]WY cf WYfh]Z]YX cf fY[]ghYfYX Nb]hYX LhUhYg aU]`) Ug cZ h\Y 
XUhY cZ Z]fgh UhhYadhYX XY`]jYfm Uh h\Y UXXfYgg UbX ]b h\Y aUbbYf dfcj]XYX \YfY]b) cf ]b h\Y WUgY cZ 
ZUWg]a]`Y hfUbga]gg]cb cf Y*aU]`) idcb fYWY]dh+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 241



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y 1 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

2+  M\Y dUfh]Yg aUm) Zfca h]aY hc h]aY) gdYW]Zm Ubm bYk cf X]ZZYfYbh Y*aU]` UXXfYgg) ZUWg]a]`Y 
biaVYf cf UXXfYgg ]b h\Y Nb]hYX LhUhYg Ug h\Y]f UXXfYgg Zcf difdcgY cZ fYWY]j]b[ bch]WY ibXYf h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh Vm []j]b[ Z]ZhYYb '.2( WU`YbXUf XUmg df]cf kf]hhYb bch]WY hc h\Y ch\Yf dUfhm gYbh ]b 
UWWcfXUbWY \YfYk]h\+  M\Y dUfh]Yg U[fYY hc aihiU``m XYg][bUhY ]bX]j]XiU`g Ug h\Y]f fYgdYWh]jY 
fYdfYgYbhUh]jYg Zcf h\Y difdcgYg cZ fYWY]j]b[ bch]WYg ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  9XX]h]cbU` 
]bX]j]XiU`g aUm VY XYg][bUhYX ]b kf]h]b[ Vm h\Y dUfh]Yg Zcf difdcgYg cZ ]ad`YaYbhUh]cb) 
UXa]b]ghfUh]cb) V]``]b[ UbX fYgc`j]b[ ]ggiYg UbX,cf X]gdihYg+ 

K.  Service of Process:  Bb UXX]h]cb hc h\Y aYh\cXg cZ gYfj]WY U``ckYX Vm h\Y LhUhY <]j]` IfUWh]WY 
EUk % Ki`Yg '<IEK() <cbhfUWhcf \YfYVm WcbgYbhg hc gYfj]WY cZ dfcWYgg idcb ]h Vm fY[]ghYfYX cf 
WYfh]Z]YX aU]`) fYhifb fYWY]dh fYeiYghYX+  LYfj]WY \YfYibXYf g\U`` VY Wcad`YhY idcb <cbhfUWhcf&g 
UWhiU` fYWY]dh cZ dfcWYgg cf idcb h\Y LhUhY&g fYWY]dh cZ h\Y fYhifb h\YfYcZ Vm h\Y Nb]hYX LhUhYg IcghU` 
LYfj]WY Ug fYZigYX cf ibXY`]jYfUV`Y+  <cbhfUWhcf aigh dfcadh`m bch]Zm h\Y LhUhY) ]b kf]h]b[) cZ YUW\ 
UbX YjYfm W\Ub[Y cZ UXXfYgg hc k\]W\ gYfj]WY cZ dfcWYgg WUb VY aUXY+  LYfj]WY Vm h\Y LhUhY hc h\Y 
`Ugh _bckb UXXfYgg g\U`` VY giZZ]W]Ybh+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` \UjY h\]fhm '0-( WU`YbXUf XUmg UZhYf 
gYfj]WY \YfYibXYf ]g Wcad`YhY ]b k\]W\ hc fYgdcbX+ 

L.  Set-Off Rights:  M\Y LhUhY g\U`` \UjY U`` cZ ]hg Wcaacb `Uk) Yei]hUV`Y) UbX ghUhihcfm f][\hg cZ 
gYh*cZZ+  M\YgY f][\hg g\U`` ]bW`iXY) Vih bch VY `]a]hYX hc) h\Y LhUhY&g cdh]cb hc k]h\\c`X) Zcf h\Y 
difdcgYg cZ gYh*cZZ) Ubm acbYmg XiY hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh id hc Ubm Uacibhg 
XiY UbX ck]b[ hc h\Y LhUhY k]h\ fY[UfX hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) Ubm ch\Yf WcbhfUWh k]h\ Ubm LhUhY 
XYdUfhaYbh cf U[YbWm) ]bW`iX]b[ Ubm WcbhfUWh Zcf U hYfa WcaaYbW]b[ df]cf hc h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) d`ig Ubm Uacibhg XiY UbX ck]b[ hc h\Y LhUhY Zcf Ubm ch\Yf fYUgcb ]bW`iX]b[) k]h\cih 
`]a]hUh]cb) hUl XY`]beiYbW]Yg) ZYY XY`]beiYbW]Yg) cf acbYhUfm dYbU`h]Yg fY`Uh]jY h\YfYhc+  M\Y LhUhY 
g\U`` YlYfW]gY ]hg gYh*cZZ f][\hg ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ bcfaU` LhUhY dfUWh]WYg ]bW`iX]b[) ]b WUgYg cZ gYh*
cZZ difgiUbh hc Ub UiX]h) h\Y Z]bU`]nUh]cb cZ giW\ UiX]h Vm h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm) ]hg fYdfYgYbhUh]jYg) cf 
HL<+ 

M.  Indemnification: M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY gc`Y`m fYgdcbg]V`Y UbX UbgkYfUV`Y ]b XUaU[Yg Zcf 
Ubm UbX U`` UWW]XYbhg UbX,cf ]b^if]Yg hc dYfgcbg ']bW`iX]b[ XYUh\( cf dfcdYfhm Uf]g]b[ cih cZ cf fY`UhYX 
hc h\Y gYfj]WYg hc VY fYbXYfYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cf ]hg giVWcbhfUWhcfg difgiUbh hc h\]g FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` ]bXYab]Zm UbX \c`X \Ufa`Ygg h\Y LhUhY UbX ]hg cZZ]WYfg UbX 
Yad`cmYYg Zfca W`U]ag) gi]hg) UWh]cbg) XUaU[Yg UbX Wcgh cZ YjYfm bUhifY Uf]g]b[ cih cZ h\Y dfcj]g]cb 
cZ gYfj]WYg difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  

N.  Non-Assignment Clause:  Bb UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb .05 cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk) h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh aUm bch VY Ugg][bYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cf ]hg f][\h) h]h`Y cf ]bhYfYgh h\YfY]b Ugg][bYX) 
hfUbgZYffYX) WcbjYmYX) giV`Yh) cf ch\Yfk]gY X]gdcgYX cZ k]h\cih h\Y LhUhYtg dfYj]cig kf]hhYb WcbgYbh) 
UbX UhhYadhg hc Xc gc g\U`` VY Wcbg]XYfYX hc VY bi`` UbX jc]X+  Gchk]h\ghUbX]b[ h\Y ZcfY[c]b[) giW\ 
df]cf kf]hhYb WcbgYbh cZ Ub Ugg][baYbh cZ U WcbhfUWh) `Yh difgiUbh hc 9fh]W`Y QB cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY 
EUk) aUm VY kU]jYX Uh h\Y X]gWfYh]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm UbX k]h\ h\Y WcbWiffYbWY cZ HL<) k\YfY 
h\Y cf][]bU` WcbhfUWh kUg giV^YWh hc HL<tg UddfcjU`) k\YfY h\Y Ugg][baYbh ]g XiY hc U fYcf[Ub]nUh]cb) 
aYf[Yf) cf Wcbgc`]XUh]cb cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg Vig]bYgg Ybh]hm cf YbhYfdf]gY+  M\Y LhUhY fYhU]bg ]hg f][\h 
hc UddfcjY Ub Ugg][baYbh UbX hc fYei]fY h\Uh h\Y aYf[YX WcbhfUWhcf XYacbghfUhY ]hg fYgdcbg]V]`]hm hc 
Xc Vig]bYgg k]h\ h\Y LhUhY+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf aUm) \ckYjYf) Ugg][b ]hg f][\h hc fYWY]jY dUmaYbhg 
k]h\cih h\Y LhUhYtg df]cf kf]hhYb WcbgYbh ib`Ygg h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh WcbWYfbg <Yfh]Z]WUhYg cZ 
IUfh]W]dUh]cb difgiUbh hc 9fh]W`Y 2*9 cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk+

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 242



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y 2 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

O.  Legal Action: Gc `]h][Uh]cb cf fY[i`Uhcfm UWh]cb g\U`` VY Vfci[\h U[U]bgh h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_) 
h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm) cf U[U]bgh Ubm Wcibhm cf ch\Yf `cWU` [cjYfbaYbh Ybh]hm k]h\ ZibXg dfcj]XYX ibXYf 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\Y hYfa q`]h][Uh]cbr g\U`` ]bW`iXY WcaaYbW]b[ cf h\fYUhYb]b[ hc WcaaYbWY U 
`Ukgi]h) ^c]b]b[ cf h\fYUhYb]b[ hc ^c]b Ug U dUfhm hc cb[c]b[ `]h][Uh]cb) cf fYeiYgh]b[ Ubm fY`]YZ Zfca 
Ubm cZ h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_) h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm) cf Ubm Wcibhm) cf ch\Yf `cWU` [cjYfbaYbh Ybh]hm+  
M\Y hYfa qfY[i`Uhcfm UWh]cbr g\U`` ]bW`iXY WcaaYbW]b[ cf h\fYUhYb]b[ hc WcaaYbWY U fY[i`Uhcfm 
dfcWYYX]b[) cf fYeiYgh]b[ Ubm fY[i`Uhcfm fY`]YZ Zfca Ubm cZ h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_) h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm) 
cf Ubm Wcibhm) cf ch\Yf `cWU` [cjYfbaYbh Ybh]hm+ 

P.  No Arbitration: =]gdihYg ]bjc`j]b[ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) ]bW`iX]b[ h\Y VfYUW\ cf U``Y[YX VfYUW\ 
h\YfYcZ) aUm bch VY giVa]hhYX hc V]bX]b[ UfV]hfUh]cb 'YlWYdh k\YfY ghUhihcf]`m Uih\cf]nYX() Vih aigh) 
]bghYUX) VY \YUfX ]b U Wcifh cZ WcadYhYbh ^if]gX]Wh]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_+  

Q.  Secular Purpose: LYfj]WYg dYfZcfaYX difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UfY gYWi`Uf ]b bUhifY UbX 
g\U`` VY dYfZcfaYX ]b U aUbbYf h\Uh XcYg bch X]gWf]a]bUhY cb h\Y VUg]g cZ fY`][]cig VY`]YZ) cf dfcachY 
cf X]gWcifU[Y UX\YfYbWY hc fY`][]cb ]b [YbYfU` cf dUfh]Wi`Uf fY`][]cig VY`]YZg+ 

R.  Partisan Political Activity and Lobbying:  ?ibXg dfcj]XYX difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh 
g\U`` bch VY igYX Zcf Ubm dUfh]gUb dc`]h]WU` UWh]j]hm) cf Zcf UWh]j]h]Yg h\Uh UhhYadh hc ]bZ`iYbWY 
`Y[]g`Uh]cb cf Y`YWh]cb cf XYZYUh cZ Ubm WUbX]XUhY Zcf diV`]W cZZ]WY+   

S.  Reciprocity and Sanctions Provisions:  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g \YfYVm bch]Z]YX h\Uh ]Z ]hg df]bW]dU` 
d`UWY cZ Vig]bYgg ]g `cWUhYX ]b U Wcibhfm) bUh]cb) dfcj]bWY) ghUhY) cf dc`]h]WU` giVX]j]g]cb h\Uh 
dYbU`]nYg GYk Rcf_ LhUhY jYbXcfg) UbX ]Z h\Y [ccXg cf gYfj]WYg ]h cZZYfg g\U`` VY giVghUbh]U``m 
dfcXiWYX cf dYfZcfaYX cihg]XY GYk Rcf_ LhUhY) h\Y Hab]Vig IfcWifYaYbh 9Wh .661 UbX /--- 
UaYbXaYbhg '<\UdhYf 351 UbX <\UdhYf 050) fYgdYWh]jY`m( fYei]fY h\Uh ]h VY XYb]YX WcbhfUWhg k\]W\ 
]h kci`X ch\Yfk]gY cVhU]b+0

T.  Reporting Fraud and Abuse:  <cbhfUWhcf UW_bck`YX[Yg h\Uh ]h \Ug fYj]YkYX ]bZcfaUh]cb cb 
\ck hc dfYjYbh) XYhYWh) UbX fYdcfh ZfUiX) kUghY UbX UVigY cZ diV`]W ZibXg) ]bW`iX]b[ ]bZcfaUh]cb 
UVcih h\Y ?YXYfU` ?U`gY <`U]ag 9Wh) h\Y GYk Rcf_ LhUhY ?U`gY <`U]ag 9Wh) UbX k\]gh`YV`ckYf 
dfchYWh]cbg+

U.  Non-Collusive Bidding:  ;m giVa]gg]cb cZ h\]g V]X) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf UbX YUW\ dYfgcb g][b]b[ cb 
VY\U`Z cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf WYfh]Z]Yg) UbX ]b h\Y WUgY cZ U ^c]bh V]X YUW\ dUfhm h\YfYhc WYfh]Z]Yg Ug hc ]hg 
ckb cf[Ub]nUh]cb) ibXYf dYbU`hm cZ dYf^ifm) h\Uh hc h\Y VYgh cZ \]g cf \Yf _bck`YX[Y UbX VY`]YZ h\Uh ]hg 
V]X kUg Uff]jYX Uh ]bXYdYbXYbh`m UbX k]h\cih Wc``ig]cb U]aYX Uh fYghf]Wh]b[ WcadYh]h]cb+  M\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf Zifh\Yf UZZ]fag h\Uh) Uh h\Y h]aY h\Y <cbhfUWhcf giVa]hhYX ]hg V]X) Ub Uih\cf]nYX UbX 
fYgdcbg]V`Y dYfgcb YlYWihYX UbX XY`]jYfYX hc h\Y LhUhY U bcb*Wc``ig]jY V]bX]b[ WYfh]Z]WUh]cb cb h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcftg VY\U`Z+ 

V.  Federally Funded Grants and Requirements Mandated by Federal Laws:  9`` cZ h\Y 
LdYW]Z]W ?YXYfU` fYei]fYaYbhg h\Uh UfY Udd`]WUV`Y hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UfY ]XYbh]Z]YX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh 
9*/ '?YXYfU``m ?ibXYX @fUbhg UbX KYei]fYaYbhg FUbXUhYX Vm ?YXYfU` EUkg( \YfYhc+  Mc h\Y YlhYbh 

"
9g cZ HWhcVYf 6) /-./) h\Y `]gh cZ X]gWf]a]bUhcfm ^if]gX]Wh]cbg giV^YWh hc h\]g dfcj]g]cb ]bW`iXYg h\Y ghUhYg cZ 9`Ug_U) AUkU]]) 

Eci]g]UbU) Lcih\ <Ufc`]bU) PYgh O]f[]b]U UbX Pmca]b[+  <cbhUWh GRL =YdUfhaYbh cZ >Wcbca]W =YjY`cdaYbh Zcf h\Y acgh WiffYbh 
`]gh cZ ^if]gX]Wh]cbg giV^YWh hc h\]g dfcj]g]cb+  

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 243



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y 3 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

h\Uh h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]g ZibXYX) ]b k\c`Y cf dUfh) k]h\ ?YXYfU` ZibXg cf aUbXUhYX Vm ?YXYfU` 
`Ukg) ']( h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh h\Uh WcbZ`]Wh k]h\ ?YXYfU` fi`Yg) ?YXYfU` fY[i`Uh]cbg) cf 
?YXYfU` dfc[fUa gdYW]Z]W fYei]fYaYbhg g\U`` bch Udd`m UbX ']]( h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc Wcad`m k]h\ 
U`` Udd`]WUV`Y ?YXYfU` fi`Yg) fY[i`Uh]cbg UbX dfc[fUa gdYW]Z]W fYei]fYaYbhg ]bW`iX]b[) Vih bch `]a]hYX 
hc) h\cgY dfcj]g]cbg h\Uh UfY gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh 9*/ '?YXYfU``m ?ibXYX @fUbhg UbX KYei]fYaYbhg 
FUbXUhYX Vm ?YXYfU` EUkg( \YfYhc+ 

II. TERM, TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION 

A.  Term:  M\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY Ug gdYW]Z]YX cb h\Y ?UWY IU[Y) ib`Ygg 
hYfa]bUhYX gccbYf Ug dfcj]XYX \YfY]b+ 

B.  Renewal:

1. General Renewal:  M\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh aUm Wcbg]gh cZ giWWYgg]jY dYf]cXg cb h\Y gUaY hYfag 
UbX WcbX]h]cbg) Ug gdYW]Z]YX k]h\]b h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh 'U qL]ad`]Z]YX KYbYkU` <cbhfUWhr(+  
>UW\ UXX]h]cbU` cf gidYfgYX]b[ dYf]cX g\U`` VY cb h\Y Zcfag gdYW]Z]YX Vm h\Y LhUhY UbX g\U`` VY 
]bWcfdcfUhYX ]b h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

2. Renewal Notice to Not-for-Profit Contractors: 

U(  IifgiUbh hc LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk o.46*h) ]Z h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]g k]h\ U bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h 
<cbhfUWhcf UbX dfcj]XYg Zcf U fYbYkU` cdh]cb) h\Y LhUhY g\U`` bch]Zm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cZ h\Y 
LhUhYtg ]bhYbh hc fYbYk cf bch hc fYbYk h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh bc `UhYf h\Ub b]bYhm '6-( WU`YbXUf 
XUmg df]cf hc h\Y YbX cZ h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) ib`Ygg ZibX]b[ Zcf h\Y fYbYkU` ]g 
Wcbh]b[Ybh idcb YbUWhaYbh cZ Ub Uddfcdf]Uh]cb+  BZ ZibX]b[ Zcf h\Y fYbYkU` ]g Wcbh]b[Ybh idcb 
YbUWhaYbh cZ Ub Uddfcdf]Uh]cb) h\Y LhUhY g\U`` bch]Zm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cZ h\Y LhUhYtg ]bhYbh hc 
fYbYk cf bch hc fYbYk h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh h\Y `UhYf cZ7  '.( b]bYhm '6-( WU`YbXUf XUmg df]cf hc 
h\Y YbX cZ h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) UbX '/( h\]fhm '0-( WU`YbXUf XUmg UZhYf h\Y 
bYWYggUfm Uddfcdf]Uh]cb VYWcaYg `Uk+  Gchk]h\ghUbX]b[ h\Y ZcfY[c]b[) ]b h\Y YjYbh h\Uh h\Y 
LhUhY ]g ibUV`Y hc Wcad`m k]h\ h\Y h]aY ZfUaYg gYh Zcfh\ ]b h\]g dUfU[fUd\ XiY hc ibigiU` 
W]fWiaghUbWYg VYmcbX h\Y Wcbhfc` cZ h\Y LhUhY 'qNbigiU` <]fWiaghUbWYgr() bc dUmaYbh cZ 
]bhYfYgh g\U`` VY XiY hc h\Y bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h <cbhfUWhcf+  ?cf difdcgYg cZ LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk 
o.46*h) qNbigiU` <]fWiaghUbWYgr g\U`` bch aYUb h\Y ZU]`ifY Vm h\Y LhUhY hc ']( d`Ub Zcf 
]ad`YaYbhUh]cb cZ U dfc[fUa) ']]( Ugg][b giZZ]W]Ybh ghUZZ fYgcifWYg hc ]ad`YaYbh U dfc[fUa) 
']]]( YghUV`]g\ U gW\YXi`Y Zcf h\Y ]ad`YaYbhUh]cb cZ U dfc[fUa cf ']j( Ubh]W]dUhY Ubm ch\Yf 
fYUgcbUV`m ZcfYgYYUV`Y W]fWiaghUbWY+ 

V(  Gch]Z]WUh]cb hc h\Y bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h <cbhfUWhcf cZ h\Y LhUhYtg ]bhYbh hc bch fYbYk h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh aigh VY ]b kf]h]b[ ]b h\Y Zcfa cZ U `YhhYf) k]h\ h\Y fYUgcb'g( Zcf h\Y bcb*fYbYkU` 
]bW`iXYX+  BZ h\Y LhUhY XcYg bch dfcj]XY bch]WY hc h\Y bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h <cbhfUWhcf cZ ]hg ]bhYbh bch 
hc fYbYk h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh Ug fYei]fYX ]b h\]g LYWh]cb UbX LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk o.46*h) h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY XYYaYX Wcbh]biYX ibh]` h\Y XUhY h\Y LhUhY dfcj]XYg h\Y bYWYggUfm 
bch]WY hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk o.46*h+  >ldYbgYg ]bWiffYX Vm 
h\Y bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h <cbhfUWhcf Xif]b[ giW\ YlhYbg]cb g\U`` VY fY]aVifgUV`Y ibXYf h\Y hYfag cZ 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 244



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y 4 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

C.  Termination: 

1. Grounds:

U(  FihiU` <cbgYbh7  M\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh aUm VY hYfa]bUhYX Uh Ubm h]aY idcb aihiU` kf]hhYb 
WcbgYbh cZ h\Y LhUhY UbX h\Y <cbhfUWhcf+ 

V(  <UigY7  M\Y LhUhY aUm hYfa]bUhY h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]aaYX]UhY`m) idcb kf]hhYb bch]WY cZ 
hYfa]bUh]cb hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) ]Z h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ZU]`g hc Wcad`m k]h\ Ubm cZ h\Y hYfag UbX 
WcbX]h]cbg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UbX,cf k]h\ Ubm `Ukg) fi`Yg) fY[i`Uh]cbg) dc`]W]Yg) cf 
dfcWYXifYg h\Uh UfY Udd`]WUV`Y hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

W(  Gcb*KYgdcbg]V]`]hm7  Bb UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ LYWh]cbg BO'G('3( UbX '4( 
\YfY]b) h\Y LhUhY aUm aU_Y U Z]bU` XYhYfa]bUh]cb h\Uh h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g bcb*fYgdcbg]V`Y 
'=YhYfa]bUh]cb cZ Gcb*KYgdcbg]V]`]hm(+  Bb giW\ YjYbh) h\Y LhUhY aUm hYfa]bUhY h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh Uh h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg YldYbgY) Wcad`YhY h\Y WcbhfUWhiU` fYei]fYaYbhg ]b Ubm aUbbYf 
h\Y LhUhY XYYag UXj]gUV`Y UbX difgiY UjU]`UV`Y `Y[U` cf Yei]hUV`Y fYaYX]Yg Zcf VfYUW\+  

X(  <cbjYb]YbWY7  M\Y LhUhY aUm hYfa]bUhY h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]b ]hg gc`Y X]gWfYh]cb idcb 
h\]fhm '0-( WU`YbXUf XUmg df]cf kf]hhYb bch]WY+  

Y(  EUW_ cZ ?ibXg7  BZ Zcf Ubm fYUgcb h\Y LhUhY cf h\Y ?YXYfU` [cjYfbaYbh hYfa]bUhYg cf 
fYXiWYg ]hg Uddfcdf]Uh]cb hc h\Y Udd`]WUV`Y LhUhY 9[YbWm YbhYf]b[ ]bhc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh cf 
ZU]`g hc dUm h\Y Zi`` Uacibh cZ h\Y U``cWUh]cb Zcf h\Y cdYfUh]cb cZ cbY cf acfY dfc[fUag 
ZibXYX ibXYf h\]g FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh aUm VY hYfa]bUhYX cf fYXiWYX Uh h\Y 
LhUhY 9[YbWmtg X]gWfYh]cb) dfcj]XYX h\Uh bc giW\ fYXiWh]cb cf hYfa]bUh]cb g\U`` Udd`m hc 
U``ckUV`Y Wcghg U`fYUXm ]bWiffYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf k\YfY ZibXg UfY UjU]`UV`Y hc h\Y LhUhY 
9[YbWm Zcf dUmaYbh cZ giW\ Wcghg+  Ndcb hYfa]bUh]cb cf fYXiWh]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) U`` 
fYaU]b]b[ ZibXg dU]X hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf h\Uh UfY bch giV^YWh hc U``ckUV`Y Wcghg U`fYUXm 
]bWiffYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY fYhifbYX hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm+  Bb Ubm YjYbh) bc `]UV]`]hm 
g\U`` VY ]bWiffYX Vm h\Y LhUhY ']bW`iX]b[ h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm( VYmcbX acb]Yg UjU]`UV`Y Zcf h\Y 
difdcgYg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf UW_bck`YX[Yg h\Uh Ubm ZibXg XiY hc h\Y 
LhUhY 9[YbWm cf h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_ VYWUigY cZ X]gU``ckYX YldYbX]hifYg UZhYf UiX]h g\U`` 
VY h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg fYgdcbg]V]`]hm+ 

Z(  ?cfWY FU^YifY7  M\Y LhUhY aUm hYfa]bUhY cf gigdYbX ]hg dYfZcfaUbWY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh ]aaYX]UhY`m idcb h\Y cWWiffYbWY cZ U qZcfWY aU^YifY+r  ?cf difdcgYg cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) q?cfWY aU^YifYr g\U`` ]bW`iXY) Vih bch VY `]a]hYX hc) bUhifU` X]gUghYfg) kUf) 
fYVY``]cb) ]bgiffYWh]cb) f]ch) ghf]_Yg) `cW_cih UbX Ubm ibZcfYgYYb W]fWiaghUbWYg UbX UWhg 
VYmcbX h\Y Wcbhfc` cZ h\Y LhUhY k\]W\ fYbXYf h\Y dYfZcfaUbWY cZ ]hg cV`][Uh]cbg ]adcgg]V`Y+ 

2. Notice of Termination:

U(  LYfj]WY cZ bch]WY7  Pf]hhYb bch]WY cZ hYfa]bUh]cb g\U`` VY gYbh Vm7  

'](  dYfgcbU` aYggYb[Yf gYfj]WY8 cf  

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 245



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y 5 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

']](  WYfh]Z]YX aU]`) fYhifb fYWY]dh fYeiYghYX UbX Z]fgh W`Ugg aU]`+   

V(  >ZZYWh]jY XUhY cZ hYfa]bUh]cb7  M\Y YZZYWh]jY XUhY cZ h\Y hYfa]bUh]cb g\U`` VY h\Y `UhYf cZ ']( 
h\Y XUhY ]bX]WUhYX ]b h\Y bch]WY UbX ']]( h\Y XUhY h\Y bch]WY ]g fYWY]jYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) UbX 
g\U`` VY YghUV`]g\YX Ug Zc``ckg7 

'](  ]Z h\Y bch]WY ]g XY`]jYfYX Vm \UbX) h\Y XUhY cZ fYWY]dh g\U`` VY YghUV`]g\YX Vm h\Y fYWY]dh 
[]jYb hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cf Vm UZZ]XUj]h cZ h\Y ]bX]j]XiU` aU_]b[ giW\ \UbX XY`]jYfm 
UhhYgh]b[ hc h\Y XUhY cZ XY`]jYfm8 cf  

']]( ]Z h\Y bch]WY ]g XY`]jYfYX Vm fY[]ghYfYX cf WYfh]Z]YX aU]`) Vm h\Y fYWY]dh fYhifbYX Zfca 
h\Y Nb]hYX LhUhYg IcghU` LYfj]WY) cf ]Z bc fYWY]dh ]g fYhifbYX) Z]jY '2( Vig]bYgg XUmg Zfca 
h\Y XUhY cZ aU]`]b[ cZ h\Y Z]fgh W`Ugg `YhhYf) dcghU[Y dfYdU]X) ]b U XYdcg]hcfm ibXYf h\Y WUfY 
UbX Wcbhfc` cZ h\Y Nb]hYX LhUhYg IcghU` LYfj]WY+ 

3+  Effect of Notice and Termination on State’s Payment Obligations:

U(  Ndcb fYWY]dh cZ bch]WY cZ hYfa]bUh]cb) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc WUbWY`) df]cf hc h\Y 
YZZYWh]jY XUhY cZ Ubm dfcgdYWh]jY hYfa]bUh]cb) Ug aUbm cihghUbX]b[ cV`][Uh]cbg Ug dcgg]V`Y) 
UbX U[fYYg bch hc ]bWif Ubm bYk cV`][Uh]cbg UZhYf fYWY]dh cZ h\Y bch]WY k]h\cih UddfcjU` Vm h\Y 
LhUhY+ 

V(  M\Y LhUhY g\U`` VY fYgdcbg]V`Y Zcf dUmaYbh cb W`U]ag Zcf gYfj]WYg cf kcf_ dfcj]XYX UbX 
Wcghg ]bWiffYX difgiUbh hc h\Y hYfag cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  Bb bc YjYbh g\U`` h\Y LhUhY VY 
`]UV`Y Zcf YldYbgYg UbX cV`][Uh]cbg Uf]g]b[ Zfca h\Y fYei]fYaYbhg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UZhYf 
]hg hYfa]bUh]cb XUhY+ 

4. Effect of Termination Based on Misuse or Conversion of State or Federal Property:

P\YfY h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]g hYfa]bUhYX Zcf WUigY VUgYX cb <cbhfUWhcftg ZU]`ifY hc igY gcaY cf 
U`` cZ h\Y fYU` dfcdYfhm cf Yei]daYbh difW\UgYX difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf h\Y difdcgYg 
gYh Zcfh\ \YfY]b) h\Y LhUhY aUm) Uh ]hg cdh]cb) fYei]fY7 

U(  h\Y fYdUmaYbh hc h\Y LhUhY cZ Ubm acb]Yg dfYj]cig`m dU]X hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf8 cf  

V(  h\Y fYhifb cZ Ubm fYU` dfcdYfhm cf Yei]daYbh difW\UgYX ibXYf h\Y hYfag cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh8 cf  

W(  Ub Uddfcdf]UhY WcaV]bUh]cb cZ W`UigYg 'U( UbX 'V( cZ LYWh]cb BB'<('1( \YfY]b+   

Gch\]b[ \YfY]b g\U`` VY ]bhYbXYX hc `]a]h h\Y LhUhYtg UV]`]hm hc difgiY giW\ ch\Yf `Y[U` cf Yei]hUV`Y 
fYaYX]Yg Ug aUm VY UjU]`UV`Y+ 

D.  Suspension:  M\Y LhUhY aUm) ]b ]hg X]gWfYh]cb) cfXYf h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc gigdYbX dYfZcfaUbWY Zcf U 
fYUgcbUV`Y dYf]cX cZ h]aY+  Bb h\Y YjYbh cZ giW\ gigdYbg]cb) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY []jYb U ZcfaU` 
kf]hhYb bch]WY cih`]b]b[ h\Y dUfh]Wi`Ufg cZ giW\ gigdYbg]cb+  Ndcb ]ggiUbWY cZ giW\ bch]WY) h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf g\U`` Wcad`m k]h\ h\Y dUfh]Wi`Ufg cZ h\Y bch]WY+  M\Y LhUhY g\U`` \UjY bc cV`][Uh]cb hc 
fY]aVifgY <cbhfUWhcftg YldYbgYg Xif]b[ giW\ gigdYbg]cb dYf]cX+  9Wh]j]h]Yg aUm fYgiaY Uh giW\ h]aY 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 246



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y 6 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

Ug h\Y LhUhY ]ggiYg U ZcfaU` kf]hhYb bch]WY Uih\cf]n]b[ U fYgiadh]cb cZ dYfZcfaUbWY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh+  

III.  PAYMENT AND REPORTING

A. Terms and Conditions: 

.+  Bb Zi`` Wcbg]XYfUh]cb cZ WcbhfUWh gYfj]WYg hc VY dYfZcfaYX) h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm U[fYYg hc dUm UbX 
h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc UWWYdh U gia bch hc YlWYYX h\Y Uacibh bchYX cb h\Y ?UWY IU[Y+ 

/+  M\Y LhUhY \Ug bc cV`][Uh]cb hc aU_Y dUmaYbh ibh]` U`` fYei]fYX UddfcjU`g) ]bW`iX]b[ h\Y 
UddfcjU` cZ h\Y 9@ UbX HL<) ]Z fYei]fYX) \UjY VYYb cVhU]bYX+  <cbhfUWhcf cV`][Uh]cbg cf 
YldYbX]hifYg h\Uh dfYWYXY h\Y ghUfh XUhY cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` bch VY fY]aVifgYX+ 

0+  <cbhfUWhcf aigh dfcj]XY Wcad`YhY UbX UWWifUhY V]``]b[ ]bjc]WYg hc h\Y LhUhY ]b cfXYf hc fYWY]jY 
dUmaYbh+ Ifcj]XYX) \ckYjYf) h\Y LhUhY aUm) Uh ]hg X]gWfYh]cb) UihcaUh]WU``m [YbYfUhY U jciW\Yf ]b 
UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ Ub UddfcjYX WcbhfUWh dUmaYbh gW\YXi`Y+  ;]``]b[ ]bjc]WYg giVa]hhYX hc h\Y LhUhY 
aigh WcbhU]b U`` ]bZcfaUh]cb UbX giddcfh]b[ XcWiaYbhUh]cb fYei]fYX Vm 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh 
UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y( UbX LYWh]cb BBB'<( \YfY]b+  M\Y LhUhY aUm fYei]fY h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc 
giVa]h V]``]b[ ]bjc]WYg Y`YWhfcb]WU``m+ 

1+  IUmaYbh Zcf ]bjc]WYg giVa]hhYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` cb`m VY fYbXYfYX Y`YWhfcb]WU``m ib`Ygg 
dUmaYbh Vm dUdYf W\YW_ ]g YldfYgg`m Uih\cf]nYX Vm h\Y \YUX cZ h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm) ]b h\Y gc`Y 
X]gWfYh]cb cZ h\Y \YUX cZ giW\ LhUhY 9[YbWm) XiY hc YlhYbiUh]b[ W]fWiaghUbWYg+  LiW\ Y`YWhfcb]W 
dUmaYbh g\U`` VY aUXY ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ HL<&g dfcWYXifYg UbX dfUWh]WYg hc Uih\cf]nY 
Y`YWhfcb]W dUmaYbhg+

2+  BZ hfUjY` YldYbgYg UfY Ub UddfcjYX YldYbX]hifY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) hfUjY` YldYbgYg 
g\U`` VY fY]aVifgYX Uh h\Y `YggYf cZ h\Y fUhYg gYh Zcfh\ ]b h\Y kf]hhYb ghUbXUfX hfUjY` dc`]Wm cZ h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf) h\Y HL< [i]XY`]bYg) cf Nb]hYX LhUhYg @YbYfU` LYfj]WYg 9Xa]b]ghfUh]cb fUhYg+  Gc cih*
cZ*ghUhY hfUjY` Wcghg g\U`` VY dYfa]hhYX ib`Ygg gdYW]Z]WU``m XYhU]`YX UbX dfY*UddfcjYX Vm h\Y LhUhY+ 

3+  M]aY`]bYgg cZ UXjUbWY dUmaYbhg cf ch\Yf W`U]ag Zcf fY]aVifgYaYbh) UbX Ubm ]bhYfYgh hc VY 
dU]X hc <cbhfUWhcf Zcf `UhY dUmaYbh) g\U`` VY [cjYfbYX Vm 9fh]W`Y ..*9 cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk 
hc h\Y YlhYbh fYei]fYX Vm `Uk+ 

4+  9fh]W`Y ..*; cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk gYhg Zcfh\ WYfhU]b h]aY ZfUaYg Zcf h\Y ?i`` >lYWih]cb cZ 
WcbhfUWhg cf fYbYkU` WcbhfUWhg k]h\ bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h cf[Ub]nUh]cbg UbX h\Y ]ad`YaYbhUh]cb cZ Ubm 
dfc[fUa d`Ub UggcW]UhYX k]h\ giW\ WcbhfUWh+  ?cf difdcgYg cZ h\]g gYWh]cb) q?i`` >lYWih]cbr g\U`` 
aYUb h\Uh h\Y WcbhfUWh \Ug VYYb g][bYX Vm U`` dUfh]Yg h\YfYhc UbX \Ug cVhU]bYX h\Y UddfcjU` cZ h\Y 
9@ UbX HL<+  9bm ]bhYfYgh hc VY dU]X cb U a]ggYX dUmaYbh hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf VUgYX cb U XY`Um ]b 
h\Y ?i`` >lYWih]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY [cjYfbYX Vm 9fh]W`Y ..*; cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY 
EUk+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 247



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .- cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

B.  Advance Payment and Recoupment: 

.+ 9XjUbWY dUmaYbhg) k\]W\ h\Y LhUhY ]b ]hg gc`Y X]gWfYh]cb aUm aU_Y hc bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h [fUbh 
fYW]d]Ybhg) g\U`` VY aUXY UbX fYWcidYX ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk LYWh]cb .46'i() 
h\]g LYWh]cb UbX h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+  

/+ Bb]h]U` UXjUbWY dUmaYbhg aUXY Vm h\Y LhUhY hc bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h [fUbh fYW]d]Ybhg g\U`` VY XiY bc 
`UhYf h\Ub h\]fhm '0-( WU`YbXUf XUmg) YlW`iX]b[ `Y[U` \c`]XUmg) UZhYf h\Y Z]fgh XUm cZ h\Y <cbhfUWh 
MYfa cf) ]Z fYbYkYX) ]b h\Y dYf]cX ]XYbh]Z]YX cb h\Y ?UWY IU[Y+  LiVgYeiYbh UXjUbWY dUmaYbhg 
aUXY Vm h\Y LhUhY hc bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h [fUbh fYW]d]Ybhg g\U`` VY XiY bc `UhYf h\Ub h\]fhm '0-( WU`YbXUf 
XUmg) YlW`iX]b[ `Y[U` \c`]XUmg) UZhYf h\Y XUhYg gdYW]Z]YX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX 
KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+    

0+ ?cf giVgYeiYbh WcbhfUWh mYUfg ]b ai`h]*mYUf WcbhfUWhg) <cbhfUWhcf k]`` VY bch]Z]YX cZ h\Y 
gW\YXi`YX UXjUbWY dUmaYbhg Zcf h\Y idWca]b[ WcbhfUWh mYUf bc `UhYf h\Ub 6- XUmg df]cf hc h\Y 
WcaaYbWYaYbh cZ h\Y WcbhfUWh mYUf+  ?cf g]ad`]Z]YX fYbYkU`g) h\Y dUmaYbh gW\YXi`Y '9hhUW\aYbh 
=( k]`` VY acX]Z]YX Ug dUfh cZ h\Y fYbYkU` dfcWYgg+ 

1+ KYWcidaYbh cZ Ubm UXjUbWY dUmaYbh'g( g\U`` VY fYWcjYfYX Vm WfYX]h]b[ h\Y dYfWYbhU[Y cZ 
giVgYeiYbh W`U]ag `]ghYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y( UbX LYWh]cb BBB'<( 
\YfY]b  UbX giW\ W`U]ag g\U`` VY fYXiWYX ibh]` h\Y UXjUbWY ]g Zi``m fYWcjYfYX k]h\]b h\Y <cbhfUWh 
MYfa+  9bm ibYldYbXYX UXjUbWY VU`UbWY Uh h\Y YbX cZ h\Y <cbhfUWh MYfa g\U`` VY fYZibXYX Vm 
h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc h\Y LhUhY+ 

2+ BZ Zcf Ubm fYUgcb h\Y Uacibh cZ Ubm W`U]a ]g bch giZZ]W]Ybh hc WcjYf h\Y dfcdcfh]cbUhY UXjUbWY 
Uacibh hc VY fYWcjYfYX) h\Yb giVgYeiYbh W`U]ag aUm VY fYXiWYX ibh]` h\Y UXjUbWY ]g Zi``m 
fYWcjYfYX+   

C.  Claims for Reimbursement: 

.+ M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h W`U]ag Zcf h\Y fY]aVifgYaYbh cZ YldYbgYg ]bWiffYX cb VY\U`Z cZ 
h\Y LhUhY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\]g LYWh]cb UbX h\Y Udd`]WUV`Y W`U]a]b[ 
gW\YXi`Y ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+  

    OciW\Yfg giVa]hhYX Zcf dUmaYbh g\U`` VY XYYaYX hc VY U WYfh]Z]WUh]cb h\Uh h\Y dUmaYbhg 
fYeiYghYX UfY Zcf dfc^YWh YldYbX]hifYg aUXY ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y ]hYag Ug WcbhU]bYX ]b h\Y 
Udd`]WUV`Y 9hhUW\aYbh ; Zcfa ';iX[Yh( UbX Xif]b[ h\Y <cbhfUWh MYfa+  P\Yb giVa]hh]b[ U 
jciW\Yf) giW\ jciW\Yf g\U`` U`gc VY XYYaYX hc WYfh]Zm h\Uh7  ']( h\Y dUmaYbhg fYeiYghYX Xc bch 
Xid`]WUhY fY]aVifgYaYbh Zfca ch\Yf gcifWYg cZ ZibX]b[8 UbX ']]( h\Y ZibXg dfcj]XYX \YfY]b Xc 
bch fYd`UWY ZibXg h\Uh) ]b h\Y UVgYbWY cZ h\]g [fUbh) kci`X \UjY VYYb aUXY UjU]`UV`Y Vm h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf Zcf h\]g dfc[fUa+  KYei]fYaYbh ']]( XcYg bch Udd`m hc [fUbhg ZibXYX difgiUbh hc U 
<caaib]hm Ifc^YWhg ?ibX Uddfcdf]Uh]cb+ 

/+ <cbg]ghYbh k]h\ h\Y gY`YWhYX fY]aVifgYaYbh W`U]a]b[ gW\YXi`Y ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh 
UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` Wcad`m k]h\ h\Y Uddfcdf]UhY Zc``ck]b[ dfcj]g]cbg7  

U( JiUfhYf`m KY]aVifgYaYbh7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY Ybh]h`YX hc fYWY]jY dUmaYbhg Zcf 
kcf_) dfc^YWhg) UbX gYfj]WYg fYbXYfYX Ug XYhU]`YX UbX XYgWf]VYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh < 'Pcf_ I`Ub(+

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 248



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .. cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

    M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm eiUfhYf`m jciW\Yf W`U]ag UbX giddcfh]b[ 
XcWiaYbhUh]cb+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h jciW\Yfg hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm ]b UWWcfXUbWY 
k]h\ h\Y dfcWYXifYg gYh Zcfh\ ]b LYWh]cb BBB'9('0( \YfY]b+ 

V( Fcbh\`m KY]aVifgYaYbh7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY Ybh]h`YX hc fYWY]jY dUmaYbhg Zcf kcf_) 
dfc^YWhg) UbX gYfj]WYg fYbXYfYX Ug XYhU]`YX UbX XYgWf]VYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh < 'Pcf_ I`Ub(+ 

    M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm acbh\`m jciW\Yf W`U]ag UbX giddcfh]b[ 
XcWiaYbhUh]cb+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h jciW\Yfg hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm ]b UWWcfXUbWY 
k]h\ h\Y dfcWYXifYg gYh Zcfh\ ]b LYWh]cb BBB'9('0( \YfY]b+  

W( ;]UbbiU` KY]aVifgYaYbh7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY Ybh]h`YX hc fYWY]jY dUmaYbhg Zcf kcf_) 
dfc^YWhg) UbX gYfj]WYg fYbXYfYX Ug XYhU]`YX UbX XYgWf]VYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh < 'Pcf_ I`Ub(+ 

    M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm V]UbbiU``m jciW\Yf W`U]ag UbX giddcfh]b[ 
XcWiaYbhUh]cb+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h jciW\Yfg hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm ]b UWWcfXUbWY 
k]h\ h\Y dfcWYXifYg gYh Zcfh\ ]b LYWh]cb BBB'9('0( \YfY]b+ 

X( F]`YghcbY,IYfZcfaUbWY KY]aVifgYaYbh71  KYeiYghg Zcf dUmaYbh VUgYX idcb Ub YjYbh cf 
a]`YghcbY aUm VY Y]h\Yf gYjYfUV`Y cf Wiai`Uh]jY+  9 gYjYfUV`Y YjYbh,a]`YghcbY ]g 
]bXYdYbXYbh cZ UWWcad`]g\aYbh cZ Ubm ch\Yf YjYbh+  BZ h\Y YjYbh ]g Wiai`Uh]jY) h\Y giWWYggZi` 
Wcad`Yh]cb cZ Ub YjYbh cf a]`YghcbY ]g XYdYbXYbh cb h\Y dfYj]cig Wcad`Yh]cb cZ Ubch\Yf 
YjYbh+ 

    F]`YghcbY dUmaYbhg g\U`` VY aUXY hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf k\Yb fYeiYghYX ]b U Zcfa UddfcjYX Vm 
h\Y LhUhY) UbX Uh ZfYeiYbW]Yg UbX ]b Uacibhg ghUhYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y(+  M\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm g\U`` aU_Y a]`YghcbY dUmaYbhg giV^YWh hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg 
gUh]gZUWhcfm dYfZcfaUbWY+ 

Y( ?YY Zcf LYfj]WY KY]aVifgYaYbh72  IUmaYbh g\U`` VY `]a]hYX hc cb`m h\cgY ZYYg gdYW]Z]WU``m 
U[fYYX idcb ]b h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UbX g\U`` VY dUmUV`Y bc acfY ZfYeiYbh`m h\Ub acbh\`m 
idcb giVa]gg]cb cZ U jciW\Yf Vm h\Y WcbhfUWhcf+ 

Z( KUhY ;UgYX KY]aVifgYaYbh7
3  IUmaYbh g\U`` VY `]a]hYX hc fUhY'g( YghUV`]g\YX ]b h\Y 

FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  IUmaYbh aUm VY fYeiYghYX bc acfY ZfYeiYbh`m h\Ub acbh\`m+ 

[( LW\YXi`YX KY]aVifgYaYbh74  M\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm g\U`` [YbYfUhY jciW\Yfg Uh h\Y ZfYeiYbW]Yg 
UbX Uacibhg Ug gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() UbX gYfj]WY 

1 9 a]`YghcbY, dYfZcfaUbWY dUmaYbh gW\YXi`Y ]XYbh]Z]Yg aihiU``m U[fYYX*hc dUmaYbh Uacibhg VUgYX cb aYYh]b[ WcbhfUWh YjYbhg cf 
a]`YghcbYg+  >jYbhg cf a]`YghcbYg aigh fYdfYgYbh ]bhY[fU` UbX aYUb]b[Zi` UgdYWhg cZ WcbhfUWh dYfZcfaUbWY UbX g\ci`X g][b]Zm hfiY 
dfc[fYgg ]b Wcad`Yh]b[ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh YZZcfh+ 
2 ?YY Zcf LYfj]WY ]g U fUhY YghUV`]g\YX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Zcf U gYfj]WY cf gYfj]WYg fYbXYfYX+  
3 KUhY VUgYX U[fYYaYbhg UfY h\cgY U[fYYaYbhg ]b k\]W\ dUmaYbh ]g dfYa]gYX idcb U gdYW]Z]W YghUV`]g\YX fUhY dYf ib]h+ 
4 LW\YXi`YX KY]aVifgYaYbh U[fYYaYbhg dfcj]XY Zcf dUmaYbhg h\Uh cWWif Uh XYZ]bYX UbX fY[i`Uf ]bhYfjU`g h\Uh dfcj]XY Zcf U gdYW]Z]YX 
Xc``Uf Uacibh hc VY dU]X hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Uh h\Y VY[]bb]b[ cZ YUW\ dUmaYbh dYf]cX ']+Y+ eiUfhYf`m) acbh\`m cf V]*UbbiU``m(+  P\]`Y 
h\YgY dUmaYbhg UfY fY`UhYX hc h\Y dUfh]Wi`Uf gYfj]WYg UbX cihWcaYg XYZ]bYX ]b h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\Ym UfY bch XYdYbXYbh idcb 
dUfh]Wi`Uf gYfj]WYg cf YldYbgYg ]b Ubm cbY dUmaYbh dYf]cX UbX dfcj]XY h\Y <cbhfUWhcf k]h\ U XYZ]bYX UbX fY[i`Uf dUmaYbh cjYf h\Y `]ZY 
cZ h\Y WcbhfUWh+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 249



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y ./ cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

fYdcfhg g\U`` VY igYX hc XYhYfa]bY ZibX]b[ `YjY`g Uddfcdf]UhY hc h\Y bYlh UbbiU` WcbhfUWh 
dYf]cX+ 

\( BbhYf]a KY]aVifgYaYbh7  M\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm g\U`` [YbYfUhY jciW\Yfg cb Ub ]bhYf]a VUg]g 
UbX Uh h\Y Uacibhg fYeiYghYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Ug gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX 
KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+ 

]( ?]Zh\ JiUfhYf IUmaYbhg75  ?]Zh\ eiUfhYf dUmaYbh g\U`` VY dU]X hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Uh h\Y 
WcbW`ig]cb cZ h\Y Z]bU` gW\YXi`YX dUmaYbh dYf]cX cZ h\Y dfYWYX]b[ WcbhfUWh dYf]cX+  M\Y LhUhY 
9[YbWm g\U`` igY U kf]hhYb X]fYWh]jY Zcf Z]Zh\ eiUfhYf Z]bUbW]b[+  M\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm g\U``
[YbYfUhY U jciW\Yf ]b h\Y Zcifh\ eiUfhYf cZ h\Y WiffYbh WcbhfUWh mYUf hc dUm h\Y gW\YXi`YX 
dUmaYbh Zcf h\Y bYlh WcbhfUWh mYUf+

0+ M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` U`gc giVa]h giddcfh]b[ Z]gWU` XcWiaYbhUh]cb Zcf h\Y YldYbgYg W`U]aYX+ 

1+ M\Y LhUhY fYgYfjYg h\Y f][\h hc k]h\\c`X id hc Z]ZhYYb dYfWYbh '.2$( cZ h\Y hchU` Uacibh cZ h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh Ug gYWif]hm Zcf h\Y ZU]h\Zi` Wcad`Yh]cb cZ gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) ibXYf 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\]g Uacibh aUm VY k]h\\Y`X ]b k\c`Y cf ]b dUfh Zfca Ubm g]b[`Y dUmaYbh 
cf WcaV]bUh]cb cZ dUmaYbhg ch\Yfk]gY XiY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  Bb h\Y YjYbh h\Uh giW\ 
k]h\\Y`X ZibXg UfY ]bgiZZ]W]Ybh hc gUh]gZm <cbhfUWhcftg cV`][Uh]cbg hc h\Y LhUhY) h\Y LhUhY aUm 
difgiY U`` UjU]`UV`Y fYaYX]Yg) ]bW`iX]b[ h\Y f][\h cZ gYhcZZ UbX fYWcidaYbh+  

2+ M\Y LhUhY g\U`` bch VY `]UV`Y Zcf dUmaYbhg cb h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]Z ]h ]g aUXY difgiUbh hc U 
<caaib]hm Ifc^YWhg ?ibX Uddfcdf]Uh]cb ]Z ]bgiZZ]W]Ybh acb]Yg UfY UjU]`UV`Y difgiUbh hc LYWh]cb 
66*X cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk+ 

3+ 9`` jciW\Yfg giVa]hhYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY giVa]hhYX 
hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm bc `UhYf h\Ub h\]fhm '0-( WU`YbXUf XUmg UZhYf h\Y YbX XUhY cZ h\Y dYf]cX Zcf 
k\]W\ fY]aVifgYaYbh ]g W`U]aYX+  Bb bc YjYbh g\U`` h\Y Uacibh fYWY]jYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
YlWYYX h\Y ViX[Yh Uacibh UddfcjYX Vm h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm) UbX) ]Z UWhiU` YldYbX]hifYg Vm h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf UfY `Ygg h\Ub giW\ gia) h\Y Uacibh dUmUV`Y Vm h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
g\U`` bch YlWYYX h\Y Uacibh cZ UWhiU` YldYbX]hifYg+ 

4+ 9`` cV`][Uh]cbg aigh VY ]bWiffYX df]cf hc h\Y YbX XUhY cZ h\Y WcbhfUWh+  Gchk]h\ghUbX]b[ h\Y 
dfcj]g]cbg cZ LYWh]cb BBB'<('3( UVcjY) k]h\ fYgdYWh hc h\Y Z]bU` dYf]cX Zcf k\]W\ fY]aVifgYaYbh ]g 
W`U]aYX) gc `cb[ Ug h\Y cV`][Uh]cbg kYfY ]bWiffYX df]cf hc h\Y YbX XUhY cZ h\Y WcbhfUWh) h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf g\U`` \UjY id hc b]bYhm '6-( WU`YbXUf XUmg UZhYf h\Y WcbhfUWh YbX XUhY hc aU_Y 
YldYbX]hifYg8 dfcj]XYX) \ckYjYf) h\Uh ]Z h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]g ZibXYX) ]b k\c`Y cf ]b dUfh) k]h\ 
?YXYfU` ZibXg) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` \UjY id hc g]lhm '3-( WU`YbXUf XUmg UZhYf h\Y WcbhfUWh YbX XUhY 
hc aU_Y YldYbX]hifYg+ 

D. Identifying Information and Privacy Notification:

5 ?]Zh\ JiUfhYf IUmaYbhg cWWifg k\YfY h\YfY UfY gW\YXi`YX dUmaYbhg UbX k\YfY h\YfY ]g Ub YldYWhUh]cb h\Uh gYfj]WYg k]`` VY Wcbh]biYX 
h\fci[\ fYbYkU`g cf giVgYeiYbh WcbhfUWhg+  ?]Zh\ JiUfhYf IUmaYbhg U``ck Zcf h\Y Wcbh]biUh]cb cZ gW\YXi`YX dUmaYbhg hc U <cbhfUWhcf 
Zcf h\Y Z]fgh dUmaYbh dYf]cX eiUfhYf cZ Ub Ubh]W]dUhYX fYbYkU` cf bYk WcbhfUWh+  

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 250



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .0 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

.+ >jYfm jciW\Yf cf GYk Rcf_ LhUhY <`U]a Zcf IUmaYbh giVa]hhYX hc U LhUhY 9[YbWm Vm h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf) Zcf dUmaYbh Zcf h\Y gU`Y cZ [ccXg cf gYfj]WYg cf Zcf hfUbgUWh]cbg 'Y+[+) `YUgYg) 
YUgYaYbhg) `]WYbgYg) YhW+( fY`UhYX hc fYU` cf dYfgcbU` dfcdYfhm) aigh ]bW`iXY h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg 
OYbXcf BXYbh]Z]WUh]cb GiaVYf Ugg][bYX Vm h\Y LhUhYk]XY ?]bUbW]U` LmghYa) UbX Ubm cf U`` cZ h\Y 
Zc``ck]b[ ]XYbh]Z]WUh]cb biaVYfg7 ']( h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg ?YXYfU` Yad`cmYf ]XYbh]Z]WUh]cb biaVYf) 
']]( h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg ?YXYfU` gcW]U` gYWif]hm biaVYf) UbX,cf ']]]( =NGL biaVYf+  ?U]`ifY hc 
]bW`iXY giW\ ]XYbh]Z]WUh]cb biaVYf cf biaVYfg aUm XY`Um dUmaYbh Vm h\Y LhUhY hc h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf+  P\YfY h\Y <cbhfUWhcf XcYg bch \UjY giW\ biaVYf cf biaVYfg) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) cb ]hg 
jciW\Yf cf <`U]a Zcf IUmaYbh) aigh dfcj]XY h\Y fYUgcb cf fYUgcbg Zcf k\m h\Y <cbhfUWhcf XcYg 
bch \UjY giW\ biaVYf cf biaVYfg+  

/+ M\Y Uih\cf]hm hc fYeiYgh h\Y UVcjY dYfgcbU` ]bZcfaUh]cb Zfca U gY``Yf cZ [ccXg cf gYfj]WYg cf 
U `Yggcf cZ fYU` cf dYfgcbU` dfcdYfhm) UbX h\Y Uih\cf]hm hc aU]bhU]b giW\ ]bZcfaUh]cb) ]g ZcibX ]b 
LYWh]cb 2 cZ h\Y LhUhY MUl EUk+  =]gW`cgifY cZ h\]g ]bZcfaUh]cb Vm h\Y gY``Yf cf `Yggcf hc h\Y LhUhY 
]g aUbXUhcfm+  M\Y df]bW]d`Y difdcgY Zcf k\]W\ h\Y ]bZcfaUh]cb ]g Wc``YWhYX ]g hc YbUV`Y h\Y LhUhY 
hc ]XYbh]Zm ]bX]j]XiU`g) Vig]bYggYg UbX ch\Yfg k\c \UjY VYYb XY`]beiYbh ]b Z]`]b[ hUl fYhifbg cf 
aUm \UjY ibXYfghUhYX h\Y]f hUl `]UV]`]h]Yg UbX hc [YbYfU``m ]XYbh]Zm dYfgcbg UZZYWhYX Vm h\Y hUlYg 
UXa]b]ghYfYX Vm h\Y <caa]gg]cbYf cZ MUlUh]cb UbX ?]bUbWY+  M\Y ]bZcfaUh]cb k]`` VY igYX Zcf 
hUl UXa]b]ghfUh]cb difdcgYg UbX Zcf Ubm ch\Yf difdcgY Uih\cf]nYX Vm `Uk+  M\Y dYfgcbU` 
]bZcfaUh]cb ]g fYeiYghYX Vm h\Y difW\Ug]b[ ib]h cZ h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm WcbhfUWh]b[ hc difW\UgY h\Y 
[ccXg cf gYfj]WYg cf `YUgY h\Y fYU` cf dYfgcbU` dfcdYfhm WcjYfYX Vm h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\]g 
]bZcfaUh]cb ]g aU]bhU]bYX ]b h\Y LhUhYk]XY ?]bUbW]U` LmghYa Vm h\Y OYbXcf FUbU[YaYbh Nb]h 
k]h\]b h\Y ;ifYUi cZ LhUhY >ldYbX]hifYg) HZZ]WY cZ h\Y LhUhY <cadhfc``Yf) ..- LhUhY LhfYYh) 
9`VUbm) GYk Rcf_) .//03+ 

E.  Refunds: 

.+  Bb h\Y YjYbh h\Uh h\Y <cbhfUWhcf aigh aU_Y U fYZibX hc h\Y LhUhY Zcf FUghYf <cbhfUWh*fY`UhYX 
UWh]j]h]Yg) ]bW`iX]b[ fYdUmaYbh cZ Ub UXjUbWY cf Ub UiX]h X]gU``ckUbWY) dUmaYbh aigh VY aUXY 
dUmUV`Y Ug gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh 9*. 'Ifc[fUa LdYW]Z]W MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg(+  M\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf aigh fYZYfYbWY h\Y WcbhfUWh biaVYf k]h\ ]hg dUmaYbh UbX ]bW`iXY U Vf]YZ Yld`UbUh]cb 
cZ k\m h\Y fYZibX ]g VY]b[ aUXY+  KYZibX dUmaYbhg aigh VY giVa]hhYX hc h\Y =Yg][bUhYX KYZibX 
HZZ]WY Uh h\Y UXXfYgg gdYW]Z]YX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh 9*. 'Ifc[fUa LdYW]Z]W MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg(+ 

/+  BZ Uh h\Y YbX cf hYfa]bUh]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\YfY fYaU]bg Ubm ibYldYbXYX VU`UbWY cZ 
h\Y acb]Yg UXjUbWYX ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]b h\Y dcggYgg]cb cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf g\U`` aU_Y dUmaYbh k]h\]b Zcfhm*Z]jY '12( WU`YbXUf XUmg cZ h\Y YbX cf hYfa]bUh]cb cZ 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  Bb h\Y YjYbh h\Uh h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ZU]`g hc fYZibX giW\ VU`UbWY h\Y LhUhY aUm 
difgiY U`` UjU]`UV`Y fYaYX]Yg+ 

F. Outstanding Amounts Owed to the State: If]cf dYf]cX cjYfdUmaYbhg ']bW`iX]b[) Vih bch `]a]hYX 
hc) WcbhfUWh UXjUbWYg ]b YlWYgg cZ UWhiU` YldYbX]hifYg( UbX,cf UiX]h fYWcjYf]Yg UggcW]UhYX k]h\ h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf aUm VY fYWcidYX U[U]bgh ZihifY dUmaYbhg aUXY ibXYf h\]g FUghYf <cbhfUWh hc <cbhfUWhcf+  
M\Y fYWcidaYbh [YbYfU``m VY[]bg k]h\ h\Y Z]fgh dUmaYbh aUXY hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Zc``ck]b[ 
]XYbh]Z]WUh]cb cZ h\Y cjYfdUmaYbh UbX,cf UiX]h fYWcjYfm Uacibh+  Bb h\Y YjYbh h\Uh h\YfY UfY bc 
dUmaYbhg hc Udd`m fYWcjYf]Yg U[U]bgh) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` aU_Y dUmaYbh Ug dfcj]XYX ]b LYWh]cb 
BBB'>( 'KYZibXg( \YfY]b+

G.  Program and Fiscal Reporting Requirements: 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 251



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .1 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

.+ M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h fYei]fYX dYf]cX]W fYdcfhg ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y Udd`]WUV`Y 
gW\YXi`Y dfcj]XYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+  9`` fYei]fYX fYdcfhg cf 
ch\Yf kcf_ dfcXiWhg XYjY`cdYX difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh aigh VY Wcad`YhYX Ug dfcj]XYX 
Vm h\Y U[fYYX idcb kcf_ gW\YXi`Y ]b U aUbbYf gUh]gZUWhcfm UbX UWWYdhUV`Y hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm ]b 
cfXYf Zcf h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc VY Y`][]V`Y Zcf dUmaYbh+ 

/+ <cbg]ghYbh k]h\ h\Y gY`YWhYX fYdcfh]b[ cdh]cbg ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y() h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` Wcad`m k]h\ h\Y Zc``ck]b[ Udd`]WUV`Y dfcj]g]cbg7 

U( BZ h\Y >ldYbX]hifY ;UgYX KYdcfhg cdh]cb ]g ]bX]WUhYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX 
KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dfcj]XY h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm k]h\ cbY cf acfY cZ h\Y 
Zc``ck]b[ fYdcfhg Ug fYei]fYX Vm h\Y Zc``ck]b[ dfcj]g]cbg UbX 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX 
KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y( Ug Udd`]WUV`Y7 

']( Narrative/Qualitative Report7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h) cb U eiUfhYf`m VUg]g) bch 
`UhYf h\Ub h\Y h]aY dYf]cX `]ghYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() U 
fYdcfh) ]b bUffUh]jY Zcfa) giaaUf]n]b[ h\Y gYfj]WYg fYbXYfYX Xif]b[ h\Y eiUfhYf+  M\]g 
fYdcfh g\U`` XYhU]` \ck h\Y <cbhfUWhcf \Ug dfc[fYggYX hckUfX UhhU]b]b[ h\Y eiU`]hUh]jY 
[cU`g YbiaYfUhYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh < 'Pcf_ I`Ub(+  M\]g fYdcfh g\ci`X UXXfYgg U`` [cU`g 
UbX cV^YWh]jYg cZ h\Y dfc^YWh UbX ]bW`iXY U X]gWigg]cb cZ dfcV`Yag YbWcibhYfYX UbX ghYdg 
hU_Yb hc gc`jY h\Ya+ 

']]( Statistical/Quantitative Report7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h) cb U eiUfhYf`m VUg]g) bch 
`UhYf h\Ub h\Y h]aY dYf]cX `]ghYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() U 
XYhU]`YX fYdcfh UbU`mn]b[ h\Y eiUbh]hUh]jY UgdYWhg cZ h\Y dfc[fUa d`Ub) Ug Uddfcdf]UhY 
'Y+[+) biaVYf cZ aYU`g gYfjYX) W`]Ybhg hfUbgdcfhYX) dUh]Ybh,W`]Ybh YbWcibhYfg) dfcWYXifYg 
dYfZcfaYX) hfU]b]b[ gYgg]cbg WcbXiWhYX) YhW+( 

']]]( Expenditure Report7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h) cb U eiUfhYf`m VUg]g) bch `UhYf h\Ub 
h\Y h]aY dYf]cX `]ghYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() U XYhU]`YX 
YldYbX]hifY fYdcfh) Vm cV^YWh cZ YldYbgY+ M\]g fYdcfh g\U`` UWWcadUbm h\Y jciW\Yf 
giVa]hhYX Zcf giW\ dYf]cX+ 

']j( Final Report7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h U Z]bU` fYdcfh Ug fYei]fYX Vm h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) bch `UhYf h\Ub h\Y h]aY dYf]cX `]ghYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y( k\]W\ fYdcfhg cb U`` UgdYWhg cZ h\Y dfc[fUa UbX XYhU]`]b[ \ck h\Y igY cZ 
ZibXg kYfY ih]`]nYX ]b UW\]Yj]b[ h\Y [cU`g gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh < 'Pcf_ I`Ub(+ 

'j( Consolidated Fiscal Report '<?K(7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h U <?K) k\]W\ ]bW`iXYg 
U mYUf*YbX Wcgh fYdcfh UbX Z]bU` W`U]a bch `UhYf h\Ub h\Y h]aY dYf]cX `]ghYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh 
= 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+ 

V( BZ h\Y IYfZcfaUbWY*;UgYX KYdcfhg cdh]cb ]g ]bX]WUhYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX 
KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dfcj]XY h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm k]h\ h\Y Zc``ck]b[ 
fYdcfhg Ug fYei]fYX Vm h\Y Zc``ck]b[ dfcj]g]cbg UbX 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y( Ug Udd`]WUV`Y7 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 252



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .2 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

']( Progress Report7  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dfcj]XY h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm k]h\ U kf]hhYb 
dfc[fYgg fYdcfh ig]b[ h\Y Zcfag UbX ZcfaUhg Ug dfcj]XYX Vm h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm) 
giaaUf]n]b[ h\Y kcf_ dYfZcfaYX Xif]b[ h\Y dYf]cX+  M\YgY fYdcfhg g\U`` XYhU]` h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcftg dfc[fYgg hckUfX UhhU]b]b[ h\Y gdYW]Z]W [cU`g YbiaYfUhYX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh < 
'Pcf_ I`Ub(+  Ifc[fYgg fYdcfhg g\U`` VY giVa]hhYX ]b U ZcfaUh dfYgWf]VYX ]b h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh+ 

']]( Final Progress Report7  ?]bU` gW\YXi`YX dUmaYbh ]g XiY Xif]b[ h\Y h]aY dYf]cX gYh Zcfh\ 
]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+  M\Y XYUX`]bY Zcf giVa]gg]cb cZ 
h\Y Z]bU` fYdcfh g\U`` VY h\Y XUhY gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y(+  M\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm g\U`` Wcad`YhY ]hg UiX]h UbX bch]Zm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cZ h\Y 
fYgi`hg bc `UhYf h\Ub h\Y XUhY gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y(+  IUmaYbh g\U`` VY UX^ighYX Vm h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm hc fYZ`YWh cb`m h\cgY 
gYfj]WYg,YldYbX]hifYg h\Uh kYfY aUXY ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf g\U`` giVa]h U XYhU]`YX WcadfY\Ybg]jY Z]bU` dfc[fYgg fYdcfh bch `UhYf h\Ub h\Y 
XUhY gYh Zcfh\ ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y() giaaUf]n]b[ h\Y 
kcf_ dYfZcfaYX Xif]b[ h\Y Ybh]fY <cbhfUWh MYfa ']+Y+) U Wiai`Uh]jY fYdcfh() ]b h\Y Zcfag 
UbX ZcfaUhg fYei]fYX+ 

0+  Bb UXX]h]cb hc h\Y dYf]cX]W fYdcfhg ghUhYX UVcjY) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf aUm VY fYei]fYX 'U( hc giVa]h 
giW\ ch\Yf fYdcfhg Ug UfY fYei]fYX ]b MUV`Y . cZ 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y() UbX 'V( df]cf hc fYWY]dh cZ Z]bU` dUmaYbh ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) hc giVa]h cbY cf 
acfY Z]bU` fYdcfhg ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y Zcfa) WcbhYbh) UbX gW\YXi`Y ghUhYX ]b MUV`Y . cZ 
9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ LW\YXi`Y(+ 

H.  Notification of Significant Occurrences: 

.+  BZ Ubm gdYW]Z]W YjYbh cf Wcb^ibWh]cb cZ W]fWiaghUbWYg h\fYUhYbg h\Y giWWYggZi` Wcad`Yh]cb cZ 
h\]g dfc^YWh) ]b k\c`Y cf ]b dUfh) ]bW`iX]b[ k\YfY fY`YjUbh) h]aY`m Wcad`Yh]cb cZ a]`YghcbYg cf 
ch\Yf dfc[fUa fYei]fYaYbhg) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc giVa]h hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm k]h\]b h\fYY '0( 
WU`YbXUf XUmg cZ VYWca]b[ UkUfY cZ h\Y cWWiffYbWY cf cZ giW\ dfcV`Ya) U kf]hhYb XYgWf]dh]cb 
h\YfYcZ hc[Yh\Yf k]h\ U fYWcaaYbXYX gc`ih]cb h\YfYhc+ 

/+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` ]aaYX]UhY`m bch]Zm ]b kf]h]b[ h\Y dfc[fUa aUbU[Yf Ugg][bYX hc h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh cZ Ubm ibigiU` ]bW]XYbh) cWWiffYbWY) cf YjYbh h\Uh ]bjc`jYg h\Y ghUZZ) jc`ibhYYfg) 
X]fYWhcfg cf cZZ]WYfg cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) Ubm giVWcbhfUWhcf cf dfc[fUa dUfh]W]dUbh ZibXYX h\fci[\ 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) ]bW`iX]b[ Vih bch `]a]hYX hc h\Y Zc``ck]b[7 XYUh\ cf gYf]cig ]b^ifm8 Ub UffYgh 
cf dcgg]V`Y Wf]a]bU` UWh]j]hm h\Uh Wci`X ]adUWh h\Y giWWYggZi` Wcad`Yh]cb cZ h\]g dfc^YWh8 Ubm 
XYghfiWh]cb cZ dfcdYfhm8 g][b]Z]WUbh XUaU[Y hc h\Y d\mg]WU` d`Ubh cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf8 cf ch\Yf 
aUhhYfg cZ U g]a]`Uf`m gYf]cig bUhifY+ 

IV.  ADDITIONAL CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

A.  Contractor as an Independent Contractor/Employees:

.+ M\Y LhUhY UbX h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYY h\Uh h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g Ub ]bXYdYbXYbh WcbhfUWhcf) UbX bch 
Ub Yad`cmYY cZ h\Y LhUhY UbX aUm bY]h\Yf \c`X ]hgY`Z cih bcf W`U]a hc VY Ub cZZ]WYf) Yad`cmYY) 
cf giVX]j]g]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY bcf aU_Y Ubm W`U]a) XYaUbX) cf Udd`]WUh]cb hc cf Zcf Ubm f][\h 
VUgYX idcb Ubm X]ZZYfYbh ghUhig+  Gchk]h\ghUbX]b[ h\Y ZcfY[c]b[) h\Y LhUhY UbX h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 253



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .3 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

U[fYY h\Uh ]Z h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g U GYk Rcf_ LhUhY aib]W]dU`]hm) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY 
dYfa]hhYX hc \c`X ]hgY`Z cih) UbX W`U]a) hc VY U giVX]j]g]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY+ 

M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY gc`Y`m fYgdcbg]V`Y Zcf h\Y fYWfi]haYbh) \]f]b[) dfcj]g]cb cZ 
Yad`cmaYbh VYbYZ]hg) dUmaYbh cZ gU`Uf]Yg UbX aUbU[YaYbh cZ ]hg dfc^YWh dYfgcbbY`+  M\YgY 
ZibWh]cbg g\U`` VY WUff]YX cih ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) UbX 
U`` Udd`]WUV`Y ?YXYfU` UbX LhUhY `Ukg UbX fY[i`Uh]cbg+ 

/+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf kUffUbhg h\Uh ]h) ]hg ghUZZ) UbX Ubm UbX U`` giVWcbhfUWhcfg \UjY U`` h\Y bYWYggUfm 
`]WYbgYg) UddfcjU`g) UbX WYfh]Z]WUh]cbg WiffYbh`m fYei]fYX Vm h\Y `Ukg cZ Ubm Udd`]WUV`Y `cWU`) 
ghUhY) cf ?YXYfU` [cjYfbaYbh hc dYfZcfa h\Y gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) difgiUbh hc h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh UbX,cf Ubm giVWcbhfUWh YbhYfYX ]bhc ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
Zifh\Yf U[fYYg h\Uh giW\ fYei]fYX `]WYbgYg) UddfcjU`g) UbX WYfh]Z]WUhYg g\U`` VY _Ydh ]b Zi`` ZcfWY 
UbX YZZYWh Xif]b[ h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) cf Ubm YlhYbg]cb h\YfYcZ) UbX hc gYWifY Ubm 
bYk `]WYbgYg) UddfcjU`g) cf WYfh]Z]WUhYg k]h\]b h\Y fYei]fYX h]aY ZfUaYg UbX,cf hc fYei]fY ]hg ghUZZ 
UbX giVWcbhfUWhcfg hc cVhU]b h\Y fYei]g]hY `]WYbgYg) UddfcjU`g) cf WYfh]Z]WUhYg+  Bb h\Y YjYbh h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf) ]hg ghUZZ) UbX,cf giVWcbhfUWhcfg UfY bch]Z]YX cZ U XYb]U` cf fYjcWUh]cb cZ Ubm `]WYbgY) 
UddfcjU`) cf WYfh]Z]WUh]cb hc dYfZcfa h\Y gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) ibXYf h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` ]aaYX]UhY`m bch]Zm h\Y LhUhY+ 

B.  Subcontractors: 

.+  BZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf YbhYfg ]bhc giVWcbhfUWhg Zcf h\Y dYfZcfaUbWY cZ kcf_ difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` hU_Y Zi`` fYgdcbg]V]`]hm Zcf h\Y UWhg UbX ca]gg]cbg cZ ]hg 
giVWcbhfUWhcfg+  Gch\]b[ ]b h\Y giVWcbhfUWh g\U`` ]adU]f h\Y f][\hg cZ h\Y LhUhY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh+  Gc WcbhfUWhiU` fY`Uh]cbg\]d g\U`` VY XYYaYX hc Yl]gh VYhkYYb h\Y giVWcbhfUWhcf UbX h\Y 
LhUhY+  

/+  BZ fYeiYghYX Vm h\Y LhUhY) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg bch hc YbhYf ]bhc Ubm giVWcbhfUWhg) cf fYj]g]cbg 
hc giVWcbhfUWhg) h\Uh UfY ]b YlWYgg cZ #.--)--- Zcf h\Y dYfZcfaUbWY cZ h\Y cV`][Uh]cbg WcbhU]bYX 
\YfY]b ibh]` ]h \Ug fYWY]jYX h\Y df]cf kf]hhYb dYfa]gg]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY) k\]W\ g\U`` \UjY h\Y f][\h hc 
fYj]Yk UbX UddfcjY YUW\ UbX YjYfm giVWcbhfUWh ]b YlWYgg cZ #.--)--- df]cf hc []j]b[ kf]hhYb 
dYfa]gg]cb hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc YbhYf ]bhc h\Y giVWcbhfUWh+  9`` U[fYYaYbhg VYhkYYb h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf UbX giVWcbhfUWhcfg g\U`` VY Vm kf]hhYb WcbhfUWh) g][bYX Vm ]bX]j]XiU`g Uih\cf]nYX hc 
V]bX h\Y dUfh]Yg+  9`` giW\ giVWcbhfUWhg g\U`` WcbhU]b dfcj]g]cbg Zcf gdYW]Zm]b[ '.( h\Uh h\Y kcf_ 
dYfZcfaYX Vm h\Y giVWcbhfUWhcf aigh VY ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y hYfag cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) '/( 
h\Uh bch\]b[ WcbhU]bYX ]b h\Y giVWcbhfUWh g\U`` ]adU]f h\Y f][\hg cZ h\Y LhUhY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) UbX '0( h\Uh bch\]b[ WcbhU]bYX ]b h\Y giVWcbhfUWh) bcf ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) g\U`` 
VY XYYaYX hc WfYUhY Ubm WcbhfUWhiU` fY`Uh]cbg\]d VYhkYYb h\Y giVWcbhfUWhcf UbX h\Y LhUhY+  Bb 
UXX]h]cb) giVWcbhfUWhg g\U`` WcbhU]b Ubm ch\Yf dfcj]g]cbg k\]W\ UfY fYei]fYX hc VY ]bW`iXYX ]b 
giVWcbhfUWhg difgiUbh hc h\Y hYfag \YfY]b+ 

0+  BZ fYeiYghYX Vm h\Y LhUhY) df]cf hc YlYWih]b[ U giVWcbhfUWh) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc fYei]fY h\Y 
giVWcbhfUWhcf hc dfcj]XY hc h\Y LhUhY h\Y ]bZcfaUh]cb h\Y LhUhY bYYXg hc XYhYfa]bY k\Yh\Yf U 
dfcdcgYX giVWcbhfUWhcf ]g U fYgdcbg]V`Y jYbXcf+ 

1+  BZ fYeiYghYX Vm h\Y LhUhY) k\Yb U giVWcbhfUWh YeiU`g cf YlWYYXg #.--)---) h\Y giVWcbhfUWhcf 
g\U`` giVa]h U OYbXcf KYgdcbg]V]`]hm JiYgh]cbbU]fY 'JiYgh]cbbU]fY(+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 254



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .4 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

2+  BZ fYeiYghYX Vm h\Y LhUhY) idcb h\Y YlYWih]cb cZ U giVWcbhfUWh) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dfcj]XY 
XYhU]`YX giVWcbhfUWh ]bZcfaUh]cb 'U Wcdm cZ giVWcbhfUWh k]`` giZZ]WY( hc h\Y LhUhY k]h\]b Z]ZhYYb 
'.2( WU`YbXUf XUmg UZhYf YlYWih]cb+  M\Y LhUhY aUm fYeiYgh Zfca h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Wcd]Yg cZ 
giVWcbhfUWhg VYhkYYb U giVWcbhfUWhcf UbX ]hg giVWcbhfUWhcf+ 

3+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` fYei]fY Ubm UbX U`` giVWcbhfUWhcfg hc giVa]h hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U`` 
Z]bUbW]U` W`U]ag Zcf LYfj]WYg cf kcf_ hc h\Y LhUhY U[YbWm) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) fYbXYfYX UbX fYei]fYX 
giddcfh]b[ XcWiaYbhUh]cb UbX fYdcfhg Ug bYWYggUfm hc dYfa]h <cbhfUWhcf hc aYYh W`U]a XYUX`]bYg 
UbX XcWiaYbhUh]cb fYei]fYaYbhg Ug YghUV`]g\YX ]b 9hhUW\aYbh = 'IUmaYbh UbX KYdcfh]b[ 
LW\YXi`Y( UbX LYWh]cb BBB+  LiVWcbhfUWhcfg g\U`` VY dU]X Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cb U h]aY`m VUg]g UZhYf 
giVa]hh]b[ h\Y fYei]fYX fYdcfhg UbX jciW\Yfg Zcf fY]aVifgYaYbh cZ gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug 
Udd`]WUV`Y+  LiVWcbhfUWhcfg g\U`` VY ]bZcfaYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cZ h\Y dcgg]V]`]hm cZ bcb*dUmaYbh 
cf fY^YWh]cb Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cZ W`U]ag h\Uh Xc bch WcbhU]b h\Y fYei]fYX ]bZcfaUh]cb) UbX,cf UfY 
bch fYWY]jYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Vm gU]X XiY XUhY+  

C. Use Of Material, Equipment, Or Personnel: 

.+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` bch igY aUhYf]U`g) Yei]daYbh) cf dYfgcbbY` dU]X Zcf ibXYf h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh Zcf Ubm UWh]j]hm ch\Yf h\Ub h\cgY dfcj]XYX Zcf ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) YlWYdh k]h\ h\Y 
LhUhYtg df]cf kf]hhYb dYfa]gg]cb+ 

/+  9bm ]bhYfYgh UWWfiYX cb ZibXg dU]X hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Vm h\Y LhUhY g\U`` VY XYYaYX hc VY h\Y 
dfcdYfhm cZ h\Y LhUhY UbX g\U`` Y]h\Yf VY WfYX]hYX hc h\Y LhUhY Uh h\Y W`cgY*cih cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh cf) idcb h\Y kf]hhYb dYfa]gg]cb cZ h\Y LhUhY) g\U`` VY YldYbXYX cb UXX]h]cbU` gYfj]WYg cf 
kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) dfcj]XYX Zcf ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

D. Property:  

.+  IfcdYfhm ]g fYU` dfcdYfhm) Yei]daYbh) cf hUb[]V`Y dYfgcbU` dfcdYfhm \Uj]b[ U igYZi` `]ZY cZ 
acfY h\Ub cbY mYUf UbX Ub UWei]g]h]cb Wcgh cZ #.)--- cf acfY dYf ib]h+   

U(  BZ Ub ]hYa cZ IfcdYfhm fYei]fYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g UjU]`UV`Y Ug gifd`ig hc h\Y LhUhY) h\Y 
LhUhY Uh ]hg gc`Y X]gWfYh]cb) aUm UffUb[Y hc dfcj]XY giW\ IfcdYfhm hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]b `]Yi cZ 
h\Y difW\UgY cZ giW\ IfcdYfhm+  

V(  BZ h\Y LhUhY WcbgYbhg ]b kf]h]b[) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf aUm fYhU]b dcggYgg]cb cZ IfcdYfhm ckbYX 
Vm h\Y LhUhY) Ug dfcj]XYX \YfY]b) UZhYf h\Y hYfa]bUh]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh hc igY Zcf 
g]a]`Uf difdcgYg+  Hh\Yfk]gY) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` fYhifb giW\ IfcdYfhm hc h\Y LhUhY Uh h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcftg Wcgh UbX YldYbgY idcb h\Y Yld]fUh]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

W(  Bb UXX]h]cb) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc dYfa]h h\Y LhUhY hc ]bgdYWh h\Y IfcdYfhm UbX hc 
acb]hcf ]hg igY Uh fYUgcbUV`Y ]bhYfjU`g Xif]b[ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf&g fY[i`Uf Vig]bYgg \cifg+   

X(  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY fYgdcbg]V`Y Zcf aU]bhU]b]b[ UbX fYdU]f]b[ IfcdYfhm difW\UgYX cf 
dfcWifYX ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh Uh ]hg ckb Wcgh UbX YldYbgY+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` 
dfcWifY UbX aU]bhU]b ]bgifUbWY Uh ]hg ckb Wcgh UbX YldYbgY ]b Ub Uacibh gUh]gZUWhcfm hc h\Y 
LhUhY 9[YbWm) bUa]b[ h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm Ug Ub UXX]h]cbU` ]bgifYX) WcjYf]b[ h\Y `cgg) h\YZh cf 
XYghfiWh]cb cZ giW\ Yei]daYbh+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 255



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .5 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

Y(  9 fYbhU` W\Uf[Y hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf U d]YWY cZ IfcdYfhm ckbYX Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf   
g\U`` bch VY U``ckYX+ 

Z(  M\Y LhUhY \Ug h\Y f][\h hc fYj]Yk UbX UddfcjY ]b kf]h]b[ Ubm bYk WcbhfUWh Zcf h\Y difW\UgY 
cZ cf `YUgY Zcf fYbhU` cZ IfcdYfhm 'IifW\UgY,EYUgY <cbhfUWh( cdYfUhYX ]b WcbbYWh]cb k]h\ h\Y 
dfcj]g]cb cZ h\Y gYfj]WYg cf kcf_) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) Ug gdYW]Z]YX ]b h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) ]Z 
Udd`]WUV`Y) UbX Ubm acX]Z]WUh]cbg) UaYbXaYbhg) cf YlhYbg]cbg cZ Ub Yl]gh]b[ `YUgY cf 
difW\UgY df]cf hc ]hg YlYWih]cb+  BZ) ]b ]hg X]gWfYh]cb) h\Y LhUhY X]gUddfcjYg cZ Ubm 
IifW\UgY,EYUgY <cbhfUWh) h\Yb h\Y LhUhY g\U`` bch VY cV`][UhYX hc aU_Y Ubm dUmaYbhg Zcf giW\ 
IfcdYfhm+ 

[(  Gc aYaVYf) cZZ]WYf) X]fYWhcf cf Yad`cmYY cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` fYhU]b cf UWei]fY Ubm 
]bhYfYgh) X]fYWh cf ]bX]fYWh) ]b Ubm IfcdYfhm) dU]X Zcf k]h\ ZibXg ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) bcf 
fYhU]b Ubm ]bhYfYgh) X]fYWh cf ]bX]fYWh) ]b giW\) k]h\cih Zi`` UbX Wcad`YhY df]cf X]gW`cgifY cZ 
giW\ ]bhYfYgh UbX h\Y XUhY cZ UWei]g]h]cb h\YfYcZ) ]b kf]h]b[ hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf UbX h\Y LhUhY+ 

/+  ?cf bcb*?YXYfU``m*ZibXYX WcbhfUWhg) ib`Ygg ch\Yfk]gY dfcj]XYX \YfY]b) h\Y LhUhY g\U`` \UjY h\Y 
Zc``ck]b[ f][\hg hc IfcdYfhm difW\UgYX k]h\ ZibXg dfcj]XYX ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh7 

U(  ?cf Wcgh*fY]aVifgUV`Y WcbhfUWhg) U`` f][\h) h]h`Y UbX ]bhYfYgh ]b giW\ IfcdYfhm g\U`` VY`cb[ hc 
h\Y LhUhY+   

V(  ?cf dYfZcfaUbWY*VUgYX WcbhfUWhg) U`` f][\h) h]h`Y UbX ]bhYfYgh ]b giW\ IfcdYfhm g\U`` VY`cb[ 
hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf+ 

0+  ?cf ?YXYfU``m ZibXYX WcbhfUWhg) h]h`Y hc IfcdYfhm k\cgY fYei]g]h]cb Wcgh ]g VcfbY ]b k\c`Y cf ]b 
dUfh Vm acb]Yg dfcj]XYX ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY [cjYfbYX Vm h\Y hYfag UbX 
WcbX]h]cbg cZ 9hhUW\aYbh 9*/ '?YXYfU``m ?ibXYX @fUbhg UbX KYei]fYaYbhg FUbXUhYX Vm ?YXYfU` 
EUkg(+ 

1+  Ndcb kf]hhYb X]fYWh]cb Vm h\Y LhUhY) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` aU]bhU]b Ub ]bjYbhcfm cZ U`` IfcdYfhm 
h\Uh ]g ckbYX Vm h\Y LhUhY Ug dfcj]XYX \YfY]b+ 

2+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` YlYWihY Ubm XcWiaYbhg k\]W\ h\Y LhUhY aUm fYUgcbUV`m fYei]fY hc 
YZZYWhiUhY h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\]g gYWh]cb+ 

E. Records and Audits: 

1. General: 

U(  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` YghUV`]g\ UbX aU]bhU]b) ]b dUdYf cf Y`YWhfcb]W ZcfaUh) Wcad`YhY UbX 
UWWifUhY Vcc_g) fYWcfXg) XcWiaYbhg) fYWY]dhg) UWWcibhg) UbX ch\Yf Yj]XYbWY X]fYWh`m dYfh]bYbh 
hc ]hg dYfZcfaUbWY ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh 'Wc``YWh]jY`m) KYWcfXg(+   

V(  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc dfcXiWY UbX fYhU]b Zcf h\Y VU`UbWY cZ h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh) UbX Zcf U dYf]cX cZ g]l mYUfg Zfca h\Y `UhYf cZ h\Y XUhY cZ ']( h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UbX 
']]( h\Y acgh fYWYbh fYbYkU` cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) Ubm UbX U`` KYWcfXg bYWYggUfm hc 
giVghUbh]UhY idcb UiX]h) h\Y dfcdYf XYdcg]h UbX YldYbX]hifY cZ ZibXg fYWY]jYX ibXYf h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  LiW\ KYWcfXg aUm ]bW`iXY) Vih bch VY `]a]hYX hc) cf][]bU` Vcc_g cZ Ybhfm 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 256



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y .6 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

'Y+[+) WUg\ X]gVifgYaYbhg UbX WUg\ fYWY]dhg ^cifbU`() UbX h\Y Zc``ck]b[ gdYW]Z]W fYWcfXg 'Ug 
Udd`]WUV`Y( hc giVghUbh]UhY h\Y hmdYg cZ YldYbX]hifYg bchYX7   

'](  dYfgcbU` gYfj]WY YldYbX]hifYg7 WUbWY``YX W\YW_g UbX h\Y fY`UhYX VUb_ ghUhYaYbhg) h]aY 
UbX UhhYbXUbWY fYWcfXg) dUmfc`` ^cifbU`g) WUg\ UbX W\YW_ X]gVifgYaYbh fYWcfXg ]bW`iX]b[ 
Wcd]Yg cZ acbYm cfXYfg UbX h\Y `]_Y) jciW\Yfg UbX ]bjc]WYg) fYWcfXg cZ WcbhfUWh `UVcf) 
Ubm UbX U`` fYWcfXg `]gh]b[ dUmfc`` UbX h\Y acbYm jU`iY cZ bcb*WUg\ UXjUbhU[Yg dfcj]XYX 
hc Yad`cmYYg) h]aY WUfXg) kcf_ gW\YXi`Yg UbX `c[g) Yad`cmYY dYfgcbU` \]ghcfm Zc`XYfg) 
XYhU]`YX UbX [YbYfU` `YX[Yfg) gU`Yg fYWcfXg) a]gWY``UbYcig fYdcfhg UbX fYhifbg 'hUl UbX 
ch\Yfk]gY() UbX Wcgh U``cWUh]cb d`Ubg) ]Z Udd`]WUV`Y+   

']](  dUmfc`` hUlYg UbX Zf]b[Y VYbYZ]hg7 WUbWY``YX W\YW_g) Wcd]Yg cZ fY`UhYX VUb_ 
ghUhYaYbhg) WUg\ UbX W\YW_ X]gVifgYaYbh fYWcfXg ]bW`iX]b[ Wcd]Yg cZ acbYm cfXYfg UbX 
h\Y `]_Y) ]bjc]WYg Zcf Zf]b[Y VYbYZ]h YldYbgYg) a]gWY``UbYcig fYdcfhg UbX fYhifbg 'hUl UbX 
ch\Yfk]gY() UbX Wcgh U``cWUh]cb d`Ubg) ]Z Udd`]WUV`Y+ 

']]](  bcb*dYfgcbU` gYfj]WYg YldYbX]hifYg7 cf][]bU` ]bjc]WYg,fYWY]dhg) WUbWY``YX W\YW_g UbX 
fY`UhYX VUb_ ghUhYaYbhg) Wcbgi`hUbh U[fYYaYbhg) `YUgYg) UbX Wcgh U``cWUh]cb d`Ubg) ]Z 
Udd`]WUV`Y+ 

']j(  fYWY]dh UbX XYdcg]h cZ UXjUbWY UbX fY]aVifgYaYbhg7 ]hYa]nYX VUb_ ghUadYX XYdcg]h 
g`]dg) UbX U Wcdm cZ h\Y fY`UhYX VUb_ ghUhYaYbhg+ 

W(  M\Y HL<) 9@ UbX Ubm ch\Yf dYfgcb cf Ybh]hm Uih\cf]nYX hc WcbXiWh Ub YlUa]bUh]cb) Ug 
kY`` Ug h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm cf LhUhY 9[YbW]Yg ]bjc`jYX ]b h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh h\Uh dfcj]XYX 
ZibX]b[) g\U`` \UjY UWWYgg hc h\Y KYWcfXg Xif]b[ h\Y \cifg cZ 67-- U+a+ ibh]` 27-- d+a+) 
FcbXUm h\fci[\ ?f]XUm 'YlW`iX]b[ LhUhY fYWc[b]nYX \c`]XUmg() Uh Ub cZZ]WY cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
k]h\]b h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_ cf) ]Z bc giW\ cZZ]WY ]g UjU]`UV`Y) Uh U aihiU``m U[fYYUV`Y UbX 
fYUgcbUV`Y jYbiY k]h\]b h\Y LhUhY) Zcf h\Y hYfa gdYW]Z]YX UVcjY Zcf h\Y difdcgYg cZ 
]bgdYWh]cb) UiX]h]b[ UbX Wcdm]b[+   

X(  M\Y LhUhY g\U`` dfchYWh Zfca diV`]W X]gW`cgifY Ubm cZ h\Y KYWcfXg k\]W\ UfY YlYadh Zfca 
X]gW`cgifY ibXYf LYWh]cb 54 cZ h\Y IiV`]W HZZ]WYfg EUk dfcj]XYX h\Uh7 ']( h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` 
h]aY`m ]bZcfa Ub Uddfcdf]UhY LhUhY cZZ]W]U`) ]b kf]h]b[) h\Uh gU]X fYWcfXg g\ci`X bch VY 
X]gW`cgYX8 UbX ']]( gU]X fYWcfXg g\U`` VY giZZ]W]Ybh`m ]XYbh]Z]YX8 UbX ']]]( XYg][bUh]cb cZ gU]X 
fYWcfXg) Ug YlYadh ibXYf LYWh]cb 54 cZ h\Y IiV`]W HZZ]WYfg EUk) ]g fYUgcbUV`Y+ 

Y(  Gch\]b[ WcbhU]bYX \YfY]b g\U`` X]a]b]g\) cf ]b Ubm kUm UXjYfgY`m UZZYWh) h\Y LhUhY&g f][\hg 
]b WcbbYWh]cb k]h\ ]hg UiX]h UbX ]bjYgh][Uhcfm Uih\cf]hm cf h\Y LhUhYtg f][\hg ]b WcbbYWh]cb 
k]h\ X]gWcjYfm ]b Ubm dYbX]b[ cf ZihifY `]h][Uh]cb+   

2.  Cost Allocation:  

U(  ?cf bcb*dYfZcfaUbWY VUgYX WcbhfUWhg) h\Y dfcdYf U``cWUh]cb cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg Wcghg aigh 
VY aUXY UWWcfX]b[ hc U Wcgh U``cWUh]cb d`Ub h\Uh aYYhg h\Y fYei]fYaYbhg cZ HF; <]fWi`Ufg 9*
54) 9*.//) UbX,cf 9*/.+  FYh\cXg igYX hc XYhYfa]bY UbX Ugg][b Wcghg g\U`` WcbZcfa hc 
[YbYfU``m UWWYdhYX UWWcibh]b[ dfUWh]WYg UbX g\U`` VY Wcbg]ghYbh k]h\ h\Y aYh\cX'g( igYX Vm 
h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc XYhYfa]bY Wcghg Zcf ch\Yf cdYfUh]cbg cf dfc[fUag+  LiW\ UWWcibh]b[ 
ghUbXUfXg UbX dfUWh]WYg g\U`` VY giV^YWh hc UddfcjU` cZ h\Y LhUhY+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 257



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y /- cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

V(  ?cf dYfZcfaUbWY VUgYX a]`YghcbY WcbhfUWhg) cf Zcf h\Y dcfh]cb cZ h\Y WcbhfUWh Uacibh dU]X 
cb U dYfZcfaUbWY VUg]g) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` aU]bhU]b XcWiaYbhUh]cb XYacbghfUh]b[ h\Uh 
a]`YghcbYg kYfY UhhU]bYX+ 

3.  Federal Funds: ?cf fYWcfXg UbX UiX]h dfcj]g]cbg [cjYfb]b[ ?YXYfU` ZibXg) d`YUgY gYY 
9hhUW\aYbh 9*/ '?YXYfU``m ?ibXYX @fUbhg UbX KYei]fYaYbhg FUbXUhYX Vm ?YXYfU` EUkg(+ 

F. Confidentiality:  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg h\Uh ]h g\U`` igY UbX aU]bhU]b dYfgcbU``m ]XYbh]Z]UV`Y 
]bZcfaUh]cb fY`Uh]b[ hc ]bX]j]XiU`g k\c aUm fYWY]jY gYfj]WYg) UbX h\Y]f ZUa]`]Yg difgiUbh hc h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh) cf Ubm ch\Yf ]bZcfaUh]cb) XUhU cf fYWcfXg aUf_YX Ug) cf fYUgcbUV`m XYYaYX) 
WcbZ]XYbh]U` Vm h\Y LhUhY '<cbZ]XYbh]U` BbZcfaUh]cb( cb`m Zcf h\Y `]a]hYX difdcgYg cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh UbX ]b WcbZcfa]hm k]h\ Udd`]WUV`Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ LhUhY UbX ?YXYfU` `Uk+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf ']( 
\Ug Ub UZZ]faUh]jY cV`][Uh]cb hc gUZY[iUfX Ubm giW\ <cbZ]XYbh]U` BbZcfaUh]cb Zfca ibbYWYggUfm cf 
ibUih\cf]nYX X]gW`cgifY UbX ']]( aigh Wcad`m k]h\ h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\Y GYk Rcf_ LhUhY BbZcfaUh]cb 
LYWif]hm ;fYUW\ UbX Gch]Z]WUh]cb 9Wh '@YbYfU` ;ig]bYgg EUk LYWh]cb 566*UU8 LhUhY MYW\bc`c[m EUk 
LYWh]cb /-5(+ 

G.  Publicity:  

.+  IiV`]W]hm ]bW`iXYg) Vih ]g bch `]a]hYX hc7 bYkg WcbZYfYbWYg8 bYkg fY`YUgYg8 diV`]W 
UbbcibWYaYbhg8 UXjYfh]g]b[8 VfcW\ifYg8 fYdcfhg8 X]gWigg]cbg cf dfYgYbhUh]cbg Uh WcbZYfYbWYg cf 
aYYh]b[g8 UbX,cf h\Y ]bW`ig]cb cZ LhUhY aUhYf]U`g) h\Y LhUhYtg bUaY cf ch\Yf giW\ fYZYfYbWYg hc h\Y 
LhUhY ]b Ubm XcWiaYbh cf Zcfia+  IiV`]W]hm fY[UfX]b[ h\]g dfc^YWh aUm bch VY fY`YUgYX k]h\cih 
df]cf kf]hhYb UddfcjU` Zfca h\Y LhUhY+ 

/+  9bm diV`]WUh]cbg) dfYgYbhUh]cbg cf UbbcibWYaYbhg cZ WcbZYfYbWYg) aYYh]b[g cf hfU]b]b[g 
k\]W\ UfY ZibXYX ]b k\c`Y cf ]b dUfh h\fci[\ Ubm UWh]j]hm giddcfhYX ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh 
aUm bch VY diV`]g\YX) dfYgYbhYX cf UbbcibWYX k]h\cih df]cf UddfcjU` cZ h\Y LhUhY+  9bm giW\ 
diV`]WUh]cb) dfYgYbhUh]cb cf UbbcibWYaYbh g\U``7 

U(  9W_bck`YX[Y h\Y giddcfh cZ h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_ UbX) ]Z ZibXYX k]h\ ?YXYfU` ZibXg) h\Y 
Udd`]WUV`Y ?YXYfU` ZibX]b[ U[YbWm8 UbX 

V(  LhUhY h\Uh h\Y cd]b]cbg) fYgi`hg) Z]bX]b[g UbX,cf ]bhYfdfYhUh]cbg cZ XUhU WcbhU]bYX h\YfY]b 
UfY h\Y fYgdcbg]V]`]hm cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf UbX Xc bch bYWYggUf]`m fYdfYgYbh h\Y cd]b]cbg) 
]bhYfdfYhUh]cbg cf dc`]Wm cZ h\Y LhUhY cf ]Z ZibXYX k]h\ ?YXYfU` ZibXg) h\Y Udd`]WUV`Y ?YXYfU` 
ZibX]b[ U[YbWm+ 

0+  Gchk]h\ghUbX]b[ h\Y UVcjY) ']( ]Z h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g Ub YXiWUh]cbU` fYgYUfW\ ]bgh]hih]cb) h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf aUm) Zcf gW\c`Uf`m cf UWUXYa]W difdcgYg) igY) dfYgYbh) X]gWigg) fYdcfh cf diV`]g\ Ubm 
aUhYf]U`) XUhU cf UbU`mgYg) ch\Yf h\Ub <cbZ]XYbh]U` BbZcfaUh]cb) h\Uh XYf]jYg Zfca UWh]j]hm ibXYf 
h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UbX h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc igY VYgh YZZcfhg hc dfcj]XY Wcd]Yg cZ 
Ubm  aUbigWf]dhg Uf]g]b[ Zfca <cbhfUWhcftg dYfZcfaUbWY ibXYf h\]g FUghYf <cbhfUWh) cf ]Z 
fYeiYghYX Vm h\Y LhUhY) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dfcj]XY h\Y LhUhY k]h\ U h\]fhm '0-( XUm dYf]cX ]b 
k\]W\ hc fYj]Yk YUW\ aUbigWf]dh Zcf Wcad`]UbWY k]h\ <cbZ]XYbh]U` BbZcfaUh]cb fYei]fYaYbhg8 cf 
']]( ]Z h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ]g bch Ub YXiWUh]cbU` fYgYUfW\ ]bgh]hih]cb) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf aUm giVa]h Zcf 
diV`]WUh]cb) gW\c`Uf`m cf UWUXYa]W diV`]WUh]cbg h\Uh XYf]jY Zfca UWh]j]hm ibXYf h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh 'Vih UfY bch XY`]jYfUV`Y ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh() dfcj]XYX h\Uh h\Y <cbhfUWhcf Z]fgh 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 258



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y /. cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

giVa]hg giW\ aUbigWf]dhg hc h\Y LhUhY Zcfhm*Z]jY '12( WU`YbXUf XUmg df]cf hc giVa]gg]cb Zcf 
Wcbg]XYfUh]cb Vm U diV`]g\Yf ]b cfXYf Zcf h\Y LhUhY hc fYj]Yk h\Y aUbigWf]dh Zcf Wcad`]UbWY k]h\ 
WcbZ]XYbh]U`]hm fYei]fYaYbhg UbX fYghf]Wh]cbg UbX hc aU_Y giW\ ch\Yf WcaaYbhg Ug h\Y LhUhY 
XYYag Uddfcdf]UhY+  9`` XYf]jUh]jY diV`]WUh]cbg g\U`` Zc``ck h\Y gUaY UW_bck`YX[aYbhg UbX 
X]gW`U]aYf Ug XYgWf]VYX ]b LYWh]cb BO'@('/( 'IiV`]W]hm( \YfYcZ+ 

H. Web-Based Applications-Accessibility: 9bm kYV*VUgYX ]bhfUbYh UbX BbhYfbYh ]bZcfaUh]cb UbX 
Udd`]WUh]cbg XYjY`cdaYbh) cf dfc[fUaa]b[ XY`]jYfYX difgiUbh hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh cf 
dfcWifYaYbh g\U`` Wcad`m k]h\ GYk Rcf_ LhUhY >bhYfdf]gY BM Ic`]Wm GRL*I-5*--2) 9WWYgg]V]`]hm 
PYV*;UgYX BbZcfaUh]cb UbX 9dd`]WUh]cbg) UbX GYk Rcf_ LhUhY >bhYfdf]gY BM LhUbXUfX GRL*L-5*
--2) 9WWYgg]V]`]hm cZ PYV*;UgYX BbZcfaUh]cb 9dd`]WUh]cbg) Ug giW\ dc`]Wm cf ghUbXUfX aUm VY 
UaYbXYX) acX]Z]YX cf gidYfgYXYX) k\]W\ fYei]fYg h\Uh LhUhY 9[YbWm kYV*VUgYX ]bhfUbYh UbX BbhYfbYh 
]bZcfaUh]cb UbX Udd`]WUh]cbg UfY UWWYgg]V`Y hc dYfgcb k]h\ X]gUV]`]h]Yg+  PYV WcbhYbh aigh WcbZcfa 
hc GYk Rcf_ LhUhY >bhYfdf]gY BM LhUbXUfXg GRL*L-5*--2) Ug XYhYfa]bYX Vm eiU`]hm UggifUbWY 
hYgh]b[+  LiW\ eiU`]hm UggifUbWY hYgh]b[ g\U`` VY WcbXiWhYX Vm h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm UbX h\Y fYgi`hg cZ 
giW\ hYgh]b[ aigh VY gUh]gZUWhcfm hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm VYZcfY kYV WcbhYbh g\U`` VY Wcbg]XYfYX U 
eiU`]Z]YX XY`]jYfUV`Y ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh cf dfcWifYaYbh+

I. Non-Discrimination Requirements:  IifgiUbh hc 9fh]W`Y .2 cZ h\Y >lYWih]jY EUk 'U`gc _bckb 
Ug h\Y AiaUb K][\hg EUk( UbX U`` ch\Yf LhUhY UbX ?YXYfU` ghUhihcfm UbX Wcbgh]hih]cbU` bcb*
X]gWf]a]bUh]cb dfcj]g]cbg) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf UbX giV*WcbhfUWhcfg k]`` bch X]gWf]a]bUhY U[U]bgh Ubm 
Yad`cmYY cf Udd`]WUbh Zcf Yad`cmaYbh VYWUigY cZ fUWY) WfYYX 'fY`][]cb() Wc`cf) gYl ']bW`iX]b[ [YbXYf 
YldfYgg]cb() bUh]cbU` cf][]b) gYliU` cf]YbhUh]cb) a]`]hUfm ghUhig) U[Y) X]gUV]`]hm) dfYX]gdcg]b[ [YbYh]W 
W\UfUWhYf]gh]W) aUf]hU` ghUhig cf XcaYgh]W j]c`YbWY j]Wh]a ghUhig) UbX g\U`` U`gc Zc``ck h\Y 
fYei]fYaYbhg cZ h\Y AiaUb K][\hg EUk k]h\ fY[UfX hc bcb*X]gWf]a]bUh]cb cb h\Y VUg]g cZ df]cf 
Wf]a]bU` Wcbj]Wh]cb UbX df]cf UffYgh+ ?ifh\YfacfY) ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb //-*Y cZ h\Y EUVcf 
EUk) ]Z h\]g ]g U WcbhfUWh Zcf h\Y WcbghfiWh]cb) U`hYfUh]cb cf fYdU]f cZ Ubm diV`]W Vi]`X]b[ cf diV`]W 
kcf_ cf Zcf h\Y aUbiZUWhifY) gU`Y cf X]ghf]Vih]cb cZ aUhYf]U`g) Yei]daYbh cf gidd`]Yg) UbX hc h\Y 
YlhYbh h\Uh h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY dYfZcfaYX k]h\]b h\Y LhUhY cZ GYk Rcf_) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
U[fYYg h\Uh bY]h\Yf ]h bcf ]hg giVWcbhfUWhcfg g\U``) Vm fYUgcb cZ fUWY) WfYYX) Wc`cf) X]gUV]`]hm) gYl) cf 
bUh]cbU` cf][]b7  'U( X]gWf]a]bUhY ]b \]f]b[ U[U]bgh Ubm GYk Rcf_ LhUhY W]h]nYb k\c ]g eiU`]Z]YX UbX 
UjU]`UV`Y hc dYfZcfa h\Y kcf_8 cf 'V( X]gWf]a]bUhY U[U]bgh cf ]bh]a]XUhY Ubm Yad`cmYY \]fYX Zcf h\Y 
dYfZcfaUbWY cZ kcf_ ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  BZ h\]g ]g U Vi]`X]b[ gYfj]WY WcbhfUWh Ug XYZ]bYX ]b 
LYWh]cb /0- cZ h\Y EUVcf EUk) h\Yb) ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb /06 h\YfYcZ) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg 
h\Uh bY]h\Yf ]h bcf ]hg giVWcbhfUWhcfg g\U`` Vm fYUgcb cZ fUWY) WfYYX) Wc`cf) bUh]cbU` cf][]b) U[Y) gYl cf 
X]gUV]`]hm7  'U( X]gWf]a]bUhY ]b \]f]b[ U[U]bgh Ubm GYk Rcf_ LhUhY W]h]nYb k\c ]g eiU`]Z]YX UbX 
UjU]`UV`Y hc dYfZcfa h\Y kcf_8 cf 'V( X]gWf]a]bUhY U[U]bgh cf ]bh]a]XUhY Ubm Yad`cmYY \]fYX Zcf h\Y 
dYfZcfaUbWY cZ kcf_ ibXYf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY giV^YWh hc Z]bYg cZ #2-+-- 
dYf dYfgcb dYf XUm Zcf Ubm j]c`Uh]cb cZ LYWh]cb //-*Y cf LYWh]cb /06 cZ h\Y EUVcf EUk+ 

J. Equal Opportunities for Minorities and Women; Minority and Women Owned Business 
Enterprises:  Bb UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb 0./ cZ h\Y >lYWih]jY EUk UbX 2 GR<KK .10) ]Z h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]g7 ']( U kf]hhYb U[fYYaYbh cf difW\UgY cfXYf ]bghfiaYbh) dfcj]X]b[ Zcf U hchU` 
YldYbX]hifY ]b YlWYgg cZ #/2)---+--) k\YfYVm U WcbhfUWh]b[ LhUhY 9[YbWm ]g Wcaa]hhYX hc YldYbX cf 
XcYg YldYbX ZibXg ]b fYhifb Zcf `UVcf) gYfj]WYg) gidd`]Yg) Yei]daYbh) aUhYf]U`g cf Ubm WcaV]bUh]cb cZ 
h\Y ZcfY[c]b[) hc VY dYfZcfaYX Zcf) cf fYbXYfYX cf Zifb]g\YX hc h\Y WcbhfUWh]b[ LhUhY 9[YbWm8 cf ']]( U 
kf]hhYb U[fYYaYbh ]b YlWYgg cZ #.--)---+-- k\YfYVm U WcbhfUWh]b[ LhUhY 9[YbWm ]g Wcaa]hhYX hc 
YldYbX cf XcYg YldYbX ZibXg Zcf h\Y UWei]g]h]cb) WcbghfiWh]cb) XYac`]h]cb) fYd`UWYaYbh) aU^cf fYdU]f 
cf fYbcjUh]cb cZ fYU` dfcdYfhm UbX ]adfcjYaYbhg h\YfYcb8 cf ']]]( U kf]hhYb U[fYYaYbh ]b YlWYgg cZ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 259



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y // cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

#.--)---+-- k\YfYVm h\Y ckbYf cZ U LhUhY Ugg]ghYX \cig]b[ dfc^YWh ]g Wcaa]hhYX hc YldYbX cf XcYg 
YldYbX ZibXg Zcf h\Y UWei]g]h]cb) WcbghfiWh]cb) XYac`]h]cb) fYd`UWYaYbh) aU^cf fYdU]f cf fYbcjUh]cb 
cZ fYU` dfcdYfhm UbX ]adfcjYaYbhg h\YfYcb Zcf giW\ dfc^YWh) h\Yb h\Y <cbhfUWhcf WYfh]Z]Yg UbX UZZ]fag 
h\Uh ']( ]h ]g giV^YWh hc 9fh]W`Y .2*9 cZ h\Y >lYWih]jY EUk k\]W\ ]bW`iXYg) Vih ]g bch `]a]hYX hc) h\cgY 
dfcj]g]cbg WcbWYfb]b[ h\Y aUl]a]n]b[ cZ cddcfhib]h]Yg Zcf h\Y dUfh]W]dUh]cb cZ a]bcf]hm UbX kcaYb*
ckbYX Vig]bYgg YbhYfdf]gYg UbX ']]( h\Y Zc``ck]b[ dfcj]g]cbg g\U`` Udd`m UbX ]h ]g <cbhfUWhcftg YeiU` 
Yad`cmaYbh cddcfhib]hm dc`]Wm h\Uh7 

.+ M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` bch X]gWf]a]bUhY U[U]bgh Yad`cmYYg cf Udd`]WUbhg Zcf Yad`cmaYbh 
VYWUigY cZ fUWY) WfYYX) Wc`cf) bUh]cbU` cf][]b) gYl) U[Y) X]gUV]`]hm cf aUf]hU` ghUhig8 

/+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` aU_Y UbX XcWiaYbh ]hg WcbgW]Ybh]cig UbX UWh]jY YZZcfhg hc Yad`cm UbX 
ih]`]nY a]bcf]hm [fcid aYaVYfg UbX kcaYb ]b ]hg kcf_ ZcfWY cb LhUhY WcbhfUWhg8 

0+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` ibXYfhU_Y cf Wcbh]biY Yl]gh]b[ dfc[fUag cZ UZZ]faUh]jY UWh]cb hc YbgifY 
h\Uh a]bcf]hm [fcid aYaVYfg UbX kcaYb UfY UZZcfXYX YeiU` Yad`cmaYbh cddcfhib]h]Yg k]h\cih 
X]gWf]a]bUh]cb+  9ZZ]faUh]jY UWh]cb g\U`` aYUb fYWfi]haYbh) Yad`cmaYbh) ^cV Ugg][baYbh) 
dfcach]cb) id[fUX]b[) XYach]cb) hfUbgZYf) `UmcZZ) cf hYfa]bUh]cb UbX fUhYg cZ dUm cf ch\Yf Zcfag 
cZ WcadYbgUh]cb8 

1+  9h h\Y fYeiYgh cZ h\Y LhUhY) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` fYeiYgh YUW\ Yad`cmaYbh U[YbWm) `UVcf ib]cb) 
cf Uih\cf]nYX fYdfYgYbhUh]jY cZ kcf_Yfg k]h\ k\]W\ ]h \Ug U Wc``YWh]jY VUf[U]b]b[ cf ch\Yf 
U[fYYaYbh cf ibXYfghUbX]b[) hc Zifb]g\ U kf]hhYb ghUhYaYbh h\Uh giW\ Yad`cmaYbh U[YbWm) `UVcf 
ib]cb cf fYdfYgYbhUh]jY g\U`` bch X]gWf]a]bUhY cb h\Y VUg]g cZ fUWY) WfYYX) Wc`cf) bUh]cbU` cf][]b) 
gYl) U[Y) X]gUV]`]hm cf aUf]hU` ghUhig UbX h\Uh giW\ ib]cb cf fYdfYgYbhUh]jY g\U`` UZZ]faUh]jY`m 
WccdYfUhY ]b h\Y ]ad`YaYbhUh]cb cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg cV`][Uh]cbg \YfY]b8 UbX 

2+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` ghUhY) ]b U`` gc`]W]hUh]cbg cf UXjYfh]gYaYbhg Zcf Yad`cmYYg) h\Uh) ]b h\Y 
dYfZcfaUbWY cZ h\Y LhUhY WcbhfUWh) U`` eiU`]Z]YX Udd`]WUbhg g\U`` VY UZZcfXYX YeiU` Yad`cmaYbh 
cddcfhib]h]Yg k]h\cih X]gWf]a]bUh]cb VYWUigY cZ fUWY) WfYYX) Wc`cf) bUh]cbU` cf][]b) gYl) U[Y) 
X]gUV]`]hm cf aUf]hU` ghUhig+ 

M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` ]bW`iXY h\Y dfcj]g]cbg cZ giVW`UigYg . p 2 cZ h\]g LYWh]cb 'BO('C() ]b YjYfm 
giVWcbhfUWh cjYf #/2)---+-- Zcf h\Y WcbghfiWh]cb) XYac`]h]cb) fYd`UWYaYbh) aU^cf fYdU]f) fYbcjUh]cb) 
d`Ubb]b[ cf XYg][b cZ fYU` dfcdYfhm UbX ]adfcjYaYbhg h\YfYcb 'Pcf_( YlWYdh k\YfY h\Y Pcf_ ]g Zcf 
h\Y VYbYZ]W]U` igY cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf+  LYWh]cb 0./ cZ h\Y >lYWih]jY EUk XcYg bch Udd`m hc7 ']( kcf_) 
[ccXg cf gYfj]WYg ibfY`UhYX hc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh8 cf ']]( Yad`cmaYbh cihg]XY GYk Rcf_ LhUhY+  M\Y 
LhUhY g\U`` Wcbg]XYf Wcad`]UbWY Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf cf U giVWcbhfUWhcf k]h\ h\Y fYei]fYaYbhg cZ Ubm 
?YXYfU` `Uk WcbWYfb]b[ YeiU` Yad`cmaYbh cddcfhib]hm k\]W\ YZZYWhiUhYg h\Y difdcgY cZ h\]g gYWh]cb+  
M\Y LhUhY g\U`` XYhYfa]bY k\Yh\Yf h\Y ]adcg]h]cb cZ h\Y fYei]fYaYbhg cZ h\Y dfcj]g]cbg \YfYcZ 
Xid`]WUhY cf WcbZ`]Wh k]h\ Ubm giW\ ?YXYfU` `Uk UbX ]Z giW\ Xid`]WUh]cb cf WcbZ`]Wh Yl]ghg) h\Y LhUhY 
g\U`` kU]jY h\Y Udd`]WUV]`]hm cZ LYWh]cb 0./ cZ h\Y >lYWih]jY EUk hc h\Y YlhYbh cZ giW\ Xid`]WUh]cb cf 
WcbZ`]Wh+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` Wcad`m k]h\ U`` Xi`m dfcai`[UhYX UbX `UkZi` fi`Yg UbX fY[i`Uh]cbg cZ 
h\Y =YdUfhaYbh cZ >Wcbca]W =YjY`cdaYbhtg =]j]g]cb cZ F]bcf]hm UbX PcaYbtg ;ig]bYgg 
=YjY`cdaYbh dYfhU]b]b[ \YfYhc+ 

K. Omnibus Procurement Act of 1992:  Bh ]g h\Y dc`]Wm cZ GYk Rcf_ LhUhY hc aUl]a]nY 
cddcfhib]h]Yg Zcf h\Y dUfh]W]dUh]cb cZ GYk Rcf_ LhUhY Vig]bYgg YbhYfdf]gYg) ]bW`iX]b[ a]bcf]hm UbX 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 260



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y /0 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

kcaYb*ckbYX Vig]bYgg YbhYfdf]gYg) Ug V]XXYfg) giVWcbhfUWhcfg UbX gidd`]Yfg cb ]hg dfcWifYaYbh 
WcbhfUWhg+   

.+  BZ h\Y hchU` Xc``Uf Uacibh cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh ]g [fYUhYf h\Ub #. a]``]cb) h\Y Hab]Vig 
IfcWifYaYbh 9Wh cZ .66/ fYei]fYg h\Uh Vm g][b]b[ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf WYfh]Z]Yg 
h\Y Zc``ck]b[7  

U(  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf \Ug aUXY fYUgcbUV`Y YZZcfhg hc YbWcifU[Y h\Y dUfh]W]dUh]cb cZ LhUhY 
Vig]bYgg YbhYfdf]gYg Ug gidd`]Yfg UbX giVWcbhfUWhcfg) ]bW`iX]b[ WYfh]Z]YX a]bcf]hm UbX kcaYb*
ckbYX Vig]bYgg YbhYfdf]gYg) cb h\]g dfc^YWh) UbX \Ug fYhU]bYX h\Y XcWiaYbhUh]cb cZ h\YgY 
YZZcfhg hc VY dfcj]XYX idcb fYeiYgh hc h\Y LhUhY8 

V(  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf \Ug Wcad`]YX k]h\ h\Y ?YXYfU` >eiU` Hddcfhib]hm 9Wh cZ .64/ 'I+E+ 6/*
/3.() Ug UaYbXYX8 

W(  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc aU_Y fYUgcbUV`Y YZZcfhg hc dfcj]XY bch]Z]WUh]cb hc LhUhY fYg]XYbhg 
cZ Yad`cmaYbh cddcfhib]h]Yg cb h\]g dfc^YWh h\fci[\ `]gh]b[ Ubm giW\ dcg]h]cbg k]h\ h\Y CcV 
LYfj]WY =]j]g]cb cZ h\Y GYk Rcf_ LhUhY =YdUfhaYbh cZ EUVcf) cf dfcj]X]b[ giW\ bch]Z]WUh]cb 
]b giW\ aUbbYf Ug ]g Wcbg]ghYbh k]h\ Yl]gh]b[ Wc``YWh]jY VUf[U]b]b[ WcbhfUWhg cf U[fYYaYbhg+  
M\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc XcWiaYbh h\YgY YZZcfhg UbX hc dfcj]XY gU]X XcWiaYbhUh]cb hc h\Y 
LhUhY idcb fYeiYgh8 UbX 

X(  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf UW_bck`YX[Yg bch]WY h\Uh h\Y LhUhY aUm gYY_ hc cVhU]b cZZgYh WfYX]hg Zfca 
ZcfY][b Wcibhf]Yg Ug U fYgi`h cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh UbX U[fYYg hc WccdYfUhY k]h\ h\Y LhUhY ]b 
h\YgY YZZcfhg+ 

L.  Workers' Compensation Benefits:   

.+  Bb UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb .1/ cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY EUk) h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh g\U`` VY jc]X 
UbX cZ bc ZcfWY UbX YZZYWh ib`Ygg h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dfcj]XY UbX aU]bhU]b WcjYfU[Y Xif]b[ h\Y 
`]ZY cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf h\Y VYbYZ]h cZ giW\ Yad`cmYYg Ug UfY fYei]fYX hc VY WcjYfYX Vm h\Y 
dfcj]g]cbg cZ h\Y Pcf_Yfg& <cadYbgUh]cb EUk+ 

/+  BZ U <cbhfUWhcf VY`]YjYg h\Ym UfY YlYadh Zfca h\Y Pcf_Yfg <cadYbgUh]cb ]bgifUbWY 
fYei]fYaYbh h\Ym aigh Udd`m Zcf Ub YlYadh]cb+ 

M.  Unemployment Insurance Compliance:  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` fYaU]b WiffYbh ]b Vch\ ]hg 
eiUfhYf`m fYdcfh]b[ UbX dUmaYbh cZ Wcbhf]Vih]cbg cf dUmaYbhg ]b `]Yi cZ Wcbhf]Vih]cbg) Ug Udd`]WUV`Y) 
hc h\Y LhUhY NbYad`cmaYbh BbgifUbWY gmghYa Ug U WcbX]h]cb cZ aU]bhU]b]b[ h\]g [fUbh+

M\Y <cbhfUWhcf \YfYVm Uih\cf]nYg h\Y LhUhY =YdUfhaYbh cZ EUVcf hc X]gW`cgY hc h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm ghUZZ 
cb`m giW\ ]bZcfaUh]cb Ug ]g bYWYggUfm hc XYhYfa]bY h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg Wcad`]UbWY k]h\ h\Y LhUhY 
NbYad`cmaYbh BbgifUbWY EUk+  M\]g ]bW`iXYg) Vih ]g bch `]a]hYX hc) h\Y Zc``ck]b[7 

.+  Ubm fYWcfXg cZ ibYad`cmaYbh ]bgifUbWY 'NB( Wcbhf]Vih]cbg) ]bhYfYgh) UbX,cf dYbU`hm dUmaYbh 
UffYUfg cf fYdcfh]b[ XY`]beiYbWm8 

/+  Ubm XYVhg ckYX Zcf NB Wcbhf]Vih]cbg) ]bhYfYgh) UbX,cf dYbU`h]Yg8  

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 261



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y /1 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

0+  h\Y \]ghcfm UbX fYgi`hg cZ Ubm UiX]h cf ]bjYgh][Uh]cb8 UbX 

1+  Wcd]Yg cZ kU[Y fYdcfh]b[ ]bZcfaUh]cb+ 

LiW\ X]gW`cgifYg UfY dfchYWhYX ibXYf LYWh]cb 204 cZ h\Y LhUhY EUVcf EUk) k\]W\ aU_Yg ]h U 
a]gXYaYUbcf Zcf h\Y fYW]d]Ybh cZ giW\ ]bZcfaUh]cb hc igY cf X]gW`cgY h\Y ]bZcfaUh]cb Zcf Ubm difdcgY 
ch\Yf h\Ub h\Y dYfZcfa]b[ XiY X]`][YbWY Ug U dUfh cZ h\Y UddfcjU` dfcWYgg Zcf h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  

N.  Vendor Responsibility: 

.+ BZ U <cbhfUWhcf ]g fYei]fYX hc Wcad`YhY U JiYgh]cbbU]fY) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf WcjYbUbhg UbX 
fYdfYgYbhg h\Uh ]h \Ug) hc h\Y VYgh cZ ]hg _bck`YX[Y) hfih\Zi``m) UWWifUhY`m UbX h\cfci[\`m 
Wcad`YhYX giW\ JiYgh]cbbU]fY+  9`h\ci[\ Y`YWhfcb]W Z]`]b[ ]g dfYZYffYX) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf aUm 
cVhU]b U dUdYf Zcfa Zfca h\Y HL< df]cf hc YlYWih]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
Zifh\Yf WcjYbUbhg UbX fYdfYgYbhg h\Uh Ug cZ h\Y XUhY cZ YlYWih]cb cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\YfY UfY 
bc aUhYf]U` YjYbhg) ca]gg]cbg) W\Ub[Yg cf WcffYWh]cbg hc giW\ XcWiaYbh fYei]f]b[ Ub UaYbXaYbh 
hc h\Y JiYgh]cbbU]fY+  

/+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` dfcj]XY hc h\Y LhUhY idXUhYg hc h\Y JiYgh]cbbU]fY ]Z Ubm aUhYf]U` YjYbh'g( 
cWWifg fYei]f]b[ Ub UaYbXaYbh cf Ug bYk ]bZcfaUh]cb aUhYf]U` hc giW\ JiYgh]cbbU]fY VYWcaYg 
UjU]`UV`Y+  

0+  M\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U``) ]b UXX]h]cb) dfcadh`m fYdcfh hc h\Y LhUhY h\Y ]b]h]Uh]cb cZ Ubm 
]bjYgh][Uh]cb cf UiX]h Vm U [cjYfbaYbhU` Ybh]hm k]h\ YbZcfWYaYbh Uih\cf]hm k]h\ fYgdYWh hc Ubm 
U``Y[YX j]c`Uh]cb cZ ?YXYfU` cf ghUhY `Uk Vm h\Y <cbhfUWhcf) ]hg Yad`cmYYg) ]hg cZZ]WYfg UbX,cf 
X]fYWhcfg ]b WcbbYWh]cb k]h\ aUhhYfg ]bjc`j]b[) fY`Uh]b[ hc cf Uf]g]b[ cih cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcftg 
Vig]bYgg+  LiW\ fYdcfh g\U`` VY aUXY k]h\]b Z]jY '2( Vig]bYgg XUmg Zc``ck]b[ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
VYWca]b[ UkUfY cZ giW\ YjYbh) ]bjYgh][Uh]cb) cf UiX]h+  LiW\ fYdcfh aUm VY Wcbg]XYfYX Vm h\Y 
LhUhY ]b aU_]b[ U =YhYfa]bUh]cb cZ OYbXcf Gcb*KYgdcbg]V]`]hm difgiUbh hc h\]g gYWh]cb+  

1+  M\Y LhUhY fYgYfjYg h\Y f][\h) ]b ]hg gc`Y X]gWfYh]cb) Uh Ubm h]aY Xif]b[ h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh7  

U(  hc fYei]fY idXUhYg cf W`Uf]Z]WUh]cbg hc h\Y JiYgh]cbbU]fY idcb kf]hhYb fYeiYgh8  

V(  hc ]bei]fY UVcih ]bZcfaUh]cb ]bW`iXYX ]b cf fYei]fYX ]bZcfaUh]cb ca]hhYX Zfca h\Y 
JiYgh]cbbU]fY8 

W(  hc fYei]fY h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc dfcj]XY giW\ ]bZcfaUh]cb hc h\Y LhUhY k]h\]b U fYUgcbUV`Y 
h]aYZfUaY8 UbX  

X(  hc fYei]fY Ug U WcbX]h]cb dfYWYXYbh hc YbhYf]b[ ]bhc h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh h\Uh h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
U[fYY hc giW\ UXX]h]cbU` WcbX]h]cbg Ug g\U`` VY bYWYggUfm hc gUh]gZm h\Y LhUhY h\Uh h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf ]g) UbX g\U`` fYaU]b) U fYgdcbg]V`Y jYbXcf8 UbX   

Y(  hc fYei]fY h\Y <cbhfUWhcf hc dfYgYbh Yj]XYbWY cZ ]hg Wcbh]bi]b[ `Y[U` Uih\cf]hm hc Xc 
Vig]bYgg ]b GYk Rcf_ LhUhY) ]bhY[f]hm) YldYf]YbWY) UV]`]hm) df]cf dYfZcfaUbWY) UbX 
cf[Ub]nUh]cbU` UbX Z]bUbW]U` WUdUW]hm+  ;m g][b]b[ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 262



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y /2 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

hc Wcad`m k]h\ Ubm giW\ UXX]h]cbU` WcbX]h]cbg h\Uh \UjY VYYb aUXY U dUfh cZ h\Y FUghYf 
<cbhfUWh+   

2+  M\Y LhUhY) ]b ]hg gc`Y X]gWfYh]cb) fYgYfjYg h\Y f][\h hc gigdYbX Ubm cf U`` UWh]j]h]Yg ibXYf h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh) Uh Ubm h]aY) k\Yb ]h X]gWcjYfg ]bZcfaUh]cb h\Uh WU``g ]bhc eiYgh]cb h\Y 
fYgdcbg]V]`]hm cZ h\Y <cbhfUWhcf+  Bb h\Y YjYbh cZ giW\ gigdYbg]cb) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` VY []jYb 
kf]hhYb bch]WY cih`]b]b[ h\Y dUfh]Wi`Ufg cZ giW\ gigdYbg]cb+  Ndcb ]ggiUbWY cZ giW\ bch]WY) h\Y 
<cbhfUWhcf aigh Wcad`m k]h\ h\Y hYfag cZ h\Y gigdYbg]cb cfXYf+  <cbhfUWh UWh]j]hm aUm fYgiaY Uh 
giW\ h]aY Ug h\Y LhUhY ]ggiYg U kf]hhYb bch]WY Uih\cf]n]b[ U fYgiadh]cb cZ dYfZcfaUbWY ibXYf h\Y 
FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

3+  M\Y LhUhY) ]b ]hg gc`Y X]gWfYh]cb) fYgYfjYg h\Y f][\h hc aU_Y U Z]bU` =YhYfa]bUh]cb cZ Gcb*
KYgdcbg]V]`]hm Uh Ubm h]aY Xif]b[ h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh VUgYX cb7 

U(  Ubm ]bZcfaUh]cb dfcj]XYX ]b h\Y JiYgh]cbbU]fY UbX,cf ]b Ubm idXUhYg) W`Uf]Z]WUh]cbg cf 
UaYbXaYbhg h\YfYcZ8 cf  

V(  h\Y LhUhYtg X]gWcjYfm cZ Ubm aUhYf]U` ]bZcfaUh]cb k\]W\ dYfhU]bg hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcfsg    
fYgdcbg]V]`]hm+  

4+  If]cf hc aU_]b[ U Z]bU` =YhYfa]bUh]cb cZ Gcb*KYgdcbg]V]`]hm) h\Y LhUhY g\U`` dfcj]XY kf]hhYb 
bch]WY hc h\Y <cbhfUWhcf h\Uh ]h \Ug aUXY U dfY`]a]bUfm XYhYfa]bUh]cb cZ bcb* fYgdcbg]V]`]hm+  M\Y 
LhUhY g\U`` XYhU]` h\Y fYUgcb'g( Zcf h\Y dfY`]a]bUfm XYhYfa]bUh]cb) UbX g\U`` dfcj]XY h\Y <cbhfUWhcf 
k]h\ Ub cddcfhib]hm hc VY \YUfX+ 

O.  Charities Registration:  BZ Udd`]WUV`Y) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf U[fYYg hc ']( cVhU]b bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h ghUhig) U 
?YXYfU` ]XYbh]Z]WUh]cb biaVYf) UbX U W\Uf]hUV`Y fY[]ghfUh]cb biaVYf 'cf U XYW`UfUh]cb cZ YlYadh]cb( 
UbX hc Zifb]g\ h\Y LhUhY 9[YbWm k]h\ h\]g ]bZcfaUh]cb Ug gccb Ug ]h ]g UjU]`UV`Y) ']]( VY ]b Wcad`]UbWY 
k]h\ h\Y H9@ W\Uf]h]Yg fY[]ghfUh]cb fYei]fYaYbhg Uh h\Y h]aY cZ h\Y UkUfX]b[ cZ h\]g FUghYf <cbhfUWh 
Vm h\Y LhUhY UbX ']]]( fYaU]b ]b Wcad`]UbWY k]h\ h\Y H9@ W\Uf]h]Yg fY[]ghfUh]cb fYei]fYaYbhg 
h\fci[\cih h\Y hYfa cZ h\Y FUghYf <cbhfUWh+ 

P.  Consultant Disclosure Law:9
BZ h\]g ]g U WcbhfUWh Zcf Wcbgi`h]b[ gYfj]WYg) XYZ]bYX Zcf difdcgYg  

cZ h\]g fYei]fYaYbh hc ]bW`iXY UbU`mg]g) YjU`iUh]cb) fYgYUfW\) hfU]b]b[) XUhU dfcWYgg]b[) WcadihYf 
dfc[fUaa]b[) Yb[]bYYf]b[) Ybj]fcbaYbhU`) \YU`h\) UbX aYbhU` \YU`h\ gYfj]WYg) UWWcibh]b[) UiX]h]b[) 
dUfU`Y[U`) `Y[U`) cf g]a]`Uf gYfj]WYg) h\Yb ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ LYWh]cb .30 '1*[( cZ h\Y LhUhY ?]bUbWY 
EUk 'Ug UaYbXYX Vm <\UdhYf .- cZ h\Y EUkg cZ /--3() h\Y <cbhfUWhcf g\U`` h]aY`m) UWWifUhY`m UbX 
dfcdYf`m Wcad`m k]h\ h\Y fYei]fYaYbh hc giVa]h Ub UbbiU` Yad`cmaYbh fYdcfh Zcf h\Y WcbhfUWh hc h\Y 
U[YbWm h\Uh UkUfXYX h\Y WcbhfUWh) h\Y =YdUfhaYbh cZ <]j]` LYfj]WY UbX h\Y LhUhY <cadhfc``Yf+

Q.  Wage and Hours Provisions:  BZ h\]g ]g U diV`]W kcf_ WcbhfUWh WcjYfYX Vm 9fh]W`Y 5 cZ h\Y EUVcf 
EUk cf U Vi]`X]b[ gYfj]WY WcbhfUWh WcjYfYX Vm 9fh]W`Y 6 h\YfYcZ) bY]h\Yf <cbhfUWhcftg Yad`cmYYg bcf 
h\Y Yad`cmYYg cZ ]hg giVWcbhfUWhcfg aUm VY fYei]fYX cf dYfa]hhYX hc kcf_ acfY h\Ub h\Y biaVYf cZ 
\cifg cf XUmg ghUhYX ]b gU]X ghUhihYg) YlWYdh Ug ch\Yfk]gY dfcj]XYX ]b h\Y EUVcf EUk UbX Ug gYh Zcfh\ 
]b dfYjU]`]b[ kU[Y UbX gidd`YaYbh gW\YXi`Yg ]ggiYX Vm h\Y LhUhY EUVcf =YdUfhaYbh+  ?ifh\YfacfY) 
<cbhfUWhcf UbX ]hg giVWcbhfUWhcfg aigh dUm Uh `YUgh h\Y dfYjU]`]b[ kU[Y fUhY UbX dUm cf dfcj]XY h\Y 

6 Gch Udd`]WUV`Y hc bch*Zcf*dfcZ]h Ybh]h]Yg+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 263



<cbhfUWh GiaVYf7 "TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT 
IU[Y /3 cZ /3) FUghYf <cbhfUWh Zcf @fUbhg * LhUbXUfX MYfag UbX <cbX]h]cbg '9i[igh /-.1( 

dfYjU]`]b[ gidd`YaYbhg) ]bW`iX]b[ h\Y dfYa]ia fUhYg Zcf cjYfh]aY dUm) Ug XYhYfa]bYX Vm h\Y LhUhY 
EUVcf =YdUfhaYbh ]b UWWcfXUbWY k]h\ h\Y EUVcf EUk+  9XX]h]cbU``m) YZZYWh]jY 9df]` /5) /--5) ]Z h\]g 
]g U diV`]W kcf_ WcbhfUWh WcjYfYX Vm 9fh]W`Y 5 cZ h\Y EUVcf EUk) h\Y <cbhfUWhcf ibXYfghUbXg UbX 
U[fYYg h\Uh h\Y Z]`]b[ cZ dUmfc``g ]b U aUbbYf Wcbg]ghYbh k]h\ LiVX]j]g]cb 0*U cZ LYWh]cb //- cZ h\Y 
EUVcf EUk g\U`` VY WcbX]h]cb dfYWYXYbh hc dUmaYbh Vm h\Y LhUhY cZ Ubm LhUhY UddfcjYX giag XiY UbX 
ck]b[ Zcf kcf_ XcbY idcb h\Y dfc^YWh+ 

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 264



4#
Gsrxvegx#Gccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E04>#Ekirg}#Wtigmjmg#Xivqw#)#Gsrhmxmsrw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=##

&G333;66#Gsrxvegx#Gcccccc#
#

#

EXXEGLQIRX#E04#

#

HMZMWMSR#SJ#LSQIPERH#WIGYVMX]#ERH#IQIVKIRG]#WIVZMGIW#

Ekirg}0Wtigmjmg#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#

#

41 HIJMRMXMSRW1##

e, HLWIW#vijivw#xs#xli#Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#Hmzmwmsr#sj#Lsqiperh#Wigyvmx}#erh#Iqivkirg}#Wivzmgiw1#

f, JIQE#vijivw#xs#xli#Jihivep#Iqivkirg}#Qerekiqirx#Ekirg}1#

g, Wyfvigmtmirx#qierw#e#rsr0Jihivep#irxmx}#xlex#vigimziw#e#wyfe{evh#jvsq#e#teww0xlvsykl#irxmx}#xs#gevv}#syx#tevx#

sj#e#Jihivep#tvskveq>#fyx#hsiw#rsx#mrgpyhi#er#mrhmzmhyep#xlex#mw#e#firijmgmev}#sj#wygl#tvskveq1##E#wyfvigmtmirx#

qe}#epws#fi#e#vigmtmirx#sj#sxliv#Jihivep#e{evhw#hmvigxp}#jvsq#e#Jihivep#e{evhmrk#ekirg}1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#

qe}#epws#fi#vijivvih#xs#ew#xli#�Gsrxvegxsv/�#�Wyf0Ettpmgerx/�#sv#�Wyf0kverxii�#ew#hijmrih#mr#xli#Qewxiv#

Gsrxvegx/#xli#kverx#ettpmgexmsr#{lmgl#kezi#vmwi#xs#xlmw#gsrxvegx/#sv#er}#sxliv#wxexi#sv#Jihivep#pe{w/#vypiw#sv#

vikypexmsrw#{lmgl#kszivr#xlmw#ekviiqirx1#

#

51 RSXMGI1##Tyvwyerx#xs#Wigxmsr#M/#tevekvetl#N#sj#xli#Qewxiv#Gsrxvegx/#epp#rsxmgiw#wlepp#fi#mr#{vmxmrk#erh#wlepp#fi#

ehhviwwih#xs>#

e, Jsv#xli#Wxexi>##

Le~evh#Qmxmkexmsr#Tvskveq#

7xl#Jpssv#

4553#[ewlmrkxsr#Ezi1#Fphk1;E#

Epfer}/#R]#45559#

#

f, Jsv#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx>#

+Wii#gsrxvegx#jegi#teki,#

#

61 ZIRHSV#VIWTSRWMFMPMX]#+Viuymvih#jsv#epp#gsrxvegxw#xlex#iuyep#sv#i|giih#'433/333,1###

e, Tyvwyerx#xs#Wigxmsr#MZ/#tevekvetl#F/#wyftevekvetlw#6#)#7#sj#xli#Qewxiv#Gsrxvegx/#erh#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#

Wxexi#Jmrergi#Pe{#«496+=,+j,#erh#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#4=5/#tvmsv#xs#irxivmrk#mrxs#er#ekviiqirx#{mxl#e#gsrxvegxsv/#

Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#viuymvi#iegl#gsrxvegxsv#xs#wyfqmx#e#Zirhsv#Viwtsrwmfmpmx}#Uyiwxmsrremvi#ws#xlex#HLWIW#

qe}#hixivqmri#{lixliv#xli#tvstswih#gsrxvegxsv#mw#e#viwtsrwmfpi#zirhsv1#Mj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx�w#gsrxvegxsv#

irxivw#mrxs#e#gsrxvegx#{mxl#e#wyfgsrxvegxsv#xlex#iuyepw#sv#i|giihw#'433/333/#xlex#wyfgsrxvegxsv#qywx#epws#

wyfqmx#e#Zirhsv#Viwtsrwmfmpmx}#Uyiwxmsrremvi1###

f, [liriziv#e#Wyfvigmtmirx#gsrxvegxsv#sv#wyfgsrxvegxsv#mw#viuymvih#xs#wyfqmx#e#Zirhsv#Viwtsrwmfmpmx}#

Uyiwxmsrremvi/#wemh#gsrxvegxsv#sv#wyfgsrxvegxsv#qywx#gsqtp}#{mxl#Wigxmsr#MZ/#tevekvetl#R#sj#xli#Qewxiv#

Gsrxvegx1###

g, Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#mrgpyhi#xli#Zirhsv#Viwtsrwmfmpmx}#tvszmwmsrw#jsyrh#mr#mr#Wigxmsr#MZ/#tevekvetl#R#sj#xli#

Qewxiv#Gsrxvegx#mr#epp#gsrxvegxw#xlex#iuyep#sv#i|giih#'433/333/#erh#wlepp#fi#viwtsrwmfpi#jsv#gsrxvegxsv#erh#

wyfgsrxvegxsv#gsqtpmergi1#

#

71 JMREP#TE]QIRX1###

e, Tvsnigx#Kverxw0#Jmrep#te}qirx#{mpp#rsx#fi#qehi#yrxmp#epp#kverx#viuymviqirxw#lezi#fiir#qix1#

f, Tperrmrk#Kverxw0#Jmrep#te}qirx#{mpp#rsx#fi#qehi#yrxmp#xli#tper#lew#fiir#ehstxih#f}#83(#sv#qsvi#sj#xli#

tevxmgmtexmrk#psgep#nyvmwhmgxmsrw#{mxlmr#xli#ettvszih#qypxm0nyvmwhmgxmsrep#tperrmrk#evie1#

#

333<37

333<37

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 265



5#
Gsrxvegx#Gccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E04>#Ekirg}#Wtigmjmg#Xivqw#)#Gsrhmxmsrw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=##

81 RI[#]SVO#WXEXI#LE^EVH#QMXMKEXMSR#TPERRMRK#WXERHEVHW#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#Tperrmrk#Kverxw#srp},1##

Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#qiix#viuymviqirxw#ew#syxpmrih#mr#xli#Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#Le~evh#Qmxmkexmsr#Tperrmrk#Wxerhevhw#ew#

mhirxmjmih#erh#wgstih#mr#}syv#ettvszih#ettpmgexmsr#+exxeglih,1#

#

91 MVER#HMZIWXQIRX#EGX1#F}#irxivmrk#mrxs#xlmw#Ekviiqirx/#Wyfvigmtmirx#givxmjmiw#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#Wxexi#Jmrergi#

Pe{#«4980e#xlex#mx#mw#rsx#sr#xli#�Irxmxmiw#Hixivqmrih#xs#fi#Rsr0#Viwtsrwmzi#Fmhhivw2Sjjivivw#tyvwyerx#xs#xli#

Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#Mver#Hmziwxqirx#Egx#sj#5345�#+�Tvslmfmxih#Irxmxmiw#Pmwx�,#tswxih#ex>#

lxxt>22{{{1skw1r}1ksz2efsyx2vikw2hsgw2PmwxsjIrxmxmiw1thj1#
#

Wyfvigmtmirx#jyvxliv#givxmjmiw#xlex#mx#{mpp#rsx#yxmpm~i#sr#xlmw#Gsrxvegx#er}#wyfgsrxvegxsv#xlex#mw#mhirxmjmih#sr#xli#

Tvslmfmxih#Irxmxmiw#Pmwx1#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xlex#wlsyph#mx#wiio#xs#viri{#sv#i|xirh#xlmw#Gsrxvegx/#mx#qywx#tvszmhi#

xli#weqi#givxmjmgexmsr#ex#xli#xmqi#xli#Gsrxvegx#mw#viri{ih#sv#i|xirhih1#Wyfvigmtmirx#epws#ekviiw#xlex#er}#

tvstswih#Ewwmkrii#sj#xlmw#Gsrxvegx#{mpp#fi#viuymvih#xs#givxmj}#xlex#mx#mw#rsx#sr#xli#Tvslmfmxih#Irxmxmiw#Pmwx#fijsvi#

xli#gsrxvegx#ewwmkrqirx#{mpp#fi#ettvszih#f}#xli#Wxexi1#

#

Hyvmrk#xli#xivq#sj#xli#Gsrxvegx/#wlsyph#HLWIW#vigimzi#mrjsvqexmsr#xlex#e#tivwsr#+ew#hijmrih#mr#Wxexi#Jmrergi#Pe{#

«4980e,#mw#mr#zmspexmsr#sj#xli#efszi0vijivirgih#givxmjmgexmsrw/#HLWIW#{mpp#vizmi{#wygl#mrjsvqexmsr#erh#sjjiv#xli#

tivwsr#er#sttsvxyrmx}#xs#viwtsrh1#Mj#xli#tivwsr#jempw#xs#hiqsrwxvexi#xlex#mx#lew#giewih#mxw#irkekiqirx#mr#xli#

mrziwxqirx#egxmzmx}#{lmgl#mw#mr#zmspexmsr#sj#xli#Egx#{mxlmr#=3#he}w#ejxiv#xli#hixivqmrexmsr#sj#wygl#zmspexmsr/#xlir#

HLWIW#wlepp#xeoi#wygl#egxmsr#ew#qe}#fi#ettvstvmexi#erh#tvszmhih#jsv#f}#pe{/#vypi/#sv#gsrxvegx/#mrgpyhmrk/#fyx#rsx#

pmqmxih#xs/#mqtswmrk#wergxmsrw/#wiiomrk#gsqtpmergi/#vigszivmrk#heqekiw/#sv#higpevmrk#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#mr#hijeypx1#

#

HLWIW#viwivziw#xli#vmklx#xs#vinigx#er}#fmh/#viuyiwx#jsv#ewwmkrqirx/#viri{ep#sv#i|xirwmsr#jsv#er#irxmx}#xlex#

ettievw#sr#xli#Tvslmfmxih#Irxmxmiw#Pmwx#tvmsv#xs#xli#e{evh/#ewwmkrqirx/#viri{ep#sv#i|xirwmsr#sj#e#gsrxvegx/#erh#xs#

tyvwyi#e#viwtsrwmfmpmx}#vizmi{#{mxl#viwtigx#xs#er}#irxmx}#xlex#mw#e{evhih#e#gsrxvegx#erh#ettievw#sr#xli#Tvslmfmxih#

Irxmxmiw#pmwx#ejxiv#gsrxvegx#e{evh1#

#

;1 #IRIVK]#IJJMGMIRG]1###Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#qerhexsv}#wxerhevhw#erh#tspmgmiw#vipexmrk#xs#irivk}#

ijjmgmirg}#{lmgl#evi#gsrxemrih#mr#xli#Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#irivk}#gsrwivzexmsr#tper#mwwyih#mr#gsqtpmergi#{mxl#xli#

Irivk}#Tspmg}#erh#Gsrwivzexmsr#Egx#+Tyfpmg#Pe{#=70496,1#

#

<1 TIVWSREPP]#MHIRXMJMEFPI#MRJSVQEXMSR1##Epp#Wyfvigmtmirxw#{ls#gsppigx#Tivwsrepp}#Mhirxmjmefpi#Mrjsvqexmsr#+TMM,#

evi#viuymvih#xs#lezi#e#tyfpmgp}0ezempefpi#tvmzeg}#tspmg}#xlex#hiwgvmfiw#{lex#TMM#xli}#gsppigx/#ls{#xli}#ywi#TMM/#

{lixliv#xli}#wlevi#TMM#{mxl#xlmvh#tevxmiw/#erh#ls{#mrhmzmhyepw#qe}#lezi#xlimv#TMM#gsvvigxih#{livi#ettvstvmexi1#

#

=1 FSRHMRK#VIUYMVIQIRXW#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrwxvygxmsr#erh#jegmpmx}#mqtvsziqirx#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'433/333,1###

Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#fsrhmrk#viuymviqirxw/#yrpiww#xli}#lezi#rsx#fiir#ettvszih#f}#

JIQE/#mr#{lmgl#gewi#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#jspps{mrk#qmrmqyq#fsrhmrk#viuymviqirxw>#

#

e, E# fmh# kyeverxii# jvsq# iegl# fmhhiv# iuymzepirx# xs# jmzi# tivgirx# sj# xli# fmh# tvmgi1# Xli# �fmh# kyeverxii�# wlepp#

gsrwmwx# sj# e# jmvq# gsqqmxqirx# wygl# ew# e# fmh# fsrh/# givxmjmih# gligo/# sv# sxliv# riksxmefpi# mrwxvyqirx#

eggsqter}mrk#e#fmh#ew#ewwyvergi#xlex#xli#fmhhiv#{mpp/#ytsr#eggitxergi#sj#lmw#fmh/#i|igyxi#wygl#gsrxvegxyep#

hsgyqirxw#ew#qe}#fi#viuymvih#{mxlmr#xli#xmqi#wtigmjmih1#

f, E#tivjsvqergi#fsrh#sr#xli#tevx#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#jsv#433#tivgirx#sj#xli#gsrxvegx#tvmgi1#E#�tivjsvqergi#

fsrh�# mw# sri# i|igyxih# mr# gsrrigxmsr# {mxl# e# gsrxvegx# xs# wigyvi# jypjmppqirx# sj# epp# xli# Wyfvigmtmirx�w#

sfpmkexmsrw#yrhiv#wygl#gsrxvegx1#

g, E#te}qirx#fsrh#sr#xli#tevx#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#jsv#433#tivgirx#sj#xli#gsrxvegx#tvmgi1#E#�te}qirx#fsrh�#mw#sri#

i|igyxih#mr#gsrrigxmsr#{mxl#e#gsrxvegx#xs#ewwyvi#te}qirx#ew#viuymvih#f}#pe{#sj#epp#tivwsrw#wyttp}mrk#pefsv#erh#

qexivmep#mr#xli#i|igyxmsr#sj#xli#{svo#tvszmhih#jsv#mr#xli#gsrxvegx1#

333<37

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 266



4#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05#

Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}0Jyrhih#Kverxw#
#

Xli#jspps{mrk#xivqw#erh#gsrhmxmsrw#ettp}#xs#er}#gsrxvegx#jsv#{lmgl#er}#tsvxmsr#sj#xli#jyrhmrk#mw#hivmzih#jvsq#e#Le~evh#

Qmxmkexmsr#Ewwmwxergi#kverx#qehi#f}#xli#Jihivep#Iqivkirg}#Qerekiqirx#Ekirg}#xlvsykl#HLWIW1##Xliwi#xivqw#erh#

gsrhmxmsrw#evi#mr#ehhmxmsr#xs#epp#kverx#wtigmjmg#xivqw#erh#gsrhmxmsrw#wtigmjmih#mr#xli#Gsrhmxmsrep#Pixxiv#sj#Ettvszep#

tvszmhih#f}#JIQE#{lmgl#mw#exxeglih#xs#xli#Gsrxvegx#qehi#e#tevx#xlivisj1#

#

KIRIVEP#GSRHMXMSRW#

#

41 TVSZMWMSRW#VIUYMVIH#F]#PE[#HIIQIH#MRWIVXIH1###Iegl#erh#iziv}#tvszmwmsr#sj#pe{#erh#gpeywi#viuymvih#f}#pe{#xs#

fi#mrwivxih#mr#xlmw#gsrxvegx#wlepp#fi#hiiqih#xs#fi#mrwivxih#livimr#erh#xli#gsrxvegx#wlepp#fi#vieh#erh#irjsvgih#ew#

xlsykl#mx#{ivi#mrgpyhih#livimr/#erh#mj#xlvsykl#qmwxeoi#sv#sxliv{mwi#er}#wygl#tvszmwmsr#mw#rsx#mrwivxih/#sv#mw#rsx#

gsvvigxp}#mrwivxih/#xlir#ytsr#xli#ettpmgexmsr#sj#imxliv#tevx}#xli#gsrxvegx#wlepp#jsvxl{mxl#fi#tl}wmgepp}#eqirhih#xs#

qeoi#wygl#mrwivxmsr#sv#gsvvigxmsr1#

51 WXEXYXSV]#ERH#VIKYPEXSV]#GSQTPMERGI1###Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#epp#pe{w#erh#vikypexmsrw#ettpmgefpi#xs#

xli#Le~evh#Qmxmkexmsr#Ewwmwxergi#jyrhw/#mrgpyhmrk#fyx#rsx#pmqmxih#xs#xli#ettpmgefpi#Sjjmgi#sj#Qerekiqirx#erh#

Fyhkix#Gmvgypevw/#{lmgl#qe}#mqtegx#xli#ehqmrmwxvexmsr#sj#jyrhw#erh2sv#wix#jsvxl#givxemr#gswx#tvmrgmtpiw/#mrgpyhmrk#xli#

epps{efmpmx}#sj#givxemr#i|tirwiw1#

61 VIUYMVIQIRX#JSV#W]WXIQ#SJ#E[EVH#QEREKIQIRX1#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#qemrxemr#xli#gyvvirg}#sj#mxw#mrjsvqexmsr#

mr#xli#W}wxiq#sj#E{evh#Qerekiqirx#+WEQ,#yrxmp#wyfqmwwmsr#sj#xli#jmrep#jmrergmep#vitsvx#viuymvih#yrhiv#xlmw#e{evh#

sv#vigimtx#sj#xli#jmrep#te}qirx/#{lmgliziv#mw#pexiv/#ew#viuymvih#f}#5#GJV#Tevx#58#erh#Ettirhm|#MM#xs#Tevx#581##

71 EHQMRMWXVEXMZI/#GSWX/#EYHMX#ERH#TVSKVEQ#VIUYMVIQIRXW1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#qswx#

vigirx#zivwmsr#+yrpiww#e#wtigmjmg#zivwmsr#mw#rsxih,#sj#xli#Ehqmrmwxvexmzi#Viuymviqirxw/#Gswx#Tvmrgmtpiw/#erh#Eyhmx#

viuymviqirxw/#erh#xs#xli#i|xirx#rigiwwev}#gsstivexi#erh#qemrxemr#mrjsvqexmsr#erh#hsgyqirxexmsr#xs#epps{#HLWIW#

xs#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#ettpmgefpi#vikypexmsrw#kszivrmrk#xli#JIQE0Wxexi#Ekviiqirx1##Jempyvi#xs#hs#ws#qe}#viwypx#mr#

hmwepps{ergi#sj#gswxw#ytsr#eyhmx1##E#pmwx#sj#vikypexmsrw#erh#kymhergi#ettpmgefpi#xs#Yrmxih#Wxexiw#Hitevxqirx#sj#

Lsqiperh#Wigyvmx}#+HLW,#kverxw#mw#pmwxih#fips{>#

e, 5#GJV#Tevx#533/#Yrmjsvq#Ehqmrmwxvexmzi#Viuymviqirxw/#Gswx#Tvmrgmtpiw/#erh#Eyhmx#Viuymviqirxw#jsv#Jihivep#

E{evhw#

f, 5#GJV#Tevx#548/#Yrmjsvq#Ehqmrmwxvexmzi#Viuymviqirxw#jsv#Kverxw#erh#Ekviiqirxw#{mxl#Mrwxmxyxmsrw#sj#Lmkliv#

Ihygexmsr/#Lswtmxepw/#)#sxliv#Rsr0Tvsjmx#Svkerm~exmsrw##

g, 5#GJV#Tevx#533#+SQF#Gmvgypev#E0<;,/#Wyftevx#I/#Gswx#Tvmrgmtpiw#

h, 5#GJV#Tevx#553#+SQF#Gmvgypev#E054,/#Gswx#Tvmrgmtpiw#jsv#Ihygexmsrep#Mrwxmxyxmsrw#

i, SQF#Gmvgypev#E0455/#Gswx#Tvmrgmtpiw#jsv#Rsrtvsjmx#Svkerm~exmsrw#

j, 5#GJV#Tevx#533/#Wyftevx#J/#Eyhmx#Viuymviqirxw#

k, SQF#Gmvgypevw#E0=7#erh#E0466#

81 LE^EVH#QMXMKEXMSR#EWWMWXERGI#VIUYMVIQIRXW#

e, Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#Ehqmrmwxvexmzi#Tper#jsv#xli#Le~evh#Qmxmkexmsr#Tvskveq#

f, Wigxmsrw#536#+THQ,#erh#737#+LQKT,#sj#xli#Wxejjsvh#Egx#+75#YWG#8454#ix#wiu1,#

g, Wigxmsrw#4656#+VJG,/#4694E#+WVP,/#4699#+JQE,#sj#xli#Rexmsrep#Jpssh#Mrwyvergi#Egx#sj#4=9</#ew#eqirhih#+75#YWG#

7334#ix#wiu1,#

h, Wigxmsr#655#sj#xli#Wxejjsvh#Egx#erh#77#GJV#Tevx#534#+Qmxmkexmsr#Tperrmrk,#

i, Wigxmsr#657#sj#xli#Wxejjsvh#Egx#erh#77#GJV#Tevx#53;#+Qerekiqirx#Gswxw,#

j, Rexmsrep#Lmwxsvmg#Tviwivzexmsr#Egx/#ew#eqirhih#+87#Y1W1G1#«#633434#ix#wiu1,#

k, Wigxmsr#439#sj#xli#Rexmsrep#Lmwxsvmg#Tviwivzexmsr#egx#+49#Y1W1G1#«#7;3,#

000804

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 267



5#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

l, IS#448=6>#Mhirxmjmgexmsr#erh#tvsxigxmsr#sj#lmwxsvmg#tvstivxmiw#

m, Evglispskmgep#erh#Lmwxsvmgep#Tviwivzexmsr#Egx#sj#4=;7#+49#Y1W1G1#«#79=e04#ix#wiu1,#

n, Rexmsrep#Irzmvsrqirxep#Tspmg}#Egx/#ew#eqirhih#+75#Y1W1G1#«#7654#ix#wiu1,#

o, IS#44=<<>#Jpsshtpemr#Qerekiqirx#erh#IS#44==3>#Tvsxigxmsr#sj#[ixperhw#+77#GJV#Tevx#=,#

p, Rexmsrep#Irzmvsrqirxep#Tspmg}#erh#Irzmvsrqirxep#Gsrwmhivexmsrw#+77#GJV#Tevx#43,#

q, Jpsshtpemr#Qerekiqirx#+77#GJV#Tevx#93,#

r, Jpssh#Qmxmkexmsr#Kverxw#+77#GJV#Tevx#;=,#

s, Tvstivx}#Eguymwmxmsr#erh#Vipsgexmsr#jsv#Stir#Wtegi#+77#GJV#Tevx#<3,#

t, Le~evh#Qmxmkexmsr#Kverx#Tvskveq#+77#GJV#Tevx#539/#Wyftevx#R,#

u, 77#GJV#Tevxw#;/#=/#43/#46/#47/#4;/#4</#58/#539/#553/#erh#554/#erh#er}#sxliv#ettpmgefpi#JIQE#tspmg}#qiqsverhe#

erh#kymhergi#hsgyqirxw#

v, Jihivep#Eguymwmxmsr#Vikypexmsrw#+JEV,#Wyftevx#6415/#Gsrxvegxw#{mxl#Gsqqivgmep#Svkerm~exmsrw#

w, Sxliv#ettpmgefpi#Jihivep/#Wxexi/#Mrhmer#Xvmfep/#erh#psgep#pe{w/#mqtpiqirxmrk#vikypexmsrw/#erh#I|igyxmzi#Svhivw#

91 EHZERGI#TE]QIRXW1##HLWIW/#ex#mxw#s{r#hmwgvixmsr/#qe}#ettvszi#ehzergi#te}qirxw#xs#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx1##

Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xs#i|tirh#xli#ehzergi#te}qirxw#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#xli#tyvtswiw#wix#jsvxl#mr#Exxeglqirx#G#

erh#gsrwmwxirx#{mxl#Exxeglqirx#F1#Ehzergih#jyrhw#qywx#fi#tpegih#mr#er#mrxiviwx0fievmrk#eggsyrx#erh#evi#wyfnigx#xs#

xli#vypiw#syxpmrih#mr#5#GJV#Tevx#533/#+Yrmjsvq#Ehqmrmwxvexmzi#Viuymviqirxw#jsv#Kverxw#erh#Gsstivexmzi#Gsrxvegxw#xs#

Wxexi#erh#Psgep#Kszivrqirxw,#erh#5#GJV#548#+Yrmjsvq#Ehqmrmwxvexmzi#Viuymviqirxw#jsv#Kverxw#erh#Gsrxvegxw#{mxl#

Mrwxmxyxmsrw#sj#Lmkliv#Ihygexmsr/#Lswtmxepw/#erh#Sxliv#Rsr0Tvsjmx#Svkerm~exmsrw,/#{lmgl#viuymviw#xli#Wyf0Vigmtmirx#xs#

tvsqtxp}#viqmx#fego#xs#xli#jihivep#kszivrqirx/#xlvsykl#HLWIW/#er}#mrxiviwx#ievrih#sr#xliwi#ehzergih#jyrhw1#Xli#

Wyf0Vigmtmirx#qe}#oiit#mrxiviwx#ievrih#yt#xs#'433#tiv#jihivep#jmwgep#}iev#+psgep#kszivrqirx,#sv#'583#tiv#jihivep#

jmwgep#}iev#+rsx0jsv0tvsjmx,#jsv#ehqmrmwxvexmzi#i|tirwiw1#Mrxiviwx#qywx#fi#vitsvxih#sr#Jmwgep#Gswx#Vitsvxw#erh#

viqmxxih#xs#HLWIW#uyevxivp}1#

;1 YWI#SJ#KVERX#JYRHW1##Er}#gswx#epps{efpi#xs#e#tevxmgypev#Jihivep#e{evh#tvszmhih#jsv#mr#5#GJV#Tevx#533/#Wyftevx#I#

qe}#rsx#fi#glevkih#xs#sxliv#Jihivep#e{evhw#xs#szivgsqi#jyrh#hijmgmirgmiw/#xs#ezsmh#viwxvmgxmsrw#mqtswih#f}#jihivep#

wxexyxiw/#vikypexmsrw#sv#xivqw#erh#gsrhmxmsrw#sj#xli#Jihivep#e{evhw#sv#jsv#sxliv#viewsrw1#Ls{iziv/#xlmw#tvslmfmxmsr#

{syph#rsx#tvigpyhi#xli#rsr0Jihivep#irxmx}#jvsq#wlmjxmrk#gswxw#xlex#evi#epps{efpi#yrhiv#x{s#sv#qsvi#Jihivep#e{evhw#

mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#i|mwxmrk#Jihivep#wxexyxiw/#vikypexmsrw#sv#xli#xivqw#erh#gsrhmxmsrw#sj#xli#Jihivep#e{evhw1#

<1 JIHIVEP#HIFX1##Wyfvigmtmirx#givxmjmiw#xlex#mx#mw#rsr0hipmruyirx#mr#mxw#vite}qirx#sj#er}#Jihivep#hifx1##I|eqtpiw#sj#

vipizerx#hifx#mrgpyhi#hipmruyirx#te}vspp#erh#sxliv#xe|iw/#eyhmx#hmwepps{ergi/#erh#firijmx#szivte}qirxw1#+Wii#SQF#

Gmvgypev#E045=#erh#jsvq#WJ0757F/#mxiq#ryqfiv#4;,1#

=1 GSRJPMGXW#SJ#MRXIVIWX1###Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#rsxmj}#HLWIW#ew#wssr#ew#tswwmfpi#mj#xlmw#gsrxvegx#sv#er}#ewtigx#

vipexih#xs#xli#erxmgmtexih#{svo#yrhiv#xlmw#gsrxvegx#vemwiw#er#egxyep#sv#tsxirxmep#gsrjpmgx#sj#mrxiviwx#+ew#hiwgvmfih#mr#5#

GJV#Tevx#533,1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#i|tpemr#xli#egxyep#sv#tsxirxmep#gsrjpmgx#mr#{vmxmrk#mr#wyjjmgmirx#hixemp#ws#xlex#xli#

HLWIW#mw#efpi#xs#ewwiww#wygl#egxyep#sv#tsxirxmep#gsrjpmgx1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#tvszmhi#HLWIW#er}#ehhmxmsrep#

mrjsvqexmsr#rigiwwev}#jsv#HLWIW#xs#jypp}#ewwiww#erh#ehhviww#wygl#egxyep#sv#tsxirxmep#gsrjpmgx#sj#mrxiviwx1#

431 HIFEVQIRX#ERH#WYWTIRWMSR#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#epp#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'58/333,1##Xlmw#gsrxvegx#mw#e#gszivih#

xverwegxmsr#jsv#tyvtswiw#sj#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#4<3#erh#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#63331#Ew#wygl#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#mw#viuymvih#xs#zivmj}#

xlex#rsri#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx/#mxw#tvmrgmtepw#+hijmrih#ex#5#G1J1V1#«#4<31==8,/#sv#mxw#ejjmpmexiw#+hijmrih#ex#5#G1J1V1#«#

4<31=38,#evi#i|gpyhih#+hijmrih#ex#5#G1J1V1#«#4<31=73,#sv#hmwuyepmjmih#+hijmrih#ex#5#G1J1V1#«#4<31=68,1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#

qywx#gsqtp}#{mxl#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#4<3/#wyftevx#G#erh#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#6333/#wyftevx#G#erh#qywx#mrgpyhi#e#viuymviqirx#xs#

gsqtp}#{mxl#xliwi#vikypexmsrw#mr#er}#ps{iv#xmiv#gszivih#xverwegxmsr#+i1k1/#wyfgsrxvegx,#mx#irxivw#mrxs1#Xlmw#

givxmjmgexmsr#mw#e#qexivmep#vitviwirxexmsr#sj#jegx#vipmih#ytsr#f}#HLWIW1#Mj#mx#mw#pexiv#hixivqmrih#xlex#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#

hmh#rsx#gsqtp}#{mxl#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#4<3/#wyftevx#G#erh#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#6333/#wyftevx#G/#mr#ehhmxmsr#xs#viqihmiw#ezempefpi#

xs#HLWIW/#xli#Jihivep#Kszivrqirx#qe}#tyvwyi#ezempefpi#viqihmiw/#mrgpyhmrk#fyx#rsx#pmqmxih#xs#wywtirwmsr#erh2sv#

hifevqirx1##

441 WYFGSRXVEGXMRK1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#vitviwirxw#xs#HLWIW#xlex#epp#{svo#wlepp#fi#tivjsvqih#f}#tivwsrrip#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 268



6#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

i|tivmirgih#mr#xli#ettvstvmexi#erh#ettpmgefpi#tvsjiwwmsr#erh#eview#sj#i|tivxmwi/#xeomrk#mrxs#eggsyrx#xli#rexyvi#sj#

xli#{svo#xs#fi#tivjsvqih#yrhiv#xlmw#gsrxvegx1##Rsri#sj#xli#ksepw/#sfnigxmziw#sv#xewow/#ew#wix#jsvxl#mr#Exxeglqirx#G/#

wlepp#fi#wyf0e{evhih#xs#ersxliv#svkerm~exmsr#{mxlsyx#wtigmjmg#tvmsv#{vmxxir#ettvszep#f}#HLWIW1#[livi#xli#mrxirxmsr#

xs#qeoi#wyf0e{evhw#mw#gpievp}#mrhmgexih#mr#xli#ettpmgexmsr/#HLWIW#ettvszep#mw#hiiqih#kmzir/#mj#xliwi#egxmzmxmiw#evi#

jyrhih/#ew#tvstswih1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#mrgpyhi#xli#gsrxvegx#tvszmwmsrw#viuymvih#f}#5#GJV#«5331659#+erh#

Ettirhm|#MM#xs#5#GJV#Tevx#533,/#mr#iziv}#gsrxvegx#mwwyih#f}#mx#ws#xlex#wygl#tvszmwmsrw#{mpp#fi#fmrhmrk#ytsr#iegl#sj#mxw#

gsrxvegxsvw#ew#{ipp#ew#xli#viuymviqirx#xs#jps{#hs{r#wygl#xivqw#xs#epp#ps{iv0xmivih#wyfgsrxvegxsvw1##Xliwi#xivqw#erh#

gsrhmxmsrw#evi#jsyrh#mr#I|lmfmx#I/#R]W#Hmzmwmsr#sj#Lsqiperh#Wigyvmx}#erh#Iqivkirg}#Wivzmgiw#Wyttpiqirxev}#

Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Le~evh#Qmxmkexmsr#Ewwmwxergi#Gsrxvegxw1##E#gst}#sj#{lmgl#lew#fiir#tvszmhih#jsv#vijivirgi#{mxl#xlmw#

gsrxvegx1#
Xli# Wyfvigmtmirx# ekviiw# xlex# epp# wyfgsrxvegxsv# evverkiqirxw# wlepp# fi# jsvqepm~ih# mr#{vmxmrk# fix{iir# xli# tevxmiw#

mrzspzih1#Xli#{vmxmrk#qywx/#ex#e#qmrmqyq/#mrgpyhi#xli#jspps{mrk#mrjsvqexmsr>#

e, Egxmzmxmiw#xs#fi#tivjsvqih?#

f, Xmqi#wglihypi?#

g, Tvsnigx#tspmgmiw?#

h, Sxliv#tspmgmiw#erh#tvsgihyviw#xs#fi#jspps{ih?#

i, Hsppev#pmqmxexmsr#sj#xli#Gsrxvegx?#

j, Exxeglqirx#E04/#Exxeglqirx#G/#Exxeglqirx#I/#Givxmjmgexmsr#Vikevhmrk#Psff}mrk/#Hifevqirx#erh#Wywtirwmsr#erh#

er}#wtigmep#gsrhmxmsrw#wix#jsvxl#mr#xli#Gsrxvegx?#

k, Ettpmgefpi#jihivep#erh2sv#Wxexi#gswx#tvmrgmtpiw#xs#fi#ywih#mr#hixivqmrmrk#epps{efpi#gswxw?#

l, #erh#Tvstivx}#Vigsvhw#sv#Iuymtqirx#Mrzirxsv}#Vitsvxw#

451 EYHMX#2#EGGIWW#XS#VIGSVHW1###Xli#Wyfkverxii/#HLWIW/#JIQE/#xli#Gsqtxvsppiv#Kirivep#sj#xli#Yrmxih#Wxexiw/#Ri{#

]svo#Wxexi#Sjjmgi#sj#Wxexi#Gsqtxvsppiv/#tivxmrirx#jihivep#ekirgmiw/#erh#sxliv#hiwmkrexih#irxmxmiw/#sv#er}#sj#xlimv#hyp}#

eyxlsvm~ih#vitviwirxexmziw/#wlepp#lezi/#ex#er}#xmqi#erh#jvsq#xmqi#xs#xmqi#hyvmrk#rsvqep#fywmriww#lsyvw/#eggiww#xs#

er}#{svo#tvshygx/#fssow/#hsgyqirxw/#tetivw/#erh#vigsvhw#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{lmgl#evi#vipexih#xs#xlmw#gsrxvegx/#jsv#

xli#tyvtswi#sj#mrwtigxmsr/#eyhmxw/#i|eqmrexmsrw/#erh#qeomrk#i|givtxw/#gstmiw#erh#xverwgvmtxmsrw1#Wygl#eyhmxw#qe}#

mrgpyhi#vizmi{#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx*w#eggsyrxmrk/#jmrergmep/#erh#vitsvxmrk#tvegxmgiw#xs#hixivqmri#gsqtpmergi#{mxl#xli#

Gsrxvegx#erh#vitsvxmrk#viuymviqirxw?#qemrxirergi#sj#eggyvexi#erh#vipmefpi#svmkmrep#eggsyrxmrk#vigsvhw#mr#

eggsvhergi#{mxl#kszivrqirxep#eggsyrxmrk#wxerhevhw#ew#{ipp#ew#kirivepp}#eggitxih#eggsyrxmrk#tvmrgmtpiw?#erh#

wtigmjmg#gsqtpmergi#{mxl#epps{efpi#gswx#erh#i|tirhmxyvi#hsgyqirxexmsr#wxerhevhw#tviwgvmfih#f}#ettpmgefpi#jihivep/#

Wxexi/#erh#HLWIW#kymhipmriw1#

461 WMRKPI#EYHMX#VIUYMVIQIRXW1#Jsv#eyhmxw#sj#jmwgep#}ievw#fikmrrmrk#sr#sv#ejxiv#Higiqfiv#59/#5347/#Wyfvigmtmirxw#

xlex#i|tirh#';83/333#sv#qsvi#jvsq#epp#jihivep#jyrhmrk#wsyvgiw#hyvmrk#xlimv#jmwgep#}iev#evi#viuymvih#xs#wyfqmx#er#

svkerm~exmsr0{mhi#jmrergmep#erh#gsqtpmergi#eyhmx#vitsvx1#Xli#eyhmx#qywx#fi#tivjsvqih#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#xli#

viuymviqirxw#sj#KES�w#Kszivrqirx#Eyhmxmrk#Wxerhevhw/#psgexih#ex#lxxt>22{{{1kes1ksz2kszeyh2}fo341lxq/#erh#

xli#viuymviqirxw#sj#Wyftevx#J#sj#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#5331##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#tvszmhi#sri#gst}#sj#wygl#eyhmx#vitsvx#xs#

HLWIW#{mxlmr#rmri#+=,#qsrxlw#sj#xli#irh#sj#mxw#jmwgep#}iev#sv#gsqqyrmgexi#mr#{vmxmrk#xs#HLWIW#xlex#Wyfvigmtmirx#mw#

i|iqtx#jvsq#wygl#viuymviqirx1#

471 QEMRXIRERGI2VIXIRXMSR#SJ#VIGSVHW1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#iwxefpmwl#erh#qemrxemr#gsqtpixi#vigsvhw/#

mrgpyhmrk#eggyvexi#fssow/#jmrergmep#vigsvhw/#wyttsvxmrk#hsgyqirxw/#eggsyrxw#erh#sxliv#izmhirgi#hmvigxp}#tivxmrirx#

xs#tivjsvqergi#sj#{svo#tivjsvqih#yrhiv#xlmw#Gsrxvegx#gsrwmwxirx#{mxl#kirivepp}#eggitxih#fssooiitmrk#tvegxmgiw1##

Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#vixemr#epp#jmrergmep#vigsvhw/#wyttsvxmrk#hsgyqirxw/#wxexmwxmgep#vigsvhw/#erh#epp#sxliv#vigsvhw#

tivxmrirx#xs#xli#Ekviiqirx#+gsppigxmzip}/#xli#�Vigsvhw�,#+m,#jsv#xlvii#+6,#}ievw#jvsq#xli#xmqi#sj#gpswisyx#sj#JIQE�w#

kverx#xs#xli#Wxexi#sv#jsv#xli#tivmsh#tvszmhih#mr#xli#JIQE#vikypexmsrw#ex#77#G1J1V1#Tevx#46#+Sgxsfiv#4/#5345,#+sv#sxliv#

ettpmgefpi#pe{w#erh#tvskveq#viuymviqirxw/#wygl#ew#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#533,/#sv#+mm,#jsv#wm|#+9,#}ievw#ejxiv#xli#gpswisyx#sj#xli#

Ekviiqirx/#sv/#ew#psrk#ew#viuymvih#f}#wxexi#pe{/#{lmgliziv#qe}#fi#psrkiv1#

481 TVSKVEQ#MRGSQI1#Tvskveq#mrgsqi#ievrih#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#hyvmrk#xli#kverx#jyrhmrk#Tivmsh#qywx#fi#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 269



7#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

vitsvxih#mr#{vmxmrk#xs#HLWIW/#mr#ehhmxmsr#xs#er}#sxliv#wxexyxsv}#vitsvxmrk#viuymviqirxw1#Tvskveq#mrgsqi#gsrwmwxw#

sj#mrgsqi#ievrih#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#xlex#mw#hmvigxp}#kirivexih#f}#e#wyttsvxih#egxmzmx}#sv#ievrih#ew#e#viwypx#sj#xli#

kverx#tvskveq1#Tvskveq#mrgsqi#mrgpyhiw/#fyx#mw#rsx#pmqmxih#xs/#mrgsqi#jvsq#jiiw#jsv#wivzmgiw#tivjsvqih/#xli#ywi#sj#

virxep#sv#viep#sv#tivwsrep#tvstivx}#eguymvih#yrhiv#jihivepp}0jyrhih#tvsnigxw/#xli#wepi#sj#gsqqshmxmiw#sv#mxiqw#

jefvmgexih#yrhiv#er#e{evh/#pmgirwi#jiiw#erh#vs}epxmiw#sr#texirxw#erh#gst}vmklxw#erh#mrxiviwx#sr#pserw#qehi#{mxl#

jihivep#e{evh#jyrhw1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xs#vitsvx#xli#vigimtx#erh#i|tirhmxyviw#sj#kverx#tvskveq#mrgsqi#xs#

HLWIW1#+5#GJV#«533163;,##

491 EGGSYRXMRK#JSV#KVERX#I\TIRHMXYVIW1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xlex#mx#wlepp#qemrxemr#ehiuyexi#mrxivrep#gsrxvspw#

erh#ehlivi#xs#Kirivepp}#Eggitxih#Eggsyrxmrk#Tvmrgmtpiw#jsv#Kszivrqirx#sv#Kirivepp}#Eggitxih#Eggsyrxmrk#

Tvmrgmtpiw#jsv#Rsx0jsv0Tvsjmx#Svkerm~exmsrw1##Kverx#jyrhw#qe}#fi#i|tirhih#srp}#jsv#tyvtswiw#erh#egxmzmxmiw#wix#jsvxl#

mr#xlmw#Gsrxvegx1##Mj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#vigimziw#jyrhmrk#jvsq#x{s#sv#qsvi#wsyvgiw/#epp#rigiwwev}#wxitw#qywx#fi#xeoir#xs#

irwyvi#xlex#kverx0vipexih#xverwegxmsrw#evi#rsx#gsqqmrkpih1#Xlmw#mrgpyhiw/#fyx#mw#rsx#pmqmxih#xs/#xli#iwxefpmwlqirx#sj#

yrmuyi#fyhkix#gshiw/#e#witevexi#gswx#girxiv/#sv#e#witevexi#glevx#sj#eggsyrxw1##I|tirhmxyviw#qywx#fi#gvsww0

vijivirgih#xs#wyttsvxmrk#wsyvgi#hsgyqirxw#+tyvglewi#svhivw/#gsrxvegxw/#viep#iwxexi#piewiw/#mrzsmgiw/#zsyglivw/#

xmqiwliixw/#qmpieki#pskw/#ixg1,1###

4;1 EGORS[PIHKIQIRX#ERH#YWI#SJ#WIEPW/#PSKSW/#GVIWXW/#)#PMOIRIWWIW1##Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#egors{pihki#mxw#ywi#

sj#jihivep#jyrhmrk#{lir#mwwymrk#wxexiqirxw/#tviww#vipiewiw/#erh#viuyiwxw#jsv#tvstswepw/#fmh#mrzmxexmsrw#erh#sxliv#

hsgyqirxw#hiwgvmfmrk#tvsnigxw#sv#tvskveqw#jyrhih#mr#{lspi#sv#mr#tevx#{mxl#Jihivep#jyrhw1##Ehhmxmsrepp}/#

Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#sfxemr#ettvszep#tvmsv#xs#ywmrk#xli#HLW/#JIQE/#erh2sv#R]W#HLWIW#wiep+w,/#psksw/#gviwxw#sv#

pmoiriwwiw#sj#HLW/#JIQE/#erh2sv#HLWIW#ekirg}#sjjmgmepw1# #

4<1 YWI#SJ#LSXIP#SV#QSXIPW#+Mj#ettpmgefpi,1##Tyvwyerx#xs#«#9#sj#xli#Lsxip#erh#Qsxip#Jmvi#Wejix}#Egx#sj#4==3#+48#Y1W1G1#

«5558e,/#Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#irwyvi#xlex#epp#gsrjivirgi/#qiixmrk/#gsrzirxmsr/#sv#xvemrmrk#wtegi#jyrhih#mr#{lspi#sv#mr#

tevx#{mxl#Jihivep#jyrhw#gsqtpmiw#{mxl#xli#jmvi#tvizirxmsr#erh#gsrxvsp#kymhipmriw#sj#xli#Jihivep#Jmvi#Tvizirxmsr#erh#

Gsrxvsp#Egx#sj#4=;7/#ew#eqirhih#+48#Y1W1G1#«#5558,1#

4=1 JPSSH#MRWYVERGI#VIUYMVIQIRX#+Mj#xli#xsxep#gswx#sj#gsrwxvygxmsr#sv#eguymwmxmsr#i|giihw#'43/333,1##Mj#xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#irkekiw#mr#gsrwxvygxmsr#sv#eguymwmxmsr#mr#e#wtigmep#jpssh#le~evh#evie/#mx#qywx#tyvglewi#jpssh#mrwyvergi#

mr#gsqtpmergi#{mxl#xli#jpssh#mrwyvergi#tyvglewi#viuymviqirxw#sj#Wigxmsr#435+e,#sj#xli#Jpssh#Hmwewxiv#Tvsxigxmsr#Egx#

sj#4=;6#+T1P1#=60567,1##

531 YRMJSVQ#VIPSGEXMSR#EWWMWXERGI#ERH#VIEP#TVSTIVX]#EGUYMWMXMSR#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#xli#tyvglewi#sj#EPP#

mrxiviwxw#mr#viep#tvstivx}#eguymvih#jsv#tvsnigx#tyvtswiw,1##Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#gsqtp}#{mxl#Xmxpiw#MM#erh#MMM#sj#xli#

Yrmjsvq#Vipsgexmsr#Ewwmwxergi#erh#Viep#Tvstivx}#Eguymwmxmsr#Tspmgmiw#Egx#sj#4=;3#+75#Y1W1G1#«#7934#ix#wiu1#_T1P1#=40

979a,#erh#Xmxpi#77#GJV/#Tevx#58/#Yrmjsvq#Vipsgexmsr#Ewwmwxergi#erh#Viep#Tvstivx}#Eguymwmxmsr#jsv#Jihivep#erh#

Jihivepp}0ewwmwxih#tvskveqw1##Xliwi#viuymviqirxw#ettp}#xs#epp#mrxiviwxw#mr#viep#tvstivx}#eguymvih#jsv#tvsnigx#

tyvtswiw#vikevhpiww#sj#Jihivep#tevxmgmtexmsr#mr#tyvglewiw1#

541 YW#I\IGYXMZI#SVHIV#465571##Wyfvigmtmirx/#mxw#gsrxvegxsvw#erh#wyfgsrxvegxsvw/#qywx#gsqtp}#{mxl#Y1W1#I|igyxmzi#

Svhiv#46557#erh#Y1W1#pe{#xlex#tvslmfmx#xverwegxmsrw#{mxl/#erh#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#viwsyvgiw#erh#wyttsvx#xs/#mrhmzmhyepw#

erh#svkerm~exmsrw#ewwsgmexih#{mxl#xivvsvmwq1#

551 PSFF]MRK#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'433/333,1###Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#givxmjmiw/#xs#xli#fiwx#sj#lmw#sv#liv#

ors{pihki#erh#fipmij/#xlex>#

e, Rs#jihivep#ettvstvmexih#jyrhw#lezi#fiir#temh#sv#{mpp#fi#temh/#f}#sv#sr#filepj#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx/#xs#er}#

tivwsr#jsv#mrjpyirgmrk#sv#exxiqtxmrk#xs#mrjpyirgi#er#sjjmgiv#sv#iqtps}ii#sj#er#ekirg}/#e#Qiqfiv#sj#

Gsrkviww/#er#sjjmgiv#sv#iqtps}ii#sj#Gsrkviww/#sv#er#iqtps}ii#sj#e#Qiqfiv#sj#Gsrkviww#mr#gsrrigxmsr#{mxl#

xli#e{evhmrk#sj#er}#jihivep#gsrxvegx/#xli#qeomrk#sj#er}#jihivep#kverx/#xli#qeomrk#sj#er}#jihivep#pser/#xli#

irxivmrk#mrxs#sj#er}#gsstivexmzi#ekviiqirx/#erh#xli#i|xirwmsr/#gsrxmryexmsr/#viri{ep/#eqirhqirx/#sv#

qshmjmgexmsr#sj#er}#jihivep#gsrxvegx/#kverx/#pser/#sv#gsstivexmzi#ekviiqirx1#

f, Mj#er}#jyrhw#sxliv#xler#jihivep#ettvstvmexih#jyrhw#lezi#fiir#temh#sv#{mpp#fi#temh#xs#er}#tivwsr#jsv#

mrjpyirgmrk#sv#exxiqtxmrk#xs#mrjpyirgi#er#sjjmgiv#sv#iqtps}ii#sj#er}#ekirg}/#e#Qiqfiv#sj#Gsrkviww/#er#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 270



8#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

sjjmgiv#sv#iqtps}ii#sj#Gsrkviww/#sv#er#iqtps}ii#sj#e#Qiqfiv#sj#Gsrkviww#mr#gsrrigxmsr#{mxl#xlmw#jihivep#

gsrxvegx/#kverx/#pser/#sv#gsstivexmzi#ekviiqirx/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtpixi#erh#wyfqmx#Wxerhevh#

Jsvq0PPP/#�Hmwgpswyvi#Jsvq#xs#Vitsvx#Psff}mrk/�#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#mxw#mrwxvygxmsrw1#

g, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#viuymvi#xlex#xli#perkyeki#sj#xlmw#givxmjmgexmsr#fi#mrgpyhih#mr#xli#e{evh#hsgyqirxw#jsv#

epp#wyfe{evhw#ex#epp#xmivw#+mrgpyhmrk#wyfgsrxvegxw/#wyfkverxw/#erh#gsrxvegxw#yrhiv#kverxw/#pserw/#erh#

gsstivexmzi#ekviiqirxw,#erh#xlex#epp#Wyfkverxiiw#wlepp#givxmj}#erh#hmwgpswi#eggsvhmrkp}1#

h, Xlmw#givxmjmgexmsr#mw#e#qexivmep#vitviwirxexmsr#sj#jegx#ytsr#{lmgl#vipmergi#{ew#tpegih#{lir#xlmw#xverwegxmsr#{ew#

qehi#sv#irxivih#mrxs1#Wyfqmwwmsr#sj#xlmw#givxmjmgexmsr#mw#e#tviviuymwmxi#jsv#qeomrk#sv#irxivmrk#mrxs#xlmw#

xverwegxmsr#mqtswih#f}#64#Y1W1G1#«#46851#Er}#tivwsr#{ls#jempw#xs#jmpi#xli#viuymvih#givxmjmgexmsr#wlepp#fi#wyfnigx#

xs#e#gmzmp#tirepx}#sj#rsx#piww#xler#'43/333#erh#rsx#qsvi#xler#'433/333#jsv#iegl#wygl#jempyvi1#

#

MRXIPPIGXYEP#TVSTIVX]#

#

561 GST]VMKLX1##Er}#gviexmzi#sv#pmxivev}#{svo#hizipstih#sv#gsqqmwwmsrih#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mxl#kverx#wyttsvx#

tvszmhih#f}#HLWIW#wlepp#figsqi#xli#tvstivx}#sj#HLWIW/#irxmxpmrk#HLWIW#xs#ewwivx#e#gst}vmklx#xlivimr/#yrpiww#xli#

tevxmiw#lezi#i|tviwwp}#ekviih#sxliv{mwi#mr#e#{vmxxir#mrwxvyqirx#wmkrih#f}#xliq1#

e, Mj#HLWIW#wleviw#mxw#vmklx#xs#gst}vmklx#wygl#{svo#{mxl#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx/#HLWIW#viwivziw#e#vs}epx}0jvii/#

rsri|gpywmzi/#erh#mvvizsgefpi#pmgirwi#xs#vitvshygi/#tyfpmwl#sv#sxliv{mwi#ywi/#erh#xs#eyxlsvm~i#sxlivw#xs#ywi>#+e,#

xli#gst}vmklx#mr#er}#{svo#hizipstih#yrhiv#e#kverx/#wyf0kverx/#sv#gsrxvegx#yrhiv#e#kverx#sv#wyf0kverx?#erh#+f,#

er}#vmklxw#sj#gst}vmklx#xs#{lmgl#e#Wyfvigmtmirx/#Gsrxvegxsv/#sv#e#wyfgsrxvegxsv#tyvglewiw#s{rivwlmt#{mxl#kverx#

wyttsvx1#

f, Mj#xli#kverx#wyttsvx#tvszmhih#f}#HLWIW#mw#jihivepp}0wtsrwsvih/#xli#jihivep#e{evhmrk#ekirg}#epws#viwivziw#e#

vs}epx}0jvii/#rsri|gpywmzi/#erh#mvvizsgefpi#pmgirwi#xs#vitvshygi/#tyfpmwl#sv#sxliv{mwi#ywi/#erh#xs#eyxlsvm~i#

sxlivw#xs#ywi>#+e,#xli#gst}vmklx#mr#er}#{svo#hizipstih#yrhiv#e#kverx/#wyf0kverx#sv#gsrxvegx#yrhiv#e#kverx#sv#wyf0

kverx?#erh#+f,#er}#vmklxw#sj#gst}vmklx#xs#{lmgl#e#Wyfvigmtmirx/#Gsrxvegxsv/#sv#e#wyfgsrxvegxsv#tyvglewiw#

s{rivwlmt#{mxl#wygl#kverx#wyttsvx1#

g, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#wyfqmx#sri#gst}#sj#epp#vitsvxw#erh#tyfpmgexmsrw#viwypxmrk#jvsq#xlmw#Gsrxvegx#xs#HLWIW#

{mxlmr#xlmvx}#+63,#gepirhev#he}w#sj#gsqtpixmsr1#Er}#hsgyqirx#kirivexih#tyvwyerx#xs#xlmw#kverx#qywx#gsrxemr#xli#

jspps{mrk#perkyeki>#

�Xlmw#tvsnigx#{ew#wyttsvxih#f}#e#kverx#ehqmrmwxivih#f}#xli#Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#Hmzmwmsr#sj#Lsqiperh#Wigyvmx}#erh#

Iqivkirg}#Wivzmgiw#erh#xli#Y1W1#Hitevxqirx#sj#Lsqiperh#Wigyvmx}1#Tsmrxw#sj#zmi{#mr#xlmw#hsgyqirx#evi#xlswi#sj#

xli#eyxlsv#erh#hs#rsx#rigiwwevmp}#vitviwirx#xli#sjjmgmep#tswmxmsr#sv#tspmgmiw#sj#xli#Ri{#]svo#Wxexi#Hmzmwmsr#sj#

Lsqiperh#Wigyvmx}#erh#Iqivkirg}#Wivzmgiw#sv#xli#Y1W1#Hitevxqirx#sj#Lsqiperh#Wigyvmx}1�#

571 VMKLXW#XS#MRZIRXMSRW#QEHI#YRHIV#E#GSRXVEGX#SV#EKVIIQIRX1###Gsrxvegxw#sv#ekviiqirxw#jsv#xli#

tivjsvqergi#sj#i|tivmqirxep/#hizipstqirxep/#sv#viwievgl#{svo#wlepp#tvszmhi#jsv#xli#vmklxw#sj#xli#jihivep#

kszivrqirx#erh#HLWIW#mr#er}#viwypxmrk#mrzirxmsr#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#6;#G1J1V1#Tevx#734/#�Vmklxw#xs#Mrzirxmsrw#Qehi#

f}#Rsrtvsjmx#Svkerm~exmsrw#erh#Wqepp#Fywmriww#Jmvqw#Yrhiv#Kszivrqirx#Kverxw/#Gsrxvegxw#erh#Gsstivexmzi#

Ekviiqirxw/�#erh#er}#mqtpiqirxmrk#vikypexmsrw#mwwyih#f}#JIQE1#

#

XIVQMREXMSR#

#

581 JSV#GEYWI#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'43/333,1###Mj/#xlvsykl#er}#geywi/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#jemp#xs#jypjmpp#

mr#e#xmqip}#erh#tvstiv#qerriv#lmw#sfpmkexmsrw#yrhiv#xlmw#Gsrxvegx/#sv#mj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#zmspexi#er}#sj#xli#

gszirerxw/#ekviiqirxw/#sv#wxmtypexmsrw#sj#xlmw#Gsrxvegx/#HLWIW#wlepp#xliviytsr#lezi#xli#vmklx#xs#xivqmrexi#xlmw#

Gsrxvegx#f}#kmzmrk#{vmxxir#rsxmgi#xs#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#sj#wygl#xivqmrexmsr#erh#wtigmj}mrk#xli#ijjigxmzi#hexi#xlivisj/#

ex#piewx#jmzi#+8,#he}w#fijsvi#xli#ijjigxmzi#hexi#sj#wygl#xivqmrexmsr1##Mr#wygl#izirx/#epp#jmrmwlih#sv#yrjmrmwlih#

hsgyqirxw/#hexe/#wxyhmiw/#wyvzi}w/#hve{mrkw/#qetw/#qshipw/#tlsxskvetlw/#erh#vitsvxw#tvitevih#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 271



9#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

yrhiv#xlmw#gsrxvegx#wlepp/#ex#xli#stxmsr#sj#xli#HLWIW/#figsqi#HLWIW�w#tvstivx}#erh#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#fi#

irxmxpih#xs#vigimzi#nywx#erh#iuymxefpi#gsqtirwexmsr#jsv#er}#{svo#wexmwjegxsvmp}#gsqtpixih#liviyrhiv1###

#

Rsx{mxlwxerhmrk#xli#efszi/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#rsx#fi#vipmizih#sj#pmefmpmx}#xs#HLWIW#jsv#heqekiw#wywxemrih#f}#xli#

HLWIW#f}#zmvxyi#sj#er}#fviegl#sj#xli#Gsrxvegx#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx/#erh#HLWIW#qe}#{mxllsph#er}#te}qirxw#xs#xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#jsv#xli#tyvtswi#sj#wix0sjj#yrxmp#wygl#xmqi#ew#xli#i|egx#eqsyrx#sj#heqekiw#hyi#HLWIW#jvsq#xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#mw#hixivqmrih1#

591 JSV#GSRZIRMIRGI#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'43/333,1###HLWIW#qe}#xivqmrexi#xlmw#Gsrxvegx#ex#er}#xmqi#

f}#kmzmrk#ex#piewx#xir#+43,#he}w�#rsxmgi#mr#{vmxmrk#xs#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx1##Mj#xli#Gsrxvegx#mw#xivqmrexih#f}#HLWIW#ew#

tvszmhih#livimr/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#fi#temh#jsv#xli#xmqi#tvszmhih#erh#i|tirwiw#mrgyvvih#yt#xs#xli#xivqmrexmsr#

hexi1#

GMZMP#VMKLXW#ERH#HMZIVWMX]#TVSZMWMSRW#

#

5;1 WQEPP#ERH#QMRSVMX]#JMVQW/#[SQIR�W#FYWMRIWW#IRXIVTVMWIW/#ERH#PEFSV#WYVTPYW#EVIE#JMVQW1###Xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#wqepp#erh#qmrsvmx}#jmvqw/#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwi/#erh#pefsv#wyvtpyw#evie#

viuymviqirxw#ew#wix#jsvxl#ex#5#GJV#Tevx#5331#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#ywi#mxw#fiwx#ijjsvxw#xs#ejjsvh#wqepp#fywmriwwiw/#qmrsvmx}#

fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw/#erh#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw#xli#qe|mqyq#tvegxmgefpi#sttsvxyrmx}#xs#tevxmgmtexi#mr#xli#

tivjsvqergi#sj#xli#gsrxvegx1#Ew#ywih#mr#xliwi#Viuymvih#Jihivep#Tvszmwmsrw/#xli#xivqw#�wqepp#fywmriww�#qierw#e#

fywmriww#xlex#qiixw#xli#gvmxivme#wix#jsvxl#mr#Wigxmsr#6+e,#sj#xli#Wqepp#Fywmriww#Egx/#ew#eqirhih#+48#Y1W1G1#«#965,/#erh#

�qmrsvmx}#erh#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwi�#qierw#e#fywmriww#ex#piewx#jmjx}0sri#+84,#tivgirx#s{rih#erh#gsrxvsppih#

f}#qmrsvmx}#kvsyt#qiqfivw#sv#{sqir1#Jsv#xli#tyvtswi#sj#xlmw#hijmrmxmsr/#�qmrsvmx}#kvsyt#qiqfivw�#evi#Ejvs0

Eqivmgerw/#Wtermwl0wtieomrk/#Wtermwl#wyvreqih/#sv#Wtermwl0livmxeki#Eqivmgerw/#Ewmer0Eqivmgerw/#erh#Eqivmger#

Mrhmerw1#Wyfkverxii#qe}#vip}#sr#{vmxxir#vitviwirxexmsrw#f}#fywmriwwiw#vikevhmrk#xlimv#wxexyw#ew#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#

fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw#mr#pmiy#sj#er#mrhitirhirx#mrziwxmkexmsr1#

Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#xeoi#rigiwwev}#ejjmvqexmzi#wxitw#xs#ewwyvi#xlex#qmrsvmx}#jmvqw/#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw/#

erh#pefsv#wyvtpyw#evie#jmvqw#evi#ywih#mr#wyfgsrxvegxmrk#{lir#tswwmfpi1##Wxitw#mrgpyhi>#

e, Tpegmrk#uyepmjmih#wqepp#erh#qmrsvmx}#fywmriwwiw#erh#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw#sr#wspmgmxexmsr#pmwxw?#

f, Ewwyvmrk#xlex#wqepp#erh#qmrsvmx}#fywmriwwiw/#erh#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw#evi#wspmgmxih#{liriziv#xli}#

evi#tsxirxmep#wsyvgiw?#

g, Hmzmhmrk#xsxep#viuymviqirxw/#{lir#igsrsqmgepp}#jiewmfpi/#mrxs#wqeppiv#xewow#sv#uyerxmxmiw#xs#tivqmx#qe|mqyq#

tevxmgmtexmsr#f}#wqepp#erh#qmrsvmx}#fywmriww/#erh#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw?#

h, Iwxefpmwlmrk#hipmziv}#wglihypiw/#{livi#xli#viuymviqirx#tivqmxw/#{lmgl#irgsyveki#tevxmgmtexmsr#f}#wqepp#erh#

qmrsvmx}#fywmriww/#erh#{sqir�w#fywmriww#irxivtvmwiw?#erh#

i, Ywmrk# xli# wivzmgiw# erh# ewwmwxergi# sj# xli# Wqepp# Fywmriww# Ehqmrmwxvexmsr/# erh# xli# Qmrsvmx}# Fywmriww#

Hizipstqirx#Ekirg}#sj#xli#Hitevxqirx#sj#Gsqqivgi1#

5<1 XMXPIW#ZM#ERH#ZMMM#SJ#XLI#GMZMP#VMKLXW#EGX#SJ#4=97#ERH#I\IGYXMZI#SVHIV#443961###Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#

gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#Xmxpiw#ZM#erh#ZMMM#sj#xli#Gmzmp#Vmklxw#Egx#sj#4=97#erh#{mxl#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#443961##Rs#

tivwsr#wlepp/#sr#xli#kvsyrhw#sj#vegi/#gspsv/#vipmkmsr/#wi|/#sv#rexmsrep#svmkmr/#fi#i|gpyhih#jvsq#tevxmgmtexmsr#mr/#fi#

hirmih#xli#firijmxw#sj/#sv#fi#wyfnigxih#xs#hmwgvmqmrexmsr#yrhiv#er}#tvskveq#sv#egxmzmx}#vigimzmrk#Jihivep#jmrergmep#

ewwmwxergi1#Rs#tivwsr#wlepp/#sr#xli#kvsyrhw#sj#vegi/#gspsv/#vipmkmsr/#wi|/#sv#rexmsrep#svmkmr/#fi#hmwgvmqmrexih#ekemrwx#mr#

xli#wepi/#virxep/#sv#jmrergmrk#sj#h{ippmrkw1#Xs#xli#i|xirx#xlex#er}#wygl#wepi/#piewi#sv#sxliv#xverwjiv#sj#perh#wlepp#sggyv/#

Wyfvigmtmirx/#mr#yrhivxeomrk#mxw#sfpmkexmsr#xs#gevv}#syx#xli#Tvskveq#ewwmwxih#liviyrhiv/#{mpp#rsx#mxwipj#ws#

hmwgvmqmrexi1#

5=1 WIGXMSR#837#SJ#XLI#VILEFMPMXEXMSR#EGX#SJ#4=;6#ERH#XLI#EQIVMGERW#[MXL#HMWEFMPMXMIW#EGX#SJ#4==31###Xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#wigxmsr#837#sj#xli#Vilefmpmxexmsr#Egx#sj#4=;6#+5=#Y1W1G1#«#;=7,/#ew#eqirhih/#erh#er}#

ettpmgefpi#vikypexmsrw/#erh#{mxl#xli#Eqivmgerw#{mxl#Hmwefmpmxmiw#Egx#sj#4==3#+75#Y1W1G1#«#459,/#ew#eqirhih/#erh#er}#

ettpmgefpi#vikypexmsrw1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xlex#rs#uyepmjmih#mrhmzmhyep#{mxl#lerhmgetw#wlepp/#wspip}#sr#xli#fewmw#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 272



;#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

sj#lerhmget/#fi#i|gpyhih#jvsq#tevxmgmtexmsr#mr/#fi#hirmih#xli#firijmxw#sj/#sv#sxliv{mwi#fi#wyfnigxih#xs#

hmwgvmqmrexmsr#yrhiv#er}#tvskveq#sv#egxmzmx}#xlex#vigimziw#jihivep#jmrergmep#ewwmwxergi#jvsq#JIQE1#

631 RSRHMWGVMQMREXMSR1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#sxliv#jihivep#erh#wxexi#wxexyxsv}/#vikypexsv}#erh#

gsrwxmxyxmsrep#rsr0hmwgvmqmrexmsr#tvszmwmsrw1#Hyvmrk#xli#tivjsvqergi#sj#xlmw#gsrxvegx/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#ew#

jspps{w>#

e, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#rsx#hmwgvmqmrexi#ekemrwx#er}#iqtps}ii#sv#ettpmgerx#jsv#iqtps}qirx#figeywi#sj#vegi/#gspsv/#

vipmkmsr/#wi|/#wi|yep#svmirxexmsr/#kirhiv#mhirxmx}/#sv#rexmsrep#svmkmr1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#xeoi#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr#

xs#irwyvi#xlex#ettpmgerxw#evi#iqtps}ih/#erh#xlex#iqtps}iiw#evi#xviexih#hyvmrk#iqtps}qirx#{mxlsyx#vikevh#xs#

xlimv#vegi/#gspsv/#vipmkmsr/#wi|/#wi|yep#svmirxexmsr/#kirhiv#mhirxmx}/#sv#rexmsrep#svmkmr1#Wygl#egxmsr#wlepp#mrgpyhi/#

fyx#rsx#fi#pmqmxih#xs#xli#jspps{mrk>#Iqtps}qirx/#ytkvehmrk/#hiqsxmsr/#sv#xverwjiv?#vigvymxqirx#sv#vigvymxqirx#

ehzivxmwmrk?#pe}sjj#sv#xivqmrexmsr?#vexiw#sj#te}#sv#sxliv#jsvqw#sj#gsqtirwexmsr?#erh#wipigxmsr#jsv#xvemrmrk/#

mrgpyhmrk#ettvirxmgiwlmt1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xs#tswx#mr#gsrwtmgysyw#tpegiw/#ezempefpi#xs#iqtps}iiw#erh#

ettpmgerxw#jsv#iqtps}qirx/#rsxmgiw#xs#fi#tvszmhih#wixxmrk#jsvxl#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#xlmw#rsrhmwgvmqmrexmsr#gpeywi1#

f, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp/#mr#epp#wspmgmxexmsrw#sv#ehzivxmwiqirxw#jsv#iqtps}iiw#tpegih#f}#sv#sr#filepj#sj#xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx/#wxexi#xlex#epp#uyepmjmih#ettpmgerxw#{mpp#vigimzi#gsrwmhivexmsr#jsv#iqtps}qirx#{mxlsyx#vikevh#xs#

vegi/#gspsv/#vipmkmsr/#wi|/#wi|yep#svmirxexmsr/#kirhiv#mhirxmx}/#sv#rexmsrep#svmkmr1#

g, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#rsx#hmwglevki#sv#mr#er}#sxliv#qerriv#hmwgvmqmrexi#ekemrwx#er}#iqtps}ii#sv#ettpmgerx#jsv#

iqtps}qirx#figeywi#wygl#iqtps}ii#sv#ettpmgerx#lew#mruymvih#efsyx/#hmwgywwih/#sv#hmwgpswih#xli#gsqtirwexmsr#

sj#xli#iqtps}ii#sv#ettpmgerx#sv#ersxliv#iqtps}ii#sv#ettpmgerx1#Xlmw#tvszmwmsr#wlepp#rsx#ettp}#xs#mrwxergiw#mr#

{lmgl#er#iqtps}ii#{ls#lew#eggiww#xs#xli#gsqtirwexmsr#mrjsvqexmsr#sj#sxliv#iqtps}iiw#sv#ettpmgerxw#ew#e#tevx#

sj#wygl#iqtps}ii*w#iwwirxmep#nsf#jyrgxmsrw#hmwgpswiw#xli#gsqtirwexmsr#sj#wygl#sxliv#iqtps}iiw#sv#ettpmgerxw#xs#

mrhmzmhyepw#{ls#hs#rsx#sxliv{mwi#lezi#eggiww#xs#wygl#mrjsvqexmsr/#yrpiww#wygl#hmwgpswyvi#mw#mr#viwtsrwi#xs#e#

jsvqep#gsqtpemrx#sv#glevki/#mr#jyvxlivergi#sj#er#mrziwxmkexmsr/#tvsgiihmrk/#lievmrk/#sv#egxmsr/#mrgpyhmrk#er#

mrziwxmkexmsr#gsrhygxih#f}#xli#iqtps}iv/#sv#mw#gsrwmwxirx#{mxl#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx*w#pikep#hyx}#xs#jyvrmwl#

mrjsvqexmsr1#

h, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#wirh#xs#iegl#pefsv#yrmsr#sv#vitviwirxexmzi#sj#{svoivw#{mxl#{lmgl#li#lew#e#gsppigxmzi#

fevkemrmrk#ekviiqirx#sv#sxliv#gsrxvegx#sv#yrhivwxerhmrk/#e#rsxmgi#xs#fi#tvszmhih#ehzmwmrk#xli#wemh#pefsv#yrmsr#

sv#{svoivw*#vitviwirxexmziw#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx*w#gsqqmxqirxw#yrhiv#xlmw#wigxmsr/#erh#wlepp#tswx#gstmiw#sj#xli#

rsxmgi#mr#gsrwtmgysyw#tpegiw#ezempefpi#xs#iqtps}iiw#erh#ettpmgerxw#jsv#iqtps}qirx1#

i, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#gsqtp}#{mxl#epp#tvszmwmsrw#sj#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579#sj#Witxiqfiv#57/#4=98/#erh#sj#xli#

vypiw/#vikypexmsrw/#erh#vipizerx#svhivw#sj#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv1#

j, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#jyvrmwl#epp#mrjsvqexmsr#erh#vitsvxw#viuymvih#f}#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579#sj#Witxiqfiv#57/#

4=98/#erh#f}#vypiw/#vikypexmsrw/#erh#svhivw#sj#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv/#sv#tyvwyerx#xlivixs/#erh#{mpp#tivqmx#eggiww#

xs#lmw#fssow/#vigsvhw/#erh#eggsyrxw#f}#xli#ehqmrmwxivmrk#ekirg}#erh#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv#jsv#tyvtswiw#sj#

mrziwxmkexmsr#xs#ewgivxemr#gsqtpmergi#{mxl#wygl#vypiw/#vikypexmsrw/#erh#svhivw1#

k, Mr#xli#izirx#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx*w#rsrgsqtpmergi#{mxl#xli#rsrhmwgvmqmrexmsr#gpeywiw#sj#xlmw#gsrxvegx#sv#{mxl#er}#

sj#xli#wemh#vypiw/#vikypexmsrw/#sv#svhivw/#xlmw#gsrxvegx#qe}#fi#gergipih/#xivqmrexih/#sv#wywtirhih#mr#{lspi#sv#mr#

tevx#erh#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qe}#fi#higpevih#mripmkmfpi#jsv#jyvxliv#Kszivrqirx#gsrxvegxw#sv#jihivepp}#ewwmwxih#

gsrwxvygxmsr#gsrxvegxw#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#tvsgihyviw#eyxlsvm~ih#mr#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579#sj#Witxiqfiv#57/#

4=98/#erh#wygl#sxliv#wergxmsrw#qe}#fi#mqtswih#erh#viqihmiw#mrzsoih#ew#tvszmhih#mr#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579#sj#

Witxiqfiv#57/#4=98/#sv#f}#vypi/#vikypexmsr/#sv#svhiv#sj#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv/#sv#ew#sxliv{mwi#tvszmhih#f}#pe{1#

l, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#mrgpyhi#xli#tsvxmsr#sj#xli#wirxirgi#mqqihmexip}#tvigihmrk#tevekvetl#+E,#erh#xli#

tvszmwmsrw#sj#tevekvetlw#+E,#xlvsykl#+L,#mr#iziv}#wyfgsrxvegx#sv#tyvglewi#svhiv#yrpiww#i|iqtxih#f}#vypiw/#

vikypexmsrw/#sv#svhivw#sj#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv#mwwyih#tyvwyerx#xs#wigxmsr#537#sj#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579#sj#

Witxiqfiv#57/#4=98/#ws#xlex#wygl#tvszmwmsrw#{mpp#fi#fmrhmrk#ytsr#iegl#wyfgsrxvegxsv#sv#zirhsv1#Xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#xeoi#wygl#egxmsr#{mxl#viwtigx#xs#er}#wyfgsrxvegx#sv#tyvglewi#svhiv#ew#xli#ehqmrmwxivmrk#ekirg}#

qe}#hmvigx#ew#e#qierw#sj#irjsvgmrk#wygl#tvszmwmsrw/#mrgpyhmrk#wergxmsrw#jsv#rsrgsqtpmergi>#Tvszmhih/#ls{iziv/#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 273



<#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

xlex#mr#xli#izirx#e#Wyfvigmtmirx#figsqiw#mrzspzih#mr/#sv#mw#xlviexirih#{mxl/#pmxmkexmsr#{mxl#e#wyfgsrxvegxsv#sv#

zirhsv#ew#e#viwypx#sj#wygl#hmvigxmsr#f}#xli#ehqmrmwxivmrk#ekirg}/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qe}#viuyiwx#xli#Yrmxih#Wxexiw#

xs#irxiv#mrxs#wygl#pmxmkexmsr#xs#tvsxigx#xli#mrxiviwxw#sj#xli#Yrmxih#Wxexiw1#

#

[mxl#viwtigx#xs#gsrwxvygxmsr#gsrxvegxw#erh#wyfgsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'43/333/#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#

I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579#sj#Witxiqfiv#57/#4=98/#irxmxpih#�Iuyep#Iqtps}qirx#Sttsvxyrmx}/�#ew#eqirhih#f}#I|igyxmzi#

Svhiv#446;8#sj#Sgxsfiv#46/#4=9;?#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#447;<#sj#Eykywx#</#4=9=?#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#4543;#sj#Higiqfiv#5</#

4=;<?#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#453<9#sj#Sgxsfiv#8/#4=;<?#erh#ew#wyttpiqirxih#mr#Hitevxqirx#sj#Pefsv#vikypexmsrw#+74#G1J1V1#

Tevx#93,1#Wyfkverxii#wlepp#mrgpyhi#xli#jspps{mrk#Wtigmjmgexmsrw/#{lmgl#evi#viuymvih#tyvwyerx#xs#74#G1J1V1#930716#mr#epp#

jihivepp}#ewwmwxih#gsrxvegxw#erh#wyfgsrxvegxw1#Jsv#xli#tyvtswiw#sj#xli#Iuyep#Sttsvxyrmx}#Gsrwxvygxmsr#Gsrxvegx#

Wtigmjmgexmsrw#erh#Gpeywi#fips{/#xli#xivq#�Gsrwxvygxmsr#[svo�#qierw#xli#gsrwxvygxmsr/#vilefmpmxexmsr/#epxivexmsr/#

gsrzivwmsr/#i|xirwmsr/#hiqspmxmsr#sv#vitemv#sj#fymphmrkw/#lmkl{e}w/#sv#sxliv#glerkiw#sv#mqtvsziqirxw#xs#viep#

tvstivx}/#mrgpyhmrk#jegmpmxmiw#tvszmhmrk#yxmpmx}#wivzmgiw1#Xli#xivq#epws#mrgpyhiw#xli#wytivzmwmsr/#mrwtigxmsr/#erh#sxliv#

srwmxi#jyrgxmsrw#mrgmhirxep#xs#xli#egxyep#gsrwxvygxmsr1#

#

Wxerhevh#Jihivep#Iuyep#Iqtps}qirx#Sttsvxyrmx}#Gsrwxvygxmsr#Gsrxvegx#Wtigmjmgexmsrw#jsv#Gsrxvegxw#erh#

Wyfgsrxvegxw#mr#I|giww#sj#'43/3331#+Jihivep#Rsxmgi#Viuymvih#f}#74#GJV#930716,#

41 Ew#ywih#mr#xliwi#wtigmjmgexmsrw>#

e, �Gszivih#evie�#qierw#xli#kiskvetlmgep#evie#hiwgvmfih#mr#xli#wspmgmxexmsr#jvsq#{lmgl#xlmw#gsrxvegx#

viwypxih?#

f, �Hmvigxsv�# qierw# Hmvigxsv/# Sjjmgi# sj# Jihivep# Gsrxvegx# Gsqtpmergi# Tvskveqw/# Yrmxih# Wxexiw#

Hitevxqirx#sj#Pefsv/#sv#er}#tivwsr#xs#{lsq#xli#Hmvigxsv#hipikexiw#eyxlsvmx}?#

g, �Iqtps}iv#mhirxmjmgexmsr#ryqfiv�#qierw#xli#Jihivep#Wsgmep#Wigyvmx}#ryqfiv#ywih#sr#xli#Iqtps}iv�w#

Uyevxivp}#Jihivep#Xe|#Vixyvr/#Y1W1#Xviewyv}#Hitevxqirx#Jsvq#=741#

h, �Qmrsvmx}�#mrgpyhiw>#

m1 Fpego# +epp# tivwsrw# lezmrk#svmkmrw# mr# er}# sj# xli#Fpego#Ejvmger# vegmep# kvsytw# rsx#sj#Lmwtermg#

svmkmr,?#

mm1 Lmwtermg#+epp#tivwsrw#sj#Qi|mger/#Tyivxs#Vmger/#Gyfer/#Girxvep#sv#Wsyxl#Eqivmger#sv#sxliv#

Wtermwl#Gypxyvi#sv#svmkmr/#vikevhpiww#sj#vegi,?#

mmm1 Ewmer#erh#Tegmjmg#Mwperhiv#+epp#tivwsrw#lezmrk#svmkmrw#mr#er}#sj#xli#svmkmrep#tistpiw#sj#xli#Jev#

Iewx/#Wsyxliewx#Ewme/#xli#Mrhmer#Wyfgsrxmrirx/#sv#xli#Tegmjmg#Mwperhw,?#erh#

mz1 Eqivmger#Mrhmer#sv#Epewoer#Rexmzi#+epp#tivwsrw#lezmrk#svmkmrw#mr#er}#sj#xli#svmkmrep#tistpiw#

sj#Rsvxl#Eqivmge# erh#qemrxemrmrk# mhirxmjmefpi# xvmfep# ejjmpmexmsrw# xlvsykl#qiqfivwlmt# erh#

tevxmgmtexmsr#sv#gsqqyrmx}#mhirxmjmgexmsr,1#

#

51 [liriziv#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#sv#er}#wyfgsrxvegxsv#ex#er}#xmiv/#wyfgsrxvegxw#e#tsvxmsr#sj#xli#{svo#mrzspzmrk#

er}#Gsrwxvygxmsr#xvehi/#mx#wlepp#tl}wmgepp}#mrgpyhi#mr#iegl#wyfgsrxvegx#mr#i|giww#sj#'43/333#xli#tvszmwmsrw#

sj# xliwi# wtigmjmgexmsrw# erh# xli# Rsxmgi# {lmgl# gsrxemrw# xli# ettpmgefpi# ksepw# jsv# qmrsvmx}# erh# jiqepi#

tevxmgmtexmsr#erh#{lmgl#mw#wix#jsvxl#mr#xli#wspmgmxexmsrw#jvsq#{lmgl#xlmw#Ekviiqirx#viwypxih1#

# #

61 Mj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#mw#tevxmgmtexmrk#+tyvwyerx#xs#74#GJV#«#930718,#mr#e#Lsqixs{r#Tper#ettvszih#f}#xli#

Y1W1#Hitevxqirx#sj#Pefsv#mr#xli#gszivih#evie#imxliv#mrhmzmhyepp}#sv#xlvsykl#er#ewwsgmexmsr/#mxw#ejjmvqexmzi#

egxmsr#sfpmkexmsrw#sr#epp#{svo#mr#xli#Tper#evie#+mrgpyhmrk#ksepw#erh#xmqixefpiw,#wlepp#fi#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#

xlex#Tper# jsv# xlswi# xvehiw#{lmgl#lezi#yrmsrw#tevxmgmtexmrk# mr# xli#Tper1#Wyfvigmtmirxw#qywx#fi#efpi# xs#

hiqsrwxvexi#xlimv#tevxmgmtexmsr#mr#erh#gsqtpmergi#{mxl#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#er}#wygl#Lsqixs{r#Tper1##Iegl#

Wyfvigmtmirx/#gsrxvegxsv#sv#wyfgsrxvegxsv#tevxmgmtexmrk# mr#er#ettvszih#Tper# mw# mrhmzmhyepp}# viuymvih#xs#

gsqtp}#{mxl#mxw#sfpmkexmsrw#yrhiv#xli#IIS#gpeywi/#erh#xs#qeoi#e#kssh#jemxl#ijjsvx#xs#eglmizi#iegl#ksep#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 274



=#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

yrhiv#xli#Tper#mr#iegl#xvehi#mr#{lmgl#mx#lew#iqtps}iiw1##Xli#szivepp#kssh#jemxl#tivjsvqergi#f}#sxliv#

gsrxvegxsvw# sv# wyfgsrxvegxsvw# xs{evh# e# ksep# mr# er# ettvszih# Tper# hsiw# rsx# i|gywi# er}# gszivih#

Wyfvigmtmirx�w/#gsrxvegxsv�w/#sv#wyfgsrxvegxsv�w#jempyvi#xs#xeoi#kssh#jemxl#ijjsvxw#xs#eglmizi#xli#Tper#ksepw#

erh#xmqixefpiw1#

71 Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp# mqtpiqirx#xli#wtigmjmg#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr#wxerhevhw#tvszmhih# mr#tevekvetlw#;#e#

xlvsykl#t# sj# xliwi# wtigmjmgexmsrw1# # Xli# ksepw# wix# jsvxl# mr# xli# wspmgmxexmsr# jvsq#{lmgl# xlmw# Ekviiqirx#

viwypxih#evi#i|tviwwih#ew#tivgirxekiw#sj#xli#xsxep#lsyvw#sj#iqtps}qirx#erh#xvemrmrk#sj#qmrsvmx}#erh#

jiqepi#yxmpm~exmsr#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlsyph#viewsrefp}#fi#efpi#xs#eglmizi#mr#iegl#Gsrwxvygxmsr#xvehi#mr#

{lmgl#mx#lew#iqtps}iiw#mr#xli#gszivih#evie1##Gszivih#Gsrwxvygxmsr#gsrxvegxsvw#tivjsvqmrk#Gsrwxvygxmsr#

[svo#mr#kiskvetlmgep#eview#{livi#xli}#hs#rsx#lezi#e#Jihivep#sv#jihivepp}#ewwmwxih#Gsrwxvygxmsr#gsrxvegx#

wlepp#ettp}#xli#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#ksepw#iwxefpmwlih#jsv#xli#kiskvetlmgep#eview#{livi#xli#{svo#mw#fimrk#

tivjsvqih1##Ksepw#evi#tyfpmwlih#tivmshmgepp}#mr#xli#Jihivep#Vikmwxiv#mr#rsxmgi#jsvq/#erh#wygl#rsxmgiw#qe}#

fi# sfxemrih# jvsq# er}# Sjjmgi# sj# Jihivep# Gsrxvegx# Gsqtpmergi# Tvskveqw# sjjmgi# sv# jvsq# Jihivep#

tvsgyviqirx#gsrxvegxmrk#sjjmgivw1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#mw#i|tigxih#xs#qeoi#wyfwxerxmepp}#yrmjsvq#tvskviww#

mr#qiixmrk#mxw#ksepw#mr#iegl#gvejx#hyvmrk#xli#tivmsh#wtigmjmih1#

81 Rimxliv#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#er}#gsppigxmzi#fevkemrmrk#ekviiqirx/#rsv#xli#jempyvi#f}#e#yrmsr#{mxl#{lsq#xli#

gsrxvegxsv#lew#e#gsppigxmzi#fevkemrmrk#ekviiqirx/#xs#vijiv#imxliv#qmrsvmxmiw#sv#{sqir#wlepp#i|gywi#xli#

gsrxvegxsv�w# sfpmkexmsrw# yrhiv# xliwi# wtigmjmgexmsrw/# I|igyxmzi# Svhiv# 44579/# sv# xli# vikypexmsrw#

tvsqypkexih#tyvwyerx#xlivixs1#

91 Mr#svhiv# jsv# xli#rsr{svomrk#xvemrmrk#lsyvw#sj#ettvirxmgiw#erh#xvemriiw# xs#fi#gsyrxih# mr#qiixmrk# xli#

ksepw/#wygl#ettvirxmgiw#erh#xvemriiw#qywx#fi#iqtps}ih#f}#xli#gsrxvegxsv#hyvmrk#xli#xvemrmrk#tivmsh/#erh#

xli#gsrxvegxsv#qywx#lezi#qehi#e#gsqqmxqirx#xs#iqtps}#xli#ettvirxmgiw#erh#xvemriiw#ex#xli#gsqtpixmsr#

sj# xlimv# xvemrmrk/# wyfnigx# xs# xli# ezempefmpmx}# sj# iqtps}qirx# sttsvxyrmxmiw1# # Xvemriiw# qywx# fi# xvemrih#

tyvwyerx#xs#xvemrmrk#tvskveqw#ettvszih#f}#xli#Y1W1#Hitevxqirx#sj#Pefsv1#

;1 Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#xeoi#wtigmjmg#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsrw#xs#irwyvi#iuyep#iqtps}qirx#sttsvxyrmx}1##Xli#

izepyexmsr# sj# xli# gsrxvegxsv�w# gsqtpmergi#{mxl# xliwi# wtigmjmgexmsrw# wlepp# fi# fewih# ytsr# mxw# ijjsvx# xs#

eglmizi#qe|mqyq#viwypxw#jvsq#mxw#egxmsrw1##Xli#gsrxvegxsv#wlepp#hsgyqirx#xliwi#ijjsvxw#jypp}/#erh#wlepp#

mqtpiqirx#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr#wxitw#ex#piewx#ew#i|xirwmzi#ew#xli#jspps{mrk>#

#

e, Irwyvi#erh#qemrxemr#e#{svomrk#irzmvsrqirx#jvii#sj#levewwqirx/#mrxmqmhexmsr/#erh#gsivgmsr#ex#epp#

wmxiw/# erh# mr# epp# jegmpmxmiw# ex# {lmgl# xli# gsrxvegxsv�w# iqtps}iiw# evi# ewwmkrih# xs# {svo1# # Xli#

gsrxvegxsv/#{livi#tswwmfpi/#{mpp#ewwmkr#x{s#sv#qsvi#{sqir#xs#iegl#Gsrwxvygxmsr#tvsnigx1##Xli#

gsrxvegxsv# wlepp# wtigmjmgepp}# irwyvi# xlex# epp# jsviqir/# wytivmrxirhirxw/# erh# sxliv# sr0wmxi#

wytivzmwsv}#tivwsrrip#evi#e{evi#sj#erh#gevv}#syx#xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#sfpmkexmsr#xs#qemrxemr#wygl#e#

{svomrk#irzmvsrqirx/#{mxl#wtigmjmg#exxirxmsr#xs#qmrsvmx}#sv#jiqepi#mrhmzmhyepw#{svomrk#ex#wygl#

wmxiw#sv#mr#wygl#jegmpmxmiw1#

f, Iwxefpmwl#erh#qemrxemr#e#gyvvirx#pmwx#sj#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#vigvymxqirx#wsyvgiw/#tvszmhi#{vmxxir#

rsxmjmgexmsr#xs#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#vigvymxqirx#wsyvgiw#erh#xs#gsqqyrmx}#svkerm~exmsrw#{lir#

xli#gsrxvegxsv#sv#mxw#yrmsrw#lezi#iqtps}qirx#sttsvxyrmxmiw#ezempefpi/#erh#qemrxemr#e#vigsvh#sj#

xli#svkerm~exmsr�w#viwtsrwiw1#

g, Qemrxemr#e#gyvvirx#jmpi#sj#xli#reqiw/#ehhviwwiw#erh#xipitlsri#ryqfivw#sj#iegl#qmrsvmx}#erh#

jiqepi# sjj0xli0wxviix# ettpmgerx# erh# qmrsvmx}# sv# jiqepi# vijivvep# jvsq# e# yrmsr/# e# vigvymxqirx#

wsyvgi# sv# gsqqyrmx}# svkerm~exmsr# erh# sj# {lex# egxmsr# {ew# xeoir# {mxl# viwtigx# xs# iegl# wygl#

mrhmzmhyep1##Mj#wygl#mrhmzmhyep#{ew#wirx#xs#xli#yrmsr#lmvmrk#lepp#jsv#vijivvep#erh#{ew#rsx#vijivvih#

fego#xs#xli#gsrxvegxsv#f}#xli#yrmsr#sv/#mj#vijivvih/#rsx#iqtps}ih#f}#xli#gsrxvegxsv/#xlmw#wlepp#fi#

hsgyqirxih# mr# xli# jmpi#{mxl# xli# viewsr# xlivijsv/# epsrk#{mxl#{lexiziv# ehhmxmsrep# egxmsrw# xli#

gsrxvegxsv#qe}#lezi#xeoir1#

h, Tvszmhi#mqqihmexi#{vmxxir#rsxmjmgexmsr#xs#xli#Hmvigxsv#{lir#xli#yrmsr#sv#yrmsrw#{mxl#{lmgl#xli#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 275



43#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

gsrxvegxsv#lew#e#gsppigxmzi#fevkemrmrk#ekviiqirx#lew#rsx#vijivvih#xs#xli#gsrxvegxsv#e#qmrsvmx}#

tivwsr#sv#{sqer#wirx#f}#xli#gsrxvegxsv/#sv#{lir#xli#gsrxvegxsv#lew#sxliv#mrjsvqexmsr#xlex#xli#

yrmsr#vijivvep#tvsgiww#lew#mqtihih#xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#ijjsvxw#xs#qiix#mxw#sfpmkexmsrw1#

i, Hizipst#sr0xli0nsf#xvemrmrk#sttsvxyrmxmiw#erh2sv#tevxmgmtexi#mr#xvemrmrk#tvskveqw#jsv#xli#evie#

{lmgl# i|tviwwp}# mrgpyhi# qmrsvmxmiw# erh# {sqir/# mrgpyhmrk# ytkvehmrk# tvskveqw# erh#

ettvirxmgiwlmt#erh#xvemrii#tvskveqw#vipizerx#xs#xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#iqtps}qirx#riihw/#iwtigmepp}#

xlswi#tvskveqw#jyrhih#sv#ettvszih#f}#xli#Hitevxqirx#sj#Pefsv1##Xli#gsrxvegxsv#wlepp#tvszmhi#

rsxmgi#sj#xliwi#tvskveqw#xs#xli#wsyvgiw#gsqtmpih#yrhiv#;f#efszi1#

j, Hmwwiqmrexi#xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#IIS#tspmg}#f}#tvszmhmrk#rsxmgi#sj#xli#tspmg}#xs#yrmsrw#erh#xvemrmrk#

tvskveqw# erh# viuyiwxmrk# xlimv# gsstivexmsr# mr# ewwmwxmrk# xli# gsrxvegxsv# mr# qiixmrk# mxw# IIS#

sfpmkexmsrw?# f}# mrgpyhmrk# mx# mr# er}# tspmg}# qeryep# erh# gsppigxmzi# fevkemrmrk# ekviiqirx?# f}#

tyfpmgm~mrk#mx#mr#xli#gsqter}#ri{wtetiv/#erryep#vitsvx/#ixg1?#f}#wtigmjmg#vizmi{#sj#xli#tspmg}#{mxl#

epp#qerekiqirx#tivwsrrip#erh#{mxl#epp#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#iqtps}iiw#ex#piewx#srgi#e#}iev?#erh#

f}#tswxmrk#xli#gsqter}#IIS#tspmg}#sr#fyppixmr#fsevhw#eggiwwmfpi#xs#epp#iqtps}iiw#ex#iegl#psgexmsr#

{livi#Gsrwxvygxmsr#[svo#mw#tivjsvqih1#

k, Vizmi{/# ex# piewx# erryepp}/# xli# gsqter}�w# IIS#tspmg}# erh# ejjmvqexmzi# egxmsr# sfpmkexmsrw# yrhiv#

xliwi#wtigmjmgexmsrw#{mxl#epp#iqtps}iiw#lezmrk#er}#viwtsrwmfmpmx}#jsv#lmvmrk/#ewwmkrqirx/# pe}sjj/#

xivqmrexmsr#sv#sxliv#iqtps}qirx#higmwmsrw#mrgpyhmrk#wtigmjmg#vizmi{#sj#xliwi#mxiqw#{mxl#sr0wmxi#

wytivzmwsv}#tivwsrrip#wygl#ew#Wytivmrxirhirxw/#Kirivep#Jsviqir/#ixg1/#tvmsv#xs#xli#mrmxmexmsr#sj#

Gsrwxvygxmsr#[svo#ex#er}#nsf#wmxi1##E#{vmxxir#vigsvh#wlepp#fi#qehi#erh#qemrxemrih#mhirxmj}mrk#

xli# xmqi# erh# tpegi# sj# xliwi# qiixmrkw/# tivwsrw# exxirhmrk/# wyfnigx# qexxiv# hmwgywwih/# erh#

hmwtswmxmsr#sj#xli#wyfnigx#qexxiv1#

l, Hmwwiqmrexi#xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#IIS#tspmg}#i|xivrepp}#f}#mrgpyhmrk#mx#mr#er}#ehzivxmwmrk#mr#xli#ri{w#

qihme/#wtigmjmgepp}#mrgpyhmrk#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#ri{w#qihme/#erh#tvszmhmrk#{vmxxir#rsxmjmgexmsr#

xs#erh#hmwgywwmrk# xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#IIS#tspmg}#{mxl#sxliv# gsrxvegxsvw#erh#wyfgsrxvegxsvw#{mxl#

{lsq#xli#gsrxvegxsv#hsiw#sv#erxmgmtexiw#hsmrk#fywmriww1#

m, Hmvigx# mxw# vigvymxqirx# ijjsvxw/# fsxl# svep# erh# {vmxxir/# xs# qmrsvmx}/# jiqepi# erh# gsqqyrmx}#

svkerm~exmsrw/# xs# wglsspw# {mxl# qmrsvmx}# erh# jiqepi# wxyhirxw# erh# xs# qmrsvmx}# erh# jiqepi#

vigvymxqirx# erh# xvemrmrk# svkerm~exmsrw# wivzmrk# xli# gsrxvegxsv�w# vigvymxqirx# evie# erh#

iqtps}qirx#riihw1#Rsx#pexiv#xler#sri#qsrxl#tvmsv#xs#xli#hexi#jsv#xli#eggitxergi#sj#ettpmgexmsrw#

jsv#ettvirxmgiwlmt#sv#sxliv#xvemrmrk#f}#er}#vigvymxqirx#wsyvgi/#xli#gsrxvegxsv#wlepp#wirh#{vmxxir#

rsxmjmgexmsr#xs#svkerm~exmsrw#wygl#ew#xli#efszi/#hiwgvmfmrk#xli#stirmrkw/#wgviirmrk#tvsgihyviw/#

erh#xiwxw#xs#fi#ywih#mr#xli#wipigxmsr#tvsgiww1#

n, Irgsyveki#tviwirx#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#iqtps}iiw#xs#vigvymx#sxliv#qmrsvmx}#tivwsrw#erh#{sqir#

erh/#{livi#viewsrefpi/#tvszmhi#ejxiv#wglssp/#wyqqiv#erh#zegexmsr#iqtps}qirx#xs#qmrsvmx}#erh#

jiqepi#}syxl#fsxl#sr#xli#wmxi#erh#mr#sxliv#eview#sj#e#gsrxvegxsv�w#{svo#jsvgi1#

o, Zepmhexi#epp#xiwxw#erh#sxliv#wipigxmsr#viuymviqirxw#{livi#xlivi#mw#er#sfpmkexmsr#xs#hs#ws#yrhiv#

74#GJV#Tevx#93061#

p, Gsrhygx/# ex# piewx# erryepp}/# er# mrzirxsv}# erh# izepyexmsr# ex# piewx# sj# epp# qmrsvmx}# erh# jiqepi#

tivwsrrip#jsv#tvsqsxmsrep#sttsvxyrmxmiw#erh#irgsyveki#xliwi#iqtps}iiw#xs#wiio#sv#xs#tvitevi#

jsv/#xlvsykl#ettvstvmexi#xvemrmrk/#ixg1/#wygl#sttsvxyrmxmiw1#

q, Irwyvi# xlex# wirmsvmx}# tvegxmgiw/# nsf# gpewwmjmgexmsrw/# {svo# ewwmkrqirxw# erh# sxliv# tivwsrrip#

tvegxmgiw/# hs# rsx# lezi# e# hmwgvmqmrexsv}# ijjigx# f}# gsrxmryepp}# qsrmxsvmrk# epp# tivwsrrip# erh#

iqtps}qirx# vipexih# egxmzmxmiw# xs# irwyvi# xlex# xli# IIS#tspmg}# erh# xli# gsrxvegxsv�w# sfpmkexmsrw#

yrhiv#xliwi#wtigmjmgexmsrw#evi#fimrk#gevvmih#syx1#

r, Irwyvi#xlex#epp#jegmpmxmiw#erh#gsqter}#egxmzmxmiw#evi#rsr0wikvikexih#i|gitx#xlex#witevexi#sv#wmrkpi0

ywiv# xsmpix# erh#rigiwwev}# glerkmrk# jegmpmxmiw# wlepp# fi# tvszmhih# xs# ewwyvi# tvmzeg}# fix{iir# xli#

wi|iw1#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 276



44#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

s, Hsgyqirx#erh#qemrxemr#e#vigsvh#sj#epp#wspmgmxexmsrw#sj#sjjivw#jsv#wyfgsrxvegxw#jvsq#qmrsvmx}#erh#

jiqepi#Gsrwxvygxmsr#gsrxvegxsvw#erh#wyttpmivw/#mrgpyhmrk#gmvgypexmsr#sj#wspmgmxexmsrw#xs#qmrsvmx}#

erh#jiqepi#gsrxvegxsv#ewwsgmexmsrw#erh#sxliv#fywmriww#ewwsgmexmsrw1#

t, Gsrhygx#e#vizmi{/#ex#piewx#erryepp}/#sj#epp#wytivzmwsv�w#ehlivirgi#xs#erh#tivjsvqergi#yrhiv#xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx�w#IIS#tspmgmiw#erh#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr#sfpmkexmsrw1#

#

<1 Wyfvigmtmirxw#evi#irgsyvekih#xs#tevxmgmtexi#mr#zspyrxev}#ewwsgmexmsrw#{lmgl#ewwmwx#mr#jypjmppmrk#sri#sv#qsvi#

sj# xlimv# ejjmvqexmzi# egxmsr# sfpmkexmsrw# +;e# xlvsykl# t,1# # Xli# ijjsvxw# sj# e# gsrxvegxsv# ewwsgmexmsr/# nsmrx#

gsrxvegxsv0yrmsr/#gsrxvegxsv0gsqqyrmx}/#sv#sxliv#wmqmpev#kvsyt#sj#{lmgl#xli#gsrxvegxsv#mw#e#qiqfiv#erh#

tevxmgmterx/#qe}#fi#ewwivxih#ew#jypjmppmrk#er}#sri#sv#qsvi#sj#mxw#sfpmkexmsrw#yrhiv#;e#xlvsykl#t#sj#xliwi#

wtigmjmgexmsrw#tvszmhih#xlex#xli#gsrxvegxsv#egxmzip}#tevxmgmtexiw#mr#xli#kvsyt/#qeoiw#iziv}#ijjsvx#xs#ewwyvi#

xlex#xli#kvsyt#lew#e#tswmxmzi#mqtegx#sr#xli#iqtps}qirx#sj#qmrsvmxmiw#erh#{sqir#mr#xli#mrhywxv}/#irwyviw#

xlex# xli#gsrgvixi#firijmxw#sj#xli#Tvskveq#evi#vijpigxih# mr# xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#qmrsvmx}#erh#jiqepi#{svo#

jsvgi#tevxmgmtexmsr/#qeoiw#e#kssh#jemxl#ijjsvx#xs#qiix#mxw#mrhmzmhyep#ksepw#erh#xmqixefpiw/#erh#ger#tvszmhi#

eggiww# xs# hsgyqirxexmsr# {lmgl# hiqsrwxvexiw# xli# ijjigxmziriww# sj# egxmsrw# xeoir# sr# filepj# sj# xli#

gsrxvegxsv1##Xli#sfpmkexmsr#xs#gsqtp}/#ls{iziv/#mw#xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#erh#jempyvi#sj#wygl#e#kvsyt#xs#jypjmpp#er#

sfpmkexmsr#wlepp#rsx#fi#e#hijirwi#jsv#xli#gsrxvegxsv�w#rsrgsqtpmergi1#

#

=1 Ksepw#jsv#qmrsvmxmiw#erh#{sqir#lezi#fiir#iwxefpmwlih1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx/#ls{iziv/#mw#viuymvih#xs#tvszmhi#

iuyep# iqtps}qirx#sttsvxyrmx}# erh# xs# xeoi#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr# jsv# epp#qmrsvmx}#kvsytw/# fsxl#qepi# erh#

jiqepi/# erh# epp# {sqir/# fsxl#qmrsvmx}# erh# rsr0qmrsvmx}1# # Gsrwiuyirxp}/# xli# Wyfvigmtmirx# qe}# fi# mr#

zmspexmsr#sj#xli#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#mj#e#tevxmgypev#kvsyt#mw#iqtps}ih#mr#e#wyfwxerxmepp}#hmwtevexi#qerriv#+jsv#

i|eqtpi/#izir#xlsykl#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#lew#eglmizih#mxw#ksepw#jsv#{sqir#kirivepp}/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qe}#

fi#mr#zmspexmsr#sj#xli#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#mj#e#wtigmjmg#qmrsvmx}#kvsyt#sj#{sqir#mw#yrhivyxmpm~ih,1#

#

431 Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#rsx#ywi#xli#ksepw#erh#xmqixefpiw#sv#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr#wxerhevhw#xs#hmwgvmqmrexi#

ekemrwx#er}#tivwsr#figeywi#sj#vegi/#gspsv/#vipmkmsr/#wi|/#sv#rexmsrep#svmkmr1#

#

441 Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#rsx#irxiv#mrxs#er}#Wyfgsrxvegx#{mxl#er}#tivwsr#sv#jmvq#hifevvih#jvsq#Kszivrqirx#

gsrxvegxw#tyvwyerx#xs#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579#sv#wywtirhih#sv#mw#sxliv{mwi#i|gpyhih#jvsq#sv#mripmkmfpi#jsv#

tevxmgmtexmsr#mr#jihivep#ewwmwxergi#tvskveqw1#

#

451 Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gevv}#syx#wygl#wergxmsrw#erh#tirepxmiw#jsv#zmspexmsr#sj#xliwi#wtigmjmgexmsrw#erh#sj#

xli#Iuyep#Sttsvxyrmx}#Gpeywi/#mrgpyhmrk#wywtirwmsr/#xivqmrexmsr#erh#gergippexmsr#sj#i|mwxmrk#wyfgsrxvegxw#

ew#qe}#fi#mqtswih#sv#svhivih#tyvwyerx#xs#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579/#ew#eqirhih/#erh#mxw#mqtpiqirxmrk#

vikypexmsrw/#f}#xli#Sjjmgi#sj#Jihivep#Gsrxvegx#Gsqtpmergi#Tvskveqw1##Er}#gsrxvegxsv#{ls#jempw#xs#gevv}#

syx#wygl#wergxmsrw#erh#tirepxmiw#wlepp#fi#mr#zmspexmsr#sj#xliwi#wtigmjmgexmsrw#erh#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44579/#

ew#eqirhih1#

#

461 Xli# Wyfvigmtmirx/# mr# jypjmppmrk# mxw# sfpmkexmsrw# yrhiv# xliwi# wtigmjmgexmsrw/# wlepp# mqtpiqirx# wtigmjmg#

ejjmvqexmzi# egxmsr# wxitw/# ex# piewx# ew# i|xirwmzi# ew# xlswi# wxerhevhw# tviwgvmfih# mr# tevekvetl# ;# sj# xliwi#

wtigmjmgexmsrw/# ws# ew# xs# eglmizi# qe|mqyq# viwypxw# jvsq# mxw# ijjsvxw# xs# irwyvi# iuyep# iqtps}qirx#

sttsvxyrmx}1# # Mj# xli# Wyfvigmtmirx# jempw# xs# gsqtp}# {mxl# xli# viuymviqirxw# sj# xli# I|igyxmzi# Svhiv/# xli#

mqtpiqirxmrk#vikypexmsrw/#sv#xliwi#wtigmjmgexmsrw/#xli#Hmvigxsv#wlepp#tvsgiih#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#74#G1J1V1#

«#93071<1#

#

471 Xli# Wyfvigmtmirx# wlepp# hiwmkrexi# e# viwtsrwmfpi# sjjmgmep# xs# qsrmxsv# epp# iqtps}qirx# vipexih# egxmzmx}# xs#

irwyvi# xlex#xli#gsqter}#IIS#tspmg}# mw#fimrk#gevvmih#syx/# xs#wyfqmx# vitsvxw# vipexmrk#xs#xli#tvszmwmsrw#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 277



45#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

livisj#ew#qe}#fi#viuymvih#f}#xli#Kszivrqirx#erh#xs#oiit#vigsvhw1##Vigsvhw#wlepp#ex#piewx#mrgpyhi#jsv#

iegl# iqtps}ii# xli# reqi/# ehhviww/# xipitlsri# ryqfivw/# Gsrwxvygxmsr# xvehi/# yrmsr# ejjmpmexmsr# mj# er}/#

iqtps}ii#mhirxmjmgexmsr#ryqfiv#{lir#ewwmkrih/#wsgmep#wigyvmx}#ryqfiv/#vegi/#wi|/#wxexyw#+i1k1/#qiglermg/#

ettvirxmgi#xvemrii/#liptiv/#sv#pefsviv,/#hexiw#sj#glerkiw#mr#wxexyw/#lsyvw#{svoih#tiv#{iio#mr#xli#mrhmgexih#

xvehi/#vexi#sj#te}/#erh#psgexmsrw#ex#{lmgl#xli#{svo#{ew#tivjsvqih1##Vigsvhw#wlepp#fi#qemrxemrih#mr#er#

iewmp}# yrhivwxerhefpi# erh# vixvmizefpi# jsvq?# ls{iziv/# xs# xli# hikvii# xlex# i|mwxmrk# vigsvhw# wexmwj}# xlmw#

viuymviqirx/#gsrxvegxsvw#wlepp#rsx#fi#viuymvih#xs#qemrxemr#witevexi#vigsvhw1#

#

481 Rsxlmrk#livimr#tvszmhih#wlepp#fi#gsrwxvyih#ew#e#pmqmxexmsr#ytsr#xli#ettpmgexmsr#sj#sxliv#pe{w#{lmgl#

iwxefpmwl#hmjjivirx#wxerhevhw#sj#gsqtpmergi#sv#ytsr#xli#ettpmgexmsr#sj#viuymviqirxw#jsv#lmvmrk#sj#psgep#sv#

sxliv#eview#viwmhirxw1#

641 GIVXMJMGEXMSR#SJ#RSRWIKVIKEXIH#JEGMPMXMIW#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrwxvygxmsr#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'43/333,1###Xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#givxmjmiw#xlex#mx#hsiw#rsx#qemrxemr#sv#tvszmhi#jsv#mxw#iwxefpmwlqirxw/#erh#xlex#mx#hsiw#rsx#tivqmx#

iqtps}iiw#xs#tivjsvq#xlimv#wivzmgiw#ex#er}#psgexmsr/#yrhiv#mxw#gsrxvsp/#{livi#wikvikexih#jegmpmxmiw#evi#qemrxemrih1##Mx#

givxmjmiw#jyvxliv#xlex#mx#{mpp#rsx#qemrxemr#sv#tvszmhi#jsv#iqtps}iiw#er}#wikvikexih#jegmpmxmiw#ex#er}#sj#mxw#

iwxefpmwlqirxw/#erh#mx#{mpp#rsx#tivqmx#iqtps}iiw#xs#tivjsvq#xlimv#wivzmgiw#ex#er}#psgexmsr#yrhiv#mxw#gsrxvsp#{livi#

wikvikexih#jegmpmxmiw#evi#qemrxemrih1##Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xlex#e#fviegl#sj#xlmw#givxmjmgexmsr#mw#e#zmspexmsr#sj#xli#

rsrhmwgvmqmrexmsr#gpeywi#sj#xlmw#gsrxvegx1#

#

Ew#ywih#mr#xlmw#givxmjmgexmsr/#xli#xivq#�wikvikexih#jegmpmxmiw�#qierw#er}#{emxmrk#vssqw/#{svo#eview/#viwx#vssqw#erh#

{ewl#vssqw/#viwxeyverxw#erh#sxliv#iexmrk#eview/#xmqi#gpsgow/#psgoiv#vssqw/#erh#sxliv#wxsveki#sv#hviwwmrk#eview/#

tevomrk#psxw/#hvmromrk#jsyrxemrw/#vigviexmsr#sv#irxivxemrqirx#eview/#xverwtsvxexmsr#erh#lsywmrk#jegmpmxmiw#tvszmhih#jsv#

iqtps}iiw#{lmgl#evi#wikvikexih#f}#i|tpmgmx#hmvigxmzi#sv#evi/#mr#jegx/#wikvikexih#sr#xli#fewmw#sj#vegi/#gspsv/#vipmkmsr/#

sv#rexmsrep#svmkmr#figeywi#sj#lefmx/#psgep#gywxsq/#sv#er}#sxliv#viewsr1#

#

Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#jyvxliv#ekviiw#xlex#+i|gitx#{livi#mx#lew#sfxemrih#jsv#wtigmjmg#xmqi#tivmshw,#mx#{mpp#sfxemr#mhirxmgep#

givxmjmgexmsr#jvsq#tvstswih#wyfgsrxvegxsvw#tvmsv#xs#xli#e{evh#sj#wyfgsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'43/333#{lmgl#evi#rsx#

i|iqtx#jvsq#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#xli#rsrhmwgvmqmrexmsr#gpeywi?#xlex#mx#{mpp#vixemr#wygl#givxmjmgexmsrw#mr#mxw#jmpiw?#erh#xlex#

mx#{mpp#jsv{evh#xli#tvigihmrk#rsxmgi#xs#wygl#tvstswih#wyfgsrxvegxsvw#+i|gitx#{livi#tvstswih#wyfgsrxvegxsvw#lezi#

wyfqmxxih#mhirxmgep#givxmjmgexmsrw#jsv#wtigmjmg#xmqi#tivmshw,1#

651 WIGXMSR#836#SJ#XLI#VILEFMPMXEXMSR#EGX#SJ#4=;6#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'43/333,1###Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#

wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#wigxmsr#836#sj#xli#Vilefmpmxexmsr#Egx#sj#4=;6#+5=#Y1W1G1#«#;=6,/#ew#eqirhih/#erh#er}#ettpmgefpi#

vikypexmsrw1#

e, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#rsx#hmwgvmqmrexi#ekemrwx#er}#iqtps}ii#sv#ettpmgerx#jsv#iqtps}qirx#figeywi#sj#tl}wmgep#sv#

qirxep#hmwefmpmx}#mr#vikevh#xs#er}#tswmxmsr#jsv#{lmgl#xli#iqtps}ii#sv#ettpmgerx#jsv#iqtps}qirx#mw#uyepmjmih1#Xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xs#xeoi#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr#xs#iqtps}/#ehzergi#mr#iqtps}qirx#erh#sxliv{mwi#xviex#uyepmjmih#

mrhmzmhyepw#{mxl#hmwefmpmxmiw#{mxlsyx#hmwgvmqmrexmsr#fewih#sr#xlimv#tl}wmgep#sv#qirxep#hmwefmpmx}#mr#epp#iqtps}qirx#

tvegxmgiw/#mrgpyhmrk#xli#jspps{mrk>##

#

41 Vigvymxqirx/#ehzivxmwmrk/#erh#nsf#ettpmgexmsr#tvsgihyviw?##

51 Lmvmrk/#ytkvehmrk/#tvsqsxmsr/#e{evh#sj# xiryvi/#hiqsxmsr/# xverwjiv/# pe}sjj/# xivqmrexmsr/# vmklx#sj# vixyvr#

jvsq#pe}sjj#erh#vilmvmrk?##

61 Vexiw#sj#te}#sv#er}#sxliv#jsvq#sj#gsqtirwexmsr#erh#glerkiw#mr#gsqtirwexmsr?##

71 Nsf#ewwmkrqirxw/#nsf#gpewwmjmgexmsrw/#svkerm~exmsrep#wxvygxyviw/#tswmxmsr#hiwgvmtxmsrw/#pmriw#sj#tvskviwwmsr/#

erh#wirmsvmx}#pmwxw?##

81 Pieziw#sj#efwirgi/#wmgo#piezi/#sv#er}#sxliv#piezi?##

91 Jvmrki#firijmxw#ezempefpi#f}#zmvxyi#sj#iqtps}qirx/#{lixliv#sv#rsx#ehqmrmwxivih#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx?##

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 278



46#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

;1 Wipigxmsr#erh#jmrergmep#wyttsvx#jsv#xvemrmrk/#mrgpyhmrk#ettvirxmgiwlmt/#tvsjiwwmsrep#qiixmrkw/#gsrjivirgiw/#

erh#sxliv#vipexih#egxmzmxmiw/#erh#wipigxmsr#jsv#pieziw#sj#efwirgi#xs#tyvwyi#xvemrmrk?##

<1 Egxmzmxmiw#wtsrwsvih#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#mrgpyhmrk#wsgmep#sv#vigviexmsrep#tvskveqw?#erh##

=1 Er}#sxliv#xivq/#gsrhmxmsr/#sv#tvmzmpiki#sj#iqtps}qirx1##

#

f, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xs#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#vypiw/#vikypexmsrw/#erh#vipizerx#svhivw#sj#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv#mwwyih#

tyvwyerx#xs#xli#egx1##

#

g, Mr#xli#izirx#sj#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx�w#rsrgsqtpmergi#{mxl#xli#viuymviqirxw#sj#xlmw#gpeywi/#egxmsrw#jsv#rsrgsqtpmergi#

qe}#fi# xeoir# mr# eggsvhergi#{mxl# xli# vypiw/# vikypexmsrw/# erh# vipizerx#svhivw#sj# xli# Wigvixev}#sj# Pefsv# mwwyih#

tyvwyerx#xs#xli#egx1##

#

h, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw#xs#tswx#mr#gsrwtmgysyw#tpegiw/#ezempefpi#xs#iqtps}iiw#erh#ettpmgerxw#jsv#iqtps}qirx/#

rsxmgiw#mr#e#jsvq#xs#fi#tviwgvmfih#f}#xli#Hityx}#Ewwmwxerx#Wigvixev}#jsv#Jihivep#Gsrxvegx#Gsqtpmergi#Tvskveqw/#

tvszmhih#f}#sv#xlvsykl#xli#gsrxvegxmrk#sjjmgiv1#Wygl#rsxmgiw#wlepp#wxexi#xli#vmklxw#sj#ettpmgerxw#erh#iqtps}iiw#ew#

{ipp# ew# xli# Wyfvigmtmirx�w# sfpmkexmsr# yrhiv# xli# pe{# xs# xeoi# ejjmvqexmzi# egxmsr# xs# iqtps}# erh# ehzergi# mr#

iqtps}qirx#uyepmjmih#iqtps}iiw#erh#ettpmgerxw#{mxl#hmwefmpmxmiw1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#irwyvi#xlex#ettpmgerxw#

erh#iqtps}iiw#{mxl#hmwefmpmxmiw#evi#mrjsvqih#sj#xli#gsrxirxw#sj#xli#rsxmgi#+i1k1/#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#qe}#lezi#xli#

rsxmgi#vieh#xs#e#zmwyepp}#hmwefpih#mrhmzmhyep#sv#qe}#ps{iv#xli#tswxih#rsxmgi#ws#xlex#mx#qmklx#fi#vieh#f}#e#tivwsr#mr#

e#{liipglemv,1##

#

i, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp#rsxmj}#iegl#pefsv#svkerm~exmsr#sv#vitviwirxexmzi#sj#{svoivw#{mxl#{lmgl#mx#lew#e#gsppigxmzi#

fevkemrmrk#ekviiqirx#sv#sxliv#gsrxvegx#yrhivwxerhmrk/#xlex#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#mw#fsyrh#f}#xli#xivqw#sj#wigxmsr#836#

sj#xli#Vilefmpmxexmsr#Egx#sj#4=;6/#ew#eqirhih/#erh#mw#gsqqmxxih#xs#xeoi#ejjmvqexmzi#egxmsr#xs#iqtps}#erh#ehzergi#

mr#iqtps}qirx#mrhmzmhyepw#{mxl#tl}wmgep#sv#qirxep#hmwefmpmxmiw1##

#

j, Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#{mpp# mrgpyhi#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#xlmw#gpeywi# mr#iziv}#wyfgsrxvegx#sv#tyvglewi#svhiv# mr#i|giww#sj#

'43/333/#yrpiww#i|iqtxih#f}#xli#vypiw/#vikypexmsrw/#sv#svhivw#sj#xli#Wigvixev}#mwwyih#tyvwyerx#xs#wigxmsr#836#sj#

xli#Egx/#ew#eqirhih/#ws#xlex#wygl#tvszmwmsrw#{mpp#fi#fmrhmrk#ytsr#iegl#wyfgsrxvegxsv#sv#zirhsv1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#

{mpp# xeoi#wygl#egxmsr#{mxl#viwtigx# xs#er}#wyfgsrxvegx#sv#tyvglewi#svhiv#ew# xli#Hityx}#Ewwmwxerx#Wigvixev}# jsv#

Jihivep#Gsrxvegx#Gsqtpmergi#Tvskveqw#qe}#hmvigx#xs#irjsvgi#wygl#tvszmwmsrw/#mrgpyhmrk#egxmsr#jsv#rsrgsqtpmergi1#

#

PEFSV#TVSZMWMSRW#

#

661 GSTIPERH#�ERXM0OMGOFEGO�#EGX#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#epp#gsrwxvygxmsr#sv#vitemv#gsrxvegxw,1###Wepevmiw#sj#tivwsrrip#

tivjsvqmrk#{svo#yrhiv#xlmw#gsrxvegx#wlepp#fi#temh#yrgsrhmxmsrepp}#erh#rsx#piww#sjxir#xler#srgi#e#qsrxl#{mxlsyx#

te}vspp#hihygxmsr#sv#vifexi#sr#er}#eggsyrx#i|gitx#srp}#wygl#te}vspp#hihygxmsrw#ew#evi#qerhexsv}#f}#pe{#sv#

tivqmxxih#f}#xli#ettpmgefpi#vikypexmsrw#mwwyih#f}#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv#tyvwyerx#xs#xli#Gstiperh#�Erxm0Omgofego#

Egx�#sj#Nyri#46/#4=67#+7<#Wxex1#=7<?#95#Wxex1#;73?#96#Wxex1#43<?#4<#Y1W1G1#«#<;7?#erh#73#Y1W1G1#«#5;9g,1##Xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#epp#ettpmgefpi#�Erxm0Omgofego�#vikypexmsrw#erh#wlepp#mrwivx#ettvstvmexi#tvszmwmsrw#mr#epp#

wyfgsrxvegxw#gszivmrk#{svo#yrhiv#xlmw#gsrxvegx#xs#irwyvi#gsqtpmergi#f}#wyfgsrxvegxsvw#{mxl#wygl#vikypexmsrw#erh#

wlepp#fi#viwtsrwmfpi#jsv#xli#wyfqmwwmsr#sj#ejjmhezmxw#viuymvih#sj#wyfgsrxvegxsvw#xliviyrhiv#i|gitx#ew#xli#Wigvixev}#

sj#Pefsv#qe}#wtigmjmgepp}#tvszmhi#jsv#zevmexmsrw#sj#sv#i|iqtxmsrw#jvsq#xli#viuymviqirxw#xlivisj1#

671 HEZMW0FEGSR#EGX#ERH#SXLIV#PEFSV#GSQTPMERGI#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrwxvygxmsr#gsrxvegxw#i|giihmrk#'5/333#{lir#

viuymvih#f}#jihivep#tvskveq#pikmwpexmsr,1####Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#wlepp#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#Hezmw#Fegsr#Egx#+73#Y1W1G1#««#5;9e#

xs#5;9e0;,#ew#wyttpiqirxih#f}#Hitevxqirx#sj#Pefsv#vikypexmsrw#+5=#G1J1V1#Tevx#8,/#erh#epp#sxliv#ettpmgefpi#jihivep/#

wxexi/#erh#psgep#pe{w#erh#vikypexmsrw#tivxemrmrk#xs#pefsv#wxerhevhw#mrwsjev#ew#xli}#ettp}#xs#xli#tivjsvqergi#sj#xlmw#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 279



47#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

ekviiqirx1#

#

Epp#pefsvivw#erh#qiglermgw#iqtps}ih#f}#xli#Wyfvigmtmirx/#mxw#gsrxvegxsvw#sv#wyfgsrxvegxsvw/#mrgpyhmrk#iqtps}iiw#

sj#sxliv#kszivrqirxw/#sr#gsrwxvygxmsr#{svo#ewwmwxih#yrhiv#xlmw#gsrxvegx/#erh#wyfnigx#xs#xli#tvszmwmsrw#sj#xli#

Jihivep#egxw#erh#vikypexmsrw#pmwxih#mr#xlmw#tevekvetl/#wlepp#fi#temh#{ekiw#ex#vexiw#rsx#piww#xler#xlswi#tvizempmrk#

sr#wmqmpev#gsrwxvygxmsr#mr#xli#psgepmx}#ew#hixivqmrih#f}#xli#Wigvixev}#sj#Pefsv#mr#eggsvhergi#{mxl#xli#Hezmw#Fegsr#

Egx1# Xli# Wyfvigmtmirx# wlepp# qemrxemr# hsgyqirxexmsr# xlex# hiqsrwxvexiw# gsqtpmergi# {mxl# lsyv# erh# {eki#

viuymviqirxw#sj#xlmw#tevx1#Wygl#hsgyqirxexmsr#wlepp#fi#qehi#ezempefpi#xs#Wyfkverxii#erh#HLWIW#jsv#vizmi{#ytsr#

viuyiwx1#

#

Mj# Wyfvigmtmirx# mw# irkekih# yrhiv# e# gsrxvegx# mr# i|giww# sj# '5/333# jsv# gsrwxvygxmsr/# virszexmsr/# sv# vitemv#{svo#

jmrergih#mr#{lspi#sv#mr#tevx#{mxl#ewwmwxergi#tvszmhih#f}#HLWIW/#Wyfvigmtmirx#ekviiw/#i|gitx#{mxl#viwtigx#xs#xli#

vilefmpmxexmsr#sv#gsrwxvygxmsr#sj#viwmhirxmep#tvstivx}#gsrxemrmrk#piww#xler#imklx#+<,#yrmxw/#xs#gsqtp}#erh#xs#geywi#

epp# wyfgsrxvegxsvw# irkekih# yrhiv# wygl# gsrxvegxw# xs# gsqtp}# {mxl# jihivep# viuymviqirxw# ehstxih# f}# HLWIW#

tivxemrmrk#xs#wygl#gsrxvegxw#erh#{mxl#xli#ettpmgefpi#viuymviqirxw#sj#xli#Hitevxqirx#sj#Pefsv#yrhiv#5=#G1J1V1#

Tevxw#4/#6/#8/#erh#;#kszivrmrk#xli#te}qirx#sj#{ekiw#erh#vexms#sj#ettvirxmgiw#erh#xvemriiw#xs#nsyvri}#{svoivw?#

tvszmhih#xlex/#mj#{eki#vexiw#lmkliv#xler#xlswi#viuymvih#yrhiv#xli#vikypexmsrw#evi#mqtswih#f}#wxexi#sv#psgep#pe{/#

rsxlmrk#liviyrhiv# mw# xs# vipmizi#Wyfvigmtmirx#sj# mxw#sfpmkexmsr/# mj#er}/# xs# viuymvi#te}qirx#sj# xli#lmkliv#{eki1#

Wyfvigmtmirx# wlepp# geywi# sv# viuymvi# xs# fi# mrwivxih# mr# jypp/# mr# epp# wygl# gsrxvegxw# wyfnigx# xs# wygl# vikypexmsrw/#

tvszmwmsrw#qiixmrk#xli#viuymviqirxw#sj#xlmw#tevekvetl1#

681 QMRMQYQ#[EKI#ERH#QE\MQYQ#LSYVW#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#gsrxvegxw#{mxl#mrwxmxyxmsrw#sj#lmkliv#ihygexmsr/#lswtmxepw/#

erh#rsr0tvsjmx#svkerm~exmsrw,1##Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#qmrmqyq#{eki#erh#qe|mqyq#lsyvw#tvszmwmsrw#sj#

xli#Jihivep#Jemv#Pefsv#Wxerhevhw#Egx#+5=#Y1W1G1#534,1#

691 LEXGL#EGX1# Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx# gsqtp}#{mxl# xli#Lexgl#Egx# +8#Y1W1G1# ««48340483<#)#;6570;65<,/#{lmgl# pmqmxw# xli#

tspmxmgep#egxmzmxmiw#sj#iqtps}iiw#{lswi#tvmrgmtep#iqtps}qirx#egxmzmxmiw#evi#jyrhih#mr#{lspi#sv#mr#tevx#{mxl#Jihivep#

Jyrhw1#

6;1 HVYK0JVII#[SVOTPEGI1#Tyvwyerx#xs#75#Y1W1G1#«#;34#ix#wiu1/#ehstxih#ex#5#G1J1V1#Tevx#6334/#epp#Wyfvigmtmirxw#vigimzmrk#

kverxw#jvsq#e#Jihivep#ekirg}#qywx#qemrxemr#e#hvyk0jvii#{svotpegi1#

#

IRZMVSRQIRXEP#TVSZMWMSRW#

#

6<1 WSPMH#[EWXI#HMWTSWEP1# # #Tyvwyerx#xs#5#GJV#«#5331655/#Wyfvigmtmirx#qywx#gsqtp}#{mxl#wigxmsr#9335#sj#xli#Wspmh#

[ewxi#Hmwtswep#Egx/#ew#eqirhih#f}#xli#Viwsyvgi#Gsrwivzexmsr#erh#Vigsziv}#Egx#+gshmjmih#ex#75#YWG#«#9=95,1#Xli#

viuymviqirxw#sj#Wigxmsr#9335#mrgpyhi#tvsgyvmrk#srp}#mxiqw#hiwmkrexih#mr#kymhipmriw#sj#xli#Irzmvsrqirxep#Tvsxigxmsr#

Ekirg}#+ITE,#ex#73#GJV#Tevx#57;#xlex#gsrxemr#xli#lmkliwx#tivgirxeki#sj#vigszivih#qexivmepw#tvegxmgefpi/#gsrwmwxirx#

{mxl#qemrxemrmrk#e#wexmwjegxsv}#pizip#sj#gsqtixmxmsr/#{livi#xli#tyvglewi#tvmgi#sj#xli#mxiq#i|giihw#'43/333#sv#xli#

zepyi#sj#xli#uyerxmx}#eguymvih#hyvmrk#xli#tvigihmrk#jmwgep#}iev#i|giihih#'43/333?#tvsgyvmrk#wspmh#{ewxi#qerekiqirx#

wivzmgiw# mr# e#qerriv# xlex#qe|mqm~iw#irivk}#erh# viwsyvgi# vigsziv}?# erh# iwxefpmwlmrk# er# ejjmvqexmzi# tvsgyviqirx#

tvskveq#jsv#tvsgyviqirx#sj#vigszivih#qexivmepw#mhirxmjmih#mr#xli#ITE#kymhipmriw1#

6=1 GIVXMJMGEXMSR#SJ#GSQTPMERGI#[MXL#IRZMVSRQIRXEP#PE[W#+Ettpmgefpi#xs#EPP#gsrxvegx#{mxl#e#zepyi#i|giihmrk#

'483/333,1#Xli#Wyfvigmtmirx#erh#epp#wyfgsrxvegxsvw#ekvii#xs#gsqtp}#{mxl#xli#jspps{mrk#viuymviqirxw#+erh#xlimv#wxexi#

erh2sv#psgep#gsyrxivtevxw#sv#erepskyiw/#mj#er},#mrwsjev#ew#xli}#ettp}#xs#xli#tivjsvqergi#sj#xlmw#Ekviiqirx#ew#er}#sj#

xli#jspps{mrk#qe}#livimrejxiv#fi#eqirhih/#wytivwihih/#vitpegih/#sv#qshmjmih>#####

e, I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44=<</#Jpsshtpemr#Qerekiqirx/#Qe}#57/#4=;;#+75#JV#59=84/#6#G1J1V1/#4=;;#Gsqt1/#t1#44;/#ew#

mrxivtvixih#ex#57#G1J1V1#Tevx#88,/#erh#I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#44==3/#Tvsxigxmsr#sj#[ixperhw/#Qe}#57/#4=;;#+75#JV#

59=94/#6#G1J1V1/#4=;;#Gsqt1/#t1#454,?##

f, Gsewxep#^sri#Qerekiqirx#Egx#sj#4=;5/#ew#eqirhih#+49#Y1W1G1#«#4784#ix#wiu1,?#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 280



48#
Gsrxvegx#G#cccccccccccc#

Exxeglqirx#E05>#Xivqw#erh#Gsrhmxmsrw#jsv#Jihivepp}#Jyrhih#Kverxw#
Viz1#Nyri#534=#

#

#

g, Weji#Hvmromrk#[exiv#Egx#sj#4=;7#+75#Y1W1G1#534/#633+j,#ix#wiu1/#erh#54#Y1W1G1#«#67=/#ew#eqirhih,/#erh#ITE#

vikypexmsrw#jsv#Wspi#Wsyvgi#Euymjivw#+73#G1J1V1#Tevx#47=,?#

h, Irherkivih#Wtigmiw#Egx#sj#4=;6/#ew#eqirhih#+49#Y1W1G1#«#4864#ix#wiu1,?#

i, [mph#erh#Wgirmg#Vmzivw#Egx#sj#4=9</#ew#eqirhih#+49#Y1W1G1#«#45;4#ix#wiu1,?#

j, Gpier#Emv#Egx/#ew#eqirhih#+75#Y1W1G1#«#;734#ix#wiu1,?#

k, ITE#vikypexmsrw#jsv#Hixivqmrmrk#Gsrjsvqmx}#sj#Jihivep#Egxmsrw#xs#Wxexi#sv#Jihivep#Mqtpiqirxexmsr#Tperw#+73#

G1J1V1#Tevxw#9/#84/#erh#=6,?#

l, Jevqperh#Tvsxigxmsr#Tspmg}#Egx#sj#4=<4#+;#Y1W1G1#«#7534#ix#wiu1,/#erh#YWHE#vikypexmsrw#ex#;#G1J1V1#Tevx#98<?#

m, JIQE#gvmxivme#erh#irzmvsrqirxep#tspmg}?#

n, I|igyxmzi#Svhiv#45<=</#Jihivep#Egxmsrw#xs#Ehhviww#Irzmvsrqirxep#Nywxmgi#mr#Qmrsvmx}#Tstypexmsrw#erh#Ps{0

Mrgsqi#Tstypexmsrw/#Jif1#44/#4==7#+8=#JV#;95=/#6#G1J1V1/#4==7#Gsqt1#t1#<8=,?#

o, Jpssh#Hmwewxiv#Tvsxigxmsr#Egx#sj#4=;6/#ew#eqirhih#+75#Y1W1G1#«#73340745<,?#

p, Rexmsrep#Jpssh#Mrwyvergi#Vijsvq#Egx#sj#4==7#+75#Y1W1G1#«#8487e,?##

q, Gsewxep#Fevvmiv#Viwsyvgiw#Egx/#ew#eqirhih#f}#xli#Gsewxep#Fevvmiv#Mqtvsziqirx#Egx#sj#4==3#+49#Y1W1G1#«#6834,?##

r, Pieh0Fewih#Temr#Tsmwsrmrk#Tvizirxmsr#Egx#+75#Y1W1G1#«#7<34#ix#wiu1,#

s, Vyr{e}#Gpiev#^sri#vikypexmsrw#+57#G1J1V1#Tevx#84,?##

t, Jihivep#[exiv#Tsppyxmsr#Gsrxvsp#Egx/#ew#eqirhih#+66#Y1W1G1#«#4584/#ix#wiu1,/#gsqqsrp}#ors{r#ew#xli#Gpier#

[exiv#Egx/#erh#epp#vikypexmsrw#erh#kymhipmriw#mwwyih#xliviyrhiv?##

u, Irzmvsrqirxep#Tvsxigxmsr#Ekirg}#+�ITE�,#vikypexmsrw#ex#73#G1J1V#Tevx#83/#ew#eqirhih?#

v, Epp#sxliv#ettpmgefpi#irzmvsrqirxep#pe{w#xlex#qe}#i|mwx#rs{#sv#mr#xli#jyxyvi1#

#

Jyvxliv/# Wyfvigmtmirx# wlepp# efmhi# f}# er}# gsrhmxmsrw# sv# viuymviqirxw# wix# jsvxl# mr# er}# irzmvsrqirxep# vizmi{#

tivjsvqih#f}#JIQE#mr#jyvxlivergi#sj#mqtpiqirxmrk#xli#Rexmsrep#Irzmvsrqirxep#Tspmg}#Egx1#

#

Mr# ehhmxmsr# xs# xli# jsviksmrk# viuymviqirxw/# epp# rsri|iqtx# gsrxvegxsvw# erh# wyfgsrxvegxsvw# wlepp# jyvrmwl# xs# xli#

Wyfvigmtmirx/#xli#jspps{mrk>#

e, E#wxmtypexmsr#f}#xli#Gsrxvegxsv#sv#wyfgsrxvegxsvw/#xlex#er}#jegmpmx}#xs#fi#yxmpm~ih#mr#xli#tivjsvqergi#sj#er}#

rsri|iqtx#gsrxvegx#sv#wyfgsrxvegx/#mw#rsx#pmwxih#sr#xli#I|gpyhih#Tevx}#Pmwxmrk#W}wxiq#tyvwyerx#xs#73#G1J1V1#

Tevx#65#sv#sr#xli#Pmwx#sj#Zmspexmrk#Jegmpmxmiw#mwwyih#f}#xli#ITE#tyvwyerx#xs#73#G1J1V1#Tevx#48/#ew#eqirhih1#

f, Ekviiqirx#f}# xli#Gsrxvegxsv#xs#gsqtp}#{mxl#epp# xli#viuymviqirxw#sj#Wigxmsr#447#sj# xli#Gpier#Emv#Egx/#ew#

eqirhih/#+75#Y1W1G1#«#4<8;#g#<,#erh#Wigxmsr#63<#sj#xli#Jihivep#[exiv#Tsppyxmsr#Gsrxvsp#Egx/#ew#eqirhih/#+66#

Y1W1G1# «# 464<,# vipexmrk# xs# mrwtigxmsr/# qsrmxsvmrk/# irxv}/# vitsvxw# erh# mrjsvqexmsr/# ew# {ipp# ew# epp# sxliv#

viuymviqirxw# wtigmjmih# mr# wemh# Wigxmsr# 447# erh# Wigxmsr# 63</# erh# epp# vikypexmsrw# erh# kymhipmriw# mwwyih#

xliviyrhiv1#

g, E#wxmtypexmsr#xlex#ew#e#gsrhmxmsr#jsv#xli#e{evh#sj#xli#gsrxvegx/#tvsqtx#rsxmgi#{mpp#fi#kmzir#sj#er}#rsxmjmgexmsr#

vigimzih#jvsq#xli#Hmvigxsv/#Sjjmgi#sj#Jihivep#Egxmzmxmiw/#ITE/#mrhmgexmrk#xlex#e#jegmpmx}#yxmpm~ih/#sv#xs#fi#yxmpm~ih#

jsv#xli#gsrxvegx/#mw#yrhiv#gsrwmhivexmsr#xs#fi#pmwxih#sr#xli#I|gpyhih#Tevx}#Pmwxmrk#W}wxiq#sv#xli#ITE#Pmwx#sj#

Zmspexmrk#Jegmpmxmiw1#

h, Ekviiqirx#f}#xli#Gsrxvegxsv#xlex#li#{mpp#mrgpyhi/#sv#geywi#xs#fi#mrgpyhih/#xli#gvmxivme#erh#viuymviqirxw#mr#

tevekvetlw#E#xlvsykl#H#sj#xlmw#wigxmsr#mr#iziv}#rsri|iqtx#wyfgsrxvegx#erh#viuymvmrk#xlex#xli#Gsrxvegxsv#{mpp#

xeoi#wygl#egxmsr#ew#xli#kszivrqirx#qe}#hmvigx#ew#e#qierw#sj#irjsvgmrk#wygl#tvszmwmsrw1#

#

#

000804

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 281



!
!

!

E
q
pv

tc
ev

!P
w
o

d
gt

<!
$
a
a
a
a
a
aa

aa
a
a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

aa
a
a!

R
ci

g!
2
!q

h!
6
-!
C

vv
ce

j
o

gp
v!
D

.4
!�

!E
cr

kv
cn

!D
cu

gf
!D

wf
ig

v!

#

C
V

V
C

E
J

O
G

P
V

!D
.4

!�
!E

C
R

KV
C

N
!D

C
U

G
F

!D
W

F
I

G
V

!
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

!
! R

T
Q

LG
E

V
!P

C
O

G
<!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
E

Q
P

V
T

C
E

V
Q

T
!U

H
U

!R
C

[
G

G
!P

C
O

G
<!

!
!

! ! ! E
Q

P
V

T
C

E
V

!R
G

T
KQ

F
<!

H
tq

o
<!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
V

q<
!

!
!

!
!

!
#

E
C

V
G

I
Q

T
[

!Q
H
!G

Z
R

G
P

U
G

!
I

T
C

P
V

!
H
W

P
F

U
!

O
C

V
E

J
!H

W
P

F
U

!
O

C
V

E
J

!&
!

Q
V

J
G

T
!

H
W

P
F

U
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!!

2/
U

eq
rk

pi
!c

pf
!R

tg
.F

gx
gn

q
ro

gp
v!
!

!
!

!
!

!

3/
F

gu
ki

p!
!

!
!

!
!

!

4/
C

es
wk

uk
vk

qp
!

!
!

!
!

!

5/
E

qp
uv

tw
ev

kq
p!

!
!

!
!

!

6/
C

fo
kp

ku
vt

cv
kq

p!
!

!
!

!
!

!

7/
Y

qt
mk

pi
!E

cr
kv

cn
0T

gu
gt

xg
u!

!
!

!
!

!

8/
Q

vj
gt

!!
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

P
kc

i
ct

c!
H

cn
nu

!Y
Y

V
R

-!R
jc

ug
!K

K

P
kc

i
ct

c!
H

cn
nu

!Y
cv

gt
!D

q
ct

f

22
02

40
31

2
8

17
01

20
31

3
2

%1
/1

1

%3
2
71

1
1/

1
1

%2
9
51

1
1/

1
1

5
7

%5
1
11

1
1/

1
1

%1
/1

1

%3
8
69

9
71

/1
1

%3
4
61

2
51

/1
1

5
7

%6
2
1;

1
11

/1
1

%1
/1

1

%1
/1

1

%1
/1

1

%3
;
85

9
71

/1
1

%3
6
45

2
51

/1
1

%1
/1

1
%6

6
1;

1
11

/1
1

11
1
91

5

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 282



!
!

!

E
q
pv

tc
ev

!P
w
o

d
gt

<!
$
a
a
a
a
a
aa

aa
a
a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

aa
a
a!

R
ci

g!
3
!q

h!
6
-!
C

vv
ce

j
o

gp
v!
D

.4
!�

!E
cr

kv
cn

!D
cu

gf
!D

wf
ig

v!

#

C
V

V
C

E
J

O
G

P
V

!D
.4

!�
!E

C
R

KV
C

N
!D

C
U

G
F

!D
W

F
I

G
V

!
D

E
T

A
IL

 
!

!
U

E
Q

R
KP

I
!C

P
F

!R
T

G
!F

G
X

G
N

Q
R

O
G

P
V

!.
V

[
R

G
0F

G
U

E
T

KR
V

KQ
P

!
KV

G
O

!$
!

!)
KH

!C
R

R
N

KE
C

D
N

G
*!

S
W

C
P

V
KV

[
!!

)K
H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
W

P
KV

!R
T

KE
G

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
V

Q
V

C
N

!!

2/
!

!
!

!
!

3/
!

!
!

!
!

4/
!

!
!

!
!

5/
!

!
!

!
!

6/
!

!
!

!
!

7/
!

!
!

!
!

8/
!

!
!

!
!

9/
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

F
G

U
KI

P
!.

!V
[

R
G

0F
G

U
E

T
KR

V
KQ

P
!

KV
G

O
!$

!
!)

KH
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
S

W
C

P
V

KV
[

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
W

P
KV

!R
T

KE
G

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
V

Q
V

C
N

!!

2/
!

!
!

!
!

3/
!

!
!

!
!

4/
!

!
!

!
!

5/
!

!
!

!
!

6/
!

!
!

!
!

7/
!

!
!

!
!

8/
!

!
!

!
!

9/
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

! !
!

%1
/1

1

!!
!!!

G
p
i
kp

gg
tk

p
i!

'
!F

gu
ki

p
%5

1
11

1
1/

1
1

%5
1
11

1
1/

1
1

%5
1
11

1
1/

1
1

11
1
91

5

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 283



!
!

!

E
q
pv

tc
ev

!P
w
o

d
gt

<!
$
a
a
a
a
a
aa

aa
a
a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

aa
a
a!

R
ci

g!
4
!q

h!
6
-!
C

vv
ce

j
o

gp
v!
D

.4
!�

!E
cr

kv
cn

!D
cu

gf
!D

wf
ig

v!

#

!

C
E

S
W

KU
KV

KQ
P

!.
!V

[
R

G
0F

G
U

E
T

KR
V

KQ
P

!
KV

G
O

!$
!

!)
KH

!C
R

R
N

KE
C

D
N

G
*!

S
W

C
P

V
KV

[
!!

)K
H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
W

P
KV

!R
T

KE
G

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
V

Q
V

C
N

!!

2/
!

!
!

!
!

3/
!

!
!

!
!

4/
!

!
!

!
!

5/
!

!
!

!
!

6/
!

!
!

!
!

7/
!

!
!

!
!

8/
!

!
!

!
!

9/
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

E
Q

P
U

V
T

W
E

V
KQ

P
!.

!V
[

R
G

0F
G

U
E

T
KR

V
KQ

P
!

KV
G

O
!$

!
!)

KH
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
S

W
C

P
V

KV
[

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
W

P
KV

!R
T

KE
G

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
V

Q
V

C
N

!

2/
!

!
!

!
!

3/
!

!
!

!
!

4/
!

!
!

!
!

5/
!

!
!

!
!

6/
!

!
!

!
!

7/
!

!
!

!
!

8/
!

!
!

!
!

9/
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

! !
!

%1
/1

1

!!
!!!

F
go

qn
kv

kq
p

!c
p
f

!T
go

q
xc

n!
)U

kv
g!

T
gu

vq
tc

vk
qp

*
%2

1
11

1
1/

1
1

!!
!!!

E
q
p
uv

tw
ev

kq
p

!c
f

!R
tq

lg
ev

!K
o

r
tq

x
go

gp
v

%4
9
6;

1
11

/1
1

!!
!!!

G
s
w
kr

o
gp

v!
)E

q
p
et

gv
g!

U
j
c
hv

-!C
ee

gu
u!

E
j

co
d
gt

u*
!

%;
6
11

1
1/

1
1

!!
!!!

O
qd

kn
k|

c
vk

q
p

%3
1
11

1
1/

1
1

!!
!!!

%6
2
1;

1
11

/1
1

11
1
91

5

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 284



!
!

!

E
q
pv

tc
ev

!P
w
o

d
gt

<!
$
a
a
a
a
a
aa

aa
a
a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

aa
a
a!

R
ci

g!
5
!q

h!
6
-!
C

vv
ce

j
o

gp
v!
D

.4
!�

!E
cr

kv
cn

!D
cu

gf
!D

wf
ig

v!

#

!

C
F

O
KP

KU
V

T
C

V
KQ

P
!.

!V
[

R
G

0F
G

U
E

T
KR

V
KQ

P
!

KV
G

O
!$

!
!)

KH
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
S

W
C

P
V

KV
[

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
W

P
KV

!R
T

KE
G

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
V

Q
V

C
N

!!

2/
!

!
!

!
!

3/
!

!
!

!
!

4/
!

!
!

!
!

5/
!

!
!

!
!

6/
!

!
!

!
!

7/
!

!
!

!
!

8/
!

!
!

!
!

9/
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
Y

Q
T

M
KP

I
!E

C
R

KV
C

N
0T

G
U

G
T

X
G

U
!.

!
V

[
R

G
0F

G
U

E
T

KR
V

KQ
P

!
KV

G
O

!$
!

!)
KH

!C
R

R
N

KE
C

D
N

G
*!

S
W

C
P

V
KV

[
!!

)K
H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
W

P
KV

!R
T

KE
G

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
V

Q
V

C
N

!!

2/
!

!
!

!
!

3/
!

!
!

!
!

4/
!

!
!

!
!

5/
!

!
!

!
!

6/
!

!
!

!
!

7/
!

!
!

!
!

8/
!

!
!

!
!

9/
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

! !
!

%
1/

1
1

%
1/

1
1

11
1
91

5

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 285



!
!

!

E
q
pv

tc
ev

!P
w
o

d
gt

<!
$
a
a
a
a
a
aa

aa
a
a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

a
aa

aa
a
a!

R
ci

g!
6
!q

h!
6
-!
C

vv
ce

j
o

gp
v!
D

.4
!�

!E
cr

kv
cn

!D
cu

gf
!D

wf
ig

v!

#

!

Q
V

J
G

T
!.

!V
[

R
G

0F
G

U
E

T
KR

V
KQ

P
!

KV
G

O
!$

!
!)

KH
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
S

W
C

P
V

KV
[

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
W

P
KV

!R
T

KE
G

!!
)K

H
!C

R
R

N
KE

C
D

N
G

*!
V

Q
V

C
N

!!

2/
!

!
!

!
!

3/
!

!
!

!
!

4/
!

!
!

!
!

5/
!

!
!

!
!

6/
!

!
!

!
!

7/
!

!
!

!
!

8/
!

!
!

!
!

9/
!

!
!

!
!

V
Q

V
C

N
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!!
!!

%
1/

1
1

11
1
91

5

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 286



Eqpvtcev!Pwodgt<!$E111915!!

Rcig!2!qh!2-!Cvvcejogpv!E!�!Rtqitco!Yqtmrncp!
!

Eqpvtcev!$<!E111915!
!

Cvvcejogpv!E!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!Rtqitco!Yqtmrncp!

!

!

Vjg!Rjcug!KK!crrtqxgf!Ueqrg!qh!Yqtm!)UQY*!yknn!dg!eqpuvtwevgf!kp!ceeqtfcpeg!ykvj!cnn!

Rjcug!K!hkpcn!fgukip!fqewogpvu!rtgrctgf!d{!IJF!Eqpuwnvkpi!Ugtxkegu!cpf!fcvgf!

Fgegodgt!3129/!Vjg!UQY!yknn!rtqxkfg!hnqqf!rtqvgevkqp!htqo!wr!vq!vjg!2&!cppwcn!

ejcpeg!hnqqf!)211.{gct!gxgpv*!hqt!vjg!Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!YYVR!d{!tgnkgxkpi!vjg!

eqodkpgf!ugygt!eqnngevkqp!u{uvgo/!!

!

Cnn!kortqxgogpvu!ctg!cu!ujqyp!qp!vjg!Eqpvtcev!Ftcykpiu!gpvkvngf!�Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!

Dqctf!Ycuvgycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!Ogcuwtgu�!cpf!gzrnckpgf!kp!vjg!rjcug!KK!

ueqrg!qh!yqtm!pcttcvkxg!rtgrctgf!d{!IJF!cpf!fcvgf!Fgegodgt!3129/!Vjg!rtqlgev!yknn!

cnnqy!gzvtgog!hnqyu!vq!d{rcuu!vjg!YYVR!yjgp!vjgtg!ctg!jkij!fkuejctig!ngxgnu!ykvjkp!

vjg!ockp!kphnwgpv!ugygt/!Vjg!rtqvgevkqp!yknn!dg!rtqxkfgf!d{!c!pgy!ugygt!d{rcuu!tgnkgh!

eqppgevkqp!vq!vjg!gzkuvkpi!95�!fkcogvgt!vwppgn-!yjkej!yknn!uchgn{!fkuejctig!vjg!hnqyu!vq!

vjg!nqygt!Pkcictc!Tkxgt/!!

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 287



<bageTVg Gh`UXe7 "SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 
ITZX . bY 1) 9ggTV[`Xag = o ITl`Xag TaW KXcbeg\aZ LV[XWh_X

ATTACHMENT D 
PAYMENT AND REPORTING SCHEDULE 

I. PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

Ba Yh__ Vbaf\WXeTg\ba bY VbageTVg fXei\VXf gb UX cXeYbe`XW g[X LgTgX 9ZXaVl TZeXXf gb cTl TaW g[X 
VbageTVgbe TZeXXf gb TVVXcg T fh` abg gb XkVXXW g[X T`bhag abgXW ba g[X YTVX cTZX [XeXbY+  9__ cTl`Xagf 
f[T__ UX \a TVVbeWTaVX j\g[ g[X UhWZXg VbagT\aXW \a g[X Tcc_\VTU_X 9ggTV[`Xag ; Ybe` ';hWZXg() j[\V[ \f 
TggTV[XW [XeXgb+ 

A.  Advance Payment and Recoupment Language (if applicable): 

.+ M[X LgTgX TZXaVl j\__ `T^X Ta TWiTaVX cTl`Xag gb g[X <bageTVgbe) Whe\aZ g[X \a\g\T_ cXe\bW) \a g[X
T`bhag bY SSSSSSSSSSSS cXeVXag 'SSS$( g[X UhWZXg Tf fXg Ybeg[ \a g[X `bfg eXVXag_l TccebiXW
Tcc_\VTU_X 9ggTV[`Xag ; Ybe` ';hWZXg(+

/+ KXVbhc`Xag bY Tal TWiTaVX cTl`Xag'f( f[T__ UX eXVbiXeXW Ul VeXW\g\aZ 'SSS$( bY fhUfXdhXag
V_T\`f TaW fhV[ V_T\`f j\__ UX eXWhVXW hag\_ g[X TWiTaVX \f Yh__l eXVbiXeXW j\g[\a g[X VbageTVg
cXe\bW+

0+ LV[XWh_XW TWiTaVX cTl`Xagf f[T__ UX WhX \a TVVbeWTaVX j\g[ Ta TccebiXW cTl`Xag fV[XWh_X Tf
Yb__bjf7

IXe\bW7  SSSSSSSS 9`bhag7  SSSSSSSSSSS =hX =TgX7  SSSSSSSSS 

IXe\bW7  SSSSSSSS 9`bhag7  SSSSSSSSSSS =hX =TgX7  SSSSSSSSS 

IXe\bW7  SSSSSSSS   9`bhag7  SSSSSSSSSSS =hX =TgX7  SSSSSSSSS 

IXe\bW7  SSSSSSSS 9`bhag7  SSSSSSSSSSS =hX =TgX7  SSSSSSSSS 

B. Interim and/or Final Claims for Reimbursement 

<_T\`\aZ LV[XWh_X 'select applicable frequency(7 

" JhTegXe_l KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

" Fbag[_l KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

" ;\TaahT_ KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

" ?XX Ybe LXei\VX KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

P0C

P0C

26!fc{u!chvgt!qt!cu!tgswktgf!

!E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 288



<bageTVg Gh`UXe7 "SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 
ITZX / bY 1) 9ggTV[`Xag = o ITl`Xag TaW KXcbeg\aZ LV[XWh_X

" KTgX ;TfXW KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

" ?\Yg[ JhTegXe KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

" F\_XfgbaX,IXeYbe`TaVX KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX,?eXdhXaVl SSSSSSSSSSS 

" LV[XWh_XW KX\`UhefX`Xag 
=hX WTgX,?eXdhXaVl SSSSSSSSSSSS 

II. REPORTING PROVISIONS

A. Expenditure-Based Reports  'select the applicable report type(7

" GTeeTg\iX,JhT_\gTg\iX KXcbeg 

M[X <bageTVgbe j\__ fhU`\g) ba T dhTegXe_l UTf\f) abg _TgXe g[Ta SSSSS WTlf Yeb` g[X XaW bY 
g[X dhTegXe) g[X eXcbeg WXfVe\UXW \a LXVg\ba BBB'@('/('T('\( bY g[X FTfgXe <bageTVg+

" LgTg\fg\VT_,JhTag\gTg\iX KXcbeg 

M[X <bageTVgbe j\__ fhU`\g) ba T dhTegXe_l UTf\f) abg _TgXe g[Ta SSSS WTlf Yeb` g[X XaW bY g[X 
dhTegXe) g[X eXcbeg WXfVe\UXW \a LXVg\ba BBB'@('/('T('\\( bY g[X FTfgXe <bageTVg+  

"  >kcXaW\gheX KXcbeg    

M[X <bageTVgbe j\__ fhU`\g) ba T dhTegXe_l UTf\f) abg _TgXe g[Ta SSSS WTlf TYgXe g[X XaW WTgX 
Ybe j[\V[ eX\`UhefX`Xag \f UX\aZ V_T\`XW) g[X  eXcbeg WXfVe\UXW \a LXVg\ba BBB'@('/('T('\\\( bY 
g[X FTfgXe <bageTVg+  

" ?\aT_ KXcbeg   

M[X <bageTVgbe j\__ fhU`\g g[X Y\aT_ eXcbeg Tf WXfVe\UXW \a LXVg\ba BBB'@('/('T('\i( bY g[X 
FTfgXe <bageTVg) ab _TgXe g[Ta SSSSS WTlf TYgXe g[X XaW bY g[X VbageTVg cXe\bW+ 

" <bafb_\WTgXW ?\fVT_ KXcbeg '<?K(.

M[X <bageTVgbe j\__ fhU`\g g[X <?K ba Ta TaahT_ UTf\f) \a TVVbeWTaVX j\g[ g[X g\`X YeT`Xf 
WXf\ZaTgXW \a g[X <?K `TahT_+  ?be GXj Rbe^ <\gl VbageTVgbef) g[X WhX WTgX f[T__ UX FTl . 
bY XTV[ lXTe8 Ybe NcfgTgX TaW EbaZ Bf_TaW VbageTVgbef) g[X WhX WTgX f[T__ UX GbiX`UXe . bY 
XTV[ lXTe+ 

4
#M[X <bafb_\WTgXW ?\fVT_ KXcbeg\aZ LlfgX` \f T fgTaWTeW\mXW X_XVgeba\V eXcbeg\aZ `Xg[bW TVVXcgXW Ul HYY\VX bY 9_Vb[b_\f` % LhUfgTaVX LXei\VXf) 

HYY\VX bY FXagT_ AXT_g[) HYY\VX bY IXefbaf j\g[ =XiX_bc`XagT_ =\fTU\_\g\Xf TaW g[X LgTgX >WhVTg\ba =XcTeg`Xag) Vbaf\fg\aZ bY fV[XWh_Xf j[\V[) \a 
W\YYXeXag Vb`U\aTg\baf) VTcgheX Y\aTaV\T_ \aYbe`Tg\ba Ybe UhWZXgf) dhTegXe_l TaW,be `\W*lXTe V_T\`f) Ta TaahT_ Vbfg eXcbeg) TaW T Y\aT_ V_T\`+  M[X 
<?K) j[\V[ `hfg UX fhU`\ggXW TaahT__l) \f Ubg[ T lXTe*XaW Vbfg eXcbeg TaW T lXTe*XaW V_T\`\aZ WbVh`Xag+#

26

26

56

!E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 289



<bageTVg Gh`UXe7 "SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 
ITZX 0 bY 1) 9ggTV[`Xag = o ITl`Xag TaW KXcbeg\aZ LV[XWh_X

B. Progress-Based Reports 

.+ IebZeXff KXcbegf  

M[X <bageTVgbe f[T__ cebi\WX g[X eXcbeg WXfVe\UXW \a LXVg\ba BBB'@('/('U('\( bY g[X FTfgXe 
<bageTVg \a TVVbeWTaVX j\g[ g[X Ybe`f TaW \a g[X Ybe`Tg cebi\WXW Ul g[X LgTgX 9ZXaVl) 
fh``Te\m\aZ g[X jbe^ cXeYbe`XW Whe\aZ g[X VbageTVg cXe\bW 'fXX MTU_X . UX_bj Ybe g[X TaahT_ 
fV[XWh_X(+  

/+ ?\aT_ IebZeXff KXcbeg  

?\aT_ fV[XWh_XW cTl`Xag j\__ abg UX WhX hag\_ SSSS WTlf TYgXe Vb`c_Xg\ba bY TZXaVlsf ThW\g bY 
g[X Y\aT_ XkcXaW\gheXf eXcbeg,WbVh`XagTg\ba f[bj\aZ gbgT_ ZeTag XkcXafXf fhU`\ggXW Ul iXaWbe 
j\g[ \gf Y\aT_ \aib\VX+  =XTW_\aX Ybe fhU`\ff\ba bY g[X Y\aT_ eXcbeg \f SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS+  M[X 
TZXaVl f[T__ Vb`c_XgX \gf ThW\g TaW abg\Yl iXaWbe bY g[X eXfh_gf ab _TgXe g[Ta SSSSSSSSSS+  M[X 
<bageTVgbe f[T__ fhU`\g g[X eXcbeg abg _TgXe g[Ta SSSSWTlf Yeb` g[X XaW bY g[X VbageTVg+ 

C. Other Reports 

M[X <bageTVgbe f[T__ cebi\WX eXcbegf \a TVVbeWTaVX j\g[ g[X Ybe`) VbagXag TaW fV[XWh_X Tf fXg 
Ybeg[ \a MTU_X .+ 

!E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 290



<bageTVg Gh`UXe7 "SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 
ITZX 1 bY 1) 9ggTV[`Xag = o ITl`Xag TaW KXcbeg\aZ LV[XWh_X

TABLE I – REPORTING SCHEDULE 

    IKH@K>LL K>IHKM "                I>KBH= <HO>K>=                =N> =9M> 

!E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 291



W/U/!Fgrctvogpv!qh!Jqogncpf!Ugewtkv{!

Tgikqp!KK!
Lceqd!M/!Lcxkvu!Hgfgtcn!Qhhkeg!
Dwknfkpi!37!Hgfgtcn!Rnc|c!
Pgy![qtm-!Pgy![qtm!21389.1113!

yyy/hgoc/iqx!
!

!

Oc{!2-!3131!

Ou/!Cppg!Dkpm!
Cnvgtpcvg!Iqxgtpqt�u!Cwvjqtk|gf!Tgrtgugpvcvkxg!
Pgy![qtm!Uvcvg!Fkxkukqp!qh!Jqogncpf!Ugewtkv{!'!Gogtigpe{!Ugtxkegu!!
2331!Ycujkpivqp!Cxgpwg!
Dwknfkpi!8C!�!5vj!Hnqqt!!
Cndcp{-!Pgy![qtm!23353!
!
! TG<! HGOC.5315.FT.P[!
! ! Jc|ctf!Okvkicvkqp!Itcpv!Rtqitco!)JOIR*!
! ! Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!

Rtqlgev$!5315.1114!
Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycuvg!Ycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!Ogcuwtgu!!

! ! Rjcug!KK!Crrtqxcn!!
!
Fgct!Ou/!Dkpm<!
!
Rngcug!dg!kphqtogf!vjcv!crrtqxcn!ku!itcpvgf!vq!vjg!Pgy![qtm!Uvcvg!Fkxkukqp!qh!Jqogncpf!
Ugewtkv{!cpf!Gogtigpe{!Ugtxkegu�!)FJUGU*!hqt!hwpfkpi!qh!vjg!Rjcug!KK!rtqlgev!equv!qh!vjg!
JOIR!rtqlgev!pwodgt!5315.1114!hqt!vjg!Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycuvg!Ycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!
Ogcuwtgu!rtqlgev/!FJUGU-!cu!vjg!itcpv!tgekrkgpv!)jgtgkpchvgt!mpqyp!cu!vjg!Tgekrkgpv*-!yknn!
cfokpkuvgt!vjku!uwd!itcpv!cyctf!vq!vjg!Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!)jgtgkpchvgt!mpqyp!cu!vjg!Uwd.
tgekrkgpv*/!
!
Rjcug!KK!hwpfkpi!jcu!dggp!qdnkicvgf!kp!vjg!coqwpv!qh!%3-964-889!)65&!hgfgtcn!ujctg*!vq!FJUGU!
hqt!vjg!hgfgtcnn{!hwpfgf!rqtvkqp!qh!vjg!tghgtgpegf!uwd!itcpv/!Vjg!vqvcn!Rjcug!KK!rtqlgev!equv!
kpenwfgu!vjg!65&!hgfgtcn!ujctg!cpf!c!57&!nqecn0uvcvg!ocvej!qh!%3-767-233!hqt!c!vqvcn!rtqlgev!equv!
qh!%6-61;-;11/!Rngcug!pqvg!vjcv!cv!vjg!vkog!qh!vjku!cyctf!vjg!uvcpfctf!86&!hgfgtcn!hwpfkpi!ujctg!
gzeggfgf!vjg!cxckncdng!hwpfkpi!wpfgt!FT.5315=!vjg!Uwd.tgekrkgpv!eqookvvgf!vq!c!nqecn!ocvej!
gzeggfkpi!vjg!uvcpfctf!36&!hqt!JOIR!cu!qwvnkpgf!cdqxg/!
!
Rjcug!KK!crrtqxcn!ku!eqpvkpigpv!wrqp!vjg!hwnhknnogpv!qh!cnn!eqpfkvkqpu!kfgpvkhkgf!d{!HGOC!)ugg!
vjg!cvvcejgf!EQC*/!
!
Vjg!FT.5315!JOIR!Rgtkqf!qh!Rgthqtocpeg!)RQR*!fgcfnkpg!qh!Lwpg!2-!3132!jcu!dggp!
guvcdnkujgf!hqt!vjku!itcpv!rtqitco/!FJUGU!owuv!cfokpkuvgt!vjku!uwd.itcpv!ykvjkp!vjg!itcpv!
rtqitco!RQR/!Vjku!RQR!rtqxkfgu!corng!vkog!hqt!vjg!uwd.tgekrkgpv!vq!eqorngvg!cnn!cevkxkvkgu!
kfgpvkhkgf!ykvjkp!vjg!crrtqxgf!ueqrg!qh!yqtm-!cpf!vq!cfftguu!cp{!rqvgpvkcn!fgnc{u!vjcv!oc{!ctkug!
fwg!vq!rgtokvvkpi!tgswktgogpvu-!ygcvjgt!eqpfkvkqpu!qt!qvjgt!wphqtguggp!ektewouvcpegu/!Kv!cnuq!

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 292



Ou/!Cppg!Dkpm!
Oc{!2-!3131!
Rcig!3!
!

! ! yyy/hgoc/iqx!

kpenwfgu!uwhhkekgpv!vkog!hqt!FJUGU!vq!eqpenwfg!kvu!cfokpkuvtcvkxg!eqpvtcev!tgswktgogpvu!chvgt!vjg!
rtqlgev!ku!eqorngvgf/!
!
Vjg!Rjcug!KK!crrtqxgf!Ueqrg!qh!Yqtm!)UQY*!yknn!dg!eqpuvtwevgf!kp!ceeqtfcpeg!ykvj!cnn!Rjcug!K!
hkpcn!fgukip!fqewogpvu!rtgrctgf!d{!IJF!Eqpuwnvkpi!Ugtxkegu!cpf!fcvgf!Fgegodgt!3129/!Vjku!
UQY!yknn!rtqxkfg!hnqqf!rtqvgevkqp!htqo!wr!vq!vjg!2&!cppwcn!ejcpeg!hnqqf!)211.{gct!gxgpv*!hqt!
vjg!Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!YYVR!d{!tgnkgxkpi!vjg!eqodkpgf!ugygt!eqnngevkqp!u{uvgo/!Cnn!
kortqxgogpvu!ctg!cu!ujqyp!qp!vjg!Eqpvtcev!Ftcykpiu!gpvkvngf!�Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!
Ycuvgycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!Ogcuwtgu�!cpf!gzrnckpgf!kp!vjg!rjcug!KK!ueqrg!qh!yqtm!
pcttcvkxg!rtgrctgf!d{!IJF!cpf!fcvgf!Fgegodgt!3129/!Vjg!rtqlgev!yknn!cnnqy!gzvtgog!hnqyu!vq!
d{rcuu!vjg!YYVR!yjgp!vjgtg!ctg!jkij!uwtejctig!ngxgnu!ykvjkp!vjg!ockp!kphnwgpv!ugygt/!Vjg!
rtqvgevkqp!yknn!dg!rtqxkfgf!d{!c!pgy!ugygt!d{rcuu!tgnkgh!eqppgevkqp!vq!cp!gzkuvkpi!95.kpej!
fkcogvgt!vwppgn-!yjkej!yknn!uchgn{!fkuejctig!vjg!hnqyu!vq!vjg!nqygt!Pkcictc!Tkxgt/!
!
Cp{!ejcpig!vq!vjg!crrtqxgf!UQY!owuv!dg!uwdokvvgf!vq!HGOC!hqt!eqpukfgtcvkqp!cpf!crrtqxcn!
rtkqt!vq!korngogpvcvkqp/!!Vjku!kpenwfgu!cp{!rqvgpvkcn!gzvgpukqp!qh!vjg!uwd!tgekrkgpv!rtqlgev!
uejgfwng!cu!kfgpvkhkgf!ykvjkp!vjg!eqpfkvkqpu!qh!crrtqxcn/!Gzgewvkqp!qh!cp{!oqfkhkecvkqp!vq!vjg!
crrtqxgf!ueqrg!qh!yqtm!ykvjqwv!rtkqt!HGOC!crrtqxcn!oc{!lgqrctfk|g!hwpfkpi!hqt!vjg!uwd!itcpv!
rtqlgev/!Kp!ceeqtfcpeg!ykvj!3!EHT!Rctv!311-!vjg!Tgekrkgpv!owuv!gpuwtg!vjcv!Uwd.tgekrkgpvu!ctg!
cyctg!qh!tgswktgogpvu!korqugf!wrqp!vjgo!d{!Hgfgtcn!Uvcvwvg!cpf!tgiwncvkqpu/!
!
HGOC!wtigu!{qwt!qhhkeg!vq!oggv!ykvj!vjg!Uwd.tgekrkgpv!vq!tgxkgy!vjg!rtqlgev!tgswktgogpvu!cu!
uqqp!cu!rquukdng/!Cv!vjku!oggvkpi-!rngcug!fkuewuu!kp!fgvckn!vjg!EQC!cpf!rtqlgev!uejgfwng!
kpenwfkpi!swctvgtn{!rgthqtocpeg!tgrqtvkpi!cpf!hkuecn!fqewogpvcvkqp!tgswktgogpvu/!HGOC!ku!
cxckncdng!vq!cuukuv!vjg!Tgekrkgpv!cpf!Uwd.tgekrkgpv!kp!vjg!korngogpvcvkqp!qh!vjku!rtqlgev/!
!
Cu!cnyc{u-!vjg!HGOC!Tgikqp!3!okvkicvkqp!uvchh!ctg!cxckncdng!vq!oggv!ykvj!vjg!Tgekrkgpv!vq!
rtqxkfg!vgejpkecn!cuukuvcpeg!wrqp!tgswguv/!Kh!{qw!jcxg!cp{!swguvkqpu-!qt!kh!yg!ecp!dg!qh!hwtvjgt!
cuukuvcpeg-!rngcug!eqpvcev!Tqdgtv!Vtcpvgt-!Jc|ctf!Okvkicvkqp!Dtcpej!Ejkgh!cv!)323*!791.4739/!
!

Ukpegtgn{-!
!
!
!
!
!

Okejcgn!H/!Oqtkctv{!!
Fktgevqt!
Okvkicvkqp!Fkxkukqp!

!
!
!
Cvvcejogpv<!! Eqpfkvkqpu!qh!Crrtqxcn!)EQC*!

Tgeqtf!qh!Gpxktqpogpvcn!Eqpukfgtcvkqp!
!

OKEJCGN!H!
OQTKCTV[

Fkikvcnn{!ukipgf!d{!
OKEJCGN!H!OQTKCTV[!
Fcvg<!3131/16/12!
24<43<45!.15(11(

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 293



EQPFKVKQPU!QH!CRRTQXCN!

Rjcug!KK!

JOIR!Rtqlgev!$!5315.1114!
Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!

Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycuvg!Ycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!Ogcuwtgu!

!

EQC.2!

HGOC!Tgikqp!KK!crrtqxcn!ku!eqpvkpigpv!wrqp!hwnhknnogpv!qh!cnn!qh!vjg!hqnnqykpi!eqpfkvkqpu<!
!
2/ Crrtqxgf!Ueqrg!qh!Yqtm!)UQY*!!

Vjg!crrtqxgf!Ueqrg!qh!Yqtm!)UQY*!cu!qwvnkpgf!ykvjkp!vjg!rjcug!K!fgnkxgtcdngu!cpf!
hkpcn!eqpvtcev!fqewogpvu!eqpukuvu!qh!jc|ctf!okvkicvkqp!ogcuwtgu!vq!rtqxkfg!hnqqf!rtqvgevkqp!
htqo!wr!vq!vjg!2&!cppwcn!ejcpeg!hnqqf!)211!{gct!gxgpv*!hqt!vjg!Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!
YYVR!d{!tgnkgxkpi!vjg!eqodkpgf!ugygt!eqnngevkqp!u{uvgo/!
!
Kp!vjg!tgegpv!rcuv-!vjg!YYVR!jcu!gzrgtkgpegf!ugtkqwu!hnqqfkpi!cu!c!tguwnv!qh!ugxgtg!ygv!ygcvjgt!
cpf!kpvgpug!tckp!gxgpvu/!!Fwtkpi!vyq!fqewogpvgf!hnqqfkpi!gxgpvu!kp!Ugrvgodgt!25-!2;8;!cpf!Lwn{!
2;-!3124!vjg!YYVR!tgegkxgf!ukipkhkecpv!rj{ukecn!fcocigu!cpf!rncegf!qwv!qh!ugtxkeg!hqt!nqpi!
fwtcvkqpu!qh!vkog/!!Kp!cffkvkqp!vq!vjg!uwduvcpvkcn!fcocig!cv!vjg!YYVR!ocp{!tgukfgpvkcn!
dcugogpvu!ygtg!hnqqfgf!fwg!vq!ucpkvct{!ugygt!dcemwru/!!Fwtkpi!ugxgtg!ygv!ygcvjgt!cpf!kpvgpug!
tckphcnnu!vjg!eqpxg{cpeg!ecrcekv{!kp!vjg!u{uvgo!dgeqogu!hwnn{!eqpuwogf-!ecwukpi!hnqyu!vq!
uwtejctig!kp!vjg!rtkpekrcn!kpvgtegrvqt!cpf!kvu!vtkdwvct{!ugygtu/!!Wnvkocvgn{!vjg!tkukpi!uwtejctig!
ecwugu!ecvcuvtqrjke!hnqqfkpi!cv!vjg!YYVR!cpf!ugygt!eqnngevkqp!u{uvgo!dcem.wru/!!
!
Cnn!kortqxgogpvu!ctg!cu!ujqyp!qp!vjg!Eqpvtcev!Ftcykpiu!gpvkvngf!�Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!
Ycuvgycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!Ogcuwtgu�!cpf!gzrnckpgf!kp!vjg!rjcug!KK!ueqrg!qh!
yqtm!pcttcvkxg!rtgrctgf!d{!IJF!cpf!fcvgf!Fgegodgt!3129/!Vjg!rtqlgev!yknn!cnnqy!gzvtgog!
hnqyu!vq!d{rcuu!vjg!YYVR!yjgp!vjgtg!ctg!jkij!uwtejctig!ngxgnu!ykvjkp!vjg!ockp!kphnwgpv!ugygt/!
Vjg!rtqvgevkqp!yknn!dg!rtqxkfgf!d{!c!pgy!ugygt!d{rcuu!tgnkgh!eqppgevkqp!vq!cp!gzkuvkpi!95.kpej!
fkcogvgt!vwppgn-!yjkej!yknn!uchgn{!fkuejctig!vjg!hnqyu!vq!vjg!nqygt!Pkcictc!Tkxgt/!
!

3/ UQY!Ejcpigu!

Kp!ceeqtfcpeg!ykvj!3!EHT!311/419-!rcuu.vjtqwij!gpvkvkgu!)vjg!rtqitco!Tgekrkgpv*!owuv!qdvckp!

rtkqt!crrtqxcn!htqo!HGOC!rtkqt!vq!korngogpvcvkqp!qh!cp{!rtqrqugf!UQY!ejcpig/!!Tgswguvu!

owuv!dg!ocfg!kp!ytkvkpi!cpf!fgoqpuvtcvg!vjg!pggf!hqt!vjg!UQY!ejcpig/!!Vjg!tgswguv!ujqwnf!cnuq!

kpenwfg!c!tgxkugf!UQY-!uejgfwng-!cpf!dwfigv/!!Cp{!UQY!ejcpigu!ctg!uwdlgev!vq!cnn!

rtqitcoocvke!tgswktgogpvu/!

!

4/ Gpxktqpogpvcn!Tgxkgy!Rtqlgev!Eqpfkvkqpu!!
Cp{!ejcpig!vq!vjg!crrtqxgf!UQY!yknn!tgswktg!tg.gxcnwcvkqp!hqt!eqornkcpeg!ykvj!PGRC!cpf!

qvjgt!Ncyu!cpf!Gzgewvkxg!Qtfgtu/!Uwd.tgekrkgpvu!ujqwnf!dg!ocfg!cyctg!vjcv!vjku!fqewogpv!fqgu!

pqv!cfftguu!cnn!hgfgtcn-!uvcvg-!cpf!nqecn!tgswktgogpvu/!Ceegrvcpeg!qh!hgfgtcn!hwpfkpi!tgswktgu!

tgekrkgpv!vq!eqorn{!ykvj!cnn!hgfgtcn-!uvcvg-!cpf!nqecn!ncyu/!Hcknwtg!vq!qdvckp!cnn!crrtqrtkcvg!hgfgtcn-!

uvcvg-!cpf!nqecn!gpxktqpogpvcn!rgtokvu!cpf!engctcpegu!oc{!cnuq!lgqrctfk|g!hgfgtcn!hwpfkpi/!Kh!

itqwpf!fkuvwtdkpi!cevkxkvkgu!qeewt!fwtkpi!eqpuvtwevkqp-!vjg!Uwd.tgekrkgpv!yknn!oqpkvqt!itqwpf!

fkuvwtdcpeg!cpf!kh!cp{!wpcpvkekrcvgf!ctejgqnqikecn!tguqwtegu!ctg!fkueqxgtgf-!yknn!koogfkcvgn{!

egcug!eqpuvtwevkqp!kp!vjcv!ctgc!cpf!pqvkh{!vjg!Vgttkvqt{!cpf!HGOC/!Hwtvjgt!Gpxktqpogpvcn!

Tgxkgy!Rtqlgev!Eqpfkvkqpu!ctg!kpenwfgf!kp!Ugevkqp!X!qh!vjg!cvvcejgf!TGE/!

!

!

!

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 294



EQPFKVKQPU!QH!CRRTQXCN!

Rjcug!KK!

JOIR!Rtqlgev!$!5315.1114!
Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!

Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycuvg!Ycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!Ogcuwtgu!

!

EQC.3!

5/ Dwfigv!Ejcpigu!

!

Tgekrkgpvu!cpf!Uwd.tgekrkgpvu!ctg!rgtokvvgf!vq!tg.dwfigv!ykvjkp!vjg!crrtqxgf!fktgev!equv!dwfigv!

vq!oggv!wpcpvkekrcvgf!tgswktgogpvu!cpf!oc{!ocmg!nkokvgf!rtqitco!ejcpigu!vq!vjg!crrtqxgf!

dwfigv/!!Hqt!oqtg!kphqtocvkqp!qp!fktgev!equv!ecvgiqtkgu-!rngcug!ugg!3!EHT!Rctv!336-!Equv!

Rtkpekrngu!hqt!Uvcvg-!Nqecn-!cpf!Kpfkcp!Vtkdcn!Iqxgtpogpvu/!!Rtqlgevu!yknn!tgswktg!vjg!rtkqt!ytkvvgp!

crrtqxcn!qh!HGOC!cu!hqnnqyu<!

" Equv!qxgttwp!cpf!wpfgttwpu!ecp!tguwnv!htqo!c!ueqrg-!uejgfwng!qt!dwfigv!ejcpig/!

" Tgekrkgpvu!owuv!pqvkh{!HGOC!rtkqt!vq!tgfktgevkpi!hwpfu!htqo!cp!wpfgttwp!vq!qvjgt!crrtqxgf!

uwd.itcpvu!hqt!yjkej!cp!qxgttwp!jcu!dggp!tgswguvgf/!!Vjg!uwd.itcpv!owuv!eqpvkpwg!vq!

rtqitcoocvke!gnkikdknkv{!tgswktgogpvu!vq!kpenwfg!equv!ujctg/!

!

6/ Rtqlgev!Eqorngvkqp!Uejgfwng!

!

Vjg!FT.5315!JOIR!Rgtkqf!qh!Rgthqtocpeg!)RQR*!fgcfnkpg!qh!Lwpg!2-!3132!jcu!dggp!
guvcdnkujgf!hqt!vjku!itcpv!rtqitco/!FJUGU!owuv!cfokpkuvgt!vjku!uwd.itcpv!ykvjkp!vjg!
itcpv!rtqitco!RQR/!!

!

7/ Tgrqtvkpi!Tgswktgogpvu!

!

Tgekrkgpvu!cpf!Uwd.tgekrkgpvu!owuv!ockpvckp!tgeqtfu!qh!yqtm!cpf!gzrgpfkvwtgu/!!Tgekrkgpvu!
uwdokv!swctvgtn{!hkpcpekcn!cpf!rgthqtocpeg!tgrqtvu!vq!HGOC!qp!Lcpwct{!41-!Crtkn!41-!Lwn{!41-!
cpf!Qevqdgt!41/!!Vjku!hktuv!swctvgtn{!tgrqtvu!ctg!fwg!41!fc{u!qh!vjg!gpf!qh!vjku!hktuv!hgfgtcn!swctvgt!
hqnnqykpi!vjg!kpkvkcn!itcpv!cyctf/!!HGOC!oc{!yckxg!vjg!kpkvkcn!tgrqtvu/!!Vjg!Tgekrkgpv!ujcnn!
uwdokv!swctvgtn{!hkpcpekcn!uvcvwu!cpf!rgthqtocpeg!tgrqtvu!vjgtgchvgt!wpvkn!vjg!itcpv!gpfu/!!Hcknwtg!
vq!uwdokv!hkpcpekcn!cpf!rgthqtocpeg!tgrqtvu!vq!HGOC!kp!c!vkogn{!ocppgt!oc{!tguwnv!kp!cp!
kpcdknkv{!vq!ceeguu!itcpv!hwpfu!wpvkn!rtqrgt!tgrqtvu!ctg!tgegkxgf!d{!HGOC/!!Tgekrkgpvu!ctg!
gpeqwtcigf!vq!eqpvcev!HGOC!ujqwnf!vjku!qeewt/!

!
8/ Hkpcpekcn!Tgrqtvu!

!

Tgekrkgpvu!ujcnn!uwdokv!c!swctvgtn{!Hgfgtcn!Hkpcpekcn!Tgrqtv!)HHT*/!Qdnkicvkqpu!cpf!gzrgpfkvwtgu!
owuv!dg!tgrqtvgf!qp!c!swctvgtn{!dcuku!vjtqwij!vjg!HHT!)UH.536*-!yjkej!ku!fwg!vq!HGOC!ykvjkp!
41!fc{u!qh!vjg!gpf!qh!gcej!ecngpfct!swctvgt!)g/i/-!hqt!vjg!swctvgt!gpfkpi!Octej!42-!vjg!HHT!ku!fwg!
pq!ncvgt!vjcp!Crtkn!41*/!!C!tgrqtv!owuv!dg!uwdokvvgf!hqt!gxgt{!swctvgt!qh!vjg!RQR-!kpenwfkpi!
rctvkcn!ecngpfct!swctvgtu-!cu!ygnn!cu!hqt!rgtkqfu!yjgtg!pq!itcpv!cevkxkv{!qeewtu/!!Hwvwtg!cyctfu!
cpf!hwpf!ftcyfqypu!oc{!dg!ykvjjgnf!kh!vjgug!tgrqtvu!ctg!fgnkpswgpv/!!Vjg!hkpcn!HHT!ku!fwg!;1!
fc{u!chvgt!vjg!gpf!qh!vjg!RQR/!

!
Vjg!Qhhkeg!qh!Ocpcigogpv!cpf!Dwfigv!)QOD*!jcu!fktgevgf!vjcv!HHT!)UH.536*!tgrnceg!vjg!wug!qh!
vjg!UH.37;-!UH.37;C-!UH.383-!cpf!UH.383.C/!Vjg!UH.536!ku!kpvgpfgf!vq!rtqxkfg!Hgfgtcn!
cigpekgu!cpf!itcpv!tgekrkgpvu!ykvj!c!uvcpfctf!hqtocv!cpf!eqpukuvgpv!tgrqtvkpi!tgswktgogpvu/!!
HGOC!oc{!uwurgpf!ftcyfqypu!htqo!UOCTVNKPM0RCTU!kh!swctvgtn{!tgrqtvu!ctg!pqv!uwdokvvgf!
qp!vkog/!!!

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 295



EQPFKVKQPU!QH!CRRTQXCN!

Rjcug!KK!

JOIR!Rtqlgev!$!5315.1114!
Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycvgt!Dqctf!

Pkcictc!Hcnnu!Ycuvg!Ycvgt!Vtgcvogpv!Rncpv!Rtqvgevkxg!Ogcuwtgu!

!

EQC.4!

!
9/ Rgthqtocpeg!Tgrqtvu!

!

Vjg!Tgekrkgpv!ujcnn!uwdokv!c!swctvgtn{!rgthqtocpeg!tgrqtv!hqt!gcej!itcpv!cyctf/!!Rgthqtocpeg!
tgrqtvu!ujqwnf!kpenwfg<!

" Tgrqtvkpi!rgtkqf-!fcvg!qh!tgrqtv-!cpf!Tgekrkgpv!RQE!pcog!cpf!eqpvcev!kphqtocvkqp/!

" Rtqlgev!kfgpvkhkecvkqp!kphqtocvkqp-!kpenwfkpi!HGOC!rtqlgev!pwodgt!)kpenwfkpi!fkucuvgt!
pwodgt!cpf!fgenctcvkqp!fcvg!hqt!vjg!JOIR*-!Uwd.tgekrkgpv-!cpf!rtqlgev!v{rg!wukpi!uvcpfctf!
PGOKU!rtqlgev!v{rg!eqfgu/!

" Ukipkhkecpv!cevkxkvkgu!cpf!fgxgnqrogpvu!vjcv!jcxg!qeewttgf!qt!jcxg!ujqyp!rtqitguu!fwtkpi!vjg!
swctvgt-!kpenwfkpi!c!eqorctkuqp!qh!cevwcn!ceeqornkujogpvu!vq!vjg!yqtm!uejgfwng!qdlgevkxgu!
guvcdnkujgf!kp!vjg!itcpv/!

" Rgtegpv!qh!yqtm!eqorngvgf!cpf!yjgvjgt!eqorngvkqp!ku!qp!uejgfwng-!c!fkuewuukqp!qh!cp{!
rtqdngou-!fgnc{u-!qt!cfxgtug!eqpfkvkqpu!vjcv!yknn!korckt!vjg!cdknkv{!vq!oggv!vjg!vkognkpgu!
uvcvgf!kp!vjg!itcpv-!cpf!cpvkekrcvgf!eqorngvkqp!fcvg/!

" Uvcvwu!qh!equvu-!kpenwfkpi!yjgvjgt!vjg!equvu!ctg<!)2*!wpejcpigf-!)3*!qxgttwp-!qt!)4*!wpfgttwp/!!
Kh!vjgtg!ku!c!ejcpig!kp!equv!uvcvwu-!vjg!tgrqtv!ujqwnf!kpenwfg!c!pcttcvkxg!fguetkdkpi!vjg!ejcpig/!

" C!uvcvgogpv!qh!yjgvjgt!c!tgswguv!vq!gzvgpf!vjg!itcpv!RQR!ku!cpvkekrcvgf/!
!

Tgswguvu!hqt!cffkvkqpcn!rtqlgev!vkog!gzvgpukqpu!yqwnf!qpn{!dg!eqpukfgtgf!kp!kpuvcpegu!yjgtg!vjg!
uwd.tgekrkgpv! jcu! rtqxkfgf! vjg! Tgekrkgpv! ykvj! ceewtcvg! swctvgtn{! uvcvwu! tgrqtvu/! ! HGOC! oc{!
uwurgpf!ftcyfqypu!htqo!UOCTVNKPM!kh!swctvgtn{!tgrqtvu!ctg!pqv!uwdokvvgf!qp!vkog/!

!
;/ Enqugqwv!

!
Cu!tgswktgf!d{!55!EHT!317-549)f*-!vjg!Tgekrkgpv!yknn!uwdokv!c!ngvvgt!ukipgf!d{!vjg!Iqxgtpqt�u!
Tgrtgugpvcvkxg!qt!gswkxcngpv!egtvkh{kpi!vjcv<!

" Vjg!tgrqtv!equvu!ygtg!kpewttgf!kp!vjg!rgthqtocpeg!qh!gnkikdng!yqtm=!

" Vjg!crrtqxgf!yqtm!ycu!eqorngvgf!cpf!vjg!okvkicvkqp!ogcuwtg!ku!kp!eqornkcpeg!ykvj!vjg!
rtqxkukqpu!qh!vjg!HGOC.UVCVG!Citggogpv=!

" Gcej!uwd.itcpv!jcu!dggp!eqorngvgf!kp!eqornkcpeg!ykvj!vjg!crrtqxgf!UQY=!

" Cevwcn!gzrgpfkvwtgu!jcxg!dggp!fqewogpvgf!cpf!ctg!eqpukuvgpv!ykvj!vjg!UH.535C!qt!UH.535E=!

" Cnn!rtqitco!kpeqog!jcu!dggp!fgfwevgf!htqo!vqvcn!rtqlgev!equvu!cu!urgekhkgf!kp!3!EHT!Rctv!
311/91=!

" Cnn!rtqlgev!yqtm!ycu!rgthqtogf!kp!ceeqtfcpeg!ykvj!cnn!tgswktgf!cpf!crrnkecdng!dwknfkpi!
eqfgu!cu!oqfkhkgf!qt!rtqvgevgf!d{!vjg!crrtqxgf!rtqlgev!

!

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 296



1 

EXHIBIT E 

NEW YORK STATE DIVISION OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY SERVICES

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS FOR  FEMA MITIGATION ASSISTANCE CONTRACTS 

“FEMA” –   The Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

“DHSES” –  The New York State Division of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Services (“DHSES”) and its successors and assigns. 

“Subrecipient”: 

“Contractor”:  

Subrecipient shall attach these Supplementary Conditions to any contract for which any portion of 
the funding is derived from a grant made by FEMA through DHSES under the Mitigation Grant 
(Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) or Flood Mitigation 
Assistance (FMA).  References in the Supplementary Conditions to the “Agreement” or 
“agreement” or “Contract” or “contract” shall be deemed to refer to the agreement between such 
the Subrecipient and the Contractor.   

Contractors at all tiers shall attach these Supplementary Conditions to all subcontracts, and shall 
require that all subcontractors attach these conditions to their sub-subcontracts at all levels.  When 
these Supplementary Conditions are attached to any lower tier contract (e.g., a contract between 
Contractor (as defined above) and any subcontractor, or between Contractor’s direct or indirect 
subcontractors), references herein to “Subrecipient” shall be deemed to refer to the party seeking 
products and/or services, and references to “Contractor” shall be deemed to refer to the party 
providing products and/or services, and references to the “Agreement” or “agreement” or 
“Contract” or “contract” shall be deemed to refer to the agreement between such subcontracting 
parties. 

Any question should be submitted in writing (indicating the issue and the applicable provisions) 
by Subrecipient to DHSES, and DHSES shall decide the applicable question.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 297



2 

REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

The following terms and conditions apply to any contract for which any portion of the 
funding is derived from a grant made by FEMA through DHSES under the Hazard Mitigation 
Assistance Programs. 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED.   Each and every provision 
of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this contract shall be deemed to be inserted 
herein and the contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through 
mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the 
application of either party the contract shall forthwith be physically amended to make such 
insertion or correction.

2. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE.   Contractor shall comply with all 
laws and regulations applicable to the Mitigation Grant funds, including but not limited to the 
applicable Office of Management and Budget Circulars, which may impact the administration of 
funds and/or set forth certain cost principles, including the allowability of certain expenses. 

3. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS.   The Subrecipient and DHSES reserve their rights 
to all administrative, contractual, or legal remedies, including but not limited to suspension or 
termination of this contract, in instances where the Contractor or any of its subcontractors violate 
or breach any contract term.  If the Contractor or any of its subcontractors violate or breach any 
contract term, they shall be subject to such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate.  The 
duties and obligations imposed by the contract documents and the rights and remedies available 
thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies 
otherwise imposed or available by law. 

4. ADMINISTRATIVE, COST, AUDIT AND PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS.  The 
Contractor must comply with the most recent version (unless a specific version is noted) of the 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit requirements, and to the extent 
necessary cooperate and maintain information and documentation to allow DHSES to comply 
with the applicable reguatlions governing the FEMA-State Agreement.  Failure to do so may 
result in disallowance of costs upon audit.  A list of regulations and guidance applicable to United 
States Department of Homeland Security (DHS) grants is listed below: 

a) 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards 

b) 2 C.F.R. Part 215, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements 
with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, & other Non1Profit Organizations  

c) 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (OMB Circular A187), Subpart E, Cost Principles 
d) 2 C.F.R. Part 220 (OMB Circular A121), Cost Principles for Educational Institutions 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 298



3 

e) OMB Circular A1122, Cost Principles for Nonprofit Organizations 
f) 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F, Audit Requirements 
g) OMB Circulars A194 and A1133 
h) For Projects funded with Hazard Mitigation Grant Funds. 

i. New York State Administrative Plan for the Hazard Mitigation Program 
ii. Sections 203 (PDM) and 404 (HMGP) of the Stafford Act 

iii. Sections 1323 (RFC), 1361A (SRL), 1366 (FMA) of the NFIA 
iv. National Flood Insurance Reform Act of 1994 
v. Bunning-Bereuter-Blumenauer Flood Insurance Reform Act of 2004 

vi. Section 322 of the Stafford Act (Mitigation Planning) 
vii. Section 324 of the Stafford Act (Management Costs) 

viii. Hazard Mitigation Planning (44 C.F.R. Part 201) 
ix. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (44 C.F.R. Part 206, Subpart N) 
x. Management Costs (44 C.F.R. Part 207) 

xi. 44 C.F.R. Parts 7, 9, 10, 13, 14, 17, 18, 25, 206, 220, and 221, and any other applicable 
FEMA policy memoranda and guidance documents 

xii. OMB Circular A-94  
xiii. Other applicable Federal, State, Indian Tribal, and local laws, implementing 

regulations, and Executive Orders. 

5. RECORDS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.   The Contractor shall establish and 
maintain complete Records, including accurate books, records, documents, accounts and other 
evidence directly pertinent to performance of work done for the Subrecipient under this Contract 
consistent with generally accepted bookkeeping practices. Contractor shall retain the Records, 
including all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records 
pertinent to the Agreement in accordance with Section 17 below.  The Subrecipient, DHSES, and 
any person or entity authorized to conduct an examination shall have access to the Records during 
normal business hours at an office of the Contractor within the State of New York or, if no such 
office is available, at a mutually agreeable and reasonable venue within the State, for the term 
specified above for the purposes of inspection, auditing and copying.  The Subrecipient and 
DHSES shall take reasonable steps to protect from public disclosure any of the Records which are 
exempt from disclosure under Section 87 of the Public Officers Law (the “Statute”) provided that:  
(i) the Contractor shall timely inform the Subrecipient and DHSES, in writing, that said records 
should not be disclosed; and (ii) said records shall be sufficiently identified; and (iii) designation 
of said records as exempt under the Statute is reasonable.  Nothing contained herein shall diminish, 
or in any way adversely affect, the Subrecipient’s or DHSES’s right to discovery in any pending 
or future litigation.The Contractor shall complete and submit all reports, in such form and 
according to such schedule, as may be required by the Subrecipient and DHSES.  The Contractor 
shall cooperate with all Subrecipient and DHSES efforts to comply with FEMA requirements and 
regulations pertaining to reporting, including but not limited to 44 C.F.R. Part 13 (October 1, 2012) 
and 44 C.F.R. Part 206 (October 1, 2012). 

6. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT.   
Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work 
shall provide for the rights of the federal government, DHSES, and the Subrecipient in any 
resulting invention in accordance with 37 C.F.R. Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 299



4 

Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and 
Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by FEMA. 

7. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION.  This contract is a covered transaction for purposes 
of 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000. As such the Contractor is required to verify that 
none of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 
2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 
C.F.R. § 180.935). The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. 
Part 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any 
lower tier covered transaction (e.g., subcontract) it enters into. This certification is a material 
representation of fact relied upon by Subrecipient. If it is later determined that the contractor did 
not comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, subpart C, in addition to 
remedies available to DHSES and Subrecipient, the Federal Government may pursue available 
remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.  The bidder or proposer 
agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, 
subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from 
this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance 
in its lower tier covered transactions. 

8. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.   The Contractor shall notify the Subrecipient as soon as 
possible if this contract or any aspect related to the anticipated work under this contract raises an 
actual or potential conflict of interest (as described in 2 C.F.R. Part 200).  The Contractor shall 
explain the actual or potential conflict in writing in sufficient detail so that the Subrecipient is able 
to assess such actual or potential conflict.  The Contractor shall provide the Subrecipient any 
additional information necessary for the Subrecipient to fully assess and address such actual or 
potential conflict of interest.  The Contractor shall accept any reasonable conflict mitigation 
strategy employed by the Subrecipient, including but not limited to the use of an independent 
subcontractor(s) to perform the portion of work that gives rise to the actual or potential conflict.  
If requested by DHSES, Contractor shall sign a certification affirming that it has no conflict of 
interest arising from performance of work on a specific task. 

9. SUBCONTRACTING.  The Contractor represents to the Subrecipient that all work shall be 
performed by personnel experienced in the appropriate and applicable profession and areas of 
expertise, taking into account the nature of the work to be performed under this contract.  The 
Contractor will include these Required Federal Provisions in every subcontract issued by it so that 
such provisions will be binding upon each of its subcontractors as well as the requirement to flow 
down such terms to all lower-tiered subcontractors. 

10. ASSIGNABILITY.   The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this contract, and shall 
not transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without prior written 
approval of the Subrecipient. 

11. INDEMNIFICATION.   The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
Subrecipient, DHSES, and their agents and employees from and against any and all claims, actions, 
suits, charges, and judgments arising from or related to the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
Contractor in the performance of the services called for in this contract. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 300



5 

12. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE (Applicable to contracts exceeding $10,000).   If, through 
any cause, the Contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner his obligations under 
this contract, or if the Contractor shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of 
this contract, the Subrecipient shall thereupon have the right to terminate this contract by giving 
written notice to the Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at 
least five (5) days before the effective date of such termination.  In such event, all finished or 
unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports 
prepared by the Contractor under this contract shall, at the option of the Subrecipient, become the 
Subrecipient’s property and the Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable 
compensation for any work satisfactorily completed hereunder.  Notwithstanding the above, the 
Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the Subrecipient for damages sustained by the 
Subrecipient by virtue of any breach of the contract by the Contractor, and the Subrecipient may 
withhold any payments to the Contractor for the purpose of set-off until such time as the exact 
amount of damages due the Subrecipient from the Contractor is determined. 

13. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE (Applicable to contracts exceeding $10,000).
The Subrecipient may terminate this contract at any time by giving at least ten (10) days’ notice in 
writing to the Contractor.  If the contract is terminated by the Subrecipient as provided herein, the 
Contractor will be paid for the time provided and expenses incurred up to the termination date. 

14. LOBBYING (Applicable to contracts exceeding $100,000).   The Contractor certifies, to 
the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

A. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the 
making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 
the Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 

C. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all Subrecipients shall certify 
and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 301



6 

or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

15. BONDING REQUIREMENTS (Applicable to construction and facility improvement 
contracts exceeding $100,000).   The Contractor shall comply with New York State bonding 
requirements, unless they have not been approved by FEMA, in which case the Contractor shall 
comply with the following minimum bonding requirements: 

A. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price. The “bid 
guarantee” shall consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other 
negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon 
acceptance of his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the 
time specified. 

B. A performance bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A 
“performance bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of 
all the Contractor’s obligations under such contract. 

C. A payment bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A 
“payment bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as 
required by law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work 
provided for in the contract. 

16. AUDIT / ACCESS TO RECORDS.   The Subrecipient, DHSES, FEMA, the Comptroller 
General of the United States, New York State Office of State Comptroller, pertinent federal 
agencies, and other designated entities, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have, 
at any time and from time to time during normal business hours, access to any work product, books, 
documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are related to this contract, for the purpose 
of inspection, audits, examinations, and making excerpts, copies and transcriptions. Such audits 
may include review of the Contractor's accounting, financial, and reporting practices to determine 
compliance with the Contract and reporting requirements; maintenance of accurate and reliable 
original accounting records in accordance with governmental accounting standards as well as 
generally accepted accounting principles; and specific compliance with allowable cost and 
expenditure documentation standards prescribed by applicable federal, State, and DHSES 
guidelines. 

17. MAINTENANCE/RETENTION OF RECORDS.  Contractor shall retain all financial 
records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to the Agreement 
(collectively, the “Records”) (i) for three (3) years from the time of closeout of FEMA’s grant to 
the State or for the period provided in  2 C.F.R. Part 200, or (ii) for six (6) years after the closeout 
of the Agreement, or, as long as required by state law, whichever may be longer. 

18. COPYRIGHT.  Any creative or literary work developed or commissioned by the Contractor 
with grant support provided by DHSES shall become the property of DHSES, entitling DHSES 
to assert a copyright therein, unless the parties have expressly agreed otherwise in a written 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 302



7 

instrument signed by them. 

A. If DHSES shares its right to copyright such work with the Contractor, DHSES reserves a 
royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, 
and to authorize others to use: (a) the copyright in any work developed under a grant, sub-
grant, or contract under a grant or sub-grant; and (b) any rights of copyright to which a 
Contractor, sub-Contractor, or a contractor purchases ownership with grant support. 

B. If the grant support provided by DHSES is federally-sponsored, the federal awarding 
agency also reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, 
publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use: (a) the copyright in any work 
developed under a grant, sub-grant or contract under a grant or sub-grant; and (b) any 
rights of copyright to which a Contractor, sub-Contractor, or a contractor purchases 
ownership with such grant support. 

C. The Contractor shall submit one copy of all reports and publications resulting from this 
Contract to DHSES within thirty (30) calendar days of completion. Any document 
generated pursuant to this grant must contain the following language: 

“This project was supported by a grant administered by the New York State Division of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Services and the U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security. Points of view in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily 
represent the official position or policies of the New York State Division of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Services or the U.S. Department of Homeland Security.” 

CIVIL RIGHTS AND DIVERSITY PROVISIONS 

19. SMALL AND MINORITY FIRMS, WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, AND 
LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS.   The Contractor will comply with the small and minority 
firms, women’s business enterprise, and labor surplus area requirements as set forth at 2 C.F.R. 
Part 200. Contractor will use its best efforts to afford small businesses, minority business 
enterprises, and women’s business enterprises the maximum practicable opportunity to participate 
in the performance of the contract. As used in these Required Federal Provisions, the terms “small 
business” means a business that meets the criteria set forth in Section 3(a) of the Small Business 
Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. § 632), and “minority and women’s business enterprise” means a 
business at least fifty-one (51) percent owned and controlled by minority group members or 
women. For the purpose of this definition, “minority group members” are Afro-Americans, 
Spanish-speaking, Spanish surnamed, or Spanish-heritage Americans, Asian-Americans, and 
American Indians. Subrecipient may rely on written representations by businesses regarding their 
status as minority and female business enterprises in lieu of an independent investigation. 

The Contractor will take necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority firms, women’s 
business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used in subcontracting when possible.  Steps 
include: 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 303



8 

A. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises on 
solicitation lists; 

B. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises are 
solicited whenever they are potential sources; 

C. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities 
to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and women’s business 
enterprises; 

D. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage 
participation by small and minority business, and women’s business enterprises; and 

E. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the Minority 
Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 

20. TITLES VI AND VIII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 AND EXECUTIVE 
ORDER 11063.   The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Titles VI and VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and with Executive Order 11063.  No person shall, on the grounds of 
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, 
be discriminated against in the sale, rental, or financing of dwellings. To the extent that any such 
sale, lease or other transfer of land shall occur, Contractor, in undertaking its obligation to carry 
out the Program assisted hereunder, will not itself so discriminate.  

21. SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 AND THE AMERICANS 
WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990.   The Contractor shall comply with section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794), as amended, and any applicable regulations, and 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 126), as amended, and any 
applicable regulations.  The Contractor agrees that no qualified individual with handicaps shall, 
solely on the basis of handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity that receives federal 
financial assistance from FEMA. 

22. AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975.   The Contractor shall comply with the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), as amended, and any applicable regulations.  
No person in the United States shall, on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity receiving 
federal financial assistance. 

23. NONDISCRIMINATION.  The Contractor shall comply with other federal and state 
statutory, regulatory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions. During the performance of 
this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows: 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 304



9 

A. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, 
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in 
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 
provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

B. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
or national origin. 

C. The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired 
about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another 
employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee 
who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part 
of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other 
employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such 
information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in 
furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation 
conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal duty to furnish 
information. 

D. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be 
provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's 
commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment. 

E. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

F. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

G. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 305



10 

for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance 
with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such 
other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or 
as otherwise provided by law. 

H. The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph 
(A) and the provisions of paragraphs (A) through (H) in every subcontract or purchase 
order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 
pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take 
such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency 
may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 
noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or 
is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by 
the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

With respect to construction contracts and subcontracts exceeding $10,000, The Contractor shall 
comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal Employment 
Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967; Executive Order 11478 
of August 8, 1969; Executive Order 12107 of December 28, 1978; Executive Order 12086 of 
October 5, 1978; and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Part 60). 
Subrecipient shall include the following Specifications, which are required pursuant to 41 C.F.R. 
60-4.3 in all federally assisted contracts and subcontracts. For the purposes of the Equal 
Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications and Clause below, the term “Construction 
Work” means the construction, rehabilitation, alteration, conversion, extension, demolition or 
repair of buildings, highways, or other changes or improvements to real property, including 
facilities providing utility services. The term also includes the supervision, inspection, and other 
onsite functions incidental to the actual construction. 

Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract 
Specifications for Contracts and Subcontracts in Excess of $10,000. (Federal Notice 
Required by 41 C.F.R. 60-4.3) 

1. As used in these specifications: 

a. “Covered area” means the geographical area described in the solicitation from 
which this contract resulted; 

b. “Director” means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, 
United States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates 
authority; 

c. “Employer identification number” means the Federal Social Security number used 
on the Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 306



11 

d. “Minority” includes: 
(i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups 

not of Hispanic origin); 
(ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South 

American or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race); 
(iii) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original 

peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); 
and 

(iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the 
original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through 
membership and participation or community identification). 

2. Whenever the contractor or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of 
the work involving any Construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract 
in excess of $10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains 
the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the 
solicitations from which this Agreement resulted. 

3. If the contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 C.F.R. § 60-4.5) in a Hometown 
Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or 
through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area 
(including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades 
which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their 
participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan.  Each 
contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to 
comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to 
achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees.  The overall good 
faith performance by other contractors or subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan 
does not excuse any covered contractor’s or subcontractor’s failure to take good faith 
efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables. 

4. The contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided 
in paragraphs 7 a through p of these specifications.  The goals set forth in the solicitation 
from which this Agreement resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of 
employment and training of minority and female utilization the contractor should 
reasonably be able to achieve in each Construction trade in which it has employees in the 
covered area.  Covered Construction contractors performing Construction Work in 
geographical areas where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted Construction 
contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical areas 
where the work is being performed.  Goals are published periodically in the Federal 
Register in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement contracting officers.  
The contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in 
each craft during the period specified. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 307



12 

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a 
union with whom the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either 
minorities or women shall excuse the contractor’s obligations under these specifications, 
Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. 

6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted 
in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the contractor 
during the training period, and the contractor must have made a commitment to employ the 
apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of 
employment opportunities.  Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs 
approved by the U.S. Department of Labor. 

7. The contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment 
opportunity.  The evaluation of the contractor’s compliance with these specifications shall 
be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions.  The contractor shall 
document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as 
extensive as the following: 

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and 
coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the contractor’s employees are assigned 
to work.  The contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each 
Construction project.  The contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, 
superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the 
contractor’s obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to 
minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities. 
b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, 
provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community 
organizations when the contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, 
and maintain a record of the organization’s responses. 
c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each 
minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, 
a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect 
to each such individual.  If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and 
was not referred back to the contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the 
contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefor, along with 
whatever additional actions the contractor may have taken. 
d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions 
with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the 
contractor a minority person or woman sent by the contractor, or when the contractor has 
other information that the union referral process has impeded the contractor’s efforts to 
meet its obligations. 
e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs 
for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs 
and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the contractor’s employment needs, 
especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor.  The contractor 
shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7b above. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 308



13 

f. Disseminate the contractor’s EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions 
and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the contractor in 
meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining 
agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific 
review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female 
employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards 
accessible to all employees at each location where Construction Work is performed. 
g. Review, at least annually, the company’s EEO policy and affirmative action 
obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for 
hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific 
review of these items with on-site supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General 
Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of Construction Work at any job site.  A written record 
shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons 
attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter. 
h. Disseminate the contractor’s EEO policy externally by including it in any 
advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and 
providing written notification to and discussing the contractor’s EEO policy with other 
contractors and subcontractors with whom the contractor does or anticipates doing 
business. 
i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and 
community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority 
and female recruitment and training organizations serving the contractor’s recruitment area 
and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of 
applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the contractor 
shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, 
screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process. 
j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons 
and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment 
to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a contractor’s work 
force. 
k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to 
do so under 41 C.F.R. Part 60-3. 
l. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and 
female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or 
to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities. 
m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other 
personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all 
personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the 
contractor’s obligations under these specifications are being carried out. 
n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that 
separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure 
privacy between the sexes. 
o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from 
minority and female Construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of 
solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 309



14 

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor’s adherence to and 
performance under the Contractor’s EEO policies and affirmative action obligations. 

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in 
fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through p).  The efforts of 
a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar 
group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling 
any one or more of its obligations under 7a through p of these specifications provided that 
the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group 
has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures 
that the concrete benefits of the Program are reflected in the contractor’s minority and 
female work force participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and 
timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness 
of actions taken on behalf of the contractor.  The obligation to comply, however, is the 
contractor’s and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for 
the contractor’s noncompliance. 

9. Goals for minorities and women have been established. The contractor, however, 
is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all 
minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority.  
Consequently, the contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular 
group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the 
contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the contractor may be in violation 
of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized). 

10. The contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards 
to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

11. The contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred 
from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246 or suspended or is 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs. 

12. The contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these 
specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and 
cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive 
Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs.  Any contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and 
penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as 
amended. 

13. The contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall 
implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards 
prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from 
its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity.  If the contractor fails to comply with 
the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these 
specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 C.F.R. § 60-4.8. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 310



15 

14. The contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment 
related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit 
reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep 
records.  Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone 
numbers, Construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when 
assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, 
helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, 
rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed.  Records shall be maintained 
in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing 
records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate 
records. 

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of 
other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of 
requirements for hiring of local or other areas residents.

24. CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES (Applicable to construction 
contracts exceeding $10,000).   The Contractor certifies that it does not maintain or provide for 
its establishments, and that it does not permit employees to perform their services at any location, 
under its control, where segregated facilities are maintained.  It certifies further that it will not 
maintain or provide for employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and it will 
not permit employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated 
facilities are maintained.  The Contractor agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of 
the nondiscrimination clause of this contract. 

As used in this certification, the term “segregated facilities” means any waiting rooms, work areas, 
rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms, and 
other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, 
transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit 
directive or are, in fact, segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or national origin because 
of habit, local custom, or any other reason. 

The Contractor further agrees that (except where it has obtained for specific time periods) it will 
obtain identical certification from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts 
exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the nondiscrimination clause; that 
it will retain such certifications in its files; and that it will forward the preceding notice to such 
proposed subcontractors (except where proposed subcontractors have submitted identical 
certifications for specific time periods). 

25. SECTION 503 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 (Applicable to contracts 
exceeding $10,000).   The Contractor shall comply with section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 (29 U.S.C. § 793), as amended, and any applicable regulations. 

A. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for which the employee 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 311



16 

or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action 
to employ, advance in employment and otherwise treat qualified individuals with 
disabilities without discrimination based on their physical or mental disability in all 
employment practices, including the following:  

1. Recruitment, advertising, and job application procedures;  
2. Hiring, upgrading, promotion, award of tenure, demotion, transfer, layoff, 

termination, right of return from layoff and rehiring;  
3. Rates of pay or any other form of compensation and changes in compensation;  
4. Job assignments, job classifications, organizational structures, position 

descriptions, lines of progression, and seniority lists;  
5. Leaves of absence, sick leave, or any other leave;  
6. Fringe benefits available by virtue of employment, whether or not administered by 

the Contractor;  
7. Selection and financial support for training, including apprenticeship, professional 

meetings, conferences, and other related activities, and selection for leaves of 
absence to pursue training;  

8. Activities sponsored by the Contractor including social or recreational programs; 
and  

9. Any other term, condition, or privilege of employment.  

B. The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the act.  

C. In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, actions 
for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with the rules, regulations, and relevant 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the act.  

D. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 
for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the Deputy Assistant Secretary for 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs, provided by or through the contracting officer. 
Such notices shall state the rights of applicants and employees as well as the Contractor’s 
obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment 
qualified employees and applicants with disabilities. The Contractor must ensure that 
applicants and employees with disabilities are informed of the contents of the notice (e.g., 
the Contractor may have the notice read to a visually disabled individual, or may lower the 
posted notice so that it might be read by a person in a wheelchair).  

E. The Contractor will notify each labor organization or representative of workers with which 
it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the Contractor 
is bound by the terms of section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and is 
committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals 
with physical or mental disabilities.  

F. The Contractor will include the provisions of this clause in every subcontract or purchase 
order in excess of $10,000, unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 312



17 

Secretary issued pursuant to section 503 of the Act, as amended, so that such provisions 
will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action 
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Deputy Assistant Secretary for 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs may direct to enforce such provisions, including 
action for noncompliance. 

LABOR PROVISIONS 

26. COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT (Applicable to all construction or repair 
contracts).   Salaries of personnel performing work under this contract shall be paid 
unconditionally and not less often than once a month without payroll deduction or rebate on any 
account except only such payroll deductions as are mandatory by law or permitted by the 
applicable regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to the Copeland “Anti-Kickback 
Act” of June 13, 1934 (48 Stat. 948; 62 Stat. 740; 63 Stat. 108; 18 U.S.C. § 874; and 40 U.S.C. § 
276c).  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable “Anti-Kickback” regulations and shall 
insert appropriate provisions in all subcontracts covering work under this contract to ensure 
compliance by subcontractors with such regulations, and shall be responsible for the submission 
of affidavits required of subcontractors thereunder except as the Secretary of Labor may 
specifically provide for variations of or exemptions from the requirements thereof. 

27. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (Applicable to 
construction contracts exceeding $2,000 and contracts exceeding $2,500 that involve the 
employment of mechanics or laborers).   The Contractor shall comply with Sections 103 and 
107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 327-330) as supplemented 
by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5).  All laborers and mechanics employed by 
contractors or subcontractors shall receive overtime compensation in accordance with and subject 
to the provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, and the contractors and 
subcontractors shall comply with all regulations issued pursuant to that act and with other 
applicable federal laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards. 

28. DAVIS-BACON ACT AND OTHER LABOR COMPLIANCE (Applicable to 
construction contracts exceeding $2,000 when required by federal program legislation).    The 
Contractor shall comply with the Davis Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 276a to 276a-7) as supplemented 
by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5), and all other applicable federal, state, and 
local laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards insofar as they apply to the performance 
of this agreement. 

All laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or subcontractors, including employees of 
other governments, on construction work assisted under this contract, and subject to the provisions 
of the Federal acts and regulations listed in this paragraph, shall be paid wages at rates not less 
than those prevailing on similar construction in the locality as determined by the Secretary of Labor 
in accordance with the Davis Bacon Act. The Contractor shall maintain documentation that 
demonstrates compliance with hour and wage requirements of this part. Such documentation shall 
be made available to Subrecipient and DHSES for review upon request. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 313



18 

If Contractor is engaged under a contract in excess of $2,000 for construction, renovation, or repair 
work financed in whole or in part with assistance provided by DHSES, Contractor agrees, except 
with respect to the rehabilitation or construction of residential property containing less than eight 
(8) units, to comply and to cause all subcontractors engaged under such contracts to comply with 
federal requirements adopted by DHSES pertaining to such contracts and with the applicable 
requirements of the Department of Labor under 29 C.F.R. Parts 1, 3, 5, and 7 governing the 
payment of wages and ratio of apprentices and trainees to journey workers; provided that, if wage 
rates higher than those required under the regulations are imposed by state or local law, nothing 
hereunder is to relieve Contractor of its obligation, if any, to require payment of the higher wage. 
Contractor shall cause or require to be inserted in full, in all such contracts subject to such 
regulations, provisions meeting the requirements of this paragraph. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISIONS 

29. ENERGY EFFICIENCY.   The Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and 
policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the New York State energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Public Law 
94-163). 

30. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL.   Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.322, Contractor must comply 
with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act (codified at 42 U.S.C. § 6962). The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring 
only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. 
Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with 
maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds 
$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; 
procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource 
recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered 
materials identified in the EPA guidelines. 

31. CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS.

The Contractor and all subcontractors agree to comply with the following requirements (and their 
state and/or local counterparts or analogues, if any) insofar as they apply to the performance of 
this Agreement as any of the following may hereinafter be amended, superseded, replaced, or 
modified: 

A. Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26951, 3 C.F.R., 
1977 Comp., p. 117, as interpreted at 24 C.F.R. Part 55), and Executive Order 11990, 
Protection of Wetlands, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26961, 3 C.F.R., 1977 Comp., p. 121);  

B. Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1451 et seq.); 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 314



19 

C. Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 201, 300(f) et seq., and 21 U.S.C. § 349, as 
amended), and EPA regulations for Sole Source Aquifers (40 C.F.R. Part 149); 

D. Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.); 

E. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1271 et seq.); 

F. Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.); 

G. EPA regulations for Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal 
Implementation Plans (40 C.F.R. Parts 6, 51, and 93); 

H. Farmland Protection Policy Act of 1981 (7 U.S.C. § 4201 et seq.), and USDA regulations 
at 7 C.F.R. Part 658; 

I. FEMA criteria and environmental policy; 

J. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, Feb. 11, 1994 (59 FR 7629, 3 C.F.R., 1994 
Comp. p. 859); 

K. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 4001-4128); 

L. National Flood Insurance Reform Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. § 5154a);  

M. Coastal Barrier Resources Act, as amended by the Coastal Barrier Improvement Act of 
1990 (16 U.S.C. § 3501);  

N. Runway Clear Zone regulations (24 C.F.R. Part 51);  

O. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251, et seq.), commonly 
known as the Clean Water Act, and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder;  

P. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) regulations at 40 C.F.R Part 50, as amended; 

Q. All other applicable environmental laws that may exist now or in the future.  

Further, Contractor shall abide by any conditions or requirements set forth in any environmental 
review performed by FEMA in furtherance of implementing the National Environmental Policy 
Act. 

In addition to the foregoing requirements, all nonexempt contractors and subcontractors shall 
furnish to the Subrecipient, the following: 

A. A stipulation by the Contractor or subcontractors, that any facility to be utilized in the 
performance of any nonexempt contract or subcontract, is not listed on the Excluded Party 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 315



20 

Listing System pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 32 or on the List of Violating Facilities issued 
by the EPA pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 15, as amended. 

B. Agreement by the Contractor to comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the 
Clean Air Act, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 1857 c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act, as amended, (33 U.S.C. § 1318) relating to inspection, monitoring, 
entry, reports and information, as well as all other requirements specified in said Section 
114 and Section 308, and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder. 

C. A stipulation that as a condition for the award of the contract, prompt notice will be given 
of any notification received from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, EPA, indicating 
that a facility utilized, or to be utilized for the contract, is under consideration to be listed 
on the Excluded Party Listing System or the EPA List of Violating Facilities. 

D. Agreement by the Contractor that he will include, or cause to be included, the criteria and 

requirements in paragraphs A through D of this section in every nonexempt subcontract 

and requiring that the Contractor will take such action as the government may direct as a 

means of enforcing such provisions. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 316



<bageTVg Gh`UXe7 "SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 
ITZX . bY .) FTfgXe <bageTVg Ybe @eTagf L\ZaTgheX ITZX 

BG PBMG>LL MA>K>H?) g[X cTeg\Xf [XeXgb [TiX XkXVhgXW be TccebiXW g[\f FTfgXe <bageTVg ba g[X WTgXf UX_bj 
g[X\e f\ZaTgheXf+ 

<HGMK9<MHK7 

 ;l7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 
Ie\agXW GT`X 

M\g_X7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

=TgX7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

LM9M> 9@>G<R7 

 ;l7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

Ie\agXW GT`X 

M\g_X7

=TgX7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

LM9M> H? G>P RHKD 

     <bhagl bYSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

     Ha g[X SSS WTl bY SSSSSSSSSS) SSSS) UXYbeX `X cXefbaT__l TccXTeXWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS) gb `X 
^abja) j[b UX\aZ Ul `X Wh_l fjbea) W\W WXcbfX TaW fTl g[Tg [X,f[X eXf\WXf Tg SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS) g[Tg 
[X,f[X \f g[X SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS bY g[X SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS) g[X VbageTVgbe 
WXfVe\UXW [XeX\a j[\V[ XkXVhgXW g[X YbeXZb\aZ \afgeh`Xag8 TaW g[Tg [X,f[X f\ZaXW [\f,[Xe aT`X g[XeXgb Tf 
Thg[be\mXW Ul g[X VbageTVgbe aT`XW ba g[X YTVX cTZX bY g[\f FTfgXe <bageTVg+ 

'GbgTel(SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

9MMHKG>R @>G>K9EsL LB@G9MNK>    LM9M> <HFIMKHEE>KsL LB@G9MNK> 

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 
Ie\agXW GT`X                Ie\agXW GT`X 

M\g_X7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS M\g_X7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

=TgX7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS =TgX7SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS 

Pgy![qtm!Uvcvg!Fkxkukqp!qh!Jqogncpf!Ugewtkv{!cpf!

Gogtigpe{!Ugtxkegu

Cppg!Dkpm-!Fgrwv{!Eqookuukqpgt

Cnvgtpcvkxg!Iqxgtpqt(u!Cwvjqtk|gf!Tgrtgugpvcvkxg

E111915

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 317



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Storage Capacity Study 
 

for the 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
 
 

  

 
 
 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

 

 

 

May 2018 
Revised June 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 318



 

NFWB – Tank Study 1 June 2021 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 PAGE 
1.0 INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS ............................................................................................. 2 

3.0 NEEDS ANALYSIS ....................................................................................................... 5 

4.0 PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.................................................................................... 7 

5.0 RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS ....................................................................... 11 

6.0 CONCLUSION ............................................................................................................. 11 

 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
APPENDIX A ANALYSIS OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR MIDSIZE AND 

LARGE CITIES WITH DECLINING POPULATIONS 
APPENDIX B EXISTING TANK DRAWINGS 
APPENDIX C EXISTING SYSTEM LAYOUT  
APPENDIX D  WATER MODEL PRESSURES 
APPENDIX E  NIAGARA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT LETTER 
APPENDIX F  PROBABLE COST ESTIMATES 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 319



 

NFWB – Tank Study 2 June 2021 

1.0  Introduction 

 
In June 2017 the American Water Works Association (AWWA) mentioned the City of 
Niagara Falls in their article Analysis of Water Infrastructure for Midsize and Large 

Cities with Declining Populations (included in Appendix A). The article states: 
  

“Older industrial cities that have experienced steady, long-term population 
declines and job losses, called “legacy cities,” also have diminished revenues and 
less ability to provide services such as for drinking water and wastewater 
(Mallach & Brachman 2013, 110th American Assembly 2011). Many also face 
water and wastewater infrastructure problems, including the presence of lead 
pipes in drinking water service lines.” 
 

Despite the decreasing population and loss of industry, insufficient storage for the 
purposes of fire flow and everyday use is one of the main water infrastructure problems 
faced in Niagara Falls. This report will describe Niagara Falls’ existing water system, 
analyze the need for additional storage, and evaluate multiple alternatives to increase the 
City’s storage capacity. 

 

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 

2.1 General System Description 

The Niagara Falls Water Board (NFWB) assumed control of the City’s water system in 
1990 from the City of Niagara Falls. The system contains a water treatment plant, a 2 
million-gallon (mg) storage tank and roughly 260 miles of water main. Approximately 
56,000 residents along with 12 to 14 million visitors brought in by the City’s tourism 
industry are served by the system. Along with the residential users, there are also some 
major industrial users. 
 

2.2 Surface Supply 

Niagara Falls’ water system contains a conventional water treatment plant that draws its 
water from the Upper Niagara River. After entering the plant through the intake tunnel, 
the raw water passes through 0.39 mg pretreatment tanks, 0.84 mg flocculation tanks, 
1.23 mg settling tanks, 0.81 mg filters, and 1.42 mg contact tanks. Finished water is 
stored in a 1.31 mg clear well before being discharged to the system. A hydraulic profile 
of the water plant and 56th street tank is provided in Appendix B.  
 
In 2019, the water plant produced 7.8 billion gallons of water. The average daily 
production was 21.5 million gallons per day (mgd) and the highest single day was 25.6 
million gallons (mg). Table 2.1 shows the totals for water plant production since 2008.     
 
 
 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 320



 

NFWB – Tank Study 3 June 2021 

 
Table 2.1 Historical Water Plant Production 

 
YEAR TOTAL PRODUCED (gal) DAILY AVERAGE (mgd) 
2008 6,000,000,000 16.44 
2009 6,200,000,000 16.99 
2010 6,600,000,000 18.08 
2011 6,700,000,000 18.36 
2012 6,700,000,000 18.36 
2013 6,500,000,000 17.81 
2014 7,800,000,000 21.37 
2015 7,800,000,000 21.37 
2016 7,400,000,000 20.27 
2017 7,300,000,000 20.00 
2018 7,800,000,000 21.37 
2019 7,800,000,000 21.37 

 
After the clear well, water is pumped to a 2 mg storage tank on 56th Street. The NFWB 
operates 2 larger pumps and 3 smaller pumps. The larger pumps are rated 700 horsepow-
er, 1,185 rpm, and operate at 10,760 gpm at 205 feet total dynamic head (TDH). The 
smaller pumps are rated 300 horsepower, 1,790 rpm, and operate at 4,510 gpm at 205 feet 
TDH. Under normal conditions, one larger pump runs at all times. An operator will turn 
on one or more smaller pumps to fill the tank once it reaches its low water level. 
 

2.3 Historical Water Consumption 

 

According to the Annual Drinking Water Quality Report for 2019 issued by the NFWB, 
2.3 billion gallons of metered water were delivered to customers, leaving 5.5 billion 
gallons of water unaccounted for. Possible sources of unaccounted water include: water 
main flushing, meter inaccuracies, illegal consumption, hydrant usage, authorized 
unmetered usage, and underground pipe leakage. Table 2.2 compares the NFWB 
percentage of unaccounted for water to other local municipalities 
 

Table 2.2 Percent Unaccounted Water 

 
Municipality % Unaccounted Water 

Niagara Falls Water Board 71 
Erie County Water Authority 30 
Town of Tonawanda Water 42 

Grand Island Water 32.6 
City of Buffalo 35-40 

 

 
 
 
 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 321



 

NFWB – Tank Study 4 June 2021 

 
The NFWB is committed decreasing the amount of unaccounted water in their system 
through leak repair, hydrant replacement, meter replacement and calibration, and 
elimination of illegal connections. For this report, it is assumed that these efforts will 
reduce the quantity of unaccounted water to 35% of the total amount of water produced. 
Adding metered usage and 35% unaccounted water yields a total consumption of 3.1 
billion gallons a year, which converts to 8.5 mgd.  
 

2.4 Water Distribution System 

 

As stated earlier, Niagara Falls contains approximately 260 miles of water main that 
ranges in size from 4 inch to 42 inch. Some parts of the system are estimated to be over 
100 years old. The system is constructed of cast iron, ductile iron, concrete and PVC 
pipe. A layout of the existing system can be found in Appendix C. There are 
approximately 2,200 hydrants with associated system valves. Residents and businesses 
are served through roughly 18,000 service connections ranging in size from 5/8 inch to 
10 inch. Table 2.3 shows the breakdown of main size and pipe material within the system 
and Table 2.4 shows the approximate age distribution of pipe. 
 

Table 2.3 Main Size and Material Breakdown 

 
Water Main  Material Type Length (ft) 

6-inch  PVC 1,500 
8-inch  PVC  2,610 
10-inch  PVC  700 
12-inch  Asbestos Cement 5,500 
20-inch  RCPP  7,800 
24-inch  RCPP  5,600 
30-inch  RCPP  13,370 
36-inch  RCPP  16,810 
42-inch  RCPP  7,850 
2-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 700 
4-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 95,030 
6-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 596,540 
8-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 239,680 
10-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 121,455 
12-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 102,045 
14-inch  HDPE 6,540 
16-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 59,660 
20-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 46,730 
24-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 26,230 

30-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron       9,060 
  Total: 1,365,410 

 

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 322



 

NFWB – Tank Study 5 June 2021 

 

Table 2.4 Age Distribution of Pipe 

   
Age Feet Percent 

1890-1910 68,270 5% 
1911-1930 518,856 38% 
1931-1950 286,736 21% 
1951-1970 245,774 18% 
1971-1990 150,195 11% 
1991-2013    95,579     7% 

Total 1,365,410 100% 

 

2.5 Water System Storage 

 
The 2 mg storage tank on 56th Street is 215’ tall, elevated metal tank with a diameter of 
84’ and was built in 1996. The typical operating range for the tank is listed below: 
  
 High Water Level (HWL): 774.5’ 
 Low Water Level (LWL): 754.5’ 
 
There is also a 1.3 mg clearwell at the Water Treatment Plant. 
 
A site plan and elevation view of the 56th Street Tank and clearwell is included in 
Appendix B. 
 
The system also contains an abandoned 2 mg Water Tank on Beech Avenue. The Beech 
Avenue tank was built in 1947 and is a multi-leg style elevated tank. The tank is 150’ tall 
with an operating range as follows: 
 
 HWL: 735’ 
 LWL: 700.5’ 
 
Due to the 40’ difference in water levels, the Beech Avenue tank was abandoned after 
completion of the 56th Street tank. A site plan and elevation view of the Beech Avenue 
tank is also included in Appendix B.  
 

 

3.0 NEEDS ANALYSIS 
 
3.1 Pressure Requirements 

 
According to Recommended Standards for Water Works (also known as 10 State 
Standards), a water system should have a minimum working pressure of 35 psi and a 
normal working pressure between 60 and 80 psi. Pressure for the entire water system in 
Niagara Falls is driven by the water level in the 56th Street Tank. Theoretically, the static 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 323



 

NFWB – Tank Study 6 June 2021 

pressure at the highest elevation in the system, 635 feet, is 52 psi at LWL and the static 
pressure at the lowest point in the system, 542 feet, is 100 psi at HWL.  
 
Due to the age of the system, there is a large amount of head loss caused by 
tuberculation, leaks and partially closed valves. Areas in the system further away from 
the 56th Street Tank, mainly in the northern and western portions of the city, experience 
pressures as low as 35 PSI in LWL conditions according to our water model.  A graphic 
showing the modeled pressures throughout the system is included in Appendix D. 
 
3.2 Storage Requirements 

 
Based on 10 State Standards, a water system should have sufficient storage for one 
average day’s consumption and fire flow as recommended by the appropriate state 
Insurance Services Office (ISO). A fire flow scenario of 2,500 gpm for 2 hours which 
totals 300,000 gallons is assumed for this report.  
 
 As mentioned earlier, an average daily consumption of 8.5 mgd is assumed for this 
report. Combining the average daily consumption of 8.5 mg and a fire flow of 300,000 
gallons yields a total storage requirement of 8.8 mg. With the current storage of 3.3 mg, 
storage is under capacity by 5.5 mg. In addition to the current storage of 3.3 mg, the 
Niagara County Water District (NCWD) can provide water to the Niagara Falls system 
through an interconnection. For an extended draw, the NCWD can provide 8-10 mgd 
during the winter and 4-6 mgd during the summer. Taking this into consideration and 
conservatively assuming the NCWD can provide 4 mgd, the Niagara Falls systems is still 
under capacity by 1.5 mg. A letter for the NCWD detailing the amount of water they can 
supply the Niagara Falls system is included in Appendix E.. 
  

 3.3 Other System Considerations 
  

Since the 56th Street Tank is the only storage tank in the system, during water main 
breaks or if the 56th Street Tank were to be damaged or malfunction, the system is 
maintained through the pumps at the water plant and supplemented through the 
interconnection with the NCWD. During recent breaks, the NFWB was barely able to 
maintain sufficient pressure to avoid issuing a boil water warning.  
 
Only having one tank in the system also causes maintenance concerns. When it comes 
time to paint the inside of the 56th Street Tank, the system would need to be maintained 
by the pumps at the water plant and through the NCWD interconnection. A second tank 
in the system would provide an additional storage buffer and redundancy in case the 56th 
Street Tank was taken offline. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 324



 

NFWB – Tank Study 7 June 2021 

4.0 PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 
 

4.1 General 

The Niagara Falls water system is under the recommended 10 States Standards capacity 
by 5.5 mg. While it is not economically feasible for the NFWB to add this amount of 
storage at once, the storage capacity of Niagara Falls system needs to be increased. 
 
This section will explore the following options for the NFWB to increase system storage: 
 

  Alternative 1: No Action 
  Alternative 2A: Raise Existing Beech Avenue Tank 
  Alternative 2B: Demolish and Replace Existing Beech Avenue Tank 

Alternative 3: Install Additional Tank on 56th Street Tank Site 
  Alternative 4: Install New Tank on Wastewater Treatment Plant Property 
  Alternative 5: Install New Ground Storage Tanks and Packaged Pump Stations. 

 
Pressure graphics for each alternative are included in Appendix D and opinions of 
probable cost for each alternative are included in Appendix F. 
 

4.2 Alternative 1: No Action 

The first alternative is to take no action. The storage in the system remains undersized for 
daily use and fire flow. In case of damage or malfunction at the 56th Street Tank, the 
system will need to rely on the pumps at the water plant and the NCWD to maintain 
service. Also, pressure problems will persist in areas further away from the 56th Street 
Tank. Despite being the cheapest and least disruptive of the options, this alternative does 
nothing to improve the inadequacies of the system.  
  

 4.3 Alternative 2A: Raise Existing Beech Avenue Tank 

The largest concern of raising the existing tank is structural adequacy. While the existing 
foundation would likely support the downward force of 2 mg of water, it was not 
designed to handle the additional overturning seismic and wind loads caused by raising 
the tank. With the necessary rehabilitation and structural reinforcement, raising the 
existing Beech Avenue tank would be more expensive than demolishing the existing tank 
and replacing it with a new one. 

Two options exist for this alternative. Alternative 2A is to rehabilitate and raise the 
abandoned Beech Avenue tank 40’ to match the HWL of the 56th Street Tank. The 
advantage of the Beech Avenue tank site is that the NFWB already owns it and the 
infrastructure to connect the tank to the system is already installed. This eliminates 
having to purchase a new property suitable for a water tank and the cost of installing new 
watermain to connect the new tank to the system. Raising the existing tank would 
increase the storage capacity in the system and address pressure and redundancy 
concerns.  

Although the location of the Beech Avenue tank is an advantage, rehabilitation of the 
existing tank and raising it to the correct hydraulic grade will cost a substantial amount. 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 325



 

NFWB – Tank Study 8 June 2021 

The Beech Avenue tank has not been in service since the 56th Street tank was installed in 
1996 and has sat abandoned with little to no maintenance. The tank would need to be 
repainted which likely would include the abatement of lead paint. Another thing to 
consider is water tanks typically have a service life of 75-100 years and the Beech 
Avenue tank is 73 years old as of 2020. Even with the necessary rehabilitation, the Beech 
Avenue tank would likely need to be replaced within the next 30 years. 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately 6.4 million dollars.  

   
 4.4 Alternative 2B: Demolish and Replace Existing Beech Avenue Tank 

Alternative 2B for the Beech Avenue Tank Site is to demolish the existing multi-leg tank 
and replace it with a new concrete shafted elevated tank (CET).  

Demolition of the existing tank and construction of the new tank will create some 
disturbance to the adjacent homes and school. It would be best if construction were 
scheduled while school is out of session. Lead paint is a concern with the existing tank 
and abatement would be necessary during demolition if tests reveal it is present. It would 
cost approximately $200,000 to dismantle and remove the existing tank. 

The new CET would be installed to match the hydraulic profile of the 56th Street Tank. A 
temporary pump station would be required in the base of the tank to make up for low 
pressure caused by excessive head loss in aging pipes. This pump station could be 
removed once watermain improvements are made to allow the tank to float on the 
system. Concerns for increasing pressure in old cast iron mains can be mitigated by 
installing a pressure reducing valve (PRV) at the base of the tank. This PRV can initially 
be set to match the existing system pressure and adjusted to increase pressure as desired. 
Adding 2 mg of storage to the system would decrease the deficit to 3.3 mg and provide a 
backup if something were to happen to the 56th Street Tank. An additional benefit of this 
style tank is a lower maintenance cost in the future. The concrete shaft eliminates 
approximately 50% of surface area that would need to be repainted. A lifecycle cost 
analysis of a multi-leg tank versus a CET is included in Appendix G. The cost of 
constructing a 2 mg CET is approximately 4 million dollars.  
 
This alternative is estimated to cost approximately 6.3 million dollars.  

 
4.5 Alternative 3: Install Additional Tank on 56th Street Tank Site 

A third alternative is to install an additional 2 mg tank at the 56th Street Tank site. This 
tank would also match the hydraulic profile of the existing tank. For the two tanks to 
operate identically, watermain would need to be installed so they run in parallel. 
Otherwise, one tank would fill and empty faster than the other. A CET style tank as 
mentioned in Alternative 2 is also recommended for this option. 
 
Advantages of this option include no need to demolish an existing tank and the property 
is already owned by the City of Niagara Falls and Niagara Falls Water Board. While this 
option provides additional storage, it does nothing to improve low pressures further away 
from 56th Street. Installing an additional 2 mg storage tank at the 56th Street site will have 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 326



 

NFWB – Tank Study 9 June 2021 

minimal hydraulic impact on the system. Essentially the system would operate as if there 
were a 4 mg tank at the 56th Street site instead of the existing 2 mg tank. 
 
This alternative is estimated to cost approximately 5.8 million dollars.  

 

4.6 Alternative 4A: Install New Tank on Wastewater Treatment Plant Property at 

Existing Hydraulic Grade 

Alternatives 4A, 4B and 4C all propose a new 2 mg CET style tank at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) property. Each of these alternatives will evaluate a different 
hydraulic grade for the proposed tank and the system changes required to meet that grade. 
A new tank at the WWTP would provide additional storage while also improving access 
to water in the downtown and western portions of the city.  

Alternative 4A involves installing a tank on the WWTP property at the existing hydraulic 
grade of the area. The proposed tank in this alternative would float on the system. 
According to the model, the current hydraulic grade in that area is approximately 722’, 
compared to 774.5’ at the 56th Street Tank. The lower hydraulic grade at the WWTP is 
caused by head loss leading up to and along Buffalo Avenue. For water to travel down 
Buffalo Avenue, it must first travel north in the 42” pipe that feeds the 56th Street tank.  
Near Frontier Avenue, a 24” main is tapped off the 42” pipe that then travels south and 
connects to the 36” main that runs west along Buffalo Avenue. Sheet C-07 in Appendix 
D breaks down the head loss from the 56th Street Tank to the WWTP property. 

This alternative is lower cost than the other WWTP tank alternatives because it does not 
require a pump station or watermain improvements to fill and will be less expensive due 
to the lower height of the tank. It will provide additional capacity but will not do anything 
to address areas of low pressure.   

While installing a tank at the existing hydraulic grade will be beneficial in the near future, 
those benefits may be short lived. As improvements are made, head loss in the system 
will decrease causing the hydraulic grade to increase which may lead to overflows at the 
tank proposed in this alternative. This alternative is still a viable option if major system 
improvements are not planned within the service life of this tank. 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately 5.5 million dollars.  

 

4.7 Alternative 4B: Install New Tank on Wastewater Treatment Plant Property at 

New Hydraulic Grade with Water Main Improvements 

Alternative 4B also involves installing a new tank on the WWTP property with the 
addition of watermain improvements near Buffalo Avenue and 56th Street. As mentioned 
in Alternative 4A, water must travel north towards the 56th Street Tank before it reaches 
Buffalo Avenue. The watermain improvements in this alternative propose the installation 
of a 36” watermain connecting the existing 36” main along Buffalo Avenue directly to 
the 42” main leaving the Water Treatment Plant. The proposed main would bypass the 
existing 24” main that currently feeds Buffalo Avenue and eliminate the associated head 
loss. Based on the model, the proposed improvements would allow the new tank to be 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 327



 

NFWB – Tank Study 10 June 2021 

installed at a hydraulic grade of 758’. The tank proposed in this alternative would float on 
the system but at a higher hydraulic grade than Alternative 4A. 

This alternative will help address the lack of storage capacity while also improving 
pressures in the western portion of the city. Adding storage further west along Buffalo 
Avenue also adds redundancy to the system in the event of a break in one of the 
transmission mains along Niagara Falls Boulevard. A PRV can be installed at the base of 
the tank to control pressures as desired. The proposed tank in this alternative will not 
significantly impact operations as it will float on the system. Although this alternative 
proposes a tank lower than the 56th Street tank, a substantial amount of watermain 
improvements would be necessary to reduce head loss to the point of causing overflows.  

 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately 6.0 million dollars.  

 

4.8 Alternative 4C: Install New Tank on Wastewater Treatment Plant Property with 

same Hydraulic Grade as the 56th Street Tank 

Alternative 4C proposes a new tank at the WWTP with a hydraulic grade matching the 
56th Street Tank. A pump station will be required to reach the hydraulic grade of the 56th 
Street Tank until enough water main improvements are made for the new tank to float on 
the system.  

This alternative will help address the lack of storage capacity while providing the greatest 
pressure benefit of the alternatives presented. Similar to Alternative 4B, a PRV can be 
installed at the base of the tank to match existing pressures and increase as desired. 
Adding an additional pump station will change how the system is operated. This 
alternative does not share the risk of future overflows caused by system improvements 
like Alternatives 4A and 4B. 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately 6.1 million dollars.  

 

4.9 Alternative 5A: Install Two New 4 Million Gallon Ground Storage Tanks with 

Pre-Packaged Pump Stations. Locations Possibly Beech Avenue and Possibly 

Buffalo Avenue. 

Alternative 5A proposes a two new 4-million-gallon ground storage tanks with packaged 
pump stations at each site. Potential locations could be Beech Avenue and Buffalo 
Avenue. Exact site locations can be selected using the hydraulic model and also vacant 
parcels throughout the city.  

This alternative will help address the lack of storage capacity while providing the greatest 
pressure benefit of the alternatives presented. The pump station can operate to maintain a 
selected constant discharge pressure via VFDs and discharge pressure transducers. A new 
SCADA system, with remote terminal units should also be utilized to control the stations 
remotely from the Treatment Plant. 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately 6.5 million dollars each site.  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 328



 

NFWB – Tank Study 11 June 2021 

 

 

5.0 RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS 
 

5.1 Selected Alternative 

 

Considering the system needs and the cost of each option presented in Section 4.0, it is 
recommended that Alternative 5 be selected for further development. Although it does 
not entirely satisfy the storage deficit, Alternative 5 provides 8 mg of additional storage 
and adds redundancy to the system in case of emergency. In total Alternative 5 will cost 
approximately 13 million dollars. 
 

 
 

6.0 CONCLUSION 
 

As a “legacy city”, Niagara Falls is experiencing a steady decline in population which 
negatively impacts revenue and their ability to maintain aging infrastructure. The storage 
capacity of their water system is insufficient for daily use and fire flow according to 10 
States Standards. It is recommended that the NFWB install two new ground storage tanks 
and a pre-packaged pump station at each site.  

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 329



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Delivered Water Pumping and 56th Street 
Tank Operation Report 

 

for the 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
 
 

  

 
 
 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

 

 

 

September 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 330



NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 331



 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board  1 WTP Operations Report 

September 2021  Clark Patterson Lee 

Table of Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Summary of Existing Facilities ....................................................................................................................... 2 

Analysis of System Performance ................................................................................................................... 3 

Recommendations ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

Conclusions ................................................................................................................................................... 5 

 

 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 

Attachment 1  700 Horsepower Pumps Curves  

Attachment 2  300 Horsepower Pumps Curves  

Attachment 3  56th Street Tank Details   

Attachment 4  Storage Capacity Study 

  

   

  

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 332



 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board  2 WTP Operations Report 

September 2021  Clark Patterson Lee 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The Niagara Falls Water Board (NFWB) has retained the services of Clark Patterson Lee (CPL) 

to prepare a report on the operation of the deliver water pumps and the 56th Street water elevated 

water storage tank. The NFWB wants to verify that both components are operating to maximum 

efficiency and economically to meet the system demands within the distribution system.  

 

For this, the current NFWB operation protocols for the distribution system and the plant 

production, will be reviewed. Upon review, recommended operational protocols will be 

developed for implementation. 

 

The NFWB also owns and operates sanitary sewer system with the City. This report will only 

pertain to water treatment and distribution. 

 

 

SUMMARY OF EXISTING FACILITIES 
 

The NFWB is the sole entity providing water service to properties within the City of Niagara 

Falls, NY. Associated facilities include a water treatment plant, water mains, fire hydrants, 

valves and meters. Approximately 56,000 residents are served along with 12-14 million yearly 

visitors. Initially, the City of Niagara Falls owned and operated the water system with the 

Niagara Falls Water Board, formed in the mid 1990’s to operate these services. 

 

A. Water Production System 

 

The Water Plant produced over 8.2 billion gallons of water in 2020. The daily average of water 

treated and pumped into the system was 22.6 million gallons per day. The highest single day was 

25.2 million gallons. The Water Plant draws its water from the upper Niagara River through an 

intake tunnel under the river. The Plant is conventional water treatment, coagulation, 

flocculation, sedimentation and filtration. The finished water is stored in chlorine contact tanks 

before being discharged to the system. The water is delivered through five high service pumps 

and a 48-inch discharge header. The water is pumped to the distribution system and a two-

million-gallon storage tank for distribution throughout the system. 

 

B. Distribution System 

 

The distribution system contains approximately 300 miles of water main ranging in size from 4” 

to 42”. Some parts of the system are estimated to be over 100 years old. The system is 

constructed of cast iron, ductile iron, concrete and PVC pipe. There are approximately 220 fire 

hydrants with associated system valves. The system serves 56,000 residents through 18,000 

service connections. 

The distribution system, as with most aging industrial cities, has reached most of its’ estimated 

life cycle. Many areas of the city are over 100 years old. 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 333



 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board  3 WTP Operations Report 

September 2021  Clark Patterson Lee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS OF SYSTEM PERFORMANCE 
 

A. Pumps 

 

Currently there are five (5) High Lift Pumps in service. Pumps 1 and 2 (lead pumps) are Floway 

vertical turbine pumps rated for 10,760 GPM (15 MGD) @ 205 TDH (88.75 psi). These pumps 

are two (2) stage, 700 HP@1188 RPM. They have constant speed motors. 

Pumps 3,4 and 5 (lag pumps) are Floway vertical turbine two stage pumps. They are rated for 

4510 GPM (6.4MGD) @205’ TDH (88.75 psi). The have 300 HP motors and operate at 1790 

RPM. All five pumps are original and installed in 1996. 

 

Currently two (2) pumps operate for approximately 4 hours together each day one lead pump and 

one lag pump. The lead pump runs alone approximately 20 hours/day and supplies 15 MGD. 

When both pumps run together, they supply about 22.5 MGD, depending on the water level in 

56th St tank and the system demand. The lag pump is taken offline when the tank water level hits 

53.5’ and goes back in service when the tank hits low alarm 40’ and low low alarm at 35’. 

Operating the tank level below 35’ causes problems with pressure in the system, but mostly does 

not allow the plant supply to catch up and fill the tank. 

 

B. 56th Street Water Storage Tank 

 

The 56th Street water storage tank is an elevated pedestal welded steel water tank with a fluted 

steel pedestal base. The tank is nominally rated at 2 million gallons. Calculating the operating 

volume of the tank it falls short of 2 million, approximately 1.8 million. The tank is 215’ tall and 

the tank overflow is 199’. The tank is filled from the high lift pumps at the Water Treatment 

Plant. The tank uses a single inlet/outlet pipe. This single inlet/outlet design helps to maintain an 

even pressure across the service area. Also, it acts as a buffer for surge conditions in the system. 

There are also surge arrestor valves in the water treatment plant that are designed for surges. 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 334



 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board  4 WTP Operations Report 

September 2021  Clark Patterson Lee 

The tank was designed to operate within a 20’ operating range, between 199’ and 179’. This 

translates into an 8.66 psi difference. The total volume of this range is 829,000 gallons, this 

allows for a total tank turnover of approximately 2.4 days. 

 

The tank and system are currently being operated within the design parameters. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

A. Pumps 

 

All (5) five high service pumps have been in service since the Plant was put online around 

1996.They are going on 25 years in service. Floway Pumps are very well built and get counted 

on to give excellent service life with minimum repairs and down time. 

 

Routine preventative maintenance is performed regularly, and this can be attributed to the pumps 

never having any major failures. To date none of the pumps have been removed for inspection or 

rebuilding. Vibration testing should be implemented regularly to establish a baseline vibration 

database. These results can be compared to any older data available to see if there are significant 

changes in vibrations. Abnormal changes in vibration could be attributed to pump casing and 

wear ring clearances getting too large, bad bearings or a bent pumps shaft.  They could also 

indicate wear in the bearings of the motor or beginning failure of the motor windings. 

 

The pumps should also be tested to see if any loss of efficiency, flow and head capacities. These 

losses can be directly attributed to excessive wear and clearances between the pump wear ring 

and bowl casing ring. It could also indicate excessive wear and loss of material in the impellor 

vanes. This data should then be compared with the original test data on the pumps from the 

manufacturer. This should be done annually along with the vibration testing so a problem can be 

discovered before catastrophic failure. 

 

Currently all (5) five pumps have constant speed motors, VFD’s (variable frequency drives) 

could be implemented with the existing pump motors. This could help in reducing energy 

consumption and expenses. VFD’s would also help in allowing more flexibility in the operation 

of the discharge flows and pressures delivered to the system. Currently, NFWB receives low-cost 

power, so this expense may not have an acceptable payback. 

 

Another issue that needs to be addressed is the surge valves in the WTP. Currently they are 

inoperable, and this is not allowing the needed protection in the system and the WTP. 

 

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 335



 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board  5 WTP Operations Report 

September 2021  Clark Patterson Lee 

 

 

 

B. 56th Street Water Storage Tank 

 

Currently the tank is operated per original design and how it integrates with the rest of the 

distribution system. The tank is nominally rated at 2 million gallons but only utilizes 829,00 

gallons/day. The remaining capacity is designed for fire protection and minimal continued 

operation in event of a major system waterline break or WTP equipment failure. In event of a 

major break or Plant failure the tank will empty within hours depending on the severity of the 

leak and how quickly it can be isolated or repaired. 

 

Additional system storage is highly recommended for these emergency events. Below is the 10 

States Standards recommendations for system storage: 

 
7.0.1 Sizing Storage facilities should have sufficient capacity, as determined from engineering studies, to 

meet domestic demands, and where fire protection is provided, fire flow demands. 

 

 a. The minimum storage capacity (or equivalent capacity) for systems not providing fire protection shall 

be equal to the average daily consumption. This requirement may be reduced when the source and 

treatment facilities have sufficient capacity with standby power to supplement peak demands of the 

system. 

 

 b. Excessive storage capacity should be avoided to prevent potential water quality deterioration 

problems.  

 

c Fire flow requirements established by the appropriate state Insurance Services Office should be 

satisfied where fire protection is provided. 

 

NFWB average daily consumption is 22.6 MGD, the system storage falls way short of the 

recommended capacity. The 56th Street tank is 2 million and the Plant clear well is another 

million gallons. The NFWB also has a community interconnect with Niagara County Water 

System. This connection depending on the time of year and their system demands can not 

guarantee sufficient capacity to assist in meeting the minimum capacity standards. 

 

 

 

 

        

CONCLUSIONS 
 

The recommendations presented in this report need to be prioritized and implemented to assist in 

the continued normal operation and the emergency events when they occur. 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 336



 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board  6 WTP Operations Report 

September 2021  Clark Patterson Lee 

A new SCADA System software platform can also assist. Better monitoring, better data 

collection and storage, reporting and historical presentation of data will also help identify 

accurate system monitoring and equipment performance.  

 

 

 

NFWB September 27, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 337


	1)  September 27, 2021 NFWB Meeting Agenda
	2)  Correspondence from Bill Wright Regarding Retirement Effective December 23, 2021
	3)  Draft July 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes
	4)  Draft August 9, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	5)  September 27, 2021 Personnel Action Sheet
	6)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-001 - Agreement for Generator Maintenance
	7)  Kinsley Generator Maint Quote Revised June 22, 2021
	To exercise the generator under load or to service indoor mounted transfer switches, will someone be present to allow our technician to enter the building?
	Do you require us to call ahead and schedule the maintenance work when it is due to be performed?
	Is the generator drive up serviceable at grade level? *
	How often will your unit(s) be serviced?
	QUANTITY of Level 2 visits per year
	QUANTITY of Level 1 visits per year
	Preference of timing:
	Preventative Maintenance Performed

	What’s included:
	Level 2 (Major)
	Level 1 (Minor)
	Generator or ATS?
	Terms & Conditions:
	PLEASE RETURN A SIGNED COPY OF THIS QUOTE TO US BY FAXING IT TO 860.392.0222

	8)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-002 - Heavy Equipment for Outside Maintenance
	9)  First John Deere 75G Procurement Supporting Documentation
	10)  Second John Deere 75G Procurement Supporting Documentation
	11)  John Deere 333G Procurement Supporting Document
	12)  Trail King Tilt Trailers Procurement Supporting Document
	13)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-003 - Extend Bid for Root Control
	14)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-004 - Award Bid For Primary Treatment Polymer
	15)  Primary Treatment Polymer Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation
	Primary Treatment Polymer Bid #W2021-01 Board Letter
	Primary Treatment Polymer BID# W2021-01 OFFICIAL Tally Sheet

	16)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-005 - Third Amendment to Operation Agreement
	17)  Draft Third Amendment to Operation Agreement
	18)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-006 - Procurement of Grit Cyclone Screw and Parts
	19)  Koester Associates Grit Screw Quote
	20)  Koester Associates Wear Shoes Quote
	21)  Grit Parts Sole Source Letter
	22)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-007 - Declaring Certain Property Surplus to be Disposed of at Auction
	23)  List of Items to be Declared Surplus and Sold at Auction
	24)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-008 - Payment to Bonadio & Co for 2020 Audit and Exercising 2021 Audit Option
	25)  Bonadio Invoice for Additional Fee for 2020 Audit Services
	26)  Bonadio Engagement Letter January 2020
	27)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-009 - Change Orders for Project 2, Gorge Pump Station Rehabilitation
	28)  STC-Change Order No. 1
	Engineer:
	Contractor:
	Owner:

	29)  J. W. Danforth-Change Order No. 1
	Engineer:
	Contractor:
	Owner:

	30)  CIR-Change Order No. 1
	Engineer:
	Contractor:
	Owner:

	31)  GHD Proposal dated September 8, 2021
	32)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-010 - Exempt Executive Telecommuting Policy and Agreement
	33)  Draft Exempt Executive Employee Telecommuting Policy
	34)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-011 - Accepting Proposal for Property, Liability, and Umbrella Insurance Policies
	35)  USI Renewal Narrative
	36)  Insurance Renewal Proposal
	37)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-012 - Accepting Proposal for Rate Consultant Services
	38)  Zehraoui_092321_Memorandum_Re RFP 2021-02 - Rate Consultant and Consulting Engineer
	39)  Drescher & Malecki Proposal-Rate Consultant
	Peer Review Report 2020 (003).pdf
	Pages from Peer Review Report 2020 (003).pdf
	Peer Review Report 2020 (003).pdf


	40)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-013 - Accepting Proposal for Consulting Engineer Services
	41)  Zehraoui_092321_Memorandum_Re RFP 2021-02 - Rate Consultant and Consulting Engineer
	42)  AECOM Proposal-Consulting Engineer
	00 Combined.pdf
	Mr. Tudini is an Environmental Engineer and Project Manager with the Water/Wastewater Design Group of AECOM. The wide range of projects that he has assisted with and managed has given him a solid foundation for various consulting projects including, but not limited to, system designs and alternatives evaluations, system startup/commissioning and operation, hazardous waste management, water resource analysis, laboratory/pilot testing, and groundwater engineering. 
	Experience
	McPherson 2019 AECOM - edited.pdf
	Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA), Secondary System Rehabilitation and Upgrades, Buffalo, NY: Provided engineering design services to replace the existing fine bubble diffuser aeration system with a more energy efficient aeration system. Rehabilitated the existing secondary treatment system including various valves and flow meters, the return activated sludge system, waste activated sludge system, and installation of stop logs in effluent channels and Chlorine Contact Tank.

	Goeddertz, John 2016 master AECOM.pdf
	Dr. Goeddertz is a wastewater and stormwater process evaluation and NPDES permitting expert.  He has worked extensively in the evaluation, concept design, detailed design, permitting, construction, operation, and troubleshooting of stormwater/wastewater management and treatment facilities for both municipal and industrial clients.  Has performed extensive bench and pilot testing work and developed numerous basis of design reports that led to detailed design and construction of biological and physical/chemical treatment facilities.
	MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT  SYSTEMS
	Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA), Secondary System Rehabilitation and Upgrades, Buffalo, NY: Provided engineering design services to replace the existing fine bubble diffuser aeration system with a more energy efficient aeration system. Rehabilitated the existing secondary treatment system including various valves and flow meters, the return activated sludge system, waste activated sludge system, and installation of stop logs in effluent channels and Chlorine Contact Tank.
	Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA), Anaerobic Digester Waste Stream Addition and Co-Digestion Facility Improvements, Buffalo, NY: Conducted a study at the BSA that investigates the Plant’s ability to accept high strength waste streams and food wastes into their anaerobic digester and optimize the management of all hauled waste materials including septic, oil and grease, leachate, and sludge.
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Evaluation of Tertiary Filtration System and Design of Related Upgrades, Amherst, NY:  Responsible for evaluation of the Town of Amherst tertiary filtration system.  Prepared detailed design of ancillary improvements including: HVAC renovation, slide gate installation, slide gate automation, clarifier modification, and refurbishment of intermediate lift station.  
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Tertiary Filtration Upgrade Project, Amherst, NY:  Project Manager responsible for design and installation of cloth media filtration upgrade to existing traveling bridge filters.  Project was first of its kind in New York State and expanded the tertiary treatment capacity of the plant from 30 mgd to 72 mgd.
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Preparation of Solids Handling Standard Operating Procedures (SOP), Amherst, NY:  Preparation of Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for the Town of Amherst solids handling facilities.  Included a detailed evaluation of solids processing methods and developed a number of recommendations to improve the plant’s solids processing capability.  The most significant of which were the recognition and optimization of the two-phase digestion process, and the development of a mechanical device to control digester foaming.  These improvements enabled the facility to achieve organic loading rates in their digesters that were far in excess of prior loading rates.  By doing so, the Town eliminated landfilling of undigested sludge and saved significant amounts of money.
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst Scum System Improvements, Amherst, NY:  Evaluated and implemented improvements to the facility’s primary, secondary, and tertiary clarifiers scum removal systems (3 separate systems), including replacement of existing inoperable pneumatic injectors with 3 duplex chopper pump centrifugal pump systems.  Design improvements included combining both primary clarifiers scum systems into one common system thereby eliminating the need for separate primary scum systems. Provided detailed design and construction phase services.
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Gate Actuator Replacement with Hydraulic Actuators, Amherst, NY:  Evaluated and implemented improvements to the facility’s influent pumping station (Building 1) isolation gates to switch from electric motor actuators to hydraulic cylinder based systems to eliminate having electrical components located in an area that routinely flooded.  The work included 9 separate actuators, of which 5 were vertical gates, and 4 were ¼ turn butterfly gates.  All 9 gates were powered from a common hydraulic power pack located in the dry well that was not subjected to flooding.  Provided detailed design and construction phase services.
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Dewatering Polymer Make Up System Replacement, Amherst, NY:  Evaluated and implemented improvements to the facility’s dewatering polymer make-up and feed systems.  Work included a new bulk bag feeder/makeup system that eliminated the need for operators to handle numerous 50 pound bags and the resulting fugitive dust conditions.  Design improvements resulted in reduced polymer consumption as a result of improved makeup and aging; along with a reduced unit price for polymer in switching to the larger super sack units.  The system also included new polymer feed pumps with VFDs that were integrated into the facility’s existing centrifuge controls via the plant’s SCADA system.  Provided detailed design and construction phase services.
	Project Manager, USACOE, WWTP Conditions Assessment and Phosphorous Reduction Evaluation, Plattsburg, NY:  Performed an evaluation of the City of Plattsburg, New York WWTP to look at the feasibility of achieving phosphorous discharge reduction.  The WWTP discharges to Lake Champlain, which has a TMDL in effect for phosphorus.  The US Army Corps of Engineers tasked URS with evaluation of five options for achieving phosphorous reduction.  For each option, URS developed a capital and O&M cost estimate.  For all options, URS had to consider the condition of existing facilities, and where necessary URS incorporated facilities upgrades into the option cost.
	Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA), Anaerobic Digestion Facilities, Buffalo, NY:  Evaluate and implement $11 million worth of improvements to the BSA anaerobic digestion facilities.  The BSA has eight digesters, six primary and two secondary.  URS was responsible for analysis and design of high-rate conversion of four 100-foot diameter digesters.  Upgrade included new steel duo-deck floating covers, pumped mixing system, improved heating system, and SCADA controlled feed and withdrawal system.  Responsible for troubleshooting and developing recommendations for improved operation of all primary digesters.
	Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority Centrifuge Nos. 1 and 2 Installation, Buffalo, NY:  URS prepared detailed design documents for the installation of new centrifuges No. 1 and 2 at the BSA’s WWTP.  In addition to detailed design, URS performed construction inspection and construction administration services throughout construction.  System included screw conveyors to direct sludge to one of two belt lines feeding three incinerators and new nuclear weigh scales on the two conveyor belts.  The centrifuge controls were integrated into the existing SCADA system.  Provided services throughout design, bid, and construction phases.
	Project Manager, Buffalo Sewer Authority Incinerator Ash Handling System Evaluation Design, and Construction, Buffalo, NY:  URS evaluated the existing pneumatic ash conveyance system that transports ash from the facility subbasement to the top of their two ash silos (100 vertical feet), along with the ash load out system that takes ash from the silos, mixes it with water to reduce dusting, and deposits it into dump trucks which transport the material to landfill.  URS evaluated several options and elected to upgrade the existing system.  Design documents were prepared and URS provided construction inspection and management services during construction.
	Project Manager, Evaluation of Effects of Thiourea Discharges on BSA WWTP, Buffalo Sewer Authority, Buffalo, NY: A proposed industrial discharger that manufactures photovoltaic panels approached the BSA about obtaining an indirect discharge permit for discharge of their industrial wastewater.  AECOM was tasked with reviewing the facility’s baseline monitoring report and identifying any substances of concern.  AECOM was also tasked with performing a detailed evaluation of the potential effects of thiourea on the BSA WWTP.  A literature and regulatory review was performed along with performing an extensive search to identify and evaluate all other direct or indirect discharge permits that include thiourea.  Bench scale laboratory testing was performed to determine the impact of thiourea on existing BSA WWTP operations including bio uptake, nitrification, anaerobic digestion, and chlorination.  Based upon the literature review, discharge permit search, and the laboratory results; recommendations for thiourea limitations were developed.  The report is the most comprehensive compilation of information regarding the impact of thiourea discharges on a biological wastewater treatment plant. 
	Project Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and Planning, East Aurora WWTP Energy Efficiency Study, East Aurora, NY:   Performed energy efficiency study of ECSD No. 8 East Aurora WWTP.  The evaluation considered motor loads greater than 5 Hp, HVAC equipment, water heaters, and lighting.  The study resulted in the recommendation to perform approximately $30,000 worth of capital upgrades that will result in energy savings of approximately $7,000 per year, proving a 4 year payback period.  The work was funded by ECSD No. 8 and NYSERDA.
	Project Engineer, Erie County Department of Environment and Planning, East Aurora Sewage Treatment Plant, East Aurora, NY:  Evaluated the East Aurora Sewage Treatment Plant to determine process upgrades necessary to meet 20-year service life.  Evaluated several options to eliminate the WWTP in favor of directing the sewage to a regional treatment facility.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Wastewater Treatment Plant Capital Improvements Program Management, Niagara Falls, NY:  Served as program manager for implementation $7 million worth of capital upgrades to the Niagara Falls WWTP.  Work included project scoping and preparation of engineering RFPs for bidding by consulting firms.  Important aspect was preparation of accurate cost estimates that would determine how much work could be performed and stay within the allotted budget.  URS reviewed engineering proposals and recommended award.  During design URS was responsible for review of project deliverables.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, WWTP Mercury Reduction Evaluation, Niagara Falls, NY:  Performed a study of the NFWB WWTP that included sampling and analysis for mercury at various locations in the treatment process; that was then followed by a detailed process evaluation.  A work plan was developed and executed with 13 locations being sampled for low and/or high level mercury concentrations over the course of two days, on two separate occasions (warm weather event/ cold weather event).  Speciation was also considered (total, dissolved, methyl Hg) at each location.  The results along with a process analysis determined that mercury is present predominately in the WWTP’s solids and was not present in a dissolved or methyl Hg state.  Process evaluation provided recommendations for process management that will minimize the concentration of mercury present in the outfall by improving solids management throughout the WWTP.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, WWTP Turbidity Evaluation, Niagara Falls, NY:  The NFWB was required to evaluate the cause of effluent turbidity in the lower Niagara River adjacent to the plant’s outfall.  Performed a study of the NFWB WWTP to sample and analyze for various parameters at various locations in the treatment process to enable a detailed process evaluation to be performed.  A work plan was developed and executed with 13 locations being sampled for a number of parameters including turbidity over the course of three events each lasting one week, on three separate occasions (warm weather event, medium temperature event, and cold weather event).  The results along with a process analysis determined that turbidity was caused by chlorination of sulfide that was being generated in the WWTP processes.  A number of alternatives were developed that would reduce or eliminate the resulting turbidity.  Costs for each alternative were developed.  A detailed report was prepared and submitted to the NYSDEC and USEPA.
	Project Manager, North Chautauqua Lake Sewer District WWTP Upgrades, Mayville, NY:  Evaluated the existing condition of the NCLSD WWTP and prepared an engineering report for recommended capital improvements.  After acceptance of the Engineering Report by the NYSDEC, URS was tasked with preparing the detailed design and managing the bidding process.  The work consisted of replacing the facilities RBCs with new RBCs and replacement of the influent screw pumps and controls.  During construction URS provided resident inspection and construction administration services.  The project was completed under budget.  As a follow-on project URS provided complete engineering services to assist the NCLSD with replacement of the roof on the administration building.  Work included asbestos survey, design, bidding, and construction inspection and administration.
	Project Manager, North Chautauqua Lake Sewer District, Phosphorous Reduction Engineering Evaluation, Mayville, NY:  In response to the issuance of a phosphorous total maximum daily load TMDL) the NCLSD was tasked with evaluating and implementing WWTP upgrades that would reduce their phosphorous loading to Chautauqua Lake by approximately 80%.  Interim removal limits were also established at 1 mg/l.  AECOM assisted with implementing the interim removal system which consisted of ferric chloride addition, and with evaluating options to meet the long term phosphorous removal requirement of approximately 0.3 mg/l effluent limitation.  Multi-point chemical addition with filtration was ultimately selected as the required technology to meet the long term phosphorous mass discharge limitation.  Grant applications were prepared and submitted to obtain NYSEFC funding for the project.
	Project Manager, Town of Chautauqua, Chautauqua Heights Sewer District Phosphorous Reduction Engineering Evaluation, Town of Chautauqua, NY:  In response to the issuance of a phosphorous total maximum daily load TMDL) the Town of Chautauqua Chautauqua Heights Sewer District (CHSD) was tasked with evaluating and implementing WWTP upgrades that would reduce their phosphorous loading to Chautauqua Lake by approximately 80%.  Interim removal limits were also established at 1 mg/l.  AECOM evaluated compliance options and determined that significant upgrades to the small plant would be required in order to meet the approximately 0.3 mg/l effluent limitation.  Alternatively, options to eliminate the WWTP and instead pump the plant’s influent wastewater to the NCLSD WWTP in Mayville were also considered.  This option was evaluated as a stand-alone option or implemented in conjunction with an overall “sewer the lake” alternative that would provide sewer service around the entire Chautauqua Lake. Ultimately the option to close the plant and instead convert it into a pumping station that would pump the wastewater to the NCLSD was selected.  Grant applications were prepared and submitted to the NYSEFC.
	Project Manager, SPDES Permit Assistance, City of Salamanca Board of Public Utilities, Salamanca, NY:  Assisted with the review and comment of draft SPDES permit including review of stringent total residual chlorine discharge limitations.
	Technical Lead, City of Salamanca Board of Public Utilities, Treatment Plant Upgrades, Salamanca, NY:  Evaluated effect of proposed casino facilities on existing treatment plant and recommended upgrades to treatment plant to enable processing of casino flows and loadings.  Designed and installed upgrades to aeration facilities (fine bubble diffused air with DO control) and solids handling facilities (thickening, dewatering, and pumping).  Novel thickening process was implemented to thicken aerobic digester contents so that additional thickener volume was not necessary.
	INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT AND EVALUATION
	Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Whole Effluent Toxicity Identification and Reduction Evaluation, Syracuse, NY:  In response to a failed whole effluent toxicity test, the facility was tasked by the NYSDEC with performing a Toxicity Identification Evaluation / Toxicity Reduction Evaluation study.  AECOM was contracted to perform the work and it was determined that groundwater effluent from the facility’s groundwater treatment system was the cause of the toxicity, solely due to its elevated mineral content.  Extensive testing and analysis of the various sources of flow were conducted to be able to make this determination.  Once the source was known AECOM evaluated a number of alternatives to eliminate the toxicity.  Options ranged from discharging the water elsewhere (sanitary sewer, different receiving water, deep well injection), to treatment to remove mineral content (reverse osmosis).  At this time options are still being evaluated.
	Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Oil and Grease Discharge Violation Elimination, Syracuse, NY:  In response to repeated oil and grease discharge violations (150 mg/l) with the facility’s sanitary sewer discharges, AECOM was contracted to evaluate the root cause and to assist with implementing a solution.  AECOM performed a detailed site visit to look at the outfall locations and to understand the nature of the wastewater and the oil and grease violations.  Existing sample collection methods were observed.  AECOM determined a number of contributing factors including:
	 Overly restrictive discharge permit,
	 Excessive sampling requirements in the facility discharge permit,
	 Sampling methods that resulted in sediment and particulate entrainment that biased sample results,
	It was suggested that a meeting be held with the permitting authority during which modifications to the facility’s permit would be requested that should eliminate future violations.  The permitting authority was agreeable and changes were made to their permit that eliminated any further discharge violations. 
	Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, SPDES Permit Evaluation and Application Preparation to Simplify Discharge Permit and Reduce Onerous Requirements, Rochester, NY:  AECOM was contracted to review the facility’s SPDES permit and to assist with preparing an application for renewal.  During the process 5 years of data was reviewed and it was determined that the facility’s permit was overly onerous and results in excessive samples having to be collected and analyzed, the majority of which returned “non-detect” analytical results.  A presentation was prepared that was presented to the NYSDEC regional office. At the same time the permit renewal application along with a list of requested changes was submitted to the NYSDEC.  The information was received favorably, and the facility is awaiting their SPDES permit renewal which is expected to contain a significantly reduced monitoring program.
	Project Manager, Bristol Myers Squibb, Phosphorous Reduction Evaluation, Syracuse, NY:  URS was tasked with evaluating options for modifying an existing industrial wastewater treatment plant discharging to a regional POTW. Over time the influent wastewater to the plant has changed and is considerably weaker than it used to be.  As a result the current biological wastewater treatment plant was oversized relative to its needs, which consisted primarily of phosphorous removal.  A number of alternatives were identified and bench scale testing was performed.  Ultimately phosphorous precipitation with DAF flotation of the solids was recommended.  The DAF separation process was an attempt to repurpose an existing treatment process.  Conceptual cost estimates were developed for each option considered.
	Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Water Use Reduction Evaluation, Owego, NY:  Participated in three day water Kaizen to review plant water usage and to make recommendations for water use reduction.  Performed review of 5 years of water use records along with analysis of water usage and its cost.  Ultimately determined that water billing structure was flat and therefore there was no financial incentive to reduce water use.  Beside the rate determination, a number of water use reduction measures were identified including elimination of once-through cooling water, implementation of low flow faucets, and reuse of treated groundwater for utility purposes.
	Project Manager, Confidential Industrial Client, Evaluation of Combined Groundwater and OCPSF Process Wastewater, Ringwood IL: Responsible for evaluation of combining remediation groundwater and OCPSF process wastewater to meet ammonia and OCPSF limits.  Project started with a paper study to evaluate treatment alternatives.  Alternatives included biological oxidation, chemical oxidation, and air stripping in various combinations.  Aerobic biological treatment (nitrification) was selected based upon technical and economic feasibility, and upon source sampling that showed no toxic or inhibitory compounds were present in the groundwater or process wastewater.  Treatability testing was then conducted to compare suspended growth to fixed film nitrification systems.  All work was run at 50oF, which is the expected groundwater and combined process wastewater temperature.  Based upon the treatability testing and detailed economic evaluations, membrane bioreactor technology was selected for implementation.  Supplemental heat was also provided.
	Project Manager, Allied Waste, Compliance with CWT PSES, Niagara Falls, NY:  Project to evaluate compliance strategies for Centralized Waste Treatment (CWT) industry to determine optimal method of complying with CWT PSES categorical standards.  The work included bench testing of various wastewaters for metals removal.
	Project Manager, Wyeth-Ayerst, Wastewater Study for a Manufacturer of Injectable Pharmaceuticals, Cherry Hill, NJ:  A wastewater study for a manufacturer of injectable pharmaceuticals to meet pretreatment requirements and address pretreatment discharge violations.  The study identified and characterized all wastewater sources including the development of a tree diagram and a water and pollutant mass balance.  Near source data was compared to end of pipe data also collected during the study.  Primary flow monitoring structures were custom fabricated and installed at end-of-pipe locations in adverse conditions enabling the collection of flow proportional samples for the first time at the facility.  The study recommended near source pollution prevention measures, near source treatment, and end-of pipe treatment of the combined facility discharge to meet current and likely future categorical discharge limits.  The study results were implemented by the facility.
	Project Engineer, Wyeth-Ayerst, Wastewater Characterization and Evaluation Study, West Chester, PA:  A wastewater characterization and evaluation study for a pharmaceutical penicillin compounding facility.  Wastewaters contained elevated solvent concentrations.  Responsible for design and implementation of the near source (10 locations) and end-of-pipe wastewater flow and characterization study (4 locations).  Assisted in the development of alternative concept designs for meeting local pretreatment standards and likely future categorical discharge limits.
	Task Manager, Bristol Myers Squibb, Anaerobic Treatability Studies, Syracuse, NY:  Responsible for experimental design, construction, setup, initiation, and technical direction of anaerobic treatability studies for the treatment of penicillin manufacturing wastewater.  Bench scale studies included serum bottle studies and fill and draw reactors for the treatment of solvent laden wastewaters, sulfate rich wastewaters, and mycelial solids waste streams.  Assisted in the development and conduct of aerobic digestion studies, batch nitrification inhibition studies, and waste activated sludge conditioning studies for treatment of these same pharmaceutical wastewaters.  Aerobic biological treatment was recommended as it was determined that anaerobic treatment was subject to upset due to toxic/inhibitory effects of solvents and sulfide.  Assisted in the preparation of conceptual design reports that included a technical and economic feasibility study of potential management/ treatment alternatives, and the development of process trains that would provide adequate treatment to meet both current and future categorical discharge limitations. 
	Task Manager, Wyeth-Ayerst, Characterization of OCPSF Categorical Wastewater and Stormwater, Various Locations (NY, NJ, & PA):  Responsible for characterization of OCPSF categorical wastewater and stormwater.  Data was used in support of SPDES / NJPDES Direct Discharge Permits.
	Task Manager, Wyeth-Ayerst, NPDES Compliance - Two Pharmaceutical Facilities, NY: Responsible for evaluating two pharmaceutical facilities for compliance with 1999 categorical standards.  Work included outfall identification, category classifications, sample collection, preparation of baseline monitoring report, and recommendations to maintain compliance.
	Project Manager, GE Transportation, WWTP Upgrades, Erie PA:  URS performed numerous assignments to assist the GE Erie facility upgrade its physical/chemical wastewater treatment plant.  The plant consists of equalization and chemical addition/precipitation followed by clarification.  Sludge is filter pressed and disposed of off-site.  The principal constituent being removed is phosphorous.  Upgrades consisted of five large above ground wastewater tanks, interconnecting piping, new sludge storage and thickening facilities, and miscellaneous plant upgrades (sump pump replacement, effluent pump replacement, instrumentation and control upgrades, O&M Manual preparation.  URS’ novel approach to reusing existing facilities whenever possible resulted in savings approaching $10 million over a plan put forth by others.
	Project Manager, Dekas Cranberries, Evaluation of Proposals for Design-Build-Operate WWTP at Cranberry Processing Facility, Carver, MA:  URS was tasked with evaluating competing design-build-operate proposals for a new wastewater treatment plant at a cranberry processing facility in Carver, Massachusetts.  The plant’s wastewater is a very high strength stream that is readily biodegradable.  The proposers provided either sequenced anaerobic/aerobic treatment or all aerobic treatment.  Ultimately a treatment system consisting of an upflow anaerobic sludge blanket reactor followed by an aerobic membrane bioreactor was selected.  The MBR effluent was then processed through a reverse osmosis unit that allowed the effluent to be reused in the for cooling water.  The reuse solution will help to alleviate water consumption at the plant , where well water must be heavily treated before it can be used.
	Project Manager, Goldman Titanium, Wastewater Evaluation and Compliance Evaluation, Buffalo, NY:  URS evaluated process wastewater discharges from a titanium processing facility for compliance with the facility’s discharge permit, local sewer use ordinance, and categorical discharge standards (metal finishing).  As part of the evaluation process URS collected several wastewater samples and analyzed them for constituents of concern.  URS provided recommendations for achieving compliance.  A revised discharge permit application was submitted which resulted in receiving favorable discharge limitations for titanium.
	Project Manager, Rohm & Haas, Membrane Bioreactor Wastewater System, Ringwood, IL:  Responsible for technology selection, preliminary design, and procurement specification preparation of a membrane bioreactor addition to an existing industrial wastewater activated sludge plant that was upgraded to treat 200 gpm of remediation groundwater.  Primary chemical contaminant was ammonia.   System included alkalinity addition and pH control. 
	Project Manager, Ravenswood Aluminum, Aluminum Manufacturing Facility Ultrafiltration Wastewater System, Ravenswood, WV:  Responsible for design of a $4 million ultrafiltration wastewater system for a primary aluminum facility.  The ultrafiltration system was necessary for the treatment of soluble oils from a hot rolling mill.  The design incorporated a tubular and a rotary ultrafiltration system that is capable of taking wastewater containing 1/2 percent soluble oil and creating 100% pure waste oil suitable for energy recovery.
	Task Manager, Whitehall Robbins, Wastewater Treatment System, Richmond, VA:  Responsible for evaluation of unique wastewater containing extensive amounts of oily/waxy substances.  Treatability testing was conducted with wastewater and with the facility’s product line to determine melt points, and separability.  Detailed design of oily/waxy wastewater treatment system was provided.  The design utilized a heated wet well followed by a heated oil/water separator to separate petrolatum, wax, and cocoa butter from process wastewater to avoid sewer plugging and potential violations of the sewer use ordinance.  Underground sewers were replaced with insulated ductile iron pipe and upstream steam addition was provided to prevent solidification of materials prior to the wet well.
	Project Manager, Frito Lay, Odor Control Evaluation and Design, Topeka, KS:  Evaluation and design of an odor control system utilizing a sodium hydroxide/sodium hypochlorite three stage packed scrubber system.  The system was used to treat 40,000 scfm of off gasses from a roughing trickling filter.  In order to capture all emissions, an aluminum geodesic dome was installed atop the trickling filter.  The system successfully eliminated nuisance odors and eliminated neighborhood complaints.
	Task Manager, ALCOA Aluminum, Wastewater Studies, , Massena, NY: Conducted treatability studies on inactive hazardous waste lagoon wastewater and process coolant for removal of emulsified oils, solids, and PCBs at a primary metal manufacturer.  Bench scale studies examined emulsion breaking (chemical and thermal), filtration, and activated carbon absorption.  The studies resulted in the design and construction of full-scale physical/ chemical treatment system.
	REMEDIATION SITE GROUNDWATER TREATMENT 
	Task Manager, Cherry Farm / River Road PRP Site, Tonawanda, NY: Remediation of landfill site including design of CERCLA site groundwater physical/chemical treatment system.  The design incorporated emulsion breaking, chemical addition, oil separation, activated carbon adsorption, equalization, and pH adjustment; primarily for PCB removal.  Work also included startup, operation and maintenance (5 years), and troubleshooting.  Responsible for achieving discharge permit compliance.
	Task Manager, Honeywell, Groundwater Treatment System, Sidney, NY:  Responsible for detailed design of a 100-gpm groundwater pump and treat system that includes: emulsion breaking, oil skimming, iron removal, filtration, air stripping, secondary filtration, and granular activated carbon adsorption.  The design was conducted under a tight time schedule to meet the requirements of an order-on-consent.  Unique permitting requirements were necessary, as the facility was located in the New York City drinking water watershed.
	Project Manager, Honeywell, Metals Removal at Former Wood Treating Facility, East Park, GA:  Responsible for design of a metals removal process that was integrated into an existing dissolved organics treatment system at a wood treating facility.  Treatment for the 75 GPM flow included oil removal (LNAPL/DNAPL), equalization, pH adjustment, mixing, flocculation, sedimentation, and pH adjustment.  The design of the system enabled uninterrupted operation of the existing dissolved organics removal system throughout construction.
	Project Manager, Honeywell, 500-GPM Pump and Treat System, Moundsville, WV:  Design of a 500-gpm pump and treat system for chlorinated VOCs.  System utilizes an air stripper, catalytic oxidizer, and caustic scrubber.  A unique clean-in-place system was designed to enable descaling of the air stripper without having to manually clean the unit.  A separate treatment system was constructed for treatment and re-use of the acidic wash water.
	MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS
	Project Engineer, Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA) Comprehensive Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Long Term Control Plan, Buffalo, NY:  Responsible for QA/QC, including review of cost estimates for short-term, intermediate-term, and long-term implementation of the Long Term Control Plan (LTCP).  The BSA was required to prepare and implement the LTCP for discharges from their CSO as part of their treatment plant discharge conditions.
	Technical Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and Planning, Village of Blasdell Sewer Service Consolidation, Blasdell, NY:  Included the concept and detailed design for the consolidation of the Blasdell Wastewater Treatment Facility (4-mgd average, 10-mgd peak) into the regional Southtowns Treatment Facility (18-mgd average, 62-mgd peak).  Project includes new interceptor sewer, elimination of seven pump stations, and upgrade of one wet weather pump station to direct wet weather flows to existing ORF.
	Project Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and Planning, Village of Hamburg Sewer Rehabilitation Design and Pump Station Elimination Evaluation, Hamburg, NY:  Developed engineer’s report and performed detailed design for sewer system rehabilitation including manhole rehabilitation.   Work included lining and spot repairs, along with manhole grouting, coating, and chimney sealing.  Evaluated options for elimination of five pumping stations via the use of gravity sewers.
	Project Manager, Erie County Department of Environment and Planning, Town of Lancaster Sewer Evaluation, Lancaster, NY:  Performed flow monitoring, television inspection, and smoke testing to evaluate infiltration and inflow and to recommend methods to minimize infiltration and inflow.  Prepared engineer’s report of findings.
	Project Engineer, Erie County Department of Environment and Planning, Sweetland Road Pump Station Evaluation, Hamburg, NY:  Responsible for determining why VFDs at pump station could not run at 100 percent speed without tripping due to electrical fault.  Determined several contributing factors including undersized transformers and improperly wired electric meter.  Ultimately the age and design of the VFDs was determined to be the source of harmonics that caused the drive to trip.  Recommendations for drive replacement were made.
	Project Engineer, Erie County Department of Environment and Planning, Wilmuth Pump Station Evaluation, Lackawanna, NY:  Responsible for evaluation of pump station to determine reason for pump shearing its shaft whenever two pumps were run at the same time.  Contributing factors were determined to be non-optimal piping design, however the principal reason was determined to be a poorly designed pump impeller and shaft that caused excessive stress in the pump shaft ultimately leading to shaft shearing.  Recommendations for wet end upgrade were made.
	Project Engineer, New York Power Authority, Falls Street Tunnel Flow Monitoring Program Design and Implementation, Niagara Falls, NY:  Responsible for design and installation of flow monitoring system within the Falls Street Tunnel.  Purpose of the project was to determine the amount of dry weather infiltration in a 1,000-foot long section of rock tunnel located 45 feet below ground.  A number of obstacles were overcome to successfully carry out the month long flow monitoring study under difficult conditions.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Falls Street Tunnel Infiltration Elimination Project, Niagara Falls, NY:  URS prepared a feasibility study to look at various options for elimination of a 6 mgd infiltration problem into the Falls Street Tunnel.  The FST is a rock tunnel that crosses atop the New York Power Authority’s power conduits.  Water from the conduits leaks out and infiltrates the rock tunnel amounting to approximately 20% of the total daily flow to the Niagara Falls WWTP.  Examined options including: grouting, lining, and elimination of the tunnel.  In the end an alternative to eliminate the tunnel was selected because it had the potential to save approximately $12 million dollars from the budgeted cost of $19 million.  URS was subsequently tasked with preparing the detailed design for the project.  URS prepared plans and specifications, assisted in the bid process, and performed resident inspection and construction administration services for the $7 million project.  
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Falls Street Tunnel Contract 67A, Niagara Falls, NY:  Following the Falls Street Tunnel elimination project, once the tunnel was flooded and groundwater levels rose by approximately 20 feet, leaks were detected in three other locations.  For two of the locations a fast track design of repairs was performed.  Repairs included bulkhead construction and connection elimination.  The project was bid out and work was completed within a matter of months.  Services included construction phase management and daily inspection.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Iroquois Street Sewer Evaluation and Lining, Niagara Falls, NY:  The third and final leakage point that was discovered following flooding of the Falls Street Tunnel was the Iroquois Street sewer/tunnel.  Evaluated and designed improvements to a 1917 vintage 54-inch diameter segmented block sewer / tunnel system that was determined to be leaking groundwater infiltration at a rate of 5 mgd or more.  Confined space inspections were performed to determine that there were serious structural problems in addition to the groundwater infiltration.  Alternatives for repair, replacement, and relining were considered and option cost estimates were developed.  Due to the industrial nature of the surrounding land and interfering utilities, a slip lining approach for sewer rehabilitation was selected to minimize excavation.  Detailed design was prepared and bid and construction phase services were provided.  A number of difficult construction conditions were managed and the project was successfully completed resulting in an estimated 6 mgd of groundwater infiltration being removed from the sewer.  All told , the three projects related to the Falls Street Tunnel were performed for much less than the allocated $19 million, allowing the excess funds to be used on other capital improvements.
	Task Manager, City of Niagara Falls, LaSalle and Frontier area Sanitary Sewer System, Niagara Falls, NY:  Responsible for design and installation of flow metering program for the City of Niagara Falls’ LaSalle and Frontier area Sanitary Sewer System.  Project involved the specification, installation, and monitoring of ten area/velocity flow meters.  The data was critical to the two overall evaluations of the two sanitary sewer systems.
	Project Engineer, Niagara Falls Water Board, Gorge Pumping Station Reliability Analysis, Niagara Falls, NY:  Responsible for evaluating the reliability of the Gorge Pump Station to minimize or eliminate the occurrence of dry weather sanitary sewer overflows.  Work included detailed mechanical evaluation of pump condition, hydraulic evaluation, vibration analysis, power analysis, VFD analysis, options evaluation, and list of recommendations.  Report was submitted to NYSDEC for approval as satisfaction of Consent Order requirement.  The NFWB implemented the report recommendations after it was accepted by the NYSDEC.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Lift Station Inlet Piping Upgrade, Niagara Falls, NY:  Responsible for design and construction of lift station inlet piping upgrade at Lift Station #6 (LS-6) for City of Niagara Falls.  Work included preliminary design, detailed design, cost estimating, and construction management.  Project involved the repair of a collapsed 20” sewer main, and replacement of the inlet pipe to LS-6 with a larger pipe.  Work was conducted in difficult soil conditions in close proximity to existing structures.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, LaSalle SSO Abatement Program (2014 work), Niagara Falls, NY: As a requirement for the Niagara Falls Water Board’s sanitary sewer overflow control plan, the NFWB was obligated to perform a number of sanitary sewer pipe and manhole repairs to minimize infiltration of groundwater and to repair collapsed pipes.  Prepared detailed design plans and specifications for the repair of 
	 12 Spot sewer repairs (spot excavation),
	 8 sewer segments lined from manhole to manhole,
	 110 manhole repairs including cleaning, lining, frame repairs, and channel and bench repairs.
	Following detailed design URS managed the bid and construction phases including providing onsite construction inspection services.  All work included pre- and post-video inspection to document the conditions and the repairs.
	Project Manager Niagara Falls Water Board LaSalle SSO Abatement Year 9 & 10 Sewer Repairs (2017 work)  As a follow on to the 2014 sewer work, AECOM was tasked with implementing the next required piece of work associated with the Niagara Falls Water Board’s sanitary sewer overflow control plan.  The work included sanitary sewer pipe repairs at 35 separate locations to minimize infiltration of groundwater and to repair collapsed pipes.  Prepared detailed design plans and specifications for the repair of 
	 28  Spot sewer repairs (spot excavation),
	 7 cured in place and in-situ sewer repairs (spot repairs).
	Following detailed design URS managed the bid and construction phases including providing onsite construction inspection services.
	Task Manager, City of Niagara Falls, Municipal CSO Outfall Improvement, Niagara Falls, NY: Responsible for developing cost estimates for large municipal CSO outfalls improvement program.  Cost estimates were used to prioritize outfall improvements and to formulate capital improvement scheduling.  Unique aspect of the project was that the outfalls were located in the Niagara River gorge and access for repairs was extremely difficult.
	Task Manager, Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Union Ship Canal Industrial Park Sewer System Design, Buffalo, NY:  Prepared detailed design of sanitary sewer collection system at the Union Ship Canal Redevelopment Project.
	GENERAL CIVIL ENGINEERING
	Project Manager, Sheridan Park Golf Course, Town of Tonawanda, NY:  Project Manager responsible for permitting, design and construction oversight of stream bank stabilization project along Two Mile Creek through the Sheridan Park golf course.  Project included extensive permitting and regulatory coordination.  Project ultimately was constructed during the off-season with minimal disruption to the course.  Improvements included: pre-engineered pedestrian bridges, earthen bank stabilization, hard stabilization with stackable concrete blocks and sediment excavation and disposal.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Pump Station Roof Replacement, Niagara Falls, NY:  URS performed an asbestos survey followed by the detailed design of a new roofing system at the NFWB Gorge Pumping Station and LS-4.  URS performed detailed design, bid phase services, and resident inspection on a part time basis during construction,
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Compost Facility Pavement Failure Evaluation, Amherst, NY: Responsible for evaluation of pavement failure at the Town of Amherst compost facility along with evaluation of expansion options.  Detailed value-engineered cost estimates for the compost facility expansion were developed.  Value engineering determined improved means of providing sub-surface and surface drainage, both of which were improperly engineered in the original facility construction.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Masonry and Building Envelope Repairs, Niagara Falls, NY  During the course of managing the roof repair project at the Niagara Falls Water Board WWTP, a number of deficiencies were identified in the building exterior envelope including concrete repairs, masonry repairs, and window/opening penetration repairs.  A prioritization scheme was developed to address the most pressing needs.  Work included: structural concrete repairs, brick masonry repairs and reconstruction, lintel replacement, flashing replacement, and expansion joint repairs.  Detailed plans and specifications were developed and the project bid phase was managed by URS.  Construction management and construction inspection services were provided.
	Project Manager, Niagara Falls Water Board, Rate Consultant/ Consulting Engineer 2010 – 2016, Niagara Falls, NY  URS/AECOM serve as the NFWB’s rate consultant/consulting engineer which requires the engineer and the rate consultant to prepare an annual report that is a requirement of the bond holders.  The Continuing Disclosure Report documents the physical and financial health of the Niagara Falls Water Authority and the NFWB.  In years when the NFWB solicits bonds, instead of a CDR the RC/CE prepares a Feasibility Report for the Issuance of Bonds.  AECOM also assists with evaluating the NFWB’s capital improvement plan and assesses whether rates are adequate to maintain the level of service required.  The project also included a miscellaneous engineering services task that has been utilized by the NFWB for emergency work, asbestos surveys, and other services that may arise during the year.
	Project Manager, Rochester Harbor Algae Mitigation Project, Rochester, NY:  Project manager for a US Army Corps of Engineers evaluation project to determine the feasibility of pumping algae off the beach at Ontario Beach in Rochester, New York.  The pumped algae was discharged to a submerged outfall in the adjacent Genesee River.  The goal of the project was to determine a cost effective means of mitigating nuisance algal blooms that necessitated lengthy beach closings.  The project demonstrated that complete beach cleanup could be performed in a matter of days rather than a several week period.  Quick removal of the material was critical to preventing it from accumulating to the point that it begins to rot and becomes odorous.  Based upon the success of the full scale evaluation project a design was developed to permanently implement the solution including a submerged diffusor pipe located in the Genesee River.  The project was successfully constructed and is used by Monroe County when algae outbreaks occur.
	Task Manager, New York Power Authority, Relicensing Studies and Cost Estimate Preparation, Lewiston, NY:  Responsible for several studies developed in support of the Niagara Power Project Relicensing Efforts including: Feasibility of Providing Water/Wastewater Services to Tuscarora Nation, Feasibility of Providing Aquaculture Systems to Tuscarora Nation, Impact of NYPA Conduits on Falls Street Tunnel, and Impact of NYPA Conduits on Regional Groundwater Flow.  Prepared engineering studies and evaluations, calculations, reports, and cost estimates for implementation of possible relicensing efforts.
	Task Manager, Allied Signal, Sediment Pilot Program, Buffalo, NY:  Responsible for development and implementation of a sediment pilot program to determine suitable methods of sediment excavation, dewatering, and stabilization.  The project included the excavation, removal, dewatering and stabilization of 1,000 cy of contaminated sediment.  Optimal method was determined to be mixing sediment with existing on-site fill material.  Compaction of the mixed material was tested and determined to be suitable for placement in the on-site landfill that was being capped.  
	STORMWATER PERMITTING AND DESIGN
	Project Engineer, Greyhound Lines, Inc. Evaluation of Stormwater Runoff at a Major Transportation Facility, Chicago, IL:  Responsible for evaluation of stormwater runoff at a major bus maintenance facility.  Illicit sources were identified and relocated to discharge to the sanitary sewer.  Detailed design was performed and constructed for new underground storm sewers, a 25,000-gallon underground oil/water separator, and a new direct discharge stormwater outfall to the North Branch Chicago River.
	Project Manager, Southdown, Inc., Underground Limestone Mine, Evaluation of Surface Runoff, Deckers Creek, WV:  Responsible for evaluation of surface runoff at an underground limestone mine in West Virginia.  Numerous state and federal deficiencies were identified in the initial evaluation centering on the need to divert upgradient stream flow around the disturbed area, and the lack of sufficient retention ponds for sediment control.  Complicating the project was steep local topography.  A feasibility study of stormwater alternatives was performed.  A detailed design of storm sewer culverts, drainage ditches, and a new retention pond was performed.  A new West Virginia Surface Mining Permit application was prepared and approved by the state.  
	Project Manager, Peace Bridge Authority, Stormwater Compliance and Best Management Practices Implementation, Buffalo, NY  Provided MS4 services to the Peace Bridge Authority to achieve compliance with the Phase II stormwater regulations including implementation of the 6 minimum required best management practices.  Unique aspect of the project was the design and construction of a stormwater collection system to collect stormwater runoff from major portions of the bridge, directing that flow to Canada where it was passed through an aboveground grit trap that was fabricated from a 20 yard rollloff container.  When the rolloff was full it is hauled to the landfill emptied, and returned to the site.  A simple filter fabric cloth installed on the outlet end assisted in solids retention.
	Project Manager, Truck Stops of America, Transportation Facility, Runoff Evaluation, NJ and CT:  Performed detailed runoff evaluations for two 15-acre transportation facilities to determine compliance with local stormwater runoff requirements.  Recommendations were made to bring the facility into compliance based on the need to keep peak runoff rates below the pre-existing condition runoff rates.  Work also included rehabilitation and cleaning of underground grit separators that were determined to be full of grit and design and construction of a stormwater retention pond that incorporated a unique floating baffle capable of retaining oil under varying water level conditions.
	Task Manager, New York State National Guard, Stormwater Compliance, Statewide, New York:   Responsible for performing storm water compliance evaluations at 30 New York State National Guard facilities.
	Project Manager, Town of Amherst, Stormwater Compliance and Best Management Practices Implementation, Amherst, NY  Provided services to the Town of Amherst to achieve compliance with the Phase I (industrial activities) and Phase II (municipal) stormwater regulations including implementation of the 6 minimum required best management practices.  Conducted site inspections of affected Town facilities and provided recommendations for best management practices including elimination of illicit discharges.  A significant outcome of the project was approaching the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning and convincing them that rather than each Town preparing their own Phase II compliance materials it would be better served for Erie County to serve in this role.  Ultimately this led to the formation of the Western New York Stormwater Coalition.
	Project Manager, Town of Tonawanda, Stormwater Compliance and Best Management Practices Implementation, Tonawanda, NY  Provided industrial and MS4 services to the Town of Tonawanda to achieve compliance with the stormwater regulations including the initial submission of an individual discharge permit for the Town’s wastewater treatment plant.  Conducted site inspections of affected Town facilities and provided recommendations for best management practices including elimination of illicit discharges.  Also prepared documentation for the implementation of the 6 minimum required best management practices. 
	NPDES Industrial Stormwater Compliance, Nationwide:  Involved in NPDES stormwater compliance since inception of the stormwater regulations.  Regularly advises industrial and municipal clients of stormwater program requirements.  Work performed includes the preparation of over 30 permit applications (individual permits, general permits, and 1 group permit) for stormwater discharges associated with industrial activity.  Responsible for sampling work plan development, sample collection, flow monitoring, and permit application preparation.  Prepared or directed the preparation of over 25 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP) for: an interstate transportation company (15 locations in six states), several pharmaceutical manufacturers, cement manufacturer, and an electronics manufacturing facility.
	MISCELLANEOUS ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE
	Project Manager, Process Safety Management Plans and Risk Management Program, NY: Responsible for Process Safety Management Plans and Risk Management Program (PSM / RPM) for anhydrous ammonia (two facilities) and chlorine (five facilities).  Work required the conduct of Process Hazards Analysis (PHA) using the hazard and operability analysis (HAZOP) method.  Air dispersion modeling for worst case and alternate scenario were performed using CAMEO software.
	Project Engineer, Greyhound Lines, Inc., Wastewater and Stormwater Management Program, Nationwide:  Responsible for development of a wastewater and stormwater management program for an interstate transportation company with over 80 fueling locations.  The program evaluated each location to determine the need for capital improvements or changes in operational procedures.  Recommendations resulting from the ongoing program were used to establish capital improvement budgets for upcoming years.
	Project Engineer, Greyhound Lines, Inc., SPCC Plans and Wastewater Discharge Permits, Nationwide: Performed a review of a major interstate transportation company’s SPCC Plans and wastewater discharge permits at approximately 200 locations.  As a result of this study, 14 SPCC Plans were prepared and 7 Wastewater Permits were developed to bring client to compliance with state and local wastewater regulations and state and federal SPCC requirements.
	Project Engineer, Wyeth-Ayerst,  Development of Best Management Practices (BMP) Program, NY, PA: Project Engineer in charge of development of a BMP Plans for a major pharmaceutical manufacturer, including evaluation and recommendation of structural and non-structural controls to minimize waste generation as well as spillage during waste handling.
	Project Manager, Loral, Development of BMP Plans, Owego, NY:  Developed two BMP Plans for electronics manufacturing facilities.  The plans considered loading and material handling areas for petroleum products and hazardous chemicals, in addition to evaluating non-structural control measures.
	Project Manager, Loral, SPCC Plan Development, Owego, NY: Developed an SPCC plan for an electronics manufacturer that included OPA 99 and New York State Major Petroleum Facility requirements.
	Project Manager, National Cement Manufacturer, Wastewater and Stormwater Compliance Audits, Nationwide: Conducted wastewater and stormwater compliance audits for several cement kilns and associated quarries for an international cement manufacturer.  Compliance with state and federal Clean Water Act requirements was evaluated and recommendations presented.  Work led to multiple corrective action projects that included surface mining permit applications, stormwater compliance, wastewater compliance, etc.
	Project Manager, Chemical Bulk Storage Spill Prevention Reports, Various Industrial Client through New York State, NY: Developed six chemical bulk storage spill prevention reports (CBS SPRs) for industrial clients throughout New York State.
	Task Manager, United States Army Post, Pollution Prevention Plan, Fort Drum, Watertown, NY:  Task manager for development of a pollution prevention (P2) plan at a major United States Army post.  Project included data collection at 100 industrial processes.  Following data manipulation, a P2 plan was developed that included technical and economic evaluation of approximately 90 P2 opportunities.  Recommendations were made for short- and long-term P2 initiatives, and for readily implementable initiatives that were primarily training related.
	Project Engineer, United States Navy, P2 Project:  United States Navy P2 project to develop fact sheets for specific P2 technologies.  The fact sheets are posted on the DENIX on-line database for use by Department of Defense personnel.  Included in the fact sheets are technical and economic evaluations along with contact persons.
	Project Engineer, Aerospace Manufacturing Facility, P2 Alternatives:   Responsible for identifying P2 alternatives at an aerospace manufacturing facility.  General P2 concepts and site-specific opportunities were presented at in-house training seminars for different levels of plan personnel (senior management, line management, production personnel) for different technologies (metal plating, machining, solvent cleaning, etc.)
	Project Engineer, Petroleum Distributor, Solid and Hazardous Waste Study:  Performed solid and hazardous waste studies for petroleum distributor located throughout the northeastern United States.  Studies quantified the amount of waste, type of wastes, waste characteristics, and the associated disposal cost at over sixty locations.  Recommendations were presented to minimize waste generation, reduce disposal cost, and reduce potential liability.
	Project Manager, Hazardous Waste Reduction Plans (HWRP):  Developed five hazardous waste reduction plans (HWRP) in accordance with NYSDEC requirements.  The HWRPs developed alternatives for hazardous chemical reduction in the following industries: pharmaceutical and phenolic resin production.
	ACADEMIC RESEARCH
	State University of New York at Buffalo, Department of Civil Engineering Staff:  Research Engineer; Laboratory Treatability Studies, 1985-1990.  Conducted research in support of obtaining MS and PhD degrees, in addition to directing the research of other MS candidates.  Typical projects included:
	 Evaluated offline aerobic biological regeneration of activated carbon by conducting experimental and numerical modeling studies.
	 Prepared and obtained two research grants worth $500,000 over a four year period to conduct anaerobic biological activated carbon studies.  Matching funds were obtained from the New York State Energy Research and Development Authority, the New York State Center for Hazardous Waste Research, and the manufacturing facility.
	 Conducted bench scale and pilot scale treatability studies of anaerobic biological activated carbon treatment of phenolic  wastewaters.  In addition to process research related to loading rates, hydraulic loading, and organic loading; fundamental research was conducted on the effects of startup and transient loading conditions on the anaerobic organisms and the activated carbon.  A finite difference/finite element model was developed to examine the interactions of external mass transfer, diffusion in the biofilm, biodegradation in the biofilm, and diffusion within the carbon particle.
	 Conducted treatability studies for groundwater/leachate from a hazardous waste site in New York State.  Technologies investigated included: metals precipitation, air stripping for volatile organic compound removal, aerobic biological treatment with and without powdered activated carbon under varying temperatures subjected to idle times between 1 and 4 weeks, and granular activated carbon polishing.
	Professional Societies/Affiliates
	Chi Epsilon Civil Engineering Honor Society, Member
	Water Environment Federation, Member
	Publications
	American Council of Engineering Companies of New York (ACEC) nationally broadcast webinar titled: Chasing Infiltration in Large Diameter Sewers and Tunnels, Richard R. Roll, P.E. NFWB, John Goeddertz, Ph.D., February 18, 2016.
	Anaerobic Digester Rehabilitation at the Buffalo Sewer Authority, Roberta Gaiek, P.E. BSA, John Goeddertz, Ph.D., 23rd Annual Greater Buffalo Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 2005. 
	City of Salamanca Board of Public Utilities - Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade, John Goeddertz, Ph.D., 24th Annual Greater Buffalo Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 2006.
	Achieving Flow Reduction by Partial Falls Street Tunnel Abandonment, Richard R. Roll, P.E. NFWB, John G. Goeddertz, Ph. D., 30th Annual Greater Buffalo Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 27th, 2012.
	Iroquois Street Sewer Lining Project, Richard R. Roll, P.E., NFWB, John G. Goeddertz, Ph.D., 33rd Annual Greater Buffalo Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 24th, 2015.
	NCLSD & CHSD WWTP Upgrades and District Expansion Options, John G. Goeddertz, Ph.D., 34th Annual Greater Buffalo Environmental Conference (GBEC), March 2016.
	I&I Removal By Flow Rerouting And Tunnel Abandonment, Richard R. Roll, P. E., DEE, NFWB, John G. Goeddertz, Ph. D., Daniel A. Milewski, P. E., Water Environment Federation annual technical exhibition and conference (WEFTEC), October 2013.
	Sewer Stabilization and Infiltration Removal through Liner Insertion, R. R. Roll, P.E., NFWB, J. G. Goeddertz, J. W. Barnett; Water Environment Federation annual technical exhibition and conference (WEFTEC), September 2015.
	“Offline Bioregeneration of Granular Activated Carbon”, Journal of the Environmental Engineering Division, American Society of Civil Engineers, October 1988 (co-authors M.R. Matsumoto, and A.S. Weber).
	“Startup and Operation of an Anaerobic Biological Activated Carbon (AnBAC) Process for Treatment of High Strength Multicomponent Inhibitory Wastewater”, Environmental Progress, American Institute of Chemical Engineers, May 1990 (co-authors A.S. Weber, and W.C Ying).
	“Startup and Operation of an Anaerobic Biological Activated Carbon Process for Treatment of a High Strength Multicomponent Wastewater”, Proceedings, American Institute of Chemical Engineers 1989 Summer National Meeting, August 1989 (co-authors A.S. Weber and W.C. Ying).
	“Sequenced Anaerobic/Aerobic Biological Activated Carbon (BAC) Process Treatment of a High Strength Multicomponent Inhibitory Wastewater”, Proceedings, 20th Annual Meeting of the Fine Particle Society, August 1989 (co-authors W. Lin, A.S. Weber, and W.C. Ying).
	“Feasibility of Offline Bioregeneration of Granular Activated Carbon”, Proceedings, 1987 ASCE EED Specialty Conference, July 1987 (co-authors A.W. Weber and M.R. Matsumoto).
	“Effects of Extended Idle Periods on Hazardous Waste Biotreatment”, Proceedings, International Conference on Innovative Biological Treatment of Toxic Waste, pp 221-243, June 1986 (co-authors A.W. Weber, M.R. Matsumoto, and A.J. Rabideau).
	Awards
	American Council of Engineering Companies of New York (ACEC) 2013 Engineering Excellence Diamond Award - Falls Street Tunnel Inflow Reduction Project.  The award was issued for the Special Projects category which includes underground construction.  The project was then submitted to the ACEC National Engineering Excellence awards and was awarded a National Recognition Award.

	Delamere master 2020 AECOM_full.pdf
	Mr. Delamere is an Engineer-In-Training (EIT) with 10 years of project engineering experience with municipal capital improvement project work including municipal facilities, water supply/distribution, and sewerage works.  His responsibilities have included resident project representation, testing certification, quantity measurement and progress documentation. 
	Experience
	Sanitary Sewer
	Transportation 

	Radomski Jordan Resume AECOM 2020.pdf
	Mr. Radomski is water/wastewater engineer. He has acted as a field inspector for municipal projects including sanitary sewer installation and wastewater treatment.  His responsibilities have included resident project inspection and representation, testing certification, quantity measurement, progress documentation, review of submittals, and verification of pay apps.
	Experience
	Wastewater Treatment
	Niagara Falls Water Board Project 4: Granular Activated Carbon Replacement and Carbon Filter Support Gravel Replacement: Project Engineer for designing, drawing and preparing documents for the project. Design included removal and replacement of Granular Activated Carbon as well as removing and replacing the Filter Support Gravel.
	Buffalo Sewer Authority Digester No. 5 Renovation: Resident inspector for installation and testing of a new Digester floating cover, associated Digester 5 piping, refurbishment of the Digester 5 & 6 heat exchangers and several process upgrades to the Plant including automation of the digester withdrawal for digesters 5 & 6.
	Buffalo Sewer Authority Anaerobic Digester Waste Stream Addition and Co-Digestion Facility Improvements: Project engineer involved in a study conducted at the Buffalo Sewer Authority that investigates the Plant’s ability to accept high strength waste streams and food wastes into their anaerobic digester and optimize the management of all hauled waste materials including septic, oil and grease, leachate, and sludge.
	Buffalo Sewer Authority Septage and Sludge Transfer Station Piping Improvements: Project Engineer for designing, drawing and preparing documents for the project. Design included installing a new sanitary pipe connected to the existing sanitary pipe to increase the amount of material the Plant can intake.
	Sanitary Sewer



	43)  RESOLUTION 2021-09-014 - Authorizing Execution of FEMA Grant Agreement
	44)  FEMA Project Grant Master Contract C000804_1
	FEMA Project Grant Master Contract C000804.pdf
	2. Contract Face Page.pdf
	3. Master Grant.pdf
	4. Attachment A-1 Agency Specific Terms.pdf
	5. Attachment A-2 Terms and Conditions for Federal Grants.pdf
	6. Attachment B-3 Capital Based Budget.pdf
	7. Attachment C - Program Work Plan.pdf
	8. Attachment D - Payment and Reporting Schedule.pdf
	10. FEMA Phase II Revised Approval Letter 05012020.pdf
	11. Exhibit E.pdf
	9. Signature Page.pdf

	45)  NFWB Storage Capacity Report
	1 NFWB Tank Cover
	2 NFWB Tank Report 8-26-21
	3a A NFWB Tank Divider Sheets 1
	3b A - AWWA Article
	4a B NFWB Tank Divider Sheets 2
	4b B - Beech Ave.Tank Site 11x17
	4c B - WTP Profile with 56th St.Tank Site 11x17
	5a C NFWB Tank Divider Sheets 3
	5b C - System Layout 11x17
	6a D NFWB Tank Divider Sheets 4
	6b D - Model Graphics
	1 EXISTING
	EXISTING

	2 Beech Ave Tank
	Beech Ave Tank

	3 56th St Tank
	56th St Tank

	4 WWTP Tank 4A
	WWTP Tank A1

	5 WWTP Tank 4B
	WWTP Tank B

	6 WWTP Tank 4C
	WWTP Tank C

	7 BUFF HL
	BUFF HL


	7a E NFWB Tank Divider Sheets 5
	7b NiagaraCountyDistLetter
	8a F NFWB Tank Divider Sheets 6
	8b NFWB Tank Estimates

	46)  NFWB Tank and Water Operations Report 9-15-21



